MINISTRY OF EDUCATION OF THE PERUBLIC OF AZERBAIJAN

ABSTRACTS

of the IV Congress of the

TURKIC WORLD MATHEMATICAL SOCIETY

1-3 July, 2011



The Ministry of Education of the Azerbaijan Republic



Azerbaijan National Academy of Science



Baku State University



Institute of Applied Mathematics BSU

BAKU-2011

Editorial Board:

Aliev Fikret (Azerbaijan) – Editor in-Chief Gasimov Yusif (Azerbaijan) – Scientific Secretary

Akhmedov Ali (Azerbaijan) Aripov Mirsaid (Uzbekistan) Ayda-zade Kamil (Azerbaijan) Ayupov Shavkat (Uzbekistan) Danaev Nargozy (Kazakhstan) Farmonov Shakir (Uzbekistan) Guseinov Sharif (Latvia) Gusein-Zade Sabir (Russia) Huseynov Hidayet (Azerbaijan) Kalmenov Tynysbek (Kazakhstan) Mahmut Ergut (Turkey) Pahakhov Etibar (Turkey) Serovayski Semion (Kazakhstan) Vasfi Eldem (Turkey)

Editorial assistants:

Agamalieva Latifa (Azerbaijan) Zulfugarova Rena (Azerbaijan) Huseynova Nargiz (Azerbaijan) Safarova Nargiz (Azerbaijan) Rustamova Lamiya (Azerbaijan)

Abstracts of the IV Congress of the Turkic World Mathematical Society, 1-3 July, 2011, 535p.

ISSB 978-9952-8018-3-5

The book contains abstract of the participants of the IV Congress of the Turkic World Mathematical Society.

The book will be useful for the specialists in the field of Mathematics and its applications, as well as for the students in Mathematics and Information Technologies.





Preface

The Turkic World Mathematical Society (TWMS) held its 4th Congress in July 1-3, 2011 in Baku, Azerbaijan. The aim of the Congress was to provide a forum where scientists and mathematicians from academia and industry can meet to share ideas of latest research work in wide branches of mathematics. The Turkic World Mathematical Society (TWMS) was founded in 1999 and unites mathematicians from Turkey, Kazakhstan, Azerbaijan, Kyrgyzstan, Uzbekistan, Turkmenistan and also Russia, Iran, China, USA and European countries. It had been held three congresses of this society since 1999: the First Congress of the TWMS in Firat University (Elazig, Turkey) in 1999, the Second Congress of the TWMS in Sakarya University (Adapazari, Turkey) in 2007, the Third Congress of the TWMS in al-Faraby Kazakh National University (Almaty, Kazakhstan) in 2009.

This issue of abstracts was presented at the IV Congress of the TWMS. The Congress is organized by the Ministry of Education of Azerbaijan Republic, Institute of Applied Mathematics of Baku State University with the collaboration and support of the Azerbaijan National Academy of Sciences. The 562 abstracts presented during three Congress days. More than 650 participants from more than 20 countries including France, Iran, Turkey, Uzbekistan, USA, Russia, Ukraine, Kazakhstan, Turkmenistan, Azerbaijan, Kyrgyzstan, Germany, Latvia, Italy, Czech Republic, India, Pakistan, Spain participated in the Congress. The programm contained 9 invited talks, selected by the International Program Committee, 470 contributions were selected for oral presentation. Congress included 10 topics.

Organizing and Program Committees of the IV Congress of the Turkic World Mathematics Society established competition in three nominations.

- 1. One award for the best young (under 30) participant's talk.
- 2. One award for the best talk on theoretical mathematics.
- 3. One award for the best talk on applied mathematics.

All submitted papers were reviewed by two independent reviewers. The selected papers will be published in: "Applied and Computational Mathematics" (ISSN 1683-3511, indexed in Scopus and in Science Citation Index Expanded, www.science.az/acm), "TWMS Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics (ISSN 2076-2585)" and "TWMS Journal of Applied and Engineering Mathematics (ISSN 2146-1147). We wish to thank all the authors for their co-operation. We also wish to mention with appreciation the significant role of the reviewers from the international community whose diligent contribution led to the successful completion and publishing of this special edition. Many people contributed time and effort to make the Congress a success: The authors and speakers have prepared a great collection of high-quality contributions, the program committee spent time and effort reviewing the submissions, the members of the organizing committee all took on additional responsibilities, and many student volunteers helped with practical aspects.

We thank the Ministry of Education of Azerbaijan Republic for major funding for the Congress; without their support the meeting can not have taken place. We thank also the Baku State University and the Azerbaijan National Academy of Sciences for his support. I would like to thank the members of the Organizing Committee, the International Advisory Committee, the International Program Committee and the Local Committee for organization and successful passing of the Congress.

Aliev Fikret Vice-president of TWMS Editor in Chief

CONTENTS

SECTION I Algebra and Mathematical Logic	5
SECTION II	
Geometry and Topology	
SECTION III	
Function Theory and Functional Analysis	60
SECTION IV	
Partial and Ordinary Differential Equations	136
SECTION V	
Probability Theory, Mathematical Statistics and Fuzzy Systems	298
SECTION VI	
Computational Mathematics	318
SECTION VII	
Control Theory and Optimization	352
SECTION VIII	
Mathematical Modeling	408
SECTION IX	
Theoretical Bases of Information Technologies	485
SECTION X	
History and Teaching Methods of Mathematics	506





SECTION I Algebra and Mathematical Logic

SOME CHARACTERIZATIONS OF RIESZ SETS

Ali Ulger Koç University, Sariyer, Istanbul, Turkey e-mail:aulger@ku.edu.tr

Let G be a compact abelian group equipped with its normalized Haar measure, L^1G its group algebra and M(G) its measure algebra. For a subset E of the dual group \hat{G} , let $L^1_E(G) = \{a \in L^1(G) : \hat{a}(\gamma) = 0 \text{ for } \gamma \in \hat{G} \setminus E\}$ and $M_E(G) = \{a \in M(G) : \hat{a}(\gamma) = 0 \text{ for } \gamma \in \hat{G} \setminus E\}$. These are ideals of the algebras L^1G and M(G), respectively. If the equality $L^1_E(G) = M_E(G)$ holds (via Radon-Nikodym Theorem) the set E is said to be a Riesz set. In this talk we present a series of characterizations of Riesz sets.

POINCARE SERIES OF MULTI-INDEX FILTRATIONS, INTEGRATION WITH RESPECT TO THE EULER CHARACTERISTIC AND MONODROMY ZETA FUNCTIONS

S.M.Gusein-Zade Lomonosov Moscow State University, Moscow, Russia e-mail:sabirg@list.ru

There are a number of observations when Poincare series of natural filtrations on rings of germs of functions are related (sometimes coincide) with certain monodromy zeta functions. These relations are not really understood. They are obtained by direct computations of their sides in one and the same terms and comparison of the obtained results. The definition of the Poincare series of a multi-index filtration is related with the notion of integration with respect to the Euler characteristic over the projectivization of the ring of germs of functions (which is an infinite dimensional space). Integration with respect to the Euler characteristic is also a useful tool for computing Poincare series and monodromy zeta functions. I'll discuss the basic notions and statements and also some recent results. The talk is based on joint works with A.Campillo, F.Delgado and W.Ebeling.





DEFINED MATHEMATICAL CONCEPT WITH VALUES IN THE EXTENDED SET OF REAL NUMBERS

E.Zh. Aidos Kazakh Technical University K.I.Satpayev, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:erkaraai@mai.ru

This article discusses the problem concerning the definition of some basic mathematical concepts on which there is no common view among mathematicians. Such problematic issues include: the concept of existence of the derivative, limit, continuity of functions at a point, as well as their associated definitions of certain mathematical objects, such as a tangent to the graph of the function, the concept of smoothness, etc. For example, consider the well-known definition of a smooth curve. Definition (see [1], §5.15). The function f is smooth on the interval [a, b], if it has a continuous derivative on this interval. By this definition, for example, the function $y = \sqrt[3]{x}, x \in [a, b], a < 0, b > 0$, is not smooth at a specified interval - in this case mathematics "unanimous." But because of its lack of smoothness of the mathematicians there is no single view: Some attribute this to the non-existence of the derivative and the other with a discontinuity of the derivative of the function at point x = 0 is that the cases $f'(x) = +\infty$ or $f'(x) = -\infty$, some mathematicians are seen for the "existence of the derivative function at a point x", but some believe that derivative is not here (there is also math, counting indefinitely without a specific character $f'(x) = \infty$, as "the existence of the derivative). In our approach, the function $y = \sqrt[3]{x}$ is smooth on the interval [a, b], a < 0, b > 0! This is proved in the article, but here only the following conclusion: in the sense of this definition, function $y = x^3$, in an obvious way smooth, so that the inverse function $y = \sqrt[3]{x}$ must also refer to a class of "smooth". After all, if the metal wire shapes $y = x^3$ to rotate relative to the line y = x on 180⁰, her smoothness remain unchanged. In an article for a smooth curve we are three equivalent definitions of the three mathematical languages, some of the above mathematical concepts are defined in a different aspect than they exist in well-known textbook definition, and on the basis of these definitions are removed differences mathematicians on the above areas of concern.

References

[1] S.M. Nikol'skii. A Course in Mathematical Analysis // Science, Vol.1, 1983.





DIFFERENTIAL ALGEBRA OF BIQUATERNIONS BIWAVE EQUATIONS AND THEIR GENERALIZED SOLUTIONS

Lyudmila A. Alexeyeva Institute of Mathematics, Ministry of Education and Science, Kazakhstan e-mail:alexeeva@math.kz

The differential algebra of biquaternions is designed, which is very suitable for solving the broad class of the mathematical physics problems. This algebra is associative but not commutative.

With use of differential operator - mutual complex gradients (*bigradients*), which generalize a notion of the gradient on the functional space of biquaternions B(M) on the Minkovskiy space M we consider *biwave equation* on $B(M) = \{\mathbf{F} = f(\tau, x) + F(\tau, x)\}, (\tau, x) \in M, f$ is complex function and F is complex three dimensional vector-function:

$$\nabla^{\pm} \mathbf{B} = (\partial_{\tau} \pm i\nabla) \circ (b(\tau, x) + B(\tau, x)) =$$

$$= (\partial_{\tau} b \mp i \operatorname{div} B) + \partial_{\tau} B \pm i \operatorname{grad} B \pm i \operatorname{rot} B = \mathbf{F}(\tau, x)$$

Invariance of this equation for the group of the Lorentz transformations are proved.

Using the property of mutual bigradients:

$$\nabla^{-} (\nabla^{+} \mathbf{B}) = \nabla^{+} (\nabla^{-} \mathbf{B}) = (\nabla^{-} \circ \nabla^{+}) \mathbf{B} = \Box \mathbf{B},$$

where $\Box = (\frac{\partial^2}{\partial \tau^2} - \Delta)$ is the wave Dalamber's operator, the generalized decisions of biwave equations are built, including steady-state case and the case of stationary vibrations [1,2,3].

With use of bigradients it is possible the many systems of the equations of utter mediums to bring about solving the biwave equation. In particular, it is built the biwave equation, which is equivalent to the system of Maxwell equations and their generalized biquaternionic decisions have been built [3,4].

The equation of quantum mechanics - a matrix equation of Dirac is considered and its biquaternionic form is built:

$$\nabla^{\pm} \mathbf{B} + i\rho \mathbf{B} = \mathbf{F}(\tau, x), \text{ here } \rho \text{ is real constant.}$$

The generalized decisions of Dirac equation in biquaternionic form also are constructed. The biquaternionic form of spinors and spinors fields are presented.

On the base of this algebra in [3,5] biquaternionic model of electro-gravimagnetic fields and their interactions has been built.

- L.A.Alexeyeva. The Differential algebra of biquaternions.1. The Lorentz transformations // Mathematical Journal, Vol.10, No.1, 2010, pp. 33-41
- [2] L.A. Alexeyeva. The Differential algebra of biquaternions.2. Generalised decisions of biwave equations// Mathematical Journal, Vol.10, No.3, 2010, pp.5-13.
- [3] L.A. Alexeyeva. The Field analogues of the Newton laws for the one model of electro-gravimagnetic field // Hypercomplex numbers in geometries and physics, Vol.6, No.1, 2009, pp.122-134.
- [4] L.A. Alexeyeva. Quaternions of Hamiltonian form of the Maxwell equations // Mathematical Journal, Vol.3, No.4, 2003, pp.20-24.
- [5] L.A. Alexeyeva. The Equations of A-fields interaction and the Newton laws // Transaction of National Academy of Sciences of Res.Kazakhstan, Physical and mathematical issue, No.3, 2004, pp.45-53.





ALMOST TAME AUTOMORPHISMS OF TWO GENERATED FREE LEIBNIZ ALGEBRAS

Kulaisha Beisenbaeva Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:beisenbaeva@yandex.kz

Recall that a Leibniz algebra \mathfrak{g} over an arbitrary field K is a non-associative algebra with a bilinear bracket [-, -] satisfying the Leibniz identity

$$[x, [y, z]] = [[x, y], z] - [[x, z], y].$$

The Leibniz algebras were first introduced in 1965 by A. Blokh [3] as a non-antisymmetric version of Lie algebras and were rediscovered in 1993 by J.-L. Loday [5]. These algebras are related in a natural way to several topics as differential geometry, homological algebra, classical algebraic topology, and noncommutative geometry [5].

Two generated free Leibniz algebras have wild automorphisms. It is proved in [1] that the automorphism

$$\sigma = (x + [[y, y], x], y)$$

of $LB\langle x, y \rangle$ the free Leibniz algebra in two variables x, y over K is not tame.

An automorphism φ of $LB\langle x, y \rangle$ is called *almost triangular* if $\varphi(y) = \underline{y}$ and an automorphism of $LB\langle x, y \rangle$ is called *almost tame* if it is a product of almost triangular and linear automorphisms. The automorphism σ gives an example of an almost tame but not tame automorphism of $LB\langle x, y \rangle$. Hence it seems natural to ask whether every automorphism of $LB\langle x, y \rangle$ is almost tame. Denote by $GL_2(K)$, $AT(LB\langle x, y \rangle)$, and $ATame(LB\langle x, y \rangle)$ the groups of all linear, almost triangular, and almost tame automorphisms of $LB\langle x, y \rangle$, respectively.

Theorem 1. $ATame(LB\langle x, y \rangle) = GL_2(K) *_H AT(LB\langle x, y \rangle)$ where $H = GL_2(K) \cap AT(LB\langle x, y \rangle)$.

This is an analogue of the well-known decomposition theorem for groups of automorphisms of polynomial algebras and free associative algebras in two variables [4]. An analogue of this result for tame automorphisms of $LB\langle x, y \rangle$ is proved in [2].

Theorem 2. The automorphism $\delta = (x + f, y + g)$, where

$$\begin{split} f &= [[[x,x],[[y,x],x]],x] - [[[[y,x],x],[[y,x],x]],x], \\ g &= [[x,x],[[y,x],x]] - [[[y,x],x],[[y,x],x]], \end{split}$$

of the free two generated Leibniz algebra $LB\langle x, y \rangle$ is not almost tame.

The question about a "convenient" set of generators of $Aut(LB\langle x, y \rangle)$ is still open.

- A.T. Abdykhalykov, A.A. Mikhalev, U.U. Umirbaev. Automorphisms of two-generated free Leibniz algebras // Commun. Algebra, Vol.29, No.7, 2001, pp. 2953-2960.
- [2] K.Sh.Beisenbaeva. A representation of the group of tame automorphisms of free Leibniz algebras of rank 2 // Vestnik ENU, No.6, 2010, pp. 171-177.
- [3] A.Blokh. On a generalization of the concept of Lie algebra // Dokl. Akad. Nauk SSSR, Vol.165, 1965, pp.471-473.
- [4] P.M.Cohn. Free Rings and Their Relations // 2nd Ed., Academic Press, London, 1985.
- [5] J.L.Loday. Une version non commutative des algèbres de Lie: les algèbres de Leibniz // L'Enseignement Math. Vol.39, 1993, pp. 269-293.





ON EXTENSION OF \mathcal{P} -SEQUENTIALLY CONTINUOUS MAPPING

Boljiev Buras Asanbekovich American University of Central Asia, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:boljieb_b@mail.auca.kg, boljievb@mail.ru

It was studied in [1] a sequentially continuous mapping and an extension of sequentially continuous mapping into sequentially complete uniform space. Here we consider a generalization of a sequentially continuous mapping and its extension into a uniform space with certain properties of completeness due to some ideas of Bernstein [2].

Suppose \mathfrak{M} - is an infinite cardinal, and $\mathfrak{M} = \beta \mathfrak{M} \setminus \mathfrak{M}$ is Stone-Cech remainder of the discrete space of power \mathfrak{M} - or the space of all free ultrafilters on the set of power \mathfrak{M} . Below by \mathfrak{M} we understand the first ordinal number of cardinality \mathfrak{M} . Let $p \in \mathfrak{M}^*$ and $\mathcal{P} \subset \mathfrak{M}^*$, where $\mathcal{P} \neq \emptyset$. Arbitrary set of points $\{x_{\xi}, \xi \in \mathfrak{M}\}$ in a topological space is called a \mathfrak{M} -sequence. Following[2], we say that $x = p - \lim x_{\xi}$, or x is a $p - \lim$ point of $\{x_{\xi}, \xi \in \mathfrak{M}\}$ in (X, τ) if for any neighborhood O_x of x we have $\{\xi, x_{\xi} \in O_x\} \in p$. If for any $p \in \mathcal{P}$, there is $x = p - \lim x_{\xi}$ then we say that the sequence $\{x_{\xi}, \xi \in \mathfrak{M}\} \mathcal{P} - s$ - converges to x, or $\{x_{\xi}, \xi \in \mathfrak{M}\}$ is $\mathcal{P} - s$ convergent and x is its $\mathcal{P} - s$ limit.

Theorem 1. Suppose that $X = \bigcup \{H_{\alpha} : \alpha \in \mathfrak{M}^+\}$, $H_{\alpha} \subset H_{\beta}$ for any $\alpha < \beta$ and $F : X \to Y$ is a map with the following property: $F|_{H_{\alpha}}$ is a $\mathcal{P} - s$ - sequentially continuous mapping of H_{α} into Y for any α . Then F is a $\mathcal{P} - s$ - sequentially continuous mapping of X into Y.

Suppose that (X, \mathcal{U}) is a uniform space. The sequence $\{x_{\xi}, \xi \in \mathfrak{M}\}$ in (X, \mathcal{U}) is called a Cauchy $\mathcal{P} - s$ -sequence if for any cover $\alpha \in U$ there is a set $V \in \alpha$ such that $\{\xi, x_{\xi} \in V\} \in p$ for any $p \in \mathcal{P}$.

Theorem 2. Let H be a \mathcal{P} -s-sequentially dense subset in (X, \mathcal{U}) and (Y, V) is a \mathcal{P} -s-sequentially complete uniform space. In order a \mathcal{P} -s-sequentially continuous by mapping $f : H \to (Y, \tau_V)$ could be \mathcal{P} -s- sequentially continuous extended on X it is necessary and sufficient that for any $\beta \in V$ there exists \mathcal{P} -s sequentially open cover α of (X, τ) such that $\alpha \wedge \{H\}$ is inscribed in cover $f^{-1}(\beta) = \{f^{-1}(B); B \in \beta\}$.

- B.A. Boljiev. On a class of spaces containing sequential prostranstva // Kirg. state. Univ. RLST Kirgh. SSR.16.11.87, No.320, 2, (in Russian).
- [2] A.R. Bernstein. A compactness for topological spaces // Fund. Math., 1970, Vol.66, pp. 185-193.





POWER SUM FOR BINOMIAL COEFFICIENTS

Askar Dzhumadil'daev, Damir Yeliussizov Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:dzhuma@hotmail.com, yeldamir@gmail.com

For positive integers k, m and N set

$$f_{k,m}(N) = \sum_{i=0}^{N-1} {\binom{i+k-1}{k}}^m.$$

Well-known that $f_{1,m}(N) = \sum_{i=1}^{N-1} i^m$ is a polynomial in N of degree m + 1. By Faulhaber theorem $f_{1,m}(x)$ is divisible by polynomial $f_{1,1}(x) = x(x-1)/2$. Moreover, for odd m it is divisible by $f_{1,1}(x)^2$ and remained divisor is a polynomial in $f_{1,1}(x)$; If m is even, then $f_{1,m}(x)$ can be presented as a polynomial of $f_{1,1}(x)$ multiplied by (2x-1) (see [1]). We establish the following analog of Faulhaber theorem for a sum of powers of binomial coefficients.

Theorem 1. The power sum $f_{k,m}(x)$ is a polynomial of degree km + 1 with rational coefficients and there exist polynomials $Q_{k,m}(x) \in \mathbf{Q}[x]$, such that

$$f_{k,m}(x) = \begin{cases} \binom{x+k-1}{k+1}^2 Q_{k,m}((2x+k-2)^2), & \text{if } m > 1, k \text{ are odd numbers,} \\ \binom{x+k-1}{k+1}(2x+k-2)Q_{k,m}((2x+k-2)^2), & \text{if } k \text{ is odd and } m \text{ is even,} \\ \binom{x+k-1}{k+1}Q_{k,m}((2x+k-2)^2), & \text{otherwise.} \end{cases}$$

Let us consider negative power sum

$$\zeta(k,m) = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \binom{i+k-1}{k}^{-m}.$$

Theorem 2. For any positive integers k and m there exist rational numbers $\lambda_0, \lambda_1, \ldots, \lambda_{\lceil m/2 \rceil}$ such that

$$\zeta(k,m) = \begin{cases} \lambda_0 + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\ m/2 \\ \lambda_0 + \sum_{i=1}^{\lceil m/2 \rceil} \lambda_i \zeta(2i), & \text{if } km \text{ is } even, \\ \lambda_0 + \sum_{i=1}^{\lceil m/2 \rceil} \lambda_i \zeta(2i-1), & \text{if } km \text{ is } odd. \end{cases}$$

For example, for k = 2 takes place the following formula

$$\frac{\zeta(2,m)}{2^m} = (-1)^{m-1} \binom{2m-1}{m} + (-1)^m \sum_{i=1}^{\lfloor m/2 \rfloor} \binom{2m+2i-1}{2i} (-1)^{i+1} \frac{(2\pi)^{2i}}{(2i)!} B_{2i}.$$

References

[1] D. Knuth. Johann Faulhaber and sums of powers // Mathematics of Computation, No.61, 1993, pp. 277-294.







CONSTRUCTION OF ANALOGS OF KRAMER DETERMINANTS FOR ALGEBRAIC SYSTEM

R.M.Dzhabarzadeh Institute of Cybernetics, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:Rakhshanda.dzhabarzade@rambler.ru

Let the algebraic system be

$$\{a_{0,i} + \sum_{k=1}^{k_{1,i}} a_{1,k,i} x_1^k + \sum_{k=1}^{k_{2,i}} a_{2,k,i} x_2^k + \dots + \sum_{k=1}^{k_{n,i}} a_{n,k,i} x_n^k\} = 0 (i = 1, 2, \dots, n).$$
(1)

1-st index of factor $a_{r,k,i}$ specifies an index of a variable $x_r;k$ there is a degree from which x_r entering in *i*-th the equation of system (1).

In (1) we shall introduce following labels: $k_r = \max k_{r,i}, i = 1, 2, ..., k; x_s^r = \lambda_{k_1+k_2+...+k_{s-1}+r}$, $a_{r,s,i} = d_{k_1+k_2+...+k_{s-1}+s,i}, r = 1, 2, ..., n; s = 1, 2, ..., n; s = 1, 2, ..., n$ $a_{r,s,i} = d_{k_1+k_2+...+k_{s-1}+s,i}, r = 1, 2, ..., n; s = 1, 2, ..., n; s = 1, 2, ..., n$

In new labels in tensor product $R \otimes R \otimes ... \otimes R(n \text{ of times})$ the system (1) can be noted as

$$\left\{\sum_{r=0}^{n}\sum_{k=1}^{k_{r}}(d_{k_{1}+k_{2}+...+k_{s-1}+k,i}\lambda_{k_{1}+k_{2}+...+k_{s-1}+k})x_{i}=0;k_{0}=0;k_{-i}=0;i=1,2,...,n\right\}$$

where $x_i \in R$ eigenvectors of *i*-th equation of last system. Let's add system (1) by means of the auxiliary equations according to requirements of system (1).

$$\begin{aligned} & (t_2 + \lambda_{k_1 + k_2 + \dots + k_{i-1} + 1} t_0 + \lambda_{k_1 + k_2 + \dots + k_{i-1} + k_i} t_1) x_{k_1 + \dots + k_{i-1} + 1} = 0 \\ & \dots \\ & (\lambda_{k_1 + k_2 + \dots + k_i - 2} t_2 + \lambda_{k_1 + k_2 + \dots + k_i - 1} t_0 + \lambda_{k_1 + \dots + k_i} t_1) x_{k_1 + k_2 + \dots + k_i} = 0; i = 1, \dots, n; \end{aligned}$$

where operators t_0, t_1, t_2 are set by means of matrixes

$$\overline{H}t_1 = \begin{pmatrix} 1 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \end{pmatrix}, t_2 = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 1 \end{pmatrix}$$
(3)

((1), (2)), considered together, form the multiparameter system consisting of $k_1 + k_2 + ... + k_n$ the equations and containing $k_1 + k_2 + ... + k_n$ parameters. Analogs of determinants of Cramer for the system (1) are obtained with help of expansions of corresponding determinants of the system ((1), (2)) considering, that tensor product of k any matrixes from(3) there is a matrix with number of lines and columns are equal to 2^k .

- [1] R.M. Dzhabarzade, G.H. Salmanova. Proceedings of NAS Azerbaijan, Vol.33, No.41, 2010, pp. 43-48.
- R.M. Dzhabarzadeh. Spectral theory of two parameter system in finite- dimensional space // Transactions of NAS Azerbaijan, Vol.3-4, 1998, pp. 12-18.
- [3] R.M.Dzhabarzadeh. Spectral theory of multiparameter system of operators in Hilbert space // Transactions of NAS of Azerbaijan, Vol.1-2, 1999, pp. 33-40.





NEW ALGEBRAIC STRUCTURES ON DIFFERENTIAL OPERATORS

Askar S. Dzhumadil'daev Institute of Mathematics, Academy of Sciences of Kazakhstan, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:dzhuma@hotmail.com

Let $A = (A, \circ)$ be an algebra with vector space A and multiplication \circ . Denote by $A^{(q)} = (A, \circ_q)$ an algebra with vector space A under q-commutator $a \circ_q b = a \circ b + q b \circ a$. For a category of algebras C denote by $C^{(q)}$ a category of algebras of a form $A^{(q)} = (A, \circ_q)$, where $A = (A, \circ) \in C$. For example, if A = Ass is a category of associative algebras, then $Ass^{(-1)}$ is a category of Lie algebras.

A vector field is a differential operator of first order. A composition of operators is a natural operation on a space of differential operators. Space of vector fields is not close under composition. It is close under Lie commutator, $[D_1, D_2] = D_1D_2 - D_2D_1$. Let us define N-commutator of differential operators as a skew-symmetric sum of N! compositions

$$s_N(D_1,\ldots,D_N) = \sum_{\sigma \in S_N} sign \, \sigma \, D_{\sigma(1)} \cdots D_{\sigma(N)}$$

Let $\mathcal{D}_{n,p}$ be a space of differential operators with n variables of differential degree p. For example, $\mathcal{D}_{n,1}$ coincides with a space of vector fields on n-dimensional manifold Vect(n). Another example, laplacian $\Delta = \sum_{i=1}^{n} u_i \partial_i^2 \in \mathcal{D}_{n,2}$.

Theorem 1. Let $q^2 \neq 1$. Then the categories of algebras C and $C^{(q)}$ are isomorphic. Moreover, if C is a variety, i.e. is generated by polynomial identities, then $C^{(q)}$ is also variety.

Theorem 2. For any positive integers n and p there exists N = N(n, p) such that N-commutator is well-defined on a space of differential operators $\mathcal{D}_{n,p}$.

If $N = n^2 + 2n - 2$, then N-commutator is well-defined on Vect(n). The space $\mathcal{D}_{n,2}$ has nontrivial N-commutator for $N = (n^2 + 5n + 2)/2$ and $\mathcal{D}_{n,3}$ has N-commutator for $N = (n^3 + 9n^2 + 26n + 6)/6$. For example, 4-commutator of four differential operators of second order on the line can be calculated by wronskians

$$s_4(u_1\partial^2, u_2\partial^2, u_3\partial^2, u_4\partial^2) = -2 \begin{vmatrix} u_1 & u_2 & u_3 & u_4 \\ \partial(u_1) & \partial(u_2) & \partial(u_3) & \partial(u_4) \\ \partial^2(u_1) & \partial^2(u_2) & \partial^2(u_3) & \partial^2(u_4) \\ \partial^3(u_1) & \partial^3(u_2) & \partial^3(u_3) & \partial^3(u_4) \end{vmatrix} \partial^2.$$

We study identities of these kind N-algebras on differential operators. For example, we establish that an algebra $\mathbf{C}[x]$ under Jordan commutator $a \star b = \partial(ab)$ satisfies the following identity

$$(a \star b) \star (c \star d) - (a \star d) \star (c \star b) = (a, b, c) \star d - (a, d, c) \star b$$

where $(a, b, c) = a \star (b \star c) - (a \star b) \star c$. Partially these results was published in the following papers of author.

- Trees, free right-symmetric algebras, free Novikov algebras and identities // Homology, Homotopy and Applications, Vol.4, No.2(1), 2002, pp. 165-190.
- [2] Novikov-Jordan algebras // Comm. Algebra, Vol.30, No.11, 2002, pp. 5207-5240, Preprint available math.RA/0202044.
- [3] Identities and derivations for Jacobian algebras, Contemp. Math. Vol.315, 2002, pp. 245-278, Preprint available math.RA/0202040.
- [4] N-commutators // Comm.Math. Helvetici, Vol.79, No.3, 2004, pp.516-553, Preprint available math.RA/0203036
- [5] Algebras with skew-symmetric identity of degree 3 // J. Math. Sci, Vol.161, No.1, 2009, pp. 11-30.
- [6] Anticommutative algebas with skew-symmetric identity // J.Algebra Appl., Vol.8, No.2, 2009, pp. 157-180.





LIFTS OF TENSOR FIELDS TO THE COFRAME BUNDLE

Habil D. Fattayev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:gabil_dovlatoglu@yahoo.com

K.P.Mok, L.A.Cordero and M.Leon studied ([1], [2]) complete and horizontal lifts of tensor fields from a differentiable manifold M to its frame bundle FM. The present work is devoted to the construction of complete and horizontal lifts of tensor fields to coframe bundle.

The differentiable manifold M_n of class C^{∞} with a affine connection ∇ is considered. Let L^*M_n be the coframe bundle over manifold M_n . We consider $(x^i, X_i^{\alpha}) = (x^i, x^{i_{\alpha}}), \alpha = 1, ..., n, i_{\alpha} = n + 1, ..., n + n^2$, as local coordinates in a neighborhood $\pi^{-1}(U)$ (π is the natural projection L^*M_n onto M_n). The skew-symmetric tensor field S of type (1, 2), having coordinates S_{kj}^i in natural frame $\{\partial_i\}$ is considered. The complete lift of tensor field S to coframe bundle L^*M_n is defined as a tensor field c^S of type (1, 2) with components:

$$^{c}S_{kj}^{i} = S_{kj}^{i}, \ ^{c}S_{k\gamma j}^{i} = \ ^{c}S_{kj\beta}^{i} = \ ^{c}S_{k\gamma j\beta}^{i} = \ ^{c}S_{k\gamma j\beta}^{i} = \ ^{c}S_{k\gamma j\beta}^{i\alpha} = 0,$$

$$^{c}S_{kj}^{i\alpha} = X_{m}^{\alpha}(\partial_{k}S_{ij}^{m} + \partial_{j}S_{ki}^{m} - \partial_{i}S_{kj}^{m}),$$

$$^{c}S_{k\gamma j}^{i\alpha} = \delta_{\gamma}^{\alpha}S_{ij}^{k}, \ ^{c}S_{kj\beta}^{i\alpha} = \delta_{\beta}^{\alpha}S_{ki}^{j},$$

where δ^{α}_{β} is the Kronecker delta.

The horizontal lift ${}^{H}S$ of tensor field S is defined by analogy of the complete lift. Relation between the complete and horizontal lifts of tensor field S to coframe bundle L^*M_n is investigated.

K.P. Mok. Complete lifts of tensor fields and connections to the frame bundle // Proc. London Math. Soc., Vol.32, 1972, pp. 72-88.

^[2] L.A. Cordero, M. Leon. Lifts of tensor fields to the frame bundle // Rend. Cir. Mat. Palermo, Vol.32, 1983, pp. 236-271.





LORENTZIAN HOLONOMY ALGEBRAS AND THEIR APPLICATIONS ¹

Anton S. Galaev Masaryk University, Brno, Czech Republic e-mail:galaev@math.muni.cz

The classical result of Berger states that the holonomy algebra of an indecomposable not locally symmetric *n*-dimensional Riemannian manifold is one of the following subalgebras of $\mathfrak{so}(n)$: $\mathfrak{so}(n)$, $\mathfrak{u}(m)$, $\mathfrak{su}(m)$ (n = 2m), $\mathfrak{sp}(k)$, $\mathfrak{sp}(k) \oplus \mathfrak{sp}(1)$ (n = 4k), G_2 (n = 7), $\mathfrak{spin}(7)$ (n = 8). In general, a Riemannian manifold is locally a product of a flat Riemannian manifold and of Riemannian manifolds with irreducible holonomy algebras. This result has a lot of consequences and applications both in geometry and physics, see [9] and the references there. Riemannian manifolds with the most of possible holonomy algebras are automatically Einstein or Ricci flat, and they admit parallel spinors.

We study the holonomy algebras of Lorentzian manifolds. Any Lorentzian manifold is locally a product of a Riemannian manifold and of a Lorentzian manifold that is further indecomposable. Hence, it is enough to consider an indecomposable Lorentzian manifold (M, g) (let dim $M = n + 2 \ge 3$). In this case the holonomy algebra $\mathfrak{g} \subset \mathfrak{so}(1, n + 1)$ does not preserve any non-degenerate subspace of the tangent space. If $\mathfrak{g} \neq \mathfrak{so}(1, n + 1)$, then \mathfrak{g} must preserve an isotropic line of the tangent space, hence it is contained in the similitude Lie algebra, $\mathfrak{g} \subset \mathfrak{sim}(n) = \mathbb{R} \oplus \mathfrak{so}(n) \oplus \mathbb{R}^n$. There are the following 4 types of the Lorentzian holonomy algebras $\mathfrak{g} \subset \mathfrak{sim}(n)$:

$$\mathfrak{g} = \mathbb{R} \oplus \mathfrak{h} \oplus \mathbb{R}^n, \quad \mathfrak{g} = \mathfrak{h} \oplus \mathbb{R}^n, \quad \mathfrak{g} = \{\varphi(A) + A | A \in \mathfrak{h}\} \oplus \mathbb{R}^n, \quad \mathfrak{g} = \{A + \psi(A) | A \in \mathfrak{h}\} \oplus \mathbb{R}^m,$$

where $\mathfrak{h} \subset \mathfrak{so}(n)$ is a Riemannian holonomy algebra, $\varphi : \mathfrak{h} \to \mathbb{R}$ is a non-zero homomorphism; for the last algebra $\mathbb{R}^n = \mathbb{R}^m \oplus \mathbb{R}^{n-m}$ is an orthogonal decomposition, $\mathfrak{h} \subset \mathfrak{so}(m)$ and $\psi : \mathfrak{h} \to \mathbb{R}^{n-m}$ is a surjective homomorphism. This result is obtained by Berard-Bergery, Ikemakhen, Leistner and the author, see the review [4]. For example, the manifolds with the holonomy algebras $\mathbb{R}^n \subset \mathfrak{sim}(n)$ are pp-waves, thay are used in theoretical physics.

For each of the above algebras we construct a Lorentzian metric, realizing it as the holonomy algebra. We describe the curvature tensors of Lorentzian manifolds with each possible holonomy algebra. Motivated by [8], we find all possible holonomy algebras of Einstein and Ricci-flat Lorentzian manifolds, and we use this in [6] for simplifying the Einstein equation on Lorentzian manifolds with special holonomy. In [7], conformally flat Lorentzian manifolds with special holonomy are described. In [1], two-symmetric Lorentzian manifolds, i.e. satisfying $\nabla^2 R = 0$, are classified. Possible physical applications are discussed, e.g. in [2, 3, 8].

- [1] D.V. Alekseevsky, A.S. Galaev. Two-symmetric Lorentzian Manifolds // arXiv:1011.3439.
- [2] J. Brannlund, A. Coley, S. Hervik. Supersymmetry, Holonomy and Kundt Spacetimes // Class. Quantum Grav., Vol.25, 195007, 2008.
- [3] S. Cecotti. A Geometric Introduction to F-Theory // Lectures Notes, SISSA 2010.
- [4] A.S. Galaev, T. Leistner. Holonomy Groups of Lorentzian Manifolds: Classification, Examples, and Applications, in Recent Developments in Pseudo-Riemannian Geometry // ESI Lect. Math. Phys., Eur., pp. 53-96, Math. Soc., Zürich, 2008.
- [5] A.S. Galaev. Holonomy of Einstein Lorentzian manifolds // Class. Quantum Grav., Vol.27, 075008, 2010.
- [6] A.S. Galaev, T.Leistner. On the local structure of Lorentzian Einstein Manifolds with Parallel Distribution of Null Lines // Class. Quantum Grav., Vol.27, 225003, 2010.
- [7] A.S. Galaev. Conformally flat Lorentzian manifolds with special holonomy // arXiv:1011.3977.
- [8] G.W. Gibbons, C.N. Pope. Time-Dependent Multi-Centre Solutions from New Metrics with Holonomy Sim(n-2)// Class. Quantum Grav. Vol.26, 125015, 2008.
- [9] D.Joyce. Riemannian Holonomy Groups and Calibrated Geometry // Oxford Univ. Press, 2007.

 $^{^1}$ $\,$ This research is supported by grants GACR 201/09/P039 and MSM 0021622409 of Czech Republic.





KAZHDAN PROPERTY (T) AND C*-DYNAMICAL SYSTEM¹

Ghorbanali Haghighatdoost, Esmail Abedi Azarbaijan University of Tarbiat Moallem, Tabriz, Iran e-mails:gorbanali@azaruniv.edu,esabedi@azaruniv.edu

In this paper we studied the property (T) for the discrete C^* -dynamical system (A, G, α) and obtained some important results. Our results can be considered as a generalization of some results from the C^* -algebras to the C^* -dynamical systems obtained by B. Bekka [2].

Let A be an unital C^* -algebra with a tracial state. A is said to have property (T) if there exists a finite subset F of A and $\varepsilon > 0$, such that for every Hilbert bimodule having a (F, ε) -central unite vector, there is a non-zero central vector [2]. This definition is similar to Kazhdan property (T) for locally compact groups [6, 1]. Many authors have studied the property (T) for various structures. For example, study of this property for Von Neumann algebras has been done by A. Connes. In their works E. Bedos, G.J. Murphy and others defined the property (T) for algebraic quantum groups. Also a type of the property (T) was studied for Hopf algebras by the authors of the present paper [4]. In this work we defined the property (T) for the C^{*}-dynamical systems. A C^{*}-dynamical system is a triple (A, G, α) , where A is an unital C^{*}-algebra, G is a discrete countable group and α is an action of G on A. Let us say that (A, G, α) has the property (T) if there exists (F, ε, Q, r) , such that for every Hilbert system module, having a (F, ε, Q, r) -central unit vector, there is a non-zero (A, G)-central vector, where F is a finite subset of A, Q is a finite subset of G and both ε and r are greater than zero.

Our results are the following:

(1) If the C^{*}-dynamical system (A, G, α) has the property (T), then its C^{*}-crossed product has property (T) as an unital C^{*}-algebra as well.

(2) If (A, G, α) is a C^{*}-dynamical system with countable discrete group G, then the property (T) of the locally compact group G together with the strong property (T) of A imply the property (T) of (A, G, α) , as well as the property (T) of C^{*} - crossed product and its reduced C^{*}-crossed product.

(3) Let A be a commutative C^* -algebra, and let α be a trivial action such that there exists a faithful representation on A to the Hilbert space $l^2(G)$, then their (T) properties are equivalent.

References

- [1] B.Bekka, P.de la Harpe, A. Valette. Kazhdan Property (T). February 23, 2007.
- [2] M.B.Bekka, Property (T) for C^* -algebras // Bull, London Math. Vol.38, 2006, pp. 857-867.
- [3] K.R.Davidson. C^{*}-algebras by Example // Fields Inst. Monogr, Vol. 6, Amer. Math. 1996.
- Gh.Haghighatdoost, H.Abbasi Mackrani. Property (T) for Hopf algebras // ICASTOR Journal of Mathematical Sciences, Vol.2, No.2, 2008, pp. 113-124.
- [5] P.Jolissaint. Property (T) for pairs of topological groups // Enseign. Math. Vol.215, 2005, pp. 31-45.
- [6] D.Kazhdan. Connection of the dual space of a group with the structure of its closed subgroups // Funct. Anal. Appl., 1967, pp. 63-65.

 1 This research is supported by research office of Azarbaijan University of Tarbiat Moallem





THE CUBICAL HOMOLOGY OF SETS OVER TRACE MONOIDS

Ahmet A. Husainov Komsomolsk-on-Amur State Technical University Komsomolsk-on-Amur, Russian Federation e-mail:husainov51@yandex.ru

For an arbitrary set with an action of a trace monoid, we prove that its simplicial and cubical homology groups are isomorphic. It allows us to get the finite complexes to calculate the homology groups for some mathematical models of concurrency.

Let *E* be a set with an irreflexive symmetric relation $I \subseteq E \times E$. Denote by E^* the free monoid of words with the empty word $1 \in E^*$. For the set $R = \{(ab, ba) | (a, b) \in I\}$ there is a smallest congruence relation \equiv_I containing *R*. A trace monoid M(E, I) is a quotient monoid E^* / \equiv_I .

Consider a pair (M(E, I), X) where X is a set with a right action of a trace monoid M(E, I), written as $x \mapsto x \cdot \mu$ for $x \in X$ and $\mu \in M(E, I)$. Denote by $\mathscr{C}(M(E, I), X)$ a category with objects $Ob(\mathscr{C}(M(E, I), X)) = X$ and morphisms defined as triples $x \xrightarrow{\mu} x'$ for which $x \cdot \mu = x'$.

We define a homology groups $H_n(M(E, I), X)$, $n \ge 0$, as the homology groups of the nerve of the category $\mathscr{C}(M(E, I), X)$.

A precubical set $Q_{\diamond} = (Q_n, \partial_i^{n,\varepsilon})$ is a sequence of sets $Q_n, n \ge 0$, and a family of maps $\partial_i^{n,\varepsilon}$, where $n \ge 0, 1 \le i \le n, \varepsilon \in \{0, 1\}$, which satisfy the equations $\partial_i^{n-1,\alpha} \circ \partial_j^{n,\beta} = \partial_{j-1}^{n-1,\beta} \partial_j^{n,\alpha}$ for all $n \ge 2$, $1 \le i < j \le n$, and $\alpha, \beta \in \{0, 1\}$.

For a set S, denote by L(S) a free abelian group generated by S. Let $H_n(Q_{\diamond})$ be homology groups of the complex

$$0 \leftarrow L(Q_0) \stackrel{d_1}{\leftarrow} L(Q_1) \stackrel{d_2}{\leftarrow} L(Q_2) \leftarrow \dots \leftarrow L(Q_{n-1}) \stackrel{d_n}{\leftarrow} L(Q_n) \leftarrow \dots$$

where $d_n(q) = \sum_{i=1}^{n} (-1)^i (\partial_i^{n,1}(q) - \partial_i^{n,0}(q))$ for all $q \in Q_n$.

Let (M(E, I), X) be a set over a trace monoid with a totally order relation on E. For any $n \ge 1$, denote by E_n the set of all *n*-tuples $e_1 < \cdots < e_n$ in E satisfying the condition $(e_i, e_j) \in I$ for all $1 \le i < j \le n$. Define $E_0 = 1$. We get a precubical set $Q_n(M(E, I), X) = \{(x, e_1, \cdots, e_n) | x \in X, (e_1, \cdots, e_n) \in E_n\}, \partial_i^{n,\varepsilon}(x, e_1, \cdots, e_n) = (x \cdot e_i^{\varepsilon}, e_1, \cdots, e_{i-1}, e_{i+1}, \cdots, e_n)$, where $e_i^0 = 1, e_i^1 = e_i$.

Theorem 1. If E does not contain infinite subsets of pairwise commuting elements, then independently of the order relation there are the isomorphisms $H_n(M(E, I), X) \cong H_n(Q_\diamond(M(E, I), X))$ for $n \ge 0$. A set S with a partially action of M(E, I) can be considered as a pointed set $S_* = S \sqcup \{*\}$ with the extension of the action by $x \cdot \mu = *$ when $x \cdot \mu$ is not defined, and $* \cdot \mu = *$. An asynchronous system $(M(E, I), S_*, s_0)$ can be defined as a pointed set over a trace monoid with distinguished element $s_0 \in S$. An element $s \in S$ is reachable if there is $\mu \in M(E, I)$ such that $s_0 \cdot \mu = s$. Let $S(s_0)$ the set of reachable elements and $S_*(s_0) = S(s_0) \sqcup \{*\}$. Following [1] we define the homology groups $H_n(M(E, I), S, s_0)$ as $H_n(M(E, I), S_*(s_0))$.

It follows from Theorem 1 that $H_n(M(E, I), S, s_0) \cong H_n(Q_{\diamond}(M(E, I), S_*(s_0)))$. Each Petri net can be considered as an asynchronous system. A prefix-closed trace languages can be defined as an asynchronous system. Theorem 1 allows us to build the asynchronous systems, the Petri nets, and the prefix-closed trace languages the homology groups of which can have arbitrary amounts of torsion in dimensions $n \ge 2$.

Ahmet A. Husainov. On the homology of small categories and asynchronous transition systems // Homology Homotopy Appl., Vol.6, No.1, 2004, pp. 439-471, http://www.rmi.acnet.ge/hha/volumes/2004/volume6-1.htm





THE PROOF OF LEGENDRE HYPOTHESIS

Javanshir Kara Ismayil Sumgait Natural Science Gymnasium, Sumgait, Azerbaijan e-mail:cavanshir_ismail@mail.ru

There are a lot of unsolved problems related with prime numbers. The most famous of which were listed by Edmund Landau at the Fifth International Congress of Mathematicians (Cambridge Great Britain, 1912). One of these problems-is Legendre hypothesis (Landau's third problem): In the interval (n2; (n+1)2) there is at least one prime number.

Namely, this article is devoted to solving of this problem.

KELLER ENDOMORPHISMS OF POLYNOMIALS' ALGEBRA IN TWO VARIABLES

R. K. Kerimbayev Al-Farabi Kazakh National University e-mail:ker_im@mail.ru

We consider and investigate two variables' polynomials' algebra endomorphisms' ring over zero characteristics field. Here we give Keller endomorphism definition and its properties are investigated. In two variables' polynomials' algebra two polynomials' Jacobean requests Lee structure. Then we can get the Lee algebra's homology group. In this work we prove the following theorem.

Theorem. Keller endomorphism of two variables' polynomials' algebra over zero characteristics field with identical endomorphism is compared precisely to the boundaries.





FOUR COLOR THEOREM

Jamshid G'ofur Zabihullo o'gli e-mail:degdz@mail.ru

It is generally known all difficulties, are connected with to find of *chromatic number* h(G) given simple (n, m)-Graph G, where n(G) = n - number of nodes, m(G) = m - number of edges and the well-known *Four color Problem*.

Subject of this Report is to message the important results more than a quarter prescription's centure [1] which have remained in "shadow". Concept *k*-partite Graph, are entered into the Graph's Theory most likely, in connection with studying of *chromatic number h* of Graphs G. And though concepts: *k*-partite Graph and *k*-colorable Graph are designate the same mathematical object, however, actually, from a point of view of studying the problem Graph's colorability, there was convenient and perspective the concept of *k*-partite Graphs.

In the above mentioned work it was noted, that *k*-partite Graph will have independent interest for Graph's Theory and outside of a problem of chromatic number as they appeared closely connected with numerous combinatory problems. There the interesting appendix some property of *k*-partite Graph's for the decision of one known problem having old history. It is a problem, so-called, Ramsey numbers in Ramsey's Theorem.

But a basic result of this work was: the constructive proof of a sufficient condition of k-colorability Graph G. From a case at k=4 follows of the above mentioned well-known Four color Theorem. Here is this interesting

Theorem. [Jamshid G'ofur, 1981]. Every (n, m, φ) -Graph G with number of nodes n, with number of edges m and with number of density $\varphi(G) \leq k$, is k-colorable Graph, if:

$m(G) \le \mu^*(n,k)$

where $\mu^*(n,k)$ - a least chromatic invariant k-partite Graph's, and $k \in \{1, 2, ..., n\}$ [1].

In the report it has been considered also other important theorem which was till now the next problem of the Graph's Theory. It is known as *Hadwiger's Hypothesis*. In the middle of last century Hugo Hadwiger, in a context of the Four color problem has put forward such *Hypothesis*:

Hadwigwer's hypothesis. [2] Every k-colourable Graph with the chromatic number h(G) = k, by means of shrinkage some edges, it is being reduced in a full Graph F_k with a k nodes.

It is known, that at k = 5 from this Hypothesis follows the *Four color Theorem*. The constructive proof of this interesting Hypothesis, also follows from a properties *k*-partite Graph [1].

- [1] Jamshid G'ofur. New sight to the old problem. k-partite Graphs // Preprint N30, Novosibirsk: 1981, 31p.
- [2] Hugo Hadwiger. Über eine Klassifikation der Streckenkomplexe // Naturforsch Ges. Zürich, Band, Vol.88, 1943, pp. 133-142.





TRIPLE LIE DIFFERENTIATION OF ALGEBRAS OF MEASURABLE OPERATORS

Ilkhom Juraev National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

We prove that every Triple Lie derivation on algebras of measurable operators for von Neumann algebras is in standard form, that is, it can be uniquely decomposed into the sum of a derivation and a center-valued trace.

Let A be an algebra. A linear operator $L : A \to A$ is said to be a triple Lie differentiation if $L[[x, y], z] = [[L(x), y], z] + [[x, L(y)], z] + [[x, y], L(z)]], \forall x, y, z \in A$. A linear operator $D : A \to A$ is called *differentiation* if D(xy) = D(x)y + xD(y) for all $x, y \in A$. Any element $a \in A$ defines the differentiation D_a by the rule $D_a(x) = ax - xa, x \in A$. Differentiations in the form of D_a are said inner.

Denote by Z(A) the center of A.

A linear operator $\tau: A \to Z(A)$ is called a center-valued trace if $\tau(xy) = \tau(yx), \forall x, y \in A$.

Theorem 1. Let $L: S(M) \to S(M)$ be a triple Lie differentiation. Then $L = D + \tau$, where D is an associated differentiation and τ is a center-valued trace from S(M) into Z(S(M)).

Let $L^0(\Omega) = L^0(\Omega, \Sigma, \mu)$ be an algebra of equivalence classes of all complex measurable functions on (Ω, Σ, μ) . Consider arbitrary differentiation $\delta : L^0(\Omega) \to L^0(\Omega)$, and D_{δ} — the "coordinate-wise" differentiation on $M_n(L^0(\Omega))$ of the $n \times n$ matrices over $L^0(\Omega)$, defined by the rule

$$D_{\delta}\left(\left(\lambda_{ij}\right)_{i,j=1}^{n}\right) = \left(\delta\left(\lambda_{ij}\right)_{i,j=1}^{n}\right)$$

where $(\lambda_{ij})_{i,j=1}^n \in M_n(L^0(\Omega))$. The operator D_{δ} is a differentiation on $M_n(L^0(\Omega))$. Taking this into account, we can define the differentiation D_{δ} on S(M) [1] where M is an I-type von Neumann algebra I, setting

$$D_{\delta}(x) = (D_{\delta_{\alpha}}(x_{\alpha})), \quad x = (x_{\alpha}) \in S(M).$$
(1)

We obtain from Theorem 3.6 [1] the following

Corollary. Let M be an I-type von Neumann algebra. Then any Triple Lie differentiation can be uniquely represented in the form of

$$L = D_{\alpha} + D_{\delta} + \tau$$

where D_{α} is an inner differentiation, D_{δ} is the differentiation in the form of (1).

- S. Albeverio, Sh.A. Ayupov, K.K. Kudaybergenov. Structure of derivations on various algebras of measurable operators for type I von Neumann algebras // J. Func. Anal., Vol.256, 2009, pp. 2917-2943.
- [2] N. Jacobson, C.E. Rickart. Jordan homomorphisms of rings // Trans. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.69, 1950, pp. 479-502.
- [3] G. Lister. A structure theory of Lie triple systems // Trans. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.72, 1952, pp. 217-242.





DESCRIPTION OF ENDOMORPHISMS OF FINITE-DIMENSIONAL KAPLANSKY-HILBERT MODULES

Jasurbek A. Karimov National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:karimov@tps.uz

Let L^0 be the algebra of equivalence classes of all measurable complex valued functions defined on measure space (Ω, Σ, μ) with finite measure, $B(\Omega)$ be the Boolean algebra of all idempotents in L^0 . Let X be the left module over L^0 , and $\langle x|y\rangle$ be the scalar product on X with values in L^0 . If X is complete under the L^0 -value norm $||x|| = \sqrt{\langle x|x\rangle}$, then X is called the Kaplansky-Hilbert module over L^0 . For each $x \in X$ we set $s(x) = \mathbf{1} - \sup\{e \in B(\Omega) : ex = 0\}$, where **1** is the identity in $B(\Omega)$. If X has the orthonormal set $\{x_i\}_{i=1}^n = E$ with $E^{\perp} = \{0\}$, then the Kaplansky-Hilbert module X is called *n*-homogeneous. We say that X is a finite-dimensional Kaplansky-Hilbert module over L^0 , if there exists the finite partition $\{e_i\}_{i=1}^m$ of the identity **1**, such that e_iX is n_i -homogeneous Kaplansky-Hilbert module over e_iL^0 , $n_i \in \mathbf{N}$, $i = \overline{1, m}$, $n_1 < n_2 < \ldots < n_m$.

Theorem 1. The following conditions are equivalent:

- (i) X is finite-dimensional;
- (ii) X is finitely generated, i. e. there exists finite set $\{x_i\}_{i=1}^k \subset X$, such that $X = \left\{\sum_{i=1}^k \alpha_i x_i : \sum_{i=1}^k \alpha_i x_i : \sum_{i=1}$

$$\alpha_i \in L^0, i = \overline{1, k} \bigg\};$$

(iii) there exists $n \in \mathbf{N}$, such that for all nonzero $e \in B(\Omega)$ any eL^0 -linearly independent system from eX contains no more than n elements.

Let B(X) be the set of all endomorphisms in X.

Theorem 2. Let X be a finite-dimensional Kaplansky-Hilbert module, $T \in B(X)$. Then there exist orthogonal sets $\{x_i\}_{i=1}^k$, $\{y_i\}_{i=1}^k$ in X and the set $\{\lambda_i\}_{i=1}^k \subset L^0$, such that $0 \neq s(\lambda_i) \leq s(x_i)$, $\langle x_i | x_i \rangle \in B(\Omega), 0 \neq \langle y_i | y_i \rangle \in B(\Omega), i = \overline{1, k}$ and

$$Tx = \sum_{i=1}^{k} \lambda_i \langle x | x_i \rangle y_i$$

for all $x \in X$.





THE CONSTRUCTIVIZABILITY CRITERION OF THE ONE CLASS TORSION-FREE NILPOTENT GROUPS

Nazif G. Khisamiev D. Serikbaev East Kazakhstan Technical University, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Kazakhstan e-mail:hisamiev@mail.ru

The study of constructive groups began with Mal'cev posing in [1] the general question of "finding given abstractly defined groups, which constructive enumerations they admit". This question is considered for torsion-free nilpotent groups, whose commutant has finite dimension.

Theorem 1. Suppose that (G, ν) is a constructive group and B is a computable enumerable subgroups of G such that the quotient G/B is a torsion-free abelian group and for all finite set $F \subseteq G$ the dimension of the quotient of the centralizer C(F) of the set F by B is infinite. Then there exists an enumeration μ of G possessing the following properties:

1) the group (G, μ) is constructive;

2) the subgroup B is computable in (G, μ) ;

3) there exists a computable enumerable system $\{c_i \mid i \in I\}$ of elements in (G, μ) such that the cosets $\{c_i B\}$ form a basic of the quotient G/B.

Theorem 2. Suppose that G is a torsion-free nilpotent group and the quotient of G by the isolator I(G') of the commutant G' has infinite dimension. If the dimension of G' is finite then any finite set $F \subseteq G$ the dimension of the quotient C(F)/I(G') is infinite.

On the basis of this theorem we received the following criteria for the constructivizability of a group G.

Theorem 3. Suppose that G is a torsion-free nilpotent group such that the dimension of G' is finite. Then G is constructivizable if and only if there exists the following central series

$$G_0 = G \ge G_1 \ge \ldots \ge G_n = e$$

and a contructivizations $\bar{\nu}_i$ of central factors $\bar{G}_i = G_i/G_{i+1}$ such that the group (G_i, ν_i) is the extension of constructive group (G_{i+1}, ν_{i+1}) by the constructive group $(\bar{G}_i, \bar{\nu}_i)$ and some recursive system of factor from $(\bar{G}_i, \bar{\nu}_i)$ in (G_{i+1}, ν_{i+1}) , i < n.

References

- [1] A.I. Mal'cev. On recursive abelian groups // Dokl. Akad. Nauk SSR, Vol.46, No.5, 1962, pp. 1009-1012.
- [2] N.G. Khisamiev. On constructive nilpotent groups // Siberian Math. J., Vol.48, No.1, 2007, pp. 172-179.

[3] N.G. Khisamiev. Constructive R_p -torsion free nilpotent groups // Siberian Math. J., Vol.50, No.1, 2009, pp. 117-123.





ON BINARY TYPES IN WEAKLY O-MINIMAL THEORIES

Beibut Sh. Kulpeshov Institute for Problems of Informatics and Control, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kbsh@ipic.kz

Let L be a countable first-order language. Everywhere in this paper we consider L-structures and assume that L contains a binary relation symbol < that is interpreted as a linear ordering in these structures.

This talk concerns the notion of *weak o-minimality* originally deeply studied by D. Macpherson, D. Marker and C. Steinhorn in [1]. A weakly o-minimal structure is a linearly ordered structure $M = \langle M, =, <, \ldots \rangle$ such that any definable (with parameters) subset of M is a finite union of convex sets in M. Real closed fields with a proper convex valuation ring provide an important example of weakly o-minimal structures.

Let M be a weakly o-minimal structure, $A \subseteq M$, $p, q \in S_1(A)$ be non-algebraic. We say that p is not weakly orthogonal to q ($p \not\perp^w q$) if there are an A-definable formula H(x, y), $\alpha \in p(M)$ and $\beta_1, \beta_2 \in q(M)$ such that $\beta_1 \in H(M, \alpha)$ and $\beta_2 \notin H(M, \alpha)$.

We say a tuple $\bar{a} = \langle a_1, a_2, \ldots, a_n \rangle \in M^n$ is increasing if $a_1 < a_2 < \ldots < a_n$. Let $A \subseteq M$, A be finite, $p_1, p_2, \ldots, p_s \in S_1(A)$ be non-algebraic. We say that the family of 1-types $\{p_1, \ldots, p_s\}$ is weakly orthogonal over A if every s-tuple $\langle a_1, \ldots, a_s \rangle \in p_1(M) \times \ldots \times p_s(M)$ satisfies the same type over A. We say that the family of 1-types $\{p_1, \ldots, p_s\}$ is orthogonal over A if for every sequence $(n_1, \ldots, n_s) \in \omega^s$ and for every increasing tuples $\bar{a}_1, \bar{a}'_1 \in [p_1(M)]^{n_1}, \ldots, \bar{a}_s, \bar{a}'_s \in [p_s(M)]^{n_s}$ such that $\operatorname{tp}(\bar{a}_1/A) = \operatorname{tp}(\bar{a}'_1/A), \ldots, \operatorname{tp}(\bar{a}_s/A) = \operatorname{tp}(\bar{a}'_s/A)$ we have $\operatorname{tp}(\langle \bar{a}_1, \ldots, \bar{a}_s \rangle \langle A) = \operatorname{tp}(\langle \bar{a}'_1, \ldots, \bar{a}'_s \rangle \langle A)$. If $A \subseteq M$, $p_1, p_2 \in S_1(A)$ and $p_1 \perp^w p_2$ then obviously $\{p_1, p_2\}$ is weakly orthogonal over A.

Let $p \in S_1(A)$ be non-algebraic. We say p is binary over A if for every $n < \omega$ and for every $b_1 < b_2 < \ldots < b_n, b'_1 < b'_2 < \ldots < b'_n \in p(M)$ such that $\operatorname{tp}(\langle b_i, b_j \rangle / A) = \operatorname{tp}(\langle b'_i, b'_j \rangle / A)$ for all $1 \leq i < j \leq n$ we have $\operatorname{tp}(\bar{b}/A) = \operatorname{tp}(\bar{b}'/A)$. If $p \in S_1(\emptyset)$ is non-algebraic and p is binary over \emptyset , we say p is binary.

Example 1 Let $M = \langle Q \cup W, \langle E^3, P^1 \rangle$ be a linearly ordered structure, where Q is the set of rational numbers; W is the set of all Q-sequences from $\{0,1\}$ with finitely many non-zero coordinates excepting the only Q-sequence consisting only from $\{0\}$, ordered lexicographically; P(M) = Q, $\neg P(M) = W$ and $P(M) < \neg P(M)$. For every $a \in P(M)$ $E(a, y_1, y_2)$ is an equivalence relation on $\neg P(M)$ defined as follows: for every $a \in P(M)$, $b_1, b_2 \in \neg P(M)$ $E(a, b_1, b_2) \Leftrightarrow b_1(q) = b_2(q)$ for all $q \leq a$, i.e. q-th coordinates of b_1 and b_2 coincide for all $q \leq a$. It can be proved M is an \aleph_0 -categorical weakly o-minimal structure and $p_2 := \{\neg P(x)\}$ is not binary.

In [2] orthogonality of all families of pairwise weakly orthogonal 1-types for \aleph_0 -categorical weakly o-minimal theories of finite convexity rank has been proved. Here we discuss on orthogonality of all families of non-algebraic pairwise weakly orthogonal binary 1-types for an arbitrary \aleph_0 -categorical weakly o-minimal theory.

- H.D. Macpherson, D. Marker, C. Steinhorn. Weakly o-minimal structures and real closed fields // Transactions of The American Mathematical Society, Vol.352, 2000, pp. 5435–5483.
- B.Sh. Kulpeshov. Criterion for binarity of ℵ₀-categorical weakly o-minimal theories // Annals of Pure and Applied Logic, Vol.145, 2007, pp. 354-367.





AXIOMATIZABILITY OF THE CLASS OF POSITIVELY EXISTENTIALLY CLOSED MODELS

Almaz Kungozhin Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kungozhin@gmail.com

We take definitions of notions of the positive logic from [1] and repeat some of them.

We consider a signature Σ with an equality and relations, and we form as usually the first order formulas using \neg , \land , \lor and \exists . *Positive* formulas are formed without negation, i.e. only using \land , \lor and \exists ; they can be written as $(\exists \overline{y}) f(\overline{x}, \overline{y})$, where $f(\overline{x}, \overline{y})$ is a quantifier free positive formula.

A homomorphism from the Σ -structure \mathcal{M} into the Σ -structure \mathcal{N} is an application h from the underlying set M of \mathcal{M} into the underlying set N of \mathcal{N} such that, for each \overline{a} from M, if \overline{a} satisfies the atomic formula $A(\overline{x})$, so does $h(\overline{a})$; we do not assume the reciprocal, so that $h(\overline{a})$ may satisfy furthermore atomic formulas than \overline{a} , and in particular h may not be injective. If there exists an homomorphism from \mathcal{M} to \mathcal{N} , we say that \mathcal{N} is a *continuation* of \mathcal{M} , and that \mathcal{M} is a *beginning* of \mathcal{N} . (We use the words extension/restriction only when h is an embedding, i.e. when \overline{a} and $h(\overline{a})$ satisfy the same atomic formulas).

If h is an homomorphism, then every positive formula $(\exists \overline{y}) f(\overline{x}, \overline{y})$ satisfied by \overline{a} is also satisfied by $h(\overline{a})$. We say that h is an *immersion* if we have the converse, that is if \overline{a} and $h(\overline{a})$ satisfy the same positive formulas; we say then that \mathcal{M} is *immersed*, or *positively existentially closed*, in \mathcal{N} . An immersion is an embedding, but positively existentially closed is weaker than the robinsonian notion, since we consider only positive existential formulas.

An *h*-universal sentence is by definition the negation of a positive sentence; it can be written $\neg(\exists \overline{y})f(\overline{y})$, or equivalently $(\forall \overline{y})\neg f(\overline{y})$, where $f(\overline{y})$ is free and positive.

If C is a class of Σ -structures, we say that an element \mathcal{M} of C is *positively existentially closed* in C if every homomorphism from \mathcal{M} into any member of C is an immersion.

Author find the example of class which axiomatized with infinite number of *h*-universal sentences where the subclass of positively existentially closed models is not elementary.

At the same time it had been proved that if class axiomatized with finite number of *h*-universal sentences then its subclass of positively existentially closed models is axiomatized. And found the example where this axiomatization of the subclass of positively existentially closed models can not be finite.

- I. Ben Yaacov, B. Poizat. Fondaments de la Logique Positive // The Journal of Symbolic Logic, Vol.82, 2007, pp.1 141-1162.
- [2] Almaz Kungozhin. Two properties of positively existentially closed models // Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the Republic of Kazakhstan, series of physics and mathematics, Vol.273, No.5, 2010, Almaty, pp. 18-20.





FINDING THE SOLUTIONS OF UNILATERAL QUADRATIC MATRIX EQUATION

Vladimir B. Larin Institute of Mechanics, National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine, Kiev, Ukraine e-mail:vblarin@gmail.com

Problems of the theory of oscillations continue to take the important place in various engineering problems. Here it is necessary to note the theory of strongly damped systems [1]. In this theory the central place occupy the problems of determination of matrix (or operator [1]) roots of the equations

$$A_2 X^2 + A_1 X + A_0 = 0.$$

In [2] matrix equation (1) is called as the unilateral quadratic matrix equation. Here the wide range of problems of control in which it is necessary to find a solution of (1) is noted. As it is noted in [1], one of motivations of determination of roots of (1) can be the following reasons. In a scalar case the equation (1) can be considered as a characteristic equation of the differential equation with constant coefficients:

$$A_2\ddot{q} + A_1\dot{q} + A_0q = 0.$$

The general solution of this equation, as is known, can be write down in the form:

$$q = c_1 e^{x_1 t} + c_2 e^{x_2 t},$$

where x_1, x_2 are roots of the characteristic equation. Thereupon there is a problem on a possibility of construction of similar relations in a matrix case. That, in turn, will demand determination the roots of (1).

It will be shown, that in some cases, for construction of a solution (1) it is possible to use the method of doubling transformation [3]. This method, unlike algorithm [2], does not demand invertibility of the matrix in (1).

- M.G. Krein. Introduction to the geometry of J-indefinite spaces in theory of operators in these spaces // In: Second summer school, issue 1, Kiev: Naukova Dumka, 1965, pp. 15-92(Russian).
- [2] D.A. Bini, . Meini, F. Poloni. Transforming Algebraic Riccati Equations into Unilateral Quadratic Matrix Equations // Numer. Math., Vol.116, 2010, pp. 553-578.
- [3] V.B. Larin. Solution of Matrix Equations in Problems of the Mechanics and Control // Int. Appl. Mech., 2009, Vol.45, No.8, pp. 847-872.





ON POINT-LINE DISPLACEMENT IN 3-SPACE $\mathbf{E}_{\alpha\beta}^3$

Mehdi Jafari, Yusuf Yayli Islamic Azad University, Urmia, Iran Ankara University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:mjafari@science.ankara.edu.tr, yayli@science.ankara.edu.tr

In kinematics, the motions of a various objects are of major concern. An object may be expressed in the form of a rigid body, a line, a plane, a point, or combinations. Point-line is the combination of an oriented line and an endpoint on the line. Many tools used in manufacturing, such as milling, welding, drilling, screwing, laser jet, etc., can be represented by point-line kinematics. Zhang and Ting[5] showed a framework and the relevant algebraic treatment concerning point-line positions and displacements by using dual quaternion algebra. In Euclidean 3-space, a screw or a dual vector is used to represent a point-line and the pitch is used to measure the endpoint location along the point-line. Aydogmus and et al.[1] studied point-line displacement of a line in Minkowski 3-space. In [1], Dual split quaternion algebra is used to express point-line displacement operation. In previous work, we studied real and dual generalized quaternions and presented some of their algebraic properties[2,3]. Here, we generalize the concept of point-line operator in $E^3_{\alpha\beta}$. The operators offers a simple and unique geometrical interpretation for point-line displacement.

Difinition: In 3-space $E^3_{\alpha\beta}$, a point-line \widehat{A} can be expressed by multiplying a dual number $\exp(\varepsilon h)$, to \widehat{a} , namely $\widehat{A} = \widehat{a} \exp(\varepsilon h) = \overrightarrow{a} + \varepsilon(\overrightarrow{a}^* + h\overrightarrow{a})$, where $\widehat{a} = \overrightarrow{a} + \varepsilon \overrightarrow{a}^*$ is a unit dual vector in $D^3_{\alpha\beta}$. So, \widehat{A} is a dual vector with dual length $\exp(\varepsilon h)$.

- O. Aydogmus, L. Kula, Y. Yayli. On point-line displacement in Minkowski 3-space // Differential geometry-Dynamical systems, Vol.10, 2008, pp. 32-43.
- [2] M. Jafari, Y. Yayli. Generalized Quaternions and Their Algebraic Properties // Submitted for Publication.
- [3] M. Jafari, Y. Yayli. Dual Generalized Quaternions in Spatial Kinematics // 41st Annual Iranian Math. Conference, Urmia University, 12-15 sept., 2010.
- [4] H. Pottman, J. Wallner. Computational Line Geometry // Springer-Verlag Berlin Heidelberg New York, 2000.
- [5] Y. Zhang, K. Ting. On point-line geometry and displacement // Mech. mach. theory, No.39, 2004, pp. 1033-1050.





ISOMORPHISMS AND ALGORITHMIC COMPLEXITY RELATIONS OVER STRUCTURES WITH BIPARTITE BINARY PREDICATE¹

A.A. Mukhanova, A.J. Satekbaeva, J.A. Tussupov Taraz State University named after M.H.Dulaty, Taraz, Kazakhstan e-mail:tussupov@mail.ru

We will consider the problems on algorithmic complexity of isomorphic and definable properties on models and connections with Scott families.

Let \mathcal{A} be a computable structure.

We say that \mathcal{A} is Δ^0_{α} categorical if for all computable $\mathcal{B} \cong \mathcal{A}$, there is a Δ^0_{α} isomorphism from \mathcal{A} to \mathcal{B} .

We say that \mathcal{A} is *relatively* Δ^0_{α} categorical if for all computable $\mathcal{B} \cong \mathcal{A}$, there is a $\Delta^0_{\alpha}(\mathcal{B})$ isomorphism from \mathcal{A} to \mathcal{B} .

The Δ^0_{α} dimension of the structure \mathcal{A} is the number of computable presentations of \mathcal{A} up to Δ^0_{α} isomorphisms.

A Scott family for \mathcal{A} is the set Φ of formulas, with a fixed tuple of \bar{c} in \mathcal{A} , such that 1) each tuple of parameters in \mathcal{A} satisfies some formula $\varphi \in \Phi$, and 2) if both \bar{a} , \bar{b} satisfy the same formula $\varphi \in \Phi$, then there is an automorphism of \mathcal{A} mapping \bar{a} to \bar{b} .

A formally Σ^0_{α} Scott family is a Σ^0_{α} Scott family that is made up of "computable Σ_{α} " formulas. Let \mathcal{A} be a computable structure and R be a relation on \mathcal{A} . We say that R is intrinsically Σ^0_{α} if

Let \mathcal{A} be a computable structure and R be a relation on \mathcal{A} . We say that R is *intrinsically* Σ_{α}° if in all computable $\mathcal{B} \cong \mathcal{A}$ the image of R in \mathcal{B} is Σ_{α}^{0} .

We say that R is relatively intrinsically Σ^0_{α} if in all computable $\mathcal{B} \cong \mathcal{A}$, the image of R is $\Sigma^0_{\alpha}(\mathcal{B})$. We say that R is intrinsically if for each automorphism f of the structure \mathcal{A} the image $f(R) \subseteq R$.

The structure \mathcal{A} with binary predicate P(x, y) is called the structure with bipartition binary predicates P(x, y) if for the sets $K_1 = \{x : \mathcal{A} \models \exists y P(x, y)\}$ and $K_2 = \{x : \mathcal{A} \models \exists y P(y, x)\}$ satisfy the conditions: $K_1 \cap K_2 = \emptyset$ and $K_1 \cup K_2 \neq \emptyset$. Let \mathcal{A} structure with bipartition binary predicates P(x, y). **Theorem 1.** For each computable successor ordinal α there is computable structure \mathcal{A} that is Δ_{α}^0 categorical but not relatively Δ_{α}^0 (and without formally Σ_{α}^0 Scott family).

Theorem 2. For each computable successor ordinal α there is computable structure \mathcal{A} that is Δ^0_{α} with a relation that is intrinsically Σ^0_{α} but not relatively intrinsically Σ^0_{α} .

Theorem 3. For each computable successor ordinal α for each finite *n* there is computable structure \mathcal{A} with Δ^0_{α} dimension *n*.

Theorem 4. For each computable successor ordinal α there is structure \mathcal{A} with presentations in just the degrees of sets X such that $\Delta_{\alpha}^{0}(X) \neq \Delta_{\alpha}^{0}$. In particular, for each finite n there is structure \mathcal{A} with presentations in just the non $-low_n$ degrees.

- S.S. Goncharov, V. S. Harizanov, J. F. Knight, C.Mc.Coy, R. G. Miller, R. Solomon. Enumerations in computable structure theory // Annals of Pure and Applied Logic, Vol.136, No.3, 2005, pp. 219-246.
- [2] I.A. Lavrov. Effective inseparability of the sets of identically truthes and finitely refutable formulas some elementary theories // Journal of Algebra and Logic, Vol.2, No.1, 1963, pp. 5-37, (Russian).
- [3] J.A. Tussupov. Directed graph of finite Δ^0_{α} -dimensions // Journal "Newsletter of Novosibirsk State University", A series of mathematics, mechanics, computer science, Vol.7, No.1, 2007, pp. 104-115, (Russian).

 $^{^1}$ $\,$ This research is supported by the grant Programm of Fundamental Researches - 1.18 "Spectra of universe theory and minimal models".





EQUIVALENCE OF PATHS BY ACTION OF THE SPECIAL PSEUDOORTHOGONAL GROUP

Kabiljon K. Muminov, R. Gaffarov National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan Fergana State University, Fergana, Uzbekistan e-mail:m.muminov@rambler.ru

In this work, the criterion of equivalence of regular paths with respect to the identical action of the special pseudoorthogonal group is determined.

Let $E = C_{p,q}^n$ (where p + q = n) be n-dimensional pseudo-euclidean space, indefinite metrics of which is identified by the equation: $[x, y] = x_1y_1 + \ldots + x_py_p - x_{p+1}y_{p+1} - \ldots - x_ny_n$, where x =

which is identified by $S_{p,q}^{n}$, C is the field of complex numbers. (x_i) $_{i=1}^{n}$, $y = (y_i)_{i=1}^{n} \in C_{p,q}^{n}$, C is the field of complex numbers. We denote by SO(p,q) the special pseudoorthogonal subgroup of GL(n,C) consisting of all transformations $g \in GL(n,C)$, for which det g = 1 and $g^T I g = I$, where I = Diag(1, ..., 1, -1, ..., -1), g^T $C^{m} := Ull d = path$ Two paths

is the transpose of g. Infinitely differentiable mapping $x: (0,1) \to C_{p,q}^n$ is called a path. Two paths x(t) and y(t) are called SO(p,q)-equivalent if there exists element $g \in SO(p,q)$ such that y(t) = gx(t)for any $t \in (0, 1)$.

Let x(t) be a path in $C_{p,q}^n$ and M(x)(t) be a $n \times n$ -matrix $\left(x(t)x'(t)\dots x(t)\right)$, where k-th column

(k-1) (k-1)has coordinates $x_i(t)$, $x_i(t) - (k-1)$ -derivative of $x_i(t)$, i, k = 1, ..., n. The path x(t) is called regular path if det $M(x)(t) \neq 0$ for any $t \in (0, 1)$.

The following theorem provides necessary and sufficient conditions for SO(p,q)-equivalence of two regular paths.

Theorem. Two regular paths $x, y \in C_{p,q}^n$ are SO(p,q)-equivalent if and only if the following equalities are satisfied $\begin{bmatrix} (i-1) & (i-1) \\ x(t), x(t) \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} (i-1) & (i-1) \\ y(t), y(t) \end{bmatrix}$ and $\det M(x)(t) = \det M(y)(t)$ for all $t \in (0,1)$ and i = 1





ON EXISTENTIALLY AND POSITIVELY EXISTENTIALLY CLOSED STRUCTURES

Abyz Nurtazin, Almaz Kungozhin Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:abyznurtazin@mail.ru, kungozhin@gmail.com

The notion of existentially closed structure of a given theory is one of the most classical and nontrivial objects of the Algebraical Model Theory [1]. The two first Nurtazin's theorems are devoted to such structures. On the other hand their analogues for a Positive Logic were introduced by Bruno Poizat a few years ago and are new. The third Kugozgin's theorem says that the class of positively existentially closed models of a finitely axiomatized h-universally axiomatized theory is axiomatizable.

We take definitions of notions of the positive logic from [2] and repeat some of them. We consider a signature Σ with an equality and functional and relational symbols and form as usually the first order formulas. *Positive* formulas are formed without negation.

A very simple and useful enough criterion of an existentially closedness gives us the next theorems

Theorem 1. A model \mathcal{A} is existentially closed if and only if it's every countable elementary submodes is existentially closed.

Corollary. (1) A first order theory T is modelly complete iff there is an existentially closed ω -saturated model in T. (2) (A known fact.) A complete, categorical in some infinite power, inductive theory T is modelly complete.

Theorem 2. A complete inductive theory T of a finite signature is modelly complete.

Corollary. In a complete first order theory T, axiomatizable by axioms with n exchanges of quantifiers, every formula is equivalent to the formula with quantifiers of the same form. A homomorphism is an application h the underlying set of \mathcal{M} into the underlying set N of \mathcal{N} such that, for each \overline{a} from M, if \overline{a} satisfies the atomic formula $A(\overline{x})$, so does $h(\overline{a})$; we do not assume the reciprocal, so that $h(\overline{a})$ may satisfy furthermore atomic formulas than \overline{a} , and in particular h may not be injective. If there exists an homomorphism from \mathcal{M} to \mathcal{N} , we say that \mathcal{N} is a continuation of \mathcal{M} , and that \mathcal{M} is a beginning of \mathcal{N} . (We use the words extension/restriction only when h is an embedding, i.e. when \overline{a} and $h(\overline{a})$ satisfy the same atomic formulas). If h is a homomorphism from the Σ -structure \mathcal{M} into the Σ -structure \mathcal{N} , then every positive formula $(\exists \overline{y})f(\overline{x}, \overline{y})$ satisfied by \overline{a} from \mathcal{M} is also satisfied by $h(\overline{a})$. We say that h is an immersion if we have the converse, that is if \overline{a} and $h(\overline{a})$ satisfy the same positive formulas; we say then that \mathcal{M} is immersed, or positively existentially closed, in \mathcal{N} . An h-universal sentence is by definition the negation of a positive sentence; it can be written $\neg(\exists \overline{y})f(\overline{y})$, or equivalently $(\forall \overline{y}) \neg f(\overline{y})$, where $f(\overline{y})$ is free and positive. If C is a class of Σ -structures, we say that an element \mathcal{M} of C is positively existentially closed in C if every homomorphism from \mathcal{M} into any member of C is an immersion.

The second author had found the example of class which axiomatized with infinite number of *h*-universal sentences where the subclass of positively existentially closed models is not elementary.

Theorem 3. A class of positively existentially closed models of a finitely axiomatizable h-universal class is axiomatizable.

At the same time it had been proved that if and found the example where this axiomatization of the subclass of positively existentially closed models cannot be finite.

- [1] A.Robinson. Metamathematics of Algebra // Amsterdam: North-Holland, 1951.
- [2] I. Ben Yaacov, B. Poizat. Fondaments de la Logique Positive // The Journal of Symbolic Logic, Vol. 82, 2007, pp. 1141-1162.
- [3] Almaz Kungozhin. Two properties of positively existentially closed models // Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the Republic of Kazakhstan, series of physics and mathematics, Vol. 273, No.5, 2010, pp. 18-20.





PARALLEL COMPUTATION OF SOLVING LINEAR SYSTEM WITH ILL-CONDITIONED MATRIX

M. Otelbaev, B. Tuleuov, D. Zhusupova L.N.Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:otelbaevm@mail.ru, berik_t@yahoo.com, zhus_dinara@mail.ru

In the paper [1] we consider

$$Ax = f$$

where A is $n \times n$ real matrix and f is a vector of dimension n. There was proposed one method of solving and parallel computation system (1) with singular or ill-conditioned matrix A.

Consider functional

$$J_{\varepsilon}(x) = |Ax - f|^2 + \varepsilon |x|^2$$

We will find \dot{x} which is the solution of problem to minimize functional:

$$\inf J_{\varepsilon}(x) = J_{\varepsilon}(\dot{x}). \tag{1}$$

Here infimum is given by all vectors x in \mathbb{R}^n . Unit ball is compact in \mathbb{R}^n , it follows that the solution of the minimization problem exists.

Remark 1. If matrix A is non-singular, then $\varepsilon = 0$ and minimization problem has unique solution $\mathring{x} = A^{-1}f$, but if A is singular, then $A\mathring{x}$ implies the best approximation of f by vectors Ax. When $\varepsilon \neq 0$ and A is non-singular then \mathring{x} is the approximate solution of equation Ax = f.

Define a sequence of vectors $x_j (j = 1, 2, ...)$ by the following relations

$$x_j = \delta \sum_{k=0}^{j-1} \left[E - \delta (A^*A + \varepsilon E) \right]^k A^* f,$$
(2)

where \dot{x} is the solution of problem to minimize functional $J_{\varepsilon}(\cdot)$ and $\delta \in (0, 2(||A^*A|| + \varepsilon)^{-1})$.

Theorem 1. Let $\varepsilon \geq 0$, \mathring{x} be the solution of (1) and x_i from (2). Then

$$x_j - \mathring{x} = -[E - \delta(A^*A + \varepsilon E)]^j \mathring{x}$$
(3)

and $x_j \rightarrow \mathring{x}$ as $j \rightarrow +\infty$ with geometric rate. Thus, there exists $\rho > 0$ for all j = 1, 2, ... holds

$$|x_j - \mathring{x}| \le C \cdot \rho^j,\tag{4}$$

where C is the constant which depends on numbers δ, ε .

References

 M. Otelbaev, B.Tuleuov, D. Zhusupova. On a method of finding approximate solutions of ill-conditioned algebraic systems and parallel computation // Eurasian Mathematical Journal, Vol.2, No.1, 2011, pp. 149-151.





SOME PROPERTIES OF A DISCRETE DYNAMICAL SYSTEMS FAMILY DEPENDING ON A MATRIX OF PARAMETERS

Irina N. Pankratova Institute of Mathematics, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:ipalmaty@gmail.com

We consider a class of dynamical systems F^m generated by a map F,

$$F: \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}^n, \quad Fy = \Phi(y)Ay,$$

in a compact set $\mathbf{X} \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ chosen as a phase space,

$$\mathbf{X} = \{ y \in \mathbb{R}^n \mid y \ge 0, \ \|y\| \le a \}, \ a > 0.$$

Here \mathbb{R}^n is the *n*-dimensional real vector space, A is a $(n \times n)$ - matrix and $\Phi(y)$ is a scalar function $(y = (y_1, \ldots, y_n) \ge 0 \text{ means } y_i \ge 0, i = \overline{1, n}, \text{ and } \|\cdot\|$ is a norm in \mathbb{R}^n). Let

$$\operatorname{cone}(y) = \{ \alpha y \mid y \in \mathbb{R}^n, \ \alpha \in \mathbb{R}^+ \}$$

be a ray directed to y where \mathbb{R}^+ be a set of real nonnegative numbers. The system of noncoincident rays $(l_1, ..., l_p)$, $p < \infty$, is called *the cycle of rays of period* p if

$$Al_k = l_{k+1}, \ k = 1, \dots, p-1, \ Al_p = l_1$$

The description of the dynamics of the system F^m in X leads to a study of the behavior of its trajectories in so-called cyclic invariant sets $M_p \subseteq X$ of the map F of finite period $p \ge 1$ containing all ω - limit sets of the system F^m [1]. The set M_p is the intersection of X with invariant subspace of the matrix A consisting of cycles of rays of periods $\le p$. The location of the sets M_p in X and their periods are determined by the matrix A, and these periods are independent of $\Phi(y)$. The period pof the set M_p coincides with the maximum number of parameters μ_1, \ldots, μ_p , by which the dynamics of the system F^m is described in M_p . There may be a few (and even continuum-many) sets M_p of the map F of different periods in different parts of X. Therefore, the dynamics of the system F^m in X is described, generally, by the sets of parameters $(\mu_1, \ldots, \mu_p), p \in N$. So, a question arises as to how to get the greatest period $p^* > 1$ (for a given n > 1) of cyclic invariant sets M_p of a family of n-dimensional dynamical systems F^m . The answer to this enables to determine a maximum number of parameters $(\mu_1, \ldots, \mu_{p^*})$ by which the dynamics of the family of systems F^m depending on n^2 parameters, i.e. coefficients of the matrix A, is described in X. The research conducted into the system F^m made it clear that p^* is a function of n and while increasing $n \ p^*(n)$ becomes not only bigger than n but (essentially) bigger than n^2 . Let formulate this result as follows.

Property.

$$p^{*}(n) \begin{cases} \leq n, \text{ if } n \leq 4, \\ > n, \text{ if } n \geq 5 \ (except \ n = 6), \\ \leq n^{2}, \text{ if } n \leq 18, \\ > n^{2}, \text{ if } n \geq 19 \ (except \ n = 21, 22) \end{cases}$$

The last one means that the number of parameters by which the dynamics of the family of *n*-dimensional systems F^m is described may be more than the number of parameters given by the matrix A.

I.N. Pankratova. On invariant sets of a dynamical system generated by the product of a scalar function and a linear vector function // Differential Equations. MAIK Interperiodika, Vol.45, No.1, 2009, pp. 142-149.





ON SCORES AND LOSING SCORES IN HYPERTOURNAMENTS

Shariefuddin Pirzada University of Kashmir, Srinagar, Kashmir, India e-mail:sdpirzada@yahoo.co.in

A k-hypertournament is a complete k-hypergraph with each k-edge endowed with an orientation, that is, a linear arrangement of the vertices contained in the hyperedge. In a k-hypertournament, the score $s(v_i)$ (losing score $r(v_i)$) of a vertex v_i is the number of arcs containing v_i and in which v_i is not the last element (v_i is the last element). The score (losing score) sequence is formed by listing the scores (losing scores) in non-decreasing order. Zhou et al obtained a characterization of score and losing score sequences in k-hypertournaments, a result analogous to Landau's theorem on tournament scores. A bipartite hypergraph is a generalization of a bipartite graph.

We discuss various results on the sequences of non-negative integers to be losing scores or scores of various classes of hypertournaments.

References

- Y. Koh, S. Ree. Score sequences of hypertournament matrices // J. Korean Soc. Math. Educ. Ser.B: Pure and Applied Math., Vol.8, No.2, 2001, pp.185-191.
- [2] Y. Koh, S. Ree. On k- hypertournament matrices, Linear Algebra and its Applications // Vol.373, 2003, pp. 183-195.
- [3] S. Pirzada, T. A. Chisti, T. A. Naikoo. Score Lists in [h, k]-Bipartite Hypertournaments // Discrete Mathematics and Applications.
- [4] S. Pirzada, T. A. Naikoo, Zhou Guofei. Score lists in tripartitie hypertournaments // Graphs and Comb., Vol.23, No.4, 2007, pp. 445-454.
- [5] Zhou Guofei, T. Yao, K. Zhang. On score sequences of k-hypertournaments // European J. Combinatorics, Vol.21, No.8, 2000, pp. 993-1000.

CATEGORY OF CHAIN COMPLEXES OF SOFT MODULES

Taha Y. Ozturk, S. Bayramov Ataturk University, Erzurum, Turkey Kafkas University, Kars, Turkey e-mail:taha36100@hotmail.com, baysadi@gmail.com

Molodtsov initiated the concept of soft sets in [1]. Maji et al. defined some operations on soft sets in [2]. Aktaş et al. generalized soft sets by defining the concept of soft groups in [3]. After then, Qiu-Mei Sun et al. gave soft modules in [4].

In this study, methods of homology algebra are applied to the category of soft modules. For this reason, chain complexes of soft modules and their soft homology modules are defined. The exact sequence of soft homology modules is obtained. Homotopy relation is given in the category of chain complexes of soft modules, and according to this relation is proved the invariance of soft homology modules.

- D. Molodtsov. Soft Set Theory-First results // Comput. Math. Appl., 37, 1999, pp. 19-31, American Petroleum Institute, Technical Data Book - Petroleum Refining, 5th edition, 1992.
- [2] P.K.Maji, R.Bismas, A.R.Roy. Soft set theory // Comput. Math. Appl., Vol.45, 2003, pp. 555-562.
- [3] H.Aktaş, N. Çağman. Soft sets and soft group // Information Science, Vol.177, 2007, pp. 2726-2735.
- [4] Qiu-Mei Sun, Zi-Liong Zhang, Jing Liu, Soft sets and soft modules // Lecture Notes in Comput. Sci., 5009, 2008, pp. 403-409.





SOME NOTES ON PURE HYPERCOMPLEX CONNECTIONS

A. A. Salimov Ataturk University, Erzurum, Turkey e-mail:asalimov@atauni.edu.tr

A hypercomplex algebra is a real associative algebra with unit 1. A Π -structure on a manifold M is a family of affinor fields (i.e. tensor fields of type (1,1)) on M. If Π is an algebra (under the natural operations) isomorphic to a hypercomplex algebra, the Π -structure is called hypercomplex. In this paper we define some operators which are applied to pure tensor fields. In this context Tachibana, Vishnevskii operators and the operator applied to pure connection can be found [1]. Using these operators we study some properties of integrable commutative hypercomplex structures endowed with a holomorphic torsion-free pure connection whose curvature tensor satisfy the purity condition with respect to the covariantly constant structure affinors. These connections are naturally appeared in the context of pseudo-Riemannian manifolds with Kahler-Norden(i.e. anti-Kahler) metrics. Recently, manifolds with Norden metrics have been an object of investigation in differential geometry and theoretical physics(see [2], [3], [4]).

References

- A.A.Salimov. On operators associated with tensor fields // J. Geom., Springer DOI 10.1007/s00022-010-0059-6, 2010, pp. 1-39.
- [2] A.A.Salimov., F.Agca. On para-Nordenian structures // Ann. Polon. Math., Vol.99, No.2, 2010, pp. 193-200.
- [3] A.A.Salimov., M.Iscan. Some properties of Norden-Walker metrics // Kodai Math. J., Vol.33, No.2, 2010, pp. 283-293.
- [4] A.A.Salimov. Nonexistence of para-Kahler-Norden warped metrics // Int. J. Geom. Methods Mod. Phys., Vol.6, No.7, 2009, pp. 1097-1102.

ON SOME FIBONACCI -TYPE POLYNOMIALS

Serpil Halici, Fethi Halici

Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey e-mail:shalici@sakarya.edu.tr, fhalici@sakarya.edu.tr

In this study, the zeros of some generalized polynomials defined recursively are investigated. Some properties related with these polynomials are given.

- F. Matyas. Bounds for the zeros of Fibonacci-Like Polynomials // Acta Acad. Paed. Agriensis, Sec.Math., Vol.25, 1998, pp. 15-20.
- [2] G.A. Moore. The Limit of the Golden Numbers is 3/2 // The Fib. Quart., Vol.32, No.3, 1994, pp. 211-217.
- [3] H. Yu, Y. Wang, M. He. On the Limit of Generalized Golden Numbers // The Fib. Quart., Vol.34, No.4, 1996, pp.320-322.
- [4] H.Prodinger. The Asymptotic Behavior of the Golden Number // The Fib. Quarterly, Vol.34, No.3, 1996, pp. 224-225.
- [5] P. E. Ricci. Generalized Lucas Polynomials and Fibonacci Polynomials // Rivista di Math. Univ. Parma, Vol.4, 1995, pp. 137-146.
- [6] T.Amdeberhan. A Note On Fibonacci-Type Polynomials // Integers, Vol.10, 2010, pp. 13-18.
- [7] T.Koshy. Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers with Applications // A Wiley-Intersection Publication, 2001.





THE PELL-PADOVAN NUMBERS AND POLYNOMIALS

Dursun Taşcı Gazi University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:dtasci@gazi.edu.tr

In this paper, we define new a recurrence relation and polynomials called Pell-Padovan numbers and Pell-Padovan polynomials, respectively. We also derive formulae related with these The Pell-Padovan sequence is the sequence of integers T(n) defined by the initial values

T(0) = 1, T(1) = 1, T(2) = 1

and the recurrence relation

$$T(n) = 2T(n-2) + T(n-3).$$

The first few values of T(n) are

 $1, 1, 1, 3, 3, 7, 9, 17, 25, 43, 67, 111, 177, 289, 465, \ldots$

In this study we denote the ratio of two consecutive Pell-Padovan numbers converges to the Golden Proportion, $\alpha = \frac{1+\sqrt{5}}{2}$. We also present a relation between the Pell-Padovan numbers with Fibonacci numbers and Lucas numbers. Moreover we introduce Pell-Padovan polynomials and give some formulae related with these polynomials.

- [1] T. Koshy. Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers with Applications // John Wiley Sons Inc., 2001.
- [2] D. Tasci, S. Kirkland. Sequence of Upper Bounds for the Perron Root of Nonnegative Matrix // Linear Algebra and Its Appl., Vol.273, 1998, pp. 23-28.
- [3] R. Horn, C. Johnson. Matrix Analysis // Cambridge University Press, 1985.
- [4] H. Minc. Permanents of (0,1)-Circulants // Canad. Math. Bull., Vol.7, No.2, 1964, pp. 253-263.
- [5] E. Kilic, D. Tasci. On families of bipartite graphs associated with sums of generalized order-k Fibonacci and Lucas numbers // Ars Combin. to appear.
- [6] F. Harary. Determinants, permanents and bipartite graphs // Math. Mag., Vol.42, 1969, pp. 146-148.
- [7] On the second order linear recurrences by tridiagonal matrices // Ars Combin. to appear
- [8] S. Harne, C.L. Parihar. Some generalized Fibonacci polynomials // J. Indian Acad. Math., Vol.18, No.2, 1996, pp. 251-253.
- [9] S. Harne, B. Singh. Some properties of fourth-order recurrence relations // Vikram Math. J., Vol.20, 2000, pp.79-84.
- [10] A.F. Horadam, A.G. Shannon. Irrational sequence-generated factors of integers // Fibonacci Quart., Vol.19, No.3, 1981, pp. 240-250.





EUCLIDEAN CRYPTOSYSTEM WITHOUT REPETITION

Aleksandr V. Ten, Vladimir D. Ten Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan, Almaty, Kazakhstan Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:vanzero@mail.ru, tenvd@mail.ru

The goal of this paper is to construct and analyze the cryptosystem with the following property: (A) The encryption algorithm encrypts a plaintext of any length so that after encryption with one fixed key all letters of cipher text are different, i.e. the cipher text has no repetitions.

Let Z be the ring of integers and the cryptosystem has the following algorithms of encryption and decryption:

(*) Encryption: Let k be an integer. If $p \in Z$, $p \in Z |p| < |k|$; $s \in Z$ and s satisfies conditions:

$$(s,p) = 1, (s,k) = 1$$
 (1)

We obtain the cipher text c as follows:

Step 1: we find u using the equality $us + \nu p = 1$. This is well known that it may be evaluated from generalized Euclidean algorithm [1]. Step 2: we find a_p as the remainder of division pu by k. Step 3: $c = a_p s$.

Decryption: $p = c \pmod{k}$.

Definition. An integer s is called the partial key of a pair (k, p) if it satisfies the conditions (1).

The cryptosystem with the following algorithms of encryption and decryption satisfies the property (A).

(C) Algorithm of encryption: let k be an integer, $p_1, p_2, ..., p_m$ be some sequence of integers such that $|p_i| < |k|$, i = 1, ..., m, $s_1, s_2, ..., s_m$ be the sequence of different partial keys. We encrypt an element p_i by using the partial key s_i and the algorithm (*). As the result all cipher texts $c_1, c_2, ..., c_m$ are different. So we have: k is the secret key, $p_1, p_2, ..., p_m$ is the sequence of plaintexts, $s_1, s_2, ..., s_m$ is the sequence of the corresponding partial keys, $c_1, c_2, ..., c_m$ are corresponding cipher texts.

(D) Algorithm of decryption: $p_i = c_i \pmod{k}, i = 1, 2, ..., m$.

Attack and modification.

Now we consider the following kind of attack against our cryptosystem.

(*) Let we have some set of plaintexts $p_1, p_2, ..., p_n$ and the set of corresponding cipher texts $c_1, c_2, ..., c_n, k$ is the secret key. From the decryption algorithm it follows that there exist elements $d_1, ..., d_n \in Z$ such that $a_i = c_i - p_i = d_i k$, i = 1, 2 = ..., n Let us have some $(x_1, ..., x_n)$ be the greatest common divisor of elements $x_1, x_2, ..., x_n \in Z$. Then we have $(a_1, ..., a_n) = dk$, $d = (d_1, ..., d_n)$. And this attack may be effective for finding of a secret key. So we modify our cryptosystem as follows:

Algorithm of encryption: let $k, a, b \in Z, |b| < |ak|$ and $\overline{c} = (q; r) \in Z \times Z$, where ac = bq + r and $ac \neq r$ because |c| > |k|.

$$E_k(p) = c, \ \overline{E_{a,b}}(c) = (q,r).$$

Then $\overline{c} = \overline{E_{a,b}}(E_k(p))$ and we have: p is the plaintext, \overline{c} is the cipher text.

Algorithm of decryption: $\left[\frac{bq+r}{a}\right](mod \ k) = p$.

References

[1] B.L. Van der Waerden. Algebra 1 // Springer-Verlag, 1971.





EUCLIDEAN RINGS AND THEIR APPLICATION IN CRYPTOGRAPHY

Vladimir D. Ten Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:tenvd@mail.ru

The goal of this paper is to construct cryptosystems with the following properties:

(A) The encryption algorithm encrypts a plaintext of any length so that after encryption with one fixed key all letters of cipher text are different, i.e. the cipher text has no repetitions. The length of the alphabet is limited to the key length.

(B) The encryption algorithm encrypts a plaintext of any length so that after encryption with one fixed key all letters of cipher text are different. The length of the alphabet is not limited.

Further we suppose that all Euclidean rings satisfy the following condition:

(E). Let $c \in K$ and C = cK be the ideal of the ring K generated by the element c. If elements $a, b \in K$ satisfy the following conditions $\delta(a) < \delta(c)$, $\delta(b) < \delta(c)$, $a - b \equiv 0 \pmod{C}$ then a = b.

Remark 1. Examples of rings, which satisfy condition (E) are the ring of integers and rings of polynomials over fields. The example of a ring without condition (E) is the ring of Gauss integers [1].

Theorem 1. Let K be a Euclidean ring and k be an arbitrary element of K. Then for any element $p \in K$ such that p is not invertible and $\delta(p) < \delta(k)$, and for any element $s \in K$ such that

$$(s,k) = e, (s,p) = e$$
 (1)

there exist elements $a_p, c \in K$ which satisfy the following conditions:

1) $\delta(a_p) < \delta(k)$.

 $2)c = a_p s$, $c(mod \ \overline{k})$, where \overline{k} is the ideal of the ring K generated by the element k

3) $\delta(k) \leq \delta(c)$.

4) If $p_1 \neq p_2$ and $\delta(p_1) < \delta(k)$, $\delta(p_2) < \delta(k)$, then $c_1 \neq c_2$, and vice versa if $c_1 \neq c_2$, then $p_1 \neq p_2$.

(*) Algorithm of encryption: let k be an element of the Euclidean ring K, p be any element of K such that $\delta(k) > \delta(p)$, and s be any element of K, which satisfies conditions (1). Then, using theorem 1 we obtain the element c. So we have: k is the secret key, p is the plaintext, c is the cipher text.

Definition. An element $s \in K$ is called the partial key of the pair (k, p) if it satisfies conditions (1). If S is a finite set of distinct partial keys, then |S| is the period of S. If a set S is infinite, then its period is infinity.

Now let K be a Euclidean ring, k be the element of the ring K, $p_1, p_2, ..., p_m$ be some sequence of elements of K such that $\delta(p_i) < \delta(k)$. Suppose that the ring K satisfies the following condition: (In) The set $S = \{s \in K, s \text{ prime}, \delta(s) > \delta(k)\}$ is infinite.

(C) Algorithm of encryption: let k be an element of the ring K, $p_1, p_2, ..., p_m$ be some sequence of elements of K such that $\delta(p_i) < \delta(k)$, $i = 1, ..., m, s_1, s_2, ..., s_m$, be the sequence of distinct elements from S. We encrypt element p_i by using the partial key s_i and algorithm (*). As the result all cipher texts $c_1, c_2, ..., c_m$ are different.

(D) Algorithm of decryption: $p_i = c_i \pmod{k}, i = 1, 2, ..., m$.

Theorem 2. Let K = Z be the ring of integers. Then the cryptosystem with algorithm of encryption (C) and the algorithm of decryption (D) satisfies property (A).

Theorem 3. Let K = Q[x] be the polynomial ring over the field of rational numbers Q. Then the cryptosystem with algorithms of encryption and decryption (C), (D) satisfy the property (B).

^[1] B.L. Van der Waerden, Algebra 1 // Springer-Verlag, 1971.





UNIVERSAL ENVELOPING ALGEBRAS AND UNIVERSAL DERIVATIONS OF POISSON ALGEBRAS $^{\rm 1}$

Ualbai Umirbaev L.N.Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan Wayne State University, Detroit, USA e-mail:umirbaev@math.wayne.edu

We study the universal enveloping algebras of Poisson symplectic algebras and free Poisson algebras. For any Poisson algebra P denote by P^e its universal enveloping algebra. Note that the universal enveloping algebra A^e of an associative algebra A in the variety of associative algebras is $A \otimes_k A^{op}$ where A^{op} is an anti-isomorphic copy of A. It is proved that the universal enveloping algebras of the Poisson symplectic algebra P_n and the Weyl algebra A_n are isomorphic. The canonical isomorphism between P_n^e and A_n^e naturally leads to the Moyal product.

Let $P = k\{x_1, \ldots, x_n\}$ be the free Poisson algebra in the variables x_1, \ldots, x_n . We construct a linear basis of the universal enveloping algebra P^e . Unfortunately left ideals of P^e are not free left P^e -modules, i.e., an analogue of Cohn's theorem for free associative algebras is not true in this case. We prove a weaker result which says that the left dependency of a finite set of elements P^e over P^e is algorithmically recognizable. We prove that any two elements of a free Poisson algebra over a field of characteristic 0 either generate a free Poisson algebra in two variables or commute. We prove that an analogue of the Jacobian Conjecture for two generated free Poisson algebras is equivalent to the two dimensional classical Jacobian Conjecture. A new proof of the tameness of automorphisms of two generated free Poisson algebras is also given.

 $^{^1}$ $\,$ This research is supported an NSF grant DMS-0904713 and by a grant of Kazakhstan.




THE STRUCTURAL PROPERTIES OF LINEAR MATRIX INEQUALITIES

Vasfi Eldem, Şeyhan Şahin Gebze Institute of Technology, Gebze, Kocaeli, Turkey e-mail:veldem@gyte.edu.tr, s.sahin@gyte.edu.tr

Our previous research "On the Feasibility Problem of Linear Matrix Inequalities" has focused on the characterization of the feasibility region of second order linear matrix inequalities (LMIs) and defining this region as a finitely generated convex cone. More precisely, firstly we have proposed a simple method which gives the full characterization of the feasibility region if there exists at least one strictly definite element in a given LMI. Then, we have introduced an outer cone for an LMI with two nondefinite matrices. Finally, we have proposed a procedure for refining this cone so that it will intersect the feasibility region of the given LMI. We have also defined an inner cone for higher order LMIs with at least one strictly definite element and shown that the distance between the boundaries of the inner cone and the feasibility region can be directly calculated using the original problem data.

In this research, we focus on the characterization of the feasibility region of higher order LMIs with nondefinite elements. In this context, let $A_1, A_2, \ldots, A_k \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times n}$ $(2 < k \leq n)$ be nondefinite symmetric matrices whose diagonal elements are linearly independent. Then,

 $\mathcal{F}_{\alpha} := \left\{ \alpha \left| \sum_{i=1}^{k} \alpha_{i} A_{i} \ge 0, A_{i}^{T} = A_{i} \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times n} \right\} \text{ is a finitely generated cone in } \mathbb{R}^{k}. \text{ It can be easily shown} \right\}$

that \mathcal{F}_{α} and $\mathcal{F}_{\beta} := \left\{ \beta \left| \sum_{i=1}^{k} \beta_{i} B_{i} \ge 0, B_{i}^{T} = B_{i} \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times n} \right\} \right\}$ are equivalent LMIs as defined in [1] and the

 i^{th} column of $D := \begin{bmatrix} I_k & K_o^T \end{bmatrix}^T$ consists of the diagonal elements of B_i . We assume without loss of generality that B_1, B_2, \dots, B_k are nondefinite. Then, the outer cone \mathcal{C}_{out} for \mathcal{F}_β can be defined as

$$\mathcal{C}_{out} := \left\{ \beta := \left[\beta_1 \dots \beta_k \right]^T | K_o \beta \succeq 0, \ \beta \succeq 0 \right\}$$

which is also finitely generated. Based on the theories in [2] and [8], $\beta \in C_{out}$ can be expressed as the conic combinations of its extreme directions. In this work, we first propose a procedure for row by row calculation of the extreme directions of the C_{out} . Then, we give a method which reduces the size of the outer cone until it intersects the set \mathcal{F}_{β} .

- V. Eldem, Ş. Şahin. On the Feasibility Problem of Linear Matrix Inequalities // submitted to Applied and Computational Mathematics, 2011.
- [2] Mokhtar S. Bazaraa, John J. Jarvis, Hanif D. Sherali. Linear Programming and Network Flows // John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 2010.
- [3] V. Eldem, K. Özçaldıran. A Reduction Algorithm for LMIs // European Control Conference, 2007.
- [4] G. Strang. Linear Algebra and Its Applications // Thomson Brooks Cole, 2006.
- [5] S. Boyd, L. Vandenberghe, Convex Optimization // Cambridge University Press, 2004.
- S. Boyd, L. El Ghaoui, E. Feron, V. Balakrishnan. Linear Matrix Inequalities in System and Control Theory // SIAM Studies in Applied Mathematics, 1994.
- [7] R. A. Horn, C. R. Johnson. Matrix Analysis // Cambridge University Press, 1985.
- [8] M. S. Bazaraa, H. D. Sherali, C. M. Shetty. Nonlinear Programming // John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1993.





ON A SIMILARITY OF THE POSITIVE JOHNSON'S THEORIES IN ENRICHED SIGNATURE

Aibat R. Yeshkeyev Karaganda State University, Kazakhstan e-mail:modth1705@mail.ru

One of the classic problems of mathematical science is the question of the classification of objects in order to study for some common features. In mathematics a role of such objects performing sets which predetermined by its relations. Using mathematical logic, these objects were related to the formulae of the language of calculus of predicates. This relationship between syntax and semantics of language is the main essence of the model theory. Therefore, it is clear that finding syntax and semantics features of the similarity can be useful for classifying objects in the model theory.

In this abstract we present the results associated with the Δ -PM-theories in the enriched signature.

Let T - an arbitrary Δ - PM-theory in the language of signatures Σ . Consider all the completions of a center T^* theory T in new signature σ_{Γ} , where $\Gamma = \{c\}$. By Δ - PM-surface theory T^* , its center there and we denoted as T^c . Under the restriction T^c to the signature Σ , the theory of T^c becomes a complete type. This type, like in Δ -PM-case, we call the central theory of the type T. Let C-semantic model of $T, A \subseteq C$. Let $\sigma_{\Gamma}(A) = \sigma \cup \{c_a \mid a \in A\} \cup \Gamma$, where $\Gamma = \{P\} \cup \{c\}$. Consider the following theory $T_{\Gamma}^{PM}(A) = Th_{\Pi_{\alpha+2}^+}(C, a)_{a \in A} \cup \{P(c)\} \cup \{P(c)\} \cup \{"P \subseteq "\}$, where

 $\{"P \subseteq "\}$ there is an infinite set of sentences which says that the interpretation of the symbol P is a positive existentially closed submodel in the signature σ . The requirement of existential closure is essential to the sense that the interpretation of the symbol P must be infinite. It is clear that the considered set of proposals is a theory and this theory in general is not complete. Let T - an arbitrary Δ - PM-theory, then $E^+(T) = \bigcup n, m < \omega E^+_{n,m}(T)$, where $E^+_{n,m}(T)$ - a lattice of positive existential formulas with n free variables and m-changes of quantifiers.

Let T_1 and $T_2 \Delta$ - PM-theory. We say that T_1 and $T_2 \Delta$ -PM syntactically similar if there exists a bijection $j: E^+(T_1) \longrightarrow E^+(T_2)$ such that:

1) the restriction f to $E_{n,m}^+(T_1)$ is a lattice isomorphism $E_{n,m}^+(T_1)$ and $E_{n,m}^+(T_2)$, $n < \omega$,

2)
$$f(\exists \nu_{n+1}\varphi) = \exists \varphi_{n+1}f(\varphi), \ \varphi \in E_n^+(T), \ n < \omega,$$

3)
$$f(\nu_1 = \nu_2) = (\nu_1 = \nu_2)$$

One of the results obtained under the above definitions as follows:

Theorem Let T_1 and $T_2 - \Sigma_{m+1}^+$ -complete, perfect, Jonsson's Δ - PM-theory. Then the following conditions are equivalent:

T₁^{*} and T₂^{*} Δ - PM-syntactically similar,
 T₁^c and T₂^c - syntactically similar (in the sense of [1]).

References

[1] T.G. Mustafin. On similarities of complete theories // Logic Colloquium'90: proceedings of the Annual European Summer Meeting of the Association for Symbolic Logic, held in Helsinki, Finland, July 15-22, 1990, pp. 259-265.





SECTION II Geometry and Topology

DOUBLE KNOT SURGERIES TO S^4 AND $S^2 \times S^2$

Selman Akbulut Michigan State University, Michigan, USA e-mail:akbulut@math.msu.edu

It is known that S^4 is a union of two fishtails, and $S^2 \times S^2$ is a union of two cusps (glued along their boundaries). Here we prove that for any choice of knots $K, L \subset S^3$ performing knot surgery operations $S^4 \rightsquigarrow S^4_{K,L}$ and $S^2 \times S^2 \rightsquigarrow (S^2 \times S^2)_{K,L}$ along both of these fishtails and cusps, respectively, do not change the diffeomorphism type of these manifolds.

ON THE GEOMETRY OF THE TANGENT BUNDLE

Cem Tezer Ortadogu Teknik University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:rauf@metu.edu.tr

The tangent bundle of a smooth manifold has itself a natural structure as a smooth manifold and constitutes the natural domain of discourse of analytical dynamics in the manner of Lagrange. Thus the tangent bundle hosts phenomena with geometric as well as dynamical portent. The purpose of this talk will be to introduce the basic concepts in a historical perspective and present a short report of my recent work on conformal vector fields on tangent bundles.



BAKU, AZERBALJAN- 2011

The 4th Congress of the Turkic World Mathematical Society (TWMS) Baku, Azerbaijan, 1-3 July, 2011

INTEGRAL GEOMETRY PROBLEM FOR GENERAL FAMILY OF CURVES ON FINSLER SURFACE

Yernat M. Assylbekov Institute of Mathematics, Informatics and Mechanics, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:y_assylbekov@yahoo.com

We consider a general family of curves Γ on a compact oriented Finsler surface (M, F) with boundary ∂M . Let $\varphi \in C^{\infty}(M)$ and ω a smooth 1-form on M. We show that

$$\int_{\gamma(t)} \{\varphi(\gamma(t)) + \omega_{\gamma(t)}(\dot{\gamma}(t))\} dt = 0$$

holds for every $\gamma \in \Gamma$ whose endpoints belong to ∂M , $\gamma(a) \in \partial M$, $\gamma(b) \in \partial M$ if and only if $\varphi = 0$ and ω is exact. This generalizes Mukhometov's well-known theorem in several directions.

CHARACTERIZATIONS OF SPHERICAL HELICES IN EUCLIDEAN 3-SPACE

Nejat Ekmekci, O. Zeki Okuyucu, Yusuf Yayli University of Ankara, Turkey University of Bilecik, Turkey Faculty of Science, University of Ankara, Turkey e-mail:ekmekci@science.ankara.edu.tr, osman.okuyucu@bilecik.edu.tr, yayli@science.ankara.edu.tr

In this study, we calculate Frenet frames of the *tangent indicatrix* (t), *principal normal indicatrix* (n) and *binormal indicatrix* (b) of the curve α in \mathbb{R}^3 . Also, we give some differential equations which they are characterizations for (t), (n) and (b) to be general helix. Morever we give a characterization for *tangent indicatrix* (t) to be a circle.

- T. Ahmad Ali, M.Turgut. Positions vectors of a time-like Slant helix in Minkowski 3-space // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol. 365, 2010, pp. 559-569.
- [2] C. D. Toledo-Suarez. On the arithmatic of Fractal dimension using hyperhelices // Chaos Solitions and Fractals, Vol. 39, 2009, pp.342-349.
- [3] M. Lancret. A Mémoire sur les courbes à double courbure // Mémoires présentés à l'Institut 1, 1806, pp. 416-454.
- [4] L. Kula, N. Ekmekci, Y. Yayli and K. Ilarslan. Characterizations of Slant helices in Euclidean 3-space // Turkh J. Math., Vol. 33, 2009, pp.1-13.





SPECIAL CONTACT HYPERSURFACES OF SASAKIAN SPACE FORM

Esmaiel Abedi, Mohammad Ilmakchi Azarbaijan University of Tarbiat Moallem, Tabriz, Iran e-mail:esabedi@azaruniv.edu, mohammad_ilmakchi@yahoo.com

A submanifold M of a contact manifold \widetilde{M}^{2m+1} tangent to ξ is called an invariant (resp. antiinvariant) submanifold if $\phi(T_pM) \subset T_pM, \forall p \in M$ (resp. $\phi(T_pM) \subset T_p^{\perp}M, \forall p \in M$).

A submanifold M tangent to ξ of a contact manifold \widetilde{M}^{2m+1} is called a contact CR-submanifold if there exists a pair of orthogonal differentiable distributions D and D^{\perp} on M, such that:

(1) $TM = D \oplus D^{\perp} \oplus \mathbb{R}\xi$, where $\mathbb{R}\xi$ is the 1-dimensional distribution spanned by ξ ;

- (2) D is invariant by ϕ , i. e., $\phi(D_p) \subset D_p, \forall p \in M$;
- (3) D^{\perp} is anti-invariant by ϕ , i. e., $\phi(D_p^{\perp}) \subset T_p^{\perp}M, \forall p \in M$.

Let (M, g) be a real connected hypersurface of M and N be a unit normal vector field on M. Then we have

$$TM = D \oplus D \perp \oplus \mathbb{R}\xi$$

where D is ϕ -invariant subspace and D^{\perp} is one dimensional subspace of spanned by $V = \phi(N)$ such that it is orthogonal component of D. Let A be the shape operator of M and the plan spanned by $\{\xi, V\}$ bean invariant subspace of A.

With above structure we proved:

Let M^{2n} be a contact hypersurfaces of Sasakian space form $(\widetilde{M}^{2n+1}, \phi, \xi, \eta)$ with weakly ϕ -sectional constant curvature. Then M^{2n} have constant principal curvature.

- A.Bejancu, N.Papaghiuc. Semi-invariant submanifolds of a Sasakian manifold // St. Univ. "Al.I.Cuja" Iasi, Matem., Vol.1, 1981, pp.163-170.
- [2] D.E.Blair. Contact manifolds in Riemannian geometry // Lecture Notes in Math. Vol.509, Springer-verlag, Berlin -Heidelberg - New York, 1979.
- [3] D.E.Blair and S.Dragomir. CR products in locally conformal kähler manifold // Kyushu J. Math, Vol.55, No.2, 2001, pp.337-362.
- [4] S.Dragomir, L.Ornea. Locally Conformal Kähler Geometry // Proress in Mathematices, Vol.155, Birkhauser, Basel, 1998.
- [5] M.Kimura. Real Hypersurfaces and complex submanifolds in complex projective space // Trans. Amer. Math. Soc.296, 1986, pp.137-149.
- [6] H.B.Lamson. Rigidity theorems in rank 1 symmetric spaces // J.Diffrential Geometry Vol.4, 1970, pp.349-357.
- [7] Z.Q.Li. Isoparametric Hypersurfaces in CPn with Constant Principal Curvatures // Chinese Ann. Math. Ser. B.9, 1988.
- [8] M.H.Shahid. CR-submanifolds of a locally conformal kähler space form // Int. J. Math. Math., Sci.3, Vol.17, 1994, pp.511-514.
- [9] B.J.Papantoniou, M.H.Shahid. Quaternion CR-submanifolds of a quaternion kähler manifold // Int. J. Math. Sci., Vol.27, No.1, 2001, pp.27-37.
- [10] R.Takagi. On homogeneous real hypersurfaces in a complex projective space // Osaka J. Math., Vol.10, 1973, pp.495-506.





A CONTINUOUS MOTION DERIVED FROM A REGULAR CURVE

Şenay Baydaş, Bülent Karakaş Yüzüncü Yıl University, Van, Turkey e-mail:senay.baydas@qmail.com, bulentkarakas@qmail.com

Let

$$\alpha: I \subseteq \mathbb{R} \to \mathbb{R}^3$$

 $\alpha: I \subseteq \mathbb{K} \to \mathbb{K}^{-1}$ be a regular curve not passing origin. $\beta(t) = \frac{\alpha(t)}{\|\alpha(t)\|}$, normed projection of α on unit sphere, is a spherical curve. Every point of β corresponds on equivalence class. If $\overrightarrow{b(t)} \in \beta(t)$, then $\|\overrightarrow{b(t)}\| = 1$ and for $\forall t, b(t) \in S^2$. If we choose an arbitrary rotating angle, θ , we can define a rotating matrix which their axis is d_b and rotating angle is θ . So we have an equivalence class for $0 \le \theta \le 2\pi + k\pi\theta$. One parameter curve of this equivalence class is one parameter action set which derivated from α .

$$C(t) : \mathbb{R}^3 \to \mathbb{R}^3,$$
$$p \to C(t)(p) = P(t)$$

is a curve in \mathbb{R}^3 and it is called as orbit of P under $\alpha(t)$. The action set is invariant on cone surface which has α as striction curve. In other words, we assume that a cone surface is given as

$$K(t,v) = (1+v)O\alpha(t).$$

For every curve on K(t, v) which generates the same surface, we have the same C(t) action set. This means that all of cone surface forms the same action set.

The relations between the orbit of $p \in \mathbb{R}^3$ under this action set and α are very important. Finally Matlab application is given.

- [1] Kenneth Sprott, Bahram Ravani. Kinematic generation of ruled surfaces // Advances in Computational Mathematics, Vol.17, 2002, pp. 115-133.
- [2] Curtis M. Fulton. Spherical helices in n-space // Tensor, Vol.15, 1964, pp. 37-39.
- [3] M. Dajczer, J. Ripoll. Constant mean curvature hypersurfaces with single valued projections on planar domains // Journal of Differential Equations, Vol.250, 2011, pp.1493-1499.
- [4] Joerg Meyer. Projections of the twisted cubic // The Teaching of Mathematics, Vol.10, 2007, pp. 51-62.
- [5] I. A. Parkin. Unifying the geometry of finite displacement screws and orthogonal matrix transformation // Mech. Mach. Theory, Vol.32, No.8, 1997, pp. 975-991





MANNHEIM CURVES IN 4D GALILEAN SPACE

M. Bektas, M. Ergut, A. Ogrenmis Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:mbektas@firat.edu.tr, mergut@firat.edu.tr, ogrenmis@firat.edu.tr

One of the principal problems that has been studied by researchers are special curves and their characterizations. A space curve is called "Mannheim curve" if and only if for some constants, it satisfies the following relation

$$k_1 = \beta (k_1^2 + k_2^2)$$

where k_1 and k_2 are curvature and torsion, respectively.

On the other hand Galilean and Pseudo-Galilean spaces have been recently investigated by [6],[7], [9],[10],[11]. In this paper, we consider the idea of Mannheim curves in 3D Galilean space. Then we give the definition of Mannheim curves for 4D Galilean space and some characterizations are also obtained.

- H. Balgetir, M. Bektas, J. Inoguchi. Null Bertrand curves in Minkowski 3-space and their characterizations // Note Math., Vol.23, No.1, 2004, pp.7-13.
- F.N.Ekmekci, K.Ilarslan. On Bertrand Curves and Their characterization // Differ. Geom. Dyn. Syst.(electronic), Vol.3, No.2, 2001.
- [3] R. Blum. A remarkable class of Mannheim curves // Canad. Math. Bull., Vol.9, 1966, pp.223-228.
- [4] H. Liu, F. Wang. Mannheim Partner curves in 3-space // Journal of Geometry, Vol.88, 2008, pp.120-126.
- [5] H. Matsuda, S.Yorozu. On generalized Mannheim curves in Euclidean 4-space // Nihonkai Math. J., Vol.20, No.1, 2009, pp.33-56.
- [6] S.Yilmaz. Construction of the Frenet-Serret frame of a curve in 4D Galilean space and some applications // Int. Journal of the Physical Sciences, Vol.5, No.8, 2010, pp.1284-1289.
- [7] O.Roschel. Die geometrie Des Galileischen Raumes Berichte der Math.-Stat // Sektion im Forschungszentrum Graz Ber., Vol.256, 1986, pp.1-20.
- [8] I.M. Yaglom. A Simple Non-Euclidean Geometry and Its Physical Basis, Springer-Verlag // New York, 1979.
- [9] A.O.Ogrenmis, H.Oztekin, M.Ergut. Bertrand curves in Galilean space and their charac terizations // Kragujevac J. Math., Vol.32, 2009, pp.139-147.
- [10] A.O.Ogrenmis, M.Ergut, M.Bektas. On the Helices in the Galilean Space G3 // Iran. J. Sci. Tech. Trans. A Sci., Vol.31, No.2, 2007, pp.177-181.
- [11] S.Ersoy, M.Akyigit, M.Tosun. A Note on Admissible Mannheim Curves in Galilean Space G3 // International J.Math. Combin., Vol.1, 2011, pp.88-93.





STATISTICAL CONVERGENCE OF DOUBLE SEQUENCES OF ORDER (α, β)

Rifat Çolak Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:rftcolak@gmail.com

In the present study we introduce and examine the concepts of statistical convergence of order (α, β) and strong p-Cesàro summability of order (α, β) for double sequences of complex (or real) numbers, where α , β are any real numbers such that $0 < \alpha \leq 1$ and $0 < \beta \leq 1$. We give some results and establish some inclusion relations between the set $S^2_{(\alpha,\beta)}$ of all double statistical convergent sequences of order (α, β) and the set $w^2_{p(\alpha,\beta)}$ of all double strongly p-Cesàro summable sequences of order (α, β) .

- [1] R. Çolak. Statistical convergence of order α // Modern Methods in Analysis and Its Applications, Anamaya Pub., New Delhi, India, 2010, pp. 121-129.
- [2] R. Çolak, Ç.A. Bektaş, λ -Statistical convergence of order α , // Acta Math. Sci. 31B, No.3, 2011, pp. 953-959.
- [3] J.S. Connor. The Statistical and Strong p-Cesaro Convergence of Sequences // Analysis, No.8, 1988, pp. 47-63.
- [4] O. Duman, M.K. Khan, C. Orhan. A-statistical Convergence of Approximating Operators // Math Inequal Appl., Vol.6, No.4, 2003, pp. 689-699.
- [5] H. Fast. Sur la convergence statistique // Colloq. Math., No.2, 1951, pp. 241-244.
- [6] J. Fridy. On statistical convergence // Analysis, No.5, 1985, pp. 301-313.
- [7] A.D. Gadjiev, C. Orhan. Some approximation theorems via statistical convergence // Rocky Mountain J. Math., Vol.32, No.1, 2002, pp. 129-138.
- [8] I.J. Maddox. Spaces of Strongly Summable Sequences // Quart. J. Math. Oxford, Vol.18, No.2, 1967, pp. 345-355.
- [9] F. Móricz. Statistical convergence of multiple sequences // Arch. Math., Vol.81, 2003, pp. 82-89.
- [10] F. Moricz. Tauberian theorems for Cesàro summable double sequences // Studia Math., Vol.110, 1994, pp. 83-96.
- [11] Mursaleen, Osama H.H. Edely. Statistical convergence of double sequences // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.288, 2003, pp. 223-231.
- [12] A. Pringsheim. Zur Ttheorie der zweifach unendlichen Zahlenfolgen // Math. Ann., Vol.53, 1900, pp. 289-321.
- [13] D. Rath, B.C. Tripathy. On statistically convergent and statistically Cauchy sequences // Indian J. Pure. Appl. Math., Vol.25, No.4, 1994, pp. 381-386.
- [14] I.J. Schoenberg. The integrability of certain functions and related summability methods // Amer. Math. Monthly, Vol.66, 1959, pp. 361-375.
- [15] H. Steinhaus. Sur la convergence ordinaire et la convergence asymptotique // Colloquium Mathematicum, Vol.2, 1951, pp. 73-74.





FREE BICOMMUTATIVE ALGEBRAS

A.S. Dzhumadil'daev, N.A. Ismailov, K.M. Tulenbaev S. Demirel University, Kazakhstan e-mail:dzhuma@hotmail.com, ismail.nurlan@@mail.ru

Algebra with identities a(bc) = b(ac), (ab)c = (ac)b, is called bicommutative. Let F(X) be free bicommutative algebra over a field K of characteristic $p \ge 0$. For $\mathbf{m} = (m_1, \ldots, m_q)$ denote by $F^{\mathbf{m}}(X)$ a space generated by products of elements x_1, \ldots, x_q , where x_1 appears m_1 times, $x_2 m_2$ times, etc x_q appears m_q times. Let F_n^{multi} be multilinear part of free bicommutative algebra generated by nelements, i.e., $F_n^{multi} = F_n^{11\cdots 1}(X)$, with |X| = n.

Let \mathbf{Z}_+ be set of non-negative integers, $\mathbf{Z}_+^q = \mathbf{Z}_+ \oplus \cdots \oplus \mathbf{Z}_+$ is a direct sum of q copies of \mathbf{Z}_+ and $\epsilon_i = (0, \ldots, 0, 1, 0, \ldots, 0) \in \mathbf{Z}_+^q$, all components except *i*-th are 0. Let F(q) be a linear space with base

$$V = \{x_i | i = 1, \dots, q\} \cup \{v_{\alpha,\beta} | \alpha, \beta \in \mathbf{Z}_+^q, \ \sum_{i=1}^q \alpha_i \neq 0, \ \sum_{i=1}^q \beta_i \neq 0\}$$

Endow F(q) by a multiplication \circ given by the following rules

$$x_i \circ x_j = v_{\epsilon_i, \epsilon_j}, \quad x_i \circ v_{\alpha, \beta} = v_{\alpha + \epsilon_i, \beta}, \quad v_{\alpha, \beta} \circ x_j = v_{\alpha, \beta + \epsilon_j}, \quad v_{\alpha, \beta} \circ v_{\gamma, \delta} = v_{\alpha + \gamma, \beta + \delta}.$$

Let $S^{[n]}$ be trivial S_n -module, and $S^{[n-i,i]}$ be S_n -module corresponding to Young diagramm with two rows with n-i and i boxes

• ··· ··· •

Theorem. Let $X = \{x_1, \ldots, x_q\}$ be set of generators. Then

a F(q) is isomorphic to a free bicommutative algebra F(X).

b (p=0) As a module of symmetric group S_n

$$F_n^{multi} \cong (n-1)S^{[n]} \oplus \bigoplus_{i=1}^{\lfloor \frac{n-1}{2} \rfloor} (n-2i+1)S^{[n-i,i]}, \quad n > 1,$$

where $S^{[n]} \cong K$ is a trivial S_n -module and $S^{[n-i,i]}$ is an irreducible S_n -module corresponding to partitions $\{n-i,i\} \vdash n$ and $\lfloor \alpha \rfloor$ is a integer part of α .

c Bicommutative operad is not Koszul.

Corollary. For a Hilbert generating function $H(bicom, t_1, \ldots, t_q) = \sum_{\mathbf{m}} \dim F^{\mathbf{m}}(X)t^{\mathbf{m}}$ takes place the following formula

$$H(bicom, t_1, \dots, t_q) = 1 + \sum_{i=1}^q t_i + \prod_{i=1}^q \frac{1}{(1-t_i)^2} - 2\prod_{i=1}^q \frac{1}{1-t_i}.$$

In particular,

dim
$$F^{\mathbf{m}}(X) = (m_1 + 1) \cdots (m_q + 1) - 2 + \delta_{|\mathbf{m}|, \mathbf{1}} + \delta_{|\mathbf{m}|, \mathbf{0}}$$

and

$$\dim F_n(X) = \binom{n+2q-1}{n} - (2-\delta_{n,1})\binom{n+q-1}{n}.$$

Codimensions sequence is given by the formula

$$c_q = \dim F^1(X) = 2^q - 2 + \delta_{q,1}.$$

Exponent of the variety of bicommutative algebras is 2.

Here $\delta_{x,y}$ denotes Kronecker symbol, it is 1 if x = y and 0, if $x \neq y$.





THE NORMAL CURVATURES AND THE FUNDAMENTAL FORMS OF INVERSE SURFACES

Muhittin Evren Aydin, Mahmut Ergüt *Fırat University, Turkey* e-mail:aydnevren@gmail.com, amergut@firat.edu.tr

In this study, we studied inverse surfaces in 3-dimensional Euclidean space E^3 . We investigated third fundamental forms of inverse surfaces and obtained some relations about these. Also, we gave a formula concerning the normal curvatures of inverse surfaces.

References

[1] C. Y. Robert. Curves and Their Properties // Printed in Unites States of America, 1974.

[2] A. Gray. Modern Differential Geometry of Curves and Surfaces with Mathematica // CRC Press LLC, 1998.

[3] M. E. Aydin. Curves and Surfaces in Inversive Geometry // Master Thesis, Firat University, Elazig, 2010.

[4] D.E. Blair. Inversion Theory and Conformal Mapping // American Mathematical Society, 2000.

[5] P.M. do Carmo. Riemann Geometry // Birkhauser, Boston, QA649 C2913, 1992.

THE NONDEGENERATE FOCAL SURFACE OF A TUBE

Mahmut Ergüt, Muhittin Evren Aydin *Fırat University, Turkey* e-mail:mergut@firat.edu.tr, aydnevren@gmail.com

A tube surface is the envelope of a one-parameter family spheres with constant radius and variable center. In this study we consider the nondegenerate focal surface of a tube. We obtain that it is developable and never is contained in a plane.

- [1] A. Gray. Modern Differential Geometry of Curves and Surfaces with Mathematica // CRC Press LLC, 1998.
- [2] M. Takashi, M.P. Nicholas, S. Takis and Y. Guoxin. Analysis and applications of pipe surfaces // Computer Aided Geometriv Design 15, 1998, pp. 437-458.
- [3] P.M. do Carmo. Riemann Geometry // Printed in Unites States of America, 1992.
- [4] A.T. John. Elementary In Topics Differential Geometry // Springer-Verlag New York Inc., 1979.





A CONTRIBUTION TO THE LINE GEOMETRY

Osman Gürsoy Maltepe University, Istanbul, Turkey e-mail:osmang@maltepe.edu.tr

As known the geometry of a trajectory surfaces tracing by an oriented line (spear) is important in line geometry and spatial kinematics. Until early 1980s, although two real integral invariants, the pitch of angle λ_x and the pitch ℓ_x of an x- trajectory surface were known, any dual invariant of the surface were not. Because of the deficiency, line geometry wasn't being sufficiently studied by using dual quantities.

A global dual invariant, Λ_x , of an x- closed trajectory surface is introduced and shown that there is a magic relation between the real invariants, $\Lambda_x = \lambda_x - \varepsilon \ell_x$, [1]. It gives suitable relations, such as $\Lambda_x = 2\pi - A_x = \oint G_x$ or $\lambda_x = 2\pi - a_x = \oint g_x ds \ \ell_x = a_x^* = \oint (\partial_u + \partial_v) du dv$ and also the dual distribution parameter which have the new geometric interpretations of x- trajectory surface where a_x is the measure of the spherical area on the unit sphere described by the generator of x- closed trajectory surface and ∂_u and ∂_v are the distribution parameters of the principal surfaces of the X(u; v) - closed congruence. Therefore all the relations between the global invariants, λ_x , ℓ_x , a_x , a_x^* , g_x , g_x^* , K, T, σ and s_1 of x- c.t.s. are worth reconsidering in view of the new geometric explanations. Thus, some new results and new explanations are gained [1, 2, 3, 4,]. Furthermore, as a limit position of the surface, some new theorems and comments related to space curves are obtained.

- [1] O. Gursoy. The Dual Angle of A Closed Ruled Surface // Mech. Mach. Theory, Vol. 25, No., 1990., pp. 131-140.
- [2] O. Gursoy. On Integral Invariant of A Closed Ruled Surface // Journal of Geometry, Vol. 39, 1990, pp. 80-91.
- [3] O. Gursoy. Some Results on Closed Ruled Surfaces and Closed space Curves // Mech.Mach.Theory, Vol. 27, 1990, pp. 323-330.
- [4] O. Gursoy. Kucuk A., On the Invariants of Trajectory Surfaces // Mech.Mach. Theory, Vol. 34, 1999, pp. 587-597.





ON THE QUATERNIONIC \mathbf{B}_2 SLANT HELICES IN THE SEMI EUCLIDEAN SPACE \mathbf{E}_2^4

İsmail Gök, Ferdağ Kahraman, H. H. Hacisalihoğlu University of Ankara, Ankara, Turkey University of Erciyes, Kayseri, Turkey University of Bilecik, Bilecik, Turkey

e-mail:igok@science.ankara.edu.tr, ferda@erciyes.edu.tr, h.hacisali@bilecik.edu.tr

In this paper, we studied quaternionic slant helices in four dimensional semi- Euclidean space E_2^4 which we called semi-real quaternionic B_2 slant helix. Also we define the harmonic curvature functions for semi-real quaternionic curves and we give a vector field D which we call Darboux quaternion for semi-real quaternionic B_2 slant helix. And then we obtained some characterizations for semi-real quaternionic B_2 slant helix. And then we obtained some characterizations for semi-real quaternionic B_2 slant helix in the terms of the harmonic curvatures and by using D Darboux vector field.

- A. C. Çöken, A. Tuna. On the quaternionic inclined curves in the semi-Euclidean space E₂⁴ // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.155, 2004, pp. 373-389.
- [2] A. Tuna. Serret Frenet Formulae for Quaternionic Curves in Semi Euclidean Space // Master Thesis, Süleyman Demirel University, Graduate School of Natural and Applied Science, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey, 2002.
- [3] Ç. Camcı, K. İlarslan, L. Kula, H. H. Hacısalihoğlu. Harmonic curvatures and generalized helices in Eⁿ // Chaos, Solitons and Fractals, Vol.40, 2007, pp. 1-7.
- [4] E. Özdamar, H. H. Hacısalihoğlu. A characterization of inclined curves in Euclidean n-space // Communication de la faculté des sciences de L'Université d'Ankara, séries A1, Vol. 24A, 1975, pp. 15-22.
- [5] H. H. Hacısalihoğlu. Diferensiyel Geometri // Faculty of Sciences and Arts, University of İnönü Press, 1983.
- [6] H. H. Hacısalihoğlu. Hareket Geometrisi ve Kuaterniyonlar Teorisi // Faculty of Sciences and Arts, University of Gazi Press, 1983.
- [7] İ. Gök, Ç. Camcı, H. H. Hacısalihoğlu. V_n-slant helices in Euclidean n-space Eⁿ // Math. Commun., Vol. 14, No. 2, 2009, pp. 317-329.
- [8] İ. Gök, O.Z. Okuyucu, F. Kahraman, H. H. Hacısalihoğlu. On the Quaternionic B₂- Slant Helices in the Euclidean Space E⁴ // Advances and Applied Clifford Algebras (preprint).
- [9] J. P. Ward. Quaternions and Cayley Numbers // Kluwer Academic Publishers, Boston, London, 1997.
- [10] K. Bharathi, M. Nagaraj. Quaternion valued function of a real Serret-Frenet formulae // Indian J. Pure Appl. Math., Vol. 16 1985, pp. 741-756.
- [11] L. Kula, Y. Yaylı. On slant helix and its spherical indicatrix // Appl. Math. and Comp. Vol. 169, 2005, pp.600-607.
- [12] M. Karadağ, A. İ. Sivridağ. Kuaterniyonik eğilim çizgileri için karakterizasyonlar // Erc. Ünv. Fen Bil. Derg., Vol. 13, No.1-2, 1997, pp. 37-53.
- [13] M. Önder, M. Kazaz, H. Kocayiğit, O. Kılıç .B₂-slant helix in Euclidean 4-space E⁴ // Int. J. Cont. Math. Sci. Vol.3, No.29, 2008, pp. 1433-1440.
- [14] S. Izumiya, N. Takeuchi. New special curves and developable surfaces // Turk. J. Math. Vol. 28, 2004, pp. 153-163.
- [15] W. K. Clifford. Preliminary sketch of biquaternions // Proc. London Math. Soc., Vol.4, 1873, pp. 361-395.





ON THE ISOMETRY GROUP OF CHINESE CHECKER SPACE

Rüstem Kaya Eskişehir Osmangazi University, Eskişehir, Turkey e-mail:rkaya@ogu.edu.tr

In this work, we, firstly, find that the spheres in the Chinese Checkers space are deltoidal icositetrahedrons. Then we show that the group of isometries of the 3-dimensional space with respect to Chinese Checkers metric is the semi-direct product of deltoidal icositetrahedron group G(D) and T(3), where G(D) is the (Euclidean) symmetry group of the deltoidal icositetrahedron and T(3) is the group of all translations of the 3-dimensional space.

The talk will be based on the [1].

References

[1] Özcan Gelişgen, Rüstem Kaya. The Isometry Group of Chinese Checker Space // Manuscript 2010.

[2] Özcan Gelişgen, Rüstem Kaya. The txicab space group // Acta Math. Hungar., Vol.122, No.1-2, 2009, pp.187-200.

[3] H. Barış Çolakoğlu, Rüstem Kaya. On the regular polygons in the chinese checker plane // Applied Sciences, Vol.10, 2008, pp. 29-37.

DIRECTED HOMOTOPY THEORY OF DIGITAL IMAGES

Simge Öztunç, Ali Mutli, Necdet Bildik Celal Bayar University, Manisa, Turkey e-mail:simge.oztunc@bayar.edu.tr, ali.mutlu@bayar.edu.tr, necdet.bildik@bayar.edu.tr

In this paper we recall some concepts like digital image, digital path, directed space, directed path and directed homotopy. We give the definition of digital directed path and digital directed map and present some fundamental examples of directed spaces in digital images. Directed homotopy in digital images is introduced and some categorical structures are constructed via directed digital homotopy.

- [1] Azrael Rosenfeld. Continuous functions on digital pictures // Pattern Recognition Letters, Vol.4, 1986, pp. 177-184.
- [2] James R. Munkres. Topologya a First Course // Prentice-Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, 1975.
- [3] Laurance Boxer. Digitally continuous functions // Pattern Recognition Letters, Vol.15, 1994, pp. 833-839,
- [4] Laurance Boxer. Properties of Digital Homotopy // Journal of Mathematical Imaging and Vision, Vol.22, 2005, pp. 19-26.
- [5] Marco Grandis. Directed Algebraic Topology-Models of Non-Reversible Worlds // New Mathematical Monographs:13, Cambridge.
- [6] Marco Grandis. Directed algebraic topology I // Cahiers De Topologie et Geometrie, Differantielle Categoriques, 4, 2003, pp. 281-316.





A NEW CHARACTERIZATION FOR THE TIMELIKE SPACE CURVE IN THE LORENTZ SPACE

Mihriban Kulahci, Mahmut Ergut *Firat University, Science Faculty, Turkey* e-mail:mihribankulahci@gmail.com,mergut@firat.edu.tr

Let

$$\alpha : I \subset IR \to L^3,$$

$$s \to \alpha(s) = (\alpha_1(s), \alpha_2(s), \alpha_3(s))$$

be a smooth regular curve in L^3 , (i.e $\alpha'(t) \ge 0$ for any $t \in I$) where I is an open interval. For any $t \in I$ the curve α is called spacelike curve, lightlike curve or a timelike curve if $\langle \alpha, \alpha \rangle > 0$, $\langle \alpha, \alpha \rangle = 0$, $\langle \alpha, \alpha \rangle < 0$, respectively. Let $\{t, n, b\}$ be the Frenet trihedron of the differentiable timelike space curve in Lorentz space. Then the Frenet equations are

$$\begin{split} t^{'} &= \kappa n, \\ n^{'} &= \kappa t + \tau b, \\ b^{'} &= -\tau n, \end{split}$$

where κ is curvature and τ is torsion. In addition, Darboux vector is defined as follows[3]

$$w = -\tau t - \kappa b.$$

In this paper, we give arc lengths of spherical representations of tangent vector field t, principal vector field n, binormal vector field n and the vector field $c = \frac{w}{\|\vec{w}\|}$, where w is the Darboux vector field of a timelike space curve α in Lorentz space.

- [1] B.O. Neill. Semi-Riemannian Geometry with Applications to Relativity // Academic Press Inc., London, 1983.
- H.H. Hacisalihoglu. A New Characterization For Inclined Curves By The Help Of Spherical Representations // International Electronic Journal Of Geometry, Vol.2, No.2, 2009, pp. 71-75.
- [3] A. Yucesan, A.C. Coken, N. Ayyildiz. On The Darboux Rotation Axis Of Lorentz Space Curve // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.155, 2004, pp. 345-351
- [4] D. Soylu, M. Bektas, M. Ergut. Characterizations for osculator hypersphere in Lorentzian space // Jour of Inst of Math and Comp Sci, (Math Ser) 1999, Vol.12, No.3, pp. 229-235.





CONDITION OF BULGE AND CONCAVITY OF A CURVE IN THE POLAR SYSTEM OF COORDINATES IN THE EXTREME POINTS OF RADIUS OF FUNCTIONS

Rita M. Nauruzbayeva Military Institute of National Security Committee, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:rita.dali@mail.ru

The method of research of functions in the polar system of coordinates is given in the work [1]. In this work is obtained the condition of concavity and bulge of the graph of functions in extreme points. We consider a curve, given in the polar system of coordinates by the equation $\rho = \rho(\varphi)$.

Definition. The graph of functions in the polar system of coordinates is protuberant in the extreme points of radius of functions if the normal in this point, is directed to the pole; concave, if in these points the normal is directed to an opposite side.

It ensues from definition of a circle of curvature, that the center of curvature always lies on the normals to the curve in the examined point from the side of concavity (I.e. outside, reverse to that, where the bulge of curve is directed).

On the tangent to the curve the positive is consider on the direction towards the growth of arc the curve. On the normal for positive direction we will choose such kind of direction, that must be relative (positively directed) to the tangent as it also oriented, as an y-axis to the of x-axis. For example, at ordinary direction of these axes normal must make corner $+\pi/2$ with the tangent anticlockwise. Now, considering the radius of curvature as a directed segment, lying on the normal, we add him a sign plus, if he is put aside on the normal in the positive directions and the sign minus, otherwise. So in the case (I) the radius of the curvature will have a sign of "+", and in a case (II) p sign of "-" (Fig.1).



Figure 1

Considering into account that in extreme points the first derivate $\rho'(\varphi_0) = 0$, get terms, at $\rho - \rho'' > 0$, a curve is protuberant, and at $\rho - \rho'' < 0$, a curve is concave.

References

 Rita M. Nauruzbayeva. Investigation of functions in the system of polar coordinates // Scientifically Research Job, Almaty, 2010, 165p.





MIRROR PRINCIPLE AND HORI-VAFA CONJECTURE ON HOMOGENEOUS SPACES

Vehbi Emrah Paksoy Nova Southeastern University, Fort Lauderdale, USA e-mail:vp80@nova.edu

In a series of papers Lian, Liu, and Yau ([1], [4]) proposed a machinery called "Mirror Principle" to solve some enumerative problems including the conjectural formula of Candelas et.al.([2]) for counting the number n_d of rational curves in every degree d on a general quintic in \mathbf{P}^4 . Basically, mirror principle proposes that certain sequences of multiplicative equivariant characteristic classes on stable map moduli spaces can be computed in terms of certain hypergeometric type classes.

Given a projective, non-singular variety $X, d \in H_2(X)$ and a vector bundle V with a multiplicative class b, we can construct a cohomology valued "Generalized Hyperbolic Series" which is shown to carry important information about the intersection numbers

$$K_d = \int_{[M_{0,1}(d,X)]} b(V_d)$$

where $\overline{M}_{0,k}(d,X)$ is the moduli space of k-pointed genus 0, degree d stable maps with target X, $[M_{0,1}(d,X)]$ is the virtual fundamental class ([3]) and V_d is a vector bundle on $\overline{M}_{0,k}(d,X)$ induced by V whose fiber at (C, x_1, \ldots, x_k, f) is given as $H^0(C, f^*V) \oplus H^1(C, f^*V)$. This cohomology valued series is called A series associated to V and b and denoted by $A^{V,b}(t)$.

In this presentation, we explain the computation of A series of a flag manifold using **T**-equivariant tangent bundle and Chern polynomial where **T** is an algebraic torus. We also explain the connections of similar computation to a generalization of Hori-Vafa conjecture which originally describes a generating function for 1-point descendant Gromov-Witten invariants of a Grassmannian in terms of the J-function of a product of projective spaces.

- [1] B. Lian, K. Liu, S.T. Yau. Mirror principle I // Asian J. Math. 1, 1997, pp. 729-763.
- [2] P. Candelas, X. De la Ossa, P. Green, L. Parkes. A pair of Calabi-Yau manifolds as an exactly soluble superconformal theory // Nucl. Phys. B. No.359, 1991, pp. 21-74.
- [3] J. Li, G. Tian. Virtual moduli cycle and Gromow-Witten invariants of algebraic varieties // J. of Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.11, No.1, 1998, pp. 119-174.
- [4] B. Lian, K. Liu, S.T. Yau. Mirror principle III // Asian J. Math. No.3, 1999, pp. 771-800.







ON THE CURVATURE AND NATURAL LIFTS OF THE SPHERICAL INDICATORS OF MANNHEIM CURVE PAIRS

Süleyman Şenyurt

Department of Mathematics, Ordu University, Turkey e-mail:senyurtsuleyman@hotmail.com, ssenyurt@odu.edu.tr

Let $\alpha : I \to E^z$ be a Mannheim curve and $\alpha : I \to E^z$ be Mannheim partner curve of α . Let $\{T^*, N^*, B^*\}$ be the Frenet frame and C^* be the unit vector of this Frenet frame.

The following feets have been proved.

Corollary 1. There is not such a α Mannheim curve that (T^*) tangent indicator is a big circle on unit sphere. Thus $\overline{(T^*)}$ natural lift of (T^*) , can not be an integral curve of geodesic spray on $T(S^2)$ tangent bunch.

Corollary 2. If the α Mannheim curve is a helix then (B^*) binormal indicator of Mannheim partner curve is a big circle on unit sphere. In this case, $\overline{(B^*)}$ natural lift of (B^*) binormal indicator is an integral curve of geodesic spray on $T(S^2)$ tangent bunch.

Corollary 3. There is not a α^* curve such that (C^*) constant pol curve is a big circle on unit sphere. Thus, $\overline{(C^*)}$ natural lift of (C^*) curve can not be an integral curve of geodesic spray on $T(S^2)$ tangent bunch.

- M. Çalışkan, A.I. Sivridağ, H.H. Hacısalihoğlu. Some Characterizations For The Natural Lift Curves And The Geodesic Sprays // Ankara Univ., Fen Fak., Communications, Vol.33, 1984, pp. 235-242.
- [2] A.I. Sivridağ, M. Çalışkan. On The M-Integral Curves And M-Geodesic Sprays // Erciyes Univ., Fen Bilimleri Dergisi, Vol.7, No.1-2, 1991, pp. 1283-1287.
- [3] K. Orbay, E. Kasap. On Mannheim partner curves in E³ // International Journal of Physical Sciences, Vol.4, No.5, 2009, pp. 261-264.
- [4] F. Wang, H. Liu. Mannheim Partner Curves in 3-Space // Proceedings of The Eleventh International Workshop on Diff. Geom., Vol.11, 2007, pp. 25-31.
- [5] H. Liu, F. Wang. Mannheim partner curves in 3-space // Journal of Geometry, Vol.88, No.1-2, 2008, pp. 120-126(7).
- [6] M. Bilici, M. Çalışkan, I. Aydemir. The Natural Lift Curves And The Geodezic Sprays For The Spherical Indicatrices Of The Pair Of Evolute-involuteCurves // Iternational Journal of App. Maths., Vol.11, 2002, pp. 415-420.
- [7] E. Ergun, M. Çalışkan. On Geodesic Sprays In Minkowski 3-Space // VIII Ulusal Geometri Sempozyumu, Akdeniz Universitesi, May, 2010.
- [8] H.H. Hacısalihoğlu. Diferensiyel Geometri // İnönü Üniversitesi Fen Edebiyat Fakültesi Yayinlari, Mat. No7, Malatya, 1983.





GEOMETRY OF DECODING OF A GENETIC CODE

M.F. Tahirov Center of Technologies of Education at the Ministry of Education of Azerbaijan Republic e-mail:mahir.tahirov@mail.ru

Modern genetics represents any live cell as formation, consisting of two basic parts, i.e. the *kernel* containing *chromosomes* - that carriers the hereditary information, and *cytoplasm*- which is the main mass of the cell and contains the *enzymes*, *playing a role* of catalysts ensuring various biochemical reflection, necessary for development and organism survival.

Enzymes and the majority of hormones are long protein molecules. Proteins represent the linear chains consisting of rather simple molecules of various *amino acids*, connected among themselves so-called *peptide connections*. Note that, under the influence of heat and weak acids of the proteins decay on amino acids. Amino acids in proteins organize chains with probability properties. It is interesting that in organic chemistry by association to *any* molecule of atom of hydrogen, amino group (-NH2) and carboxylic groups (-SOON) it is possible to obtain thousand various amino acids. However, expansion of molecules of fiber leads *only to twenty* various amino acids.

Protein chains in various enzymes and hormones are defined genetic material, containing in chromosomes. This material is known as a nucleonic acid molecule by which are separated from cell kernels, represent the chains consisting of rather simple atomic groups - *nucleotides*. However in contrast to fibers nucleotide exist only in four aspects: Adenine (A), Thymine (T), Guanine (G), Cytosine (C).



The principal not solved completely genetics problem is an establishment of the one to one correspondence between triples of organized of twenty proteins and from triples from four nucleotides.

This problem belongs to the problems of combinatorial mathematics. The considered problem is directly connected with this problem. Using the Shperner's theorem and geometrical representation a triangle with sides the basic of three nucleotides from four. We prove that any triple from four nucleotides is definitely in the same disposition will be met repeatedly.





GENERALIZED EULER-LAGRANGE AND HAMILTON EQUATIONS ON HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL DISTRIBUTIONS

Mehmet Tekkoyun, Fulya Ozge Caglar Pamukkale University, Denizli, Turkey e-mail:tekkoyun@pau.edu.tr, fulyaozgecaglar@gmail.com

In the work given in [8], mathematical models of mechanical systems are introduced on the horizontal and vertical distributions of tangent and cotangent bundles. In this study, we generalize Euler-Lagrange and Hamilton equations deduced in [8]. Also we give some propositions and examples about generalized Euler-Lagrange and Hamilton equations.

Finally, some geometrical and physical results related to the obtained mechanical systems and equations are discussed.

- M. Crampin. On the differential geometry of the Euler-Lagrange equations, and the inverse problem of Lagrangian dynamics // J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 14, 1981, pp. 2567-2575.
- [2] M. De Leon, P.R. Rodrigues. Methods of differential geometry in analytical mechanics // North-Holland Mathematics Studies, Elsevier, Amsterdam, Vol.152, 1989.
- [3] G. Ivan, M. Ivan, D. Opris. Fractional Euler Lagrange and fractional Wong equations for Lie algebroids // BSGP, Vol.14, 2007, pp. 73-80.
- [4] N. Nutku. Hamiltonian formulation of the KdV equation // J. Math. Phys., Vol. 25, 1984, pp. 2007-2008.
- [5] P. Popescu, N. Dumitru. Some aspects concerning non-Hamiltonians systems // BSGP, Vol.15, 2008, pp. 163-167.
- [6] F. Etayo, R. Santanaría and U.R. Trías. The geometry of a bi-Lagrangian manifold // Diff. Geom. Appl., Vol.24, 2006, pp. 33-59.
- [7] M. Tekkoyun. On para-Euler-Lagrange and para-Hamiltonian equations // Phys. Lett. A, Vol. 340, 2005, pp. 7-11.
- [8] M. Tekkoyun. Complex Dynamics Effect on Distributions // BSG Proceedings, Vol.16, 2009, pp. 156-162.
- [9] R. Miron, D. Hrimiuc, H. Shimada, S. V. Sabau. The geometry of Hamilton and Lagrange spaces // Kluwer Academic Publishers, 2001.
- [10] M. Anastasiei. Locally conformal Kaehler structures on tangent manifold of a space form // Libertas Mathematica, Vol.19, 1999, pp. 71-76.





SIMPLICITY OF NONASSOCIATIVE ALGEBRAS WITH SWITCHES

Kaisar M. Tulenbaev Institute of Mathematics, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:tulen75@hotmail.com

This article is devoted to proving the fact that simple algebras with switches are exhausted by the trivial one-dimensional abelian algebra. Algebra with the switches are of great use in the theory of dynamical systems. Let's consider an algebra A, satisfying the identity

 $(a \circ b) \circ c = (b \circ a - a \circ b) \circ c$

. We call such algebra A as an algebra with switches. The first problem on nonassociative algebras is classification of simple objects. The object under investigation is the problem of finding simple algebras in variety of algebras with switches. Let us consider Jacobian element $I(a, b, c) = a \circ (b \circ c) + b \circ (c \circ a) + c \circ (a \circ b)$ for some $a, b, c \in A$. We will prove the following important lemma.

Lemma. $\forall d \in A$ the following statement is true: $I(a, b, c) \circ d = 0$.

Using this lemma we can obtain the proof of main theorem.

Theorem. Algebra with the switches A is simple only when it is trivial abelian algebra of dimension one. Also we give the classification of finite-dimensional algebras with the switches of small dimension.

- A. S. Dzhumadil'daev, K. M. Tulenbaev. Exceptional 0-Alia algebras // Journal of mathematical Sciences, Springer, New York, Vol.161, No.1, 2009, pp. 37-38.
- [2] A. S. Dzhumadil'daev, K. M. Tulenbaev. Engel theorem for Novikov algebras // Com. Algebra, No.2, 2006, pp. 205-207.





ON INVOLUTE-EVOLUTE CURVE COUPLES IN RIEMANN-OTSUKI SPACE

Munevver Yildirim Yilmaz, Mehmet Bektas Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:myildirim@firat.edu.tr, mbektas@firat.edu.tr

Riemann-Otsuki spaces are the special type of Weyl-Otsuki spaces of which metric tensor satisfies Otsuki and $\nabla_k g_{ij} = 0$ relations. In [1] Nadj obtained Frenet formula of this space with respect to covariant and contravariant part of the connection.

On the other hand, consider the curves α and β with their coordinate neighborhoods (I, α) and (I, β) in E^n . Let Frenet r- frames of α and β be $\{V_1, ..., V_r\}$ and $\{V_1^*, ..., V_r^*\}$, respectively. β is called involute of α (α is called evolute of β) if

$$g_{ij}(V_1, V_1^*) = 0$$

holds.

In this paper after a short brief of Riemann-Otsuki spaces, we define involute -evolute curve couples of 3-dimensional Riemann-Otsuki space $R - O_3$ and obtained characterizations in this space for this type curves.

- F.N. Derdji. The frenet formulae of the Riemann-Otsuki space // Review of Research, Fac. of Science University of Novi Sad, Mathematics Series, Vol.16, No.1, 1986, pp. 96-106.
- [2] F.N. Derdji. On subspaces of Riemann-Otsuki space // Publ. De L. Inst. Math. Nouvelle Serie, Vol.30(44), 1981, pp. 53-58.
- [3] F.N. Derdji. Auto-parallel curves of Riemann-Otsuki spaces // Review of Research, Fac. of Science University of Novi Sad., Vol.13, 1986, pp. 228-243.
- [4] M. Caliskan, M. Bilici. Some characterizations for the pair of involute- evolute curves in euclidean space E3 // Bulletin Of Pure And App. Sci., Vol.21, 2002, pp. 289-294.
- [5] E. Ozyilmaz, S. Yilmaz. Involute-evolute curve couples in euclidean 4-space // Int. J. Open Problems Compt. Math., Vol.2, No.2, 2009, pp. 168-174.
- [6] H.H. Hacisalihoglu. Differential Geometry // Ankara University, Faculty of Science, 2000.





ELASTIC CURVES ON THE CYLINDER¹

Ahmet Yücesan, Yasemin Yay, M. Gülşah Kartal Süleyman Demirel University, Isparta, Turkey Giresun University, Giresun, Turkey e-mail:ahmetyucesan@sdu.edu.tr

In this study, we examine elastic curves on cylinder surface in 3-dimensional Euclidean space. First, we define elastic curve on cylinder surface as a curve minimizing the functional defined by the integral of the sum of the squared geodesic curvature and squared normal curvature (bending energy functional) among regular curves of a fixed length satisfying given boundary conditions (the same initial point, the same initial direction, the same end point and the same end direction). Then, we derive differential equation determining elastic curves on cylinder using elements of differential geometry and Euler-Lagrange equations. Finally, by means of this differential equation we obtain that geodesics (straight line, circle and helix) on cylinder are elastic curves.

- [1] G. Brunnett. A new characterization of plane elastica, Mathematical Methods in Computer Aided Geometric Design II // Tom Lyche and Larry L. Schumaker (eds.) Academic Pres Inc., 1992, pp. 43-56.
- [2] G. Brunnett, P.E. Crouch. Elastic Curves on the Sphere, Advances in Computational Mathematics // Vol.2, No. 1, 1994, pp. 23-40.
- [3] O. Bolza, Vorlesungen ueber Variationsrechnung // Koehler und Amelang, Leipzig, 1949, pp. 718.
- [4] M.P. Carmo. Differential Geometry of Curves and Surfaces Prentice-Hall // New Jersey, 1976, pp. 503.
- [5] J. Oprea. Differential Geometry and its Applications // Pearson Education, Inc., Washington, 2007, 469p.
- [6] R. Weinstock. Calculus of Variations // Dover Publications, Inc., New York, 1974, 326p.

¹ This work was supported by the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey under Project 109T639.





ON SOLITON SURFACE¹

Zhanat KH. Zhunussova al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:zhzhkh@mail.ru

One of the new stage in interaction of the differential geometry and nonlinear partial derivative differential equations begins with opening of the inverse problem method. Method of the inverse problem allows to solve Cauchy problems for such nonlinear partial derivative differential equations as Korteweg de Vries equation, modified Korteweg de Vries equation, nonlinear Schrodinger equation, Landau-Lifschitz equation [1].

Let's consider well-known from differential geometry Gauss-Codacci-Mainardi equation in space (1+1)-dimensionality [2]

$$A_t - B_x + [A, B] = 0, (1)$$

where A is 3×3 matrix, B is an arbitrary 3×3 matrix, [A, B] = AB - BA.

We imply the following (1+1)-measured spin system by isotropic Landau-Lifschitz equation [1]

$$\mathbf{S}_t = \mathbf{S} \times \mathbf{S}_{xx},\tag{2}$$

where \times is vector product, $\mathbf{S} = (S_1, S_2, S_3), \mathbf{S}^2 = S_1^2 + S_2^2 + S_3^2 = 1.$ It is known Gauss-Weingarten equation [2]

$$\mathbf{r}_{xx} = \Gamma_{11}^1 \mathbf{r}_x + \Gamma_{11}^2 \mathbf{r}_t + L \mathbf{n}, \quad \mathbf{r}_{xt} = \Gamma_{12}^1 \mathbf{r}_x + \Gamma_{12}^2 \mathbf{r}_t + M \mathbf{n}, \tag{3a}$$

$$\mathbf{r}_{tt} = \Gamma_{22}^1 \mathbf{r}_x + \Gamma_{22}^2 \mathbf{r}_t + N\mathbf{n},\tag{3b}$$

$$\mathbf{n}_x = p_{11}\mathbf{r}_x + p_{12}\mathbf{r}_t, \ \mathbf{n}_t = p_{21}\mathbf{r}_x + p_{22}\mathbf{r}_t, \tag{3c}$$

where Γ_{ij}^k are Christoffel symbols, p_{ij} , i = 1, 2 are coefficients. Working in orthogonal base is convenient in soliton geometry. We enter an orthogonal base

$$\mathbf{e}_1 = \frac{\mathbf{r}_x}{\sqrt{E}}, \quad \mathbf{e}_2 = \mathbf{n}, \quad \mathbf{e}_3 = \mathbf{e}_1 \times \mathbf{e}_2.$$
 (4)

In this case Gauss-Weingarten equation (3) is reduced to certain form.

We use an united spin approach to soliton equations [1]. With help of this approach a surface corresponding to certain (1+1)-measured spin system is built. According to the to this approach following identity

$$\mathbf{S} \equiv \mathbf{e}_1. \tag{5}$$

holds. We present the following statement.

Statement. At performing of the condition (5) from equations (1), (2), (3) we get following expressions for $\omega_i, j = 1, 2, 3$:

$$\omega_1 = \frac{1}{k}(\sigma_t - \omega_{2x} + \tau\omega_3), \ \omega_2 = -k_x - \tau\sigma, \ \omega_3 = \sigma_x - \tau k, \tag{6}$$

where ω, k, σ, τ are functions defined the surface and expressed in Christoffel symbols.

It is possible to express (6) in coefficient term of the first and second quadratic forms.

- [1] M. Lakshmanan, R. Myrzakulov, et all. Motion of curves and surfaces and nonlinear evolution equations in 2+1 dimensions // J. Math. Phys., Vol.39, No.7, 1998, pp. 3765-3771.
- [2] L.P. Eisenthart. A Treatise on the Differential Geometry of Curvers and Surfaces // Dover, New York, 1909.

¹ This research is supported by Institute Mathematics Fundamental Grant Program 1.4.2-774





SECTION III

Function Theory and Functional Analysis

SYMBOLS OF MULTIDIMENSIONAL SINGULAR INTEGRALS AND OSCILLATING MULTIPLIERS IN THE WEIGHTED SPACES OF BESSEL POTENTIALS ON THE SPHERE

A.D. Gadjiev

Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics, Baku, Azerbaijan

Let S be the Beltrami operator on the sphere S^{n-1} of the space R^n (spherical part of the Laplace operator Δ) and let $H_p^l(S^{n-1})$ be the space of Bessel potentials on this sphere - the completeness of the space $C^{\infty}(S^{n-1})$ by the norm $\left\| (E+\delta)^{l/2} g \right\|_{L_p(S^{n-1})}$, where E is the identity operator, l positive number and $p \geq 1$, so that

$$\|g\|_{p,l} = \left\| \left(E+\delta\right)^{l/2} g\right\|_p.$$

For the points $x', y' \in S^{n-1}$ we denote $x' = (\theta, \theta')$ and $y' = (\omega, \omega')$, where $\theta', \omega' \in S^{n-2}$ and $0 \leq \omega, \theta < n$ and introduce the weighted spaces of Bessel potentials on the sphere. Given real number β we denote by $C_{\beta}H_p^l(S^{n-1})$ the space of functions with finite norm

$$\left\|g\right\|_{p,l,C_{\beta}} = \left\|g\right\|_{p} + \left\|\left(\cos\theta\right)^{\beta}\delta^{l/2}g\right\|_{p}$$

and by $C_{\beta}H_{p}^{l}\left(S^{n-1}\right)$ the space of functions with finite norm

$$||g||_{p,l,S_{\beta}} = ||g||_{p} + \left\| (\sin \theta)^{\beta} \delta^{1/2} g \right\|_{p}.$$

We will give the theorems on connections between the differential properties of Calderon-Zygmud multidimensional singular integral in these weighted spaces. By using these theorems we formulate the corresponding theorems on oscillating multipliers $i^m a(m)$ of spherical harmonic expansions of functions in the weighted spaces $C_{\beta}H_p^l$ and $S_{\beta}H_p^l$.





ON EXISTENCE OF U - ULTRAFILTERS AND THEIR PROPERTIES

A.A. Chekeev, M.A. Abdraimova Kyrqyz National University, Bishkek, Kyrqyzstan e-mail:asyl.ch.top@mail.ru, maxabat1105@mail.ru

In this thesis the existence of u - ultrafilters is proved, which are analogous to the regular results of Aleksandrov ([3]).

Let $C^*(uX)$ be the ring of all uniformly continuous bounded functions on uniform space uX.

Definition 1. ([1]). A subset $F \subset X$ in uniform space uX is called uniform zero set if $F = f^{-1}(0)$ for some $f \in C^*(uX)$.

Complement of uniform zero set is called uniform cozero set. In other words a subset $U \subset X$ in

uniform space uX is uniform cozero set, if $U = f^{-1}(\mathbb{R} \setminus \{0\})$ for some $f \in C^*(uX)$. **Definition 2.** ([1]). A function $f : uX \to I = [0;1]$ is called C_u^* -function, if $f^{-1}(U)$ is uniform cozero set for any open $U \subset I$, or equivalently, $f^{-1}(F)$ is uniform zero set for any closed $F \subset I$, i.e. $f^{-1}(F) \in \mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ and $f^{-1}(U) \in \mathfrak{L}(uX)$.

By $\mathfrak{Z}(uX)(\mathfrak{L}(uX))$ we denote the family of all uniform zero (cozero) sets.

Definition 3. ([2]). Two subsets $A, B \subseteq X$ in uniform space uX are called u-separated, if there exists some C_u^* -function $f: uX \to I = [0,1]$, such that f(A) = 0 and f(B) = 1. If A is u-separated from $X \setminus B$, then B is called u-neighborhood of A.

Definition 4. ([2]). Let $A, B \subseteq X$, then A is called u- embedded in B, if A u-separated from $X \setminus B$, *i.e.* there exists C_u^* - function $f: uX \to I$, with f(A) = 0 and $f(X \setminus B) = 1$.

Definition 5. ([2]). A family ξ of subsets in uniform space uX is called u-system, if for any $K \in \xi$ one can find $B \in \xi$ such that B u- embedded in K, or equivalently, each $K \in \xi$ is u- neighborhood of some $B \in \xi$.

Definition 6. *u* - centered system is a centered *u* - system consisting of open subsets.

Definition 7. Prefilter (filter) which is u – system is called u - prefilter (filter).

Definition 8. Each u - centered system which cannot be proper subsystem of any other u - centered system is called maximal u -centered system.

Theorem 9. Each maximal u - centered system is u -ultrafilter.

Definition 10. Maximal u-centered systems is called of u-ultrafilters.

Theorem 11. Every u – centered system contains at least one u – ultrafilter.

References

[1] M.G. Charalambous. Uniform Dimension Function // Ph. D. dissertation. Univ. of London, 1971.

- A.A. Chekeev, M.A. Abdraimova. A new approach in constructing bicompact extensions of uniform spaces // Izv. NAN KR No.1. Bishkek, 2010, pp. 52-55 (in Russian).
- [3] P.S. Aleksandrov. On bicompact extension of topological spaces // Matem. Vol.5, 1939, pp. 403-423 (in Russian).





PROBLEM OF INTEGRAL GEOMETRY WITH THREE - DIMENSIONAL SPACE CURVE

Elmira Abdyldaeva Kyrgyz-Turkish Manas University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:efa_69@mail.ru

This work analyzes the problem of the restoration of unknown functions according to the given value of their integrals with non-invariant (depending not only of the difference of an independent variable and one of integration) weighted functions along collections of curves in critical cases (denominators in the arising integral equations tending toward zero).

Suppose in a band $\Omega = (\xi, \eta) : \xi = (\xi_1, \xi_2) \in \mathbb{R}^2, \eta \in [0, h] \in \mathbb{R}^3$ we are given a set of curves

$$\gamma(x,y) = \begin{cases} \xi_1 = x_1 - \phi_1(t,y), \\ \xi_2 = x_2 - \phi_2(t,y), \\ \eta = y - t, \ 0 \le t \le y \end{cases}$$

with variables $(x, y) \in \Omega$ and the ends of elements lying in the axis $\eta = 0$. The function $\xi_1 = x_1 - \phi_1(t, y)$ increases with respect to η and the function $\xi_2 = x_2 - \phi_2(t, y)$ increases with respect to η in the interval $[0, y], \phi_1(0, y) = \phi_2(0, y) = 0, y \in [0, h]$.

For the weight function $a(x, y, \xi, \eta)$ and the function $u(\xi, \eta)$ we set

$$Au \equiv \int_{\gamma(x,y)} a(x,y,\xi,\eta)u(\xi,\eta)ds = g(x,y).$$

We need to recover the function u(x, y) by the function g(x, y) given in Ω . We shall assume that the function $a(x, y, \xi, \eta)$ as follows

$$a(x, y, \xi, \eta) = a_0(x - \xi, y, \eta) + a_1(x, y, \xi, \eta)$$

we obtain:

$$\begin{aligned} Au &\equiv \int_{0}^{y} \left[a_{0}(\phi_{1}(t,y),\phi_{2}(t,y),y,y-t) + a_{1}(x,y,x_{1}-\phi_{1}(t,y),x_{2}-\phi_{2}(t,y),y-t) \right] \times \\ & \times u(\phi_{1}(t,y),\phi_{2}(t,y),y-t)\sqrt{1 + (\phi_{1}'(t,y))^{2} + \phi_{2}'(t,y))^{2}} dt = g(x,y), \ (x,y) \in \Omega. \end{aligned}$$

Further, by means of the Fourier transformation, these problems are reduced to integro-differentials equations and the method of the scale of Banach spaces is applied.

References

 A. Asanov. Regularization, Uniqueness and Existence of Solutions of Volterra Equarions of the First Kind // Utrecht, The Netherlands, Tokyo, Japan, 1998, 275 p.





THE GROWTH OF THE NORM ALGEBRAIC POLYNOMIALS OF THE WHOLE COMPLEX PLANE

Fahreddin Abdullayev, Deniz Aral, Pelin Özkartepe Mersin University, Ciflikkoy-Mersin, Turkey e-mail:fabdul@mersin.edu.tr

Let G be a finite region bounded by a Jordan curve $L := \partial G$ and let X and Y be norm spaces of functions defined in G. Let \wp_n denote the set of arbitrary algebraic polynomials $P_n(z)$, deg $P_n \leq n, n = 0, 1, 2, \dots$ The comparison of norms of polynomials type

$$||P_n^{(k)}||_X \le A(k, n, G)||P_n||_Y$$

for all $P_n \in \wp_n$ and all k = 0, 1, 2, ... have been studied in many works, where A(k, n, G) is a constant depending on k, n and G.

Let $A_p(G)$, p > 0, denote the class of functions f analytic in G and satisfying the condition

$$\|f\|_{A_p(G)} := \left(\iint_G |f(z)|^p \, d\sigma_z\right)^{1/p} < \infty$$

where σ be the two-dimensional Lebesque measure.

Let $w = \Phi(z)$ be the conformal mapping of $\Omega := C\overline{G}$ onto the |w| > 1 normalized by $\Phi(\infty) = \infty$, $\Phi'(\infty) > 0$; $\Omega_R := \{z : |\Phi(z)| > R > 1\}$.

In this paper we discuss the estimation of the following type

$$\left|P_{n}^{(k)}(z)\right| \leq cons. \|P_{n}\|_{A_{p}(G)} \begin{cases} n^{\alpha}, & z \in \overline{G} \\ \frac{n^{\beta}}{d(z,L)}, & z \in \Omega \end{cases}, \ p > 1,$$

for different regions of the complex plane, where the numbers $\alpha := \alpha(k, p, G)$ and $\beta := \beta(k, p, G)$ explicitly defined depending of the properties of the given regions.

We give one of these results.

Theorem. Assume that L is K-quasiconformal. Then, for any $P_n \in \wp_n$ we have

$$|P_n(z)| \le cons. ||P_n||_{A_2(G)} \begin{cases} n^{\nu}, & z \in \overline{G}, \\ \frac{n^{\nu-\nu^{-1}}}{d(z,L)} |\Phi(z)|^{n+1}, & z \in \overline{\Omega}_{1+\frac{1}{n}}, \end{cases}$$

where $\nu := \min\{2, K^2\}.$

References

 F.G. Abdullayev, N.D. Aral, N.P. Özkartepe. Bernstein-Walsh type estimations for the unbounded regions of the complex plane // Proc. Int. Conf. "Math. Analysis, Dif. Equations and Appl., Sept. 15-20, 2010, Sunny Beach, Bulgaria, 2011, pp. 101-112.





SOLVING NONLINEAR FREDHOLM-HAMMERSTEIN INTEGRAL EQUATIONS BY USING CARDINAL LEGENDRE FUNCTIONS

Nasser Aghazadeh, Mehrdad Lakestani Azarbaijan University of Tarbiat Moallem, Tabriz, Iran University of Tabriz, Tabriz, Iran e-mail:aghazadeh@azaruniv.edu, lakestani@tabrizu.ac.ir

Legendre's functions are developed to approximate the solutions of nonlinear Fredholm-Hammerstein integral equations. Properties of these functions are first presented; these properties are then used to reduce the computation of integral equations to some algebraic equations. The method is computationally attractive, and applications are demonstrated through some illustrative example.

In the present paper we apply Legendre's functions on [0, 1], to solve the nonlinear Fredholm-Hammerstein integral equations of the form

$$y(x) = f(x) + \int_0^1 K(x,t)g(t,y(t))dt, \ 0 \le x \le 1,$$
(1)

where f, g and K are given continuous functions, g(t, y) is nonlinear for y and y is unknown function and should be found.

Our method consists of reducing (1) to a set of algebraic equations by expanding all functions as Legendre's functions.

- H. Brunner. Implicitly linear collocation methods for nonlinear Volterra equations // Appl. Numer. Math., Vol.9, No.3-5, 1992, pp. 235-247.
- H. Guoqiang. Asymptotic error expansion of a collocation-typemethod for Volterra-Hammerstein integral equations // Appl. Numer. Math., Vol.13, No.5, 1993, pp. 357-369.
- [3] S. Kumar, I.H. Sloan. A new collocation-type method for Hammerstein integral equations, Math. Comp., Vol.48, No.178, 1987, pp. 585-593.
- [4] L.J. Lardy. A variation of Nystrom's method for Hammerstein equations // J. Integral Equations, Vol.3, No.1, 1981, pp. 43-60.
- [5] F.G. Tricomi, Integral Equations // Dover, New York, 1982.





THE APPROXIMATION OF FUNCTIONS OF TWO VARIABLES OF BOUNDED P-VARIATION BY POLYNOMIALS WITH RESPECT TO HAAR SYSTEM

T.B. Akhazhanov

Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:mukanovj@mail.ru

Let f(x, y) be defined on the closed square $[0, 1]^2$ and $\tau = \xi \times \eta$, where $\xi = \{x_0 < x_1 < ... < x_m = 1\}$, $\eta = \{y_0 < y_1 < ... < y_n = 1\}$ - be an arbitrary partition of $[0, 1]^2$. Let $1 \le p < \infty$. The quantity

$$\aleph_{\xi,\eta}^{p}(f) = \left(\sum_{k=1}^{n} \sum_{l=1}^{m} |f(x_{k}, y_{l}) - f(x_{k-1}, y_{l}) - f(x_{k}, y_{l-1}) + f(x_{k-1}, y_{l-1})|^{p}\right)^{1/p}$$

is called variational sum of order p of the function f(x, y) with respect to the partitions τ .

The quantity

$$\omega_{1-1/p}(f,\delta_1,\delta_2) = \sup_{\substack{|\xi| \le \delta_1 \\ |\eta| \le \delta_2}} \aleph_{\xi}^p, \eta(f),$$

is called variational modulus of continity of order $1 - \frac{1}{p}$ of the function f(x, y). Here $|\xi| = \max_{1 \le k \le n} (x_k - x_{k-1})$, $|\eta| = \max_{1 \le l \le m} (x_l - x_{l-1})$.

We say that $f \in BV_p[0,1]^2$, $1 \le p < \infty$, if $V_p(f,[0,1]^2) \equiv \omega_{1-1/p}(f,1,1) < \infty$, and if $f \in C_p[0,1]^2$, $1 , if <math>\lim_{\substack{\delta_1 \to 0 \\ \delta_2 \to 0}} \omega_{1-1/p}(f,\delta_1,\delta_2) = 0$.

Endowed with the norm $||f||_{BV_p} = max \left\{ \sup_{(x,y)\in[0,1]^2} |f(x,y)|, V_p(f,[0,1]^2) \right\}$. This space is a Banach pace. Let $h_r(x)$ be functions of the Haar system. For the case of $[0,1)^2$ we put $h_r(x,y) = 0$

space. Let $h_n(x)$ be functions of the Haar system. For the case of $[0,1)^2$ we put $h_{m,n}(x,y) = h_m(x)h_n(y)$.

Denote by $E_{m,n}^h(f)_X$ the best approximation of $f \in X[0,1]^2$ by Haar polynomials of degree $\leq m \times n$ $(m, n \in N)$ in the norm of $X[0,1]^2$, where $X[0,1]^2 = C_p[0,1]^2$, $1 or <math>X[0,1]^2 = BV_p[0,1]^2$, $1 \leq p < \infty$

$$E_{m,n}(f)_X = \sup_{c_{ij}} \left\| f(x,y) - \sum_{i=1}^m \sum_{j=1}^n c_{ij}\chi_i(x)\chi_j(y) \right\|_X.$$

Denote by $S_{m,n}^{h}(f)$ rectangular partial sum of Fourier series of f by Haar system. By $K_{\alpha,\beta,\gamma}$ we denote a constant whose value may be different at each occurrence.

Theorem 1. That $1 <math>f \in C_p[0, 1]^2$, $m, n \in P$. Then

$$E_{m,n}^h(f)_{C_p} \le K_p \omega_{1-\frac{1}{p}}\left(f, \frac{1}{m}, \frac{1}{n}\right)$$

Theorem 2. That $1 <math>f \in C_p[0,1]^2, m, n \in P$. Then

$$\omega_{1-\frac{1}{p}}\left(f,\frac{1}{m},\frac{1}{n}\right) \le K_p E_{m,n}^h(f)_{C_p}.$$

References

 S.S. Volosives. The approximation of functions of two variables of bounded p-variation by polynomials with respect to haar and walsh systems // Math.Not., Vol.53, No.6, 1993, pp. 11-21.





FIBONACCI TYPE POLYNOMIALS

Serpil Halici, Zeynep Akyüz Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey e-mail:shalici@sakarya.edu.tr, zeynepcimen@mynet.com

In this study the generalized bivariate Fibonacci-type polynomials are investigated. Furthermore, some identities concerning with these polynomials are derived.

References

- [1] M. Catalani. Some Formulae for Bivariate Fibonacci and Lucas Polynomials // 2004.
- [2] M. Catalani. Generalized Bivariate Fibonacci Polynomials // Version 2, 2004.
- [3] J.M. Mahon, A.F. Horadam. Matrix and other summation techniques for pell polynomials // The Fibonacci Quart. Vol.4, 1986, pp. 290-308.
- [4] F.E. Hohn. Elementary Matrix Algebra // Macmillan Company, New York, 1973.
- [5] P.E. Ricci. Generalized lucas polynomials and fibonacci polynomials // Rivista di Math. Univ. Parma, Vol.4, 1995, pp. 137-146.
- [6] T. Amdeberhan. A note on fibonacci-type polynomials // Integers Vol.10, 2010, pp. 13-18.
- [7] T. Koshy. Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers with Applications // A Wiley-Intersection Publication, 2001.

A GENERALIZATION OF EXHAUSTIVENESS AND α CONVERGENCE FOR FUNCTION SEQUENCES

Hüseyin Albayrak, Serpil Pehlivan Süleyman Demirel University, Isparta, Turkey e-mail:huseyinalbayrak@sdu.edu.tr, serpilpehlivan@sdu.edu.tr

The concept of continuous convergence which is stronger than the pointwise convergence for sequences of functions was introduced in the first half of the twentieth century ([3],[4]) and called as the α -convergence later ([1],[2]). The concepts of continuous convergence and α -convergence are equivalent for sequences of functions, but they are not equivalent for nets of functions ([2]). Gregoriades and Papanastassiou [2] introduced a new concept which is called the exhaustiveness for sequences and nets of functions.

In this work, we consider sequences of functions defined between two metric spaces. As a generalization of the concepts mentioned above, we introduce the concepts of $\mathcal{F} - \alpha$ -convergence and \mathcal{F} -exhaustiveness, where \mathcal{F} is a filter on the set \mathbb{N} of all natural numbers. We also generalize the concepts of Cauchy sequence of functions, pointwise convergence and uniform convergence, via the notion of filter. Next, we investigate some properties of these new concepts. We also examine the relations between the classical concepts and their analogues that we introduced.

- R. Das, N. Papanastassiou. Some types of convergence of sequences of real valued functions // Real Anal. Exchange, Vol.28, No.2, 2002/2003, pp. 1-16.
- [2] V. Gregoriades, N. Papanastassiou. The notion of exhaustiveness and Ascoli-type theorems // Topology Appl., Vol.155, 2008, pp. 1111-1128.
- [3] J.L. Kelley. General Topology, D. Van Nostrand Company, 1955.
- [4] S. Stoilov. Continuous convergence, Rev. Math. Pures Appl., Vol.4, 1959, pp. 341-344.





ON A CLASS OF OPERATOR-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS OF THIRD ORDER WITH MULTIPLE CHARACTERISTICS ON THE WHOLE AXIS IN THE WEIGHTED SPACE

Araz R. Aliev, Ahmed L. Elbably

Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Institute of Mathematics and Machanics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:alievaraz@yahoo.com, ahmed_elbably2004@yahoo.com

For the function u(t) defined in $R = (-\infty, +\infty)$, with values in a separable Hilbert space H, we introduce the following spaces with a weight $e^{-\frac{\kappa}{2}t}$, $\kappa \in R$:

$$L_{2,\kappa}(R;H) = \left\{ u(t) : \|u\|_{L_{2,\kappa}(R;H)}^{2} = \int_{-\infty}^{+\infty} \|u(t)\|_{H}^{2} e^{-\kappa t} dt < +\infty \right\},$$
$$W_{2,\kappa}^{3}(R;H) = \left\{ u(t) : \|u\|_{W_{2,\kappa}^{3}(R;H)}^{2} = \int_{-\infty}^{+\infty} \left(\left\| \frac{d^{3}u(t)}{dt^{3}} \right\|_{H}^{2} + \left\| A^{3}u(t) \right\|_{H}^{2} \right) e^{-\kappa t} dt < +\infty \right\},$$

where A is a self-adjoint positive definite operator in H, and the derivatives are understood in the sense of the theory of distributions.

Consider the following third order operator-differential equation whose principal part has a multiple characteristic:

$$\left(-\frac{d}{dt}+A\right)\left(\frac{d}{dt}+A\right)^{2}u\left(t\right)+A_{1}\frac{d^{2}u\left(t\right)}{dt^{2}}+A_{2}\frac{du\left(t\right)}{dt}=f\left(t\right),t\in R,$$
(1)

where $f(t) \in L_{2,\kappa}(R; H)$, $u(t) \in W^3_{2,\kappa}(R; H)$, A is the same self-adjoint positive definite operator with the lower bound of the spectrum λ_0 $(A = A^* \ge \lambda_0 E \ (\lambda_0 > 0)$, E is the identity operator), and A_1 , A_2 are linear operators, moreover the operators A_1A^{-1} , A_2A^{-2} are bounded in H.

Applying the calculations from [1], we prove the following theorem.

Theorem. Let $|\kappa| < 2\lambda_0$ and holds the inequality

$$b\left(\kappa\right)\left(\left[1+\frac{4\lambda_{0}\left|\lambda_{0}+\kappa\right|}{\left(2\lambda_{0}+\kappa\right)^{2}}\right]\left\|A_{1}A^{-1}\right\|_{H\to H}+\frac{2\lambda_{0}}{2\lambda_{0}+\kappa}\left\|A_{2}A^{-2}\right\|_{H\to H}\right)<1,$$

where

$$b\left(\kappa\right) = \begin{cases} \frac{\lambda_{0}}{2^{1/2} \left(2\lambda_{0}^{2} - \kappa^{2}\right)^{1/2}}, & if \ 0 \leq \frac{\kappa^{2}}{4\lambda_{0}^{2}} < \frac{1}{3}\\ \frac{2\lambda_{0}|\kappa|}{4\lambda_{0}^{2} - \kappa^{2}}, & if \ \frac{1}{3} \leq \frac{\kappa^{2}}{4\lambda_{0}^{2}} < 1. \end{cases}$$

Then, for any $f(t) \in L_{2,\kappa}(R; H)$, equation (1) has a unique solution u(t) from the space $W_{2,\kappa}^3(R; H)$.

References

 A.R. Aliev. On the solvability of a class of operator differential equations of the second order on the real axis // Journal of Mathematical Physics, Analysis, Geometry, Vol.2, No.4, 2006, pp. 347-357.





ON THE PROBLEM ABOUT FLUCTUATIONS OF THE SYSTEM OF A VISCOUS STRATIFIED LIQUID IN THE ELASTIC VESSEL

Ashirov Allaberdy

Turkmen State University, Ashgabat, Turkmenistan

We consider a bounded domain $S = \mathbf{R}^3$ and let $\overline{\Omega_0} \subset S_3$ be a subdomain and $S = S_3 \setminus \overline{\Omega_0}$, in which $\gamma = \partial S_3, \Sigma = \partial \Omega_0$ from C^2 .

Let in the elastic vessel from S be the system from two viscous stratified impressing liquid, which be fulfilled the domain Ω_0 . Let Γ be the boundary, which divide this liquids and let Ω_1 and Ω_2 from Ω_0 such that Ω_1 lie above from Γ and Ω_2 lie below from Γ , $\sum_1 = \partial \Omega_1 \setminus \Gamma$, $\sum_2 = \partial \Omega_2 \setminus \Gamma$. Corresponding parts of the elastic vessel we denote by S_k , (k = 1, 2), $\gamma_k = \partial S_k$, (k = 1, 2).

Considering the normal fluctuations we have the following problem

$$\begin{cases} L\mathbf{u}_{k} + \lambda^{2}\rho\mathbf{u}_{k} = 0 \left(S_{k}, k = 1, 2\right) \sigma\left(\mathbf{u}_{k}\right)\mathbf{n}_{k}|_{\gamma_{k}\cup\sum_{k}} = 0 \left(k = 1, 2\right) \\ -\nu_{k}\Delta\mathbf{V}_{k} + \nabla P_{k} - \lambda\mathbf{V}_{k} + \lambda^{-1}g\rho_{0k}^{-1}\nabla\rho_{0}\mathbf{V}_{k} = 0, di\vartheta\mathbf{V}_{k} = 0 \left(\Omega_{k}, k = 1, 2\right) \\ -\lambda\mathbf{u}_{k} = \mathbf{V}_{k}, \left(\sum_{k}, k = 1, 2\right), \sigma\left(\mathbf{u}_{k}\right)\mathbf{n}_{k} = -T\left(\mathbf{V}_{k}\right)\mathbf{n}_{k}, \left(\sum_{k}, k = 1, 2\right) \\ \mathbf{V}_{1} = \mathbf{V}_{2}, T_{1}\left(\mathbf{V}_{1}\right)\mathbf{n}_{1} = T_{2}\left(\mathbf{V}_{2}\right)\mathbf{n}_{2}\left(\Gamma\right) \end{cases}$$
(1)

where $\overline{u_k}(\overline{x},t)$ – is the removal vector of elastic body, $\mathbf{V}_k(\mathbf{x},t)$ is the speed of fluid, $P_k(\mathbf{x},t)$, (k = 1, 2) is the deviation from equilibrium pressure,

$$\sigma\left(\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{k}}\right) = \left(\sigma_{ij}\left(\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{k}}\right)\right)_{i,j=1}^{3}, \ \sigma_{ij}\left(\mathbf{u}_{k}\right) = \lambda_{0}\delta_{ij}di\vartheta\mathbf{u}_{k} + \mu_{0}\left(\partial\left(u_{k}\right)_{i}/\partial x_{j} + \partial\left(u_{k}\right)_{j}/\partial x_{i}\right)$$

is the tensor of pressure, $\lambda_0, \mu_0 > 0-$ is a Lyame constants, ρ is the density of elastic body, g is the accelerate, $(-L\mathbf{u}_k)_i = \sum_{j=1}^3 \partial \sigma_{ij}(\mathbf{u}_k) / \partial x_j, (i = 1, 2, 3, k = 1, 2)$.

$$T\left(\mathbf{V}_{k}\right) = \left(T_{ij}\left(\mathbf{V}_{k}\right)\right)_{i,j=1}^{3}, T_{ij}\left(\mathbf{V}_{k}\right) = \delta_{ij}P_{k} + \nu_{k}\left(\partial\left(V_{k}\right)_{i}/\partial x_{j} + \partial\left(V_{k}\right)_{j}/\partial x_{j}\right), \ (k = 1, 2)$$

is the tensor of pressure.

Theorem. The spectrum of the problem (1) consists from eigenvalues λ_n having limiting points in 0 and on ∞ , and lie in the right-hand side of halfspase, and is symmetric concerning of real axis. For large $|\lambda|$ all eigenvalues λ_n , get in sufficiently small angles between imaging axis and positive halfaxis.





COMPUTABLE NUMBERINGS IN THE ERSHOV HIERARCHY

Serikzhan A. Badaev Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Serikzhan.Badaev@kaznu.kz

For undefined notions we refer to [1] and [2].

 Σ_a^{-1} -computable numbering of a family \mathcal{A} is a sequence of sets from \mathcal{A} which is uniform in Σ_a^{-1} . Here a is Kleene's notation for a computable ordinal. More precisely, surjective mapping $\alpha : \omega \mapsto \mathcal{A}$ is Σ_a^{-1} -computable numbering of \mathcal{A} if there exist a computable function f(n, x, s) and a partial computable function g(n, x, s) such that for all n, x, t,

- (1) $x \in \alpha(n) \Leftrightarrow \lim_t f(n, x, t) = 1$, with f(n, x, 0) = 0 and range $(f) \subseteq \{0, 1\}$;
- (2) $g(n, x, t) \downarrow \Rightarrow g(n, x, t+1) \downarrow; g(n, x, t+1) \leq_O g(n, x, t) <_O a;$ and
- (3) $f(n, x, t+1) \neq f(n, x, t) \Rightarrow g(n, x, t+1) \downarrow \neq g(n, x, t).$

If α, β are numberings of a same family, let $\alpha \leq \beta$ if there is a computable function h such that $\alpha = \beta \circ h$. The relation \leq is a reducibility and gives rise to a degree structure (called a *Rogers semilattice*), where degree of a numbering is the equivalence class of the numbering under the equivalence relation \equiv generated by \leq .

Rogers semilattice of a family is upper semilattice, it is considered as algebraic structure which describes a scale of algorithmic complexity in whole under relation \leq of all uniform computations of the family. We will represent recent results of the author and his students on extremal elements of the Rogers semilattices for the families of sets of any given level (finite or infinite) of the Ershov hierarchy.

- [1] Yu.L. Ershov. Theory of numberings // Nauka, Moscow, 1977.
- [2] M.M. Arslanov. Hierarchy of Ershov // KSU, Kazan, 2007.





CONDITION OF NON-SYMMETRY OF THE RELATION OF SEMI-ISOLATEDNESS

Bektur S. Baizhanov, Sergey V. Sudoplatov, Viktor V. Verbovskiy Institute of Mathematics, Informatics and Mechanocs, Almaty, Kazakhstan Institute of Mathematics, Novosibirsk, Russia Institute for Problems of Informatics and Control, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:baizhanov@hotmail.com, sudoplat@ngs.ru, vvv@ipic.kz

The property of non-symmetry of the relation of semi-isolatedness is a key property in studying the class of Eurenfeucht theories. We find necessary and saficient conditions for non-symmetry of the relation of semi-isolatedness in terms of coloring of a neighbourhood of a type and in terms of quasineighbourhoods. By using new terms we clarify and symplify well-known theorems of nonsymmetry of the relation of semi-isolatedness, taking from [1], as well as Tsuboi's theorem [2] on non-representability of Eurenfeucht theory, which does not have the strict order property in a union of countably categorical theories.

Definition (A. Pillay [3]). Let \mathcal{M} be a model of T, \bar{a} and \bar{b} tuples from \mathcal{M} , A a subset of \mathcal{M} . We say that \bar{a} semi-isolate the tuple \bar{b} over A, if there exists a formula $\varphi(\bar{a}, \bar{y}) \in \operatorname{tp}(\bar{b}/(\bar{a} \cup A))$ such that $\varphi(\bar{a}, \bar{y}) \vdash \operatorname{tp}(\bar{b}/A)$.

The following definition is due to B.S. Baizhanov [4].

Definition. Let $p(\bar{x})$ and $q(\bar{y})$ be some (possibly partial) types over $A \subseteq M$ in some model \mathcal{M} of T. A formula $\varphi(\bar{x}, \bar{y})$ with parameters in A is called (p, q)-stable $(p \to q)$ -formula or $(q \leftarrow p)$ -formula if for any realization \bar{a} of p it holds that $\varphi(\bar{a}, \bar{y}) \vdash q(\bar{y})$. A formula $\varphi(\bar{x}, \bar{y})$ is called $(p \leftrightarrow q)$ -formula if $\varphi(\bar{x}, \bar{y})$ is $(p \to q)$ -formula as well as $(p \leftarrow q)$ -formula. If p = q, then (p, q)-stable formula is called p-stable or $(p \to p)$ -formula.

Definition. Let $p(\bar{x})$ be some n-type over $A \subseteq M$ in a model \mathcal{M} of T, B a subset in \mathcal{M} . The quasineighbourhood of B in p is the following set $QV_{p,\mathcal{M}}(B)$ which consists of all tuples $\bar{c} \in M$, such that there exists a tuple $\bar{b} \in B$ and $(\operatorname{tp}(\bar{b}/A), p)$ -stable formula $\varphi(\bar{x}, \bar{y})$, such that $\mathcal{M} \models \varphi(\bar{b}, \bar{c})$.

The quasineighbourhood of B in $S_n(A)$ is the set

$$QV_{A,\mathcal{M}}^{n}(B) \rightleftharpoons \bigcup_{p \in S_{n}(A)} QV_{p,\mathcal{M}}(B)$$

The quasineighbourhood of B in S(A) is $QV_{A,\mathcal{M}}(B) \rightleftharpoons \bigcup_{n \in \omega} QV_{A,\mathcal{M}}^n(B)$.

Theorem The relation $\bar{a} \in QV_A(\bar{b})$ forms a preorder. In a powerfull type this relation is not symmetric.

- [1] S.V. Sudoplatov. Lachlan's Problem // Novosibirsk, NSTU, 2009, 336 p.
- [2] A. Tsuboi. On theories having a finite number of nonisomorphic countable models // J. Symbol. Logic., 1985, Vol.50, No.3, pp. 806-808.
- [3] A. Pillay. Countable models of stable theories // Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.89, No.4, 1983, pp. 666-672.
- [4] B.S. Baizhanov. Orthogonality of one types in weakly o-minimal theories // Algebra and Theory of Models 2, Collec. of papes, Novosibirsk, NQTU, 1999, pp. 5-28.





THE ASYMPTOTIC BEHAVIOR OF EIGENVALUES AND TRACE FORMULA OF SECOND ORDER DIFFERENTIAL OPERATOR EQUATION

M. Bayramoglu, N.M. Aslanova

Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan

Consider in $L_2((0,1), H)$ (H is a separable Hilbert space) the following spectral problem

$$-y''(x) + Ay(x) + q(x)y(x) = \lambda y(x), \tag{1}$$

$$y'(0) = 0,$$
 (2)

$$y(1) - hy'(1) = \lambda y(1),$$
 (3)

where A=A * > E (E is an identity operator in H), $A^{-1} \in \sigma_{\infty}$. Denote the eigenfunctions and eigenvalues of A by $\varphi_1, \varphi_2, \dots$ and $\gamma_1 \leq \gamma_2 \leq \dots$ respectively. Assume that exists second order weak derivative of q(x) and the following conditions are satisfied:

- 1. $[q^{(l)}(x)]^* = q^{(l)}(x), \ l = 0, 1, 2; \ \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} |(q^{(l)}(x)\varphi_k, \varphi_k)| < \infty \text{ for each } x \in [0, 1];$ 2. $q'(0) = q'(\pi) = 0.$
- $3.\int_0^1 (q(x)\varphi_k,\varphi_k) \, dx = 0.$

Theorem 1. Eigenvalues of problem (1)-(3) form two sequences: $\lambda_k = -h\sqrt{\gamma_k} + 1 - \frac{h^2}{2} + O\left(\frac{1}{\sqrt{\gamma_k}}\right), \ \lambda_{k,n} = \gamma_k + (\pi n)^2 + \pi^2 n + O(1).$

Define in $L_2 = L_2((0,1), H) \oplus H$ a selfadjoint operator L_0 for q(x) = 0 as: $D(L_0) = \{(y(x), y(1)) \in L_2 / -y^{"}(x) + Ay(x) \in L_2((0,1), H), y'(0) = 0, y_1 = y(1)\},$ $L_0\{y(x), y(1)\} = \{-y^{"}(x) + Ay(x), y(1) - hy'(1)\}.$

Operator corresponding to the case $q(x) \neq 0$ denote by L. Let $\lambda_1, \lambda_2, ...$ and $\mu_1, \mu_2, ...$ be eigenvalues of operators L and L_0 respectively. The statement of the following theorem is true.

Theorem 2.

$$\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} (\lambda_n - \mu_n) = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \frac{(q(0)\varphi_k, \varphi_k) - (q(\pi)\varphi_k, \varphi_k)}{4} (\lambda_n - \mu_n) = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \frac{(q(0)\varphi_k, \varphi_k) - (q(\pi)\varphi_k, \varphi_k)}{4}.$$





ON BASICITY OF SYSTEMS FROM FABER GENERALIZED POLYNOMIALS¹

Bilal T. Bilalov, Sabina R. Sadigova Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:bilalov.bilal@gmail.com

In the paper, a double system from Faber generalized polynomials

$$\left\{A\left(\xi\right) \; F_{p;n}^{+}\left(\xi\right) \; ; B\left(\xi\right) \; F_{p;k}^{-}\left(\xi\right) \right\}_{n \ge 0; k \ge 1},\tag{1}$$

with complex coefficients $A(\xi) \equiv |A(\xi)|e^{i\alpha(\xi)}$ and $B(\xi) \equiv |B(\xi)|e^{i\beta(\xi)}$ on a closed, rectifiable curve Γ on a complex plane C is considered. It is assumed that the following conditions are fulfilled.

- 1) $|A|^{\pm 1}; |B|^{\pm 1} \in L_{\infty}.$
- 2) $\alpha(\xi)$; $\beta(\xi)$ are piecewise-continuous on Γ and $\{\xi_k, k = \overline{1, r}\} \subset \Gamma$ are discontinuity points of the function $\theta(\xi) \equiv \beta(\xi) - \alpha(\xi)$.
- 3) $\{h_k \frac{2\pi}{p} : k = \overline{0, r}\} \cap Z = \emptyset$, where $h_k = \theta (\xi_k + 0) \theta (\xi_k 0)$, $k = \overline{1, r}$; $h_0 = \theta (a + 0) \theta (a 0)$, 1 . Assume that the following inequalities are fulfilled

$$-\frac{1}{q} < \frac{h_k}{2\pi} < \frac{1}{p}, \ k = \overline{0, r}, \ \frac{1}{p} + \frac{1}{q} = 1.$$
 (2)

Under definite conditions on the curve Γ and if the inequalities (2) are fulfilled, the following facts are proved:

a) basicity of the system
$$\left\{F_{p;n}^{+}(\xi)\right\}_{n\geq 0} \left(\left\{F_{p;k}^{-}(\xi)\right\}_{k\geq 1}\right)$$
 in Smirnov spaces $E_{p}^{+}(int\Gamma)\left(-1E_{p}^{-}(ext\Gamma)\right)$;

b) basicity of the system (1) in Lebesgue spaces $L_p(\Gamma)$, 1 .

 $F_{p;n}^{\pm}(z)$ are generalizations of the classical Faber polynomials (see. for example [1]). These generalizations are probably introduced by the author of [2]. Note that, under studying the basicity, we used methods of boundary value problems of the theory of analytic functions in Smirnov classes (see for example [3]).

- [1] D. Gayer. Lectures on Approximation Theory in the Complex Domain // Mir, Moscow, 1986, 216 p. (Russian).
- [2] D.M. Israfilov. Approximation by p-Faber-Rational functions in weighed Lebesgue spaces // Czechoslovak Math. Journal, Vol.129, No.54, 2004, pp. 751-765.
- [3] I.I. Danilyuk. Irregular boundary value problems in the plane // M., "Nauka", 1975, 256 p. (Russian).

This paper was performed under financial support of Science Foundation under the President of Azerbaijan, grant: No EIF-2010-1(1)-40/08-1.




THE APPROXIMATION OF FUNCTIONS OF SEVERAL VARIABLES OF BOUNDED P-FLUCTUATION BY POLYNOMIALS WITH RESPECT TO WALSH SYSTEM

N.A. Bokayev Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:bokayev2011@yandex.ru

Let $\bar{x} = (x_1, ..., x_n)$, $\bar{k} = (k_1, ..., k_n)$, $k_j = 1, 2, ..., j = 1, 2, ..., n, n \in N$, $f(\bar{x})$ be defined on the $[0, 1)^n$. Let $J_j^k = \left[\frac{j-1}{2^k}, \frac{j}{2^k}\right)$, $(j = 1, 2, ..., 2^n, k \in N)$ be the dyadic intervals and let $J_j^{\bar{k}} = J_{j_1}^{k_1} \times J_{j_2}^{k_2} \times ... \times J_{j_n}^{k_n}$; $osc(f, J_{\bar{j}}^{\bar{k}}) = \sup_{\bar{x}, \bar{y} \in J_{\bar{j}}^{\bar{n}}} |f(\bar{x}) - f(\bar{y})|$. Denote by $H_p(f, \bar{k}) = \left(\sum_{j_1=1}^{2^{k_1}} ... \sum_{j_n=1}^{2^{k_n}} \left(osc\left(f, J_{j_1, ..., j_n}^{k_1, ..., k_n}\right)\right)^p\right)^{\frac{1}{p}}$, $H_p(f, 0) = osc(f, [0, 1)^n)$. If $V_p(f) = \sup_{\bar{k} \in N} H_p(f, \bar{k}) < \infty$, then f is called function of bounded p-fluctuation [1]. The quantity $V_p(f)_{\bar{m}} = \sup_{\bar{k} \geq \bar{m}} H_p(f, \bar{k})$ is called discrete modulus of continuity. Here $\bar{k} \ge \bar{m}$ means $k_1 \ge m_1, ..., k_n \ge m_n$. We say that $f \in FV_p[0, 1]^n$, $(1 \le p < \infty)$, if $V_p(f)_{\bar{m}} < \infty$, and $f \in FC_p[0, 1]^n$, $(1 , if <math>\lim_{m_j \to \infty, (j=1, ..., n)} V_p(f)_{\bar{m}} = 0$. Endowed with the norm $||f||_{p,F} = max\left(V_p(f), \sup_{\bar{x}} \in [0, 1)^n |f(\bar{x})|\right)$.

Let $w_k(x)$ be the Walsh system by enumeration Paley. $w_{\bar{k}}(\bar{x}) = w_{k_1}(x_1)...w_{k_n}(x_n)$ is the multiples Walsh systems. Denote by $\hat{a}_{\bar{k}}(f)$ coefficients of Walsh-Fourier of $f \in FC_p[0,1]^n$. Denote by $E_{\bar{k}}(f) = E_{k_1,...,k_n}(f)$ the best approximation of functions by Walsh polynomials of degree $\leq k_1 \times ... \times_n (k_j \in N)$ in the norm of $FC_p[0,1]^n$.

Theorem 1. Let $f \in FC_p[0,1]^n$ (1 . Then the following inequalities

 $V(f)_{\bar{m}} \leq E_{2^{m_1},\dots,2^{m_n}}(f)_{FC_p} \leq 2V(f)_{\bar{m}}$

 $holds\ true.$

Theorem 2. Let $f \in FC_p[0,1]^n, 0 < \beta < 2.$

1) $1 . Then for the convergence of series <math>\sum_{\bar{n}}^{\infty} |a_{\bar{n}}(f)|^{\beta}$ a sufficient condition is the following

$$\sum_{\bar{n}}^{\infty} E_{\bar{n}}^{\beta}(f)_{FV_p} \bar{n}^{-\beta} < \infty.$$

$$2) \ 2 \le p < \infty. \ \text{Then for the convergence of series } \sum_{\bar{n}}^{\infty} |a_{\bar{n}}(f)|^{\beta} \ a \ sufficient \ condition \ is \ the \ following$$

$$\sum_{\bar{n}}^{\infty} E_{\bar{n}}^{\beta}(f)_{FV_p} (\bar{n})^{\frac{-\beta}{p} - \frac{\beta}{2}} < \infty.$$

In the case of one variables analogies results was proved in [2].

- C. Onneweer, D. Waterman. Uniform convergence of Fourier series on groups // I, Michigan J. Math., Vol.18, 1971, pp. 265-273.
- [2] S.S. Volosivets. The approximation of functions of two variables of bouded P-variation by polynomials with respect to Haar and Walsh systems // Math.Not., 1993, Vol.53, No.6, pp. 11-21.





QUASI-PLUMED UNIFORM SPACES

Altay A. Borubayev, Asylbek A. Chekeev, Tumar J. Kasymova National Attestation Commission of Kyrgyz Republic Kyrgyz National University, Bishkek e-mail:nakkr07@rambler.ru, asyl.ch.top@mail.ru, tumar2000@mail.ru

Definition 1([1]). A space X is called quasi-plumed, if there is a normal sequence $\{\alpha_n\}_{n \in N}$ of an open coverings, its provided

(*) if $\{K_n\}$ is a centered system of a closed sets such that the some point $x_0 \in X$ exists $K_n \subset \alpha_n(x_0)$ for any $n \in N$, then $\cap [K_n] \neq \emptyset$.

Definition 2. A uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is called (strongly) uniformly quasi-plumed, if there is a normal sequence $\{\alpha_n : n \in N\} \subset \mathcal{U}$, its provided

(*) if $\{K_n\}$ is a centered system of a closed sets such that the some point $x_0 \in X$ exists and

 $K_n \subset \alpha_n(x_0)$ for any $n \in N$, then $\cap \{K_n : n \in N\} \neq \emptyset$ ($\mathcal{U} = \sup \{\mathcal{V}, \mathcal{U}_p\}$, where \mathcal{V} is a pseudouniformity, induced by a normal sequence $\{\alpha_n : n \in N\}$ and $\mathcal{U}_p \subset \mathcal{U}$ be a maximal precompact uniformity of $\mathcal{U}[2]$).

Theorem 1. A uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is a (strongly) uniformly quasi-plumed, if and only if there is a pseudouniformity $\mathcal{V} \subset \mathcal{U}$ such that $(\mathcal{U} = \sup \{\mathcal{V}, \mathcal{U}_p\})$

(1) $w(\mathcal{V}) \leq \aleph_0;$

(2) $\bigcap \{ \alpha(x) : \alpha \in \mathcal{V} \} = K_x$ is countably compact for any $x \in X$;

(3) $\{\alpha(K_x) : \alpha \in \mathcal{V}\}$ is a basis of K_x for any $x \in X$.

Definition 3. A mapping $f : (X, U) \to (Y, W)$ of a uniform space (X, U) into a uniform space (Y, W) is called (uniformly) quasi-perfect, if it is (precompact) uniformly continuous, closed and $f^{-1}(y)$ is countable compact for any $y \in Y$.

Theorem 2. A uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is a (strongly) uniformly quasi-plumed, if and only if (X, \mathcal{U}) is (uniformly) quasi-perfect mapping onto some metric uniform space.

Theorem 3. If uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is uniformly quasi-plumed, then its \aleph_0 -completion $(X^{\aleph_0}, \mathcal{U}^{\aleph_0})$ is uniformly plumed.

Corollary. If (X, \mathcal{U}) is uniformly quasi-plumed, then its completion $(\tilde{X}, \tilde{\mathcal{U}})$ is uniformly plumed.

References

[1] K. Morita. Topological completions and M-spaces // Sci. Rept. Tokyo Daigaku 6(A), Vol.10, 1970, pp. 271-288.

[2] J.R. Isbell. Uniform Spaces // Providence, 1964.





LATTICE OF UNIFORMITIES

A.A. Borubaev, B.E. Kanetov The National Commission for Certifying, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan Kyrgyz National University named after J. Balasagyna, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:bekbolot71@mail.ru

Throughout this work, all spaces under consideration are supposed to be Tychonoff spaces.

By U(X) $(U_p(X))$ we denote a set of all uniformities (precompact uniformities) of space X. U(X) $(U_p(X))$ naturally represents a partially ordered set. By K(X) we denote a set of all bicompact extensions of space X. K(X) is partially ordered. $b_2\% \leq b_1\%$ if and only if there is such continuous mapping $f: b_1X \to b_2X$ that fx = x for every $x \in X$.

Partially ordered set U(X) of all uniformities of space X is called a lattice if each of its twoelement subsets $\{U_1, U_2\}, U_1, U_2 \in U(X)$ has both the least upper bound and the greatest lower bound i.e. $\sup \{U_1, U_2\}$ and $\inf \{U_1, U_2\}$. Also, set K(X) of all bicompact extensions of space X is called a lattice if each of its two-element subsets $\{b_1X, b_2X\}, b_1X, b_2X \in K(X)$ has $\sup \{b_1X, b_2X\}$ and $\inf \{b_1X, b_2X\}$. A set is called a complete lattice if each of its subsets has the least upper bound and the greatest lower bound. It is obvious that a complete lattice is a lattice. In his work [3], A.A. Borubaev sets up the problem: to find the necessary and sufficient conditions applied to space X in a way that U(X) is a lattice.

This work demonstrates a partial solution of this problem. It is well known that there has to be natural isomorphism between sets K(X) and $U_p(X)$. Japanese mathematician T. Shirota [5] proved that set $U_p(X)$ is a full lattice if and only if X is locally bicompact. Later, German mathematicians J. Visliseni and J. Flachsmeyer [4] proved that for every Tychonoff space X with the first axiom of countability, set K(X) is a lattice if and only if X is locally bicompact. J.Vislileni and J.Flachsmeyer theorem amplifies the non-trivial half of T.Shirota theorem for the case of a space with the first axiom of countability. They showed that such a property as local bicompactness should not be a necessity. Below is a proof of two theorems on lattices.

Theorem 1. In order for K(X) to be a lattice, it is necessary that X must be sequentially open in βX and sufficient for X to be sequentially open in βX and $\beta X \setminus X$ must be a Freshe - Urysohn space.

There is natural isomorphism between sets $U_p(X)$ and K(X), so K(X) can be replaced with $U_p(X)$ in this theorem.

Now let us indicate one sufficient constraint at which U(X) is a lattice.

Let U and V be any uniformities from U(X). Assume that for any $N \in U$ and $M \in V$ there exist $N_1 \in U$ and $M_1 \in V$ such that $N_1 \circ M_1 \subset N \bigcup M$ and $M_1 \circ N_1 \subset N \bigcup M$ (1)

Theorem 2. If condition (1) is true for any $U, V \in U(X)$ then U(X) is a lattice.

- [1] A.A. Borubaev. Uniform Spaces // Kyrgyz State University, Frunze, 1987.
- [2] A.A. Borubaev. On the theory of bicompact extensions // Bulletin of the Academy of Sciences of the Georgian SSR, Vol.133, 1989, pp. 465-468.
- [3] A.A. Borubaev, A.A. Chekeev. On solved problem of the general topology and topological algebra // Frunze, Kyrgyz State University, 1989.
- [4] J. Visliseni, J. Flachsmeyer. The power and the structure of the lattice of all compact extensions of a completely regular space // Dokl. Akad. Nauk SSSR, Vol.165, 1965, pp. 258-260.





ON SATURATION CLASS FOR HOLDERS FOURIER SERIES SUMMATION METHOD

A.C. Alieva, C.M. Aliev

Institute of Mechanics and Mathematics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:camshid09@rambler.ru

Let f(x) be a continuous 2π periodic function, and $\frac{a_0}{2} + \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} (a_k \cos kx + b_k \sin kx)$ be its Fourier series. Denote by γ the summation process of this series determine by a sequence of constants $\gamma_k^n(k =$ 1, 2, ..., n; n = 1, 2, ...), i.e. γ is a process of approximation of the function f(x) by means of the trigonometric polynomials of the sequence $P_n^{\gamma}(x) = \frac{a_0}{2} + \sum_{k=1}^n \gamma_k^n(a_k \cos kx + b_k \sin kx).$

If there exists an increasing function $\varphi_{\gamma}(n)$ such that for any continuous 2π -periodic function f(x) differ from a constant and for any natural n we have $\max_{x} \varphi_{\gamma}(n) |P_{n}^{\gamma}(x) - f(x)| > a$, where a is a positive constant dependent on f, and there exist the function f(x) for which $\max_{x} \varphi_{\gamma}(n) |P_{n}^{\gamma}(x) - f(x)| < b$, where b > 0 is another constant dependent on f, well say that the summation process γ is saturated. We call the saturation class belonging to the process γ the set of continuous 2π -periodic functions differ from constant and such that $|P_n^{\gamma}(x) - f(x)| = O\left(\frac{1}{\varphi_{\gamma}(n)}\right).$

It would be interesting to determine the saturation class for other summation methods, in particular, for Holders summation method H^r where r > 0.

Let for the series

$$\sum_{k=0}^{\infty} A_k,\tag{1}$$

and let $s_k = \sum_{\nu=0}^k A_{\nu}(k=0,1,2,...)$ be its partial sums. Then the Holder sums of order r > 0 of

series (1) are called the sums $H_n^r = \sum_{k=0}^n c_n^k s_k \Delta^{n-k} \frac{1}{(k+1)^r}$, where $\Delta^{n-k} \frac{1}{(k+1)^r} = \sum_{p=0}^{n-k} \frac{(-1)^p c_{n-k}^p}{(k+p+1)^r}$. Find the expression of H_n^r by the members of the series (1)

$$H_n^r = \sum_{k=0}^n c_n^k \Delta^{n-k} \frac{1}{(k+1)^r} \sum_{\nu=0}^n A_\nu = \sum_{k=0}^n A_k \sum_{\nu=k}^n c_n^\nu \Delta^{n-\nu} \frac{1}{(\nu+1)^r} = \sum_{k=0}^n \gamma_k(n) A_k,$$

$$h) = \sum_{\nu=0}^n c_n^\nu \Delta^{n-\nu} \frac{1}{(\nu+1)^r}.$$

where $\gamma_k(n)$

Taking into account that $c_n^l c_{l-1}^{k-1} = \frac{n}{l} c_{n-1}^{k-1} c_{n-k}^{n-1}$, we get

$$\gamma_k(n) = nc_{n-1}^{k-1} \sum_{l=k}^n \frac{(-1)^{l+k} c_{n-k}^{n-1}}{l(l+1)^r} = nc_{n-1}^{k-1} \sum_{p=0}^{n-k} \frac{(-1)^p c_{n-k}^p}{(p+1)(p+k+1)^r} (k=1,2,\dots,n).$$

Theorem. $1 - \gamma_k(n) = \frac{k \lg^{r-1} n}{n\Gamma(r)} (1 + \varepsilon_{n,k}^r)$, where $\lim_{n \to \infty} \varepsilon_{n,k}^r = 0$, for the fixed k and r. Hence we deduce that the cernel of the Holder method for r > 1 is non-negative. Thus, the Holders summation method H_r for any real $r \ge 1$ is saturated with approximation of saturation of order $O\left(\frac{\lg^{r-1}n}{n}\right)$.





FUCTIONALLY PARACOMPACT UNIFORM SPACES

Asylbek A. Chekeev, Chinara A. Ablabekova Kyrgyz National University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan Kyrgyz State University of Architecture, Transport and Construction, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:asyl.ch.top@mail.ru, achacha@mail.ru

Let (X, \mathcal{U}) be a uniform space. A closure α of the uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is called *uniformly local* finite, if there exists uniform covering $\beta \in \mathcal{U}$, which every element of β is intersecting only finite quantity of covering elements α ([1]). A uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is called *uniformly* R - paracompact, if in any open covering may inscribe uniformly local finite open covering. A Tychnoff space X is strongly collectivise normal ([2]), if all neighborhoods of diagonal $\Delta = \{(x, x) : x \in X\}$ form the universal uniformity \mathcal{U}_X ([3]) of space X. A subset $O \subset X$ of the uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is called *uniformly open*, if there exists such uniformly continuous mapping $f : (X, \mathcal{U}) \to (M, \rho)$ of the uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) into metric space (M, ρ) , that $O = f^{-1}(V)$ for a some open set $V \subset M$ ([4]). A covering, is consisting of uniformly open sets, is called *uniformly open covering*.

Definition. A uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is called functionally uniformly R – paracompact, if in any uniformly open covering may inscribe uniformly local finite uniformly open covering.

Theorem 1. A Tychonoff space X is strongly collectivise normal if and only if the uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}_X) is functionally uniformly R- paracompact.

Theorem 2. A uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) is functionally uniformly R - paracompact if and only if for any uniformly open covering α the covering $\alpha^{\perp} = \{ \cup \alpha' : \alpha' \subset \alpha \text{ and } \alpha' - \text{finite} \}$ is a uniform covering, *i.e.* $\alpha^{\perp} \in \mathcal{U}$.

Theorem 3. A uniform space (X, \mathfrak{U}) is functionally uniformly R - paracompact if and only if for any bicompact $B \subseteq s_{\mathfrak{U}}X \setminus X$ there exists uniformly open covering $\alpha \in U$ such that $B \cap [A]_{s_{\mathfrak{U}}X} = \emptyset$ for any $A \in \alpha$.

In the Theorem 3 the Samuel bicompact extension of the uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) denote by $s_{\mathcal{U}}X$ ([6]). **Theorem 4.** A Tychonoff space X is strongly collectivise normal if and only if for any bicompact $B \subseteq \beta X \setminus X$ there exists functionally open covering α of the space X such that $B \cap [A]_{\beta X} = \emptyset$ for any $A \in \alpha$.

In the Theorem 4 the Stone-Čech bicompact extension of the Tychonoff space X denote by βX ([3]) and the functional open covering is called a covering is consisting of a functional open sets ([5]).

- [1] M. D. Rice. A note on uniform paracompactness // Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.2, No.62, 1977, pp. 359-362.
- [2] H.L. Shapiro, F.A. Smith. Neighborhoods of the diagonal and strong normality properties // Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.71, 1978, pp. 329-333.
- [3] R. Engelking. General topology // M.: Mir, 1986 (in Russian).
- [4] M.G. Charalambous. A new covering dimension function for uniform spaces // J. London Math. Soc., Vol.11, No.2, 1975, pp. 137-143.
- [5] H. Gillman, M. Jerison. Ring of Continuous Functions // Princeton, 1960.
- [6] J.R. Isbell. Uniform Spaces // Providence, 1964.





ON VARIOUS CHARACTERIZATIONS OF SUPERCOMPLETE MAPPINGS

Asylbek A. Chekeev, Tumar J. Kasymova Kyrgyz National University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:asyl.ch.top@mail.ru, tumar2000@mail.ru

Let $f : (X, \mathcal{U}) \to (Y, \mathcal{V})$ be a uniformly continuous mappings of a uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) into a uniform space (Y, \mathcal{V}) .

Definition 1([1]). A filter \mathfrak{F} in (X, \mathfrak{U}) is called a stable, if for any covering $\alpha \in \mathfrak{U}$ there exists such $F' \in \mathfrak{F}$ that $F \subset \alpha(F')$ for any $F \in \mathfrak{F}$.

Proposition 1. A continuous image $f\mathcal{F}$ of any stable filter \mathcal{F} in (X, \mathcal{U}) is a basis of some stable filter in (Y, \mathcal{V}) .

Definition 2. A mapping $f : (X, U) \to (Y, V)$ is called a supercomplete, if for any stable filter \mathcal{F} in (X, U), the next assertion $\bigcap \left\{ \overline{f(F)} : F \in \mathcal{F} \right\} \neq \emptyset$ implies $\bigcap \left\{ \overline{F} : F \in \mathcal{F} \right\} \neq \emptyset$. **Proposition 2.**Let $f : (X, U) \to (Y, V)$ be a uniformly continuous supercomplete mapping of a

Proposition 2.Let $f : (X, \mathcal{U}) \to (Y, \mathcal{V})$ be a uniformly continuous supercomplete mapping of a uniform space (X, \mathcal{U}) onto a uniform space (Y, \mathcal{V}) . Then $(f^{-1}(y), \mathcal{U}|_{f^{-1}(y)})$ is supercomplete for any point $y \in Y$.

Lemma 1) Any Cauchy net in a uniform space $(\exp X, \exp U)$ generate a stable Cauchy filter F in a uniform space (X, U).

2) Any stable Cauchy \mathfrak{F} in a uniform space (X, \mathfrak{U}) generate a Cauchy net in a uniform space $(\exp X, \exp \mathfrak{U})$.

Definition 3. A uniformly continuous mapping $f : (X, U) \to (Y, V)$ is called complete, if for any Cauchy net $\{x_i: x_i \in X, i \in I\}$ in (X, U) a net $\{f(x_i): x_i \in X, i \in I\}$ is converging in (Y, V), then $\{x_i: x_i \in X, i \in I\}$ is converging in (X, U).

Theorem 1. A uniformly continuous mapping $f : (X, U) \to (Y, V)$ is supercomplete, if and only if $\exp f : (\exp X, \exp U) \to (\exp Y, \exp V)$ is complete.

Theorem 2. Let $f : (X, U) \to (Y, V)$ be a supercomplete uniformly continuous mapping of a uniform space (X, U) onto a supercomplete uniform space (Y, V). Then a uniform space (X, U) is supercomplete.

Corollary 1. Let $f : (X, U) \to (Y, V)$ be a supercomplete uniformly continuous mapping of a uniform space (X, U) onto a paracompact uniform space (Y, V) and $\lambda V = V_Y$ be a maximal uniformity of Y. Then a uniform space (X, U) is paracompact and $\lambda U = U_X$.

Corollary 2. If $f : (X, U) \to (Y, V)$ is a supercomplete uniformly continuous mapping of the uniform space (X, U) into a metric space (Y, V), then a uniform space (X, U) is supercomplete.

References

[1] J.R. Isbell. Uniform Spaces // Providence, 1964.





INVERSE BOUNDARY PROBLEMS FOR MAGNETIC FLOWS

Nurlan S. Dairbekov Kazakh British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Nurlan.Dairbekov@gmail.com

We develop a method for reconstructing the conformal factor of a Riemannian metric and the magnetic field on a surface from the scattering relation associated to the corresponding magnetic flow. The scattering relation maps a starting point and direction of a magnetic geodesic into its end point and direction. The key point in the reconstruction is the interplay between the magnetic ray transform, the fiberwise Hilbert transform on the circle bundle of the surface, and the LaplaceBeltrami operator of the underlying Riemannian metric. This is a joint work with G. Uhlmann.

NONLOCAL BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEMS FOR SYSTEMS OF INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS WITH PARTIAL DERIVATIVES

Dulat S. Dzhumabaev

Institute of Mathematics Ministry of Education and Science, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:dzhumabaev@list.ru

On $\overline{\Omega} = [0, \omega] \times [0, T]$ we consider the system of integro-differential equations

$$\frac{\partial v}{\partial t} = A(x,t)v + \int_0^x K_0(x,\xi,t)v(\xi,t)d\xi + \int_0^T K_1(x,t,s)v(x,s)ds + f(x,t), \quad v \in \mathbb{R}^n$$
(1)

with nonlocal boundary value conditions

$$B(x)v(x,0) + C(x)v(x,T) = d(x), \qquad x \in [0,\omega],$$
(2)

where A(x,t), $K_0(x,\xi,t)$, $K_1(x,t,s)$, B(x), C(x) are continuous matrices and f(x,t), d(x) are continuous vectors on their domains.

In [1] a method for solving the linear boundary value problem for an integro-differential equation is proposed.

In communication by this method necessary and sufficient conditions of correct solvability to problem (1), (2) are obtained.

References

 D.S. Dzhumabaev. A Method for solving the linear boundary value problem for an integro-differential equation // Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.50, No.7, 2010, pp. 1150-1161.





THE ANALOGUE HARTOGS-BOCHNER THEOREM IN DOMAIN WITH THE SINGULAR WEDGES

D.Kh. Djumabaev National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:davlat2112@rambler.ru

This work considers limited domains D from \mathbb{C}^n , the boundary which contains finite number of singular wedges. In such domains have been got generalized Hartogs-Bochner theorem. Bochner [1] and Martinelli [2] in 1943 independently found strict proof of Hartogs theorem about the elimination of compact peculiarities of holomorphic functions. Bochner, as a matter of fact, proved the theorem in smooth case ∂D $f \in C^1(\partial D)$ (however he, didn't know about function CR-, operator $\bar{\partial}_{\tau}$ and etc.). Therefore the given theorem is usually called Hartogs-Bochner theorem. In 1969 Weinstock [3] (see also. [4]) proved it for continued f ($\partial D \in C^{\infty}$).

Let's give generalization of Hartogs-Bochner theorem for bounded domains D in \mathbb{C}^n with singular wedges. Let D — limited domain in \mathbb{C}^n , n > 1. We suppose that the boundary D has $\partial D =$ $Y \cup S_1 \cup S_2 \cup \ldots \cup S_m$, where Y smooth class \mathcal{C}^1 hypersurface, but each of S_{ν} diffeamorphic of singular hypersurface S, which was considered above (with different p_{ν} and different variety X'_{ν}, X''_{ν}).

Each singular hypersurface S_{ν} suppose to be $S_{\nu} = M_{\nu} \cup F_{\nu}$, where M_{ν} — smooth part, defined by variety X'_{ν} , X''_{ν} and by function φ_{ν} (considered above), and F_{ν} singular wedge.

Theorem. Let multitude $\mathbb{C}^n \setminus \overline{D}$ be connected. I the function $f \in \mathcal{L}^1(\partial D)$, continued in $\partial D \setminus (F_1 \cup \ldots \cup F_m)$ and satisfies the terms

$$\int_{\partial D} f\bar{\partial}\omega = \int_{\partial D \setminus (F_1 \cup \dots \cup F_m)} f\bar{\partial}\omega = 0$$
(1)

for all differential forms ω like (n, n-2) with coefficient $\mathcal{C}^{\infty} \mathbb{C}^n$, and not only in the cross of each singular wedge satisfies the terms $s(f) = O(\varphi_{\nu}^N(\varepsilon))$ when $\varepsilon \to 0$ for $N > 2n-2-p_{\nu}$ for all $\nu = 1, \ldots, m$, then exists the function F like $\mathcal{H}^{\infty}(D)$, when F is continued even up to each $z \in \partial D \setminus (F_1 \cup \ldots \cup F_m)$ and coincides with function f in this multitude.

- S. Bochner. Analitic and meromorphic continuation by means of Green's formula // Ann. Math., Vol.44, 1943, pp. 652-673.
- [2] E. Martinelli. Sopra una dimonstrazione de R. Fuetar per in theorema di Hartogs // Comment. Math. Helv. Vol. 15, 1943, pp. 340-349.
- B.M. Weinstock. Continuous boundary values of analytic functions of several complex variables// Proc. Amer. Math. Soc. Vol.21, No.2, 1969, pp. 463-466.
- [4] A.M. Kytmanov. Bokhner-Martinelly integral and its applications // Nauka, Novosibirsk, 1992.





BERNOULLI NUMBERS AND EULERIAN NUMBERS

Askar S. Dzhumadil'daev, Saule A. Abdykassymova Institute of Mathematics, Academy of Sciences of Kazakhstan, Kazakhstan e-mail:dzhuma@hotmail.com, saule_asan@hotmail.com

Let $B_m = 1, -1/2, 1/6, 0, -1/30, \cdots$ be Bernoulli numbers and B'_m be modified Bernoulli numbers, $B'_1 = 1/2$ and $B'_n = B_n$ for $n \neq 1$. Let $\mathbf{n} = 1^{k_1} \cdots n^{k_n}$ be multiset of type $k_1 \ldots k_n$ and $S_{\mathbf{n}}$ be set of permutations on \mathbf{n} . This means that $S_{\mathbf{n}}$ is a set of sequences with components in $[n] = \{1, 2, \ldots, n\}$, whose number of components equal to $i \in [n]$ is k_i . Let $K = k_1 + \cdots + k_n$. It is clear that any permutation $\sigma \in S_{\mathbf{n}}$ has length K. For $\sigma \in S_{\mathbf{n}}$ say that i is descent index if $\sigma(i) > \sigma(i+1), i < K$ or i = K. Let

$$a_{n,l} = |\{\sigma \in S_n | des(\sigma) = i\}|$$

be the number of permutations with l descents. If $k_i = 1$, for all $i \in [n]$, we will use Knuth notation, $\left\langle {n \atop i} \right\rangle$ instead of $a_{n,i}$. Similarly, set

$$\left\langle\!\!\left\langle {n\atop i}\right\rangle\!\!\right\rangle=a_{1^2\cdots n^2,i},\quad \left\langle\!\left\langle\!\left\langle {n\atop i}\right\rangle\!\right\rangle\!\!\right\rangle=a_{1^3\cdots n^3,i}.$$

Let

$$\begin{aligned} H_a^{(0)} &= 1, \quad H_a^{(m)} = \sum_{\substack{0 < i_1 < \dots < i_m \le a}} \frac{1}{i_1 \cdots i_k}, \quad m > 0, \\ Q_{a,b}^{(c)} &= \sum_{i=0}^c (-1)^i H_a^{(i)} H_b^{(c-i)}. \end{aligned}$$

Theorem 1. Let $K = k_1 + \cdots + k_n$ and $k^* = Max\{k_1, \dots, k_n\}$. Then

$$\sum_{i=1}^{K-k^*+1} (-1)^i a_{1^{k_1} \dots n^{k_n}, i} {\binom{K-1}{i-1}}^{-1} = 0,$$
(1)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{2n-1} (-1)^i \left<\!\!\left< \binom{n}{i} \right>\!\!\left< \binom{2n}{i}^{-1} = \frac{2n+1}{2^n} \sum_{j=0}^n \binom{n}{j} B_{n+j},$$
(2)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{3n-2} (-1)^i \left<\!\!\left<\!\!\left<\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\right>\!\!\right>\!\!\left<\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\right>\!\!\right>\!\!\left<\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n >\!\!n \right>\!\!\left<\!\!n >\!\!\!n$$

If n > 2 then for any $r \ge 1$,

$$\sum_{p=1}^{\lfloor rn/2 \rfloor} (-1)^p (\sum_{j=p}^{rn-p} \frac{1}{j}) (a_{1^r \cdots n^r, p} + (-1)^{rn} a_{1^r \cdots n^r, p-r+1}) {\binom{rn-1}{p-1}}^{-1} = 0.$$
(4)

Theorem 2. Let p > 0. Then

$$\sum_{i=1}^{n} (-1)^{i} Q_{i,n-i}^{(p-1)} \left\langle {n \atop i} \right\rangle {\binom{n}{i}}^{-1} = (-1)^{n+p+1} {\binom{n+1}{p}} B_{n+1-p}',$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{2n-1} (-1)^{i} Q_{i,2n-i}^{(p-1)} \left\langle {\binom{n}{i}} \right\rangle {\binom{2n}{i}}^{-1} = \frac{(2n+1)}{2^{n}p} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {\binom{n}{i}} {\binom{n+i}{p-1}} B_{n+i+1-p},$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{3n-2} (-1)^{i} Q_{i,3n-i}^{(p-1)} \left\langle {\binom{n}{i}} \right\rangle {\binom{3n}{i}}^{-1} = \frac{(3n+1)}{6^{n}p} \sum_{i=0}^{n} (-1)^{n+i} {\binom{n}{i}} {\binom{n+2i}{p-1}} B_{n+2i+1-p}'.$$





EXTREMAL PROBLEMS IN THE CLASS $W^2_{\sigma,\nu}$

Ferhad Nasibov Kastamonu University, Kastamonu, Turkey e-mail:fnasibov@kastamonu.edu.tr

Extremal problems in the various classes of the polynomials and the entire functions have been studied by mathematicians from many different countries and more significant results [1-5] have obtained reached. In the existing works, norm was determined by the weight function that provides condition of $\varphi(x) \geq 1$. In this talk, the weight function was taken as $\varphi(x) = x^{\nu} (0 \leq x < +\infty, \nu \geq 0$ arbitrary real numbers).

We consider the functional as

$$L(f) = \frac{1}{2\pi i} \int_{\Gamma} f(\xi) K(\xi) d\xi, \tag{1}$$

where $K(\xi)$ is a given function and the problem is to find the norm $||L||_v = \sup |L(f)|, f \in W^{(2)}_{\sigma,\nu}$. The $W^{(2)}_{\sigma,\nu}$ consists of even entire functions finite degree $\leq \sigma$ and belong to $L^{\varphi}_2(0, +\infty)$.

$$\|f\|_{2,\nu} = \left(\int_{0}^{\infty} |x^{\nu}f(x)|^{2} dx\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, \ W_{\sigma,\nu}^{(2)}[1] = \left\{f \in W_{\sigma,\nu}^{(2)} : \|f\|_{2,\nu} \le 1\right\}.$$
(2)

We answer following questions which are related this problem, mentioned above:

Does extremal function exist for functional (1)? If it exists, is it odd? What are the characteristic features of this extremal function? Can this function be found correctly? What is the correct quantity for $||L||_{\nu}$? Hence, following theorem is proved.

Theorem. The following statements are true.

1) $f_0(x)$ extremal function exists for given every function $K(\xi)$.

2) Extremal function $f_0(x)$ is unique. (Unique up to a factor $e^{i\gamma}$, $0 \le \gamma < 2\pi$).

3) For the function $f_0(x) \in W^{(2)}_{\sigma,\nu}[1]$ to be extremal for L(f), it is sufficiently and necessary condition is that function $f_0(x)$ admit a representation of the following form:

$$f_0(x) = \frac{e^{i\gamma}}{\|\tau\phi_\nu(\tau)\|_2^0} \int_0^\tau x^{\frac{1}{2}-\nu} J_{\nu-\frac{1}{2}}(xt) t\phi_\nu(t) dt$$
(3)

1

where J_{ν} is a Bessel function and

$$\phi_{\nu}(t) = \frac{1}{2\pi i} \int_{\Gamma} K(\xi) \xi^{\frac{1}{2}-\nu} \int_{\nu-\frac{1}{2}} (\xi t) d\xi, \quad \|.\|_{2}^{0} = \left(\int_{0}^{\sigma} \|.\|^{2} dt \right)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

4) $\|L\|_{\nu} = \|\sqrt{t}\phi(t)\|_{2}^{0}$ is true. From this theorem several special results of the type

$$L(f) = A(f)^{(k)}(x_0) + Bf^{(m)}(x_1)\dots,$$

may be obtained.

References

- [1] N.I. Akhieser. Theory of Approximation // M. 1965.
- [2] A.F. Timan. Theory of Approximation of Functions of a Real Variable // Dover Publ., New York, 1963.

[3] I.I. Ibragimov. Theory of Approximation of Functions by Entire Fonktions // Baku, "Elm", 1979.

- [4] F.H(G). Nasibov. On some extremal problems in the cllass B_{σ} // Doklady mathematics, Vol. 294, 1987, pp. 267-271.
- [5] F.H(G). Nasibov. Extremal Problems in the Entire Fonctions Spaces (Monography) // Baku, 'Elm', 1998, pp. 1-298.





CATEGORIES AND QUASIPERIODIC MANIFOLD

Vagif Kasimov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:kavagif@mail.ru

The structure on the quasi periodic manifold W_{∞} is different of the structure periodic manifold only with, that $\varphi: W_k \to V$ homeomorphisms chanced to homeomorphisms

$$\varphi_k: W_k \to V_\alpha, \ \alpha \in \alpha(k),$$

where indices $\alpha \in A$ have some finite set value, i.e. manifold W_k model rule by several manifolds V_{α} , such that function $\alpha \in \alpha(k)$ is not constant in any interval $(-\infty, k]$ or $[k, \infty)$.

The structure of the quasi periodic manifold maybe defined two a priory operation: granulation and enlargement.

Granulation - meaning that, the manifold V_{α} can be represented as finitely granulation of the type which give as more smallest granulation of manifold W_{∞} .

Enlargement - meaning that, by given strongly monotone sequences n_k , with condition $n_{k+1} - n_k < n_k$

Const as instead granulation we take manifolds $W'_k = W_{[n_k...n_{k+1}-1]}$. Let two quasiperiodic manifold W_{∞} and W'_{∞} . Then a mapping $f : W_{\infty} \to W'_{\infty}$ is called quasi periodic if there exists a sequins n_k and constant λ , such that:

- 1. $1 \leq n_{k+1} n_k \leq \lambda = \text{const},$
- 2. $f(\overline{W_k}) \subset W'_{[n_k \dots n_{k+1} + \lambda]},$
- 3. A mapping

$$u_k = (\varphi_k \cup \varphi_{k+1}) \circ f \circ \varphi_k^{-1} : V_{\alpha(k)} \to \left(\cup V'_{\alpha'(f)} \right)$$

have finitely many valued.

Theorem. The identity mapping quasi periodic structure to its enlargement is a quasi periodic mapping. Composition of quasi periodic mapping is a quasi periodic. If quasi periodic mapping is a diffeomorphism, then its inverse is quasi periodic mapping also.





ABOUT LOCAL SUPERPARACOMPACT SPACES

A.A. Gofurov

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

In the present work it is studied some properties and cardinal invariants of local suerparacompact spaces which generalize respectively suerparacompact and local bicompact topological spaces. Below as spaces we mean topological spaces, as mappings continuous mappings.

Definition 1 (Musaev D.K.). The space is called: (1) local (weakly) Pi-complete, (a2) local superparacompact if every point $x \in X$ has neighborhood $O_x \subseteq X$ closure of which respectively \bar{O}_x (A1) (weakly) Pi-complete [1], (A2) superparacompact [2].

It is clear that any superparacompact and any local bicompact space is superparacompact, and any (weakly) superparacompact [1] Hausdorff space is local (weakly) Π -complete. Inverse, generally speaking, is not valid.

Theorem 1. Any local superparacompact, in particular, local bicompact Hausdorff is Tychonoff space.

Theorem 1 is generalization of theorem 3.3.1 [3].

Proposition 1. a) Closed suspace as well as open subspace of local superparacompact Hausdorff space is local superparacompact; b) Closed subspace of local (weakly) Π -complete space is local (weakly) Π complete.

Proposition 2. The discrete sum [3]: a) of local superparacompact spaces is the same; b) local (weakly) Π -complete space is the same.

Lemma 1. For local connected space X the following assertions are equivalent: a) X is local bicompact; b) X is local superparacompact.

Proposition 3. For any local connected of local superparacompact Hausdorff spaces X the following equalities hold: 1) nw(X) = w(X) [3]; 2) wd(X) = d(X) [3]; 3) $\psi(A, X) = \chi(A, X)$ for any bicompact subspaces $A \subset X$ [3].

- B.A. Pasinkov, D.K. Musaev. On Properties Compactness and Completeness of Topological Spaces and Continuous Mappings // Tashkent, Fan, 1994, 108 p.
- [2] D.K. Musaev. About superparacompact topological spaces // Doklady of Uzbek Academy of Sciences, 1983, No.2, pp. 5-6.
- [3] R. Engelking. General Topology // Mir, 1986, 786 p.





EVALUATION OF K-th MOMENT S_k USING THE RESIDUE THEORY

E. Guliyev, M. Güner, A.A. Kuliev Institute of Physics, National Academy of Sciences, Baku, Azerbaijan Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey e-mail:guliyev@physics.ab.az, kuliev@sakarya.edu.tr

The k-th moment of the neutrino nucleus scattering nuclear matrix elements are studied microscopically within quasiparticle Random Phase Approximation (QRPA). Using the analytical expressions of the nuclear matrix elements $\langle n|\sum_{i}\sigma(i)t_{3}(i)|0\rangle$ and the dispersion equation $D(\omega_{n}) = 0$ for the energy of the $I^{\pi} = 1^{+}$ states the nuclear part of the neutrino nucleus scattering cross section $S_{k} = \sum_{n} \omega_{n}^{k} |\langle n|\sum_{i}\sigma(i)t_{3}(i)|0\rangle|^{2}$ moments are calculated by help of the contour integrals and the residue theorem of the analytical functions. We have derived analytical expressions for S_{k} moments and show that exact calculation of S_{k} is possible. The great practical value of our expressions is that, in contrast to the traditional QRPA, our calculations of S_{k} moments in any single particle basis with an arbitrarily large number of levels present no particular technical difficulty. The machine time necessary for these computations is reduced by several orders of magnitude.

FUNCTORS AND MORPHISMS OF CATEGORY OF UML CLASS DIAGRAM

Asel K. Kalieva Institute of Informatics and Control, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:assel2110@rambler.ru

The centerpiece of the object-oriented programming is the development of a logical model of the system in the form of class diagrams. Notation of classes in the UML is simple and intuitive to everyone who has ever had experience with CASE tools. Class diagram is used to represent the static structure of a model system in terms of classes of object-oriented programming. The class diagram may reflect, in particular, various relationships between individual entities subject area, such as objects and subsystems, and describes their internal structure and relationship types. This diagram does not specify details about the time aspects of the system. The study of a specific UML class diagrams, models using the algebraic theory of categories allows the initial stages of creating software to avoid conflicts and inadequate operation of the software, which leads to malfunction expensive program.

In this article we construct DC category, which contains morphisms reflecting various communication class diagrams. Sibling morphisms are used for modeling the relationship of objects in DC. For hierarchical morphisms of fundamental importance direction from objects located at the upper levels of the hierarchy, the objects on the bottom. Hierarchical morphisms from top to bottom objects form cones.

We prove the following theorems.Theorem 1. DC category is small category.Theorem 2. Cones of hierarchical morphisms of DC category are products.

References

[1] A.K. Kalieva. Category of informational morphisms in UML // Poisk, Almaty, Vol.3, No.1, 2010, pp. 105-110.





ASYMPTOTICS OF EIGENVALUES OF DISCRETE SCHRÖDINGER OPERATORS

Sh.Yu. Holmatov Samarkand State University, Samarkand, Uzbekistan

e-mail:Shohruhhon1@mail.ru

Let \mathbb{T}^d be the d - dimensional torus and $L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d)$ - the Hilbert space of square-integrable even functions on \mathbb{T}^d . The discrete Schrödinger operator $H_\mu(K)$, $K \in \mathbb{T}^d$, $\mu > 0$ acts in $L^{2e}(\mathbb{T}^d)$ by $H_\mu(K) = H_0(K) - \mu V, (H_0(K)f)(q) = \mathcal{E}_K(q)f(q), \quad \mathcal{E}_K(q) = 2\sum_{j=1}^d \left[1 - \cos\frac{K_j}{2}\cos q_j\right], (Vf)(q) = \int_{\mathbb{T}^d} f(q)dq$. Notice that the essential spectrum of $H_\mu(K)$ fills the segment $[\min_{q\in\mathbb{T}^d} \mathcal{E}_K(q), \max_{q\in\mathbb{T}^d} \mathcal{E}_K(q)]$. **Theorem** Let $d \geq 3$, $K \in \mathbb{T}^d$ and none of coordinates of K equals to π . Then there exists

Theorem. Let $d \geq 3$, $K \in \mathbb{T}^d$ and none of coordinates of K equals to π . Then there exists $\mu_0(K) > 0$ that for any $\mu > \mu_0(K)$ the operator $H_{\mu}(K)$ has a unique eigenvalue $z(\mu, K)$ lying below $\mathcal{E}_{\min}(K) = \min_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \mathcal{E}_K(q)$. Moreover, as $\mu \to \mu_0(K)$, the following asymptotics hold true:

(i) if d = 3, then

$$\mathcal{E}_{\min}(K) - z(\mu, K) = c_3(K) \left[\mu - \mu_0(K)\right]^2 + O\left(\left[\mu - \mu_0(K)\right]^3\right),$$

where
$$c_1(K) = \frac{2}{c\pi} (\mu_0(K))^{-2} \sqrt{\cos \frac{K_1}{2} \dots \cos \frac{K_d}{2}}, \quad c > 0;$$

(ii) if $d = 4$, then

$$\mathcal{E}_{\min}(K) - z(\mu, K) = c_4(K) \frac{\mu - \mu_0(K)}{-\ln(\mu - \mu_0(K))} [1 + o(1)],$$

$$\frac{2}{2} (\mu_0(K))^{-2} \sqrt{\cos \frac{K_1}{K_1} \dots \cos \frac{K_d}{K_d}}, \quad c \ge 0;$$

with $c_4(K) = \frac{2}{c} (\mu_0(K))^{-2} \sqrt{\cos \frac{K_1}{2} \dots \cos \frac{K_d}{2}}, \quad c > 0;$ (iii) if $d \ge 5$ and odd, then

$$\mathcal{E}_{\min}(K) - z(\mu, K) = c_5(K) \left[\mu - \mu_0(K)\right] + O\left(\left[\mu - \mu_0(K)\right]^{3/2}\right),$$

where

$$c_5(K) = \left((\mu_0(K))^2 \int_{\mathbb{T}^d} \left(\mathcal{E}_K(q) - \mathcal{E}_{\min}(K) \right)^{-2} dq \right)^{-1/2};$$

(iv) if $d \ge 6$ and even, then

$$\mathcal{E}_{\min}(K) - z(\mu, K) = c_6(K) (\mu - \mu_0(K)) [1 + o(1)],$$

with

$$c_6(K) = \left((\mu_0(K))^2 \int_{\mathbb{T}^d} (\mathcal{E}_K(q) - \mathcal{E}_{\min}(K))^{-2} \, dq \right)^{-1/2}$$

Note that, in [1,2], analogously results for the continuous and discrete Schrödinger operators have been obtained.

- [1] M. Klaus, B. Simon. Annals of Physics // Vol.130, 1980, pp. 251-281, New Jersey.
- [2] S.N. Lakaev, Sh.Yu. Holmatov // J. Phys. A: Math. Theor., Vol.44, 2011.





ABOUT ONE CONVOLUTION OPERATOR

Nadir V. Ibadov Ganja State University, Ganja, Azerbaijan e-mail:intellect.ibadov@gmail.com

Let Z be a set of integer numbers and $\alpha \in Z$. Let's indicate a set of all numerical sequences on an integral point $\alpha \in Z$ as A, i.e. $A = \{a : a = \{a_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in Z}\}$. Let $\rho > 0$ and $\sigma > 0$. Let's introduce a space $A_{\rho,\sigma}$ of sequences $a = \{a_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in Z}$ as satisfying an inequality $|a_{\alpha}| \leq C(a)e^{\sigma|\alpha|^{\rho}}$, where $C(\alpha)$ is a constant dependent on the sequence $a = \{a_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in Z}$ and $\sigma > 0$. Let's consider a space $A_{\rho,\sigma}$ in the case of $\rho = 1$, i.e. $A_{1,\sigma} = \{a : a = \{a_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in Z}, |a_{\alpha}| \leq C(a)e^{\sigma|\alpha|}\}$. In the space $A_{1,\sigma}$ let's define a norm as

$$\|a\|_{1,\sigma} = \sup_{\alpha} \frac{|a_{\alpha}|}{e^{\sigma|\alpha|}} < \infty.$$
(1)

With the norm (1), the space $A_{1,\sigma}$ is a normalized space. The spaces $A_{1,\sigma}$ are Banach spaces (proving is conducted according to the definition of Banach spaces. Please see [1], p. 139).

Let's consider the space

$$A_{1,\infty} = \bigcup_{\sigma>0} A_{1,\sigma} = \bigcup_{\sigma>0} \{a : a = \{a_\alpha\}_{\alpha \in Z}, \in A, |a_\alpha| \le C(a)e^{\sigma|\alpha|}, \sigma = \sigma(a)\}.$$

 $A_{1,\infty}$ is an inductive limit of the spaces $A_{1,\sigma}$, i.e. $A_{1,\infty} = \lim_{\sigma>0} indA_{1,\sigma}$ (see [2]). Let's consider an space $A_{1,\infty}^* = \bigcap_{\sigma>0} A_{1,\sigma}^* = \bigcap_{\sigma>0} \{b: b = \{b_\alpha\}_{\alpha\in Z}, \in A, |b_\alpha| \leq B(b)e^{-\widetilde{\sigma}|\alpha|}, \widetilde{\sigma} = \widetilde{\sigma}(b)\}$, which is adjoint to the space $A_{1,\infty}$. The space $A_{1,\infty}^*$ is a projective limit of the spaces $A_{1,\sigma}^*$, i.e. $A_{1,\infty}^* = \lim_{\sigma>0} prA_{1,\sigma}^*$ (see. [2]).

Definition 3. The operator M_F is called a convolution operator generated by a functional $F \in A_{1,\infty}^*$, and functioning according to the following rules:

$$\begin{split} M_F[a &= \{a_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in Z}] = (F, \{a_{\alpha+m}\})_{m \in Z} = c\{c_m\}_{m \in Z}, \text{ where } c = \{c_m\}_{m \in Z} = (F, (a_{\alpha+m}))_{\alpha \in Z} \text{ and } a = \{a_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in Z} \in A_{1,\infty}. \text{ The functional } F = b = \{b_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in Z} \in A_{1,\infty}^* \text{ defines the convolution operator as } b_{\alpha \in Z} \in A_{1,\infty}^*. \end{split}$$

$$M_F[a] = M_b[a] \sum_{\alpha = -\infty}^{+\infty} b_{\alpha} a_{\alpha + m}, m = 0, \pm 1, \pm 2, \pm \cdots$$
 (2)

Lemma 1. $M_b[a] \in A_{1,\infty}$.

Let's consider homogeneous equation of convolution $M_b[a] = 0$ and write its solution. Let $\tilde{z} = (z^{\alpha})_{\alpha \in \mathbb{Z}} \in A_{1,\infty}$.

Theorem 1. For every j, $\widetilde{z_j} = \{z_j^{\alpha}\}$ is a solution of a homogeneous equation of convolution $M_b[a] = 0$.

- A.N. Kolmiogorov, S.V. Fomin. Elements of the Theory of Functions and Functionala Analysis // M.:Nauka, 1976, 544 p.
- [2] J.O. Sebastyan de Silva. On some classes of locally-convex spaces important in applications // Col. Mathematiics, 1957, No.1, pp. 60-77.





ON FOURIER ANALYSIS IN INFINITE DIMENSIONS AND IT'S APPLICATIONS

N.V. Ibadov, I.Sh. Jabbarov Ganja State University, Ganja, Azerbaijan e-mail:Nadir_Ibadov@yahoo.com, jabbarovish@rambler.ru

Bohr H. (see [1-4]) showed that the almost periodic function can be represented as a "diagonal" function of a limit-periodic function, defined in the multidimensional or infinite (enumerable) dimensional space as a uniform limit of periodic continuous functions.

Let trigonometric series be given

$$\sum_{n=-\infty}^{\infty} a_n e^{it\lambda_n}; \lambda_{-n} = -\lambda_n.$$

Let the sequence (λ_n) to have a whole bases (ν_m) (see [4, p.31]), so that, every finite subsequence of the sequence (ν_m) is linearly independent over the field of rational numbers, and for every of λ_n we have a unique representation

$$\lambda_n = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} l_k(n)\nu_k; \ l_k(n) \in \mathbb{Z},\tag{1}$$

where the numbers $l_k(n)$ are zero with exception of finite number of them. Let $\Lambda(k)$ to denote the set of such numbers $\lambda_{\pm n}$ for which the representation (1) contains only numbers $\nu_1, ..., \nu_k$. In addition

to talked above we suppose that $\nu_k \to \infty$ as $k \to \infty$ and $\sum_{n=-\infty}^{\infty} |a_n|^2 < +\infty$. **Theorem.** Let for every k the series $B_k(t) = \sum_{\lambda_n \in \Lambda(k)} a_n e^{it\lambda_n}$ be absolutely convergent. Then there

exist an almost everywhere finite function B(t) such that

$$B\left(t\right) = \lim_{k \to \infty} B_k\left(t\right)$$

for almost all real t.

It should be noted that the functions $B_{k}(t)$ are almost periodic functions in the Bohr sense. But the convergence in the formulation of the theorem is not uniform. For the proof of the theorem we use a new measure introduced in the works [5-7].

- [1] H. Bohr. Zur Theorie der Fastperiodischen Funktionen // I-II Teil. Acta Math. Vol.45,46, 1925, pp. 29-127, 101-214.
- [2] H. Bohr. Almost Periodic Functions // M.OGIZ, 1934.
- [3] A.S. Besicovitch Almost Periodic Functions // Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 1932.
- [4] B.M. Levitan, V.V. Jikov. Almost Periodic Functions and Differential Equations // SU, 1978.
- [5] I. Sh. Jabbarov. The Riemann Hypothesis // ArXiv:1006.0381v2, 2010.
- [6] I. Sh. Jabbarov. On Ergodic Hypothesis // ArXiv:1102.5668, 2010.
- [7] I. Sh. Jabbarov. On Mean Values and Zeroes of Dirichlet Series // ArXiv:1102.3362v3, 2010.







PROPERTIES OF BIORTHOGONAL POLYNOMIALS SUGGESTED BY JACOBI POLYNOMIALS

M.N. Ilyassov

Pavlodar State Pedagogical Institute, Pavlodar, Kazakhstan e-mail:gasdaryn@mail.ru

In the work [1] (part 1-3) the systems of polynomials $\left\{U_n^{(\alpha,\beta)}(y;k)\right\}$ and $\left\{V_n^{(\alpha,\beta)}(z^k;k)\right\}$ biorthogonals in intervals (-1, 1) with weight function $h(x) = (1-x)^{\alpha}(1+x)^{\beta}$, where $\alpha > -1$, $\beta > -1$, $y = \frac{1-x}{2}$, $z = \frac{1+x}{2}$, k- odd natural number have been studied.

In [1] following polynomials are explicit representation to generating function and some recurrente formulas.

Theorem 1. All zeros of the biorthogonal polynomials $U_n^{(\alpha,\beta)}(y;k)$ and $V_n^{(\alpha,\beta)}(w;k)$ are real, different and located in intervals (0, 1), where $w = z^k$.

Theorem 2. The biorthogonal polynomials $U_n^{(\alpha,\beta)}(y;k)$ are shown as

$$U_n^{(\alpha,\beta)}(y;k) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{G_{n-1}G_n}} \begin{vmatrix} M_{00} & M_{01} & \dots & M_{0,n-1} & 1\\ M_{10} & M_{11} & \dots & M_{1,n-1} & y\\ \dots & \dots & \dots & \dots\\ M_{n0} & M_{n1} & M_{n,n-1} & y^n \end{vmatrix},$$

$$V_n^{(\alpha,\beta)}(z^k;k) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{G_{n-1}G_n}} \begin{vmatrix} M_{00} & M_{01} & \dots & M_{0n} \\ \dots & \dots & \dots & \dots \\ M_{n-1,0} & M_{n-1,1} & \dots & M_{n-1,n} \\ 1 & z^k & \dots & z^{kn} \end{vmatrix},$$

where G_n - determinant of Gramian, $G_{-1} = 1$, $G_n = \begin{vmatrix} M_{00} & M_{01} & \dots & M_{0n} \\ M_{10} & M_{11} & \dots & M_{1n} \\ \dots & \dots & \dots & \dots \\ M_{n0} & M_{n1} & \dots & M_{nn} \end{vmatrix}$,

$$M_{ms} = \int_{-1}^{1} (1-x)^{\alpha} (1+x)^{\beta} \left(\frac{1-x}{2}\right)^{m} \left(\frac{1+x}{2}\right)^{ks} dx, \ m \ge 0, \ s \ge 0.$$

References

 M.N. Ilyassov. Biorthogonal Polynomials of One and Two Variables // Dissertationm of candidate of math. and phys. sciences, Almaty, 1993, 102 p.





ROOT FUNCTIONS' BASIS PROPERTY OF SCHRÖDINGER OPERATOR WITH NONLOCAL PERTURBATION OF BOUNDARY CONDITION

Nurlan S. Imanbaev

International Kazakh-Turkish University, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:imanbaevnur@mail.ru

We consider the operator L given by the differential expression

$$L(y) = -y''(x) + q(x)y(x), 0 < x < 1$$
⁽¹⁾

and by the boundary conditions

$$U_1(y) = 0, \ U_2(y) = \int_0^1 \overline{p(x)} y(x) dx, \ p(x) \in L_2(0,1),$$
(2)

where

$$U_j(y) = a_{j1}y'(0) + a_{j2}y'(1) + a_{j3}y(0) + a_{j4}y(1), \quad j = 1, 2.$$

The question of the eigen and adjoint functions (EAF) basis of L with more generalized integral boundary conditions is positively resolved in [1], where Riesz basis with brackets is proved as long as the boundary conditions $U_1(y) = 0, U_2(y) = 0$ are regular by Birkhoff. And as long as an additional assumption of strongly regular Riesz basis EAF is proved. A double differentiation operator with the integral perturbation of the periodic boundary conditions is investigated in [2].

We consider the case when the boundary conditions are regular, but not strongly regular:

 $A_{12} = 0, A_{14} + A_{23} \neq 0, A_{14} + A_{23} = \pm (A_{13} + A_{24}).$

Herein as usual $A_{ij} = a_{1i}a_{2j} - a_{1j}a_{2i}$ is denoted.

Theorem. Let the unperturbed operator L_0 (in case $p(x) \equiv 0$) to have an EAF system forming Riesz basis in $L_2(0,1)$. Then:

1) set P of $p(x) \in L_2(0,1)$ functions such that the EAF system of L forms Riesz basis in $L_2(0,1)$ is dense in $L_2(0,1)$;

2) if $A_{14} = A_{23}, A_{34} = 0$ then $L_2(0,1) \setminus P$ is also dense in $L_2(0,1)$;

3) if $A_{14} = A_{23}, A_{34} \neq 0$ then $P = L_2(0, 1)$;

4) if $A_{14} \neq A_{23}$ then the P set and $L_2(0,1) \setminus P$ are dense in $L_2(0,1)$. To ensure that the EAF system operator L is Riesz basis in $L_2(0,1)$ it is necessary and sufficient that all eigenvalues λ_k^1 of L except may be a finite number are multiple (in other words asymptotically multiples).

- A.A. Shkalikov. On eigen functions basis of ordinary differential operators with integral boundary conditions // Bulletin of Moscow State University, No.6, 1982, pp. 12-21.
- [2] A.S. Makin. On a nonlocal perturbation of the periodic problem on eigenvalues // Differential equations, Vol.42, No.4, 2006, pp. 560-562.





APPROXIMATION PROBLEMS IN WEIGHTED SMIRNOV CLASSES

Daniyal M. Israfilov Balikesir University, Balikesir, Turkey e-mail:disrafilov@gmail.com

In this talk we discuss the direct and inverse problems of approximation theory in the weighted Smirnov classes, defined on the simple connected domain G with a regular boundary L. By ω we denote the weight function satisfying the well known Muckenhoupt condition on L and by $L^p(L, \omega)$ the weighted Lebesgue spaces of functions defined on L.

Under some restrictive conditions on the weight function ω we prove the direct theorem of approximation theory in the Smirnov classes $E^p(G,\omega)$, $1 , i.e. we estimate the degree of approximation <math>L^p(L,\omega)$ norm by a r^{th} integral modulus of continuity $\omega_k(f,h)_{L^p(L,\omega)}$ defined as following:

$$\omega_k(f,h)_{L^p(L,\omega)} := \sup_{\delta \le h} \|\sigma_\delta^r f\|_{L^p(L,\omega)} := \left(\int_0^{2\pi} |\sigma_\delta^r f_0(x)|^p \,\omega(x) \, dx\right)^{1/p}$$

where

$$\sigma_{\delta}^{r} f(x) = \frac{1}{\delta} \int_{0}^{\delta} \left| \Delta_{t}^{r} f(x) \right|^{p} dt$$

and

$$\Delta_t^r f(x) = \sum_{s=0}^r \left(-1\right)^{r+s+1} \left(\begin{array}{c} r\\ s \end{array}\right) f(x+st).$$

Later in the weighted Smirnov spaces $E^p(G, \omega)$ we prove, using the same modulus of smoothness, the appropriate inverse theorem. In particular, combining the direct and inverse theorems we obtain the constructive description of the generalized Lipschitz classes of functions.

Note that in term of some other modulus of smoothness the similar results were obtained by us in [1].

References

[1] Daniyal M. Israfilov. Approximation by p-Faber Polynomials in the weighted Smirnov class $E^p(G, \omega)$ and the Bieberbach Polynomials // Constr. Approx., Vol. 17, 2001, pp. 335-351.





THE RIEMANN HYPOTHESIS

Ilgar Sh. Jabbarov Ganja State University, Ganja, Azerbaijan e-mail:jabbarovish@rambler.ru

Appearance of the zeta function and analytical methods in Number Theory is connected with L.Euler's name. In 1748 Euler introduced the zeta function

$$\zeta(s) = \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} n^{-s}, s > 1,$$

considering it as a function of real variable s. B. Riemann in 1859 considered, for the first time, the zeta function as a function of complex variable and connected the problem of distribution of prime numbers with an arrangement of complex zeroes of the zeta function. He had continued, analytically, the zeta function to the all complex plane and formulated some hypotheses about the zeta function. One of them later becomes a central problem for all of Mathematics. This hypothesis asserts that all of complex zeroes of the zeta function, located in the critical strip 0 < Res < 1, lay on the critical line Res = 0.5. In this work we formulate our result (see [1]).

Theorem 1. Let 0 < r < 1/4 be a real number. Then there exist sequence (θ_n) in Ω $(\theta_n \in \Omega, n = 1, 2, ...)$ and a sequence (m_n) of integers that for every real t

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} F_n(s + it, \theta_n) = \zeta(s + it)$$

uniformly in the circle $|s - 3/4| \le r$; here

$$F_n(s+it,\theta_n) = \prod_{p \le m_n} \left(1 - \frac{e^{-2\pi i \vartheta_p^n}}{p^{s+it}}\right)^{-1}; \ \theta_n = (\theta_p^n),$$

and the product is taken over all prime numbers and the components of θ_n are indexed by prime numbers.

It should be noted that the length of a partial product, approximating $\zeta(s)$, depends on t. **Corollary.** The Riemann Hypothesis is true, i. e.

$$\zeta(s) \neq 0$$

when $\sigma > 0.5$.

The result is based on a new measure introduced in the infinite dimensional unite cube distinct from the Haar or product Lebesgue measures and closely connected with the Tichonov metric.

References

[1] I. Sh. Jabbarov. The Riemann Hypothesis // ArXiv:1006.0381, 2010.





ON A CONSTRUCTIVE CHARACTERISTIC OF CLASSES OF HARMONIC FUNCTIONS¹

Sadulla Z. Jafarov Pamukkale University, Denizli, Turkey e-mail:sjafarov@pau.edu.tr

Let $w(\delta)$, $\delta > 0$, be a function of the type of modulus of continuity, i.e. a positive nondecreasing (with w(+0) = 0) function satisfying for some c = const > 0 the condition $w(t\delta) \leq ctw(\delta)$, $\delta > 0$, t > 1. Let us consider a Jordan curve Γ and two arbitrary points z_1 and z_2 on it. By $\Gamma(z_1, z_2)$ we denote one of the two curves (with less diameter) on which the points z_1 and z_2 divide the curve Γ . The feasibility of the relation diam $\Gamma(z_1, z_2) \preccurlyeq |z_1 - z_2|$ is the necessary and sufficient condition for the quasiconformal of the curve Γ (see [1],p.100). Let us denote by $C_{\Delta}^w(\Gamma)$ the class of realvalued, continuous in \mathbb{C} , harmonic in $\mathbb{C}\backslash\Gamma$ functions u satisfying, for any z and $\zeta \in \mathbb{C}$, the condition $|u(z) - u(\zeta)| \leq cw(|z - \zeta|)$, c = c(u) = const > 0. By $B_{\Delta}^w(\Gamma)$ being the class of real-valued, continuous in \mathbb{C} , harmonic in $\mathbb{C}\backslash\Gamma$ functions such that, for any $n \in \mathbb{N}$, there is a harmonic rational function

$$R_{n}(z) = Re \sum_{j=-n}^{n} a_{j} z^{j}, \ n = 1, 2, ..., \ a_{j} \in \mathbb{C}$$
(1)

satisfying the relation $|u(z) - R_n(z)| \le c_1 w \left[\rho_{1/n}, (z)\right], z \in G_n$. In this study the constructive characterization of classes of harmonic functions with singularities on a quasiconformal curves has been studied. To prove the inverse theorem in this study, we use the standard scheme for the proofs of inverse theorem [2], [3] and [4]. The main results of this work are as follows:

Theorem 1. Let Γ be a quasiconformal curve and $f \in B^w_{\Lambda}(\Gamma)$. Then $f \in C^{\mu}_{\Lambda}(\Gamma)$, where

$$\mu\left(\delta\right) = \delta \int_{\delta}^{1} \frac{w\left(t\right)}{t^{2}} dt, \ 0 < \delta < 1/2 \ .$$

Corollary 1. If

$$\delta \int_{\delta}^{1} \frac{w(t)}{t^2} dt \le c_2 w(\delta), \quad 0 < \delta < 1/2$$

 $C^{w}_{\Delta}(\Gamma) = B^{w}_{\Delta}(\Gamma)$.

then

- [1] O. Lehto, K.I. Virtanen. Quasiconformal Mappings in the Plane // 2nd ed., Springer-Verlag, 1973.
- [2] V.V. Andrievskii, V.I. Belyi, V.K.Dzyadyk, Conformal Invariants in Constructive Theory of Functions of Complex Varible // Altanta, Georgia, World Federation Publisher, 1995.
- [3] V.K. Dzyadyk. Introduction to the Theory of Uniform Approximation of Functions by Polynomials // "Nauka", Moscow, 1977 (in Russian).
- [4] P.M. Tamrazov, Smoothness and Polynomial Approximation // "Naukova Dumka", Kiev, 1975 (in Russian).

¹ This research is supported by Pamukkale University, Turkey.







COMPACT LAW OF THE ITERATED LOGARITHM FOR HILBERT SPACE-VALUED RANDOM VARIABLES AND AUTOREGRESSIVE PROCESSES

A.A. Jalilov, O.Sh. Sharipov

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Uzbek Academy of Sciences, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

e-mail:osharipov@yahoo.com

Let $\{Y_n, n \ge 1\}$ be a sequence of random variables (r.v.'s) with values in separable Hilbert space H (with a norm $\|\cdot\|$) satisfying φ_m – mixing condition. Coefficients of φ_m – mixing are defined as following

$$\varphi_m(n) = \sup_{H_m} \sup_n \left\{ | (B/A) - (B) | : B \in \sigma^m(F_{k+n}^\infty), A \in \sigma^m(F_1^k), P(A) > 0, k \in N \right\}$$

where $\sigma^m(F_a^b) - \sigma$ -algebra generated by r.v.'s ${}_mY_a, ..., {}_mY_b, {}_m$ - operator of projection from H to mdimensional space $H_m \subset H$. Denote

$$U_n = Y_1 + Y_2 + \dots + Y_n, a_n = \sqrt{2n \ln \ln n}, \ n \ge 3, \ Lx = \max(1, \ln x),$$

 H^* -dual space, $V(f,g) = \lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{1}{n} Ef(U_n) g(U_n) f, g \in H^*$. **Theorem** Let $\{Y_n, n \ge 1\}$ be a sequence of identically distributed r.v.'s with values in H satisfying the following conditions: $E ||Y_1|| = 0, E ||Y_1||^2 < \infty, \lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{1}{n} Ef^2(U_n) = \sigma_f < \infty$ for all $f \in H^*$,

 $\sum_{i=1}^{\infty}\varphi_m^{\frac{1}{\theta}}\left(2^k\right) < \infty, \text{ for some } \theta > 3 \text{ and } m = 1, 2, ..., V(f,g) \ g, f \in H^* \text{ is continuous in weak}$ *-topology.

Then there exists a compact set $K \subset H$ such that almost surely $\lim_{n \to \infty} \inf_{x \in K} \left\| \frac{U_n}{a_n} - x \right\| = 0$ and $C\left(\left\{\frac{U_n}{a_n}\right\}\right) = K$, where $C\left(\left\{\frac{U_n}{a_n}\right\}\right)$ -all limit points of $\left\{\frac{U_n}{a_n}\right\}$ in H. The compact law of the iterated logarithm for autoregressive processes in separable Hilbert space

H, which are defined by the following equation

$$X_n - m = T \left(X_{n-1} - m \right) + \varepsilon_n, \ n \in \mathbb{Z},$$

where $T: H \to H$ is bounded linear operator, $m \in H$, $\{\varepsilon_n, n \in Z\}$ is a stochastic process of innovations will be discussed as well.





QUADRATIC STOCHASTIC OPERATORS CORRESPONDING TO GRAPHS¹

Uygun U. Jamilov

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:jamilovu@yandex.ru

The notion of quadratic stochastic operator (QSO) was first formulated by Bernshtein [1]. We denote by S the following set:

$$S = \{x = (x_i) : x_i \ge 0, \ \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} x_i = 1\}.$$
(1)

We define an operator $V: S \to S$ as follows

$$(V(x))_k = \sum_{i,j=1}^{\infty} p_{ij,k} x_i x_j, \quad k \in N, x = (x_i) \in S,$$
 (2)

where

$$p_{ij,k} \ge 0, \quad p_{ij,k} = p_{ji,k}, \quad \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} p_{ij,k} = 1, \quad i, j \in N.$$
 (3)

Definition 1. An operator defined as above is called an infinity dimensional quadratic stochastic operator.

Let $G = (\Lambda, L)$ be a graph without multiple edges, where Λ is the set of vertices which is at most a countable set, L- is the set of edges of the graph G. Enumerate the vertices of the graph G by elements of $E = \{0, 1, 2, ...\}$.

We denote $\langle i, j \rangle$ if vertices *i* and *j* are the neighboring points of graph, i.e. vertices *i* and *j* connect with edges of a graph. By $\langle i, j \rangle$ we denote non neighboring points. The coefficients of heredity we define as the following:

$$p_{ij,k} = \begin{cases} 1, & \text{if } i, j \langle, k = 0, i, j \in E; \\ 0, & \text{if } i, j \langle, k \neq 0, i, j \in E; \\ \ge 0, & \text{if } \langle i, j \rangle, i, j \in E \setminus \{0\}; \\ 0, & \text{if } \langle i, j \rangle, k \neq 0, i = 0 \text{ or } j = 0. \end{cases}$$
(4)

Definition 2. For any fixed graph G, QSO satisfying conditions (2),(3) and (4) is called the quadratic stochastic operator corresponding to the graph (QSOCG).

Arbitrary QSOCG has the form

$$V: \begin{cases} x_{0}' = x_{0}^{2} + 2x_{0} \sum_{\substack{i \in E \setminus \{0\} \\ i \in E \setminus \{0\}}} x_{i} + 2\sum_{\substack{i,j \in E: \\ i,j \in k}} x_{i}x_{j} + \sum_{\substack{i,j \in E: \\ \langle i,j \rangle}} p_{ij,0}x_{i}x_{j} \\ x_{k}' = \sum_{\substack{i,j \in E: \\ \langle i,j \rangle}} p_{ij,k}x_{i}x_{j}, \quad k \in E \setminus \{0\}. \end{cases}$$
(5)

Theorem 1. Any QSOCG (5) has a unique fixed point (1,0,0,...). Besides, for any $x^{(0)} \in S$, the trajectory of operator (5) tends to this fixed point exponentially rapidly.

References

 S.N. Bernstein. The solution of a mathematical problem related to the theory of heredity // Uchn. Zapiski. NI Kaf. Ukr. Otd. Mat., No.1., 1924, pp. 83-115 (Russian).

^[2] F.M. Mukhamedov. Infinite-dimensional quadratic Volterra operators // Commu. of the Moscow Math. Soc., No.7, 2001, pp. 1161-1162.

¹ This research is supported by Foud Podderjka Grant Program "8-10".





ON THE SUMMABILITY OF FOURIER COEFFICIENTS OF FUNCTIONS FROM LORENTZ SPACE

A.M. Jantakbaeva

Eurasian National University of L.N. Gumiliev, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:ayagoz.jantakbaeva@yandex.ru

Let $1 \le p < \infty, 0 < q \le \infty$. A set of measureable functions on $[0, 2\pi]$ is called the Lorentz space $L_{pq}[0, 2\pi]$, if

$$\|f\|_{L_{pq}[0,1]} = \left(\int_{0}^{1} \left(t^{\frac{1}{p}}f^{*}(t)\right)^{q} \frac{dt}{t}\right)^{\frac{1}{q}},$$

for $0 < q < \infty$

$$||f||_{L_{p\infty}[0,1]} = \sup_{0 \le t \le 1} t^{\frac{1}{p}} f^*(t)$$

for $q = \infty$ are finite. Here $f^*(t)$ - non-increasing permutation of function f(t). Let $f \sim \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} a_k \cos kx$. The following result is proved in [1]: If $1 , <math>p' = \frac{p}{p-1}$, $1 \le q \le \infty$, $f \in L_{pq}[0, 2\pi]$, then

$$\left(\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} k^{\frac{q}{p'}} \left(\bar{a}_k\right)^q \frac{1}{k}\right)^{\frac{1}{q}} < \infty,\tag{1}$$

where $\bar{a}_k = \frac{1}{k} \left| \sum_{m=1}^k a_m \right|$.

In this paper we consider inequality (1) type for distinct averagings Fourier coefficients.

Theorem 1. Let $1 , <math>p' = \frac{p}{p-1}$, $1 \le q < \infty$, $f \sim \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} a_k \cos kx$. If $f \in L_{pq}[0, 2\pi]$, then the following inequality holds: $\left(\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} k^{\frac{q}{p'}} (\tilde{a}_k)^q \frac{1}{k}\right)^{\frac{1}{q}} < \infty$, where $\tilde{a}_k = \left|\sum_{m=k}^{\infty} \frac{a_m}{m}\right|$.

Theorem 2. Let $1 , <math>p' = \frac{p}{p-1}$, $\alpha > \frac{1}{p'}$, $f \sim \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} a_k \cos kx$, a sequence $\lambda = \{\lambda_k\}$ satisfy to the next conditions:

1) $\sup_{r \leq k} \frac{1}{r^{\alpha}} \left| \sum_{m=1}^{r} \lambda_{m} \right| \leq D \frac{1}{k^{\alpha}} \left| \sum_{m=1}^{k} \lambda_{m} \right|,$ 2) $|\lambda_{k} - \lambda_{k+1}| \leq D \frac{1}{k^{2}} \left| \sum_{m=1}^{k} \lambda_{m} \right|, D$ - some constant, that undepends from index k. If $f \in L_{pq}$. Then $\left(\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \left(k^{\frac{1}{p'}} \bar{a}_{k}(\lambda) \right)^{q} \frac{1}{k} \right)^{\frac{1}{q}} < \infty$ holds, where $\bar{a}_{k}(\lambda) = \frac{1}{\left| \sum_{m=1}^{k} \lambda_{m} \right|} \left| \sum_{m=1}^{k} \lambda_{m} a_{m} \right|, k \in N.$

References

 E.D. Nursultanov. On the coefficients of multiple Fourier series from L_p spaces // Izv.Ross. Akad. Nauk. Ser. Mat., Vol.64, No.1, 2000, pp. 93-122 (In russian).





ABOUT SOME CARDINAL INVARIANTS AND METRIZATION OF SUPERPARACOMPACT AND COABSOLUTE SPACES

D. Jumaev

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

In the present work it is studied some cardinal invariants of coabsolute [1] spaces. Below as space we mean topological space, as mapping of spaces continuous mappings. It is known [1] that if two regular spaces are coabsolute then their density [1], and also Suslin's number [1] are coincide.

It turns out for coabsolute spaces the following holds

Theorem 1. If two regular spaces X and Y are coabsolute then their welly density [2] and also weakly Lindelof's number [2] are concide.

Proposition 1. Any (O-C)-finite [3] superparacompact [3] T_2 space with first axiom of countablity is metrizable.

Proposition 2. For any local connected superparacompact X the following equalities hold

1)
$$n\omega(X) = \omega(X)$$
 [2]; 2) $\omega d(X) = d(X)$ [2]; 3) $\psi(A, X) = \chi(A, X)$ [2]

for any bicompact subspace $A \subset X$.

Theorem 2. Local bicompact superparacompact X is metrizable if and only if when any its open bicompact subspace has countable base.

Theorem 3. Local connected superparacompact groupp [3] G metrizable if and only if whet components unity of the group G has countable closeness and countable chatacter in the group G.

- A.V. Arkhangelskiy, V.I. Ponomarev. Foundation of General Topology in Problems and Exercise // Moscow, Nauka, 1974.
- [2] A.V. Arkhangelskiy. Construction and classification topological spaces and cardinal invariants // Uspekh, Mat. nauk, Vol.33, No.204, pp. 29-82.
- [3] B.A. Pasinkov, D.K. Musaev. On Properties Compactness and Completeness of Topological Spaces and Continuous Mappings // Tashkent, Fan, 1994, 108 p.





ON APPROXIMATION PROPERTIES OF THE ROOT FUNCTIONS GENERATED BY THE CORRECTLY SOLVABLE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEMS FOR THE HIGH ORDER ORDINARY DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

B.E. Kanguzhin, N.E. Tokmagambetov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan

e-mail:kanbalta@mail.ru, tokmagam@list.ru

In this work we study properties of systems of root functions generated with differential operators. Let L be a differential operator with the following ordinary differential expression in the $L_2(0, 1)$ space

$$l(y) \equiv y^{(n)}(x) + p_{n-2}(x)y^{(n-2)}(x) + p_{n-3}(x)y^{(n-3)}(x) + \dots + p_0(x)y(x),$$
(1)

and with inner boundary conditions

$$y^{(\nu)}(0) = 0, \nu \neq k, \nu = \overline{0, n - 1},$$

$$y^{(k)}(0) - \int_0^1 (l(y(x)))\overline{\sigma(x)} dx = 0,$$
 (2)

where $\sigma(x) \in L_2(0, 1)$ and $\overline{\sigma(x)}$ denotes complex conjugate of the $\sigma(x)$. Obviously, the inverse operator L^{-1} is completely continuous operator. Then it follows from [1, pp.10] that spectrum of L is finite or it is a countable set of isolated eigenvalues with finite algebraic multiplicity without points of accumulation. For every eigenvalue λ_s with geometric multiplicity m_s is set in correspondence the following chain of the eigenfunction and associated function of the operator L

 $E_s = \{y_{s,0}(x,), y_{s,1}(x), \dots, y_{s,m_s-1}(x)\}.$

Union of all different chains of the root functions

 $E \equiv \{E_s : \lambda_s - \text{eigenvalue of the operator L}\}\$

is called the system of root functions of the operator L. Thus, the differential operator L is a derivation of some system of root functions. The main problem is to study properties of root functions generated with differential operator L.

The following theorem is valid.

Theorem. Let $\sigma(x) \in C^{n-k-2}[0,1]$ for k < n-1 and $\sigma(x) \in L_2(0,1)$ for k = n-1. If there exist non vanishing limits

$$\lim_{\varepsilon \to +0} \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \int_0^\varepsilon (1 + (-1)^{n-k} \sigma^{(n-k-1)}(x)) dx = \alpha_1, \lim_{\varepsilon \to 1-0} \int_\varepsilon^1 \sigma(x) dx = \alpha_2,$$

then the system of root functions of the operator L is complete and minimal in $L_2(0,1)$.

From [2] followed that for all $\sigma(x) \in L_2(0, 1)$ conditions (2) are described correctly solvable problems corresponding to the expression (1).

- [1] M.S. Agranovich. Operators with Discrete Spectrum // Lecture Notes M., 2005, pp. 153.
- [2] M. Otelbaev, A.N. Shynybekov. Well-posed problems of Bitzadze-Samarskii type // Dokl. Akad. Nauk SSSR. Vol.265, No.4, 1982, pp. 815-819





CERTAIN SASAKIAN MANIFOLDS OF CONSTANT SECTIONAL CURVATURE

M.B.Kazemi Balgeshir, F. Malek K.N. Toosi University of Technology, Tehran, Iran e-mail:mbkazemi@dena.kntu.ac.ir

In this paper we study ϕ -recurrent and generalized ϕ -recurrent Sasakian manifolds and prove that their sectional curvature is constant. We show that any generalized concircular ϕ -recurrent Sasakian manifold is a concircular ϕ -recurrent and both of them are of constant curvature.

References

- D.E. Blair.Riemannian Geometry of Contact and Sympelectic Manifolds // progress mathematics 203, Brikhauser, Boston-Basel-Berlin, 2002.
- [2] E. Boeckx. A class of locally ϕ -Symmetric contact metric spaces // Arch. Math. Vol.72, 1999, pp. 466-472.
- [3] U.C. De, A.A. Shaikh, Sudipta Biswas. On Φ-recurrent Sasakian manifolds // Novi Sad J. Math., Vol.33, No.2, 2003, pp. 43-48.
- [4] T. Takahashi. Sasakian φ-symmetry spaces // Thoku Math. J. Vol.29, 1977, pp. 91-113.
- [5] K. Yano, M. Kon. Structures on Manifolds // Series in Pure Mathematics, 3. World Scientific Publishing Co., Singapore, 1984.

INTEGRAL OPERATORS IN WEIGHTED SOBOLEV SPACES AND APPLICATIONS

R. Oinarov

L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:o_ryskul@mail.ru

For the integral operators of the form $Kf(x) = \int_{a}^{x} K(x,t)f(t)dt$ and $Kg(x) = \int_{x}^{b} K(t,x)g(t)dt$,

 $x \in (a, b) \subseteq \mathbb{R}$, under some assumptions on the kernel $K(x, t) \ge 0$ we find necessary and sufficient conditions for the validity of the following weighted inequalities

$$\|wKf\|_{q} \le C\left(\|\rho f'\|_{p} + \|vf\|_{p}\right), \ \forall f \in AC'(a,b),$$
(1)

$$\|u(Kf)'\|_{r} \le C\left(\|\rho f'\|_{p} + \|vf\|_{p}\right), \quad \forall f \in A\overset{o}{C}(a,b),$$
(2)

where $A \overset{o}{C}(a, b)$ is a set of absolutely continuous functions with compact supports.

Studying the inequalities (1) and (2) leads to for instance the problem on discreteness of spectrum of the Friedrichs extension of operator

$$A_n u \equiv (-1)^{n+1} \left(\rho^2(x) \left(\frac{u}{w}\right)^{(n+1)} \right)^{(n+1)} + (-1)^n \left(v^2(x) \left(\frac{u}{w}\right)^{(n)} \right)^{(n)}$$

with domain $D(A_n) = C_0^{\infty}(I), n \ge 1$.





INVESTIGATION OF A RENEWAL-REWARD PROCESS WITH A GENERALIZED **REFLECTING BARRIER**

Tahir Khaniyev, Basak Gever, Zulfiyya Mammadova University of Economics and Technology, Ankara, Turkey Instute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan University of Economics and Technology, Ankara, Turkey Karadeniz Technical University, Trabzon, Turkey e-mail:tahirkhaniyev@etu.edu.tr

In this study, two sequences $\{\xi_n\}$ and $\{\eta_n\}$ of independent and identically distributed positive valued random variables are considered. By means of these random variables a stochastic process $X_{\lambda}(t)$ which is called "Renewal - reward process with a generalized reflecting barrier" is constructed. In the study, some ergodic characteristics of the process $X_{\lambda}(t)$ are investigated and the following main results are obtained.

Theorem 1. Assume that the sequences $\{\xi_n\}$ and $\{\eta_n\}$ are satisfied the following supplementary conditions:

i) $0 < E(\xi_1) < \infty$,

ii) $E(\eta_1) > 0,$ iii) $E(\eta_1^{n+2}) < \infty,$

iv) η_1 s non - arithmetic random variable. Then, for n^{th} ergodic moment $(E(X^n))$ of the process $X_{\lambda}(t)$ the following asymptotic expansion with three terms can be written, when $\lambda \to \infty$:

$$E(X^{n}) = \frac{2m_{n+2}}{(n+1)(n+2)m_{2}}\lambda^{n} + B_{n}\lambda^{n-1} + C_{n}\lambda^{n-2} + o(\lambda^{n-2}),$$

where $m_n = E(\eta_1^n), n \ge 1$.

The explicit expressions for the coefficients B_n and C_n are exist in the study.

Theorem 2. Under the conditions of the Theorem 1, the process $Y_{\lambda}(t) \equiv X_{\lambda}(t)/\lambda$ is ergodic and the ergodic distribution $(Q_Y(X))$ of the process $Y_{\lambda}(t)$ weakly converges to the limit distribution G(X), when $\lambda \to \infty$, *i.e.*, for each x > 0,

$$Q_Y(X) \to G(X) \equiv (2/m_2) \int_0^x \int_v^\infty (1 - F(u)) du dv.$$

Here, F(u) is the distribution function of the random variable η_1 .

References

[1] M. Brown, H. Solomon. A second - order approximation for the variance of a renewal - reward process // Stochastic Processes and Applications, Vol.3, 1975, pp. 301-314.





THE NORM OF THE ERROR FUNCTIONAL OF WEIGHT OPTIMAL CUBATURE FORMULAS IN $\tilde{C}^{(m)}(T_n)$ SPACE

Kh.U. Khayatov, F.B. Aslonov Bukhara State University, Bukhara, Uzbekistan

The present paper is devoted for functions $f(x_1, x_2, ..., x_n)$ of n - variables, which belong to the space

 $\tilde{C}^{(m)}(T_n)$, i.e. $f(x_1, x_2, ..., x_n) \in \tilde{C}^{(m)}(T_n)$, where T_n is n dimensional torus. **Definition 1.** The set $T_n = \{x = (x_1, x_2, ..., x_n); x_k = \{t_k\}, t_k \in R\}$ is called n dimensional torus, where $\{t_k\} = t_k - [t_k]$, i.e. fractional part of t_k [1].

Definition 2. The space $\tilde{C}^{(m)}(T_n)$ is defined as closure of the set of finite Fourier series

$$\sum_{\gamma} \widehat{f}[\gamma] e^{-2\pi i (\gamma, x)} = f(x)$$

in semi norm

$$\left\| f(x) | \tilde{C}^{(m)}(T_n) \right\| = \max_{x \in T_n} \left| \sum_{\gamma \neq 0} |\gamma|^m \hat{f}[\gamma] e^{-2\pi i(\gamma, x)} \right|,$$

where $(\gamma, x) = \sum_{k=1}^{n} \gamma_k x_k$ and $\widehat{f}[\gamma] = \langle f(x), e^{2\pi i(\gamma, x)} \rangle = \int_{T_n} f(x) e^{2\pi i(\gamma, x)} dx$, i.e. are Fourier coefficients of the function

cients.

We consider the following cubature formula

$$\int_{T_n} P(x)f(x)dx \approx \sum_{\lambda=1}^N C_\lambda f(x^{(\lambda)}),\tag{1}$$

where P(x) is the weight function, C_{λ} is the coefficients and $x^{(\lambda)}$ is the nodes of cubature formula (1).

To the cubature formula (1) we correspond the following generalized function

$$\ell(x) = P(x)\varepsilon_{T_n}(x) - \sum_{\lambda=1}^N C_\lambda \delta(x - x^{(\lambda)}).$$
(2)

And we call it by the error functional. Here $\delta(x)$ is Dirac's delta function, $\varepsilon_{T_n}(x)$ is the characteristic function of the torus T_n .

The following holds

Theorem. The norm of the error functional (2) of cubature formula (1) in the space $\tilde{C}^{(m)}(T_n)$ has the form

$$\left\|\ell(x)|\tilde{C}^{(m)*}(T_n)\right\| = \inf_{\chi} \int_{T_n} \left| \sum_{\gamma \neq 0} \frac{\widehat{P}[\gamma] - \sum_{\lambda=1}^N C_\lambda e^{-2\pi i(\gamma, x^{(\lambda)})}}{|\gamma|^m} \cdot e^{2\pi i(\gamma, x)} + \chi \right| dx,$$
(3)

where χ is a constant.

References

[1] S.L. Sobolev. Introduction to the Theory of Cubature Formulas // Moscow, Nauka, 1974.





THE INEQUALITIES OF HARDY-LITTLEWOOD TYPE FOR THE FOURIER COEFFICIENTS

Aigerim Kopezhanova L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:Kopezhanova@yandex.ru

In this work some inequalities of Hardy-Littlewood type with respect to a regular system for the generalized Lorentz spaces $\Lambda_q(\omega)$ are obtained.

Let $0 < q \leq \infty$ and let ω be a nonnegative function on [0, 1]. The generalized Lorentz spaces $\Lambda_q(\omega)$ consists of the mesurable functions f on [0,1] such that: $||f||_{\Lambda_q}(\omega) < \infty$, where

$$\|f\|_{\Lambda_q(\omega)} := \begin{cases} \left(\int_0^1 \left(f^*(t) t\omega\left(\frac{1}{t}\right) \right)^q \frac{dt}{t} \right)^{\frac{1}{q}} & \text{for} \quad 0 < q < \infty, \\ \sup_{0 \le t \le 1} f^*(t) t\omega\left(\frac{1}{t}\right) & \text{for} \quad q = \infty, \end{cases}$$

where $f^{*}(t)$ is the nondecreasing rearrangement of the function |f(t)|.

Let the function f be periodic with period 1 and integrable on [0,1] and let $\Phi = \{\varphi_k\}_{k=1}^{\infty}$ be an orthonormal system. The numbers

$$a_k = a_k(f) = \int_0^1 f(x)\overline{\varphi_k(x)}dx, \ k \in \mathbb{N},$$

are called the Fourier coefficients of the function f with respect to the system $\Phi = \{\varphi_k\}_{k=1}^{\infty}$.

Let $\delta > 0$ and $\omega(t)$ be a nonnegative function on $[0,\infty)$. We define the following class

$$A = \bigcup_{\delta > 0} A_{\delta} = \bigcup_{\delta > 0} \{ \omega(t) : \omega(t) t^{-\delta} \nearrow \text{ and } \omega(t) t^{-1+\delta} \searrow \}.$$

Theorem 1. Let $\Phi = {\varphi_k}_{k=1}^{\infty}$ be a regular system and let $1 \le q \le \infty$. If $\omega(t)$ belongs to the class A, then

$$\left(\sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \left(\overline{a}_k k \omega(\frac{1}{k})\right)^q \frac{1}{k}\right)^{\frac{1}{q}} \le c_1 \|f\|_{\Lambda_q(\omega)},$$

where $\overline{a}_k = \frac{1}{k} \left| \sum_{m=1}^k a_m(f) \right|$, $a_k(f)$ are the Fourier coefficients with respect to the system Φ .

Theorem 2. Let $\Phi = \{\varphi_k\}_{k=1}^{\infty}$ be a regular system, $f \stackrel{a.e.}{=} \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} a_k \varphi_k$ and $1 \le q \le \infty$. If $\omega(t)$ belongs to the class A, then

$$\left(\int_0^1 \left(\overline{f(t)}\omega(t)\right)^q \frac{dt}{t}\right)^{\frac{1}{q}} \le c_2 \left(\sum_{k=1}^\infty \left(a_k^* k\omega(\frac{1}{k})\right)^q \frac{1}{k}\right)^{\frac{1}{q}},$$

where $\overline{f(t)} = \frac{1}{t} \left| \int_{0}^{t} f(s) ds \right|$. The definition of the regular system Φ was presented in [1].

References

[1] E.D. Nursultanov. On the coefficients of multiple Fourier series from L_p -spaces // Izv. Ross Akad. Nauk Ser. Mat., Vol.64, No.1, 2000, pp. 95-122. [In Russian]; Translation in Izv. Math., Vol.64, No.1, 2000, pp. 93-120.





NUMBER OF EIGENVALUES OF THE FAMILY OF FRIEDRICHS MODEL UNDER ONE PERTURBATION

Sh.H.Kurbonov

 $Samarkand\ State\ University,\ Samarkand,\ Uzbekistan$

e-mail:rru56@mail.ru

Let \mathbb{T}^d be the d-dimensional torus and $L_2(\mathbb{T}^d)$ be the Hilbert space of square-integrable functions on \mathbb{T}^d . The Friedrichs model operator $h_{\lambda}(p), p \in \mathbb{T}^d$ is of the form [1]:

$$h_{\lambda}(p) = h_0(p) - \lambda v$$

The non perturbed operator $h_0(k)$ on $L_2(\mathbb{T}^d)$ is a multiplication operator by the function $\omega(p,q)$

$$(h_0(p)f)(q) = \omega_p(q) f(p),$$

the perturbation v is an integral operator of rank one

$$(vf)(p) = \varphi(p) \int_{\mathbb{T}^d} \varphi(t) f(t) dt,$$

where $\omega_p(q) := \omega(p,q)$ and $\varphi(q)$ are analytic functions on $(\mathbb{T}^d)^2$ and \mathbb{T}^d respectively. The essential spectrum $\sigma_{ess}(h_\lambda(p))$ of $h_\lambda(p)$ fills the segment $[\min_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \omega_p(q), \max_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \omega_p(q)]$. Let d = 1, 2. We assume that

there exists such open connected set $\mathcal{G} \subset \mathbb{T}^d$ that for any $p \in \mathcal{G}$ there exists a unique non degenerated minimum $q_0(p)$ of the function $\omega_p(q)$. We remark that if $\varphi(q_0(p)) = 0$ then there exists

$$\lambda(p) = \left(\int_{\mathbb{T}^d} \varphi^2(s) \ (w_p(s) - m(p))^{-1} \, ds\right)^{-1} > 0.$$

where $m(p) = \min_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \omega_p(q)$, and if $\varphi(q_0(p)) \neq 0$, then we set $\lambda(p) = 0$. Then the following results are hold true:

- (i) if $\lambda > \lambda(p)$ then the operator $h_{\lambda}(p), p \in \mathcal{G}$ has a unique eigenvalue $E(\lambda, p) \in (\infty, m(p))$.
- (ii) If $\varphi(q_0(p)) = 0$, $\nabla \varphi(q_0(p)) \neq 0$ then $\lambda(p) > 0$ and for any $\lambda \in (0, \lambda(p))$, the operator $h_{\lambda}(p)$, $p \in \mathcal{G}$ has none eigenvalue in $(-\infty, m(p)]$;
- (iii) If $\varphi(q_0(p)) = 0$, $\nabla \varphi(q_0(p)) \neq 0$ and $\lambda = \lambda(p)$, then the equation

$$h_{\lambda}(p)f = m(p)f, \qquad p \in \mathcal{G}$$

has non-zero solution

$$f = \frac{\lambda(p)\varphi(q)}{\omega_p(q) - m(p)} \notin L_1(\mathbb{T}^d) \setminus L_2(\mathbb{T}^d)$$

(iv) If $\varphi(q_0(p)) = 0$, $\nabla \varphi(q_0(p)) = 0$, then the number $z = m(p) = w_p(q_0(p))$ is eigenvalue of $h_\lambda(p)$, $p \in \mathcal{G}$ and the corresponding eigenfunction has a form

$$f(q) = C \frac{\lambda(p)\varphi(q)}{w_p(q) - m(p)}$$

where $C \neq 0$ – the normalization coefficient.

Notice that in [1] the existence of eigenvalues of the operator h_{λ} have been studied for $d \geq 3$.

Albeverio Sergio, Lakaev N. Saidakhmat, Muminov I. Zahriddin. The threshold effects for a family of Friedrichs models under rank one perturbations // J. Math. Anal. Appl. Vol.330, 2007, No.2, pp. 1152-1168.





NECESSARY AND SUFFICIENT CONDITIONS OF GEODESIC OF THE IMAGE OF THE GIVEN NET IN THE MAPPING OF P- DIMENSIONAL SURFACES OF N-DIMENSIONAL EUCLIDEAN SPACE

Gulbadan Matieva Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:gulbadan_57@mail.ru

Let F, F' be p-dimensional surfaces of Euclidean space E_n

$$\Re = (X, \overrightarrow{e}_i, \overrightarrow{e}_\alpha) \qquad (X \in F, i, j, k = 1, ..., p; \qquad \alpha = p + 1, ..., n)$$

is moving frame on F, where $\overrightarrow{e}_i \in T_p(X)$ - tangent vector space of F, $\overrightarrow{e}_\alpha \in N_{n-p}(X)$ - orthogonally complementary vector space to $T_p(X)$. Derivation formulas of the frame \Re are following:

$$d\overrightarrow{x} = \omega^{i}\overrightarrow{e}_{i}, \qquad d\overrightarrow{e}_{i} = \omega_{i}^{j}\overrightarrow{e}_{j} + \omega_{i}^{\alpha}\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha}, \qquad d\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha} = \omega_{\alpha}^{i}\overrightarrow{e}_{i} + \omega_{\alpha}^{\beta}\overrightarrow{e}_{\beta}$$

differential forms ω^i , ω^j_i , ω^{α}_i are satisfied structure equations of Euclidean space. It is defined the differential mapping $f: F \to F'$ so that

$$f(X) = Y \in F', \ Y = F' \cap (X, \overrightarrow{e}_{p+1}) \cdot \Re' = (Y, \overrightarrow{a}_i, \ \overrightarrow{a}_\alpha)$$

- moving frame on F', where $\overrightarrow{a}_i = p_i^j \overrightarrow{e}_j + p_i^\beta \overrightarrow{e}_\beta$, $\overrightarrow{a}_\alpha = \overrightarrow{e}_\alpha$. Derivation formulas of the frame \Re' are following:

$$d\overrightarrow{y} = \omega^{j}\overrightarrow{a}_{j}, \ d\overrightarrow{a}_{i} = \overline{\omega}_{i}^{j}\overrightarrow{a}_{j} + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{\alpha}\overrightarrow{a}_{\alpha}, \ d\overrightarrow{a}_{\alpha} = d\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha} = \overline{\omega}_{\alpha}^{i}\overrightarrow{a}_{i} + \overline{\omega}_{\alpha}^{\beta}\overrightarrow{a}_{\beta}.$$

It is find the connection between differential form ω_i^j , ω_i^{α} and $\overline{\omega}_i^j$, $\overline{\omega}_i^{\alpha}$:

$$\overline{\omega}_i^j = \widetilde{p}_k^j (dp_i^k + p_i^l \omega_l^k + p_i^\alpha \omega_\alpha^k),$$

$$\begin{split} \overline{\omega}_i^j &= dp_i^\alpha + p_i^\ell \omega_\ell^\alpha + p_i^\beta \omega_\beta^\alpha - p_\ell^\alpha \, \widetilde{p}_k^\ell (dp_i^k + p_i^\ell \omega_\ell^k + p_i^\beta \omega_\beta^k), \\ & p_i^j \widetilde{p}_k^i = \delta_k^j. \end{split}$$

The necessary and sufficient conditions of geodesic [1] of the image of given net $\sum_p \subset F$ are proved.

References

[1] V.T. Bazylev. About many-dimensional nets in Euclidian space // Litovskiy Mathematical collection, Vol.6, No.4 1996, pp. 475-491.





ON THE FOURIER-WALSH COEFFITIENTS OF THE CONTINUOUS FUNCTIONS OF TWO VERIABLES

D.T. Matin, Zh.Zh. Sirnebaeva

Faculty of mechanics and mathematics, L.N.Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:D.Matin@mail.ru, m.janat@mail.ru

In the work the conditions are given for Fourier-Walsh coefficients of the continuus functions. Let $w_k(x)$ be a Walsh system by enumeration Paley, $w_{m,n} = w_m(x)w_n(y)$. Denote by $\hat{f}(k_1, k_2)$ the Fourier-Walsh coefficients of f.

Theorem 1. Let f be continuous function on $[0,1]^2$ and

$$\lim_{\substack{p \to \infty \\ r \to \infty}} 2^{p+r} \sum_{\nu=p}^{\infty} \sum_{l=r}^{\infty} R_{\nu l} = 0,$$

where

$$R_{\nu l} = \sum_{k_1=2^{\nu}}^{2^{\nu+1}-2} \sum_{k_2=2^{l}}^{2^{l+1}-2} |f(k_1,k_2) - (k_1+1,k_2+1)| = 0.$$

Then $f(u, \nu) = const$ on $[0, 1]^2$.

Corollary 1.Let f be continuous function on $[0,1]^2$ and

$$\lim_{\substack{\nu \to \infty \\ r \to \infty}} 2^{\nu+r} \sum_{k_1=2^{\nu}}^{\infty} \sum_{k_2=2^r}^{\infty} |f(k_1, k_2) - f(k_1+1, k_2+1)| = 0.$$

Then $f(u, \nu) = const$ on $[0, 1]^2$.

Theorem 2. Let f be continuous function on $[0,1]^2$ and for Fourier-Walsh coefficients the conditions

$$f(2^{k_1}; 2^{k_2}) \ge f(2^{k_1} + 1; 2^{k_2} + 1) \ge \dots \ge f(2^{k_1} - 1; 2^{k_2} - 1)$$

are satisfied $k_1, k_2 \in N$ and

$$\lim_{\substack{\nu \to \infty \\ r \to \infty}} 2^{\nu+r} \sum_{k=2^{\nu}}^{\infty} \sum_{l=2^{r}}^{\infty} |f(k_1, k_2) - f(k_1 + 1, k_2 + 1)| = 0.$$

Then $f(u, \nu) = const$ on $[0, 1]^2$.

Corollary 2.Let f be continuous function on $[0,1]^2$ and $\hat{f}(n_1;n_2) \ge \hat{f}(k_1;k_2), \forall n_1 \ge k_1, \forall n_2 \ge k_2$ and

$$\lim_{\substack{p \to \infty \\ r \to \infty}} 2^{k+r} \hat{f}\left(2^k, 2^r\right) = 0.$$

Then $f(u, \nu) = const$ on $[0, 1]^2$

In the case of one variable the similar results were proved in [1].

References

 J.E. Coury. Walsh series with coefficients tending monotonically to zero // Pacif. J.Math., 1974, Vol.54, No.2. pp. 1-16.





ON THE INTEGRABILITY WITH WEIGHT OF DOUBLE TRIGONOMETRIC SERIES WITH COEFFICIENTS FROM THE $R_0^+ BVS^2$

Zh.B.Mukanov

L.N.Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:mukanovj@mail.ru

In the present work we solve the following problem: to find necessary and sufficient conditions for the *p*th-power integrabality of the sums of double sine and cosine series with weight γ . We consider the following series:

$$g(x,y) = \sum_{j=1}^{\infty} \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \lambda_{jk} \sin jx \sin ky, \ f(x,y) = \sum_{j=1}^{\infty} \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \lambda_{jk} \cos jx \cos ky,$$

Definition. The zero sequence of positive numbers $\{a_{jk}\}$ belongs $R_0^+ BVS^2$, if $a_{jk} \to 0$ by $j+k \to \infty$ and

$$\sum_{j=m}^{\infty} \sum_{k=n}^{\infty} |\Delta_{11}a_{jk}| \le Ca_{mn}, \ m, n \in N; \\ \sum_{j=m}^{\infty} |\Delta_{10}a_{jk}| \le Ca_{mk} \ \forall k \in N; \\ \sum_{k=n}^{\infty} |\Delta_{01}a_{jk}| \le Ca_{jn} \ \forall j \in N;$$

where $\Delta_{11}a_{jk} = a_{jk} - a_{j+1,k} - a_{j,k+1} + a_{j+1,k+1}$, $\Delta_{10}a_{jk} = a_{jk} - a_{j+1,k}$, $\Delta_{01}a_{jk} = a_{jk} - a_{j,k+1}$. Let $\gamma := \{\gamma_{mn}\}$ a sequence of positive numbers. We define the function $\gamma(x, y)$ by the sequence

Let $\gamma := \{\gamma_{mn}\}$ a sequence of positive numbers. We define the function $\gamma(x, y)$ by the sequence $\{\gamma_{mn}\}$ as follows: $\gamma\left(\frac{\pi}{m}, \frac{\pi}{n}\right) = \gamma_{mn} \ \forall m, n \in \mathbb{N}$, and there exist positive constants A and B such that

$$A\gamma_{mn} \le \gamma(x,y) \le B\gamma_{m+1,n+1} \ \forall x \in \left(\frac{\pi}{m+1}, \frac{\pi}{m}\right) y \in \left(\frac{\pi}{n+1}, \frac{\pi}{n}\right).$$

Theorem. Suppose that $\{\lambda_{jk}\}R_0^+BVS^2$ and $1 \le p < \infty$.

A) If the sequence $\{\gamma_{jk}\}$ satisfies the conditions: there exist $\varepsilon_1, \varepsilon_2 > 0$ such that the sequence $\{\gamma_{jk} \cdot j^{-1+\varepsilon_1}\}$ is almost decreasing for any k, and the sequence $\{\gamma_{jk} \cdot k^{-1+\varepsilon_2}\}$ is almost decreasing for any j, then the condition

$$\sum_{j=1}^{\infty} \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \gamma_{jk} \cdot (jk)^{p-2} \lambda_{jk}^{p} < \infty$$
(1)

s sufficient for the validity of the condition

$$\gamma(x,y)|g(x,y)|^p \in L(0,\pi)^2.$$
 (2)

B) If the sequence $\{\gamma_{jk}\}\$ satisfies the conditions: there exist $\varepsilon_3, \varepsilon_4 > 0$ such that the sequence $\{\gamma_{jk} \cdot j^{p-1-\varepsilon_3}\}\$ is almost increasing for any k, and the sequence $\{\gamma_{jk} \cdot k^{p-1-\varepsilon_4}\}\$ is almost increasing for any m, then condition (1) is necessary for the validity of condition (2).

The similar theorem is true and for double cosine series, but with an additional condition

$$\sum_{j=m}^{\infty} \sum_{k=n}^{\infty} \left| \frac{\lambda_{jk}}{jk} - \frac{\lambda_{j+1,k}}{j+1,k} \right| \le \frac{C\lambda_{mn}}{mn}.$$

References

[1] S.Yu. Tikhonov. On the integrability of Trigonometric Series // Mat. Notes., Vol.78, No.3, 2005, pp. 437-442.





NONSMOOTH IMPLICIT FUNCTIONS AND ITS PROPERTIES¹

Gulden Y. Murzabekova Kazakh Agrotechnical University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:guldenmur07@mail.ru

Our aim is to study the problem on the existence of nonsmooth implicit functions and their properties for some types of nonsmooth functions. A new tool of nonsmooth analysis - upper and lower exhausters - is employed. The notion of exhausters was introduced by V. Demyanov (1999) and closely related to exhaustive families of upper convex and lower concave approximations proposed by V. Demyanov and A. Rubinov (1982).

Let $f_i(x, y)$ $(i \in 1 : n)$ be continuous on $S = S_1 \times S_2 \subset \mathbb{R}^m \times \mathbb{R}^n$, where $S_1 \subset \mathbb{R}^m$ and $S_2 \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ are open sets. Put $f = (f_1, \ldots, f_n)$.

Consider the system

$$f_i(x,y) = 0 \quad \forall \ i \in 1:n.$$

$$\tag{1}$$

In the nonsmooth case it makes sense to introduce a directional implicit function. Fix a direction $g \in \mathbb{R}^m$, $g \neq 0$, and consider the system

$$f_i(x_0 + g, y) = 0 \quad \forall \ i \in 1 : n.$$
 (2)

We say that there exists an implicit function in the direction g if $\alpha_0 > 0$ and a vector function $y(\alpha)$ given on $[0, \alpha_0]$ exists such that

$$y(\alpha)y_0, \quad f(x_0 + \alpha g, y(\alpha)) = 0_n \quad \forall \ \alpha \in [0, \alpha_0].$$
(3)

Assume that all functions $f_i(z)$ are directionally differentiatable at a point $z_0 = [x_0, y_0]$ and directional derivative $\tilde{h}_i(\eta) = f'_i(z_0, \eta)$, where $\eta = [g, q] \in \mathbb{R}^{m+n}$ continuous as function of η and bounded from above. Then from (3) the following expansions hold

$$f_i(z_0 + \alpha \eta) = f_i(z_0) + \alpha h_i(\eta) + o_{\eta i}(\alpha), \tag{4}$$

where

$$\tilde{h}_i(\eta) = \min_{\tilde{C}_i \in \tilde{E}_i^*} \max_{v \in \tilde{C}_i}(v, \eta), \quad \frac{o_{\eta i}(\alpha)}{\alpha} \underset{\alpha \downarrow 0}{\longrightarrow} 0 \quad \forall \ \eta \in \mathbb{R}^{m+n}, \forall i \in 1:n,$$
(5)

 \tilde{E}_i^* is an upper exhauster of function \tilde{h}_i . (6)

Note that exhausters exist for any directionally differentiable function whose directional derivatives are continuous as functions of direction. For non-Lipschitz quasidifferentiable functions differentiable in directions it is sometimes possible to find an implicit function with the help of exhausters. However, even in the cases when functions are Lipschitz or quasidifferentiable it is easier to conduct a research with the help of exhausters since an exhauster can turn out to be "'smaller"' than Clark's subdifferential and quasidifferential.

References

 G. Murzabekova. Exhausters and implicit functions in nonsmooth systems// Optimization, Vol.59, No.1, 2010, pp. 105-113.

 $^{^1}$ $\,$ This research is supported by the Russian Foundation for Fundamental Studies (RFFI) under Grant No. 09-01-00360.





ON A GENERALIZATION OF THE FREUDENTHAL'S THEOREM

D.K. Musaev

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:davlatali52@mail.ru

In this paper for superparacompact complete metrizable spaces the Freudenthal's theorem for compact irreducible standard polyhedric representation is generalized. Furthermore, for superparacompact metric spaces are reinforced: 1) the Morita's theorem about universality of the product $Q^{\infty} \times B(\tau)$ of Hilbert cube Q^{∞} to generalized Baire space $B(\tau)$ of the weight τ in the space of all strongly metrizable spaces of weight $\leq \tau$; 2) the Nagata's theorem about universality of the product $\Phi^n \times B(\tau)$ of universal n- dimensional compact Φ^n to $B(\tau)$ in the space of all strongly metrizable spaces $\leq \tau$ and dimension $dim X \leq n$.

Theorem 1. Any n-dimensional complete metric superparacompact [1] space X is limit of inverse sequence $S = \{\tilde{K}_i, \pi_i^{i+1}\}, i = 1, 2, ..., from n-dimensional polyhedrons <math>\tilde{K}_i$, being bodies of standard triangulation [2] K_i decomposing to discrete sum of compact polyhedrons; in addition projections π_i^{i+1} are simplicial [2] with respect to K_{i+1} and some triangulation K_i^* of the polyhedron \tilde{K}_i , being subdivision [2] of the triangulation K_i . Every projection $\pi_i : X \to \tilde{K}_i$ is irreducible [2] with respect to triangulation K_i , i = 1, 2, ...

This theorem is generalization of the Freudenthal's theorem [3].

Theorem 2. For metrizable space X following statements are equivalent: a) X is superparacompact complete metrizable space of weight $\leq \tau$; b) X is perfectly mapping into Baire space $B(\tau)$ of the weight τ ; c) X is closed included into product $B(\tau) \times Q^{\infty}$ of Baire space $B(\tau)$ of the weight τ on Hilbert cub Q^{∞} .

We note, that theorem 2 is extension of the theorem Morita [4] about universality of the product $B(\tau) \times Q^{\infty}$ in the class of all strongly metrizable space of the weight $\leq \tau$.

Theorem 3. For Hausdorff space X following statement are equivalent: a) X is superparacompact (complete) metrizable space of the weight $\leq \tau$ and dim $X \leq n$; b) X is closed imbedded into product (Baire space $B(\tau)$ of the weight τ) of 0-dimensional in the sense dim of metrizable space of the weight τ onto universal n-dimensional compact Φ^n .

Theorem 3 is expansion of the Nagata's theorem [5] about embedding *n*-dimensional strongly metrizable space in $B(\tau) \times \Phi^n$ to the case superparacomact.

References

[2] P.S. Aleksandrov, B.A. Pasynkov. Introduction to the Theory of Dimensionality // M.: Nauka, 1973.

- [3] H. Freudenthal. Entwicklungen von Raumen und ihren Gruppen // Compositio Mat. Vol.4, 1937, pp. 145-234.
- [4] K. Morita. Normal families and dimension theory in metric spaces // Math. Ann., Vol.128, No.4, 1954, pp. 350-362.
- [5] J. Nagata. Note on dimension theory for metric spaces // Fundam. Math., Vol.45, No.2, 1958, pp. 143-181.

^[1] D.K. Musaev. On superparacompact spaces // Reports of Uzbek Academy of Sciences, 1983, No.2, pp. 5-6.




THE THEOREM ON COMPACTNESS OF THE EMBEDDING OPERATORS IN WEIGHT CLASSES OF THE ABSTRACT FUNCTIONS DEFINED IN DOMAIN

G.K.Musaev

Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

The weight abstract anisotropic space $W_{p,g}^l(\Omega; E_0, E)$ arises occurs by the investigation of the boundary problems for the partial derivative differential-operational equations. From this viewpoint there is a necessity of study of smoothness of the mixed derivative functions from space $W_{p,g}^l(\Omega; E_0, E)$ depending as on differential, weight properties and also on the degree of summation p, and on the smoothness of interpolation space $[E_0, E]_{\theta}, 0 \le \theta \le 1$.

In this work the theorem of compactness of embedding operators in the sence of theory of interpolation is proved in the case $=H E_0 = H_0$, where H_0 and H are Hilbert spaces.

Let $g_i(x)i = \overline{0,n}$ be positive measurable functions in any domain $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^n$. Let then H_0 and H be Hilbert spaces, H_0 be maps into H continuously and densely. Through $[H_0, H]_{\theta}, 0 < \theta \leq 1$ we will designate the interpolation spaces between H_0 and H. $\Omega_N = \Omega \setminus \Omega^N$, where $\Omega^N = \{x; x \in \Omega, |x| \leq N, N > 0\}$. Let $Q_y = \{x; x \in \Omega^N, |x_i - y_i| \leq g_i(y), i = \overline{1, n}\}$ and also there is a constant A > 0 such, that $A^{-1}g_i(y) \leq g_i(x) \leq c \cdot g_i(y), \forall x \in Q_y, i = \overline{0, n}$.

From the corresponding reasonings, which was leaded at the proving the theorem on the continuity of the embedding and from the definition of interpolation spaces the following theorem is proved.

Theorem. Let $g_i(x)$ satisfies $\int_{\Omega} g_i^{\frac{-1}{p-1}}(x) dx < \infty$, $\int_{\Omega} g_o(x) g_j^{-1}(x)]^{1/p} dx < \infty$, $i = \overline{0, n}, k = \overline{0, n}$

 $\overline{1,n}, \ 1 is compact.$





ON TWO NEW TYPES OF CONVERGENCE OF DENSITIES

Kairat T. Mynbaev

International School of Economics, Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kairat_mynbayev@yahoo.com

Let g be a summable function on R and consider the family $\{\lambda g(\lambda t) : \lambda > 0\}$. It is well known that, as $\lambda \to \infty$, this family converges to a point mass at zero: if ϕ is continuous and bounded on R, then

$$\int_{R} \phi(t)\lambda g(\lambda t)dt \to \phi(0) \int_{R} g(t)dt, \ \lambda \to \infty.$$
(1)

(A more general case $\int_R \phi(t+x)\lambda g(\lambda t)dt$ reduces to this one by way of a linear transformation.) We consider the question of what happens in the other limit case, when $\lambda \to 0$. This question arises in testing hypotheses of autocorrelation in linear regression models. We show that the answer involves the generalized mean of ϕ over R defined by

$$M\phi = \lim_{r \to \infty} \frac{1}{2r} \int_{-r}^{r} \phi(t) dt.$$
 (2)

The counterpart of (1) happens to be

$$\int_{R} \phi(t)\lambda g(\lambda t)dt \to M\phi \int_{R} g(t)dt, \ \lambda \to 0.$$
(3)

In fact, applications require a more complex result, when the function g has many arguments and the above transformation with $\lambda \to 0$ is applied with respect to some of them. For simplicity, suppose that n = 2. Then the family to consider is $\{\lambda g(\lambda y_1, y_2) : \lambda > 0\}$ and (3) can be used to prove

$$\int_{R} [\lambda \int_{R} \phi(y_1, y_2) g(\lambda y_1, y_2) dy_1] dy_2 \to \int_{R} [(M_1 \phi)(t_2) \int_{R} g(t_1, t_2) dt_1] dt_2, \tag{4}$$

where ϕ is bounded and continuous on R^2 and $M_1\phi$ denotes the result of application of (2) to ϕ with respect to the first argument. The right sides of (3) and (4) determine distributions supported at infinity because, as one can show, they vanish on all continuous functions with compact support. We prove general (multidimensional) versions of (3) and (4) for g summable and spherically symmetric. Such results allow us to show that the format of the main statements from [1] and [2] is wrong if probability content is used for measuring the rejection region.

We also introduce a different type of convergence, in which a set of points where the values of the density are close to the density maximum is used to measure the rejection region. Under this other type of convergence the format of Martellosio's statement becomes correct.

- F. Martellosio. Power properties of invariant tests for spatial autocorrelation in linear regression // Econometric Theory, Vol.26, 2010, pp. 152-186.
- [2] F. Martellosio. Testing for spatial autocorrelation: the regressors that make the power disappear // Econometric Reviews (forthcoming).





THE BASICITY PROPERTY OF SINES AND COSINES SYSTEMS IN WEIGHT SPACES

Tofig I. Najafov Nakhchevan State University, Nakhchevan, Azerbaijan e-mail:tofiq-necefov@mail.ru

Let $L_{p,\omega}^{0} \equiv L_{p,\omega}(0,\pi), \, \omega(t)$ be a weight function of the form

$$\omega(t) \equiv \prod_{k=0}^{r} |t - \tau_k|^{p\alpha_k}, \qquad (1)$$

where $0 = \tau_0 < \tau_1 < ... < \tau_r = \pi$, $\{\alpha_k\}_0^r \subset R$. Let the inegualities

$$-1 - \frac{1}{p} < \alpha_0 < 2 - \frac{1}{p}, \ -1 - \frac{1}{p} < \alpha_r < 2 - \frac{1}{p}, -\frac{1}{p} < \alpha_k < \frac{1}{q}, \ k = \overline{0, r - 1},$$
(2)

be fulfilled. Then the following statements are valid.

Statement 1. Let the weight function $\omega(t)$ be defined by expression (1). The system of sines $\{\sin nt\}_{n \in \mathbb{N}}$ is minimal in $L^0_{p,\omega}$, if the inequalities (2) are fulfilled. It is complete in $L^0_{p,\omega}$, if the inequalities

$$\alpha_k > -\frac{1}{p} , \ k = \overline{0, r} , \tag{3}$$

are fulfilled. Moreover, it forms a basis in $L^0_{p,\omega}$, if the inequalities

$$-\frac{1}{p} < \alpha_k < \frac{1}{q}, \ k = \overline{0, m}.$$
(4)

hold.

Statement 2. Let the weight function $\omega(t)$ be defined by expression (1). The system of cosines $1 \cup \{\cos nt\}_{n \in \mathbb{N}}$ is minimal (forms a basis) in $L^0_{p,\omega}$, if the inequalities (4) are fulfilled. It is complete in $L^0_{p,\omega}$, if the inequalities (3) holds.

- E.I. Moiseev. On basicity of system of sines and cosines in weight space // Differen. Uravnenia, 1998, Vol.34, No.1, pp. 40-44.
- B.T. Bilalov, S.G. Veliev. Bases from the eigenfunctions of two discountinuous differential operators // Differen. Uravnenia, 2006, Vol.42, No.9, pp. 190-192.





ON EXISTENCE OF z_u ULTRAFILTERS

A.A. Chekeev, G.O. Namazova Kyrqyz National University, Bishkek, Kyrqyzstan e-mail:asyl.ch.top@mail.ru, guliza_n@mail.ru

The set $C^*(uX)$ of all uniformly continuous bounded functions of uniform space uX([1], [2], [3])with respect of point wise addition and multiplication form a commutative ring with unit, where for unit stands a function which maps all elements in $1 \in \mathbb{R}$ and ring operations are defined as following: (f+g)(x) = f(x) + g(x) and (fg)(x) = f(x)g(x) for any $f, g \in C^*(uX), f(x) \equiv 1$ and $x \in X$.

The set $f^{-1}(0) \subseteq X$ for $f \in C^*(uX)$ is called uniformly zero set and is denoted as $\mathbf{Z}(f) = f^{-1}(0) =$ $\{x \in X : f(x) = 0\}$. By $\mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ we denote the set of all uniformly zero sets. We can consider Z as mapping of the ring $C^*(uX)$ onto the of all uniform zero sets of uniform space uX. Thus, $\mathbf{Z}: C^*(uX) \to \mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ and $\mathbf{Z}(f) \in \mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ for any $f \in C^*(uX)$.

Ideal of the ring $C^*(uX)$ is called a proper subring I of the ring $C^*(uX)$ with the following property: if $f \in I$ and $g \in C^*(uX)$, then $gf \in I$. Any ideal is contained by inclusion in some maximal ideal.

Definition 1. Nonempty collection $\mathcal{F} \subseteq \mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ is called as z_u - filter on uX provided the following are fulfilled:

 $\begin{array}{ll} 1^0. & \emptyset \notin \mathfrak{F} ; \\ 2^0. & if \ Z_1, Z_2 \in \mathfrak{F} \ then \ Z_1 \cap Z_2 \in \mathfrak{F} ; \\ 3^0. & if \ Z \in \mathfrak{F}, \ Z' \in \mathfrak{Z} \ (uX) \quad and \quad Z \subset Z' \ , \ then \ Z' \in \mathfrak{F}. \end{array}$

Maximal z_u – filter is called z_u – *ultrafilter*. Thus, z_u – ultrafilter is a maximal subfamily of $\mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ possessed centered property.

Theorem 1. If I is an ideal in $C^*(uX)$, then the family $\mathbf{Z}(I) = \{\mathbf{Z}(f) : f \in I\}$ is z_u -filter on uX. Conversely, of \mathfrak{F} is z_u -filter on uX, then $\mathbf{Z}^{-1}(\mathfrak{F}) = \{f : \mathbf{Z}(f) \in \mathfrak{F}\}$ is ideal in $C^*(uX)$.

Theorem 2. Each z_u -centered family in $\mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ is contained is some z_u -ultrafilter.

Theorem 3. (a) if M is a maximal ideal in $C^*(uX)$, then $\mathbf{Z}(M)$ is z_u -ultrafilter in uX.

(b) If \mathfrak{F} is z_u -ultrafilter on uX, then $Z^{-1}(\mathfrak{F})$ is a maximal ideal in $C^*(uX)$. Corollary 1. A mapping $Z: C^*(uX) \to \mathfrak{Z}(uX)$ is a bijection between the set of all maximal ideals of the ring $C^*(uX)$ and the set of all z_u -urltafilters in uX.

If follows from Kuratovskii- Zorn' principle ([1]).

- [1] A.V. Arhangelskii, V.I. Ponomarev. Basics of the General Topology in the Problems // M.Nauka, 1974 (in Russian).
- J.R. Isbell. Uniform Spaces // Providence, 1964.
- M.G. Charalambus. Further theory and application of covering dimension of uniform spaces // Czech. Math. Journal, [3]Vol.116, No.46, 1991, pp. 378-394.





TO THE PROBLEM OF DETERMINATION OF "INNER PROPERTIES" OF GRIDS FOR EFFECTIVE RECONSTRUCTION

N.T.Nauryzbayev, N.Temirgaliyev L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:nngmath@mail.ru

Let a function f describes some process in a domain Ω . Let also in nodes $\xi_1, ..., \xi_N$ from Ω be devices. The question arises whether it is possible to describe global properties of f by inner properties of this finite sequence (grid) $\xi_1, ..., \xi_N$ and values of f on this grid $f(\xi_1), ..., f(\xi_N)$.

Let us give some global properties necessary to be described: this is the problem of approximate calculation of an integral, then the problem of approximate representation of a function on entire set of, and finally discretization of solutions of the partial differential equations with initial and boundary conditions. A closer examination of the problem immediately shows the need for many a priori conditions.

Of course, to start learning about the general problem posed in the most natural is the special theory - the theory of uniform distribution of points on the multidimensional unit cube dedicated to quantifying *inner properties* of the complex from a specified number of points.

Following results are obtained:

- In terms of the behavior of nodes and weights of quadrature formulas written out a criterion for its effectiveness in the class of Korobov E_s^r .
- Two-side estimate to within constant, the rate of decrease of the discrepancy of the Smolyak's grid is obtained.
- It was established that the rate of uniform distribution grid on the unit cube by itself does not characterize the effectiveness of the corresponding quadrature formula with the same grid and arbitrary weights on the the class of Korobov E_s^r . As it turned out, also plays a significant role "structure" of the grid.
- We write the conditions on the grid with rational coordinates, which do not exclude an effective remedy for the class of of integrals Korobov E_s^r .

- N. Nauryzbaev, N. Temirgaliev. On the order of discrepancy of the smolyak grid // Mathematical Notes, Vol.85, No.6, 2009, pp. 897-901.
- [2] N.Zh. Nauryzbaev. N. Temirgaliev. On the quality of grids in the reconstruction problems // Proceedings of the International Conference "Function theory and computational methods", dedicated to the 60th anniversary of Professor N. Temirgaliyev, Astana, ENU, 2007, pp. 152-157.
- [3] N.Zh. Nauryzbaev, N. Temirgaliev. On the effective reconstruction depending on the "inner properties" grid // Journal of L.N. Gumilyov ENU, No.6, 2010, pp. 6-14.





Ш

RECONSTRUCTION PROBLEM IN CLASSES OF INFINITELY SMOOTH FUNCTIONS

Ye. Nurmoldin, S. Mahatova L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:e_nurmoldin@mail.ru

The report focuses on the problem of sample solutions of the heat equation for from the values of the distribution function of the initial temperature of $U_2((0,0), (\theta_1, \theta_2), (1,1))$ - classes Ul'yanov [1] (in [2] this problem was solved for the case of trigonometric Fourier coefficients).

The following fact is valid $(\overline{m_i} = \max\{1, |m_i|\})$

Ш

Theorem. Let $a \ 0 < \theta_1, \ \theta_2 < 1, \ 2 \le p \le \infty, -a$ positive integer and $V_T \equiv \{(n_1, n_2) \in Z^2 : \ \overline{n_1} + c\overline{n_2} < T\}$. Then the relations $(N = \frac{2T^2}{c}, where \ c = \log_{\theta_1} \theta_2)$ a)

$$\sup_{f \in U_2((0,0), (\theta_1, \theta_2), (1,1))} \left\| u(t, (x_1, x_2); f) - \sum_{(n_1, n_2) \in V_T} \Lambda_{(T, (n_1, n_2))} (f) e^{2\pi i (n_1 x_1 + n_2 x_2)} e^{-4\pi^2 (n_1^2 + n_2^2) t} \right\|_{L^{\infty}[0; \infty) \times [0; 1]^2} \succ \prec N^{\frac{1}{2}} \theta_1^{\sqrt{\frac{1}{2}N} \log_{\theta_1} \theta_2},$$

b)

$$\sup_{f \in U_2((0,0), (\theta_1, \theta_2), (1,1))} \left\| u(t, (x_1, x_2); f) - \sum_{(n_1, n_2) \in V_T} \Lambda_{(T, (n_1, n_2))} (f) e^{2\pi i (n_1 x_1 + n_2 x_2)} e^{-4\pi^2 (n_1^2 + n_2^2) t} \right\|_{L^2[0; \infty) \times [0; 1]^2} \succ \prec N^{\frac{1}{4}} \theta_1^{\sqrt{\frac{1}{2}N} \log_{\theta_1} \theta_2}.$$

$$\Lambda_{(T,(n_1,n_2))}\left(f\right) = \frac{c}{2T^2} \sum_{|k_1|+c|k_2| \le 2T-1} f\left(\frac{k_1 - k_2}{2T}, c\frac{k_1 + k_2}{2T}\right) e^{-2\pi i \left(n_1 \frac{k_1 - k_2}{2T} + n_2 c\frac{k_1 + k_2}{2T}\right)}.$$

Note that if [3] involved in the grid, constructed for classes of functions whose Fourier coefficients decrease at a rate no higher power, there is an explicit statement issued restoring the "algebraic" grids with equal weights that are optimal for classes of functions with exponential speed decrease of Fourier coefficients.

- [1] N. Temirgaliev. Classes $U_s(\beta, \theta, \alpha; \psi)$ and guadrature formulas // Doklady mathematics, Vol.68, No.3, 2003, pp. 414-415.
- [2] Ye.Ye. Nurmoldin. Restoration of functions, integrals, and solutions to the heat conductivity equation from the Ulyanov U₂-classes // Sib. Zh. Vychisl. Mat., Vol.8, No.4, 2005, pp. 337-351.
- [3] K.E. Sherniyazov. Priblizhennoe vosstanovlenie funkcii i reshenii uravnenii teploprovodnosti s funkciyami raspredeleniya nachal'nyh temperatur iz klassov E, SW i B // Kandidatskaya dissertaciya, KazGU. Almaty, 1998.





NORM INEQUALITIES FOR THE CONVOLUTION OPERATOR¹

E. Nursultanov, S. Tikhonov, N. Tleukhanova Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan Centre de Recerca Matematica, Barcelona, Spain

e-mail:er-nurs@yandex.ru, stikhonov@crm.cat, Tleukhanova@rambler.ru

Let (Ω, μ) be a measurable space and $L_p(\Omega, \mu)$ be the collection of all those measurable functions f satisfying $||f||_{L_p(\Omega,\mu)} = \left(\int_{\Omega} |f(x)|^p d\mu\right)^{\frac{1}{p}} < \infty$. The distribution of a measurable function f on Ω is defined by

$$m(\sigma, f) = \mu\{x \in \Omega : |f(x)| > \sigma\},\$$

 $\text{Then} \quad f^*(t) = \inf\{\sigma: m(\sigma,f) \leq t\} \quad \text{is the decreasing rearrangement of } f.$

Let $0 and <math>0 < q \le \infty$. The Lorentz space $L_{p,q}(\Omega, \mu)$ is defined by those measurable functions f such that

$$||f||_{L_{p,q}} = \left(\int_0^\infty (t^{1/p} f^*(t))^q \frac{dt}{t}\right)^{1/q} < \infty,$$

when $0 < q < \infty$ and

$$||f||_{L_{p,\infty}} = \sup_{t} t^{1/p} f^*(t) < \infty,$$

then $q = \infty$. We also define

$$f^{**}(x) = \frac{1}{x} \int_0^x f^*(t) dt.$$

In this paper we study norm estimates for the convolution operator

$$(Af)(x) = (K * f)(x) = \int_{\Omega} K(x - y)f(y)dy$$

$$\tag{1}$$

in the Lebesgue and Lorentz spaces.

We study norm convolution inequalities in Lebesgue and Lorentz spaces. First, we improve the wellknown O'Neil's inequality for the convolution operator and prove corresponding estimate from below. Second, we obtain Young-O'Neil-type estimate in the Lorentz spaces for the limit value parameters, i.e., $||K * f||_{L(p,h_1)\to L(p,h_2)}$. Finally, similar estimates in the weighted Lorentz spaces are presented.

¹ This research is supported by Repuplic of Kazakhstan Grant "The Best Teacher of University.





ON EQUIVALENT CONE METRIC SPACES¹

Öznur Ölmez, Salih Aytar Süleyman Demirel University, Isparta, Turkey e-mail:oznur_olmez@hotmail.com, salihaytar@sdu.edu.tr

Given a nonempty set X and a real Banach space E, if the mapping $d : X \times X \to E$ satisfies the metric axioms with respect to the ordering on a cone P of E, then the pair (X, d) is called a *cone metric space*. In this talk, we introduce the concept of equivalent cone metrics on the same cone, and explore the necessary conditions for the two cone metrics to be equivalent. We also present an alternative definition for the equivalence of cone metrics, which is called the Lipschitz equivalence. Finally, we compare these two definitions.

References

- L.G. Huang, X. Zhang. Cone metric spaces and fixed point theorems of contractive mappings // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.332, 2007, pp. 1468-1476.
- [2] Du Wei-Shih. A note on cone metric fixed point theory and its equivalence // Nonlinear Anal., Vol.72, 2010, pp. 2259-2261.

ON ESTIMATION OF THE CORRELATION FUNCTION OF A HARMONIC RANDOM FIELD

G.M.Rakhimov

Academic Lyceum under Tashkent Architecture and Building Institute Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:gairat480gmail.com

Let $\xi(P)$ be real -valued Gaussian harmonic random field on the unit sphere in Euclidean space which has second order moment and is continuous in quadratic mean, $E\xi = 0$. The random field $\xi(P)$ is said to isotropic if its first and second moment are invariant under group of rotation in Euclidean space. Suppose that we have T - independent realizations of the random fields. In this paper we estimate of the correlation function first and second-order moments.

References

- M.I. Yadrenko. A certain problem of linear extrapolation for an isotropic random field // Teor. Veroyatnost. i Mat. Statist., No.1, 1970, pp. 240-248; English transl. in Theory Probab. Math. Statist., No.1, 1971, pp. 239-247.
- [2] M.I. Yadrenko. Spectral Theory of Random Fields // Vyshcha shkola, Kiev, 1980, English transl., // Optimization Software, New York, 1983.
- [3] P. Moklyachuk, M.I. Yadrenko. Linear statistical problems for stationary isotropic randoms fields on a sphere // I Teor. Veroyatnost. i Mat. Statist., Vol.18, 1978, pp. 106-115, English transl. in Theory Probab. // Math. Statist., Vol.18, 1979, pp. 115-124.
- [4] P. Moklyachuk, M.I. Yadrenko. Linear statistical problems for stationary isotropic random fields on a sphere // II Teor. Veroyatnost. i Mat. Statist., Vol.19, 1978, pp. 111-122, English transl. in Theory Probab. Math. Statist., Vol.19, 1979, pp. 129-139.

¹ This research is supported by Süleyman Demirel University Grant Program SDÜ-BAP 2330-YL-10.





EXTENSION OF INDEX THEORY TO ARBITRARY REAL FACTORS

Abdugafur A. Rakhimov, Rashidkhon A. Dadakhodjaev

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Uzbekistan Academy of Sciences, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:rakhimov2002@yahoo.com

Let $R \subset B(H)$ be a finite complex or real factor with the finite commutant R'. The coupling constant $\dim_R(H)$ of R is defined as $\operatorname{tr}_R(E_{\xi}^{R'})/\operatorname{tr}_{R'}(E_{\xi}^{R})$, where ξ is a non-zero vector in H, tr_A denotes the normalized trace and E_{ξ}^A is the projection of H onto the closure of the subspace $A\xi$. The number $\dim_R(H)$ does not depend on ξ .

It is known, that if $M \subset B(H) = B(H_r) + iB(H_r)$ is a finite factor and $(M, \alpha) \subset B(H_r)$, where H_r is a real Hilbert space with $H_r + iH_r = H$, α is the involutive *-antiautomorphism of M and $(M, \alpha) = \{x \in M : \alpha(x) = x^*\}$, then $\dim_M(H) = \dim_{(M,\alpha)}(H_r) = \frac{1}{2}\dim_{(M,\alpha)}(H)$. Consider a subfactor $N \subset M$ such that $\alpha(N) \subset N$. The *index* of N in M, denoted by [M : N] is defined as $\dim_N(L^2(M))$, where $L^2(M)$ the completion of M with respect to the norm $||x||_2 = \tau(x^*x)^{1/2}$. Similarly, the *index* of (N, α) in (M, α) , denoted by $[(M, \alpha) : (N, \alpha)]$, or by [R : Q], is defined as $\dim_{(N,\alpha)}(L^2(M, \alpha))$. Between real and complex indices there is the relation: $[(M, \alpha) : (N, \alpha)] = [M : N]$. Considering a complex factor M as a real W*-algebra in view of above we may put $[M : (M, \alpha)] = 2[(M, \alpha) : (M, \alpha)] = 2$.

For example, if M is a factor of type I₄, then up to isomorphisms it has seven real W*-subalgebras different from M, which are real or complex subfactors of M: \mathbb{R} , \mathbb{C} , \mathbb{H} , $M_2(\mathbb{R})$, $M_2(\mathbb{C})$, $M_2(\mathbb{H})$ and $M_4(\mathbb{R})$, where \mathbb{H} is the quaternion algebra. The values of the indexes are respectively: $[M : M_4(\mathbb{R})] = [M : M_2(\mathbb{H})] = 2$, $[[M : M_2(\mathbb{C})] = [M_4(\mathbb{R}) : M_2(\mathbb{R})] = [M_2(\mathbb{H}) : \mathbb{H}] = 4$, $[M : M_2(\mathbb{R})] = 8$, $[M : \mathbb{C}] = [M_4(\mathbb{R}) : \mathbb{R}] = [M_2(\mathbb{H}) : \mathbb{R}] = 16$. $[M : \mathbb{R}] = 32$.

We have calculated the value of the index in the above example. It turns out that the index may be calculated also in the general case:

Theorem 1. Let R be a finite complex or real factor, and let N be a subfactor of R with $[R:N] < \infty$. Then one has either $[R:N] = 4\cos^2\frac{\pi}{q}$ for some integer $q \ge 3$ or $[R:N] \ge 4$.

Let now M be a σ -finite factor and let N be a subfactor of M with $\alpha(N) \subset N$. We fix a normal conditional expectation E from (M, α) onto (N, α) . Then there exists an operator-valued weight E^{-1} from $(N, \alpha)'$ onto $(M, \alpha)'$ and it is easy to see that $E^{-1}(\mathbf{1})$ is a scalar (possibly $+\infty$). The index of $Q = (N, \alpha)$ in $R = (M, \alpha)$, denoted by [R : Q] or by $[(M, \alpha) : (N, \alpha)]$, is defined as the scalar $E^{-1}(\mathbf{1})$. The value of the index also is: either $[(M, \alpha) : (N, \alpha)] = 4 \cos^2 \frac{\pi}{q}$ for some integer $q \geq 3$ or $[(M, \alpha) : (N, \alpha)] \geq 4$.





ON SHARP INEQUALITIES FOR TRIGONOMETRIC APPROXIMATION IN WEIGHTED ORLICZ SPACES

Ramazan Akgün Balikesir University, Balikesir, Turkey e-mail:rakgn@yahoo.com

In the present work exact (in the sense of order) direct and converse theorems of trigonometric approximation are proved in Orlicz spaces with weights satisfying some Muckenhoupt's A_p condition. As a consequence sharp Marchaud and its converse inequalities are obtained. Let Φ be the class of strictly increasing functions $\phi : [0, \infty) \to [0, \infty)$ satisfying $\phi(\infty) \lim_{x \to \infty} \phi(x) = \infty$. Let $-\infty . By <math>Y[p,q]$ we denote the class of even functions $\varphi \in \Phi$ defined on $[0,\infty)$ satisfying (i) $\varphi(u)/u^p$ is non-decreasing as |u| increases; (ii) $\varphi(u)/u^q$ is non-increasing as |u| increases. If p < q we denote by $Y \langle p, q \rangle$ the class of functions φ satisfying $\varphi \in Y[p + \varepsilon, q - \delta]$ for some small numbers $\varepsilon, \delta > 0$. By $\overline{\Phi}_p$ we will denote class of functions M such that M belongs to the class $Y \langle p, q \rangle$ for some 1 . A function <math>M of class Φ satisfying M(0) = 0 is said to be quasiconvex if there exist a convex function ϕ and a constant $c \geq 1$ such that $\phi(x) \leq M(x) \leq \phi(cx)$ for every $x \geq 0$. We set $E_n(f)_{M,\omega} := \inf \left\{ \|f - T\|_{M,\omega} : T \in \mathcal{T}_n \right\}$ for $f \in L_{M,\omega}(T)$, where \mathcal{T}_n is the class of trigonometric approximation are true:

Theorem. Let $M \in \overline{\Phi}_p$, $1 , <math>\omega$ belong to Muckenhoupt class A_p , f belong to the weighted Orlicz space $L_{M,\omega}(T)$, $\beta := \max(2, q - \delta)$ and $\gamma := \min(2, p + \varepsilon)$.

(1) If $n \in N$ and $r \in R^+$, then there is a positive constant c depending only on r and M such that

$$\frac{c}{n^{2r}} \left\{ \sum_{\nu=1}^{n} \nu^{2\beta r-1} E_{\nu}^{\beta}(f)_{M,\omega} \right\}^{1/\beta} \leq \Omega_r \left(f, \frac{1}{n}\right)_{M,\omega}$$

holds.

(2) If $M(\sqrt{x})$ is quasiconvex, then there is a positive constant C depending only on r and M such that

$$\Omega_r\left(f,\frac{1}{n}\right)_{M,\omega} \le \frac{C}{n^{2r}} \left\{\sum_{\nu=1}^n \nu^{2\gamma r-1} E_{\nu}^{\gamma}\left(f\right)_{M,\omega}\right\}^{1/2}$$

holds.

Here $\Omega_r(f,\delta)_{M,\omega}$ is the fractional order mixed moduli of smoothness which is suitable for weighted function spaces.

References

[A] R. Akgün. Sharp Jackson and converse theorems of trigonometric approximation in weighted Lebesgue spaces // Proc. A. Razmadze Math. Inst., Vol.152, 2010, pp. 1-18.





FINITENESS OF THE DISCRETE SPECTRUM OF A OPERATOR MATRIX¹

Tulkin H. Rasulov Bukhara State University, Bukhara, Uzbekistan e-mail:rth@mail.ru

Let \mathbf{T}^3 be the three-dimensional torus, \mathbf{C} be the field of complex numbers, $L_2(\mathbf{T}^3)$ be the Hilbert space of square-integrable (complex) functions defined on \mathbf{T}^3 and $L_2^{\mathrm{s}}((\mathbf{T}^3)^2)$ be the Hilbert space of square-integrable symmetric (complex) functions defined on $(\mathbf{T}^3)^2$.

Denote by H the direct sum of spaces $H_0 = \mathbf{C}$, $H_1 = L_2(\mathbf{T}^3)$ and $H_2 = L_2^{\mathrm{s}}((\mathbf{T}^3)^2)$, i.. $H = H_0 \oplus H_1 \oplus H_2$.

We consider the operator matrix H acting on H as

$$H = \left(\begin{array}{ccc} H_{00} & H_{01} & 0 \\ H_{01}^{*} & H_{11} & H_{12} \\ 0 & H_{12}^{*} & H_{22} \end{array} \right),$$

where the matrix elements $H_{kl}: H_l \to H_k, \ k, l = 0, 1, 2$ are defined by

$$(H_{00}f_0)_0 = w_0 f_0, \quad (H_{01}f_1)_0 = \int_{\mathbf{T}^3} v_1(t)f_1(t)dt, \quad (H_{11}f_1)_1(p) = w_1(p)f_1(p)$$
$$(H_{12}f_2)_1(p) = \int_{\mathbf{T}^3} v_2(t)f_2(p,t)dt, \quad (H_{22}f_2)_2(p,q) = w_2(p,q)f_2(p,q).$$

Here $f_k \in H_k$, $k = 0, 1, 2, w_0$ is a fixed real number, $v_k(\cdot)$, k = 1, 2 are real valued analytic functions on \mathbf{T}^3 , with $v_2(\cdot)$ being an even function on \mathbf{T}^1 of each variable separately, the functions $w_1(\cdot)$ and $w_2(\cdot, \cdot)$ are defined as

$$w_1(p) = \varepsilon(p) + \lambda, \quad w_2(p,q) = \varepsilon(p) + \varepsilon(p+q) + \varepsilon(q),$$
$$\varepsilon(p) = \sum_{k=1}^3 (1 - \cos mp^{(k)}), \ p = (p^{(1)}, p^{(2)}, p^{(3)}) \in \mathbf{T}^3, \quad m \in \mathbf{N},$$

where λ is a fixed positive number, while **N** is the set of positive integers.

To formulate the main result of the note we introduce the following bounded and self-adjoint generalized Friedrichs model h(p), $p \in \mathbf{T}^3$ acting on $H_0 \oplus H_1$ as

$$h(p) = \begin{pmatrix} h_{00}(p) & h_{01} \\ h_{01}^* & h_{11}(p) \end{pmatrix},$$

where the operators $h_{kk}(p): H_k \to H_k, \ k = 0, 1, \ p \in \mathbf{T}^3$ and $h_{01}: H_1 \to H_0$ are defined as

$$(h_{00}(p)f_0)_0 = w_1(p)f_0, \quad (h_{01}f_1)_0 = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}}\int_{\mathbf{T}^3} v_2(t)f_1(t)dt, \quad (h_{11}(p)f_1)_1(q) = w_2(p,q)f_1(q).$$

Now we give the main result of the present note.

Theorem. If the operator h(0) has the zero eigenvalue, then the operator matrix H has finitely many negative eigenvalues.

¹ This research is supported by the Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft (DFG), Grant TR368/6-2.







ON THE FINE SPECTRUM OF SOME GENERALIZED DIFFERENCE OPERATORS

Ali M. Akhmedov, Saad R. El-Shabrawy Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:akhmedovali@rambler.ru, srshabrawy@yahoo.com

The spectrum and fine spectrum of the difference operator and generalized difference operators over sequence spaces have been examined by several authors. Our paper surveys spectral properties of the difference operator Δ and the generalized difference operators B(r, s) and B(r, s, t) on some sequence spaces.

Recently, Akhmedov and El-Shabrawy [1] have introduced the generalized difference operator $\Delta_{a,b}$ over the sequence space c_0 . The operator $\Delta_{a,b}$ on the space c_0 is defined by

$$\Delta_{a,b}x = \Delta_{a,b}(x_k) = (a_k x_k + b_{k-1} x_{k-1})_{k=0}^{\infty} \text{ with } x_{-1} = b_{-1} = 0,$$

where $x = (x_k) \in c_0$ and (a_k) , (b_k) are two sequences of nonzero real numbers satisfying certain conditions. In cases, $a_k = r$, $b_k = s$ and $b_k = -a_k = -v_k$ for all $k \in \mathbb{N} = \{0, 1, 2, ...\}$, the operator $\Delta_{a,b}$ is reduced to the generalized difference operator B(r, s) of [2] and to the generalized difference operator Δ_v of [3].

The spectrum and point spectrum of $\Delta_{a,b}$ on c_0 are given by

$$\sigma(\Delta_{a,b}, c_0) = \{\lambda \in \mathbb{C} : |a - \lambda| \le |b|\} \cup \{a_k : |a - a_k| > |b|\},\$$

$$\sigma_p(\Delta_{a,b}, c_0) = \begin{cases} E, & \text{if there exists } m \in \mathbb{N} : a_i \neq a_j \ \forall i, j \ge m;\\ \emptyset, & \text{otherwise}, \end{cases}$$

where $E = \{a_k : |a - a_k| > |b|\}.$

The spectrum of several special limitation matrices over the sequence space c_{θ} is a region enclosed by a circle. It is interesting that the spectrum of the operator $\Delta_{a,b}$ over the sequence space c_{θ} may includes also a finite number of points outside the region enclosed by a circle.

- [1] A.M. Akhmedov, S.R. El-Shabrawy. On the spectrum of the generalized difference operator $\Delta_{a,b}$ over the sequence space c_0 // Baku Univ. News J., No.4, 2010, pp. 12-21.
- [2] B. Altay, F. Başar. On the fine spectrum of the generalized difference operator B(r, s) over the sequence spaces c_0 and c_0 // Internat. J. Math. Math. Sci., Vol.18, 2005, pp. 3005-3013.
- [3] P. D. Srivastava, S. Kumar. On the fine spectrum of the generalized difference operator Δ_v over the sequence space c_0 // Commun. Math. Anal., Vol.6, No.1, 2009, pp. 8-21.





SEQUENCE SPACES AS 2-CONE BANACH SPACE

Ahmet Şahiner Süleyman Demirel University, Isparta, Turkey e-mail:ahmetsahiner@sdu.edu.tr

In the main part of the work the results expressing under what conditions a self-mapping T of a sequence space as 2-cone Banach space has a unique fixed point are given.

References

- [1] H. Gunawan, Mashadi. On finite dimensional 2-normed spaces // Soochow J. Math., Vol.27, No.3, 2001, pp. 321-329.
- [2] Sh. Rezapour, R. Halmbarani. Some notes on the paper "Cone metric spaces and fixed point theorems of contractive mappings" // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.345, 2008, pp. 719-724.
- [3] H. Long-Guang, Z. Xian. Cone metric spaces and fixed point theorems of contractive mappings // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.332, 2007, pp. 1468-1476.
- [4] T. Abdeljawad, D. Turkoglu, M. Abuloha. Some theorems and examples of cone Banach spaces // Journal of Computational Analysis and Applications, Vol.12, No.4, 2010, pp. 739-753.
- [5] S. Gahler. 2-metrische Raume und ihre topologische struktur // Math. Nachr., Vol.26, 1963, pp. 115-148.
- [6] S. Omran, A.E.-S. Ahmed. Generalized cone metric space and fixed point theorem // Journal of Advanced Studies in Topology, Vol.1, No.2, 2010, pp. 22-28.

AN APPLICATION OF EXP-FUNCTION METHOD FOR BOGOYAVLENSKY-KONOPLECHENKO EQUATION

Yavuz Ugurlu, Ibrahim E. Inan Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:matematikci_23@yahoo.com.tr, ieinan@yahoo.com

In this study, we present the expfunction method which was suggested by He and was implemented by He and Wu in 2006 for the analytic solutions of the Bogoyavlensky-Konoplechenko equation. By using this method, we obtain some solutions of the abovementioned equation.

- J.H. He. An elementary introduction to recently developed asymptotic methods and nanomechanics in textile engineering // International Journal of Modern Physics, Vol.22, 2008, pp. 3487-3578.
- [2] X.W. Zhou, Y.X. Wen, J.H. He. Exp-function method to solve the nonlinear dispersive K(m,n) equations // Int. J. Nonlinear Sci. Numer, Vol.9, 2008, pp. 301-306.
- [3] C.Q. Dai, Y.Y. Wang. Exact travelling wave solutions of the discrete nonlinear Schrdinger equation and the hybrid lattice equation obtained via the exp-function method // Phys. Scr., Vol.78, 015013, 2008.
- [4] F.A. Xu. A Generalized Soliton Solution of the Konopelchenko-Dubrovsky Equation using He's Exp-Function Method // Z. Nat. Forsch., A Vol.62, 2007, pp. 685-688.





L₂ SPECIAL RISSA ELEMENTS BASIS PROPERTY FEATURES

A.M. Sarsenbi M. Auezov South Kazakhstan State University, Shimkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:abzhahan@mail.ru

The issue concerning the basis property of principal vector in a certain type of function possesses a specific role in the spectral theory of linear nonself-adjoint differential operators. The majority of widely known function systems are anyway related with differential operators and their intensive study is raised somewhat owing to the requirements of the spectral theory.

Recently it was established in the paper [1] of the author that the proportional boundedness nearly everywhere principal vector modulus of the direct and second-order adjoint operators is a necessary as well as a sufficient condition for L_2 category Rissa basis property.

In case of the arbitrary system of the L_2 category, not related to a certain differential operator, facts similar to the ones stipulated above have not been observed. Therefore, type systems [2] as $\{x|^{\alpha}e^{inx}\}$, $\{x|^{-\alpha}e^{-inx}\}$, where n - whole number, $0 < \alpha < \frac{1}{2}$, are considered as biorthogonally adjoint as well as standardized. Each of them forms the special $L_2(-\pi,\pi)$ basis property, but not the Rissa basis property.

Legendre polynomials (see example, [3, p.44]) forms the Rissa special basis property $L_2(-1, 1)$ (the orthonormal basis), but they are not limited. Even so, the following is correct.

Theorem. Let us assume that each of the biorthogonally adjoint systems $\{u_k(x)\}, \{v_k(x)\}\$ of the $L_2(G)$ category is complete and the following uniform estimates $||u_k||_{L_2(G)} \leq C_1, ||v_k||_{L_2(G)} \leq C_2$. Then each of these systems forms $L_2(G)$ Rissa basis property.

References

[2] K.I. Babenko. About adjoint functions // Reports of the USSR Academy of Science, Vol.62, No.2, 1948, pp. 157-160.
[3] G. Aleksich. The Problems of the Orthogonal Series Similarity // M., 1963.

A.M. Sarsenbi. The criteria for the Rissa basis property of the proper adjoint functions of the higher-order differential operators in the interval // Reports of the Russian Academy of Science, Vol.149, No.5, 2008, pp. 601-603.







STRONG APPROXIMATION AND SOME EMBEDDING THEOREMS FOR TWO VARIABLE FUNCTIONS

Merey Sautbekova L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:vinchesterchik@mail.ru

Let f(x, y) be a 2π -periodic continuous function by the both variables. Denote by $S_{m,n}(x, y) = S_{m,n}(f; x, y)$ the rectangular partial sum of the trigonometric Fourier series of function $f \in [0, 2\pi)^2$. $\omega_1(\delta), \omega_2(\delta)$ - modull of continuity.

Let

$$\omega(f; \delta_1, \delta_2) = \sup_{\substack{|h_1| \le \delta_1 \\ |h_2| \le \delta_2}} \|f(x+h_1, y+h_2) - f(x, y)\|_{C[0, 2\pi)^2}$$

be the modulus of continuity of function $f \in C[0, 2\pi)^2$ and let $\lambda = \{\lambda_{m,n}\}, m, n, \in \mathbb{N}$ be a monotonic (nondecreasing or nonincreasing) sequence of positive numbers by both indexes: $\lambda_{m_2,n_2} \geq \lambda_{m_1,n_1}$ or $\lambda_{m_2,n_2} \leq \lambda_{m_1,n_1}$ for $m_2 \geq m_1$ and $n_2 \geq n_1$.

Denote by $\tau_{m,n} = \tau_{m,n}(f;x,y)$ de la Vallée Poussin means: $\tau_{m,n} = \frac{1}{mn} \sum_{k_1=m+1}^{2m} \sum_{k_2=n+1}^{2n} S_{k_1,k_2}(f;x,y)$

And define three classes of functions:

$$H^{\omega_1,\omega_2} = \left\{ f \in C[0,2\pi)^2 : \omega(f;\delta_1,\delta_2) = O\left(\omega_1(\delta) \cdot \omega_2(\delta)\right) \right\},$$

$$S_p(\lambda) = \left\{ f: \left\| \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \lambda_{m,n} |f - S_{m,n}|^p \right\| < \infty \right\}, \ V_p(\lambda) = \left\{ f: \left\| \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \lambda_{m,n} |\tau_{m,n} - f|^p \right\| < \infty \right\}.$$

We consider the following problem: under what conditions posed on a sequence $\{\lambda_{m,n}\}$ take t

We consider the following problem: under what conditions posed on a sequence $\{\lambda_{m,n}\}$ take the place embeddings: $S_p(\lambda) \subset V_p(\lambda) \subset H^{\omega_1,\omega_2}$.

The case for the one variable function was considered in [1].

Theorem 1. If $1 \le p < \infty$ and $\{\lambda_{m,n}\}$ is a monotonic (nondecreasing or nonincreasing) sequence by the both indexes of positive numbers satisfying conditions:

$$\frac{\lambda_{m,n}}{\lambda_{2m,n}} \le K_1, \quad \frac{\lambda_{m,n}}{\lambda_{m,2n}} \le K_2, \quad m,n,\in\mathbb{N},$$

where K_1 and K_2 - positive constants. Then $S_p(\lambda) \subset V_p(\lambda)$ holds.

Theorem 2. Let $1 \leq p < \infty$ and let $\{\lambda_{m,n}\}$ be a monotonic (nondecreasing or nonincreasing) by both indexes sequence of positive numbers, $\omega_1(\delta)$, $\omega_2(\delta)$ be the moduli of continuity. Then the condition

$$\sum_{k_1=1}^{m} \sum_{k_2=1}^{n} \left(k_1 k_2 \lambda_{k_1, k_2}\right)^{-\frac{1}{p}} = \underline{O}\left(mn\omega_1\left(\frac{1}{m}\right)\omega_2\left(\frac{1}{n}\right)\right)$$
(1)

implies the embedding

$$S_p(\lambda) \subset H^{\omega_1,\omega_2}.$$
 (2)

And if there exists number $\theta \in [0,1)$ such that

 $((m+1)n)^{\theta}\lambda_{m+1,n} \ge (mn)^{\theta}\lambda_{m,n}, \ (m(n+1))^{\theta}\lambda_{m,n+1} \ge (m\cdot n)^{\theta}\lambda_{m,n} \ holds, \ then \ (2) \ implies \ (1).$

References

[1] L. Leindler, A. Meir. Embedding theorems and strong approximation // Acta Sci. Math., Vol.47, 1984, pp. 371-375.





TO THE THEORY OF PERTURBATION OF THE OPERATOR OF THE THERMAL CONDUCTION

A.Sh. Shaldanbaev, I.O. Orazov The South Kazakhstan State University, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:shaldanbaev51@mail.ru

It is known [1, p.322], that to any self-interfaced operator operating in a separable Hilbert space H, it is possible to add the self-interfaced operator K, not only completely continuous, but even having as much as necessary small absolute norm and such, that the system of all eigenvectors of an operator will be A + K full century H.

Antipode of the self-interfaced operators are volter operators, which at all have no eigenvalues. Volter operators Hromov A.P. [2] is engaged in study of spectral properties of finite-dimensional perturbations. Principal difference of our problem from Hromova A.P.'s problem consists, that we do not assume perturbation finite-dimensional though it is completely continuous and very small in sense of norm. The theorem proved by us says, that matter not in magnitude of perturbation, and most likely in its algebraic properties this fact has been noted for the first time in work [3].

Theorem. If *a* - the arbitrary complex number, which is distinct from zero, satisfying to the condition

$$tg\sqrt{a^2 - 1} \neq \sqrt{a^2 - 1},\tag{1}$$

then the system of eigenfunctions of a boundary value problem: $T_a u = u_t - u_{rr} + au(1-t, x) = \lambda$

$$= u_t - u_{xx} + au(1 - t, x) = \lambda u(t, x),$$
(2)

$$u|_{t=0} = 0, (3)$$

$$u|_{x=0} = 0, \ u|_{x=1} = 0 \tag{4}$$

It is full in space $L^2(\Omega)$, where $\Omega = [0, 1] \times [0, 1]$.

- [1] N.I. Ahiezer, I.M. Qlazman. Theory of Linear Operators in a Hilbert Space // M: the Science, 1966.
- [2] A.P. Khromov. Finite-Dimensional of Perturbation of Vollter Operators // The Modern Mathematics. Fundamental Directions, Vol.10, 2004, pp. 3-163.
- [3] T.S. Kalmenov, A.S. Shaldanbaev, S.T. Ahmetov. To the spectral theory of the equation with deviating arguments // Mathematical magazine, Almaty, Vol.13, No.4, 2004, pp. 41-48.





ON A MATRIX INEQUALITY

Sh. Bilal Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazaxstan e-mail:Bilal440mail.ru

Let $W = \{W_i\}_{i=1}^{\infty}, v = \{v_i\}_{i=1}^{\infty}, u = \{u_i\}_{i=1}^{\infty}$ are sequences of nonnegative numbers, $u_k > 0, k \ge 1$. Let also $f = \{f_i\}_{i=1}^{\infty}$ is arbitrary sequence of real numbers. We take $K \downarrow = \{f : f \ge 0\}, K \uparrow = \{f : 0 \le f \uparrow\}, K \downarrow = \{f : 0 \le f \downarrow\}, F_k = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} f_i, F_K^* = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} f_i, \text{ under } k \ge 1 \text{ and } F_0 = 0 \text{ (}\uparrow \text{is a sign of the new decreasing)}$

the non-increasing, and \downarrow is a sign of the non-decreasing).

It is considered a problem of finding the following value

$$J_{\infty}(u, v, g, K) = \sup_{f \ge 0} \frac{\sum_{i=1}^{\infty} f_i g_i}{\sup_{1 \le i \le \infty} u_i f_i + \sup_{1 \le i \le \infty} v_i F_i}$$
(1)

for $g \in K \downarrow$ and on this basis we establish an inequality which is dual to an inequality of the form

$$\sup_{1 \le k < \infty} w_k (Af)_k \le C \left(\sup_{1 \le i \le \infty} u_i f_i + \sup_{1 \le i \le \infty} v_i F_i \right), \ f \ge 0,$$

$$(2)$$

where A is a real matrix operator $(Af)_k = \sum_{i=1}^{k} a_{ki} f_i, \ k \ge 1.$

For every $n \ge 1$ we derive

$$\varphi_n = \left\{ \min_{1 \le k \le n} \left[\left(\sum_{i=1}^n u_i^{-1} \right)^{-1} + \sup_{k \le i < \infty} v_i \right] \right\}^{-1} \text{ and set } \varphi_0 = 0.$$

Theorem 1. Let $g \in K \downarrow$. Then

$$J_{\infty}(u, v, g, K) \approx \sup_{1 \le i < \infty} g_i(\varphi_i - \varphi_{i-1}).$$

Theorem 2. Let elements of the matrix $\{a_{ki}\}$ of the operator A be non-negative and no increasing in the second index, i.e. $a_{ki} \ge 0$, $a_{k,i+1} \ge a_{ki}$, $k \ge 1$, $i \ge 1$. Then the inequality (2) holds if and only if

$$\sup_{1 \le k < \infty} w_k \sum_{i=1}^k a_{ki} f_i \le C_1 \sup_{1 \le k < \infty} f_k \left(\varphi_k - \varphi_{k-1}\right)^{-1}, \ f_k \ge 0,$$
(3)

in this case $C \approx C_1$, where C, C_1 the smallest const in (2) and (3) respectively.



 $\|f$



EMBEDDING THEOREMS OF DIFFERENT METRICS IN LORENTZ SPACES WITH HERMITE WEIGHT

Smailov E.S.

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Karagandy, Kazakhstan e-mail:esmailov@mail.ru

Let $1 \leq p < +\infty, 0 < \theta \leq +\infty$ and f be a measurable function in the meaning of Lebesgue on \mathbb{R}_n ; $\rho_n(\bar{x}) = e^{-\frac{|\bar{x}|^2}{2}}$, $\bar{x} \in \mathbb{R}_n$; $|\bar{x}| = \left(\sum_{k=1}^n x_k^2\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}$. By $F(|f\rho_n|;t)$ we will denote the nonincreasing rearrangement of functions $|f(\bar{x})\rho_n(\bar{x})|$ on \mathbb{R}_n , $t \in (0; +\infty)$. We say, that $f \in L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n; \rho_n)$, if the next value is finite

$$\|f\|_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)} = \left\{ \frac{\theta}{p} \int_{0}^{+\infty} t^{\frac{\theta}{p}-1} (F(|f\rho_n|;t))^{\theta} dt \right\}^{\frac{1}{\theta}}, \text{ when } 0 < \theta \le +\infty.$$

Let $\mathcal{P}_{\bar{m}}$ be a set of various algebraic polynomials, degree not higher $(m_i - 1)$ on variable quantity $x_i, i = 1, ..., n, \bar{m} = (m_1, ..., m_n); E_{\bar{m}}(f)_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n; \rho_n)}$ is the best approximation of $f \in L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n; \rho_n)$ in the metric of the space $L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)$ by the algebraic polynomials of the whole $\mathcal{P}_{\bar{m}}$.

By the $C(\mathbb{R}_n; \rho_n)$ we denote the set of continuous functions on \mathbb{R}_n , for which the next value is finite $||f||_{C(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)} = \max_{\bar{x}\in\mathbb{R}_n} |f(\bar{x})\rho_n(\bar{x})|.$

Theorem 1. Let $f \in L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n; \rho_n), 1 \le p < +\infty, 0 < \theta \le +\infty$. If $\left\{ 2^{\frac{nk}{2p}} E_{2^k, \dots, 2^k}(f)_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n; \rho_n)} \right\}_{k=0}^{+\infty} \in \mathbb{C}$ $l_1(\mathbb{Z}^+)$, then function f might be modified on the set of 0 measure so, that it would be continuous function on \mathbb{R}_n and also holds true the following inequality:

$$||f||_{C(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)} \le A_p \left\{ ||f||_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)} + \sum_{k=0}^{+\infty} 2^{\frac{nk}{2p}} E_{2^k,\dots,2^k}(f)_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)} \right\}.$$

Here the constant $A_p > 0$ depends only on the indicated parameter.

Theorem 2. Let $f \in L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n; \rho_n), 1 \leq p < +\infty, 0 < \theta \leq +\infty$. If for some numbers q and τ such, that $p < q < +\infty, 0 < \tau \leq +\infty$:

$$\left\{2^{m\left(\frac{n}{2p}-\frac{n}{2q}\right)}E_{2^{m},\dots,2^{m}}(f)_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n})}\right\}_{m=0}^{+\infty} \in L_{\tau}(\mathbb{Z}^{+}) \text{ for } 0 < \tau < +\infty, \text{ then } f \in L_{q,\tau}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n}). \text{ But if } L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n}) = 0$$

for $\tau = +\infty$: $\sup_{m \in \mathbb{Z}^+} 2^{-\frac{nm}{2q}} \sum_{k=0}^{m} 2^{\frac{nk}{2p}} E_{2^k,\dots,2^k}(f)_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)} < +\infty$, then $f \in L_{q\infty}(\mathbb{R}_n;\rho_n)$. At the same time inequalities take place, when $0 < \tau < +\infty$:

$$\|f\|_{L_{q,\tau}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n})} \leq C_{pq\theta\tau n} \left\{ \|f\|_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n})} + \left[\sum_{m=0}^{+\infty} 2^{m\left(\frac{n}{2p} - \frac{n}{2q}\right)\tau} E_{2^{m},\dots,2^{m}}^{\tau}(f)_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n})}\right]^{\frac{1}{\tau}} \right\};$$
$$\|_{L_{q\infty}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n})} \leq C_{pq\theta n} \left\{ \|f\|_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n})} + \sup_{m\in\mathbb{Z}^{+}} 2^{-\frac{nm}{2q}} \sum_{k=0}^{m} 2^{\frac{nk}{2p}} E_{2^{k},\dots,2^{k}}(f)_{L_{p,\theta}(\mathbb{R}_{n};\rho_{n})} \right\}, \text{when} \quad \tau = +\infty.$$





ABOUT NEW FORM OF EQUATIONS IN THE PROBLEM OF A SOLID BODY ROTATIONAL MOTION $B_{p_1,...,p_n,\theta}^{r_1,...,r_n} \subset L^{q_1,...,q_n}$

K. Sulejmenov Kokshetau State University, Kokshetau, Kazakhstan e-mail:kenessary@mail.ru

The problem of finding necessary and sufficient conditions for embedding anisotropic Nikolskii -Besov spaces in the mixed norm is considered in this abstract.

It is valid

Theorem. Let $1 \le p_j < q_j \le \infty$ (j = 1, ..., n) $(L^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^n) \equiv C(\mathbb{R}^n)), 0 < \theta \le \infty$. Then

$$B_{p_1,\dots,p_n,\theta}^{\omega_1,\dots,\omega_n}\left(R^n\right) \subset L^{q_1,\dots,q_n}\left(R^n\right) \Leftrightarrow \left\{\int_0^1 \left[\Omega\left(t\right)t^{-\max_{1\le j\le n}\left(\frac{1}{p_j}-\frac{1}{q_j}\right)}\right]^{\rho}\frac{dt}{t}\right\}^{1/\rho}$$

(in necessary assumed $1/p_1 - 1/q_1 = ... = 1/p_n - 1/q_n$).

Here modules of smoothness $\omega_j(\delta)$ of order of $k_j \geq 1$: $\omega_j(0) = 0$, $\omega_j(1) = 1$, $\omega_j(t) \cdot t^{-\beta_j}$ almost decreased on $0 < \beta_j < k_j$; $\Omega(\delta)$ the average modulus of smoothness of the system $\omega_1, ..., \omega_n$; $q^* = \{\min q_j\}$, if $q_j < \infty$ for some j = 1, ..., n and $q^* = 1$ for others $q_1 = ... = q_n = \infty$, $\rho = (\theta q^*) / (\theta - q^*)$ for other $\theta > q^*$ and $\rho = \infty$ for other $\theta > q^*$.

Corollary. Let $1/p_1 - 1/q_1 = ... = 1/p_n - 1/q_n$. Then

$$1) \ B_{p_{1},\dots,p_{n},\theta}^{r_{1},\dots,r_{n}}(R^{n}) \subset L^{q_{1},\dots,q_{n}}(R^{n}) \Leftrightarrow \begin{cases} 0 < \theta \leq +\infty, \ 1 = \left(\frac{1}{r_{1}} + \dots + \frac{1}{r_{n}}\right) \left(\frac{1}{p_{1}} - \frac{1}{q_{1}}\right), \\ 0 < \theta \leq q^{*}, \ 1 = \left(\frac{1}{r_{1}} + \dots + \frac{1}{r_{n}}\right) \left(\frac{1}{p_{1}} - \frac{1}{q_{1}}\right), \\ \left(\frac{1}{p_{1}} - \frac{1}{p_{1}}\right), \\ \left(\frac{1}{p_{$$

For case $p_1 = ... = p_n$, $q_1 = ... = q_n$ see in [1] and [2, §17].

- M.L. Gol'dman. Embedding theorems for the anizotrop Nikolskii-Besov spaces with module continuity of general type // Proceedings of MIAN SSSR, Vol.170, 1984, pp. 86-104.
- [2] O.V. Besov, V.P. Ilin, S.M. Nikol'skii. Integral Representation of the Functions and Embedding Theorems // M.: Nauka, 1975.





LOWER AND UPPER ESTIMATES FOR THE NUMBER OF THREE PARTICLE BOUND STATES AND STRUCTURE OF ESSENTIAL SPECTRA OF THE ENERGY OPERATOR OF TWO-MAGNON SYSTEMS IN A NON-HEISENBERG FERROMAGNET WITH ARBITRARY SPIN VALUE S AND NEAREST-NEIGHBOR INTERACTIONS¹

S. M. Tashpulatov

Institute of Nuclear Physics of Uzbek Academy of Sciences, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:toshpul@mail.ru, toshpul@rambler.ru

We consider a two-magnon system in the isotropic ferromagnetic non-Heisenberg model with arbitrary spin value S and nearest-neighbor interactions on a ν -dimensional lattice Z^{ν} with nearest-neighbor interactions and study the essential and discrete spectra of this system.

Hamiltonian of the system has the form

$$H = -\sum_{m,\tau} \sum_{n=1}^{2s} J_n (\vec{S}_m \vec{S}_{m+\tau})^n - \sum_{\tau} \sum_{n=1}^{2s} (J_n^0 - J_n) (\vec{S}_0 \vec{S}_{\tau})^n,$$
(1)

where $J_n > 0, n = 1, 2, ..., 2s$ are the parameters of the multipole exchange interaction between the nearest-neighbor atoms in the lattice, J_n^0 are the atom-impurity multipole exchange interaction parameters, \vec{S}_m is the atomic spin operator for the spin s at the m^{th} lattice site, and the summation over τ ranges the nearest neighbors.

The Hamiltonian (1) acts in the symmetric Fock space \mathcal{H} . We denote by \mathcal{H}_2 two-magnon invariant subspace of operator H. Denoted by H_2 the restriction of H to \mathcal{H}_2 .

Operator H_2 is a bounded self-adjoint operator. It is in the quasimomentum representation acts in the space $\tilde{H}_2 = L_2(T^{\nu} \times T^{\nu})$ to the formula

$$(\widetilde{H}_2 f)(x;y) = h(x;y)f(x;y) + \int_{T^{\nu}} h_1(x;y;t)f(t;x+y-t)dt + \int_{T^{\nu}} h_2(x;s)f(s;y)ds + \int_{T^{\nu}} h_2(x;y)ds + \int_{T^{\nu}}$$

 $+ \int_{T^{\nu}} h_3(y;t) f(x;t) dt + \int_{T^{\nu}} \int_{T^{\nu}} h_4(x;y;s;t) f(s;t) ds dt, \text{ where } h(x;y), h_1(x;y;t), h_2(x;s), h_3(y;t) \text{ and } h_4(x;y;s;t) - \text{ is the some concrete } 2\pi \text{- periodical continuous functions, } T^{\nu} \text{ is the } \nu - \text{ dimensional torus endowed with the normalized Lebesgue measure } d\lambda : \lambda(T^{\nu}) = 1.$

Let N- number of three-particle bound states (BS) of operator H, and

$$p(s) = -2\sum_{k=1}^{2s} (-2s)^k J_k, q(s) = -2\sum_{k=1}^{2s} (-2s)^k (J_k^0 - J_k).$$

Theorem 1. If $\nu = 1$ and $p(s) > 0, -p(s) \le q(s) < 0$ or p(s) < 0, 0 < q(s) < -p(s), then the essential spectrum of the operator \widetilde{H}_2 consists of a single interval: $\sigma_{ess.}(\widetilde{H}_2) = [0; 4p(s)]$, or $\sigma_{ess.}(\widetilde{H}_2) = [4p(s); 0]$ and the relation $0 \le N \le 12$ holds for the number of three-particle BSs.

Theorem 2. If $\nu = 1$ and p(s) > 0, q(s) < -p(s) or p(s) < 0, q(s) < p(s) (p(s) > 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, q(s) > -p(s), p(s) < 1 and p(s) > 0, q(s) < -p(s) or p(s) < 0, q(s) > -p(s), p(s) < 1 and p(s) > 0, q(s) < -p(s) or p(s) < 0, q(s) > -p(s), p(s) < 1 and p(s) > 0, q(s) < -p(s) or p(s) < 0, q(s) > -p(s), p(s) < 1 and p(s) > 0, p(s) < -p(s) or p(s) < 0, q(s) > 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < q(s) or p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p(s) < 0, p

Here z_1 and z_2 are the eigenvalues of operator H_1 .

It is received similar results for other dimensions to a lattice.

¹ This research is supported by Institute of Nuclear Physics of Uzbek Academy of Sciences, Tashkent, Uzbekistan.





LIMITING ERROR OF INEXECT INFORMATION UNDER OPTIMAL RECONSTRUCTION OF FUNCTIONS FROM THE NIKOL'SKII CLASS IN THE UNIFORM METRICS

N. Temirgaliev, Sh.U. Azhgaliev, G.E. Taugynbaeva

L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan

Institute of Theoretical Mathematics and Scientific Computations, Astana, Kazakhstan

e-mail:temirgaliyev_nt@enu.kz

Let (explanation of notation, see [1])

$$\delta_N(\varepsilon_N) \equiv \delta_N(D_N; T, F, \varepsilon_N)_Y = \inf_{\substack{(l^{(N)}, \varphi_N) \in D_N \\ |l_j(f) - z_j| \le \varepsilon_N \\ i = 1 \dots N}} \sup_{\substack{f \in F, \\ |l_j(f) - z_j| \le \varepsilon_N \\ i = 1 \dots N}} \|u(\cdot; f) - \varphi_N(z_1, \dots, z_N; \cdot)\|_Y.$$

The problem defenition of limiting error of inexect information under optimal reconstruction of functions from F consist of finding sequence $\tilde{\varepsilon}_N$ (N = 1, 2, ...) such as satisfy the relation $\delta_N (D_N, T, F; \tilde{\varepsilon}_N)_Y \approx \delta_N (D_N, T, F; 0)_Y$ $(N \to +\infty)$ and, simultaneously, for any tending to $+\infty$ on increasing N sequence $\{\eta_N\}$ the equality (a few, other formulation, see eg. [2-3])

$$\overline{\lim_{N \to \infty}} \frac{\delta_N (D_N, T, F; \eta_N \tilde{\varepsilon}_N)_Y}{\delta_N (D_N, T, F; 0)_Y} = +\infty.$$

takes place.

Let us consider a particular example of the general problem being formulated (see also [1] and [4]): $F = H_p^r(0,1)$ be the Nikol'skii class, $Y = L^{\infty} \equiv C[0,1]$, where $1 \leq p < +\infty$, $r > 1 + \frac{1}{p}, D_N^{(*)} = \{(l_0(f), ..., l_N(f)) : l_j(f) - \text{ are all linear functionals from the linear hull } F = H_p^r(0,1) \text{ such that } |l_j(f)| \leq 1\} \times \{\varphi_N\}.$

Under these conditions, the following theorem is valid

Theorem. Let numbers $1 \le p < \infty$ and $r > 1 + \frac{1}{p}$ be given and $\tilde{\varepsilon}_N = N^{-\left(r - \frac{1}{p}\right)}$. Then

$$\delta_N(D_N^{(*)}, Tf = f, H_p^r(0, 1), 0)_{C[0,1]} \approx$$

$$\approx \delta_N(D_N^{(*)}, Tf = f, H_p^r(0, 1), \tilde{\varepsilon}_N)_{C[0,1]} \approx N^{-\left(r - \frac{1}{p}\right)},$$

for any tending to $+\infty$ positive sequence $\{\eta_N\}_{N=1}^{\infty}$ the equality

$$\overline{\lim_{N \to \infty}} \frac{\delta_N \left(\left\{ D_N^{(*)}; Tf = f, H_p^r(0, 1); \tilde{\varepsilon}_N \eta_N \right\} \right)_{C[0, 1]}}{\delta_N \left(\left\{ D_N^{(*)}; Tf = f, H_p^r(0, 1); 0 \right\} \right)_{C[0, 1]}} = +\infty.$$

takes place.

- N. Temirgaliyev. Computer diameter. Algerbaic number theory and hormanic analysis in the reconstruction problems (Monte-Karlo method). // Vestnick ENU im. L.N.Gumilyova, 2010, pp. 1-194.
- [2] J.F. Traub, H. Wozniakowski. A General Theory of Optimal Algorithms // Academic Press, New York, 1980.
- [3] Sh.U. Azhgaliev, N. Temirgaliev. On an informative power of the linear functionals // Matem. zametki, Vol.3, No.6, 2003, pp. 803-812.





AT THE PROBLEM ON A LIMITING ERROR OF THE INEXACT INFORMATION AT OPTIMUM RECONSTRUCTION OF FUNCTIONS FROM SOBOLEV CLASS

N. Temirgaliev, Sh.U. Azhgaliev, G.E. Taugynbaeva L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan Institute of Theoretical Mathematics and Scientific Computations, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:temirgaliyev_nt@enu.kz

Let the continuous function f(x) be defined on the interval [0, 1]. We pose the problem of optimal reconstruction of functions from inaccurate numerical information of a given N, obtained from the function f(x) by means of functionals $l_1(f), ..., l_N(f)$ (notation explained in [1]):

1) $\delta_N(0) \approx \delta_N(\tilde{\varepsilon}_N),$ 2) $\forall \eta_N \uparrow +\infty : \lim_{N \to \infty} \frac{\delta_N(\eta_N \tilde{\varepsilon}_N)}{\delta_N(\tilde{\varepsilon}_N)} = +\infty,$ where

$$\delta_N(\varepsilon_N) \equiv \delta_N(D_N; T, F, \varepsilon_N)_Y = \inf_{\substack{(l^{(N)}, \varphi_N) \in D_N \\ j = 1, \dots, N}} \sup_{\substack{f \in F, \\ |l_j(f) - z_j| \le \varepsilon_N \\ j = 1, \dots, N}} \|u(\cdot; f) - \varphi_N(z_1, \dots, z_N; \cdot)\|_Y.$$

Under this formulation of the problem (other formulations, see [2-3]) in circumstances - $F = W_p^r(0,1)$ the Sobolev class, $Y = L^q(0,1)$ ($L^{\infty} \equiv C[0,1]$) - Lebesgue space, where $1 \leq p < q \leq +\infty$, integer $r \geq 1$, $D_N^{(*)} = \{(l_1(f), ..., l_N(f)) : l_j(f) - \text{ all possible linear functionals on the linear hull such that the answer$

$$\delta_N(0) \asymp \tilde{\varepsilon}_N \asymp N^{-\left(r - \left(\frac{1}{p} - \frac{1}{q}\right)\right)}$$

means the following (see also [4]): Whatever the computer unit $\varphi_N = (l_1(f), ..., l_N(f); x)$ may raise, including what has been done in approximation theory and computational mathematics, including all of the Fourier series, the bases, interpolating polynomials, wavelets, Fourier widths, etc., it is better not to approximate at the prescribed speed. Figuratively speaking, "to attract any conceivable computational units" can not provide a large degree of approximation. In this case, linear functionals $l_1(f), ..., l_N(f)$, which provide numerical information about the volume N by f can be calculated with precision less than or equal to $\tilde{\varepsilon}_N = N^{-\left(r - \left(\frac{1}{p} - \frac{1}{q}\right)\right)}$, but with the preservation rate of reconstruction $\delta_N(0)$, no more.

- N. Temirgaliyev. Computer width. Algebraic number theory and harmonic analysis to problems of recovery (by the quasi-Monte Carlo). Embedding and approximation theory. Fourier series // Proceeding of L.N.Gumilov ENU, 2010, p.11-94.
- [2] L. Plaskota. Noisy Information and Computational Complexity // Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 1996.
- [3] K.J. Osipenko // Math. Notes, Vol.19, No.1, 1976, pp. 29-40.
- [4] Sh.U. Azhgaliev, N. Temirgaliev // Mathem. Sb., Vol.198, No.11, 2007, pp. 3-20.





ON SOME CHARACTERIZATION OF SUPERPARACOMPACTNESS, STRONG PARACOMPACTNESS AND COMPLETE PARACOMPACTNESS

I.I. Tillaboev

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

In this paper, we study uniform analogs of complete paracompactness [1] strong paracompactness [2], and superparacompactness [3].

Definition 1. (i) A star finite (finite-component) U - locally finite [4] cover ω of a uniform space (X, U) is said to be uniformly star-finite (respectively, uniformly finite-component); (ii) A σ star-finite [3] (in particular, σ - finite -component [3]) U -locally finite cover λ of a uniform space (X, U) is said to be uniformly σ - star-finite (respectively, uniformly σ - finite-component); (iii) A cover of a uniform space (X, U) wich can be represented as a countable family of uniformly star-finite (uniformly finite-component) covers is said to be σ - uniformly star-finite (respectively, σ - uniformly finite-component).

Proposition 1. If a uniformly space (X, U) is R-superparacompact (R-strong paracompact, Rcompletely paracompact). Moreover, if X is a superparacompact Hausdorff space (strongly paracompact Hausdorff space) and U^* is its universal uniformity, then the uniform space (X, U^*) is R-super paracompact (respectively, R-strongly paracompact).

Proposition 2. For a uniform space (X, U), the following conditions (a1), (b1), (c1), and (d1) are equivalent to conditions (a2), (b2), (c2), and (d2), respectively:(a1) (X, U) is R-paracompact; (a2) any finitely additive [4] open cover of (X, U) has a U-locally finite open refinement; (b1) (X, U) is R-completely paracompact; (b2) any finitely additive open cover of (X, U) has a uniform σ - star-finite open weak refinement; (c1) R-strongly paracompact; (c2) any finitely additive open cover of (X, U) has a uniform star-finite open refinement; (d1) (X, U) is R-superparacompact; (d2) any finitely additive open cover of (X, U) has a uniform star-finite open refinement; (d1) (X, U) is R-superparacompact; (d2) any finitely additive open cover of (X, U) has a uniform finite-component open refinement.

Theorem 1. For a uniform space (X, U), the following conditions (a1) and (b1) are equivalent to conditions (a2), and (b2), respectively:(a1) the space (X, U) is uniformly R-superparacompact; (a2)the space (X, U) is uniformly R-paracompact and (X, τ_u) is superparacompact; (b1) the space (X, U) is uniformly R-strongly paracompact; (b2) the space (X, U) is uniformly R-paracompact and (X, τ_u) is uniformly R-paracompact and (X, τ_u) is superparacompact; (b1) the space (X, U) is strongly paracompact.

Theorem 2. Let(X, U) be uniform space and let bX be a compact Hausdorff extension of X. Then the following conditions are equivalent: (a) (X, U) is R -superparacompact; (b) for any compact space $K \subseteq bX \setminus X$, there exists a U-locally finite disjoint open cover λ of (X, U) which punctures the compact set K in bX.

Proposition 3. Any uniformly zero-dimensional R -paracompact space is R -super paracompact.

- [1] A.V. Zarelua. On the Hurewicz theorem // Mat.Sb., Vol.102, No.60, 1963, pp. 17-28.
- [2] Yu.M. Smirnov. On strongly paracompact space // Izv.Akad.Nauk SSSR, Ser. Mat., Vol.20, No.2.
- [3] D.K. Musaev and B.A. Pasynkov. On the Compactness- and Completeness-Type Properties of Topological Spaces and Continuous Mappings // FAN, Tashkent, 1994(in Rassian).
- [4] A.A. Borubaev and A.A. Chekeev. Uniformly Spaces // Bishkek, 2003(in Rassian).
- [5] V.A. Pasynkov and D. Buhagier. On uniform paracompactness // Czech.Math.J., Vol.46, No.121, 1996, pp. 577-581.





THE INTEGRAL EQUATION OF VOLTERRA'S TYPE OF THE SECOND ORDER

Amangaliyeva M.M., Tuimebayeva A.E. Institute of Mathematics, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:akner.nur@gmail.com

The Volterra's type integral equation of second order is considered

$$\mathbf{K}_{\lambda}\mu \equiv \mu(t) - \lambda \int_{0}^{t} \mathscr{K}(t,\tau)\mu(\tau)d\tau = f(t), \ t \in \mathbb{R}_{+},$$
(1)

where the kernel $\mathscr{K}(t,\tau)$ is defined by equality

$$\mathscr{K}(t,\tau) = \frac{1}{\tau^{\alpha}(t-\tau)^{1-\alpha}}, \quad 0 < \tau < t < \infty.$$

The right part and the equation solution (1) belong to classes of the functions summarized with corresponding spaces:

$$\{\exists \ \gamma < 1 - \alpha : \ t^{\gamma - 1} f(t) \in L_1(R_+)\}, \ e^{-t} f(t) \in L_1(\mathbb{R}_+), \ t^{-\alpha} e^{-t} \mu(t) \in L_1(\mathbb{R}_+).$$
(2)

Main result. For any function f(t) from (2) the inhomogeneous the integral equation (1) has the decision from a class (2):

$$\begin{cases} \mu(t) = f(t) + l(-s^*) \int_0^t \frac{\tau^{-s^*-1}}{t^{-s^*}} f(\tau) d\tau + C t^{-s^*}, & \text{if } Re \lambda > 0; \\ \mu(t) = f(t) + \int_0^t \sum_{k=1}^\infty l(s_k^0) \frac{\tau^{s_k^0 - 1}}{t^{s_k^0}} f(\tau) d\tau, & \text{if } Re \lambda < 0. \end{cases}$$
(3)

Obviously, the function (3) belong to a class (2).

The following result is proved.

Theorem. Particular integral operator Volterra \mathbf{K}_{λ} , corresponding to the equation (1), is Noether's and has the index

$$ind\{\mathbf{K}_{\lambda}\} = \begin{cases} 1, & \text{if } Re\lambda > 0, \\ 0, & \text{if } Re\lambda < 0. \end{cases}$$

- A.M. Nakhushev. Return of a problem for the degenerating equations and the integrated equations of Volterra of the third sort // Differents, The equations, Vol. 10, No.1, 1974, pp. 100-111.
- [2] M.L. Krasnov. The Integral Equations // M: Science, 1975.
- [3] I.C. Gradshtein, I.M. Ryzhik. Tables of Integrals of the Sums, Numbers and Products // Fizmatgiz, 1963.





WEIGHTED APPROXIMATION BY NEW BERNSTEIN-STANCU-CHLODOWSKY POLYNOMIALS

Ali Aral, Tuncer Acar Kirikkale University, Kirikkale, Turkey e-mail:aliaral73@yahoo.com, tunceracar@ymail.com

In the present paper, we introduce Bernstein-Stancu-Chlodowsky polynomials taking into consideration the polynomials introduced by Gadjiev and Ghorbanalizadeh [2]. The interval of convergence of the polynomials is a moved interval as polynomials given in [2] but grows as $n \to \infty$ as in the classical Bernstein-Chlodowsky polynomials. Also their knots are shifted and depend on x.

We firstly study weighted approximation properties of these polynomials and show that these polynomials are more efficient in weighted approximating to function having polynomial growth, since these polynomials contain a factor b_n tending to infinity having a certain degree of freedom. Secondly, we calculate derivative of new Bernstein-Stancu-Chlodowsky polynomials and give a weighted approximation theorem in Lipschitz space for the derivatives of these polynomials.

- I. Chlodowsky Sur le developpement des fonctions definies dans un intervalle infini en series de polynomes de M. S. Bernstein // Compositio Math., Vol.4, 1937, pp. 380-393.
- [2] A.D. Gadjiev, A.M. Ghorbanalizadeh. Approximation properties of a new type Bernstein-Stancu polynomials of one and two variables // Appl. Math. Compl., Vol.216, 2010, pp. 890-901.
- [3] A.D. Gadjiev, N.Ispir. On a sequence of linear positive operators in weighted space // Proc. Inst. Math. Mech. Vol.11, 1999, pp. 45-56.
- [4] A.D. Gadjiev, I. Efendiev, E. Ibikli. Generalized Bernstein-Chlodowsky polynomials // Rocky Mount. J. Math., Vol.28, No. 4, 1998, pp. 1267-1277.
- [5] A.D. Gadzhiev. The convergence problem for a sequence of positive linear operators on unbounded sets and theorems analogous to that of P. P. Korovkin // English translated Sor. Math. Dokl., Vol.15, No.5, 1974.
- [6] A.D. Gadzhiev, P.P. Korovkin. Type theorems // Mathem. Zametki, Vol.20, No.5, 1976, Engl. Transl., Math. Notes 20, pp. 995-998.
- [7] E.A. Gadjieva, E. Ibikli. Weighted approximation by Bernstein-Chlodowsky polynomials // Indian J. Pure Appl. Math., Vol.30, No.1, 1997, pp. 83-87.
- [8] D.D. Stancu. Approximation of functions by a new class of linear polynomial operators // Rev. Roum. Math. Pure Appl., Vol.13, 1968, pp. 1173-1194.





CONVERGENCE OF THE q-MIXED SUMMATION INTEGRAL TYPE OPERATORS

İsmet Yüksel Gazi University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:iyuksel@gazi.edu.tr

In this study, we introduce an analogue of a certain family of mixed summation integral type operators as

$$B_{n,p}^{q}(f;x) = [n+p-1]_{q} \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} s_{n,p,k}(x;q) \int_{0}^{\infty/A} q^{k(k-1)} b_{n,p,k-1}(t;q) f(t) d_{q}t + e_{q}^{-[n+p]_{q}x} f(0),$$

where

and

 $s_{n,p,k}(x;q) := e_q^{-[n+p]_q x} \frac{([n+p]_q x)^k}{[k]_q!}$

$$b_{n,p,k}(t;q) := \begin{bmatrix} n+p+k-1\\k \end{bmatrix}_q \frac{t^k}{(1+t)_q^{n+p+k}}.$$

We investigate their approximation properties. We establish a direct approximation theorem. Furthermore, we give a weighted approximation theorem and obtain rates of convergence of these operators for continuous functions.

- A.D. Gadzhiev. The convergence problem for a sequence of positive linear positive operators on unbounded sets and theorems analogues to that of P. P. Korovkin, (in Russian), Dokl. Akad. Nauk. SSSR Vol.218, No.5, 1974, pp. 1001-1004, (in English), Sov. Math. Dokl., Vol.15, No.5, 1974, pp. 1433-1436.
- [2] A.D. Gadzhiev. Theorems of the type of P. P. Korovkin type theorems // Math. Zametki Vol.20, No.5, 1976, pp. 781-786, English Translation, Math. Notes Vol.20, No.5/6, 1976, pp. 996-998.
- [3] Alexandru Lupaş. A q-analogue of the Bernstein operator // Seminar on numerical and statistical calculus, University of Cluj-Napoca 9, 1987, pp. 85-92.
- [4] Alberto De Sole, Victor G. Kac. On integral representations of q-gamma and q-beta functions // Atti Accad. Naz. Lincei Cl. Sci. Fis. Mat. Natur. Rend. Lincei, 9 Mat. Appl., Vol.16, No.1, 2005, pp. 11-29.
- [5] Ali Aral, Vijay Gupta. On the Durrmeyer type modification of the q-Baskakov type operators // Nonlinear Anal., Vol.72, No.3-4, 2010, pp. 1171-1180.
- [6] F.H. Jackson. On q-definite integrals // Quart. J. Pure Appl. Math., Vol.41, No.15, 1910, pp. 193-203.
- [7] George Gasper and Mizan Rahman. Basic Hypergeometric Series. With a foreword by Richard Askey // Encyclopedia of Mathematics and its Applications, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, Vol.35, 1990.
- [8] George M. Phillips. Bernstein polynomials based on the q-integers // Ann. Numer. Math., No.4, 1997, pp. 511-518.
- H.T. Koelink, T.H. Koorwinder. q-special Functions, a Tutorial // Deformation theory and quantum groups with applications to mathematical physics, Amherst, MA, 1990, pp. 141-142, Contemp. Math., Vol.134, Amer. Math. Soc., Providence, RI, 1992.
- [10] Jyoti Sinha, Vinai K. Singh. Rate of convergence on the mixed summation integral type operators // Gen. Math. Vol.14, No.4, 2006, pp. 29-36.
- [11] Ronald A. DeVore and George G. Lorentz. Constructive Approximation // Springer, Berlin 1993.
- [12] Victor G. Kac, Pokman Cheung. Quantum Calculus // Universitext., Springer-Verlag, New York, 2002.
- [13] Vijay Gupta, Esra Erkuş. On Hybrid Family of Summation Integral Type Operators // JIPAM. J. Inequal. Pure Appl. Math., Vol.7, No.1, 2006, Article 23.
- [14] Vijay Gupta, W. Heping. The rate of convergence of q-Durrmeyer operators for 0 < q < 1 // Math. Methods Appl. Sci., Vol.31, No.16, 2008, pp. 1946-1955.
- [15] Vijay Gupta, Ali Aral. Convergence of the q- analogue of Szász-beta operators // Appl. Math. Comput., Vol.216, No.2, 2010, pp. 374–380.





RECONSTRUCTION OF MIXED DERIVATIVES OF FUNCTIONS BELONGS TO THE CLASS W_2^r

A.Zh. Zhubanysheva L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University e-mail:axaulezh@mail.ru

The problem of reconstructing the derivatives is considered by a number of papers (see, for example, [1-3]).

For a nonnegative integer r the Sobolev class W_2^r is the set of all integrable function f(x) = $f(x_1, ..., x_s)$ that are 1-periodic in each variable and, which trigonometric Fourier-Lebesgue coefficients satisfy the condition

$$\sum_{m_1,...,m_s)\in Z^s} \left| \hat{f}(m_1,...,m_s) \right|^2 \left(\overline{m}_1^{2r} + ... + \overline{m}_s^{2r} \right) \le 1,$$

where Z^s is a set of all vectors $m = (m_1, ..., m_s)$ with integer components, $\overline{m}_j = \max\{1, |m_j|\}$ (j = 1, ..., s).

Theorem. Let numbers $s (s = 2, 3, ...), \alpha_j \ge 0 (j = 1, 2, ..., s)$ and r such, that $r > \left(\sum_{j=1}^{s} \alpha_j + \frac{1}{2}\right) s$.

Then holds

 $\sup_{f \in W_2^r} \left\| f^{(\alpha_1, \dots, \alpha_s)}(x) - \varphi_N(f(\xi_1), \dots, f(\xi_N); x) \right\|_{L^2[0,1]^s \ s, r, \alpha_1, \dots, \alpha_s} \ll N^{-\frac{r + (\alpha_1 + \dots + \alpha_s)}{s}} (p = 2, 3, \dots; N = p^s),$

where

$$\varphi_N \left(f\left(\xi_1\right), ..., f\left(\xi_N\right); x \right) = \frac{1}{N} \sum_{\xi^{(n)} \in S_N} f\left(\xi^{(n)}\right),$$
$$\sum_{\substack{|m_j| < \frac{p}{2} \\ j = 1, 2, ..., s}} {}^* \left(2\pi i m_1\right)^{\alpha_1} ... \left(2\pi i m_s\right)^{\alpha_s} \hat{f}\left(m\right) e^{2\pi i \left(m, x - \xi^{(n)}\right)}$$

and

$$S_N = \left\{ \xi^{(n)} = \left(\frac{n_1}{p}, ..., \frac{n_s}{p}\right) : \ n = (n_1, ..., n_s) \in Z^s, \ 0 \le n_j < p, \ j = 1, 2, ..., s \right\}.$$

- [1] P.K. Suetin. Optimal choice of interpolation points in the Lagrange formula for approximate differentiation // Integral Transforms and Special Functions, Vol.2, No.1, 2001, pp. 115-118.
- [2] N.S. Baiguzov. Approximate differentiation by interpolyationly the Lagrange, Hermite // Doklady USSR, Vol.182, No.1, 1968, pp. 16-19.
- [3] G.G. Magaril-II'yaev, K.U. Osipenko. Optimal reconstruction functions and his derivatives with unexpect Fourier transformation // Math. Zametki, Vol.195, No.10, 2004, pp. 67-82.





SECTION IV

Partial and Ordinary Differential Equations

SOLVING OF THE MIXED CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR THE ONE-DIMENSIONAL HEAT EQUATION IN QUADRATURES BY A METHOD OF EXTERNAL POTENTIAL

Tynysbek Sh. Kalmenov Institute of Mathematics, Informatics and Mechanics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kalmenov.t@mail.ru

Mixed Cauchy problem: in the rectangle $\Omega = \{ 0 < t < T, 0 < x < 1 \}$ find a regular solution of the equation

$$\left(\frac{\partial}{\partial t} - \frac{\partial}{\partial x^2}\right)u = f(x, t),\tag{1}$$

satisfying to the initial condition

$$u|_{t=0} = 0,$$
 (2)

and the boundary conditions

$$u|_{x=0} = u|_{x=1} = 0. (3)$$

It is known that, as a rule, problem (1) - (3) is solved by the method of Fourier, or by the method of integral equations, but, until now it was impossible to solve it in the quadratures.

In this work the solution of the mixed Cauchy problem is obtained by the method of external thermal potential in the quadratures.

The essence of the method external potential is to find solution in the form

$$u = (\varepsilon * f)(x, t) + (\varepsilon * g)(x, t)$$
(4)

where g(x,t) is unknown function, the support of g(x,t) lies outside of Ω , $supp \subset \mathbb{R}^2 \setminus \Omega$. Satisfying to the boundary condition (3) we obtain the Volterra integral equation of the type I and for the special choice of an unknown function it is possible to invert the integral equation for g(x,t) explicitly.

- [1] O.A. Ladyzhenskay. Boundary Value Problems fog Parabolic Equation // Nauka, 1973.
- [2] O.A. Ladyzhenskay. Mathematical Questions of the Dynamics of the Viscous Incompressible Fluid // Nauka, 1970.
- [3] V.S. Vladimirov. Equations of Mathematical Physics // Nauka, 1988.





HYBRID RANS/LES METHOD FOR SOLVING NAVIER - STOKES EQUATIONS BY USING PARALLEL TECHNOLOGY

Bakytzhan Zhumagulov, Alibek Isakhov Al-Fabari Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:aliisahov@mail.ru

In modern transport aircraft applied intensively Reynolds averaged Navier-Stokes(RANS) method to compute flow field. An extensive survey for RANS computations over the last 10-15 years is given by Rumsey and Ying[1]. They conclude that one of the most challenging topics for the numerical analysis of multi-element high-lift flows in the next decade is the understanding of unsteady effects. To resolve unsteady flow structures large-eddy simulation(LES) is known to be a reliable method. But, computational costs restricted LES mainly to low Reynolds number flows. Multi-element flows highly unsteady and non-equilibrium flow regions exist. These structure require LES to obtain accurate result. These unsteady flows are often limited to certain part of the flow field, usually in regions where separated flow occur. To decrease computational time, used a hybrid RANS/LES. This mean, if this is non-equilibrium regions are used LES approach, otherwise used RANS. The large eddy simulation method is based on the filtered Navier-Stokes equations for three dimensional compressible flow. Using the standard notation the filtered equations with mass-weighted variables are given by

$$\frac{\partial \rho}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_i} (\bar{\rho} \tilde{u_i}) = 0, \tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t}(\bar{\rho}\tilde{u}_i) + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_j}(\bar{\rho}\tilde{u}_i\tilde{u}_j) + \frac{\partial\bar{p}}{\partial x_i} = \frac{\partial\bar{\tau}_{ij}}{\partial x_j} + \frac{\partial\tau_{ij}^{SGS}}{\partial x_j}$$
(2)

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t}(\bar{\rho}\tilde{e}_{t}) + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}}(\bar{\rho}\tilde{e}_{t} + \bar{p})\tilde{u}_{j} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}}(\tilde{u}_{i}\bar{\tau}_{ij} + \tilde{u}_{i}\tau_{ij}^{SGS}) - \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}}(\bar{q}_{j} + \tau_{j}^{SGS})$$
(3)

The applied block structures flow solver is based on a vertex centered finite-volume technique, where the equations are implicitly filtered by a top-hat filter. All algorithm paralleled by using decomposition method. [2] Due to the nonlinearity of the convection terms their discrete formulation has a strong impact on the solution and as such has to be carefully selected. It has been shown that a mixed centralupwind Advective Upstream Method (AUSM) scheme with low numerical dissipation is appropriate for the discretization of these convective fluxes [3]. The AUSM method was introduced by Liou and Steffen [4].

- C.L. Rumsey, S.X. Ying. Prediction of high lift: review of present CFD capability // Prog. Aerosp. Sci., Vol.38, 2002, pp. 145-80.
- Q. Zhang, W. Schroder, M. Meinke. A zonal RANS-LES method to determine the flow over a high-lift configuration // Computers and Fluids, Vol.39, 2010. pp. 1241-1253.
- [3] M. Meinke, W. Schroder, E. Krause, Th. Rister. A comparison of second and sixth-order methods for large eddy simulation // Comput. Fluids, Vol.31, 2002, pp. 695-718.
- [4] M.S. Liou, Jr.ChJ. Steffen. A new flux splitting scheme // J. Comput. Phys., Vol.107, 1993, pp. 23-39.





ON NON-LOCAL BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE SYSTEM OF PARTIAL DERIVATIVE EQUATIONS

Galiya A. Abdikalikova Aktobe State University by K.Zhubanov, Aktobe, Kazakhstan e-mail: a_a_galiya@mail.ru

The non-local boundary value problem for the system of partial derivative equations is considered in $\overline{\Omega} = \{(x,t): t \leq x \leq t + \omega, 0 \leq t \leq T\}, T > 0, \omega > 0$

$$D\left[Du\right] = A(x,t)Du + S(x,t)u + f(x,t),\tag{1}$$

$$B(x)Du(x,0) + C(x)Du(x+T,T) = d(x), \quad x \in [0,\omega],$$
(2)

where $u \in \mathbb{R}^n$; $D = \frac{\partial}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x}$; $(n \times n)$ - matrices A(x,t), S(x,t), n - vector-function, f(x,t) are continuous on $\overline{\Omega}$; $(n \times n)$ - matrices B(x), C(x), n - vector-function d(x) are continuous on $[0, \omega]$.

A method of parameterization [1], [2] was developed for the system of hyperbolic equations with mixed derivative. In given work, introduce new unknown function v(x,t) = Du. Then investigation problem is reduces equivalent problem for the system of hyperbolic first-order equations.

Sufficient conditions are obtained for the unique and correct solvability of the problem in the terms of invertibility of the matrix, and boundary condition.

Theorem. Let for some h > 0: Nh = T and ν , $\nu = 1, 2, ..., (nN \times nN)$ - matrix $Q_{\nu}(\xi, h)$ invertible for all $\xi \in [0, \omega]$ and are satisfied:

a) $\|[Q_{\nu}(\xi, h)]^{-1}\| \leq \gamma_{\nu}(h);$ b) $q_{\nu}(\xi,h) = \gamma_{\nu}(h) \max\{1,h\|C(\xi)\|\} \left[e^{\alpha(\xi)h} - 1 - \alpha(\xi)h - \dots - \frac{(\alpha(\xi)h)^{\nu}}{\nu!}\right] \le \sigma < 1,$ where $\alpha(\xi) = \max_{\tau \in [0,T]} \|\widetilde{A}(\xi,\tau)\|, \ \sigma = const.$

Then following approximate $(\tilde{v}^{(k)}(\xi,\tau),\tilde{u}^{(k)}(\xi,\tau))$ converges to the unique solution of the problem (1)-(2).

In the work an algorithm is offered to find the solution of the considered problem.

Existence of the solution is established in the sense of Fridrihsu.

- [1] A.T. Asanova, D.S.Dzhumabaev. Well-Posed Solvability of non-local boundary value problems for systems of hyperbolic Equations // Differential Equations, Vol.41, No.3, 2005, pp. 352-363.
- [2] D.S. Dzhumabaev. The quality unique solvability linear boundary value problem for ordinary differential equations // J. Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.29, No.1, 1989, pp. 50-66.







ON AN UNIQUENESS OF THE SOLUTION OF THE POINCARE-TRICOMI PROBLEM FOR THE SECOND KIND ELLIPTIC-HYPERBOLIC EQUATION¹

A.A. Abdullayev National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:akmal09.07.85@mail.ru

We consider the equations

$$sgny |y|^m u_{xx} + u_{yy} = 0, \qquad (-1 < m < 0)$$
(1)

in the domain $D = D_1 \cup D_2$, where D_1 is bounded by the Jordan curve σ , resting in points A(0;0), B(1;0) and length AB in the direction y = 0, but D_2 is a bounded with the same length to axis y = 0 and with characteristics of the equations (1)

$$AC: x - \frac{2}{m+2}(-y)^{\frac{m+2}{2}} = 0, \quad BC: x + \frac{2}{m+2}(-y)^{\frac{m+2}{2}} = 1.$$

The Problem PT. Find a function u(x, y), which satisfies to the following conditions:

1) u(x,y) is a regular solution of the equation (1) in D_1 and is a generalized solution of a class R_2 in D_2 ;

 $(2)u_x, u_y \in C(\overline{D}_1 \setminus A \setminus B, D_2);$

3) on the a line of degeneration the splicing condition is satisfied

$$-\lim_{y\to -0} u_y = \lim_{y\to +0} u_y$$

4) the following boundary conditions are satisfied

$$\begin{aligned} \{\alpha(s)A_s(u) + \beta(s)u\}|_{\sigma} &= f(s), \qquad 0 \le s \le l, \\ u(x,y)|_{AC} &= \varphi(x), \qquad 0 \le x \le \frac{1}{2}, \end{aligned}$$

where *l*- a length of arc σ ; $A_s[*]$ - canormal derivative.

Note that, this problem is considered in the work [1] for the equations with two lines of degeneration of the first type but for only elliptical domain.

Given work is devoted to the investigation of the uniqueness of the solution of the considered problem. Under some restrictions on given functions uniqueness theorem is proved.

References

 M.S. Salahitdinov, B.I. Islomov. Mixed Type Equations with Two lines of the Degeneration // Tashkent, 2009, 261 p.





SOLUTION OF THE DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS INVOLVING NON-SEPARATED INTEGRAL AND POINTWISE CONDITIONS¹

Vagif M. Abdullayev Cybernetics Institute of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:vaqif_ab@rambler.ru

We investigate numerical solution of the system of ordinary differential equations:

$$x'(t) = A(t)x(t) + B(t), \ t \in [t_0, T] ,$$
(1)

involving non-separated multipoint integral conditions

$$\sum_{i=1}^{l_1} \int_{\tilde{t}_i}^{\tilde{t}_i + \Delta_i} \bar{D}_i(\tau) x(\tau) d\tau + \sum_{j=1}^{l_2} \tilde{D}_j x(\tilde{t}_j) = C_0, \quad \bar{t}_i, \tilde{t}_j \in [t_0, T],$$
(2)

where x(t) is unknown *n*-dimensional vector function; $A(t) \neq const$ given *n*-dimensional matrix function, B(t) given *n*-dimensional vector function; $t_0, T, \bar{t}_i, \tilde{t}_j, i = 1, 2, ..., l_1, j = 1, 2, ..., l_2$ given points of time; $\bar{D}_i(\tau)$, \tilde{D}_j matrices of dimension $n \times n$; C_0 *n*- dimensional vector; \bar{t}_i, \tilde{t}_j points of time from $[t_0, T]; l_1, l_2$ given values.

To be specific, we assume, without loss of generality, that

$$\min\left(\overline{t_1}, \ \tilde{t}_1\right) = t_0,\tag{3}$$

$$\max\left(\overline{t_{l_1}} + \Delta_1, \ \tilde{t}_{l_2}\right) = T,\tag{4}$$

and also, for all $i = \overline{1, l_1}$, $j = \overline{1, l_2}$ there takes place the natural condition

$$\tilde{t}_j \bar{\in} \left[\bar{t}_i, t_i + \Delta_i \right]. \tag{5}$$

In the work, we propose a numerical solution to problem (1), (2) based on the operation of convolution of integral conditions into local ones. This operation allows to reduce the solution to the initial problem to the solution to a Cauchy problem with respect to a system of ordinary differential equations and linear algebraic equations. We show the stability of the proposed calculating schemes. We also make a comparison with other possible methods and approaches to the solution to problem (1), (2).

Numerous numerical experiments have been carried out on specially constructed test problems with the application of the formulas and schemes of numerical solution proposed in the work. Results of experiments show sufficiently high efficiency of the approach described.

- A.A. Abramov. Variant of sweep method // J. of Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.1, No.2, 1961, pp. 377-381 (in Russian).
- K.R. Aida-zade, V.M.Abdullayev. Numerical Solution to Linear Systems of Ordinary Differential Equations Involving Multipoint non-separated Boundary Conditions // Proceedings of NANA, PTMS series, Vol.23, No.2, 2003.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1.





MEAN MODULS OF SMOOTHNESS MODULE BAY V.I.KOLYADA IN THE PROBLEM OF DISCRETIZATION OF SOLUTIONS TO THE WAVE EQUATION

Sh. Abikenova, A. Utessov, N. Temirgaliev L.N.Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail: shabik290mail.ru, ntmath290mail.ru

In this paper we study the Cauchy problem for the wave equation (s = 1, 2, ...)

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} = \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x_1^2} + \dots + \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x_s^2} \quad (u = u(x, t), \ 0 \le t \le 1, \ x \equiv (x_1, \dots, x_s) \in \mathbb{R}^s),$$
(1)

$$u(x,0) = f_1(x) \in W_2^{\omega_{r_1},\dots,\omega_{r_s}}(0,1)^s, \quad \frac{\partial u}{\partial t}(x,0) = f_2(x) \in W_2^{\nu,\dots,\nu}(0,1)^s.$$
(2)

By $W_2^{\omega_{r_1},\ldots,\omega_{r_s}}(0,1)^s$ we understand the set of all summable 1-periodic in each of its variables functions $f(x) = f(x_1, \ldots, x_s)$ with Fourier–Lesbegue coefficients $\hat{f}(m)$ satisfying the condition

$$\sum_{m=(m_1,\ldots,m_s)\in Z^s} \left|\hat{f}(m)\right|^2 \cdot \left(\omega_{r_1}^{-2}\left(\frac{1}{\overline{m_1}}\right) + \ldots + \omega_{r_s}^{-2}\left(\frac{1}{\overline{m_s}}\right)\right) \le 1$$

 $\overline{m_j} = \max\{1, |m_j|\}, j = 1, \dots, s.$ Class $W_2^{\omega_{r_1}, \dots, \omega_{r_s}}(0, 1)^s$ of anisotropic, i.e. every function of this class for each variable its smoothness, not necessarily power. In studying the properties of this class, we are talking about the outcome, or how else to say, the total effect, in this case, the sampling rate.

In the theorems of embedding a summary characteristics introduced V.I. Kolyada [1], though, then it turned out that not always the best possible conditions for investments are expressed through the average modulus of smoothness.

The following theorem shows that the exact order of sampling solutions to the wave equation is completely described in terms of average moduli of smoothness.

Theorem. (informative cardinality of all admissible linear functionals). Let $\{\omega_{r_1}, \ldots, \omega_{r_s}\}$ and ω_{ν} be a system and a particular function of smoothness module type of orders r_1, \ldots, r_s and ν respectively, satisfying conditions

$$\sum_{m \in \mathbb{Z}^s} \left((\overline{m_1})^4 \, \omega_{r_1}^{-2} \left(\frac{1}{\overline{m_1}} \right) + \ldots + (\overline{m_s})^4 \, \omega_{r_s}^{-2} \left(\frac{1}{\overline{m_s}} \right) \right) < \infty, \\ \sum_{m \in \mathbb{Z}^s} \left((\overline{m_1})^4 \, \omega_{\nu}^{-2} \left(\frac{1}{\overline{m_1}} \right) + \ldots + (\overline{m_s})^4 \, \omega_{\nu}^{-2} \left(\frac{1}{\overline{m_s}} \right) \right) < \infty$$

and the inequalities

 $\omega_{\alpha} \left(\eta \cdot \xi \right) \leq C(\omega_{\alpha}) \cdot \omega_{\alpha} \left(\eta \right) \cdot \omega_{\alpha} \left(\xi \right) \ \left(\alpha = r_1, \dots, r_s, \nu \right)$

for some positive $C(\omega_{\alpha_j})$ and for all $0 < \xi < \eta \leq 1, (\alpha = r_1, \ldots, r_s, \nu)$. Then for problem (1) and (2) the relations

$$\min_{\substack{N_1+N_2=N,\\N_1\geq 2,N_2\geq 2\\l_1^{(2)},\dots,l_N^{(1)}, f_1\in W_2^{\omega_{r_1},\dots,\omega_{r_s}}(0,1)^s\\\varphi_N}} \sup_{l_1^{(2)},\dots,l_N^{(2)}-f_2\in W_2^{\omega_{\nu},\dots,\omega_{\nu}}(0,1)^s} \left\| u\left(\cdot;f_1,f_2\right) - \varphi_N\left(l_1^{(1)}\left(f_1\right),\dots,l_1^{(N_1)}\left(f_1\right),\right) \right\|_{\mathcal{H}_{r_1}}$$

$$l_{2}^{(1)}(f_{2}),\ldots,l_{2}^{(N_{2})}(f_{2});\cdot\right)\Big\|_{L^{2,\infty}((0,1)^{s}\times[0,+\infty))} \underset{s,\omega_{r_{1}},\ldots,\omega_{r_{s}},\omega_{\nu}}{\asymp} \min_{\substack{N_{1}+N_{2}=N,\\N_{1}\geq2,N_{2}\geq2}} \left(\left(\prod_{j=1}^{s}\omega_{r_{j}}^{*}\right)^{*}\left(\frac{1}{N_{1}}\right) + \frac{\left(\left(\omega_{\nu}^{*}\right)^{s}\right)^{*}\left(\frac{1}{N_{2}}\right)}{\sqrt[s]{N_{2}}}\right)$$

References

[1] V.I. Kolyada. Embeddings of some classes of many variables functions // Sib. Matem. Journal, 1973, Vol.4, pp.766-790(in Russian).





ON A GLOBAL SOLVABILITY ONE OF THE INITIAL-BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM OF HEAT CONVECTIONS FOR THE KELVIN-VOIGHT FLUIDS

U.U. Abylkairov, S.Sh.Sakhaev, Kh.Khompysh Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Konat_K@mail.ru

We consider the initial-boundary value problem with free surface conditions for the modified equations (for Kelvin-Voigt fluids) of heat convection:

$$\vec{v}_t - \nu \Delta \vec{v} + v_k \vec{v}_{x_k} + \operatorname{grad} p - \chi \Delta \vec{v}_t = \vec{f}(x, t) + g \vec{\gamma} S \vec{\gamma} = (0, 0, 1), \qquad (1)$$

$$\operatorname{div}\vec{v} = 0, \ S_t - \lambda\Delta S + (\vec{v}\cdot\nabla)S = q(x,t)$$
(2)

$$\vec{v}|_{t=0} = \vec{v}_0(x), \, \mathbf{S}|_{t=0} = \mathbf{S}_0(x), \quad \vec{v}_n|_{\partial \mathbf{Q}_{\mathrm{T}}} = 0, \, (\mathrm{rot}\vec{v} \times n)|_{\partial \mathbf{Q}_{\mathrm{T}}} = 0, \, \mathbf{S}|_{\partial \mathbf{Q}_{\mathrm{T}}} = 0, \quad (3)$$

where, \vec{v}_n is a normal component of the vector velocity of fluid \vec{v} to boundary $\partial\Omega$, S-temperature, p- pressure, \vec{f} -external forces, ν , χ , λ -some physical positive constants.

The initial-boundary value problem (1)-(3) is studied in the cylinder $Q_T = \Omega \times [0, T]$, here $\Omega \in \mathbb{R}^n$, n = 2, 3 is a bounded domain with smooth boundary $\partial \Omega$. The main results of this work are the following theorems.

Theorem 1. Suppose the following conditions are satisfied:

$$\vec{v}_{0}(x) \in \overset{\circ}{J}_{n}^{2}(\Omega), \quad \Omega \subset R^{m}, \quad m = 2, 3, \quad \partial\Omega \in C^{2}, \quad S_{0}(x) \in \overset{\circ}{W_{2}^{1}}(\Omega) \\ \vec{f}(x,t) \in L_{2}(0,T; L_{2}(\Omega)), \quad q(x,t) \in L_{2}(0,T; L_{2}(\Omega)).$$
(4)

Then the initial-boundary value problem (1)-(3) has a unique solution (\vec{v}, S, p) , such that:

$$\vec{v} \in L_{\infty} \left(0, T; J_{n}^{2} \right) \cap W_{2}^{1} \left(0, T; J_{n}^{2} \right), \quad \nabla p \in L_{\infty} \left(0, T; L_{2} \left(\Omega \right) \right), \\ S \in L_{\infty} \left(0, T; W_{2}^{0} \left(\Omega \right) \right) \cap L_{2} \left(0, T; W_{2}^{2} \cap W_{2}^{1} \left(\Omega \right) \right), \quad S_{t} \in L_{2} \left(0, T; L_{2} \left(\Omega \right) \right),$$
(5)

and satisfies the estimates:

$$\begin{aligned} \|\vec{v}\|_{L_{\infty}(0,T;H^{2}(\Omega))}^{2} + \|S\|_{L_{\infty}(0,T;W_{2}^{1}(\Omega))}^{2} + \|\vec{v}_{t}\|_{L_{2}(0,T;H^{2}(\Omega))}^{2} + \|S_{t}\|_{L_{2}(0,T;L_{2}(\Omega))}^{2} + \\ + \|\nabla p\|_{L_{\infty}(0,T;L_{2}(\Omega))}^{2} + \|S\|_{L_{2}(0,T;W_{2}^{2}(\Omega)\cap W_{2}^{1}(\Omega))}^{2} &\leq C_{1}\left(\nu^{-1}, \ \chi^{-1}, \ \lambda^{-1}, \ \Omega, \\ \|\vec{v}_{0}\|, \|S_{0}\|, \ \|f,q\|_{2,Q_{T}}^{2}\right). \end{aligned}$$

$$\tag{6}$$

Theorem 2. Suppose the conditions (4) satisfied and $\vec{f}_t(x,t) \in L_2(0,T; L_2(\Omega))$. Then the problem (1)-(3) has a unique smooth solution (\vec{v}, S, p) , such that satisfies (5), and $\vec{v} \in W^1_{\infty}(0,T; J^2_n)$ which satisfies the estimates (6) and

$$\|\vec{v}_t\|_{L_{\infty}(0,T;H^2(\Omega))}^2 + \|qradp\|_{L_{\infty}(0,T;L_2(\Omega))}^2 \le C_2.$$

- A.P. Oskolkov. Some time-dependent linear and quasilinear systems that arise in the study of the motion of viscous fluids // Zap. Nau. Sem. LOMI., Vol.59, 1976, pp.128-157.
- [2] A.P. Oskolkov. The initial-boundary value problem with free surface conditions for the modified equations Navier-Stokes // Zap. Nau. Sem. POMI., Vol.213, 1994, pp.93-115.





ONE-VALUED SOLVABILITY OF THE INVERSE PROBLEM FOR THE MAGNETIC HYDRODYNAMIC OF INCOMPRESSIBLE VISCOUS FLUIDS

U.U. Abylkairov, S.E. Aitzhanov, Sh.S. Sahaev Al-Faraby Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan Abay Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail: U.Abylkairov@inbox.ru, SAitzhanov@mail.ru

In works [1-2] inverse problems for the system of Navier-Stokes equations with final overdetermination are investigated. Let us consider inverse problem for magnetic hydrodynamic in the cylinder $Q_T = \Omega \times [0, T], \ \Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^2$

$$\frac{\partial \vec{v}}{\partial t} + \sum_{k=1}^{2} v_k \vec{v}_{x_k} - \frac{\mu}{\rho} \sum_{k=1}^{2} H_k \vec{H}_{x_k} - \nu \Delta \vec{v} = -\frac{1}{\rho} grad\left(p + \frac{\mu \vec{H}^2}{2}\right) + g(x, t) \vec{f}(x), \tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial \vec{H}}{\partial t} + \frac{1}{\sigma\mu} rotrot \vec{H} - rot \left[\vec{v} \times \vec{H} \right] = \frac{\xi(x,t)}{\sigma\mu} rot \vec{j}(x) , \qquad (2)$$

$$div\vec{v} = 0, \quad div(\mu\vec{H}) = 0. \tag{3}$$

$$\vec{v}(x,0) = \vec{v}_0(x), \ \vec{H}(x,0) = \vec{H}_0(x),$$
(4)

$$\vec{v}|_S = 0, \quad H_n|_S = 0, \quad \frac{\partial H_2}{\partial x_1} - \frac{\partial H_1}{\partial x_2}\Big|_S = 0$$
(5)

$$\vec{v}(x,T) = \vec{U}(x), \ \vec{H}(x,T) = \vec{\Psi}(x), \ \nabla p(x,T) = \nabla \pi(x).$$
(6)

Theorem 1. Let $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^2$, $g, g_t \in C(\bar{Q}_T)$, $\xi, \xi_t \in C(\bar{Q}_T)$, $|g(x,t)|g_T > 0, |\xi(x,t)|\xi_T > 0$ for $x \in \Omega, \ \vec{U}(x) \in W_2^2(\Omega) \cap \overset{0}{J_1}(\Omega), \ \vec{\Psi}(x) \in \hat{J}(\Omega), \ \vec{v}_0(x) \in W_2^2(\Omega) \cap \overset{0}{J_1}(\Omega), \ \vec{H}_0(x) \in \hat{J}(\Omega), \ \nabla \pi(x) \in G(\Omega).$ Then operators A and B are quite continuous from $L_2(\Omega)$ to $L_2(\Omega)$.

Theorem 2. If the condition of theorem 1 is fulfilled, and also the following inequalities are true

$$\frac{1}{\sigma} > \mu c_1 \left(\left\| \vec{U} \right\|_{4,\Omega} + \left\| \vec{\Psi} \right\|_{4,\Omega} \right), \quad \nu > c_1 \left(\left\| \vec{U} \right\|_{4,\Omega} + \frac{\mu}{\rho} \left\| \vec{\Psi} \right\|_{4,\Omega} \right).$$

Then in order for the problem (1)-(6) to have a solution it is necessary and sufficient to have a solution for equations operators in $L_2(\Omega)$.

Theorem 3. Let the condition of theorem 2 be fulfilled, and also the inequality below is true

$$M_1 + \left\|\vec{\aleph}\right\|_{2,\Omega} + \left\|\vec{\lambda}\right\|_{2,\Omega} < 1,$$

then a solution to the inverse problem (1)-(6) exists.

- [1] A.I. Prilepko, D. Orlovsky, I.A. Vasin. Method for Solving Inverse Problems in Mathematical Physics // Monograths and Textbooks in Pure and Applied Mathematics, Marcel Dekker, Vol.231, 2000, 723 p.
- [2] U.U. Abylkairov. The inverse problem for Navier-Stoks equation // 7th Czechoslovac Conference on Differential Equations and Their Application EQADIFF7, Praha, 1989, pp. 1-2.
- [3] O.A. Ladyzhenskaya, V.A. Solonnikov. The solution of some non-stationary problems for the magnetic hydrodynamics of the incompressible viscous fluids // Proceedings of MIAN of SSSR, Vol.59, 1960, pp. 115-173.





ABOUT ONE SYSTEM OF FIRST ORDER PARTIAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS WITH SINGULAR LINES

A. Tungatarov, D.K. Akhmed-Zaki "Finance Academy" JSC, Astana, Kazakhstan Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:tun-mat@list.ru, mdina84@mail.ru

Let $0 < \varphi_0 \leq 2\pi$, $0 < \varphi_1, \varphi_2 < \varphi_0, G = \{z = re^{i\varphi} : 0 \leq r < \infty, 0 \leq \varphi \leq \varphi_0\}$. We consider the equation

$$2\overline{z}a_1(\varphi)\frac{\partial w}{\partial \overline{z}} + 2za_2(\varphi)\frac{\partial w}{\partial z} + a_3(\varphi)w + \frac{r^{\alpha}b(\varphi)\overline{w}}{|y-k_1x|^{\alpha}} = \frac{f(\varphi)r^{\nu+\alpha}}{|y-k_2x|^{\alpha}} \tag{1}$$

in G, where $a_1(\varphi)$, $a_2(\varphi)$, $a_3(\varphi)$, $b(\varphi)$, $f(\varphi) \in C[0, \varphi_0]$; $k_1 = \tan \varphi_1$, $k_2 = \tan \varphi_2$, $0 < \alpha < 1$, $\nu > 0$ are real numbers. Let p > 1 if $\nu \ge 1$ and $1 if <math>\nu < 1$. The solutions of equation (1) we will find in the class

$$W_p^1(G) \cap C(G). \tag{2}$$

Here $W_p^1(G)$ is the Sobolev space. For $\alpha = 0$ and $a_2(\varphi) \equiv 0$ such equations are studied in the papers [1] to [5]. Our goal is to study equation (1) for $\alpha \neq 0$. We proved the following theorem.

Theorem 1. If $a_1(\varphi) \neq a_2(\varphi)$ on the interval $[0, \varphi_0]$, then the equation (1) has a variety of solutions from the class (2).

We consider the following Dirichlet and Neuman boundary value problems.

Problem D. Find a solution of equation (1) from the class (2) satisfying the half Dirichlet condition

$$w(r,0) = \beta_1 r^{\nu},\tag{3}$$

where β_1 is a given real number.

Problem N. Find a solution of the equation (1) from the class (2), satisfying the half Neumann condition

$$\frac{\partial w}{\partial \varphi}(r,0) = \beta_2 r^{\nu},\tag{4}$$

where β_2 is a given real number.

Let
$$\delta = |A_{\nu}(0)|^2 - |b_{\alpha}(0)|^2$$
, $A_{\nu}(\varphi) = -\frac{i(\nu a_1(\varphi)) + \nu a_2(\varphi) + a_3(\varphi))}{a_1(\varphi) - a_2(\varphi)}$, $b_{\alpha}(\varphi) = \frac{b(\varphi)}{|sin\varphi - k_1 cos\varphi|^{\alpha}(\alpha(\varphi) - a_2(\varphi))}$
 $a_1(\varphi) \neq a_2(\varphi)$.

We proved the following theorems.

Theorem 2. The half Dirichlet problem D has a unique solution from class (2).

Theorem 3. If $\delta \neq 0$, then the half Neumann problem N has a unique solution from (2) and if $\delta = 0$, then the half Neumann problem N has an infinite number of solutions from (2) having the form $w = r^{\nu}\psi(\varphi)$.

- A. Tungatarov, N.E. Burgumbaeva, D.E. Mukasheva. About one first order system of the partial differential equations of type Fuks in plane // Eurasian Mathematical Journal, No.3, 2006, pp. 58-67 (in Russian).
- [2] Z.D. Usmanov. The generalized Cauchy-Riemann systems with singular point // Dushanbe, 1983, 244 p.
- [3] A. Meziani. Representation of Solutions of a singular CR equation in the plane // Complex Var. Elliptic Eq., No.53, 2008, pp. 1111-1130.
- [4] A. Tungatarov. About continuous solutions of equation of Carleman-Vekua with singular point // DAN SSSR, Vol. 319, No. 3, 1991, pp. 570-573 (in Russian).
- [5] A. Tungatarov, D.K. Mukasheva. About some boundary value problem system of the equations in partial differential of the first order of Fuchs type in the plane // Eurasian Mathematical Journal, No.1, 2007, pp. 73-84 (in Russian).




ON A SOLUTION OF VOLTERRA EQUATIONS WITH IRREGULAR SINGULARITIES

A.B. Baizakov, K.A. Aitbaev

Institute of Theoretical and Applied Mathematics, National Academy of Sciences, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:aka_79@mail.ru

It is known that many important issues of the asymptotic and analytic theory of Volterra integral equations still have been little studied. These are, in particular: the problem of asymptotic and analytic structure of solutions of Volterra equations with a singularity. Consider a system of Volterra equations with an irregular singularity at the point t = 0 of the form:

$$t^{q}u(t) = \int_{0}^{t} \rho(t,s)K(t,s)u(s)ds, \quad (0 < t < T),$$
(1)

where u(t) - the unknown n - dimensional vector function, K(t,s) - a square matrix of dimension $n \times n$; $\rho(t,s)$ - is a positive homogeneous q-1 of degree function, the function $\varphi(\tau) = \rho(1,\tau)$ is integrable on [0,1], q - an integer > 1. Let

$$\varphi_k = \int_0^1 \tau^k \varphi(\tau) d\tau, \qquad (k = 0, 1, 2, \ldots),$$

matrix K(t,s) has continuous derivatives up to k_0 order, which k_0 is determined from

$$\varphi_{k_0} < \left\{ \max_{0 < s < t < T} \left\| K(t,s) \right\| \right\}^{-1}.$$

Sufficient conditions are found under which the system of Volterra integral equations with an irregular singularity has a solution in the form

$$u(t) = p(t) \ln t + t^k u_k(t) \ln t + q(t) + t^k v_k(t),$$

where

$$) = a_0 + ta_1 + t^2 a_2 + \dots + t^{k-1} a_{k-1}, q(t) = b_0 + tb_1 + t^2 b_2 + \dots + t^{k-1} b_{k-1},$$

with $k = k_0$, where $u_{k_0}(t)$ and $v_{k_0}(t)$ - are continuous functions on [0, 1], p(t) and q(t) - polynomials of degree $k_0 - 1$.

Example. Volterra integral equation with irregular singular point

$$t^{2}u(t) = \int_{0}^{t} (-4t + 10s)u(s)ds$$

has a solution $u = b_0 + 4b_3t^3$.

p(t)

In the above example $K(t,s) \equiv 2$, $\rho(t,s) = -2t + 5s$ - is a homogeneous function of degree 1.

- E.V. Belyaeva. On some solutions of Volterra equations with a singularity // Boundary Value Problems: Inter. Sat Scient. Proceedings, Perm, 1989, pp. 184-190 (In Russian).
- [2] N.A. Magnitskii. Asymptotic Methods of Analysis of Nonstationary Control Systems // Moscow: Nauka, 1992,160
 p. (In Russian).
- [3] A.B. Baizakov, K.A. Aitbayev. Generalized solutions of integral equations // Proc. Proceedings. Intl. Scient. Conf., Topical Problems of differents. equations and matrices, Physics Almaty, 2005, 48 p. (In Russian).





RANDOM CHANGE OF TIME AND ASYMPTOTIC NORMALITY OF THE CAUCHY PROBLEM SOLUTION FOR ONE PARABOLIC EQUATION

Nursadyk Akanbai Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:noureke@mail.ru

Consider the Cauchy problem for the random parabolic equation

$$\frac{\partial U_{\varepsilon}}{\partial t} = \frac{1}{2a(x/\varepsilon)} \frac{\partial^2 U_{\varepsilon}}{\partial x^2} + C(x), \quad U_{\varepsilon}(0,x) = f(x), \quad (t \ge 0, x \in R'), \tag{1}$$

where a(x) > 0, C(x) having finite dependency radii bounded (with probability 1) independent stationary random processes with sufficiently smooth implementations, f(x) - is a given smooth nonrandom (or random, but independent on a(x), C(x)) function

The aim of the work is to prove the asymptotic normality of the solution to (1).

If we introduce a new random time with the ratio $\tau(t) = \int_{0}^{t} a(W_s/\varepsilon) ds = \int_{-\infty}^{+\infty} a(x/\varepsilon)\gamma(t,x) dx$ where W_s -a standard Wiener (Brownian) process, $\gamma(t,x)$ is Brownian local time ([1]), we can show that the right-hand side of (1) the operator $A_{\varepsilon} = \frac{1}{2a(x/\varepsilon)} \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x^2}$ is the infinitesimal operator of the process $x_{\varepsilon}(t) = W(\tau^{-1}(t))$, where $\tau^{-1}(t)$ is the inverse $\tau(t)$ of the function.

Then the solution of problem (1) has the representation ([2]) $U_{\varepsilon}(t,x) = E_x[f(x_{\varepsilon}(t)) + \int_0^t C(x_{\varepsilon}(s))ds],$

where the sign E_x indicates a conditional averaging over the trajectories of the process $x_{\varepsilon}(t)$ of the subject $x_{\varepsilon}(0) = x$.

Further, using properties of Brownian local time $\gamma(t, x)$ can be shown so that for $\tau_{\varepsilon}(t)$ there exists the relation $\tau_{\varepsilon(t)} = \sqrt{\varepsilon}y_{\varepsilon}(t) + \langle a \rangle t$, where $y_{\varepsilon}(t) = \varepsilon^{-\frac{1}{2}} \int_{-\infty}^{+\infty} (a(x/\varepsilon) - \langle a \rangle)\gamma(t, x)dx$ is the asymptotic nor-

mal (with zero mathematical expectation and a finite dispersion) process. Now writing the Laplace transform solution $\nu_{\varepsilon}(t,x) = E_x f(x_{\varepsilon}(t))$ of the equation (1) when c = 0, after the integrals obtained in the old days t replacing by new random times $\tau_{\varepsilon}(t)$ and reducing the resulting integrals to the convenient forms for finding the inverse transformations. Finally, passing to the inverse transformations of the solutions $\nu_{\varepsilon}(t,x)$ we can establish the asymptotic normality of the solution to (1) when c = 0 (u.[3]). Similarly, but more technically difficult to prove the asymptotic normality of the solutions (1)

when f(x) = 0 (i.e. asymptotic normality $E_x \int_0^t C(W_s) ds$).

- [1] K. Ito, H.P. Mckean. Diffusion processes and their sample paths // Springer Verlag, 1965.
- [2] E.B. Dynkin. Markov processes // M. Fizmatiz, 1963.
- [3] N. Akanbay. Estimation of the remainder of the theorem of averaging random parabolic equations // Proceedings of the Academy of Sciences of Kazakh SSR, Series Physics and Mathematics, Vol.126, No.5, 1985, pp. 11-16.





ON AVERAGING THE MAGNETIC FIELD EQUATION IN A MULTI-SCALE RANDOM FLOWS WITH UPDATE AND MUTUAL DEPENDENCES

Nursadyk Akanbai

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan

e-mail:noureke@mail.ru

In this paper we consider the problem of averaging the equations of magnetic induction

$$\frac{\partial \vec{H}}{\partial t} = \nu_m \Delta \vec{H} - (\vec{V}, \nabla) \vec{H} + (\vec{H}, \nabla) \vec{V}, \quad \vec{H}(0, x) = \vec{H}_0(x) \quad (t \ge 0, x \in \mathbb{R}^3), \tag{1}$$

where $\vec{H}(t, x) = \vec{H} = (H_1, H_2, H_3)$ is a magnetic field, ν_m is a constant coefficient of magnetic diffusion, $\vec{H}_0(x)$ -is a given initial magnetic field, $\vec{V}(t,x) = \vec{V} = (V_1, V_2V_3)$ - is a given incompressible random velocity field of the form

$$\vec{V}(t,x) = (\sqrt{\tau})^{-1} \sum_{j=0}^{N} \alpha_j \vec{V}_{k-j}(x).$$
(2)

In the representation (2) N (natural) and α_j - is a given number; $\vec{V}_k(x) = \vec{V}(t,x), t \in (k\tau, (k+1))$ $(1)\tau$, i > 0, k = 0, 1, ..., - independent homogeneous random velocity fields with zero mean and covariance matrices $\delta = \|\delta_{ij}\|_{i,j=1}^{3.3}$.

Following the ideas of [1], [2], we will describe the magnetic diffusion as a random walk along Brownian trajectories $\vec{W_t}$. To do this we shall construct a random process $\vec{\xi_t}$ as the solution of stochastic differential equations for the operator $A = \nu_m \Delta - (\vec{V}, \nabla)$, of the right-hand side of (1)

$$d\vec{\xi}_s = \sqrt{2\nu_m} W_s - \vec{V}(t - s, \vec{\xi}_s) ds, \vec{\xi}_0 = x.$$
 (3)

Then, with respect of the speed, the trajectory of a fluid particle at the moment of time $k\tau$, $0 < \tau << 1$ has the form

$$\vec{\xi}_{k\tau} = \vec{\xi}_{(k-1)\tau} - \int_{0}^{\tau} \vec{V}(k\tau - s, \vec{\xi}_s) ds + \sqrt{2\nu_m} (\vec{W}_{k\tau} - \vec{W}_{(k-1)\tau}),$$
(4)

with $\vec{\xi}_{k\tau}$ and $\vec{\xi}_{j\tau}$ independent, and if |k-j| > N ($\bar{\tau} = N\tau$ -is length of "memory"). To calculate (up to τ) the coefficients of turbulent diffusion and the average helicity of an averaged equation of the magnetic field, as in we shall take into account the representation (3). Then, following the ideas of we can obtain the explicit formulas for the factors above in terms of a given velocity field (2). For example, for the turbulent diffusion coefficient β_{je} we will get the formula $\beta_{je} = (\nu_m \delta_{ji} + \nu_m \delta_{ji})$ $(\sum_{i=0}^{N} \alpha_j)^2)\delta_{ie}.$

- [1] N. Akanbay. Some problems in the theory of magnetic fields in random media // Afvtoref. Kand.diss. Moscow, MSU, 1986, 16p.
- [2] S.A. Molchanov, A.A. Ruzmaykin, D.D. Sokolov. Kinematic dynamo in random flow advances // Physical Sciences, Vol.145, No.4, 1985, pp. 593-628.





ON THE EXISTENCE AND UNIQUENESS OF SOLUTION OF INITIAL VALUE PROBLEM FOR DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS ON TIME SCALES

A. Ahmadkhanlu, M. Jahanshahi Azarbayjan University of Tarbiat Moallem, Tabriz, Iran e-mail:s.a.ahmadkhanlu@azaruniv.edu, jahanshahi@azaruniv.edu

Mathematical models of some natural phenomenon and physical problems are appeared as initial and boundary value problems including fractional order of ordinary and partial differential equations. We try to extend fractional order differential equations(dynamic equations) on time scales. For this, we need to define a fractional differential operator on time scales. We consider the following initial value problem:

y

$${}^{c}\Delta^{\alpha}y(t) = f(t, y(t)), \quad t \in [t_0, t_0 + \alpha] = J \subseteq \mathbb{T}, \quad 0 < \alpha < 1$$

$$\tag{1}$$

$$(t_0) = y_0 \tag{2}$$

where ${}^{c}\Delta^{\alpha}$ is Caputo fractional derivative operator

$$^{c}\Delta_{a+}^{\alpha}h(t) = \frac{1}{\Gamma(n-\alpha)} \int_{a}^{t} (t-s)^{n-\alpha-1} h^{\Delta^{n}}(s)\Delta s$$
(3)

and the function $f: J \times \mathbb{T} \to \mathbb{R}$ is right-dense continuous function. Next we present sufficient and necessary conditions for the existence and uniqueness of problem (1)-(2).

- [1] G.Sh. Guseinov. Integration on time scales // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.285, 2003, pp. 107-127.
- [2] R.P. Agarwal, M. Bohner, A. Peterson, D. O'Regan. Advances in Dynamic Equations on Time Scales // Birkhaurser, Boston, 2003.
- [3] R. Hilfer. Applications of Fractional Calculus in Physics // World Scientific, Singapore, 2000, Zbl 0998.26002.
- [4] F. Metzler, W. Schick, H.G. Kilian, T.F. Nonnenmacher. Relaxation in filled polymers: A fractional calculus approach // J. Chem. Phys., Vol.103, 1995, pp. 7180-7186.
- [5] K.B. Oldham, J. Spanier. The Fractional Calculus // Academic Press, New-York, London, 1974. MR0361633(50 #14078). Zbl 0292.26011.
- [6] I. Podlubny. Fractional Differential Equations, Mathematics in Sciences and Engineering // Academic Press, San Diego, 1999.





ON THE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE STRONG LOADED HEAT CONDUCTION OPERATOR

M.T. Jenaliyev, M.I. Ramazanov, B.A. Shaldykova, D.M. Akhmanova Institute of Mathematics, Almaty, Kazakhstan Karagandy State University after name of academic E.A.Buketov, Karagandy, Kazakhstan e-mail:dzhenali@math.kz, ramamur@mail.ru

We consider the boundary value problems for a strong loaded heat conduction operator in a quarterplane which relates to the class of functional-differential operators has the form $Lu + \lambda Bu$, where L differential part and B is the loaded part.

Let $R_+ = (0, \infty)$. In the domain $Q = \{x \in R_+, t \in R_+\}$, we consider the following conjugate boundary value problems.

$$L_{\lambda}u = f \iff \begin{cases} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} - \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x^2} + \lambda \cdot \frac{\partial^k u}{\partial x^k} \Big|_{x=a} = f, \\ u(x,0) = 0, \ u(0,t) = 0; \\ u(x,0) = 0, \ u(0,t) = 0; \end{cases}$$
(1)
$$L_{\lambda}^*v = g \iff \begin{cases} -\frac{\partial v}{\partial t} - \frac{\partial^2 v}{\partial x^2} + \bar{\lambda} \cdot \delta^{(k)}(x-a) \otimes \int_0^\infty v(\xi,t) d\xi = g, \\ v(x,\infty) = 0, \ v(0,t) = v(\infty,t) = v_x(\infty,t) = 0, \end{cases}$$
(2)

where $a = \text{const}, a > 0, k \ge 3$.

Unlike the loaded differential equations studied early [1-4], the operator in question is peculiar since the order of the derivative in the loaded summand is greater than to the order of the differential part of the operator. Moreover, the load operator B in the generalized spectral problem $Lu + \lambda Bu = 0$ is not invertible. Such operator is called *strong loaded*.

The lines, described by the equation

$$|\lambda| = \frac{\left(a/\sqrt{2}\right)^{k-2}}{\left|\arg\lambda + \left(2n + \frac{k-2}{4}\right)\pi\right|^{k-2}} \cdot \exp\left|\arg\lambda + \left(2n + \frac{k-2}{4}\right)\pi\right|$$

divide the complex λ - plane into some disjoint domains D_m , m = 0, 1, 2, ...

We demonstrate that the boundary value problems (1), (2) under consideration is Noetherian, if $\lambda \in \{\mathbb{C} \setminus D_0\}$. Moreover, it is shown. if $\lambda \in D_m$, then dim Ker $(L_{\lambda}^*) = 2m$, and dim Ker $(L_{\lambda}) = -2m$.

- M.T. Dzhenaliyev, M.I. Ramazanov. On a boundary value problem for spectrally loaded heat operator. I // Differential equations (Russian), Vol. 43, 2007, pp. 513-524.
- [2] M.T. Dzhenaliyev, M.I. Ramazanov. On a boundary value problem for spectrally loaded heat operator. II // Differential equations (Russian), Vol. 43, 2007, pp. 806-812.
- [3] M.M. Amangaliyeva, D.M. Akhmanova, M.T. Dzhenaliyev, M.I. Ramazanov. The boundary value problems for spectrally loaded heat conduction operators with approach the lines of the load to time axis in zero or on infinity // Differential equations (Russian), Vol.47, No.2, 2011, pp. 231-243.
- [4] D.M. Akhmanova, M.T. Dzhenaliyev, M.I. Ramazanov. On a particular second kind Volterra integral equation with a spectral parameter // Siberian Mathematical Journal (Russian), Vol.52, No.1, 2011, pp. 3-12.





ABOUT CONDITIONS FOR THE SOLVABILITY OF A CLASS OF THIRD-ORDER DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Raya Akhmetkaliyeva

L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:Raya_84@mail.ru

We study the qualitive properties of solutions of the following equation from $L_p \equiv L_p(R)$

$$L_{\lambda}y \equiv -p_1(x) \left(p_2(x) \left(p_1(x)y' \right)' \right)' + [q(x) + ir(x) + \lambda]y = f(x)$$
(1)

which defined on R.

The function $y(x) \in L_p(R)$ is called the solution of equation (1), if there exists a sequence $\{y_n\}_{n=1}^{\infty}$ of infinitely differentiable and compactly supported functions such that $||y_n - y|| \to 0$, $||L_\lambda y_n - f||_p \to 0$ if $n \to \infty$.

 $C^{(l)}(R)$ - space is continuous and bounded functions having continuous and bounded derivatives up to order l. The following theorem was proved.

Theorem. Let $\lambda \ge 0$, the functions q(x), r(x) be continuous, $p_1(x) \in C^{(3)}(R)$, $p_2(x) \in C^{(2)}(R)$ and the following conditions hold

$$q \ge 1, \ r \ge 1, \ p_j \ge 1, W(x) = |q(x) + ir(x)| \ge 1,$$
$$c^{-1} \ge \frac{q(x)}{q(\eta)}, \frac{r(x)}{r(\eta)} \le c \ for \ |x - \eta| \le 1,$$
$$\sup_{|x - \eta| \le 1} \frac{|W(x) - W(\eta)|}{|W(x)|^{\nu} |x - \eta|^{\mu}} < +\infty, \ 0 < \nu < \frac{\mu}{3} + 1, \ \mu \in (0, 1].$$

Then there exists a number $\lambda_0 \ge 0$ such that the equation (1) has a unique solution y(x) for all $\lambda \ge \lambda_0$ and the following estimate holds:

$$\left\| p_1(x) \left(p_2(x) \left(p_1(x) y' \right)' \right)' \right\|_p^p + \| [q(x) + ir(x)] y \|_p^p \le c_0 \| f(x) \|_p^p.$$
(2)

When $p_1 = p_2 = 1$ the sufficient conditions for unique solvability of the equation (1) and estimate (2) for its solution were established when r = 0 and $r \ge 1$ in [1].

References

 M.B. Muratbekov, M.M. Muratbekov, K.N. Ospanov. Coercive Solvability of Odd Order Differential Equations and Its Applications // Doklady Mathematics. Vol.82, No.3, 2010, pp. 1-3.





THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPLE OF THE NAVIER - STOKES EQUATION

A.Sh. Akysh Institute of Mathematics, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:akysh410gmail.com

In [1] and others of the author, some basic statements were obtained to study the maximum principle for the Navier-Stokes equation (NSE). The system of nonlinear parabolic equation for kinetic energy density, and important property of this equation - the maximum principle was derived from NSE. In this work, these results are summarized and linked to the mathematical rigor and, on this base the unique solvability of weak and the existence of strong solutions of the NSE wholly in time $t \in [0, T]$, $\forall T < \infty$ was proved. Let's consider initial-boundary value problem for NSE [2] in the domain $Q = (0, T] \times \Omega$:

$$\frac{\partial U}{\partial t} - \mu \Delta U + (U, \nabla)U + \nabla P = f(t, x), \quad \operatorname{div} U = 0,$$
(1a)

$$U(0,x) = \Phi(x), \quad U(t,x)\big|_{\partial\Omega} = 0, \quad x \in \partial\Omega, \quad U = (U_1, U_2, U_3), \tag{1b}$$

where $x \in \Omega \subset R_3$; i) $f(t,x) \in C(\bar{Q}) \cap \mathring{\mathbf{J}}(Q)$; ii) $\Phi(x) \in C(\bar{\Omega}) \cap W^1_{2,0}(\Omega) \cap \mathring{\mathbf{J}}(\Omega)$.

From (1a) under f = 0, we obtain a nonlinear parabolic equation for the density of kinetic energy $E = 1/2(U_1^2 + U_2^2 + U_3^2)$:

$$\mathbb{L}E \equiv \frac{\partial E}{\partial t} - \mu \Delta E + \mu \sum_{\alpha=1}^{3} |\nabla U_{\alpha}|^{2} + (\nabla E, U) + (\nabla P, U) = 0.$$
⁽²⁾

Theorem 1. Suppose $\bar{Q} = [0,T] \times \bar{\Omega}$ is a cylindrical domain with boundary $[0,T] \times \partial\Omega$ functions $(U,E) \in C(\bar{Q}) \cap C^2(Q) \wedge P \in C^1(Q)$ satisfy the equations (1a), (2). Then the function E(t,x) takes its maximum in the cylinder \bar{Q} on its lower base $\{0\} \times \bar{\Omega}$ or on lateral area $[0,T] \times \partial\Omega$, i.e.,

$$E(t,x) \le \max\{\sup_{t=0 \ \bigwedge x \in \bar{\Omega}} E(t,x), \sup_{t \in [0,T] \ \bigwedge x \in \partial\Omega} E(t,x)\} = C - const.$$
(3)

and for the solution of problem (1) an estimate is valid:

$$\|U\|_{C(\bar{Q})} \le \|\Phi\|_{C(\bar{\Omega})} + T\|f\|_{C(\bar{Q})} \equiv A_1, \ \forall T < \infty, \ \|U\|_{C(\bar{Q})} = \max_{1 \le \alpha \le 3} \sup_{\bar{Q}} |U_{\alpha}(t,x)|.$$
(4)

Definition¹⁾. We call as the weak generalized solution of the a full initial boundary value problem of the Navier-Stokes equations (1) vector-function U and function P from space

 $U \in C(\bar{Q}) \cap L_2(0,T; W^1_{2,0}(\Omega)) \cap \mathring{\mathbf{J}}(Q); \qquad P \in L_2(0,T; W^1_2(\Omega)) \text{ and satisfying the identities}$

$$\int_{Q} \left(-U \frac{\partial Z}{\partial t} + \mu \sum_{k=1}^{3} \nabla U_k \nabla Z_k + (U, \nabla) UZ \right) dx \, dt = \int_{\Omega} \Phi Z(0, x) dx + \int_{Q} f Z dx \, dt, \quad \forall Z; \tag{5}$$

$$\int_{Q} \nabla P \,\nabla \eta \, dx \, dt = -\int_{Q} (U, \nabla) U \,\nabla \eta \, dx \, dt, \quad \forall \eta.$$
(6)

Theorem 2. If input data f and Φ satisfy requirements \mathbf{i}) and \mathbf{ii}), then problem (1) has the unique weak generalized solutions U and P satisfying the identities (5), (6) at any Z and η from the definition.

References

[1] A.Sh. Akysh. New the properties of Navier-Stokes equations // Vestn. KarSU., Vol.60, No.4, 2010, pp. 16-24.

^[2] O.A. Ladyzenskaja. Mathematical problems of dynamics viscous incompressible fluids //Moscow, Nauka, 1970.

¹⁾ Thanks to the principe of maximum, weak solution be regarded in more the restricted class of function, than in [2].







ABOUT COMPLETENESS OF ROOT VECTORS OF THE DEGENERATING ELLIPTIC OPERATOR

E.A. Akzhigitov

S.Seifullin Kazakh Agro Technical University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:AkzhigitovQinbox.ru

In a restangle $\Omega = \{(y) : 0 < x < 2\pi, 0 < y < 1\}$ the problem is considered:

$$Lu + \lambda u = -K(y) u_{xx} - u_{yy} + a(y) u_x + \lambda u = f(x, y)$$

$$\tag{1}$$

$$\begin{cases} u(0,y) = u(2\pi, y) \\ u_x(0,y) = u_x(2\pi, y) \end{cases}$$
(2)

$$u(x,0) = u(x,1) = 0$$
(3)

On equation factors (1) the following restrictis will be determined:

$$K(y), a(y) \in G_0, y \in [0, 1].$$

In work [1] it is shown K(y), $a(y) \in G_0$, that the operator L of the problem restricted is reversible and coercive.

The basic result of the given work is:

Theorem 1. Let K(y), $a(y) \in G_{\ddagger_0}$.

Then the system of root vectors resolvent of the operator L is full in $L_2(\Omega)$.

Definition 1. Function $u \in H$ is called as a root vector of operator A, answering to proper number, if $(A - \lambda E)^n u = 0$ at natural n.

Definition 2. The operator in hilbertian space is called dissipative, if

$$Jm(Au, u) \ge 0, \quad u \in D(A).$$

Definition 3. Let A -linear quite continuous operator and let $|A| = \sqrt{A * A}$. The proper numbers of the operator |A| are S-numbers the operator A and are designated

$$S_{j}(A) = \lambda_{j}(|A|), j = 1, 2, ...$$

Definition 4. The compact operator A is called nuclear, if $\sum_{j=1}^{\infty} S_j(A) < \infty$.





ON A STABILITY OF THE SOLUTION OF THE SYSTEM OF DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Tamash M. Aldibekov Al-Farabi, Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:tamash59@list.ru

Let's consider the following system of differential equations

$$\dot{x} = A(t)x + f(t,x), \qquad (1)$$

where vectorial function f(t, x) continuously on t in $I = [t_0, +\infty)$ and continuously differentiable on x in the domain $G = I \times \mathbb{R}^n$, f(t, 0) = 0, A(t) continuous matrix on I. Besides, f(t, x) satisfies to the smallness condition

$$||f(t,x)|| \le \psi(t) ||x||^n$$

where m > 1 and $\psi(t)$ is the continuous positive function on I, with the zero generalized Lyapunov's index

$$q(t) = \int_{t_0}^{t} \psi(\tau) d\tau, \quad q(t) \uparrow +\infty \text{ in } t \uparrow +\infty, \quad q(t) < t.$$

(in [1] q(t) > t).

Theorem 1. Let the system (1) satisfies, to the following conditions:

1. The system of the first approximation collectively correct on Lyapunov and Lyapunov's all generalized indexes toward q(t) negative;

2. Function q(t) satisfies to the inequality

$$\int_{t_0}^{+\infty} \frac{1}{\exp(\delta q\left(\tau\right))} d\tau < +\infty, \quad (\delta > 0)$$

Trivial solution of the system (1) its exponentially (toward q(t)) stable in the Lyapunov sense.

References

 T.M. Aldibekov. Analogue of Lyapunov's stability theorem to the first approximation // Differential Equations, Vol.42, No.6, 2006, pp. 859-860, P. Eng. 6.11-13B.188.





BOUNDARY INTEGRAL EQUATIONS METHOD AT THE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEMS FOR KLEIN-GORDON-FOKK EQUATIONS

Lyudmila A. Alexeyeva, Aigulim S.Baegizova

Institute of Mathematics of Education and Science Ministry of Rep.Kazakhstan, Almaty, Kazakhstan L.N. Gumilev Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan

e-mail:alexeeva@math.kz, baegiz60@mail.ru

Boundary integral equations method is developed for solving the boundary value problems for Klein-Gordon-Fokk (KGF-)equations:

$$\Delta u - \frac{1}{c^2} \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} \pm m^2 u = f(x, t), \quad x \in S^- \subset \mathbb{R}^N, \quad t \ge 0$$

with initial Cauchy conditions and Dirichlet's or Neumann conditions on boundary S of definition region S^- .

There is proved of unique of these problems including the shock waves, for which Adamar's conditions are satisfied under jumps of E energy and derivatives on their fronts:

$$[\dot{u}\nu_j + cu_{,j}]_{F_t} = 0, \quad \left[\dot{u} + c\sum_{j=1}^N \nu_j \, u_{,j}\right]_{F_t} = 0, \quad [E]_{F_t} = -c\left[\dot{u}\frac{\partial u}{\partial \nu}\right]_{F_t}$$

 $\nu(x,t)$ is the normal to the wave front in \mathbb{R}^N .

On the base of generalized functions method [1] the dynamical analog of Kirchhoff-Green formula for its solutions in generalized functions space are obtained as convolution shape:

$$u(x,t)H_{S}^{-}(x)H(t) = f * \hat{U} - \hat{U} * \frac{\partial u}{\partial n}\delta_{S}(x)H(t) - \sum_{j=1}^{N}\partial_{j}\hat{W} * \dot{u}n_{j}(x)\delta_{S}(x)H(t) - \sum_{j=1}^{N}\partial_{j}\hat{W} * u_{0}(x)n_{j}(x)\delta_{S}(x) - c^{-2}\hat{U} * H_{S}^{-}(x)\dot{u}_{0}(x) - c^{-2}\partial_{t}\left(\hat{U} * H_{S}^{-}(x)u_{0}(x)\right)$$

$$(1)$$

Here $H_S^-(x)$ is the characteristic function of set S^- , which is equal to 0,5 on S, H(t) is Heaviside function, \hat{U} is fundamental solution of KGF-equations satisfying to radiation conditions, $\hat{W} = \hat{U} * H(t)$, $\delta_S(x)$ is the simple layer on S, n(x) is the external unit normal to S.

The regular integral representation of (1) are constructed in plane case (N = 2). Resolute singular boundary integral equations for solving these non stationary boundary value problems are obtained.

References

 L.A. Alekseeva. Generalized functions method at the non stationary boundary value problems for wave equation// Mathematical journal, Vol.6, No.1, 2006, pp.16-32 (in Russian).





ON EXISTENCE AND NON-EXISTENCE OF GLOBAL SOLUTIONS OF THE CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR HIGH ORDER SEMI-LINEAR HYPERBOLIC EQUATIONS WITH ANISOTROPIC ELLIPTIC PARTS

A.B.Aliev, A.A.Kazymov

Azerbaijan Technical University, Baku, Azerbaijan Nakhchivan State University, Nakhchivan, Azerbaijan e-mail:aliyevagil@yahoo.com,anarkazimov1979@gmail.com

Lets consider the Cauchy problem for semi-linear high order hyperbolic equations with damping term

$$u_{tt} + u_t + \sum_{i=1}^n \sum_{l_i \le \beta_i \le L_i} (-1)^{\beta_i} D_{x_i}^{2\beta_i} u = f(u),$$
(1)

$$u(0,x) = \varphi(x), \qquad u_t(0,x) = \psi(x), \tag{2}$$

where $l_i, L_i \in N, f(u) \sim u^p, u \in R$.

We obtain the critical exponent question of global solvability, and show absence of global solutions for problem (1), (2). Critical exponent obtained in this article is the number

$$p_c = 1 + \frac{2}{\sum_{i=1}^{n} \frac{1}{l_i}}$$

for

 $\sum_{i=1}^n \frac{1}{l_i} < 2,$

 $p_c = 2,$

and

for

$$\sum_{i=1}^{n} \frac{1}{l_i} \ge 2.$$

It is proved that if $1 then, there exists "sufficiently small" initial data for which the corresponding problem (1), (2) has no weak solutions. If <math>p_c then for sufficiently small initial data there exists a global solution.$





DATA OF ONE NONLINEAR DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION WITH THE PARTIAL TO DERIVATIVES TO THE CAUCHY-RIEMANN EQUATION

N.A. Aliev, A.M. Aliev

Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Institute of Applied Mathematics Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:aahmad07@rambler.ru

Let $D \subset \mathbb{R}^2$ -limited, convex in a direction x_2 , plane domain. Let's consider the equation:

$$\Delta u(x) + \delta e^{u(x)} = 0, \tag{1}$$

which after replacement

$$u(x) = \ln \vartheta(x). \tag{2}$$

Will become:

$$\vartheta(x)\Delta\vartheta(x) - \sum_{k=1}^{2} \left(\frac{\partial\vartheta(x)}{\partial x_k}\right)^2 + \delta\vartheta^3(x) = 0.$$
(3)

After transformation

$$\frac{\partial \vartheta(x)}{\partial x_k} = W_k(x)\vartheta(x), \qquad k = 1, 2.$$
(4)

We receive a following equation:

$$\frac{\partial W_1(x)}{\partial x_1} + \frac{\partial W_2(x)}{\partial x_2} + \delta \vartheta(x) = 0.$$
(5)

Further from (4) we will receive:

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial x_1} \left(W_2(x)\vartheta(x) \right) = \frac{\partial}{\partial x_2} \left(W_1(x)\vartheta(x) \right), \\
\frac{\partial W_1(x)}{\partial x_2} - \frac{\partial W_2(x)}{\partial x_1} = 0,$$
(6)

thus, we have received the following system:

$$\begin{cases} \frac{\partial W_1(x)}{\partial x_1} + \frac{\partial W_2(x)}{\partial x_2} = -\delta \vartheta(x),\\ \frac{\partial W_1(x)}{\partial x_2} - \frac{\partial W_2(x)}{\partial x_1} = 0. \end{cases}$$
(7)

Multiplying the first equation on i and the second by unit, and putting them, accepting a designation:

$$W(x) = W_1(x) + iW_2(x).$$
(8)

We have:

$$\frac{\partial W(x)}{\partial x_2} + i \frac{\partial W(x)}{\partial x_1} = -i\delta\vartheta(x). \tag{9}$$

Considering that

$$W(x-\xi) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{x_2 - \xi_2 + (x_1 - \xi_1)}$$
(10)

is the fundamental solution of the Cauchy-Riemann equation will consider a boundary problem for the nonlinear equation (1).







BOUNDARY PROBLEM FOR THE DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION OF FRACTIONAL ORDER

N.A. Aliev, A.M. Aliev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Institute of Applied Mathematics Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:aahmad07@rambler.ru

Let's consider the following problem:

$$\sum_{k=0}^{n} a_k D^{\frac{k}{2}} y(x) = 0, \quad 0 < a < x < b, \tag{1}$$

where $n \in N$, is a fixed number, a_k - material constant factors, $D^{\frac{1}{2}}$ - differential operator of an order $\frac{1}{2}$ understood in sense of Liuvill, with boundary conditions:

$$\sum_{k=0}^{n-1} \left\{ \alpha_{jk} D^{\frac{k}{2}} y(x) \Big|_{x=a} + \beta_{jk} D^{\frac{k}{2}} y(x) \Big|_{x=b} \right\} = \gamma_j, \quad j = 1, n,$$
(2)

where α_{jk}, β_{jk} and γ_j are real-constant numbers and conditions (2) linearly independent.

Proceeding from function of Mittag-Leffera, there is equation linearly independent the decision (1). Further the common decision of the equation (1) is resulted and is any the constants entering into the common decision. These constants it is defined from boundary conditions (2).

Example.

$$Dy(x) \equiv D^{\frac{1}{2}}(D^{\frac{1}{2}}y(x)) = 0, \quad x \in (1,2)$$
(3)

$$y(1) = y_1, \quad y(2) = y_2$$
 (4)

the common decision of the equation (3) looks like:

$$y(x) = C_0 \frac{x^0}{0!} + C_1 \frac{x^{-\frac{1}{2}}}{(-\frac{1}{2})!}$$

where 0! = 1 $(-\frac{1}{2})! = (\frac{1}{2})$ and - there are values scale of functions of Euler. Defining $!_0$ and $!_1$ from boundary conditions (4), we will receive function:

$$y(x) = \frac{\sqrt{2}y_2 - y_1}{\sqrt{2} - 1} + \frac{\sqrt{2}}{\sqrt{2} - 1}(y_1 - y_2)x^{-\frac{1}{2}}$$

which $y_1 = y_2$ at turns to the known classical decision the equation (3).





INVESTIGATION OF THE MIXED PROBLEM FOR THE EQUATION OF A HIGH ORDER

A.M. Aliev, O.G. Asadova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:aahmad07@rambler.ru

In the talk the following problem is considered

$$\sum_{k=0}^{3} a_k(x) \frac{\partial^{6-k} \vartheta(x,t)}{\partial t^k \partial x^{6-2k}} + \sum_{k=0}^{2} b_k(x) \frac{\partial^{5-k} \vartheta(x,t)}{\partial t^k \partial x^{5-2k}} = f(x,t), \ x \in (0,1), \quad t > 0, \tag{1}$$

with to boundary

$$\left\{\sum_{k=0}^{2} \alpha_{\nu k} \frac{\partial^{5-k} \vartheta(x,t)}{\partial t^{k} \partial x^{5-2k}} \bigg|_{x=0} + \beta_{\nu k}(x) \frac{\partial^{5-k} \vartheta(x,t)}{\partial t^{k} \partial x^{5-2k}} \bigg|_{x=1}\right\} = \varphi(t)$$

$$\tag{2}$$

 $\nu = \overline{1,6}$ and t > 0, and initial conditions

$$\frac{\partial^s \vartheta(x,t)}{\partial t^s} \Big|_{t=0} = \Phi_s(x) \qquad (s=0,1,2)$$
(3)

at $x \in (0, 1)$. For this propose the method of planimetric integral of Rasulova M. L is applied. Under certain conditions it is possible to prove existence and uniqueness theorems problem for this in the form

$$\vartheta(x,t) = \frac{1}{\pi\sqrt{-1}} \int_{S} \lambda e^{\lambda^{2}t} d\lambda \int_{0}^{1} G(x,\xi,\lambda) F(\xi,\lambda) d\xi,$$

where S- infinitely opened contour entirely located in area

$$R_{\delta} = \left\{ \lambda : |\lambda| > R \quad -\frac{\pi}{4} - \delta < \arg \lambda \le \frac{\pi}{4} \right\}.$$

Infinitely remote which parts coincide with continuations of beams, $\arg \lambda = -\frac{\pi}{4} - \delta$, and $\arg \lambda = \frac{\pi}{4}$. $G(x,\xi,\lambda)$ - Green's function of the spectral problem corresponding to the problem (1) - (3), $F(x,\lambda)$ it is defined by the formula:

$$\begin{split} F(x,\lambda) &= f(x,\lambda) + a_3(x)\Phi_2(x) + a_3(x)\lambda^2\Phi_1(x) + b_2(x)\Phi_1'(x) + a_2(x)\Phi_1''(x) + \\ &+ a_3(x)\lambda^4\Phi_0(x) + \lambda^2(a_2(x)\Phi_0''(x) + b_2(x)\Phi_0'(x)) + a_1(x)\Phi_0''''(x) + b_1(x)\Phi_0'''(x). \end{split}$$





ON THE BOUNDARY CONDITIONS IN ELLIPTIC TRANSMISSION PROBLEM THROUGH A THIN LAYER

Yermek S. Alimzhanov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:ermekal@kaznu.kz

Let Ω be a bounded domain in \mathbb{R}^n , n > 1 surrounded by a thin layer Σ_{ε} , where $\varepsilon > 0$ parameter which designate an order of thickness. We denote by Γ the boundary of Ω and $\Omega_{\varepsilon} = \overline{\Omega} \bigcup \Sigma_{\varepsilon}$, $\Gamma_{\varepsilon} = \partial \Omega_{\varepsilon}$. Assume that $\Sigma_{\varepsilon} = \{\xi + \tau \, \vec{n}(\xi) : \xi \in \Gamma, \, 0 < \tau < \varepsilon\}$, here $\vec{n}(\xi)$ the outward normal unit vector to Γ on the point ξ .

Consider transmission problem in Ω_{ε} :

$$-\Delta u(x) + u(x) = f(x), \qquad \forall x \in \Omega,$$
(1)

$$u(x) = \omega(x), \qquad \frac{\partial u(x)}{\partial n} = \delta \, \frac{\partial \omega(x)}{\partial n}, \quad \forall x \in \Gamma,$$
(2)

$$-\delta \Delta \omega(x) = \frac{1}{\varepsilon} g(x), \quad \forall x \in \Sigma_{\varepsilon},$$
(3)

$$\delta \, \frac{\partial \omega(x)}{\partial n} = 0, \quad \forall x \in \Gamma_{\varepsilon}, \tag{4}$$

where f(x), g(x) given functions in Ω and Σ_{ε} respectively, $\partial/\partial n$ denotes the outward normal derivative, either on Γ or Γ_{ε} , and δ is conductivity of the layer Σ_{ε} . It is known that this problem is well-posed in a classical framework for elliptic equations (e.g. [1], [2]).

As $\varepsilon \to 0$ and $\delta \to \infty$ the solution of the problem (1)–(4) converges to a function u(x), which is the unique solution of the elliptic equation (1) with appropriate boundary conditions. They may be of different type according to the limit values of $\alpha = \lim \varepsilon \delta$.

Theorem. For any $0 < \varepsilon \leq \varepsilon_0$, $1 \leq \delta$, $\Omega \in C^{1,1}$ and $f \in L_2(\Omega)$, $g \in H^1(\Sigma_{\varepsilon})$ as $\varepsilon \to 0$ and $\delta \to \infty$, the solution $u_{\varepsilon\delta}(x)$ of the problem (1) – (4) converges in $H^1(\Omega)$ to the solution of the elliptic equation (1) with the following boundary conditions:

(1) when
$$\alpha = 0$$
: (Neumann condition) $\frac{\partial u_0(x)}{\partial n} = g_{\Gamma}(x)$ on Γ ;
(2) when $0 < \alpha < \infty$: (Venttsel condition) $\frac{\partial u_{\alpha}(x)}{\partial n} + \Delta_{\Gamma} u_{\alpha}(x) = g_{\Gamma}(x)$ on Γ ;
(3) when $\alpha = \infty$: (nonlocal condition or flux term) $\int \frac{\partial u_{\infty}(\xi)}{\partial t} d\xi = \int a_{\Gamma}(\xi) d\xi$

(3) when
$$\alpha = \infty$$
: (nonlocal condition or flux term) $\int_{\Gamma} \frac{\partial u_{\infty}(\zeta)}{\partial n} d\xi = \int_{\Gamma} g_{\Gamma}(\xi) d\xi$.

Here $g_{\Gamma}(x)$ is the trace of g(x) on Γ and Δ_{Γ} is tangential Laplace operator on Γ .

- H. Brezis, L.A. Caffarelli, A. Friedman. Reinforcement problems for elliptic equations and variational inequalities // Annali di Matematica Pura et Applicata, Vol.3, 1980, pp. 219-246.
- [2] Pham Huy Hung. Sánchez-Palencia, Enrique Phénomènes de transmission à travers des couches minces de conductivité élevée // French J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.47, 1974, pp. 284-309.





A GENERATING FUNCTION AND RECURRENCE RELATIONS FOR A FAMILY OF POLYNOMIALS

Abdullah Altın University of Ankara, Tandoğan, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:altin@science.ankara.edu.tr

In this paper, we derive some families of polynomials. Some further results of these polynomials as generating function, rodrigues formula and recurrence relations are also dicussed.

References

- A. Altın, E. Erkuş, M.A. Özarslan. Families of linear generating functions for polynomials in two variables // Integral Transforms and Special Functions, V.17, No.5, 2006, pp. 315-320.
- [2] Askey, G.E. Andrews, R. Roy. Special Functions // Cambridge University Press 1999.
- [3] H. Hochstadt. Special Functions of Mathematical Physics // Holt, Rinehart and Winston Publications, New York 1961.
- [4] E.B. McBride. Obtaining Generating Functions // Springer-Verlag, New York 1971.
- [5] M.A. Özarslan, A. Altın. Some families of generating functions for the multiple orthogonal polynomials associated with modified Bessel K-functions // Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, Vol.297, 2004, pp. 186-193.
- [6] H.M. Srivastava, H.L. Manocha. A Treatise on Generating Functions // Halsted Press, New York 1984.
- [7] G. Szegö. Orthogonal Polynomials, American Mathematical Society Colloquium Publications. Vol. 23, New York, 1939.

SOLUTIONS OF PARTIAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS WITH CAPUTO FRACTIONAL DERIVATIVES USING DOUBLE LAPLACE TRANSFORM

Aytekin M.O. Anwar, Fahd Jarad, Dumitru Baleanu, Fatma Ayaz

Gazi University, Ankara, Turkey

Cankaya University, Ankara, Turkey

e-mail:aytekinanwar@gazi.edu.tr, fahd@cankaya.edu.tr, dumitru@cankaya.edu.tr, fayaz@gazi.edu.tr

We present the double Laplace transform of the partial fractional integrals and derivatives and use them to solve partial differential equations with Caputo fractional derivatives.





SQUARE-LIKE FUNCTIONS GENERATED BY A WAVELET-LIKE TRANSFORM ASSOCIATED WITH THE LAPLACE-BESSEL DIFFERENTIAL OPERATOR

Şeyda Altınkol, Simten Bayrakçı Akdeniz University, Antalya, Turkey e-mail:saltinkol@akdeniz.edu.tr, simten@akdeniz.edu.tr

In this article we introduce wavelet-like transform

$$V_t f(x) = rac{1}{lpha} \int\limits_0^\infty G_{tz} f(x) w(z) dz$$

associated with Laplace-Bessel differential operator $\Delta_B = \sum_{k=1}^n \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x_k} + \frac{2\nu_k}{\partial x_k} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_k}$ where $G_{tz}f(x)$ is the

Gene-ralized Gauss-Weierstrass semigroup and w(z) is known as "function", $\int_{0}^{\infty} w(z)dz = 0$. Moreover, using the wavelet like transform, we can define the following square like functions.

using the wavelet-like transform, we can define the following square-like functions

$$(Sf)(x) = \left(\int_{0}^{\infty} |V_t f(x)|^2 \frac{dt}{t}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}.$$

So, we proved an analogue of the Calderón reproducing formula and the L_2 boundedness of the square-like functions.

- I.A. Aliev, S. Bayrakci. Square-Like Functions Generated By A Composite Wavelet Transform // Mediterranean Journal of Mathematics, DOI 10.1007/s00009-010-0084-6, Published online: 24 June 2010.
- I.A. Aliev, B.Rubin. Wavelet-like transforms for admissible semi-groups; Inversion formulas for potentials and Radon transforms // J. of Fourier Anal. and Appl., Vol.11, 2005, pp. 333-352.
- [3] I.A. Aliev. Bi-parametric potentials, relevant function spaces and wavelet-like transforms // Integr. equ. oper. theory, Vol.65, 2009, pp. 151-167.
- [4] I.A. Aliev, B. Rubin, S. Sezer, S.B. Uyhan. Composite Wavelet transforms: Applications and Perspectives; in: Radon Transforms, Geometry and Wavelets // Contemporary Mathematics, AMS, Providence, RI, Vol.464, 2008, pp. 1-25.





ON ASYMPTOTICAL EXPANSION OF THE SOLUTION FOR THE SINGULARLY PERTURBED DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION WITH THE TURN POINT

Keldibay Alymkulov, Taalaybek D.Asylbekov Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:keldibay@yahoo.com, atd1959@rambler.ru

It is constructed uniformly asymptotic solution of the boundary value problem for the equation

$$\varepsilon u''(x) + xu'(x) - q(x)u(x) = f(x), \tag{1}$$

$$u(0) = 0, u(1) = u^0, (2)$$

where $0 < \varepsilon$ - small parameter, $x \in [0, 1], u^0$ - is given constant.

Theorem. Let is $q(x), f(x) \in C^{\infty}[0,1], q(0) = 2$. Then the solution of the problem (1)-(2) is presented in the form

$$u(x) = u_0(x) + \pi_0(t) + \mu(u_1(x) + \pi_1(t)) + \dots + \mu^n(u_n(x) + \pi_n(t)) + O(\mu^{n+1}),$$

$$\mu \to 0, u_k(x) \in C^{\infty}[0, 1], \pi_k(t) \in C^{\infty}[0, \mu_0], \mu_0 = \mu^{-1}, u_0(1) = u^0,$$

$$u_k(1) = 0, \pi_{k-1}(\mu_0) = 0, \pi_{k-1}(0) = -u_{k-1}(0), t = \frac{x}{\mu}(k = 1, 2, \dots).$$

- K. Alymkulov. Extension of boundary layer function method for singularly perturbed differential equation of Prandtle - Tichonov and Lighthill types // Reports of the third congress of the world mathematical society of Turkic countries, Almaty, June July, 2009, pp. 256-259.
- [2] K. Alymkulov, T.D.Asylbekov. Extension of boundary layer function method for singularly perturbed differential equation of the second order //Mathem.note (in print).
- K.Alymkulov, A.A. Holmatov. Method of boundary layer function for Lighthill model equation with the regularly singular point //Mathem.note (in print).





ON THE INCORRECT PROBLEM FOR THE POISSON EQUATION

M.M. Amangaliyeva, M.T. Jenaliyev, K.B. Imanberdiyev Mathematics Institute MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan Al-Farabi KazNU, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:muvasharkhan@gmail.com, kanzharbek75ikb@gmail.com

The problem statement. In region $\Omega = \{x, t | 0 < x < \pi, -1 < t < 1\}$ it is considered a following incorrect boundary value problem [1, 2]:

$$y_{tt}(x,t) + y_{xx}(x,t) = f(x,t), \ \{x,t\} \in \Omega,$$
(1)

$$y(0,t) = 0, \ y(\pi,t) = 0,$$
 (2)

$$y(x, -1) = \varphi_1(x), \ y_t(x, -1) = \varphi_2(x).$$
 (3)

Let's assume, that data in a problem (1)-(3) satisfy to following conditions:

$$f \in L_2(\Omega), \ \varphi_1 \in H_0^1(0,\pi), \ \varphi_2 \in L_2(0,\pi).$$
 (4)

An optimization problem. Consider auxiliary problem: (1)-(3) with condition

 $y_t(x,1) \in \mathcal{U}_q$ – the convex closed subset of the space $L_2(0,\pi)$. (5)

Let's put in conformity (1)-(3) and (5) the following optimizing problem:

$$y_{tt}(x,t) + y_{xx}(x,t) = f(x,t),$$
(6)

$$(0,t) = y(\pi,t) = 0, (7)$$

$$y_t(x, -1) = \varphi_2(x), \ y_t(x, 1) = \psi(x), \ \psi(x) \in \mathcal{U}_g \subset L_2(0, \pi),$$
(8)

and optimality functional:

$$\mathcal{J}_{\alpha}(\psi) = \int_{0}^{\pi} |y_x(x,-1) - \varphi_1'(x)|^2 dx + \alpha \cdot \int_{0}^{\pi} |\psi(x)|^2 dx \to \min_{\psi(x) \in \mathcal{U}_g}, \ (\alpha > 0), \tag{9}$$

where ψ plays a role of control function.

y

As is known, in the theory of optimal control the problem (6)-(9) have unique solution. For optimization problem (6)-(9) it is received optimality conditions.

Conclusion. That the boundary problem (1)-(3) under conditions (4) has unique L_2 -strong solution, necessary and safficient

$$\left\{\exp\{2k\}\cdot\varphi_{1k}\right\}_{k=1}^{\infty}, \ \left\{k^{-1}\exp\{2k\}\cdot\varphi_{2k}\right\}_{k=1}^{\infty}, \ \left\{\exp\{2k\}\cdot\|f_k(\tau)\|_{L_2(-1,1)}\right\}_{k=1}^{\infty}\subset l_2.$$

References

[1] A.N. Tihonov, V.Ya. Arsenin. Methods of the solution of incorrect problems // M.: Science, 1979, 142 p.

[2] M.M. Lavrentev. News, SA USSR, A series of the mathematician, Vol.20, No.6, 1956, pp. 819-842.





DISCONTINUOUS STURM-LIOUVILLE PROBLEMS WITH EIGENPARAMETER-DEPENDENT BOUNDARY AND TRANSMISSION CONDITIONS

R. Kh. Amirov, Y. Güldü Cumhuriyet University, Sivas, Turkey e-mail:emirov@cumhuriyet.edu.tr, yguldu@cumhuriyet.edu.tr

In this work, we consider the following differential equation

$$ly := -p(x)[p(x)y']' + q(x)y = \lambda y \tag{1}$$

0

on the set $\Omega = (0, d) \cup (d, \pi)$, where p(x) and q(x) are real valued functions in $L_2(o, \pi), \lambda$ is spectral parameter. Suppose that, p(x) > 0, p(0) = 1 and $p^{-1}(x) \in L_2(0, \pi)$.

We denote by L the boundary value problem generated by equation (1) with the boundary and transmissions conditions

$$U(y) := y(0)\cos\alpha + y'(0)\sin\alpha = 0$$
$$V(y) := a(\lambda)y(\pi) + b(\lambda)[py'](\pi) = 0$$
$$C(y) := \begin{cases} y(d+0) - y(d-0) = 0\\ [p(x)y'(x)]_{x=d+0} - \beta[p(x)y'(x)]_{x=d-0} = \end{cases}$$

where $a(\lambda) = a_0 + a_1\lambda + a_2\lambda^2 + ... + a_m\lambda^m$ and $b(\lambda) = b_0 + b_1\lambda + b_2\lambda^2 + ... + b_m\lambda^m$ are polynomials with real coefficients and no common zeros, $\beta \in \mathbb{R}^+1$, $a \in [0, \pi)$ and $d \in (0, \pi)$.

In the present paper, we consider a discontinuous Sturm-Liouville operator with boundary condition that depends on the spectral parameter and transmis- sions conditions. Firstly, properties of the eigenvalues are studied. Secondly, the Prüfer's angle and the Weyl function are explanied. Finally, the unique- ness theorem for the solution of the inverse problem according to both these functions and two different eigenvalues sets in proved.





RESOLVENT WELL POSED INNER BOUNDARY PROBLEMS FOR HELMHOLTZ EQUATION IN THE PUNCTURED REGION

Almir A. Aniyarov Semey State Pedagogical Institute, Semey, Kazakhstan e-mail:aniyarov.a@gmail.com

Let's consider the continuous operator K of the mapping $f(x, y) \in L_2(\Omega)$ of $h(x, y) \in \tilde{W}_2^2(\Omega_0)$. $\Omega_0 = \Omega \setminus \{M_0\}$ - punctured region, where $M_0(x_0, y_0)$ - some interior point of $\Omega = \{x^2 + y^2 < 1\}$. Operator corresponding to the Dirichlet problem for Poisson equation the continuum region is L_0 . Operator L_K corresponds to the problem

$$\Delta W(x,y) = f(x,y), (x,y) \in \Omega_0, \tag{1}$$

$$W(x,y)|_{\partial\Omega} - K(\Delta W)|_{\partial\Omega} = 0, \qquad (2)$$

$$\alpha\left(W\right) = \alpha\left(K\Delta W\right) \tag{3}$$

$$\beta\left(W\right) = \beta\left(K\Delta W\right) \tag{4}$$

$$\gamma\left(W\right) = \gamma\left(K\Delta W\right).\tag{5}$$

Linear functional $\alpha(\cdot), \beta(\cdot), \gamma(\cdot)$ defined by

$$\begin{split} \alpha\left(W\right) &= \lim_{\delta \to +0} \left\{ \int_{y_0-\delta}^{y_0+\delta} \left[\frac{\partial W\left(x_0+\delta,y\right)}{\partial x} - \frac{\partial W\left(x_0-\delta,y\right)}{\partial x} \right] dy + \right. \\ &\left. + \int_{x_0-\delta}^{x_0+\delta} \left[\frac{\partial W\left(x,y_0+\delta\right)}{\partial y} - \frac{\partial W\left(x,y_0-\delta\right)}{\partial y} \right] dx \right\} \\ \beta\left(W\right) &= \lim_{\delta \to +0} \int_{y_0-\delta}^{y_0+\delta} \left[W\left(x_0-\delta,y\right) - W\left(x_0+\delta,y\right) \right] dy \\ \gamma\left(W\right) &= \lim_{\delta \to +0} \int_{x_0-\delta}^{x_0+\delta} \left[W\left(x,y_0-\delta\right) - W\left(x,y_0+\delta\right) \right] dx. \end{split}$$

In this case, the resolvent of L_K is given by

$$(L_{K} - \lambda I)^{-1} f(x, y) = (L_{0} - \lambda I)^{-1} f(x, y) + \\ + \int_{\partial \Omega} \left[L_{K} (L_{K} - \lambda I)^{-1} \frac{\partial G(x, y, \xi, \eta)}{\partial \overline{n}_{\xi, \eta}} \right] K L_{0} (L_{0} - \lambda I)^{-1} f(\xi, \eta) ds_{\xi, \eta} - \\ - \alpha \left(K L_{0} (L_{0} - \lambda I)^{-1} f(x, y) \right) L_{K} (L_{K} - \lambda I)^{-1} G(x, y, x_{0}, y_{0}) - \\ - \beta \left(K L_{0} (L_{0} - \lambda I)^{-1} f(x, y) \right) L_{K} (L_{K} - \lambda I)^{-1} \frac{\partial G(x, y, x_{0}, y_{0})}{\partial \xi} - \\ - \gamma \left(K L_{0} (L_{0} - \lambda I)^{-1} f(x, y) \right) L_{K} (L_{K} - \lambda I)^{-1} \frac{\partial G(x, y, x_{0}, y_{0})}{\partial \eta}$$

References

[1] B.E. Kanguzhin, A.A. Aniyarov, G.E. Berikhanova. Finite-dimensional perturbations of the Dirichlet problem with multipoint boundary conditions // Journal of KarGU, Series Mathematics. No.2, 2010, pp. 60-72.





SOLUTION OF A BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE VISCOUS TRANSONIC EQUATION

Yusufjon P. Apakov

Namangan Engineering-Pedagogical Institute, Namangan, Uzbekistan e-mail:apakov.1956@mail.ru

Any viscous transonic equation (VT-equation), describing the flow of rotation bodies with the viscous and head conducting gas, has the form [1,2]

$$u_{xxx} + u_{yy} - \frac{\nu}{y}u_y = u_x u_{xx}.$$

For $\nu = 0$ the VT-equation describes the plane-parallel flow and has the form

$$u_{xxx} + u_{yy} = f\left(x, y\right).$$

In the domain $D = \{(x, y) : 0 < x < p, 0 < y < l\}$, where p, l = const > 0, we consider the following problem for the equation (1).

Problem A₂. Find a regular solution of the equation (1) in the domain D, satisfying the boundary conditions

$$u_{y}(x,0) = \varphi_{1}(x), \quad u_{y}(x,l) = \varphi_{2}(x), \\ u_{x}(0,y) = \psi_{1}(y), \quad u_{xx}(0,y) = \psi_{2}(y), \quad u_{xx}(p,y) = \psi_{3}(y)$$

where

 $\varphi_{i}(x) \in C[0,p], i = 1, 2, \quad \psi_{j}(y) \in C[0,l], j = 1, 2, 3, \quad f(x,y) \in C_{x,y}^{0,2}(\overline{D}), \quad f(x,0) = f(x,l) = 0,$

in addition, natural conditions of agreement are fulfilled.

We note that the conjugate equation to the equation (1) was studied in the works [3,4].

In the present work unique solvability of the problem A_2 is shown. In this connection, the explicit form of the solution is obtained with the help of the constructed Green function. The solution has the form:

$$2u(x,y) = \int_{0}^{l} G(x,y,p,\eta) \psi_{3}(\eta) d\eta + \int_{0}^{l} G(x,y,0,\eta) \psi_{2}(\eta) d\eta - \int_{0}^{l} G_{\xi}(x,y,0,\eta) \psi_{1}(\eta) d\eta - \int_{0}^{p} G(x,y,\xi,l) \varphi_{2}(\xi) d\xi + \int_{0}^{p} G(x,y,\xi,0) \varphi_{1}(\xi) d\xi + \iint_{D} G(x,y,\xi,\eta) f(\xi,\eta) d\xi d\eta.$$

- O.S. Ryzhov. Asymptotical portrait for flow of rotation bodies with the stream of viscous and head conducting gas // Prikladnaya Matematika I Mekhanika, Vol.2, No.6, 1952, pp.1004-1014.
- [2] V.N. Diesperov. On the Green function for the linearized viscous transonic equation // Jurnal Vychislitelnoy Matematiki I Matematicheskoy Fiziki, Vol.12, No.5, 1972, pp.1265-1279.
- [3] T.D. Djuraev, Yu.P. Apakov. On the automodelling solution for an third-order equation with multiple characteristics // Vestnik Samarskogo Gos. Tekhn. Universiteta, ser. "fiz.-mat.nauki", Vol.15, No.2, 2007, pp.18-26.
- [4] T.D. Djuraev, Yu.P. Apakov. On the of the third-order equation with multiple characteristics containing the second time derivative // Ukrainian Mathematical Journal, Vol.62, No.1, 2010, pp.40-50.





TO PROPERTIES OF THE NONLINEAR DIFFUSION - REACTION SYSTEM WITH INHOMOGENEOUS DENSITY

M. Aripov, Sh.A. Sadullaeva National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:mirsaidaripov@mail.ru, orif_sh@list.ru

In the domain $Q = \{(t, x) : t > 0, x \in \mathbb{R}^N\}$ investigated properties of the process of a nonlinear diffusion-reaction with heterogeneous density:

$$\begin{cases} \frac{\partial(\rho(x)u)}{\partial t} = div\left(|x|^n v^{m-1} |\nabla u|^{p-2} \nabla u\right) + \varepsilon \rho(x)\gamma(t)u^{\beta_1} \\ \frac{\partial(\rho(x)v)}{\partial t} = div\left(|x|^n u^{m-1} |\nabla v|^{p-2} \nabla v\right) + \varepsilon \rho(x)\gamma(t)v^{\beta_2} \end{cases}$$
(1)

$$u(0, x) = u_0(x) \ge 0,$$

$$v(0, x) = v_0(x) \ge 0, \ x \in \mathbb{R}^N,$$
(2)

where $m, n \in R$, $\beta_1, \beta_2 \ge 1$ p ≥ 2 - given positive numbers, $\nabla(.) - grad(.)$, functions $u_0(x)$, $v_0(x) \ge 1$

 $0, x \in \mathbb{R}^N, \rho(x) = |x|^{-l}, l > 0, 0 < \gamma(t) \in C(0, \infty), \varepsilon = \pm 1$. Particular cases (n = 0, l = 0, p = 2) of the system were considered in works [1-4]. There are received the conditions of existence of the solutions of the problem Cauchy on time.

The system (1) in the domain, where u = v = 0 is degenerated, and in the domain of degeneration it may have not the classical solution. Therefore it is studied the weak solutions of the system (1) having physical sense: $0 \le u, v \in C(Q)$ and $|x|^n v^{m-1} |\nabla u|^{p-2} \nabla u$, $|x|^n u^{m-1} |\nabla v|^{p-2} \nabla v \in C(Q)$ satisfying to some integral identity. For the solution of the system (1) have place phenomena of the finite velocity of a propagation and localization of a disturbance, i.e. there are the functions $l_1(t)$, $l_2(t)$, that $u(t, x) \equiv 0$ and $v(t, x) \equiv 0$ when $|x| \ge l_1(t)$ and $|x| \ge l_2(t)$, accordingly. The surfaces $|x| = l_1(t)$ and $|x| = l_2(t)$ are called a free boundary or a front.

In the present work the different types estimates and the exact solutions of the system (1) based on the self - similar, approximately self-similar approaches and by the method of the standard equations are received. In the case m + p - 3 > 0 is established asymptotic behaviour of the weak finite solution and free boundary l(t) and asymptotic of the self - similar solution when m + p - 3 < 0.

Using the exact solutions and the estimates of a solution and an estimate of free boundaries the numerical experiments, visualization of processes described by the system reaction diffusion with inhomogeneous density carried out.

- [1] M. Aripov, J. Muhammadiev. Asymptotic behaviour of automodel solutions for one system of quasilinear equations of parabolic type // Buletin Stiintific-Universitatea din Pitesti, Seria Matematica si Informatica, 3, 1999, pp. 19-40.
- [2] A.A. Samarskii, V.A. Galaktionov, S.P. Kurdyomov, A.P. Mikhailov. Blow-up in quasilinear parabolic equations // Berlin, 4, Walter de Grueter, (1995), 535 p.
- S.P. Kurduomov, E.S. Kurkina, O.V. Telkovskaya. Blow-up in binary environment // Math. modeling, 1989, Vol. 1, pp. 34-50.
- [4] S.N. Dimova, M.S. Kastchiev, M.C. Koleva, D.P. Vasileva. Numerical analysis of the blow-up regimes of combustion of two-component nonlinear heat-conducting medium // JVM and MF, Vol.35. No.3, 1995, pp. 303-319.







INVESTIGATION ONE BOUNDARY PROBLEM FOR THE EQUATION OF A HIGH ORDER

O.G. Asadova

$Baku\ State\ University,\ Baku,\ Azerbaijan$

There was an idea to investigate application method of planimetric to the of the solution problems for the equations and systems not belonging to typical classification. And as one of the basic stages of the method of planimetric integral for the equations of mathematical physics is of the boundary problems corresponding to given mixed problems. There are various methods of study of such problems one of is the method of the theory of potentials by the help of which one boundary problem in the present work will be investigated.

The problem of a finding of the solution of the equation

$$\frac{d^4y(x,\,\lambda)}{dx^4} - \lambda^4 y(x,\mu) = F(x,\,\mu), x \in (0,\,1),\tag{1}$$

with boundary conditions

l

$$\frac{d^s y(x,\mu)}{dx^s}\Big|_{x=0} = \varphi_s(\mu), (s=0,\ 1); \ \frac{d^s y(x,\mu)}{dx^s}\Big|_{x=1} = \psi_s(\mu)(s=2,\ 3)$$
(2)

is considered. This problem corresponds to the mixed problem for the equation not belonging to typical classification, i.e. for the equation

$$\frac{\partial^2 \vartheta(x,t)}{\partial t^2} = a \frac{\partial^5 \vartheta}{\partial x^4 \partial t} + b \frac{\partial^4 \vartheta}{\partial x^4},$$

$$\mu = \frac{\lambda^2}{\sqrt[4]{a}{\lambda^4} + b}.$$
(3)

where Re a > 0.

As the solution of the non-uniform equation under homogeneous boundary conditions is under construction by means of Green's function, the problem for the homogeneous equation corresponding to the equation (1), i.e. the equations should be investigated

$$\frac{d^4y(x,\,\mu)}{dx^4} - \mu^4 y(x,\mu) = 0 \tag{1'}$$

with boundary conditions (2). The solution of this problem is searched in the form of the sum of potentials

$$y(x,\mu) = \sum_{m=1}^{4} \mathcal{K}_m(x,\ \mu)\theta_m(\mu),\tag{4}$$

where $K_m(x, \mu)$ $(m = \overline{1, 4})$ are kernels which are defined by means of fundamental and private solution of the equation (1'), and the fundamental solution is defined by the formula

$$P(x - \xi, \ \mu) = \frac{1}{4\mu^2} \left\{ i e^{i\mu|x - \xi|} - e^{-\mu|x - \xi|} \right\}$$
(5)

 $\theta_m(\mu)$ $(m = \overline{1, 4})$ unknown density subject to definition. By direct check it is proved that at all values of parameter from sector

$$R_{\delta} = \left\{ \mu : \ |\mu| > R \ \frac{\pi}{8} - \delta < \arg \mu < \frac{3\pi}{8} + \delta \right\}$$

 $K_m(x, \mu)$ kernels are regular functions in area R_{δ} . By means of (4) decision of a problem (1 '), (2) it is reduced to the decision of system algebraic the equation concerning unknown density $\nu_m(\mu)$ $(m = \overline{1, 4})$, which determinant it will be distinct from zero.





UNIQUENESS OF SOLUTIONS OF LINEAR INTEGRAL EQUATIONS OF THE FIRST KIND WITH TWO INDEPENDENT VARIABLES

Avyt Asanov, Zuurakan Kadenova Kyrgyz-Turkish Manas University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan Osh State Social University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:avyt.asanov@mail.ru, kadenova71@mail.ru

We shall consider the integral equation

$$\int_{a}^{b} K(t,x,y)u(t,y)dy + \int_{t_{0}}^{t} H(t,x,s)u(s,x)dx + \int_{t_{0}}^{t} \int_{a}^{x} G(t,x,s,y)u(s,y)dyds = f(t,x),$$
(1)
$$(t,x) \in G = (t,x) \in R^{2}: t_{0} \le t \le T, a \le x \le b,$$

where

$$K(t, x, y) = \begin{cases} A(t, x, y), \ t_0 \le t \le T, \ a \le y \le x \le b, \\ B(t, x, y), \ t_0 \le t \le T, \ a \le x \le y \le b. \end{cases}$$

Various issues conserning integral quations of the first kind and third kinds were studied in [1-3]. In this work with method of nonnegative quadratic form we investigate the uniqueness of solutions of linear integral equations of the first kind with two independent variables.

- M.I. Imanaliev, A. Asanov. Solutions to Systems of Linear Fredholm Integral Equations of the Third Kind // Doklady Mathematics, Vol.81, No.1, 2010, pp. 115-118.
- [2] A. Asanov. Regularization, Uniqueness and Existence of Solutions of Volterra Equations of the First Kind // VSP, Utrect, 1998.
- [3] S.P. Shishatskii, A. Asanov, E.R. Atamanov. Uniqueness Problems for Degenerating Equations and Nonclassical Problems // VSP, Utrect, 2001.



~ 0



The 4th Congress of the Turkic World Mathematical Society (TWMS) Baku, Azerbaijan, 1-3 July, 2011

ON INVERSE PROBLEM FOR SYSTEM OF SECOND ORDER HYPERBOLIC EQUATIONS

Anar T. Asanova

Institute of Mathematics Ministry of Education and Science, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:anar@math.kz, anarasanova@list.ru

We study the inverse problem for system of second order hyperbolic equations on $\Omega = [0, T] \times [0, \omega]$

u(t

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x \partial t} = A(t,x)\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + B(t,x)\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + C(t,x)u + D(t,x)q(x) + f(t,x), \tag{1}$$

$$(0) = \psi(t), \qquad t \in [0, T],$$
 (2)

$$P_{1}(x)\frac{\partial u(0,x)}{\partial x} + P_{0}(x)u(0,x) = \varphi_{1}(x), \qquad x \in [0,\omega],$$
(3)

$$\frac{\partial u(T,x)}{\partial x} = \varphi_2(x), \qquad x \in [0,\omega], \tag{4}$$

where $(n \times n)$ matrices A(t, x), B(t, x), C(t, x), D(t, x), *n*-vector-function f(t, x) are continuous on Ω , *n*-vector-function $\psi(t)$ is continuously differentiable on [0, T], $(n \times n)$ - matrices $P_1(x)$, $P_0(x)$, *n*-vector-functions $\varphi_1(x)$, $\varphi_2(x)$ are continuous on $[0, \omega]$, *n*-vector-functions u(t, x), q(x) are unknown functions.

We study the problem of existence and uniqueness of the classical solution of the problem (1)-(4).

Nonlocal boundary value problems for systems of second order hyperbolic equations were considered by number of authors. Sufficient conditions for the existence and uniqueness of a solution of such problems were obtained by various methods. The nonlocal boundary value problem with data on characteristics was considered in [1-2] by the method of introduction of functional parameters. This method is a modification of the parametrization method [3] developed for the solution of two-point boundary value problems for ordinary differential equations. In [4-6] the necessary and sufficient conditions for the well-posed unique solvability of nonlocal boundary value problem are established.

In the present communication the method of introduction of functional parameters is used for investigating of questions of existence and uniqueness of classical solution of inverse problem (1)–(4). The sufficient conditions of the unique classic solvability of the inverse problem - the nonlocal boundary value problem for system of hyperbolic type with unknown parameter (1)–(4) are obtained and an algorithm of finding its solution is proposed.

- A.T. Asanova, D.S. Dzhumabaev. Unique Solvability of the Boundary Value Problem for Systems of Hyperbolic Equations with Data on the Characteristics // Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.42, No.11, 2002, pp. 1609-1621.
- [2] A.T. Asanova, D.S. Dzhumabaev. Unique Solvability of the Nonlocal boundary Value Problems for Systems of Hyperbolic Equations // Differential Equations, Vol.39, No.10, 2003, pp. 1343-1354.
- [3] D.S. Dzhumabaev. The signs unique solvability of linear boundary value problem for the ordinary differential equation // Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.29, No.1, 1989, pp. 50-66.
- [4] A.T. Asanova, D.S. Dzhumabaev. The criteria of correct solvability of a boundary value problem for systems of hyperbolic equations // Izvestia MON, NAN RK. Seria fiz.-matem., No.3, 2002, pp. 20-26. (in russian)
- [5] A.T. Asanova, D.S.Dzhumabaev. Correct Solvability of a Nonlocal Boundary Value Problem for Systems of Hyperbolic Equations // Doklady Mathematics, Vol.68, No.1, 2003, pp. 46-49.
- [6] A.T.Asanova, D.S. Dzhumabaev. Well-Posed Solvability of Nonlocal Boundary Value Problems for Systems of Hyperbolic Equations // Differential Equations, Vol. 41, No.3, 2005, pp. 352-363.





WELL-POSEDNESS OF FRACTIONAL PARABOLIC EQUATIONS

Allaberen Ashyralyev Fatih University, Istanbul, Turkey Permanent address: ITTU, Ashgabat, Turkmenistan e-mail:aashyr@fatih.edu.tr

In the present paper we consider the initial value problem for the fractional differential equation

$$\frac{du(t)}{dt} + D_t^{\frac{1}{2}}u(t) + A(t)u(t) = f(t), \ 0 < t < 1, \ u(0) = 0$$
(1)

in a Banach space E with the strongly positive operator A(t): The well-posed ness of this problem in spaces of smooth functions is established. In practice, the coercive stability estimates for the solution of problems for 2m-th order multidimensional fractional parabolic equations and one dimensional fractional parabolic equations with nonlocal boundary conditions in space variable are obtained. The stable difference scheme for the approximate solution of this problem is presented. The well-posedness of the difference scheme in difference analogues of spaces of smooth functions is established. In practice, the coercive stability estimates for the solution of difference schemes for the fractional parabolic equation with nonlocal boundary conditions in space variable and the multidimensional fractional parabolic equation with Dirichlet condition in space variables and the 2m-th order multidimensional fractional parabolic equation are obtained.

- [1] I. Podlubny. Fractional Differential Equations // Academic Press, New York, 1999.
- [2] A. Ashyralyev. A note on fractional derivatives and fractional powers of operators // Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, No. 357, 2009, pp. 232-236.
- [3] A. Ashyralyev, P.E.Sobolevskii. New Difference Schemes for Partial Differential Equations // Operator Theory: Advances and Applications, Basel, Boston, Berlin: Birkhäser Verlag, 2004.





GREEN'S FUNCTION OF THE HIGH ORDER OPERATION - DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS IN THE FINITE INTERVAL

G.I. Aslanov, K.G. Badalova

Institute of Mechanics and Mathematics of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan Sumgait State University, Sumgait, Azerbaijan

Let H be a separable Hilbert space. In the space $L_2[H; [0, \pi]]$ we consider the operator L, generated by expression

$$l(y) = (-1)^{n} y^{(2n)} + Q(x) y$$
(1)

and boundary conditions

$$B_{j}y\Big|_{x=0} = y^{(l_{j})}(0) + \sum_{k=1}^{l_{j}} \alpha_{k}^{(l_{j})}y^{(l_{j}-k)}(0) = 0,$$

$$\tilde{B}_{j}y\Big|_{x=0} = u^{\tilde{l}_{j}}(\pi) + \sum_{k=1}^{l_{j}} \beta_{k}^{(\tilde{l}_{j})}u^{(l_{j}-k)}(\pi) = 0,$$
(2)

$$\tilde{B}_{j}y\Big|_{x=\pi} = y^{\tilde{l}_{j}}(\pi) + \sum_{k=1}^{l_{j}} \beta_{k}^{(\tilde{l}_{j})} y^{(l_{j}-k)}(\pi) = 0,$$

where $0 \le l_1 < l_2 < \dots < l_n \le 2n-1; \ 0 \le \tilde{l}_1 < \tilde{l}_2 < \dots < \tilde{l}_n \le 2n-1; \ j = \overline{1, n}.$

In the work the Green's function of the equation $l(y) + \mu y = 0$ with boundary conditions (2) is studied. For this purpose, first we construct the Green's function of the corresponding equation with the fixed point ξ factors, i.e. of the following problems

$$(-1)^{n} y^{(n)} + Q(\xi) y + \mu y = 0, \qquad (3)$$

$$B_j y \Big|_{x=0} = \tilde{B}_j y \Big|_{x=\pi} = 0, j = \overline{1, n}.$$
 (4)

The Green's function of the problem (3) - (4) is sought as

$$G_{1}(x,\eta;\xi,\mu) = G_{0}(x,\eta;\xi,\mu) + V(x;\eta;\xi,\mu),$$

where $G_0(x; \eta, \xi, \mu)$ is the Green's function of the equation $l(y) + \mu y = 0$ in the whole axis, $V(x; \eta; \xi, \mu)$ is a solution of the corresponding homogeneous equation satisfying to the following boundary conditions

$$\begin{cases} B_j V(x,\eta,\xi;\mu) |_{x=0} = -B_j G_0(x,\eta,\xi;\mu) |_{x=0} \\ \tilde{B}_j V(x,\eta,\xi;\mu) |_{x=\pi} = -\tilde{B}_j G_0(x,\eta,\xi;\mu) |_{x=\pi} \end{cases}$$

The following formulae is obtained for the Green's function

$$G_{1}(x;\eta;\xi,\mu) = \frac{K_{\xi}^{1-2n}}{2ni} \sum_{k=1}^{n} \omega_{k} e^{i\omega_{k}K_{\xi}|x-\eta|} \left(E + r\left(x,\eta;\xi,\mu\right)\right).$$

Moreover for $\mu \to \infty ||r(x;\eta;\xi,\mu)|| = O(1)$ regularly with respect to (x,η) .

The Green's function of the problem (1), (2) is a solution of a following integral equation

$$G(x,\eta;\mu) = G_1(x,\eta;\mu) - \int_0^{\pi} G(x,\xi;\mu) \left[Q(\xi) - Q(x)\right] G(\xi,\eta;\mu) \, d\xi.$$







THE EXACT VALUE OF THE UNKNOWN CONSTANT IN ONE HYPERBOLIC EQUATION

E.M. Akhundova Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan

In [1-2] for the description of vibrations of a column of boring pipes the following equation was offered:

$$w_{tt} = ga^{\sigma} \left(\left(xw^{\sigma}w_x \right)_x - \left(\sigma/2 \right) xw^{\sigma-1}w_x^2 \right), \tag{1}$$

where $\sigma > 0$ - unknown constant number which characterizes a degree of influence of forces of tension on a column of the boring pipes arising at its elastic deformations $a = c\mu (G/E)$, μ - the factor of Poisson, G - the module of shift, E-Young's modulus, g- acceleration of free falling, c- a dimensionless constant. It is supposed, that the axis of abscissa $(x \ge 0)$ is located on the central axis of a vertical chink and directed upwards, the axis of ordinates to serve for the description of cross-section deviations of a w = w (x, t) column, t - time.

It is required to find unknown numerical value of a constant σ in the equation (1).

The problem is solved on the basis of theoretical group views and the theory of resistance of materials. Dimension of maximal wide algebra of Lie as supposed by the equation (1) is equal to three: L_3 , and basic infinitesimal operators of this algebra are defined by following proportions:

$$X_1 = \frac{\partial}{\partial t}, X_2 = x \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + (1/\sigma) \ w \frac{\partial}{\partial w}, X_3 = (\sigma + 4) \ x \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + 2t \frac{\partial}{\partial t} + w \frac{\partial}{\partial w}.$$

It has appeared that using the group of transformations as determined by the operator X_2 :

$$x' = e^{b}x, t' = t, w' = e^{b/\sigma}w,$$
(2)

And also by defining of factor of Poisson it is possible unequivocally to calculate unknown numerical value of a constant σ from the equation (1). Here *b*- parameter of the group. It was found out that $\sigma = 1$.

Due to use of transformations (2) there is a arise a question: - the Algebra L_3 contains infinitely much more infinitesimal operators then why for the decision of a task we give preference exactly to the operator X_2 ?

Answering to this question it is possible to note that the operator X_2 , to within constant factors, appears the only thing in all algebra L_3 which defines the group of the transformations and leaving constant value of time. Therefore, it looks natural if to try to define with the use operators of algebra L_3 quantitative value of any size, indifferent to changes of time (for example, a constant σ), so for this purpose more suitable to within constant factors is the operator $X_2 \in L_3$.

- [1] E.M. Akhundova. The solving methods of the optimal control problems in the mechanical systems described by a set of partial and ordinary differential // Phd Dissertation, Baku, 2006, 163 p.
- [2] F.A. Aliyev, A.A. Akhundov, E.M. Akhundova. Mathematical model of the knock less transverse oscillation of the pillar drilling pipes // Reports of National Academy of Sciences of Azerbaijan, Vol. 62, No.1, 2006, pp. 7-15.





SOME PROPERTIES OF ONE STURM-LIOUVILLE TYPE PROBLEM WITH ABSTRACT LINEAR OPERATOR

Kadriye Aydemir, Hayati Olğar, O. Sh. Mukhtarov Gaziosmanpaşa University, Tokat, Turkey e-mail:kaydemir@gop.edu.tr, hayatiolgar@gop.edu.tr, muhtarov@gop.edu.tr

In this work, we study the differential-operator equation

$$L(u) := -u''(x) + q(x)u(x) + (Bu)(x) = \lambda u(x), \qquad x \in [-1,0) \cup (0,1]$$

together with boundary condition at x = -1

 $L_1(u) := \alpha_1 u(-1) + \alpha_2 u'(-1) = 0$

transmission conditions at the point of discontinuity x = 0,

$$L_2(u) := u(+0) - \delta u(-0) = 0,$$

$$L_3(u) := u'(+0) - \gamma u'(-0) = 0$$

and eigenparameter-dependent boundary condition at x = 1

$$L_4(u) := \lambda(\beta'_1 u(1) - \beta'_2 u'(1)) + \beta_1 u(1) - \beta_2 u'(1) = 0,$$

where $B: L_2(-1,1) \to L_2(-1,1)$ is an abstract linear operator with domain of definition $D(B) \supset W_2^2(-1,0) \oplus W_2^2(0,1)$, q(x) is a given real-valued function which is continuous in both [-1,0] and [0,1] (that is, continuous both in [-1,0) and (0,1] and has finite limits $q(\pm 0) = \lim_{x \to \pm 0} q(x)$), λ is a complex eigenvalue parameter and the coefficients $\delta, \gamma, \alpha_1, \alpha_2 \beta'_1, \beta'_2, \beta_1, \beta_2$ are real numbers, $\delta\gamma > 0$, $\alpha_1^2 + \alpha_2^2 \neq 0$ and $\beta'_1 \beta_2 - \beta_1 \beta'_2 > 0$. We investigated isomorphism, coerciveness and resolvent of the considered problem and derive asymptotic approximation formulas for the eigenvalues.

- O.Sh. Mukhtarov, S.Yakubov. Problems for ordinary differential equations with transmission conditions // Applicaple Analysis, Vol.81, 2002, pp. 1033-1064.
- [2] P.A. Binding, P.J.Browne, K.Seddighi. Sturm-Liouville Problems with Eigenparameter Dependent Boundary Conditions // Proceedings of Edinburg Mathematical Society, Vol.37, 1993, pp. 57-72.
- [3] E.C. Titchmars. Eigenfunctions Expansion Associated with Second Order Differential Equations I // second edn. Oxford Univ. press, London 1962.
- [4] H.Demir. The boundary value problem for a differential operator equation // Doctora Thesis, Ondokuz Mayıs University Institute of Science and Technology, Samsun, 1999.
- [5] J.Walter. Regular Eigenvalue Problems with Eigenvalue Parameter in the Boundary Conditions // Math. Z., Vol.133, 1973, pp. 301-312.





SOLUTIONS BEHAVIOUR OF THE SINGULAR PERTURBED SYSTEM OF ORDINARY DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS IN PARTICULARLY CRITICAL CASES

S. Karimov, M.A. Azimbaev, I. Bektenaliev Osh State University, Kyrgyzstan, Osh e-mail:azimbaev-muhtar@rambler.ru

The problem under consideration is as follows:

$$\varepsilon x'(t,\varepsilon) = D(t)x(t,\varepsilon) + \varepsilon [f(t) + B(t)x(t,\varepsilon)] + g(t,x(t,\varepsilon)), \tag{1}$$

$$c(-T_0,\varepsilon) = x^0(\varepsilon), \|x^0(\varepsilon)\| = O(\varepsilon),$$
(2)

where $D(t) = diag(\lambda_1(t) = (t+i)^n, \lambda_2(t) = (t-i)^n), n = 4k+1, k = 0, 1, 2, ..., \varepsilon > 0$ small parameter;

$$f(t) - colon(f_1(t), f_1(t)); \quad B(t) = (b_{kj}(t))_1^2;$$

 $[-T_0, T_0]$ -segment of actual axis, $0 < T_0$ open radius circle $r \ge 1 + d$ (d > 0) with a centre at the point of (0,0); $t \in S_r$, $\Delta(t,x) = (t, x_1, x_2) : t \in S_r$, $|x_j| < \delta(j = 1, 2), 0 < \delta - const$, $\Phi(S_r)$ -space of analytical functions in S_r

For the solution of $x(t,\varepsilon) = colon(x_1(t,\varepsilon), x_2(t,\varepsilon))$ we will look in the class $X_k(t,\varepsilon) \in \Phi(S_r)$, (k = 1,2)at t.

We will demand the solution of the following conditions:

I. Let $f_k(t) \in \Phi(S_r)$; $b_{kj}(t) \in \Phi(S_r)$; $g_k(t, x)\Phi(\Delta(t, x))(k, j = 1, 2)$; in the sphere of $\Delta(t, x)$ there is

inequality of $||g(t,x) - g(t,\tilde{x})|| \le M ||x - \tilde{x}|| \max\{||x||, ||\tilde{x}||\}$, where 0 < M. Let $T_0 = tg \frac{\pi}{4(2k+1)}$. Then $Re(t \pm i)^{4k+1}$, (k = 0, 1, 2, ...) changes the digit at the segment of $[-T_0, T_0]$ $Re(t \pm i)^{4k+1} < 0 \ at \ T_0 \le t < 0, \quad Re(t \pm i)^{4k+1} > \ at \ 0 < t \le T.$

II. We will consider that if (t_1, t_2) -inner point of the sphere of H_0 , then the harmonic function is $Jm\lambda_1(t_1, t_2) > 0$, where $H_0 = [ABCD]$ -rhombus with appears in the points: $A(-T_0, 0), B(1, 0), C(T, 0), C(T, 0), C(T, 0)$ D(-1,0). We will put a question on closeness of the solution of perturbed and unperturbed problems in the case of exchange of stabilities at the segment $[-T_0, T_0]$ at sufficiently small values ε .

In the paper [1] the solutions behavior of the tasks (1), (2) for the system of the type of (1)has been analyzed at $D(t) = diaq(\lambda_1(t)) = (t+i), \lambda_2(t) = (t-i)$ at the segment of [-1,1], when $B(t) \equiv 0; f(t) = -colon(x_1, x_2); g(t, x) = \gamma x_1 x_2 colon(x_1, x_2), where \gamma = const.$

In this particular work we are analyzing the solutions behavior of the task (1), (2) at the segment of while completing the requirement of I, II.

Theorem: Let conditions I, II be fulfilled. In that case for the problem (1), (2) at $-T_0 \leq t < \widetilde{T_0} - \widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon)$ there is the only solution and the value is correct for it $||x(t,\varepsilon)|| \leq cw(t,\varepsilon)$, where 0 < c - const

$$w(t,\varepsilon) = \begin{cases} \varepsilon & at \quad -T_0 \leq t \leq T_0 - \widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon) \quad (0$$

 $\widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon) \ge 0$ continuous function at $0 < \varepsilon \le \varepsilon_0$ ($\varepsilon_0 - const.$), at that $\lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon) = 0$.

- [1] K.S. Alybaev. Method of level line research of singular perturbed equations at negative stability // Doctorate dissertation in physics and mathematics: 01.01.02. - Zhalal-Abad, 2001, pp. 33-376.
- [2] S. Karimov, G. Anarbaeva, A. Abdilazizova. Research of behaviour of the singular perturbed system of differential equations in a particularly critical case // Researches of integral-differential equations, Bishkek, Issue 40, 2009, pp. 169-181.





SOLVABILITY OF THE NONLINEAR TWO POINT BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR A SYSTEM OF INTEGRAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Elmira A. Bakirova Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:bakirova1974@mail.ru

Consider the nonlinear two point boundary value problem

$$\frac{dx}{dt} = f_0(t,x) + \int_0^T f_1(t,s,x(s)ds), \quad t \in (0,T),$$
(1)

$$g\Big(x(0), x(T)\Big) = 0, \tag{2}$$

where $f_0: [0,T] \times \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}^n, f_1: [0,T] \times [0,T] \times \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}^n$ are continuous.

Problem (1),(2) is investigated by parametrization method [1]. We take step h > 0 and make partition of interval on N parts. Denote by $x_r(t)$ the function x(t) restricted to the r-th interval [(r-1)h, rh).

We introduce $\lambda_r = x_r[(r-1)h]$ and change the variable $u_r(t) = x_r(t) - \lambda_r$ on each interval [(r-1)h, rh). Then, we obtain the equivalent multipoint boundary value problem with parameters

$$\frac{du_r}{dt} = f_0(t, u_r + \lambda_r) + \sum_{j=1}^N \int_{(j-1)h}^{jh} f_1(t, s, u_j(s) + \lambda_j) ds, \quad t \in [(r-1)h, rh),$$
(3)

$$u_r[(r-1)h] = 0, \qquad r = \overline{1, N}, \tag{4}$$

$$g\left(\lambda_1, \lambda_N + \lim_{t \to T-0} u_N(t)\right) = 0, \tag{5}$$

$$\lambda_s + \lim_{t \to sh-0} u_s(t) = \lambda_{s+1}, \quad s = \overline{1, N-1}.$$
(6)

Cauchy problem (3),(4) at fixed values $\lambda = (\lambda_1, \lambda_2, \dots, \lambda_N)$, is equivalent to the following integral equation

$$u_r(t) = \int_{(r-1)h}^t f_0(\tau, u_r(\tau) + \lambda_r) + \sum_{j=1}^N \int_{(j-1)h}^{jh} f_1(\tau, s, u_j(s) + \lambda_j) ds d\tau, \ t \in [(r-1)h, rh),$$
(7)

(6) we find $\lim_{t\to rh-0} u_r(t)$, $r = \overline{1, N}$, and substituting the corresponding in (4),(5) we obtain a system of nonlinear equations

$$Q_{1h}(\lambda, u) = 0, \quad \lambda \in \mathbb{R}^{nN}.$$
(8)

Propose an algorithm for finding a solution to the problem with parameters (3)-(6). On the basis of the parametrization method [1] sufficient conditions of convergence of algorithm and existence of the isolated solution of a problem (1)-(3) are received.

References

[1] D.S. Dzhumabaev // Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.29, No.1, 1989, pp. 50-66.





ANALOGUES OF THE TRICOMI PROBLEM FOR THE LOADED THIRD ORDER DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION

U.I. Baltaeva Urgench State University, Urgench, Uzbekistan e-mail:umida_baltayeva@mail.ru

The necessity of the consideration of the parabolic-hyperbolic type equation was specified in 1956 by I.M.Gel'fand [1]. He gave an example connected to the movement of the gas in a channel surrounded by a porous environment. Inside the channel the movement of the gas was described by the were equation, outside by the diffusion equation. Recently, loaded equations have been of the great interest owing to intensive studying the problems of the optimal control of the agro economical system, of the long-term forecasting and regulating the subsoil waters layer and soil moisture. First, the most general definition of the loaded equation was given by A.M. Nakhushev. He also gave notions and detailed classification for different loaded differential, loaded integral, loaded functional equations and considered their numerical applications.

We consider the equation

$$0 = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \begin{cases} u_{xx} - u_y - \lambda_1 u - \mu_1 u(x, 0), & (x, y) \in \Omega_1, \\ u_{xx} - u_{yy} + \lambda_2 u - \mu_2 u(x, 0), & (x, y) \in \Omega_2 \end{cases}$$
(1)

in the domain $\Omega = \Omega_1 \cup \Omega_2$, where Ω_1 is the domain bounded by segments AB, BB_0 , B_0A_0 , A_0A of the straight lines y = 0, x = 1, y = h and x = 0, i.e. $\{0 < x < 1, 0 \le y \le h\}$, Ω_2 is the characteristic triangle bounded by the segment AB of the axe Ox and by characteristics AC : x+y = 0, BC : x-y = 1 of the equation (1) outgoing from the points A, B and crossing on $C\left(-\frac{1}{2}, \frac{1}{2}\right)$.

In the equation (1), λ_i , μ_i , i = 1, 2 are given real parameters.

To find the function u(x, y) from the class of functions $W = C(\overline{\Omega}) \cap C^1(\Omega \cup AA_0 \cup AC) \cap C^{3,1}_{x,y}(\Omega_1) \cap C^{3,2}_{x,y}(\Omega_2)$ satisfying the equation (1) in the domain $\Omega_1 \cup \Omega_2$ and satisfying the following conditions

$$u(0,y) = \varphi_1(y), \quad u(1,y) = \varphi_2(y), \quad u_x(0,y) = \varphi_3(y), \quad 0 \le y \le h,$$
 (2)

$$u(x, -x) = \psi_1(x), \quad \left. \frac{\partial u(x, y)}{\partial n} \right|_{y=-x} = \psi_2(x), \quad 0 \le x \le 1.$$
(3)

Moreover, the following gluing conditions

$$y(x, +0) = u_y(x, -0), \ 0 < x < 1$$
(4)

should be fulfilled on the lines of the type changing.

Here $\varphi_i(y)$ $(i = \overline{1,3})$, $\psi_1(x)$, $\psi_2(x)$ are given real-valued functions.

u

Theorem. If $\lambda_1 > 0, \varphi_1(0) = \psi_1(0),$

$$\varphi_j(y) \in C[0;h] \cap C^1(0;h), \quad j = \overline{1,3}, \tag{5}$$

$$\psi_1(x) \in C^1\left[0; \frac{1}{2}\right] \cap C^3\left(0; \frac{1}{2}\right), \quad \psi_2(x) \in C\left[0; \frac{1}{2}\right] \cap C^2\left(0; \frac{1}{2}\right).$$
 (6)

then there exists a unique solution to the problem T.

- [1] I.M. Gel'fand. Some questions of analysis and differential equations // UMN, Ser., Vol.14, No.3(87), 1959, pp. 3-19.
- $\left[2\right]$ A.M. Nakhushev. The Equations of Mathematical Biology // Vishaya Shkola, Moscow, 1995, 301 p.





THE SOLUTION OF THE SPEED OF THE THE WAVES AT THE POROUS PHASES

N.V. Bayramova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:n_bayramova@mail.ru

Nonlinear waves evolution in porous medium with two-phase pore filling has been created. The mathematically posed problem for one-dimensional and isothermic case is led to the solution of the mass and momentum conservation equation

$$\frac{\partial \alpha_i \rho_i}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial \alpha_i \rho_i v_i}{\partial x} = 0, \quad \alpha_1 + \alpha_2 = 1, \tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial \left(\alpha_i \rho_i \upsilon_i\right)}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial \left(\alpha_i \rho_i \upsilon_i \upsilon_i\right)}{\partial x} = \delta_{1i} \frac{\partial \sigma}{\partial x} + \alpha_i \frac{\partial P}{\partial x} - (-1)^i R_{12}.$$
(2)

We take the connection between stress and deformation of solid phase in the form

$$\frac{\partial \left(\alpha_i \rho_i v_i\right)}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial \left(\alpha_i \rho_i v_i v_i\right)}{\partial x} = \delta_{1i} \frac{\partial \sigma}{\partial x} + \alpha_i \frac{\partial P}{\partial x} - (-1)^i R_{12}.$$
(3)

The system of equations (1)-(3) is completed by the thermodynamic equation of phase states

$$\rho_1 = \rho_1(\sigma, P), \rho_2 = \rho_2(P).$$
(4)

The equations (1)-(4) are completed by the following kinematic relation

$$\frac{\partial e_1}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial e_1 v_1}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial v_1}{\partial x}.$$
(5)

Using the length and time resealing

$$\frac{\partial e_1}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial e_1 v_1}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial v_1}{\partial x} \tag{6}$$

we rewrite the system of equations (1)-(5) in new variables.

At the first approximation the system of equations (1)-(5) is led to the system of homogeneous equations

$$\begin{aligned} &\alpha_{1}^{(0)}D_{1}\sigma_{1} + \alpha_{1}^{(0)}L_{1}P_{1} + \rho_{1}^{(0)}\alpha_{1}^{(1)} - c^{-1}\alpha_{1}^{(0)}\rho_{1}^{(0)}v_{1}^{(0)} = 0 \\ &\rho_{2}^{(0)}\alpha_{2}^{(1)} + \alpha_{2}^{(1)}B_{1}P_{1} - c^{-1}\alpha_{2}^{(0)}\rho_{2}^{(0)}v_{2}^{(1)} = 0 \\ &\alpha_{1}^{(0)}\rho_{1}^{(0)}v_{1}^{(1)} + c^{-1}\sigma_{1} + c^{-1}\alpha_{1}^{(0)}P_{1} = 0 \\ &\alpha_{2}^{(0)}\rho_{2}^{(0)}v_{2}^{(1)} + c^{-1}\alpha_{2}^{(0)}P_{1} = 0 \\ &b_{0}\left(\sigma_{1} + \gamma P_{1}\right) = a_{0}e_{1}, \alpha_{1}^{(1)} + \alpha_{2}^{(1)} = 0; \end{aligned}$$
(7)

The system (7) has a nontrivial solution if its determinant vanishes, that gives the following dispersion equation with respect to the velocity of linear waves c:

$$\alpha_{1}^{(0)}\rho_{1}^{(0)}b_{0}\left[\alpha_{1}^{(0)}\rho_{2}^{(0)}\left(L_{1}-D_{1}\gamma\right)+\rho_{1}^{(0)}\alpha_{2}^{(0)}B_{1}\right]c^{4}+\left[\alpha_{1}^{(0)}\rho_{2}^{(0)}\left(\alpha_{1}^{(0)}a_{0}D_{1}-a_{0}L_{1}+\alpha_{1}^{(0)}\rho_{1}^{(0)}b_{0}-\gamma\rho_{1}^{(0)}b_{0}\right)+\alpha_{2}^{(0)}\rho_{1}^{(0)}\left(\alpha_{1}^{(0)}\rho_{1}^{(0)}b_{0}-a_{0}B_{1}\right)\right]c^{2}-\left(8\right)c^{2}-\alpha_{2}^{(0)}\rho_{1}^{(0)}a_{0}=0e_{1}=-c^{-1}v_{1}^{(1)}.$$

The coefficients of this equation are constants. Equation (8) has a pair of roots corresponding to propagation of longitudinal waves in solid and fluid phases.

T.K. Ramazanov, A.I. Kurbanov, T.M. Askerov. Nonlinear waves in micrononequilibrium porous medium at two-phase saturation // Proceedings of IMM of NAS of Azerb., Vol. 20(28), 2004, pp. 173-182





AN ANALOGUE OF THE TRICOMI PROBLEM WITH INTEGRAL GLUING CONDITIONS FOR PARABOLIC-HYPERBOLIC EQUATION

A.S. Berdyshev, N. Akhtaeva Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:berdyshev@mail.ru, 260503@mail.ru

Consider the equation

$$u_{xx} - D_{0y}^{\alpha H(x) + 2H(-x)} u(x,t) = \lambda u$$
(1)

in the domain $\Omega = \Omega_1 \cup \Omega_2 \cup AA_0$. Here H(x) is a Heaviside function and D_{0y}^{α} is the Riemann-Liouville fractional differential operator [1], $\Omega_1 = \{(x, y) : 0 < x < 1, 0 < y < 1\}$, Ω_2 is the characteristic triangle with endpoints A(0,0), D(-1/2, 1/2), $A_0(0,1)$.

For $\lambda > 0$ and $0 < \alpha \le 1$ given, we formulate the following problem

Problem T. To find a solution of the (1) from the class of functions

$$W = \left\{ u: D_{0y}^{\alpha-1} u \in C\left(\overline{\Omega_1}\right), u_{xx}, D_{0y}^{\alpha} u \in C\left(\Omega_1\right), u \in C\left(\overline{\Omega_2}\right) \cap C^2\left(\Omega_2\right) \right\},\$$

satisfying the initial condition

$$\lim_{y \to 0} y^{1-\alpha} u(x,y) = \varphi(x), \ 0 \le x \le 1,$$

together with the boundary conditions

$$u(-y/2, y/2) = \psi_1(y), \ 0 \le y \le 1,$$
$$u(1, y) = \psi_2(y), \ 0 \le y \le 1$$

and the gluing conditions

$$D_{0y}^{\alpha - 1} u (+0, t) = u (-0, y), \ 0 \le y \le 1,$$

$$D_{0y}^{\alpha - 1} u_x (+0, t) = \int_0^y u_x (-0, t) J_0 \left[\sqrt{\lambda} (y - t) \right] dt, \ 0 < y < 1,$$

Here $\omega(x), \psi_j(y)$ (j = 1, 2) are given functions.

We would like to note work by V.A.Nakhushev [2], where non-local problem with other gluing condition for (1) in the case when $\lambda = 0$ was studied. In this work we will equivalently reduce the formulated problem to the second kind Volterra integral equation regarding a function $u_x(0, y)$.

References

 [2] V.A. Nakhusheva. Boundary value problems for mixed type heat equation // Doklady Adygskoi Mezhdunarodnoi Akadem Nauk, Vol.12, Issue 2, 2010, pp. 39-44(Cherkesskoi).

^[1] A.V. Pskhu. Partial Differential Equations of Fractional Order, Nauka, Moscow, 2005, 200 p.(Russian)





)

The 4th Congress of the Turkic World Mathematical Society (TWMS) Baku, Azerbaijan, 1-3 July, 2011

ON A NON-LOCAL BOUNDARY PROBLEM FOR PARABOLIC-HYPERBOLIC EQUATION INVOLVING RIEMANN-LIOUVILLE FRACTIONAL DIFFERENTIAL OPERATOR

A.S. Berdyshev, A. Cabada, E.T. Karimov

Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan University of Santiago de Compostela, Santiago de Compostela, Spain Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:berdyshev@mail.ru, alberto.cabada@usc.es, erkinjon@gmail.com

We define the following sets:

 $\Omega_{par} = \{ (x, y) : 0 < x < 1, 0 < y < 1 \},\$

 Ω_{hyp0} is the characteristic triangle with endpoints A(0,0), D(-1/2,1/2), $A_0(0,1)$ and Ω_{hyp1} is the characteristic triangle with endpoints B(1,0), C(3/2,1/2), $B_0(1,1)$.

So, for $\lambda > 0$ and $0 < \alpha_1$ given, we consider the following equation in the domain $\Omega = \Omega_{par} \cup \Omega_{hyp0} \cup \Omega_{hyp1} \cup AA_0 \cup BB_0$:

$$Lu = \lambda u, \tag{1}$$

where

 $D_{0y}^{\alpha-1}$

$$Lu = \begin{cases} u_{xx} - D_{0y}^{\alpha}u, & \text{if } (x,y) \in \Omega_{par}, \\ u_{xx} - u_{yy}, & \text{if } (x,y) \in \Omega_{hyp0}, \\ u_{xx} - u_{yy}, & \text{if } (x,y) \in \Omega_{hyp1}, \end{cases}$$

and D_{0y}^{α} is the Riemann-Liouville fractional differential operator [1].

Problem A. To find a regular solution of the (1) satisfying the initial condition

$$\lim_{y \to 0} D_{0y}^{\alpha - 1} u\left(x, y\right) = \omega\left(x\right), \ 0 \le x \le 1$$

together with the non-local boundary conditions

$$A_{0y}^{0,\sqrt{\lambda}} \left[u\left(\theta_{0}\right) \right] + a_{0}\left(y\right) u\left(-0, y\right) = b_{0}\left(y\right), \ 0 \le y \le 1/2,$$

$$A_{1y}^{0,\sqrt{\lambda}} \left[\frac{d}{dy} u\left(\theta_{1}\right) \right] + a_{1}\left(y\right) u_{x}\left(1+0, y\right) = b_{1}\left(y\right), \ 1/2 < y < 1,$$

and the gluing conditions

$$D_{0y}^{\alpha-1}u(+0,y) = u(-0,y), \ 0 \le y \le 1, \ D_{0y}^{\alpha-1}u(1-0,y) = u(1+0,y), \ 0 \le y \le 1,$$
$$D_{0y}^{\alpha-1}u_x(+0,y) = \int_0^y u_x(-0,t) \frac{J_0\left[\sqrt{\lambda}(y-t)\right]}{1+2a_0(y)} dt, \ 0 < y < 1,$$
$$u_x(1-0,y) = \int_y^1 u_x(1+0,t) \left[1+2a_1(t)\right] J_0\left[\sqrt{\lambda}(y-t)\right] dt + u(1,1) J_0\left[\sqrt{\lambda}(y-1)\right], \ 0 < y < 1.$$

Here $\theta_0 = -\frac{y}{2} + i\frac{y}{2}$, $\theta_1 = \frac{2+y}{2} + i\frac{2-y}{2}$, $0 \le y \le 1$, $\omega(x)$, $a_j(y)$, $b_j(y)$ (j = 0, 1) are given functions such that $a_j(y) \ne -\frac{1}{2}$, $a_0(0) \ne -1$, $A_{0y}^{n,\sqrt{\lambda}}[f(y)]$ is an integral operator defined in [2].

- [1] A.V. Pskhu. Partial Differential Equations of Fractional Order // Nauka, Moscow, 2005, 200 p. (Russian)
- M.S. Salakhitdinov, A.K. Urinov. Boundary Value Problems for Equations of Mixed Type with a Spectral Parameter, Fan, Tashkent, 1997, 167 p.(Russian)




THE COMPARISON OF APPROXIMATE SOLUTION OF ORDINARY DIFFERANTIAL EQUATION USING THE MODIFIED KRASNOSELSKII ITERATION METHOD

Necdet Bildik, Yasemin Demirel

Celal Bayar University, Campus, Manisa, Turkey e-mail:necdet.bildik@bayar.edu.tr, necdet_bildik@yahoo.com, n.bildik@bayar.edu.tr, jasmin_demirel@hotmail.com

In this paper, we used the Picard Succesive Iteration Method and Modified Krasnoselskii Iteration Method in order to solve the ordinary linear differential equation having boundary condition. Finally, it is shown that the accuracy of new iteration method (which is called Modified Krasnoselskii Iteration Method) is substantially improved by imploying variable steps which adjust themselves to the solution of the differential equation.

References

- [1] Andrzej Granas, James Dugundji. Fixed Point Theory // Springer Monographs in Mathematics, USA, 2000.
- [2] D.R. Smart. Fixed Point Theorems // Cambridge University Press, Great Britain, 1974.
- [3] Ravi P.Agarval, Maria Meehan, Donal Oregan // Fixed Point Theory and Application, Cambridge University Press, UK, 2004.
- [4] Shepley L. Ross. Differential Equations // Third Edition, Canada, 1984.
- [5] Vasile Berinde. Iterarative Approximation of Fixed Points // North University of Baia Mare, Romania, 18 Juin 2007.
- [6] Vasile I. Istratescu. Fixed Point Theory an Introduction // D.Reidel Publishing Company, Holland, 1981.
- [7] Boyce E. William, Richard C. Diprima. Elementary Differential Equations and Boundary Value Problems // Third Edition, USA, 1976.

ON A SOLVABILITY OF THE SINGULAR CARLEMAN-VEKUA DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION

N.K. Bliev

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:bliyev.nazarbay@mail.ru

Existence of continuous solutions of the Carleman-Vekua differential equation with a singular point of the pole type is investigated. The necessary condition for existence of continuous solutions is given. The fact of existence of continuous solutions for a broad class of the singular Carleman-Vekua equation's coefficients is proved.

Consider the following singular at z = 0 Carleman-Vekua differential equation

$$\frac{\partial w}{\partial \bar{z}} + \frac{A(z)}{z}w + \frac{B(z)}{z}\overline{w} = 0, \tag{1}$$

where $z = x + iy \in G = \{|z| < 1\}$ and $\frac{\partial}{\partial \overline{z}} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + i \frac{\partial}{\partial y} \right)$.

The above said is true for all differential equations that can be reduced to

$$\frac{\partial w}{\partial \bar{z}} + \frac{A_1(z)}{|z|}w + \frac{B_1(z)}{|z|}\overline{w} = 0,$$
(2)

where $A_1(z)$ and $B_1(z)$ belong to $L^{\infty}(\overline{G})$ $(A = B \equiv 0$ outside G. The equation (2) can be reduced to (1).





THE SOLUTIONS OF BURGERS' EQUATION BY THREE DIFFERENT METHODS

H. Bulut, T. Partal Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:hbulut@firat.edu.tr, hypatiaaa@hotmail.com

In this paper we present a comparative study between three different methods for solving the Burger's equation, namely the numerical finite difference method and the semi-analytic methods; Adomian decomposition method, the Homotopy Perturbation method.

References

- Abdul-Majid Wazwaz. Partial Differential Equations Methods and Applications // Saint Xavier University, Chicago, Illiois, USA, 2002.
- [2] Selcuk Kutluay, Ahmet Refik Bahadir, Ali Ozdes. Numerical Solution of One Dimensional Burgers' Equation: Explicit and Exact-Explicit Finite Difference Methods // J. Comp. App. Maths., Vol.103, 1998, pp. 251-261.
- [3] Turgut Ozis, E.N. Aksan, Ali Ozdes. A Finite Element Approach for Solution of Burgers' Equation // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.139, 2003, pp. 417-428.
- [4] H. Bateman. Some Recent Researches on the Motion of Fluids // Monthly Weather Rec., Vol.43, 1915, pp. 163-170.
- [5] J.M. Burgers. A Mathematical Model Illustrating the Theory of Turbulence // Adv. in App. Mech., Vol.1, 1948, pp. 171-199.

NEW MULTIPLE SOLUTION TO THE BOUSSINESQ EQUATION AND THE BURGERS-LIKE EQUATION

H. Bulut, M. Tuz, T. Akturk *Firat University, Elazig, Turkey* e-mail:hbulut@firat.edu.tr, eturhan@firat.edu.tr, tolgaakturk85@hotmail.com

In this paper by considering an improved tanh function method, we found some exact solutions of Boussneq and Burgers-Like equation. The main idea of this method is to take full advantage of the Riccati equation which has more new solutions. We found some exact solutions of the Boussinesq equation and the Burgers-Like equation.

- E.J. Parkes, B.R. Duffy. Travelling solitary wave solutions to a seventh-order generalised KdV equation // Physical Letters A, Vol.214, 1996, pp. 271-272.
- [2] E.J. Parkes, B.R. Duffy. Travelling solitary wave solutions to a compound KdV-Burgers equation // Physical Letters A, Vol.229, 1997, pp. 217-220.
- [3] Z.B. LI. Exact solitary wave solutions of nonlinear evolution equations//Mathematics Mechanization and Application. Academic press, 2000.
- [4] Z.B. LI, M.L. Wang. Travelling wave solutions to the two-dimensional KdV- Burgers equation // Journal of Physical Letters A ,Vol.26, 1993, pp. 6027-6031.
- [5] E.J. Parkes. Exact solutions to the two-dimensional Korteweg-de Vries-Burgers equation // Physical Letters A, Vol.27, 1994, pp. 497-501.





TWO TRI-HARMONIC HYBRID GREEN-NEUMANN FUNCTIONS FOR THE UNIT DISC

Saule Burgumbayeva L.N.Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:saulenai@yandex.ru

Convolution of the biharmonic Green and the harmonic Neumann functions leads to a hybrid triharmonic Green function, also harmonic Green and the biharmonic Neumann functions leads to a hybrid tri-harmonic Neumann function. Related boundary conditions are of Dirichlet-Neumann and Neumann-Dirichlet type. On the basis of the biharmonic Green function given by Almansi [1] two dual Dirichlet problems and a Dirichlet-Neumann problem arise.

Definition. Let for $z, \zeta \in \mathbb{D}, z \neq \zeta$,

$$H_3(z,\zeta) = -rac{1}{\pi} \int\limits_{\mathbb{D}} \widehat{G}_2(z, ilde{\zeta}) N_1(ilde{\zeta},\zeta) d ilde{\xi} d ilde{\eta}$$

This function is called a hybrid tri-harmonic Green function. This hybrid tri-harmonic Green function is seen to be the solution to the Dirichlet problem

$$\partial_z \partial_{\bar{z}} H_3(z,\zeta) = -\frac{1}{\pi} \int_{\mathbb{D}} G_1(z,\zeta) N_1(\tilde{\zeta},\zeta) d\tilde{\xi} d\tilde{\eta} = H_2(z,\zeta), \ H_2(z,\zeta) = 0 \ \text{for} \ z \in \partial \mathbb{D}$$

Theorem. The Dirichlet-Neumann problem

$$(\partial_z \partial_{\bar{z}})^3 w = f \text{ in } \mathbb{D}, \ w = \gamma_0, \ \partial_z \partial_{\bar{z}} w = \gamma_1, \ \partial_\nu \left(\partial_z \partial_{\bar{z}}\right)^2 w = \gamma_2 \text{ on } \partial \mathbb{D},$$
$$\frac{1}{2\pi i} \int_{|\zeta|=1} \left(\partial_z \partial_{\bar{z}}\right)^2 w(\zeta) \frac{d\zeta}{\zeta} = c_1$$

for $f \in L_p(\mathbb{D}; \mathbb{C}), 2 < p, \gamma_0, \gamma_1, \gamma_2 \in C(\partial \mathbb{D}; \mathbb{C}), c_1 \in \mathbb{C}$ is uniquely solvable if and only if

$$\frac{1}{2\pi i} \int\limits_{\partial \mathbb{D}} \gamma_2(\zeta) \frac{d\zeta}{\zeta} = \frac{2}{\pi} \int\limits_{\mathbb{D}} f(\zeta) d\xi d\eta.$$

The solution is given as

$$w(z) = \frac{1}{2\pi i} \int_{\partial \mathbb{D}} \gamma_0(\zeta) g_1(z,\zeta) \frac{d\zeta}{\zeta} + \frac{1}{2\pi i} \int_{\partial \mathbb{D}} \gamma_1(\zeta) \hat{g}_2(z,\zeta) \frac{d\zeta}{\zeta} - \frac{1}{4\pi i} \int_{\partial \mathbb{D}} \gamma_2(\zeta) H_3(z,\zeta) \frac{d\zeta}{\zeta} - \frac{1}{\pi} \int_{\mathbb{D}} f(\zeta) H_3(z,\zeta) d\xi d\eta$$

where

$$g_1(z,\zeta) = \frac{1}{1-z\bar{\zeta}} + \frac{1}{1-\bar{z}\zeta} - 1,$$
$$\hat{g}_2(z,\zeta) = (1-|z^2|) \left[\frac{1}{z\bar{\zeta}} \log(1-z\bar{\zeta}) + \frac{1}{\bar{z}\zeta} \log(1-\bar{z}\zeta) + 1 \right].$$

- [1] E. Almansi, Sull'integrazion dell'equazione differenziale $\Delta_{2n} = 0$ // Ann. Mat. Vol.3, No.2, 1899, pp.1-59.
- [2] H. Begehr. Dirichlet problems for the biharmonic equation // Gen. Math., Vol.13, 2005, pp.65-72.
- [3] H. Begehr, C.J. Vanegas. Iterated Neumann problem for higher order Poisson equation // Math. Nachr. Vol.279, 2006, pp. 38-57.
- [4] H. Begehr, T.N.H. Vu, Z.-X. Zhang. Polyharmonic Dirichlet problems // Prof. Steklov Inst. Math. Vol. 255, 2006, pp. 13-34.





FRACTIONAL CALCULUS OPERATOR METHOD FOR THE CONFLUENT HYPERGEOMETRIC EQUATION

Necdet Catalbas, Resat Yilmazer, Erdal Bas Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:ncatalbas@firat.edu.tr

By means of fractional calculus techniques, we find explicit solutions of confluent hypergeometric equations. We use the N-fractional calculus operator N^{μ} method to derive the solutions of these equations.

Theorem. Let $y \in \{y : 0 \neq |y_{\mu}| < \infty; \mu \in \mathbb{R}\}$ and $f \in \{f : 0 \neq |f_{\mu}| < \infty; \mu \in \mathbb{R}\}$. Then the nonhomogeneous confluent hypergeometric equation

$$L[y, r; \gamma, \tau] = y_2 r + y_1 (\gamma - r) - y\tau = f \quad (r \neq 0),$$
(1)

has particular solutions of the forms:

$$y = \left[\left(f_{-\tau} e^{-r} r^{\gamma - \tau - 1} \right)_{-1} e^{r} r^{\tau - \gamma} \right]_{\tau - 1}, \tag{2}$$

$$y = r^{1-\gamma} \left\{ \left[\left(fr^{\gamma-1} \right)_{\gamma-\tau-1} e^{-r} r^{-\tau} \right]_{-1} e^{r} r^{\tau-1} \right\}_{\tau-\gamma}.$$
 (3)

Where $y_n = \frac{d^n y}{dr^n}$ (n = 0, 1, 2), $y_0 = y = y(r)$, $r \in \mathbb{C}$, γ and τ are given constants.

- K. Nishimoto. Kummer's Twenty-Four Functions and N-Fractional Calculus // Nonlinear Analysis, Theory, Methods & Applications, Vol.30, No.2, 1997, pp. 1271-1282.
- [2] I. Podlubny. Fractional Differential Equations: An Introduction to Fractional Derivatives // Fractional Differential Equations, Methods of Their Solution and Some of Their Applications, Mathematics in Science and Engineering, Vol.198, Academic Press, New York, London, Tokyo and Toronto, 1999.





ON THE SOLVABILITY OF GOURSAT PROBLEMS FOR NONLINEAR PARTIAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS OF FOURTH ORDER

Marat Chamashev Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:marat2712@rambler.ru

It is considered boundary value problem

$$u(0,y) = \varphi_1(y), u_x(0,y) = \varphi_2(y), u_{xx}(0,y) = \varphi_3(y),$$
(1)

$$u(x,0) = \tau(x), \varphi_1(0) = \tau(0), \tau''(0) = \varphi_3(0), 0 \le x \le \ell,$$
(2)

for the equation

$$u_{xxxy} + au = f(x, y, u, u_x, u_y, u_{xx}, u_{xy}, u_{xxx}, u_{xxy}),$$
(3)

where $0 \neq a = const$, $(x, y) \in D = \{(x, y) : 0 \le x \le \ell, 0 \le y \le h\}$, $f(x, y, u, u_x, u_y, u_{xx}, u_{xy}, u_{xxx}, u_{xxy})$ - smooth function in arguments [1,2].

This problem will solve by the contraction mapping theorem of Banach [3-5].

- [1] V.G. Romanov. Inverse problems in mathematical physics // Moscov, Nauka, 1984, 264 p.
- [2] S.I. Kabanikhin. Inverse and incorrect Problems // Novosibirsk, Siberian Scientific Publishing, 2009, 457 p.
- [3] E.R. Atamanov, M.Sh. Mamayusupov. Nonclassical problem for pseudo-parabolic equations // Frunze, Ilim, 1990, 100 p.
- [4] B.S. Ablabekov. Inverse problems for pseudo-parabolic equations // Bishkek, Ilim, 2001, 180 p.
- [5] T.D.Djuraev, A.Sopuev. On the theory of partial differential equations of fourth order //Tashkent, Fan, 2000, 144 p.





VIBRATION PROBLEMS FOR THE CUSPED PLATES ON THE BASIS OF THE REFINED THEORIES¹

Natalia Chinchaladze

I. Vekua Institute of Applied Mathematics of Iv. Javakhishvili Tbilisi State University, Tbilisi, Georgia e-mail:chinchaladze@gmail.com

The investigation of cusped elastic prismatic shells, in particular plates, takes its origin from the fifties of the last century, namely, in 1955 I.Vekua [1]-[3] raised the problem of investigation of elastic cusped plates, whose thickness on the whole plate or on a part of the boundary vanishes. Such bodies, considered as three-dimensional ones, occupy three-dimensional domains with non-Lipschitz boundaries, in general. In practice, such plates and beams are often encountered in spatial structures with partly fixed edges, e.g., stadium ceilings, aircraft wings, submarine wings etc., in machinetool design, as in cutting-machines, planning-machines, in astronautics, turbines, and in many other areas of engineering (e.g., dams). The problems mathematically lead to the question of posing and solving of boundary value problems for even order equations and systems of elliptic type with the order degeneration in the static case and of initial boundary value problems for even order equations and systems of hyperbolic type with the order degeneration in the dynamical case (for corresponding investigations see the surveys in [4], [5], and also I.Vekua's comments in ([3], p.86)). Some satisfactory results are achieved in this direction in the case of Lipschitz domains but in the case of non-Lipschitz domains there are a lot of open problems. To consider such problem is a main part of the objectives of the present talk. The talk is organized as follows: 1. In the first section special flexible cusped plates vibrations on the base of the classical (geometrically) non-linear bending theories (the system of equations of the classical geometrically nonlinear bending theory of isotropic plates in static case can be found, e.g., in [6-7]) is investigated; 2. In the second part concrete problems for cusped plates for Reisner-Mindlin type models are studied (case of constant thickness is considered, e.g., in [8]); 3. In the third part a fluid-solid interaction problem is considered

- I.N. Vekua. On a way of calculating of prismatic shells // Proceedings of A.Razmadze Institute of Mathematics of Georgian Academy of Sciences, Vol.21, 1955, pp. 191-259.
- [2] I.N. Vekua. The theory of thin shallow shells of variable thickness // Proceedings of A.Razmadze Institute of Mathematics of Georgian Academy of Sciences, Vol.30, 1965, pp. 5-103.
- [3] I.N. Vekua. Shell Theory: General Methods of Construction // Pitman Advanced Publishing Program, Boston-LondonMelbourne, 1985.
- [4] G.V. Jaiani. Elastic bodies with non-smooth boundaries-cusped plates and shells // ZAMM, Vol.76, 1996, pp. 117-120.
- [5] G.V. Jaiani, S.S. Kharibegashvili, D.G. Natroshvili, W.L. Wendland. Two-dimensional hierarchical models for prismatic shells with thickness vanishing at the boundary // Journal of Elasticity, Vol.77, 2004, pp. 95-112.
- [6] S. Timoshenko, S. Woinovsky-Kriger. Theory of Plates and Shells // Mcgraw-Hill Book Company, INC, New Yourk-Toronto, London, 1959.
- [7] N. Chinchaladze, G. Jaiani. Cylindrical bending of a cusped plate with big deflections // Journal of Mathematical Sciences, Vol.157, No. 1, 2009, pp.52-69.
- [8] I. Chudinovich, Ch. Constanda. Variational and Potential Methods in the Theory of Bending of Plates with transverse // Shear Deformation, Chapman & Hall/CRC, 2000.

¹ This work was supported by Rustaveli NSF grant for young scientists No.2/3-08.







THE FINITE METHOD ELEMENT FOR SOLVING THE INVERSE PROBLEM FOR THE HELMHOLTZ EQUATION

G. Dairbaeva

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Lazzat.Dairbaeva@kaznu.kz

In the report the method of the continuation of the solution the Helmholtz equation to the zone of inaccessibility is suggested. As a result of solving of continuation problem one manages to regenerate the value of the solution the Helmholtz equation in the zone of inaccessibility. The solution of the continuation problem is carried out by the way of changing this problem with some special inverse problem which is solved on the bases of combination of the finite method element [1] and the optimization method [2].

In the domain $Q = \Omega \times (0, +\infty)$, $\Omega = (-b, b) \times (-b, b) \subset R^2 = \{(x, y)\}$ consider the wave equation $\varepsilon v_{tt} = \Delta v - j^c$.

where $\varepsilon > 0$. Let function v, j^c admit the separation of variables : v(x, y, t) = u(x, y)T(t), $j^c(x, y, t) = f_1(x, y)T(t)$. Let $T(t) = e^{i\omega t}$ and replacing $v = ue^{i\omega t}$, we shall get the Helmholtz equation

$$\Delta u + \omega_1 u = f_1,$$

where $\omega_1 = \varepsilon \omega^2$.

The source $f_1(x,y) = \theta(a - |x|)\theta(a - |y|)$, where $|x| \le a, |y| \le a$ is in the center of the domain $\overline{\Omega} = [-b, b] \times [-b, b]$. Let us introduce the following notations for subdomains of the domain $\overline{\Omega}$

$$\begin{split} G_1 &= \left\{ (x,y) \in \overline{\Omega} : -b \leq x \leq -d, \quad -b \leq y \leq b \right\}, G_2 = \left\{ (x,y) \in \overline{\Omega} : -d \leq x \leq d, \quad -b \leq y \leq b \right\}, \\ G_3^+ &= \left\{ (x,y) \in \Omega : -a \leq x \leq a, \quad a \leq y \leq c \right\}, \ G_3^- &= \left\{ (x,y) \in \Omega : -a \leq x \leq a, \quad -c \leq y \leq -a \right\}, \\ G_4 &= \left\{ (x,y) \in \overline{\Omega} : d \leq x \leq b, \quad -b \leq y \leq b \right\}, \text{ where } G_3^+, \quad G_3^- \text{ are antennas.} \end{split}$$

The dielectric constant is equal to

$$\varepsilon = \begin{cases} \varepsilon_1, & (x, y) \in G_3, \\ \varepsilon_2, & (x, y) \in G_2 \backslash G_3, \\ \varepsilon_3, & (x, y) \in G_1 \bigcup G_4 \end{cases}$$

In the domain Ω consider the initial-boundary value problem

 $\Delta u + \omega_1 u = f_1, \qquad (x, y) \in \Omega,\tag{1}$

$$u(-b, y) = f(y), \quad y \in (-b, b),$$
 (2)

$$u_x(-b,y) = 0, \qquad y \in (-b,b),$$
(3)

$$u(x, -b) = u(x, b) = 0, \quad x \in (-b, b).$$
 (4)

It is supposed that there are the conditions of splice for the solution of (1)-(4):

$$\varepsilon_{1}u_{x}(a-0,y) = \varepsilon_{2}u_{x}(a+0,y), \ \varepsilon_{2}u_{x}(-a-0,y) = \varepsilon_{1}u_{x}(-a+0,y), \ y \in [a,c] \cup [-c,a], \\ \varepsilon_{1}u_{x}(x,c-0) = \varepsilon_{2}u_{x}(x,c+0), \ \varepsilon_{2}u_{x}(x,-c-0) = \varepsilon_{1}u_{x}(x,-c+0), \ x \in [-a,a]. \\ \varepsilon_{3}u_{x}(-d-0,y) = \varepsilon_{2}u_{x}(-d+0,y), \ \varepsilon_{2}u_{x}(d-0,y) = \varepsilon_{3}u_{x}(d+0,y), \ y \in [-b,b],$$

The problem (1)-(4) is ill-posed.

References

[1] Larry J.Segerlind. Applied finite element analysis // New York, 1984.

[2] S. Kabanikhin. Inverse and Ill-Posed Problems // Novosibirsk, 2009.





THREE-POINT BOUNDARY PROBLEM FOR SINGULARLY PERTURBED INTEGRAL-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Muratkhan K. Dauylbayev, Alina N. Azanova Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:dmk57@mail.ru, alina_azanova@mail.ru

Three-point boundary value problem for singularly perturbed linear third order differential equations considered in [1], there analytical formulas and asymptotic in small parameter representation of initial and boundary functions are obtained using the fundamental system of solutions of singularly perturbed homogeneous linear differential equation of third order. Constructive solutions and formula, asymptotic in small parameter estimates for the solution of the three-point boundary value problem for singularly perturbed linear differential equation of third order.

In this paper we consider the linear integral-differential equation of third order with a small parameter multiplying the highest derivative in the interval [0,1]:

$$L_{\varepsilon}y(t,\varepsilon) \equiv \varepsilon y^{\prime\prime\prime} + A(t)y^{\prime\prime} + B(t)y^{\prime} + C(t)y = F(t) + \int_{0}^{1} \left(H_{0}(t,x)y(x,\varepsilon) + H_{1}(t,x)y^{\prime}(x,\varepsilon)\right)dx \quad (1)$$

with boundary conditions

$$H_1y(t,\varepsilon) \equiv y(0,\varepsilon) = \alpha, \quad H_2y(t,\varepsilon) \equiv y(t_0,\varepsilon) = \beta, \quad H_3y(t,\varepsilon) \equiv y(1,\varepsilon) = \gamma, \quad (2)$$

where α, β, γ - some known constants independent of ε , and $0 < t_0 < 1$.

In this paper an analytical formula is obtained for solving of the integral-differential boundary value problem (1), (2). Obtained asymptotic in small parameter estimates for the solution of the three-point boundary value problem (1), (2). As $\varepsilon \to 0$, these estimates allow us to set the boundary problem (1), (2) the existence of the phenomenon of an initial jump in the zero-order [2] at t = 0

$$y(0,\varepsilon) = O(1), \quad y'(0,\varepsilon) = O\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon}\right), \quad y''(0,\varepsilon) = O\left(\frac{1}{\varepsilon^2}\right).$$

- N.S. Atanbaev. On a three-point boundary value problem for linear third order differential equations with small parameter // Vestnik KNU. Series: Mathematics, mechanics, computer scienc, Vol.20, No.1, 2000, pp. 43-47.
- [2] K.A. Kasymov. Singular perturbed boundary value problems with initial jumps // Almaty: Izd Sanat, 1997, 195 p.





ON A FREDHOLM PROPERTY OF THE SECOND ORDER CAUCHY-RIEMANN PROBLEM IN ARBITRARY DOMAIN UNDER NON-LOCAL BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

A.Y. Delshad Gharehgheshlaghi, A.N. Aliyev Institute of Mechanics and Mathematics of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:ali-delshad@rambler.ru

Let's consider the following problem: To find a solution of the problem

$$\frac{\partial^3 u\left(x\right)}{\partial x_2^3} + i \frac{\partial^3 u\left(x\right)}{\partial x_1 \partial x_2^2} = 0, \quad x = (x_1, x_2) \in D \subset \mathbb{R}^2, \tag{1}$$

satisfying to the following boundary condition

$$\sum_{k=1}^{2} \left[\sum_{m=0}^{2} \alpha_{jmk}^{(2)} \left(x_1 \right) \frac{\partial^2 u(x)}{\partial_{x_1}^m \partial_{x_2}^{2-m}} + \sum_{m=1}^{2} \alpha_{jmk}^{(1)} \left(x_1 \right) \frac{\partial u(x)}{\partial x_m} + \alpha_{jk}^{(0)} \left(x_1 \right) u\left(x \right) \right] \Big|_{x_2 = \gamma_k(x_1)} = \alpha_j \left(x_1 \right), \quad j = 1, 2, 3; \quad x_1 \in [a_1, b_1],$$

$$(2)$$

where, $i = \sqrt{-1}$, the coefficients of the boundary condition (2), and the right hand sides are complexvalued continuous functions. These boundary conditions are linear independent. It should be noted that here the function

$$U(x-\xi) = \frac{\theta(x_2-\xi_2) + \theta(\xi_2-x_2)}{2\pi} [x_2-\xi_2 + i(x_1-\xi_1)] \{\ln[x_2-\xi_2 + i(x_1-\xi_1)-1]\}$$
(3)

is the fundamental solution of the equation (1). Using the given equation and fundamental solution, the main relations are obtained for u and for the derivatives x_1, x_2, x_1^2, x_2^2 and $x_{-1}x_2$ of u. The second parts of these main relations (the parts related to the boundary) are necessary conditions. From these conditions, the condition obtained for u is regular the necessary conditions obtained for the derivatives contain singular integrals. Using given boundary conditions, these singularities are regularized. The obtained regular expressions together with boundary conditions are indeed sufficient condition for the Fredholm property. The boundary value problem is also considered for the complex type equation [1], [2].

- N. Aliyev, Sh. Rezapour, M. Jahanshahi. Mixed Problem for Navier Stokes System // Mathematica, No.3, 2003, pp.1-14.
- [2] A.Y. Delshad Gharehgheshlaghi, N.A. Aliyev. On a boundary value problem for a third order composite type equation // Modern problems of mathematics and mechanics, Baku, Azerbaijan, 2010.





SOLUTION OF THE LINEAR DIFFERENTIAL-ALGEBRAIC EQUATIONS BY THE LAPLACE ADOMIAN DECOMPOSITION METHOD

Nurettin Doğan, Ömer Akin Gazi University, Ankara, Turkey TOBB Economy and Technology University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:ndogan@ymail.com, omerakin@etu.edu.tr

In this paper, we present Laplace-Adomian decomposition method to solve constant coefficients linear differential-algebraic equations. Some examples are presented to show the ability of the method for differential-algebraic equations. The results obtained are in good agreement with the exact solution.

References

- U.M. Ascher, P. Lin. Sequential regularization methods for higher index differential-algebraic equations with constraint singularities: the linear index-2 case // SIAM J Anal., Vol. 33, 1996, pp. 1921-1940.
- [2] L.R. Petzold. Differential/algebraic equations are not ODE's // SIAM Journal of Science and Statistical Computing, Vol. 3, No. 3, 1982, pp. 367-384.
- Marco Spadini. A note on topological methods for a class of differential algebraic equations // Nonlinear Analysis, Vol. 73, 2010, pp. 1065-1076.
- [4] M.M. Hosseini. Adomian decomposition method for solution of differential-algebraic equations // Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, Vol. 197, 2006, pp. 495 -501.
- [5] F. Soltanian, S.M. Karbassi, M.M. Hosseini. Application of He's variational iteration method for solution of differential-algebraic equations // Chaos, Solitons and Fractals, Vol. 41, 2009, pp. 436-445.
- [6] Fatma Ayaz. Applications of differential transform method to differential-algebraic equations // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol. 152, 2004, pp. 649-657.
- [7] V.M. Becerra, P.D. Roberts, G.W. Griffiths. Applying the extended Kalman filter to systems described by nonlinear differential-algebraic equations // Control Engineering Practice, Vol. 9, 2001, pp. 267-281.

INVERSE SCATTERING PROBLEM FOR THE STURM-LUIVILLE OPERATOR WITH SPECTRAL PARAMETER IN THE DISCONTINUITY CONDITION

H.M. Huseynov, Jamshidi Pour

Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:asyl.ch.top@mail.ru, achacha@mail.ru

Consider differential equation

$$-y'' + q(x)y = \lambda^2 y, x \in (-\infty, +\infty)$$

with conditions

$$y(a+0) = y(a-0),$$

 $y'(a+0) - y'(a-0) = \lambda \beta y(a)$

where $\beta, \alpha \in (-\infty, +\infty); \beta \neq 0; \lambda$ - complex parameter q(x)-real valued function satisfying to the condition

$$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \left(1+|x|\right) |q(x)| \, dx$$

It is assumed that eigenvalues are absent and the inverse problem on defining of the potential q(x) over the reflection coefficients. The uniqueness theorem is proved for the solution of the inverse problem and the algorithm is proposed to reconstruction of q(x) over the left (right) reflection coefficients.







ON THE LIMITING ERROR IN DIGITIZATION OF INACCURATE INFORMATION, KLEIN - GORDON EQUATION WITH INITIAL CONDITIONS FROM NIKOL'SKII CLASSES

B. Dujsengalieva, I.Zh. Ibatullin

L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:temirgaliyev_nt@enu.kz

In this paper we consider the Cauchy problem for the Klein-Cordon equation

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} = \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x_1^2} + \dots + \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x_s^2} - u \quad (u = u (x, t), \ 0 \le t < \infty, \ x \in \mathbb{R}^s, \ s = 1, \ 2, \dots),$$
(1)

$$u(x,0) = f_1(x) \in F^{(1)}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial t}(x,0) = f_2(x) \in F^{(2)}(x \in \mathbb{R}^s),$$
(2)

The solution describes, in particular, a free relativistic (pseudo) scalar particle of mass 1 (see e.g. [1, pp. 48-49]).

In the below-considered case, problem (1) - (2) has a closed solution in the form of the sum of an absolutely convergent multiple function series, which is completely specified by the sets $\{\hat{f}_1(m)\}_{m \in Z^s}$ and $\{\hat{f}_2(m)\}_{m \in Z^s}$ of Fourier coefficients. Therefore, we encounter the problem of the approximation of a solution (an infinite object) on the basis of finite numerical information of given size Nobtained from the functions f_1 and f_2 ; the mathematical statement of this problem is given in the following reconstruction problem (in [1]).

In conditions of definitions and notation from [1-2] takes place following

Theorem. Let $s \ (s = 1, 2, ...)$ and $r_1 > 2 + \frac{s}{2}$ numerical sequence $\tilde{\varepsilon}_N = N^{-\frac{r_1}{s} - \frac{1}{2}} (N = 1, 2, 3, ...)$. And lets $\frac{\partial u}{\partial t}(x, 0) = f_2(x) = 0$. Then the following relation is valid:

$$\delta_N(0) \equiv \delta_N(D_N; \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} = \Delta u - u, \ u(x,0) = f_1(x), \ \frac{\partial u}{\partial t}(x,0) = 0; H_2^{r_1}; 0)_{L^2} \asymp$$

 $\approx \delta_N(D_N; \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} = \Delta u - u, \ u(x,0) = f_1(x), \ \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t}(x,0) = 0; H_2^{r_1}; \tilde{\varepsilon}_N = N^{-\frac{r_1}{s} - \frac{1}{2}})_{L^2} \approx \tilde{\varepsilon}_N \sqrt{N} = N^{-\frac{r_1}{s}}$ For any tending to $+\infty$ positive sequence $\{\eta_N\}_{N=1}^{\infty}$ the equality

$$\frac{\lim_{N \to \infty} \delta_N \left(D_N; \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} = \Delta u - u, u \left(x, 0 \right) = f_1 \left(x \right), \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \left(x, 0 \right) = 0; H_2^{r_1}; \tilde{\varepsilon}_N \eta_N = N^{-\frac{r_1}{s} - \frac{1}{2}} \eta_N \right)_{L^2}}{\delta_N \left(D_N; \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} = \Delta u - u, u \left(x, 0 \right) = f_1 \left(x \right), \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \left(x, 0 \right) = 0; H_2^{r_1}; 0 \right)_{L^2}} = +\infty$$

takes place.

- N. Temirgaliyev. Computer diameter. Algerbaic number theory and hormanic analysis in the reconstruction problems (Monte-Karlo method). // Vestnick ENU im. L.N.Gumilyova, 2010, pp.1-194.
- [2] I.Zh. Ibatullin, N. Temirgaliyev. On an informative power of all possible linear functional by discretization of the solutions of Clain-Cordon equation in metrics // Differential Equation, 2008, Vol.44, N.4, pp. 491-506.





WAVE PROPAGATION IN ONE-DIMENSIONAL LAYERED-INHOMOGENEOUS MEDIUM WITH BARRIER

R.F. Efendiev

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Azerbaijan e-mail:rakibaz@yahoo.com

We will investigated wave propagation in one-dimensional layered-inhomogeneous medium with barrier.

$$-y'' + \Psi(x)y + V_0[\theta(x) - \theta(x-a)]y = \lambda^2 \rho(x)y, \tag{1}$$

where $\Psi(x)$ is steplike potential of the form

$$\Psi(x) = \begin{cases} \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} q_n^+ e^{inx} & x < 0, \ x > a \\ \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} q_n^- e^{inx} & 0 < x < a \end{cases}$$
(2)

and $V_0[\theta(x) - \theta(x - a)]$ is a barrier potential with height V_0 and width a,

$$\theta(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & x < 0, \\ 1 & x \ge 0 \end{cases}$$

is a Heaviside step function and $\rho(x)$ has a form

$$\rho(x) = \begin{cases} 1 & for \quad x < 0, x > a \\ -\beta^2 & for \quad 0 < x < a. \end{cases}$$

Without changing the results any other shifted was possible.

The barrier divides the spaces in three parts (x < 0, 0 < x < a, x > a) in any of these parts the potentials is complex, periodic meaning that layered-inhomogeneous medium can also absorption and emit an energy and wave propagation has different speed in each medium. The imaginary part of potential represents emission or absorption.

Our primary aim is to study the spectrum and solving the inverse problem for singular nonself-adjoint operator by transmission coefficient and normalizing numbers corresponding to quasieigenfunctions of the Sturm- Liouville operator with complex periodic potential and discontinuous coefficients on the axis.





ON BAZISNESS OF EIGENFUNCTIONS OF WELL POSED BOUNDARY-VALUE PROBLEMS FOR THE DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION ON THE INTERVAL

A.A. Eleuov, B.E. Kanguzhin Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:eleuov@mail.ru

In the work [1], is presented the possibility of the expansion of function from a certain function space in eigenfunctions and associated functions of the differential operator L generated in the function space $L_2[0, b]$ where $b < \infty$ by linear differential expression with the variable coefficients

$$Ly = l(y) \equiv y^{(n)}(x) + p_{n-2}(x)y^{(n-2)}(x) + \dots + p_0(x)y(x),$$

with sole limitation the resolvent set of the operator L – are non-empty set.

Without diminishing generality, we assume that complex number 0 belongs to the resolvent set of the operator L. Coefficients of the expression l(.) satisfy to the condition

$$p_0(x) \in \mathcal{C}[0,b], \, p_1(x) \in \mathcal{C}^1[0,b], \, \dots, \, p_{n-2}(x) \in \mathcal{C}^{(n-2)}[0,b]$$

According to wellknown Otelbaev's theorem [2] the domain of this operator is described by a set of n functions $\sigma_1(.), \ldots, \sigma_n(.)$ from this space $L_2[0, b]$

$$D(L) = \left\{ y(x) \in W_2^n[0,b] : y^{(\nu)}(0) = \langle l(y) \rangle; \sigma_{\nu+1}, \ \nu = 0, \dots, n-1 \right\},\$$

where $W_2^n[0,b]$ – Sobolev space, $\langle f;g\rangle$ – is the scalar product in the space $L_2[0,b]$

Boundary functions $\sigma_1, \ldots, \sigma_n$ are selected from the space $L_2[0, b]$ such that, the boundary forms $U_1(y)$ is taken the following form

$$U_j(y) = V_j(y) + \langle l(y); \sigma_j^1(x) \rangle, \qquad (1)$$

where

$$V_j(y) = \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} \left(\alpha_{jk} y^{(k)}(0) + \beta_{jk} y^{(k)}(b) \right).$$

For this it is sufficient that $\sigma_j(x)$ to had the representation $\sigma_j(x) = \sigma_j^0(x) + \sigma_j^1(x)$, where the support of σ_j^1 lies strictly inside the interval $(0, b), \sigma_j^0(\cdot)$ – the solution of the homogeneous equation $l^*(y) = 0$. Where $l^*(y)$ – corresponding formally adjoint differential expression to the differential expression l(y). In this case the coefficients β_{jk} are the values of the function $\sigma_j^0(x)$ and its derivatives at points x = b, and the coefficients α_{jk} are the values of the function $\sigma_j^0(x)$ and its derivatives at point x = 0, or they are differed from them by ± 1 . Basic result

Theorem. If the system of the boundary conditions $\{V_j(\cdot), j = 1..., n\}$ are regular in Birkhoff's sense, then the system of eigenfunctions and associated functions of the operator L with boundary conditions (1), is formed Riesz's bazis with the brackets in the space $L_2[0,b]$. In particular, if boundary conditions are intense- regular, then the system of eigenfunctions and associated functions of the operator L forms a Riesz bazis in the space $L_2[0,b]$.

- B.E. Kanguzhin, M.A. Sadybekov. Differential operators on interval. Distribution of Eigenvalues // Shymkent: Galym, 1996, 270 p.
- [2] M.O. Otelbaev. On correct problems of types Bycadze-Samarskii // Doklady Akad. Nauk SSSR. 1982, V. 265, No 4, pp. 815-819.





ON THE MULTIDIMENSIONAL INVERSE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE SYSTEM OF HYPERBOLIC EQUATIONS

M. A. Guliev, A.M. El-Hadidi Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:guliyevm.43@mail.ru, mahsoup79@yahoo.com

In the paper we investigate the solvability of the inverse multidimensional boundary value problem for the system of hyperbolic type equations. We propose a method by which the inverse boundary value problem is reduced to some nonlinear infinite systems of differential equations.

This method allows us to prove existence and uniqueness theorems for the solution multidimensional inverse boundary value problems in classes of functions of finite smoothness.

In this paper, $D_T = \Omega \times (0, T)$ consider the following problem:

$$\frac{\partial^2 u(x,t)}{\partial t^2} - Au(x,t) = a(x)U(x,t) + b(x)v(x,t) + c(x)f(x,t),$$
(1)

$$\frac{\partial^2 v(x,t)}{\partial t^2} - Av(x,t) = a_1(x)U(x,t) + b_1(x)v(x,t) + c_1(x)g(x,t), (x,t) \in D_T,$$
(2)

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x), \left. \frac{\partial U(x,t)}{\partial t} \right|_{t=0} = 0, \ x \in \bar{\Omega},$$
(3)

$$\psi(x,0) = \psi(x), \left. \frac{\partial V(x,t)}{\partial t} \right|_{t=0} = 0, \ x \in \bar{\Omega},$$

$$(4)$$

$$v(x',t) = F(x',t), \ V(x',t) = G(x',t), \ (x',t) \in \Gamma = S \times [0,T],$$
(5)

$$u(x,T) = h(x), \quad v(x,T) = g(x), \ x \in \overline{\Omega},$$
(6)

$$\frac{\partial U(x,t)}{\partial t}\Big|_{t=T} = 0, \quad \frac{\partial V(x,t)}{\partial t}\Big|_{t=T} = 0, \ x \in \bar{\Omega}, \tag{7}$$

where Ω is bounded domain in \mathbb{R}^n , $S = \partial \Omega \in \mathbb{C}^2$, $n \leq 3$,

1

$$Au(x,t) = \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} \left(a_{ij}(x)u_{x_i}(x,t) \right)_{x_j}, a_{ij}(x) = a_{ji}(x) \in C^4(\bar{\Omega}),$$

 $\sum_{i,j=1}^{n} a_{ij}(x)\xi_i\xi_j \ge \mu |\xi|^2 \ , \ \mu > 0 \ , \varphi(x) \ , \ \psi(x) \ , f(x,t), g(x,t), F(x,t), G(x,t), h(x), \ q(x), \ a_1(x), \ b(x) \text{are given functions}, \ a(x), \ b_1(x), \ c(x), \ c_1(x), \ u(x,t), \ v(x,t) \ \text{are unknown functions}.$

Definition. The system $\{u(x,t), v(x,t), a(x), b_1(x), c(x), c_1(x)\}$ is called the solution of the problem (1) - (7) if it satisfies to following conditions:

- (1) $a(x), b_1(x), c(x), c_1(x) \in W_2^2(\Omega).$
- (2) Functions u(x,t) and $v(x,\bar{t})$ are continuous in closed domain \bar{D}_T together with all derivatives in the equations (1) and (2), respectively.
- (3) Conditions (1) (7) are satisfied in usual sense.

The proof of the existence and uniqueness theorems were investigated.

- M.M. Lavrentev, V.G. Romanov, S.P. Shitatsky. ILL Posed problems of mathematical physics and analysis // M. Science, 1980.
- [2] M.A. Guliev, A.M. El-Hadidi. Multidimensional inverse boundary value problem for the system of hyperbolic Equations // Al-Azhar University Engineering Jornal, Vol.5, No.9, 2010, pp. 43-53.





SOME GEOMETRIC PROPERTIES OF THE NEW DIFFERENCE SEQUENCE SPACE DEFINED BY DE LA VALLÉE POUSSIN MEAN

Mikail Et, Murat Karakaş Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:mikailet@yahoo.com, m.karakas33@hotmail.com

Let w be the set of all sequences of real or complex numbers and ℓ_{∞} , c and c_0 be respectively the Banach spaces of bounded, convergent and null sequences $x = (x_k)$ with the usual norm $||x|| = \sup |x_k|$, where $k \in \mathbb{N} = \{1, 2, \ldots\}$, the set of positive integers. Also by bs, cs, ℓ_1 and ℓ_p ; we denote the spaces of all bounded, convergent, absolutely and p-absolutely convergent series, respectively.

Let $\lambda = (\lambda_n)$ be a non-decreasing sequence of positive numbers tending to ∞ such that $\lambda_{n+1} \leq \lambda_n + 1$, $\lambda_1 = 1$. The generalized de la Vallée-Poussin mean is defined by $t_n(x) = \frac{1}{\lambda_n} \sum_{k \in I_n} x_k$, where

 $I_n = [n - \lambda_n + 1, n]$ for n = 1, 2, ... A sequence $x = (x_k)$ is said to be (V, λ) -summable to a number ℓ if $t_n(x) \to \ell$ as $n \to \infty$. If $\lambda_n = n$, then (V, λ) -summability and strongly (V, λ) -summability are reduced to (C, 1)-summability and [C, 1]-summability, respectively.

The notion of difference sequence spaces was introduced by Kızmaz [4] and it was generalized by Et and Çolak([2], [3]). Later on difference sequence spaces have been studied by Bhardwaj and Bala [1], Malkowsky and Parashar [5], Mursaleen [6] and many others.

In this paper, we define the generalized difference sequence space $V [\Delta^m, \lambda, p]$ and studied topological and geometric properties this sequence space.

- V.K. Bhardwaj, I. Bala. Generalized difference sequence space defined by |,p_k| summability and an Orlicz function in seminormed space // Math. Slovaca, Vol.60, No.2, 2010, pp. 257-264.
- R. Çolak, M. Et. On some generalized difference sequence spaces and related matrix transformations // Hokkaido Math. J., Vol.26, No.3, 1997, pp. 483-492.
- [3] M. Et, R. Colak. On generalized difference sequence spaces // Soochow J. Math., Vol.21, No.4, 1995, pp. 377-386.
- [4] H. Kızmaz. On certain sequence spaces. // Canad. Math. Bull, Vol.24, No.2, 1981, pp. 169-176.
- [5] E. Malkowsky, S.D. Parashar. Matrix transformations in spaces of bounded and convergent difference sequences of order m // Analysis, Vol.17, 1997, pp. 87-97.
- [6] M. Mursaleen. Generalized spaces of difference sequences //J. Math. Anal. Appl, Vol.203, No.3, 1996, pp. 738-745.





CONSTRUCTION OF THE UNBIASED ESTIMATORS FOR THE SOLUTION OF THE NONLINEAR NEUMANN PROBLREM

Sh. Formanov, A. Rasulov, G. Raimova

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan, University of World Economic and Diplomacy, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:shakirformanov@yandex.ru, asrasulov@yachoo.com, graimova@mail.ru

We consider the Monte Carlo solution of the nonlinear Neumann problem. Let D be a bounded convex domain in \mathbb{R}^d with boundary G, $\varphi(x) \in C(G)$, a(x) > 0, $a(x) \in C(\overline{D})$, g - const and $n = n_x$ be an external normal in the point x to the surface of G. Consider the following problem:

$$Mu(x) \equiv \Delta u(x) + a(x)u(x) = g \exp(u(x)) + f(x), x \in D$$
(1)

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial n}|_G = \varphi(x) \tag{2}$$

Suppose the functions $\varphi(x)$, a(x) are such that there exists a unique continuous solution of the problem $u(x) \in C^2(D) \cap C(\overline{D})$.

Using the fundamental solution of the equation, we obtain a nonlinear integral equation with solution the same as the original partial differential equation. On the basis of this integral representation, we construct a probabilistic representation of the solution to our original Neumann problem. This representation is based on a branching stochastic process that allows one to directly sample the solution to the full nonlinear problem. Along a trajectory of these branching stochastic processes we build an unbiased estimator for the solution of original Neumann problem. We then provide results of numerical experiments to validate the numerical method and the underlying stochastic representation.





REDUSING THE SPECTRAL PROBLEM FOR FORTH ORDER ELLIPTIC TYPE EQUATION ON A PLANE DOMAIN TO SECOND TYPE FREDHOLM INTEGRAL EQUATION

M. R. Fatemi, N.A. Aliyev Iran University, Payamnur, Ardabil e-mail:Fatemi.Mehran@yahoo.com

The stated paper is devoted to the homogeneous boundary value problem with a parameter for the Cauchy-Riemann equation with non-local boundary conditions on the plane domain. The solution is sought in the form dictated by Green's second formula. Indeterminacy is eliminated by means of the obtained necessary conditions. Thus, consider the following boundary value problem:

$$\frac{\partial u\left(x\right)}{\partial x_{2}} + i\frac{\partial u\left(x\right)}{\partial x_{1}} = \lambda u\left(x\right), \quad x \in D \subset \mathbb{R}^{2},$$
(1)

$$u(x_1, \gamma(x_1)) = \alpha(x_1) u(x_1, 0) , \quad x_1 \in \mathbb{R},$$
(2)

where

$$D = \{x = (x_1, x_2) : x_2 \in (0, \gamma(x_1)), x_1 \in R\},\$$

 $i = \sqrt{-1}, \lambda \in \mathbb{C}$ is a parameter, $\alpha(x_1)$ is a complex valued continuous known function, u(x) is a desired function, $\gamma(x_1) > 0, x_1 \in \mathbb{R}$.

It is known that

$$U(x-\xi) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{x_2 - \xi_2 + i(x_1 - \xi_1)},$$
(3)

is a fundamental solution of the Cauchy-Riemann equations. Substituting the fundamental solution from (3), we have

$$u(\xi_{1},0) = -\frac{1}{\pi i} \int_{R} \frac{u(x_{1},0)}{x_{1}-\xi_{1}} dx_{1} + \frac{1}{\pi} \int_{R} \frac{u(x_{1},\gamma(x_{1}))}{\gamma(x_{1})+i(x_{1}-\xi_{1})} \times \\ \times \left[1-i\gamma'(x_{1})\right] dx_{1} - \frac{\lambda}{\pi} \int_{D} \frac{u(x)}{x_{2}+i(x_{1}-\xi_{1})} dx, \tag{4}$$

$$u(\xi_{1},\gamma(\xi_{1})) = -\frac{1}{\pi} \int_{R} \frac{u(x_{1},0)}{-\gamma(\xi_{1})+i(x_{1}-\xi_{1})} dx_{1} - \frac{i}{\pi} \int_{R} \frac{u(x_{1},\gamma(x_{1}))}{x_{1}-\xi_{1}} dx_{1} + \\ + \frac{i}{\pi} \int_{R} \frac{\gamma(x_{1})-\gamma(\xi_{1})-\gamma'(x_{1})(x_{1}-\xi_{1})}{\gamma(x_{1})-\gamma(\xi_{1})+i(x_{1}-\xi_{1})} \times \\ \times u(x_{1},\gamma(x_{1})) dx_{1} - \frac{\lambda}{\pi} \int_{D} \frac{u(x)}{x_{2}-\gamma(\xi_{1})+i(x_{1}-\xi_{1})} dx \tag{5}$$

Theorem. Let $D \subset R^2$ be a domain of an upper half-plane with curvilinear boundaries with Lyapunov if $\alpha(x)$ belongs to some Holder class $\alpha(x) \neq 0$, then boundary value problem (1)-(2) is Fredholm.





ON A CONTINUOUS SPECTRUM OF A PROBLEM ON SMALL FLUCTUATIONS OF THE IDEAL LIQUID IN A ROTATING ELASTIC VESSEL

A. Garajaev, J. Ataeva

Turkmen State University, Ashgabat, Turkmenistan

The work is devoted to studying of the structure of a spectrum of the problem on normal fluctuations of the ideal liquid which is rotating in a regular intervals around the fixed axis with small angular speed ε .

Considering the motion that is described as $u(x,t) = e^{i\lambda t}u(x), \rho_0\omega(x,t) = e^{i\lambda t}p(x), p(x,t) = e^{i\lambda t}p(x)$, we come to the following eigenvalue problem with spectral parameter λ

$$\operatorname{Lu}-\rho\lambda^{2}\mathbf{u} = 0(\Omega), \sigma(\mathbf{u})\mathbf{n}|_{\Sigma_{1}} = 0, \tag{1}$$

$$\lambda^2 \omega + 2i\varepsilon \lambda \omega xk - \nabla p = 0, div\omega = 0(\Omega_0), \tag{2}$$

$$\sigma(u)n|_{\Sigma} = pn|_{\Sigma}, (\omega, n)|_{\Sigma} = \rho_0(u, n)|_{\Sigma}$$
(3)

The statement. For the spectrum of the problem (1)-(3) is valid: The interval $[-2\varepsilon, 2\varepsilon]$ is entirely filled by points of continuous spectrum. On beams $R/[-2\varepsilon, 2\varepsilon]$ the spectrum consists of isolated eigenvalues λ_n final algebraic frequency rate. If eigenvalue λ_n corresponds to the eigen function (u_n, ω_n) the number λ_n also will be an eigenvalue corresponding to the eigen function $(\bar{u}_n, \bar{\omega}_n)$. The system of all vectors $(u_n, \lambda_n u_n, \text{ corresponding to the eigenvalues } \lambda_n \in R/[-2\varepsilon, 2\varepsilon]$, is full in space $W_2^1(\Omega) \oplus W_2^1(\Omega)$.

References

 A. Garajaev. Spectral problem on the small fluctuations of an ideal liquid in a rotating elastic vessel // Differential equations, Vol.23, No.1.

[2] J.V. Ralston. J. of Math. Anal. and Appl. Vol.44, 1973, pp.366-383.

SPECTRAL SINGULARITIES OF THE NON-SELFADJOINT MATRIX-VALUED DIFFERENCE EQUATIONS

Seyhmus Yardimci Ankara Üniversitesi, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:Seyhmus.Yardimci@science.ankara.edu.tr

In this study we investigate spectral singularities of the non-selfadjoint matrix-valued difference equations of second order.

- S. Yardımcı. A note on the Spectral singularities of the non-selfadjoint matrix-valued difference operators // J. Comput. Appl. Math., Vol.234, No.10, 2010, pp. 3039-3042.
- [2] Ş. Yardımcı. Jost Solution of the Matrix Difference Equations // Sarajevo J. Math., Vol.6, No.18, 2010, pp.1-5.





THE INVESTIGATION OF ONE INITIAL VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE VIBRATION OF THE ELASTIC DISK

G.R. Gasimov, E.A. Rzayev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail: gkurban@mail.ru

We consider the axisymmetric biharmonic equation for the vibration of an elastic circular disk

$$u_{tt}(r,t) + c^2 (\nabla^2 - \frac{1}{r^2})^2 u(r,t) = e^{-\alpha r} g(t), 0 < r < \infty, t > o$$

with the initial conditions

$$u(r,0) = re^{-ar^2}, u_t(r,0) = 0, 0 < r < \infty,$$

where ∇^2 -is the Laplace operator $\left(\frac{\partial^2}{\partial r^2} + \frac{1}{r}\frac{\partial}{\partial r}\right)$, a, c and α are constants, r being the radial distance measured from its centre, g(t) is a given function of t. Using the Hankel transform

$$\bar{u}(s,t) \equiv H_1\left\{u(r,t); r \to s\right\} = \int_0^\infty r u(r,t) J_1(sr) dr$$

and the formula

$$H_1\left\{(\nabla^2 - \frac{1}{r^2})^2 u(r,t)\right\} = s^4 u(r,t),$$

there was obtained integral representation of the solution in the form

$$) = \frac{1}{4a^2} \int_0^\infty s^2 \exp(-s^2/(4a)) \cos(cs^2t) J_1(sr) ds + \frac{1}{c} \int_0^\infty \frac{1}{(s^2 + \alpha^2)^{3/2}} \left(\int_0^t g(\tau) \sin(cs^2(t - \tau)) d\tau \right) J_1(sr) ds$$

in the class of functions satisfying the condition

$$ru(r,t), ru_r(r,t) \to 0$$

as $r \to 0$ for $r \to \infty$.





INVESTIGATION OF ONE BOUNDARY-VALUE PROBLEM WITH STABILIZED TEMPERATURE IN INFINITE TRUNCATED SECTOR APPLYING GENERALIZED MELLIN TRANSFORM

G.R. Gasimov, E.A. Rzayev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:gkurban@mail.ru

The problem of stabilized distribution of temperature in infinite truncated sector $(a < r < \infty, |\theta| \le \alpha < \frac{\pi}{2})$ is considered with given side temperature regimes and heat flood on the surface r = a:

$$r^{2}u_{rr}(r,\theta) + ru_{r} + u_{\theta\theta} = 0,$$
$$u(r,\alpha) = \varphi(r), \ u(r,-\alpha) = \psi(r), \ a \le r < \infty,$$
$$u_{r}(a,\theta) = f(\theta), \ |\theta| \le \alpha; \ \varphi(a) = f(\alpha), \ \psi(a) = f(-\alpha).$$

After applying Mellin generalized transform

$$\tilde{u}_{+}(p,\theta) \equiv M\{u(r,\theta); \, r \to p\} = \int_{a}^{\infty} (r^{p-1} + a^{2p}r^{-p-1})u(r,\theta)dr; \ 0 \le Rep = \eta < \frac{\pi}{(2\alpha)}$$

there was obtained integral representation of the solution in the form:

$$\begin{split} u(r,\theta) &= \frac{1}{2\pi i} \int_{c-i\infty}^{c+i\infty} r^{-p} \tilde{u}_{+}(p,\theta) dp; \quad 0 < c < \frac{\pi}{(2\alpha)}, \\ \tilde{u}_{+}(p,\theta) &= \frac{1}{\sin 2p\alpha} \{ \tilde{\varphi}_{+}(p) \sin p(\theta + \alpha) - \tilde{\psi}_{+}(p) \sin p(\theta - \alpha) + \\ + (2a^{p+1}/p) [\sin p(\theta - \alpha) \int_{-\alpha}^{0} f(\theta_{1}) \sin(\alpha + \theta_{1}) d\theta_{1} - \sin p(\theta + \alpha) \times \\ &\times \int_{0}^{\alpha} f(\theta_{1}) \sin p(\alpha - \theta_{1}) d\theta_{1} + \int_{0}^{\theta} f(\theta_{1}) \sin(\theta - \theta_{1}) d\theta_{1}] \}, \end{split}$$

in the class of functions $u(r, \theta)$ satisfying the condition

 $\lim_{r \to \infty} [(r^p + a^{2p} r^{-p}) r u_r(r, \theta) - p(r^p - a^{2p} r^{-p}) u(r, \theta)] = 0.$

Particularly, on $\varphi(r) = \psi(r) = (r-a)/r^{1+\beta}$, $\beta > 1 + \pi/(2\alpha)$, $f(\theta) = 0$, the was proved application of integral transform and for the solution there was obtained a more comfortable form for practical application:

$$u(r,\theta) = \frac{1}{\pi a^{\beta}} \int_0^{\infty} \frac{\beta(\beta+1) - \eta^2}{(\beta^2 + \eta^2)((\beta+1)^2 + \eta^2)} \cos(\eta \ln(a/r)) \frac{sh(\eta\theta)}{sh(\eta\alpha)} d\eta.$$





ON A REQULARITY CRITERIA FOR THE BOUNDARY POINT FOR THE HEAT EQUATION IN THE SENCE OF DOMAIN BOUNDARY

A.F.Guliyev

Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan

In the symmetrical domain

$$D_H = (x, t) : H < t < 0 |x|^2 < 4t \log g(t) \subset R^{n+1}$$

the Dirichlet problem

$$U_t = \Delta U, (x, t) \in D_H \tag{1}$$

$$U|_{\partial D} = f(x,t) \in C(\partial D_H) \tag{2}$$

is considered for the heat equation and the problem of regularity of the boundary point (0,0) is investigated. In the work the exact conditions have been obtained for the heat equation in the multidimensional case. The main result of the work is:

Theorem. Let the following conditions hold

1⁰. $\rho(t) > 0$ is a continuous and monotony decreasing functions to zero by $t \to -0$; 2⁰. $t \cdot \log \rho(t) \to 0$ by $t \to -0$; 3⁰. $\frac{\rho(\eta) \cdot |\log \rho(\eta)|^{n/2}}{\eta} d\eta \to -\infty$ by $\varepsilon \to -0$.

Then the point $(0,0) \in \partial_{\rho}D$ is regular for the problem (1), (2). If the integral in 3⁰ converges, then the point (0,0) is irregular for the problem (1),(2).





TWO-DIMENSIONAL MACROSCOPIC NON-DETERMINISTIC MODEL OF TRAFFIC FLOW MOTION "WITHOUT PREFERENCE"¹

Sharif E. Guseynov, Janis S. Rimshans, Alexander V. Berezhnoy, Julia Timoshchenko Institute of Mathematical Sciences and Information Technologies, University of Liepaja, Liepaja, Latvia Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Riga, Latvia Riga Technical University, Riga, Latvia

e-mail:sh.e.guseinov@inbox.lv, janis.rimsans@liepu.lv, alexander.v.berezhnoy@gmail.com

Present work proceeds non-deterministic motion of the two-dimensional vehicular traffic flow, where the traffic flow is assumed as flow of particles in the investigated environment with allowed motion in both forward and opposite directions. Besides, it is assumed that at any fixed time interval in the two-dimensional flow, vehicles could change its positions on the road to any arbitrary placements at the defined probabilities, even they might be not the neighbouring ones. Such a non-deterministic motion of two-dimensional traffic flow will be named (by analogy to the work [1]) as motion "without preference". Under the pointed assumptions, first it is constructed the non-deterministic discrete mathematical model, and later by means of using the principle of continuous system there are applied limiting transitions to the constructed discrete model. As a result, the following non-deterministic continuous model relevant to the unknown vehicular traffic flow density $\rho(x_1, x_2, t)$ is obtained:

$$\frac{\partial \rho(x_1, x_2, t)}{\partial t} = \int_{-l_1}^{+l_1} dy_1 \int_{-l_2}^{+l_2} K\left(t; y_1, y_2; x_1, x_2\right) \rho\left(y_1, y_2, t\right) dy_2 -\rho\left(x_1, x_2, t\right) \int_{-l_1}^{+l_1} dy_1 \int_{-l_2}^{+l_2} K\left(t; x_1, x_2; y_1, y_2\right) dy_2; \ x_i \in (-l_i, +l_i) \quad i = 1, 2; \ t \in (0, T],$$

$$(1)$$

 $\rho(x_1, x_2, t)|_{t=0} = \rho_0(x_1, x_2), \quad (x_1, x_2) \in S \stackrel{def}{\equiv} [-l_1, +l_1] \times [-l_2, +l_2], \quad (2)$

where $\rho_0(x_1, x_2)$, $(x_1, x_2) \in S$ is the initial traffic distribution at the considered road section; the function $K(t; z_1; z_2) \geq 0$ $\left(t \in [0, T]; z_1 = (z_1^1, z_2^1) : z_i^j \in [-l_i, +l_i] \ (i, j = 1, 2)\right)$ is the kernel of integral-differential equation (1), which could be treated in the following way: the probability for a vehicle within a traffic flow, which is located at some point $z_1 = (z_1^1, z_2^1) \in S$ road section at the initial time moment $t \in [0, T]$ (at this point and below it is assumed that $T = \infty$), to appear at the road section $s \stackrel{def}{=} [z_2, z_2 + dz_2] \subset S$, $z_2 = (z_1^2, z_2^2)$ $(z_1 \neq z_2)$ in the next moment of time $t + \Delta t$, is equal to the value $K(t; z_1; z_2) dz_1^2 dz_2^2 dt$. In other words, the kernel $K(t; z_1; z_2)$ is determined as the probability density of the traffic flow vehicles "moving"/"shift"/"carry" (divided by a time unit) from the point $z_1 = (z_1^1, z_2^1) \in S$ to the point $z_2 = (z_1^2, z_2^2) \in S$, where $z_1 \neq z_2$, at the time moment $t \in [0, T]$. This means that function $K(t; z_1; z_2)$ is a relative velocity of such vehicles "moving" in traffic flow at the time moment t. It is also provided a probabilistic treatment of the both constructed discrete and continuous models in present work; it is studied the question of solution existence for the integral-differential equation (1) with the initial condition (2); there is a condition found, which allows to obtain the well-known model of "mass-flow equation" from the model (1), (2).

References

 Sh.E. Guseynov, J.S. Rimshans, A.V. Berezhnoy, Sh.G. Bagirov. Distributed mathematical models of undetermined "without preference" motion of traffic flow // Journal of Discrete and Continuous Dynamical Systems, published under the aegis of the American Institute of Mathematical Sciences, Vol.30, No. 5, 2011 13 p.

¹ Present research was executed within the framework of the European Science Foundation Project No. 1DP/1.1.2.0/09/APIA/VIAA/142, and with the pointed Project financial support





ON SOLVABILITY OF DIRICHLET GENERALIZED PROBLEM FOR SECOND ORDER QUASILINEAR ELLIPTIC EQUATIONS

S.G.Guseynov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

I the bounded domain D of the Euclidean space \mathbb{R}^n , $n \geq 2$ consider we equation

$$L_u = \sum_{i,j=1}^n \frac{\partial}{\partial x_i} \left(a_{i,j}(x) \left| \nabla u \right|^{p(x)-2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial x_j} \right) = 0, \tag{1}$$

with a measurable in D function p(x), satisfying the condition

$$1 \le p_1 \le p(x) \le p_2 < \infty. \tag{2}$$

If p(x) = const, the quasilinear equation (1) and its natural generalizations were studied on detail. The references on these equations is in the monographic [1].

Assume that the following conditions are fulfilled for the coefficients of the operator L:

$$\mu |\xi|^2 \le \sum_{i,j=1}^n a_{ij}(x)\xi_i\xi_j \le \mu^{-1} |\xi|^2, \ \mu \in (0,1].$$
(3)

For determining the solution, the Eudroduct the class of functions

$$W_{loc}(D) = \{ u : u \in W^1_{1,loc}(D), \ |\nabla u|^{p(x)} \in L_{1,loc}(D) \}.$$

It is assumed that exponent satisfies the relation

$$|p(x) - p(y)| \le \frac{C}{\ln|x - y|^{-1}}, \ x, y \in D, \ |x - y| < \frac{1}{2}.$$
(4)

In the paper the investigate the – on solvability of the generalized Dirichlet problem

$$L_{uf} = 0inD, u_f |\partial D = f \tag{5}$$

With a conditions on D function f(x). We determine the solution of the problem as follows. We continue the boundary function $f \in C(\partial D)$ by the continuity on D, having retained the same denotation and – the sequence of infinitely differentiable in \mathbb{R}^n functions $f_k(x)$ that uniformly on D converge to f(x).

Theorem. If the conditions (2),(3) and (4) are satisfied, the generalized solution $u_f(x)$ of problem (5) exists, is unglue and belong to the class $W_{\log}(D)$.

References

[1] O.A. Ladyzhenskaya, N.N.Uraltseva. Linear and Quasilinear Elliptic Equations // M., 1968.





INVESTIGATION OF THE EXISTENCE AND UNIQUENESS OF THE SOLUTION OF A CLASS OF THE SYSTEM OF THE FIRST ORDER PARTIAL EQUATIONS

K.K. Gasanov, Kh.T. Guseynova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:XQT@box.az

A wide class of important applied processes is described by the certain system of the first order partial differential equations [1], [2].

Let's consider in a rectangle $D = \{0 < t < T, 0 < s < S\}$ the following system of equations

$$\begin{aligned} x_t &= A_{11}\left(t,s\right)x + A_{12}\left(t,s\right)y + f_1\left(t,s\right), \\ y_s &= A_{21}\left(t,s\right)x + A_{22}\left(t,s\right)y + f_2\left(t,s\right) \end{aligned}$$
(1)

with initial and boundary conditions

$$\begin{aligned} x\left(o,s\right) &= \varphi_{1}\left(s\right), \quad 0 \leq s \leq S, \\ y\left(t,0s\right) &= \varphi_{2}\left(t\right), \quad 0 \leq t \leq T, \end{aligned}$$
 (2)

where $A_{ij} - (n_i \times n_j)$, (i, j = 1, 2) are matrices, f_i and φ_i - n_i , (i = 1, 2)- dimensional column vectors. **Theorem.** Let's assume that the following conditions are satisfied:

- (1) The matrices $A_{ij}(t,s)$, (i, j = 1, 2) and vectors $f_i(t, s)$, (i, j = 1, 2) are defined and measurable inD; vectors $\varphi_1(s)$ and $\varphi_2(t)$ are defined and measurable on [o, S] and [o, T], correspondingly.
- (2) Norms $|A_{ij}(t,s)|$, $|f_i(t,s)|$, $|\varphi_1(s)|$, $|\varphi_2(t)|$ are integrable in the definition domain where the norm $(n \times m)$ of the matrix $A = (a_{ij})$ is defined by equality $|A| = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{m} |a_{ij}|$;
- (3) Matrices $A_{i1}(t,s)$ $(A_{i2}(t,s)), (i = 1, 2)$ for almost all $t \in [0,T]$ (for almost all $s \in [0,S]$) are continuous on s (are continuous on t).

Then the problem (1), (2) in space $W_n^{1,0}(D) \times W_m^{1,0}(D)$ has a unique solution.

For the homogeneous adjoint system the Riemann matrix is defined and integral representation of the solution of the considered problem is obtained.

- G.M. Ostrovsky, Yu.M. Volin. Modeling of the complicated chemical-technological schemes // M: Nauka, 1975, 328 p.
- [2] E.A. Markin, A.S. Strekalovsky. On an existence, uniqueness and stability of the solution for one class of the operated dynamic systems describing chemical processes // The bulletin of the Moscow University, Ser. Calcul. Math. Cyber., No.4, 1977, pp. 3-10.





ON A UNIQUENESS OF THE RECONSTRUCTION OF THE DIRAC OPERATOR OVER TWO SPECTRUMS

G.J. Hamidova, I.M. Nabiev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan, Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:gunel.gamidova@sinan.net

Let p(x) and q(x) be real valued functions belonging to the space $L_2[0, \pi]$. Let's denote by L(p, q, h, H, b) boundary problem generated on the segment $[0, \pi]$ by the canonical Dirac equation

$$By'(x) + Q(x)y(x) = \lambda y(x)$$

with semi-separated boundary conditions

$$y_2(0) - hy_1(0) = 0,$$
 $y_2(\pi) + Hy_1(\pi) + by_1(0) = 0,$

where $B = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 1 \\ -1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$, $Q(x) = \begin{pmatrix} p(x) & q(x) \\ q(x) & -p(x) \end{pmatrix}$, $y(x) = \begin{pmatrix} y_1(x) \\ y_2(x) \end{pmatrix}$, h, H, bare real numbers and Hh - 1 > 0, H + h > 0. In the present work, following results have been obtained.

Lemma. Eigenvalues λ_n $(n = 0, \pm 1, \pm 2, ...)$ of the problem L(p, q, h, H, b) satisfy the asymptotic formula

$$\lambda_n = n + (-1)^n A + D + \xi_n$$

where

$$A = \frac{1}{\pi} \arcsin\frac{b}{\alpha}, \quad D = \frac{1}{\pi} \arccos\frac{hH-1}{\alpha}, \quad \alpha = \sqrt{(Hh-1)^2 + (H+h)^2}, \quad \{\xi_n\} \in l_2$$

Let's denote by $\left\{\lambda_n^{(k)}\right\}$, $\left\{\mu_n^{(k)}\right\}$ the spectrums of the initial problems $L(p, q, h, H_k, b_k)$, $L\left(\tilde{p}, \tilde{q}, \tilde{h}, \tilde{H}_k, \tilde{b}_k\right)$ (k = 1, 2), correspondingly.

Theorem. If for all $n = 0, \pm 1, \pm 2, ...$ takes place $\lambda_n^{(k)} = \mu_n^{(k)}$ (k = 1, 2), then $p(x) = \tilde{p}(x)$, $q(x) = \tilde{q}(x)$ almost everywhere on the segment $[0, \pi]$, $h = \tilde{h}$, $H_k = \tilde{H}_k$, $b_k = \tilde{b}_k$.





ON INITIAL - BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR LOADED PSEUDO-PARABOLIC EQUATION

D.K. Xoliqov

National University of Uzbekistan named after M.Ulugbek, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:xoliqov23@mail.ru

In this paper the initial-boundary value problem for loaded pseudo-parabolic equation of the third order is studied. In the domain $D = \{(x, t) : 0 < x < l, 0 < t < T\}$ we consider equation

$$Lu = f(x,t) + \frac{\partial}{\partial t} \int_{\alpha}^{\beta} u(x,t) dx, \qquad (1)$$

here $Lu \equiv u_{xxt} + d(x,t)u_t + a(x,t)u_{xx} + b(x,t)u_{xt} + c(x,t)u_x + e(x,t)u$, α, β are given constants such, that $0 \leq \alpha \leq \beta \leq l$.

Problem. Find the regular solution u(x,t) of the equation (1) in D which satisfies the following initial condition

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x), 0 \le x \le l, \tag{2}$$

and following boundary conditions

$$u(0,t) = \psi_1(t), u(l,t) = \psi_2(t), 0 \le t \le T,$$
(3)

where $\varphi(x)$, $\psi_1(t)$, $\psi_2(t)$ are given functions such that

$$\varphi(0) = \psi_1(0), \varphi(l) = \psi_2(0).$$

Theorem. Let d(x,t) < 0 for any $(x,t) \in D$ and given functions satisfy following conditions

 $a(x,t), b(x,t) \in C^1(\overline{D}) \bigcap C^2(D), c(x,t), d(x,t) \in C(\overline{D}) \bigcap C^1(D),$

 $e(x,t), f(x,t) \in C(\overline{D}), \ \varphi(x) \in C^1[0,l] \cap C^2(0,l), \ \psi_1(t), \psi_2(t) \in C^1[0,T].$ Then there exists a unique solution of the problem (1) - (3).

The following example shows that in general the assumption that $d(x,t) < 0, \forall (x,t) \in D$ is necessary.

It is easy to see, that $u(x,t) = t\sin(2kx)$ is solution of

$$u_{xxt} + (2k)^2 u_t = \frac{\partial}{\partial t} \int_0^\pi u(x,t) dx,$$

in $D_0 = \{(x,t) : 0 < x < \pi, 0 < t < T\}$ and u(x,t) satisfies the initial boundary conditions u(x,0) = 0, u(0,t) = 0, $u(\pi,t) = 0$, i.e. the solution of the initial - boundary value problem for above equation is not unique.





THE ELLIPTIC AND PARABOLIC EQUATIONS WITH SINGULAR POTENTIALS IN CONE-LIKE DOMAINS

B. Hudaykuliyev Turkmen State University, Ashgabat, Turkmenistan e-mail:bazargeldyh@yandex.ru

We consider the following problems

$$-\Delta u = V(x)u, \quad u|_{\partial\Omega} = \phi(x) \tag{1}$$

in the domain $\Omega = G \cap B \subset \mathbb{R}^n (n \ge 3)$, and

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} - \Delta u = V(x)u + f(x,t), \quad u|_{t=0} = u_0(x), \quad u|_{\partial\Omega} = 0$$
(2)

in the domain $\Omega \times (0,T)$, where $\Omega = G \cap B \subset R^n (n \ge 3), x = (x_1, ..., x_n) \in \Omega, B = B(0, \rho) = \{x \in R^n : |x| < \rho < 1\} \subset R^n$ and $\partial\Omega$ - the boundary of $\Omega, 0 < T \le \infty, G$ be a cone with vertex at the origin. We suppose that the boundary of Ω , except the origin, is smooth enough.

Under solution to the equation in (1) (respectively to the equation in (2)) we mean the generalized function $u(x) \in D'(\Omega)$, (respectively $u(x,t) \in D'(\Omega \times (0,T))$) such that $u \ge 0$ and $Vu \in L_{1,loc}$. Assumed that $0 \le V(x) \in L_1(\Omega), 0 \le u_0(x) \in L_1(\Omega), f(x,t) \in L_1(\Omega \times (0,T))$ and $0 \le \phi \in L_1(\partial\Omega), \phi(x)$ is continuous on $\partial\Omega$.

Put

$$V_0(x) = \frac{(n-2)^2}{4|x|^2} + \frac{c}{4|x|^2 \log^2 |x|} + \frac{\lambda_{\rho}}{|x|^2}, x \in \Omega,$$
(3)

where $\lambda_{\rho} > 0$ be a first eigenvalue of the operator $-\Delta_{\omega}$ on $G \cap \partial B$ with zero Dirichlet condition on $\partial G \cap \partial B$.

In this paper is studied the behavior of nonnegative solutions to the problems (1) and (2), when $V_0(x)$ is given by (3), and is proved that if $0 \le c \le 1$ and $V(x) \le V_0(x)$ in Ω , then this problems has a nonnegative solutions; if c > 1 and $V(x) \ge V_0(x)$ in Ω , then this problems does not have nonnegative solutions.

- P. Baras, J.A. Goldstein. The heat equation with a singular potential // Trans. of the American Mathematical Society, Vol. 284, No.1, 1984, pp. 121-139.
- [2] B. Hudaykuliev. The elliptic equation with singular potential // Ukrain. Matem. Journal, Vol. 62, No. 12, 2010, pp. 1715-1723.







ON ASYMPTOTICS OF THE SOLUTION OF SOME INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

T.H. Huseynov, A.T. Huseynova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

The work is devoted to the construction of asymptotic solution for initial problem of some singular perturbed integro-differential equations ,analysis of its properties and shown important role of integral part for bounded ness of solution.

In the work using [1-7] the asymptotics of the following system of equations is constructed and investigated

$$\frac{dx}{dt} = L_1[x, y] + f_1(t),$$

$$\varepsilon \frac{dy}{dt} = L_2[x, y] + f_2(t),$$
(1)

with boundary conditions

$$x(0,\varepsilon) = x^0, y(T,\varepsilon) = y^0,$$
(2)

where

$$L_i[x,y] = A_{i1}(t)x + A_{i2}(t)y + \int_0^t [K_{i1}(t,s)x(s) + K_{i2}(t,s)y(s)]ds,$$

 $i = 1, 2; \varepsilon > 0$ -small parameter, $0 \le t \le T, x, f_1 - n$ -dimensional, $y, f_2 - m$ -dimensional vectors,

 $A_{11}, K_{11}; A_{12}, K_{12} - (n \times n); (n \times m), A_{22}, K_{22} - (m \times m), A_{21}, K_{21} - (m \times n)$ dimensional enough smooth matrices, $K_{22}(t, s) \neq 0$.

Let the characteristic values $\lambda_i(t)$ of the matrix $A_{22}(t)$ satisfy the condition

$$Re\lambda_i(t) < 0, (i = \overline{1, m}, 0 \le t \le T)$$
(3)

Note that, by fulfillment of the condition (3) and when the integral part is absent problem (1), (2) generally has no bounded by $\varepsilon \to 0$ solution, at the same time (1), (2) has bounded by $\varepsilon \to 0$ solution $x(t,\varepsilon), y(t,\varepsilon)$.

Therefore it is shown that appearing of the integral part leads to quantitative changes of the behavior of the solution of the boundary problem.

- A.B. Vasileva, V.F. Butuzov. Asymptotical expansion of the solution of singular perturbuted equations // Moscow, Nauka, 1973, 272p.
- [2] A.B. Vasileva, M.G. Dmitriev. Singular perturbation in the optimal control problems // Resume of the Scie. and Tech., Math. Analysis, Vol.20, 1982, pp.3-77.
- [3] A.T. Huseynova. On an asymptotical solution of some integro-differntial equations // Referat of the Ph.D. Thesis, 2005.
- S.G. Krasovskiy. Criteria for the asymptotical stability over linear diagonal approach for the singular differential systems // Diff. Equat., Vol.42, No.8, 2006, pp.1035-1040.
- [5] T.G. Huseynov. On an asymptotics and some its features for the solution of the optimal control problem for the singular perturbuted system of integro-differntial equations // Referat of the Ph.D. Thesis, 1981.
- [6] N.N. Nefyodov, A.G. Nikitin, T.A. Urazgyldina. The Cauchy problem for the singular perturbuted integro-differntial Volterra equations // Jour. of Vich. Math. and Math. Phys., Vol.46, No.5, 2006, pp.805-812.
- [7] N.N. Nefyodov, A.G. Nikitin. The Cauchy problem for the singular perturbuted integro-differntial Fredholm equations // Jour. of Vich. Math. and Math. Phys., Vol.47, No.4, 2006, pp.655-664.





INVESTIGATION OF THE ENERGY EIGENVALUE RELATIVELY TO BOUNDARY PARAMETER

A.Niftiyev, N.Huseynova Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Azerbaijan, Baku e-mail:aniftiyev@yahoo.com, nargiz_huseynova@yahoo.com

Schrödinger equation, describing the state of the particle in the spherical -symmetric (central) field is reduced to the following radial Schrödinger equation:

$$\left[-\frac{\hbar^2}{2\mu r^2}\frac{d}{dr}\left(r^2\frac{d}{dr}\right) + \frac{\hbar^2 l(l+1)}{2\mu r^2} + V(r)\right]R(r) = ER(r).$$

Here E is the energy eigenvalue. Let's consider the following boundary condition

$$R(s_1) = 0, \ R(s_2) = 0.$$

In this case energy eigenvalue depending from $s = (s_1, s_2)$, $E = E(s) = E(s_1, s_2)$.

Theorem. Energy eigenvalue differentiable relatively $s = (s_1, s_2)$ and

$$\frac{\partial E}{\partial s_1} = \frac{\hbar^2}{2\mu} \left(\frac{dR(s_1)}{dx}\right)^2 s_1^2$$
$$\frac{\partial E}{\partial s_2} = -\frac{\hbar}{2\mu} \left(\frac{dR(s_2)}{dx}\right)^2 s_2^2.$$

Here we suppose that R = R(r) is normalized eigenfunction, i.e.

$$\int_{s_1}^{s_2} r^2 R(r) dr = 1.$$

Corollary. Energy eigenvalue increases with s_1 and decreases with respect to s_2 .





ON AN ALGORITHM OF NUMERICAL SOLUTION TO A QUICK-ACTION PROBLEM FOR OSCILLATION PROCESS

Saftar I. Huseynov

Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan

Within the framework of the mathematical model

$$a^{2}u_{xx} + f(x,t) = u_{tt}, \ 0 < x < l, \ 0 < t \le T,$$
(1)

$$\begin{array}{l} u\left(x,0\right) = \varphi\left(x\right) \\ u_{t}\left(x,0\right) = \psi\left(x\right) \end{array} \right\} \quad 0 \le x \le l,$$

$$(2)$$

$$\begin{cases} \sigma_1 u(0,t) - \sigma_2 u_x(0,t) = v_1(t) \\ \sigma_3 u(l,t) + \sigma_4 u_x(l,t) = v_2(t) \end{cases} \quad 0 \le t \le T,$$

$$(3)$$

we put an optimal time optimal problem: to find functions $v_i(t)$ (i = 1, 2), f(x, t) and u(x, t) which satisfy conditions (1)-(3) and the constraints

$$v_{i\min} \le v_i(t) \le v_{i\max} \quad (i = 1, 2),$$

$$f_{\min} \le f(x, t) \le f_{\max};$$
(4)

at that the inequality

$$\int_{0}^{l} (u(x,T) - u(x))^{2} dx \le \delta^{2}$$
(5)

takes place for a minimal time T given the function u(x) and constant $\delta > 0$, where $\varphi(x)$, $\psi(x)$ are given functions; $v_{i\min}$, $v_{i\max}$ (i = 1, 2), f_{\min} , f_{\max} , $\sigma_i (i = \overline{1, 4})$, $(\sigma_1^2 + \sigma_2^2 \neq 0, \sigma_3^2 + \sigma_4^2 \neq 0)$ given numbers.

Numerical algorithm of the solution to problem (1)-(5) is proposed. The algorithm is based on the solution to a series of optimal control problems under the fixed time. To the numerical solution to the optimal control problems we apply conditional gradient method. We obtain analytical formulas for the gradient of the functional and for conjugate boundary problem. At each iteration of the sequential method, direct and conjugate boundary problems are solved using finite difference and Fourier methods. Numerical experiments have been carried out, the results of which show the efficiency of the algorithm proposed.

References

 S.Huseynov, S.Gasimov. Numerical solution to the optimal quick-action problem for a heat conduction process with phase constraints // 24th Mini Euro Conference "On Continuous Optimization and Information-Based Technologies in the Financial Sector" (MEC EuroPT 2010), Izmir, Turkey, pp.120-123.





TRANSIENT VISCOELASTIC WAVES IN MATERIALS WITH VARIABLE POISSON RATIO

M.H.Ilyasov

Azerbaijan National Aviation Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail: musailyasov@yahoo.com

Propagation of transient waves in isotropic homogeneous viscoelastic materials with variable Poisson coefficient, which is occupied the domain V with the surface S, is reduced to the solution of the integrodifferential equation

$$\left(R_1^* + \frac{2}{3}R*\right) \ grad \ div \ \vec{u} - \frac{R^*}{2} rot \ rot \ \vec{u} = \rho \frac{\partial^2 \vec{u}}{\partial t^2}, \vec{x} \in V, \ t > 0$$

with initial $\vec{u} = 0$, $\frac{\partial \vec{u}}{\partial t} = 0$, t = 0, $\vec{x} \in V$ and the following boundary conditions

$$\begin{split} \sigma_{\rho j} n_j |_{S_{\sigma}} &= f_{\rho}(x, y, z) |_{S_{\sigma}} a_{\rho}(t) , \quad t > 0 \quad (\rho, \ j = 1, \ 2 \ , \ 3) \\ u_{\rho} |_{S_{\sigma}} &= F_{\rho}(x, y, z) |_{S_{\sigma}} b_{\rho}(t) , \quad t > 0. \end{split}$$

Here $S = S_{\sigma} \cup S_u$, \vec{u} is displacement vector, σ_{ij} and n_j are the components of stress tensor and unit vector, respectively, ρ is density, f_i, F_i, a_i, b_i are the given functions, R(t) and $R_1(t)$ are the relaxation functions, and the asterisks on the letters denote the operators as

$$R^* arphi(ec{x}\,,\,t) = \int\limits_0^t R(t- au)\,darphi(ec{x}\,,\, au)$$

Theorem. Let the Laplace transform of the problem is represented in the form

$$\begin{split} \bar{\vec{u}}(\vec{x},p) &= \sum_{k} \left\{ \bar{a}_{1k}(p) \, \bar{\vec{u}}_{1k}\left(\vec{x}, \, \frac{p}{c_{1}}\sqrt{q_{1}}\right) \, \left[\chi_{10k}\left(p\sqrt{q_{1}}\right) + w_{1}\chi_{11k}\left(p\sqrt{q_{1}}\right) + \, \frac{1}{2}w_{1}^{2}\chi_{12k}\left(p\sqrt{q_{1}}\right) + \dots \right] + \\ &+ \bar{a}_{2k}(p) \, \bar{\vec{u}}_{2k}\left(\vec{x}, \, \frac{p}{c_{2}}\sqrt{q_{2}}\right) \left[\chi_{20k}\left(p\sqrt{q_{2}}\right) + w_{2}\chi_{21k}\left(p\sqrt{q_{2}}\right) + \, \frac{1}{2}w_{2}^{2}\chi_{22k}\left(p\sqrt{q_{2}}\right) + \dots \right] \right\} \,, \end{split}$$

where $w_1 = \frac{q_2}{q_1} - 1$, $w_2 = \frac{q_1}{q_2} - 1$, $q_1(p) = \frac{R_1 + \frac{3}{2}R_0}{p\bar{R}_1 + \frac{2}{3}p\bar{R}}$, $q_2(p) = \frac{R_0}{p\bar{R}}$ Then the solution of the problem is

$$\vec{u}(\vec{x},t) = \sum_{k} \left[\int_{0}^{\infty} \vec{U}_{10k}(\vec{x},\tau) \gamma_{k}(r,\tau) d\tau + \delta_{11}(t) * \int_{0}^{\infty} \vec{U}_{11k}(\vec{x},\tau) \gamma_{k}(r,\tau) d\tau + \right. \\ \left. + \frac{1}{2} \delta_{12}(t) * \int_{0}^{\infty} \vec{U}_{12k}(\vec{x},\tau) \gamma_{k}(r,\tau) d\tau + \ldots + \int_{0}^{\infty} \vec{U}_{20k}(\vec{x},\tau) W_{k}(r,\tau) d\tau + \right. \\ \left. + \delta_{21}(t) * \int_{0}^{\infty} \vec{U}_{21k}(\vec{x},\tau) W_{k}(r,\tau) d\tau + \frac{1}{2} \delta_{22}(t) * \int_{0}^{\infty} \vec{U}_{22k}(\vec{x},\tau) W_{k}(r,\tau) d\tau + \ldots \right],$$

where $\bar{u}_{ik}\left(r,\frac{p}{c_1}\right)\chi_{imk}(p) = U_{imk}(r,t):, w_i^m = \delta_{im}(t): (i = 1, 2; m, k = 1, 2, 3, ...)$ Here transformation from elastic solution to viscoelastic one is exact.

If $\delta_{ij}(t) = 0$, the solution for constant Poisson coefficient is obtained. In addition, if the functions γ_k and W_k are the Dirac-delta function [1], then the elastic solution is obtained.

F.Q. Maksudov, M.H. Ilyasov. On one method of solving the dynamic problems of linear viscoelasticity with disproportionate functions of relaxation // DAN SSSR, V.273, N.3, 1983.





ON AN EXISTENCE OF PERIODIC SOLUTIONS OF THE KDV TYPE EQUATION

Talaibek M. Imanaliev

Department of Applied Mathematics Kyrgyz National University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:talaibek@gmail.com

In this paper we investigate the existence of periodic solutions with respect to the variable t of the KDV type of equation

$$u_t(t,x) + u(t,x)u_x(t,x) + u_{xxx}(t,x) = f(t,x,u(t,x)),$$
(1)

where $f(t, x, u) \in \overline{C}(R_+, R, R)$ is the known periodic function, f(t, x, u) = f(t + T, x, u), T=const. We use the substitution

$$u(t,x) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_{t}^{t+T} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \frac{e^{-iw(x-s)-(w^2+s^2+1)(t-\nu)}}{e^{(w^2+s^2+1)T}-1} Q(\nu,s) ds dw d\nu,$$
(2)
hknown function $Q(t+T,x) = Q(t,x), \|Q(t,x)\| = \sup |Q(t,x)|.$

with the new unknown function $Q(t+T,x) = Q(t,x), ||Q(t,x)|| = \sup_{\substack{0 \le t \le T \\ -\infty < x < \infty}} |Q(t,x)|| = |Q(t,x)|| = |Q(t,x)|| = |Q(t,x)||$

To determine Q(t, x) we obtain the equation

$$\begin{split} Q(t,x) =& f\left(t,x,\frac{1}{2\pi}\int_{t}^{t+T}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\frac{e^{-iw(x-s)-(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)(t-\nu)}}{e^{(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)T}-1}Q(\nu,s)dsdwd\nu\right) + \\ &+\frac{1}{2\pi}\int_{t}^{t+T}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\frac{e^{-iw(x-s)-(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)(t-\nu)}(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)}{e^{(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)T}-1}Q(\nu,s)dsdwd\nu + \\ &+\frac{1}{4\pi^{2}}\int_{t}^{t+T}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\frac{e^{-iw(x-s)-(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)(t-\nu)}}{e^{(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)T}-1}Q(\nu,s)dsdwd\nu \cdot \\ &\quad \cdot\int_{t}^{t+T}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}\frac{e^{-iw(x-s)-(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)(t-\nu)}}{e^{(w^{2}+s^{2}+1)T}-1}iwQ(\nu,s)dsdwd\nu. \end{split}$$

This operator equation proved to be contractive mapping. Therefore according to the principle of contracting mappings it has the unique solution. Then equation (1) poses the unique solution in the form (2).

References

 Murzabek Imanaliev, Pavel Pankov, Talaibek Imanaliev. On the theory of partial equation of KDV type // Doklady Academii Nauk, Vol. 342, No. 1, 1995, pp. 17-19.





DEFINITION OF THE RIGHT-HAND SIDE OF HIGH ORDER NON-HOMOGENEOUS LINEAR DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

T.Sh. Imankul

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Imankul.T.Sh@mail.ru

The problem of reconstructing of solutions and special right sides is solved for inhomogeneous linear differential equations of higher orders with the redefined two- point boundary conditions. It is possible to perform a full descriptions of all possible available right sides.

The following problem arises in various areas of mathematics:

$$y^{n}(t) + p_{1}(t)y^{(n-1)}(t) + \ldots + p_{n}(t)y(t) = \mu(t) + b(t)\nu(t), 0 \le t \le 1$$
(1)

under conditions of

$$U_j(y) = \sum_{\nu=1}^{n-1} \left[\alpha_{j\nu} y^{(\nu)}(0) + \beta_{j\nu} y^{(\nu)}(1) \right] = b_j, j = \overline{1, n}$$
(2)

$$V_i(y) = \sum_{\nu=1}^{n-1} \left[\gamma_{i\nu} y^{(\nu)}(0) + \theta_{i\nu} y^{(\nu)}(1) \right] = a_i, i = \overline{1, n}$$
(3)

where $p_k(t)$, $k = \overline{1, n}$; $\mu(t)$ – given piecewise continuous functions, $\nu(t)$ – unknown function. We assume, that

1) The matrix rank $(\alpha_{j\nu}, \beta_{j\nu})$ is equal n,

2)Homogeneous task
$$\frac{dy}{dt} = A(t)y(t),$$

 $y^n(t) + p_1(t)y^{(n-1)}(t) + \ldots + p_n(t)y(t) = 0,$
 $U_j(y) = 0, j = \overline{1, n}$

has only the trivial decision.

The considered problem (1) - (3) can be interpreted:

1) as the problem of definition of the right -hand of the non-homogeneous equation (1) on additional information. Then it represents a so-called return task,

2) as overdetermined boundary value problems for ordinary differential equations;

3) as the initial step in the development of algorithms for solving optimal control In this paper, a theorem which gives a complete description of the controls for the problem (1) - (3). Stated that the family of such control depends on an arbitrary square-integrable function

- [1] S.A.Aisagaliev, T.Sh.Imankul. Phase system's theory // Almaty, Kazakh University, 2005, 272p.
- [2] J.Bear. Dynamics of Fluids in Porous Media // Elsevier, New York, 1972.
- [3] M.A. Naimark. Linear differential operators // M., Nauka, 1964, 528p.





HOMOTOPY ANALYSIS METHOD FOR SOLVING OF THE FRACTIONAL KDV EQUATION

Mustafa Inc, Ebru Cavlak Department of Mathematics, Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:minc@firat.edu.tr,ebrucavlak@hotmail.com

In this paper, we obtain approximate solution for soliton solution of the fractional KdV equation by homotopy analysis method. Numerical results which obtained by homotopy analysis method (HAM) are compared with other solutions which obtained with Adomian decomposition (ADM) and variational iteration method (VIM). The numerical results show that the only few terms are sufficiented to obtain accurate solutions. Also, the results given by tables and figures.

References

- John S. Russell, Reports on waves // Report of the 14th Meeting of the British Association for the Advancement of Science, London, 1844.
- [2] Igor Podlubny. Fractional differential equations // Academic, San Diego, 1999.
- [3] Shijun Liao. Beyond Perturbation: Introduction to the Homotopy Analysis Method // Champan, Boca Raton, 2003.
- [4] Mustafa Inc. On exact solution of Laplace equation with Dirichlet and Neumann boundary conditions by the homotopy analysis method // Physics Letter A, Vol.365, No.11, 2007, pp.412-415.
- [5] Alireza K. Golmankhaneh, Ali Golmankhaneh, Dumitru Baleanu. On nonlinear fractional Klein-Gordon equation // Signal Processing, Vol.91, 2011, pp.446-451.

EXISTENCE AND UNIQUENESS OF SOLUTION OF A B.V.P FOR SECOND ORDER O.D.E WITH GENERAL LINEAR NONLOCAL BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

M. Jahanshahi, M. Sajjadmanesh Azarbaijan University of Tarbiat Moallem Tabriz, Iran e-mail:Jahanshahi@azauniv.edu, s.sajjadmanesh@azaruniv.edu

According to the classic text books of functional analysis and boundary value problems, existence of solution of B.V.P is uniqueness of its adjoint problem and vice versa. By making use of this mathematical fact, in this paper for the existence and uniqueness of B.V.P including second order ordinary differential equation with non-local boundary conditions, we prove the uniqueness of solutions for the main problem and its adjoint problem.





ON THE INVERSE SCATTERING TRANSFORM IN 2 + 1 DIMENSIONS FOR THE NONLINEAR EVOLUTION EQUATION RELATED TO NONSTATIONARY DIRAC-TYPE SYSTEMS ON THE PLANE

N.Sh.Iskenderov, M.I.Ismailov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Gebze Institute of Technology, Gebze-Kocaeli, Turkey e-mail:mismailov@gyte.edu.tr

5 mai://milmaii0/08/00/044/01

The inverse scattering transform (IST) method for the nonlinear evolution equations with 1+1 dimensions (one space and one time dimensions) have been described in various reviews and monographs. The generalization of the IST method to nonlinear evolution equations with 2+1 dimensions (two space and one time dimension) has been developed in monograph [1]. The main step in the IST method is to represent the mentioned nonlinear evolution equation in the form of Lax equation

$$\frac{\partial \mathbf{L}}{\partial t} = [\mathbf{L}, \mathbf{A}] \,. \tag{1}$$

Let $\mathbf{L} = \frac{\partial}{\partial y} - \mathbf{M}$, where \mathbf{M} is an ordinary differential operator in x. Then equation (1) is rewritten as (see [2])

$$\left[\frac{\partial}{\partial y} - \mathbf{M}, \frac{\partial}{\partial t} - \mathbf{A}\right] = 0.$$
⁽²⁾

Some nonlinear evolution equations in 2+1 dimension are presented in [3] by using commutativity condition (2) when **M** is an scalar coefficients ordinary differential operator in x.

Let $\mathbf{M} = \sigma \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + Q$ and $\mathbf{A} = \tau \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + P$ in (2). Here σ, τ, Q and P are square matrices of the order $n \ (n \geq 3)$. Let the matrices σ and τ be real and diagonal: $\sigma = \begin{bmatrix} I_{n_1} & 0 \\ 0 & -I_{n_2} \end{bmatrix}, \tau = \begin{bmatrix} 2B_1 & 0 \\ 0 & 2B_2 \end{bmatrix},$ where $I_{n_i} \ (i = 1, 2)$ is identity matrix of the order $n_i \ (n_1 + n_2 = n), B_1 = diag(b_1, \dots, b_{n_1}), B_2 = diag(b_{n_1+1}, \dots, b_n)$ with $b_i \neq b_j \ (i \neq j)$ and the matrices Q and P obey the relation: $[\sigma, P] = [\tau, Q]$. Let $Q = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & q_{12} \\ q_{21} & 0 \end{bmatrix}$. Take $P = \begin{bmatrix} p_{11} & B_1q_{12} - q_{12}B_2 \\ q_{21}B_1 - B_2q_{21} & p_{22} \end{bmatrix}$, where the functions p_{11} and p_{22} are solutions of the equations $\partial_\eta p_{11} = [q_{12}q_{21}, B_1]$ and $\partial_\xi p_{22} = [B_2, q_{21}q_{12}]$, respectively. Then, the condition (2) yields to the system of equations

$$\partial_t q_{12} - B_1 \partial_\xi q_{12} + \partial_\eta q_{12} B_2 = p_{11} q_{12} - q_{12} p_{22},
\partial_t q_{21} - \partial_\xi q_{21} B_1 + B_2 \partial_\eta q_{21} = p_{22} q_{21} - q_{21} p_{11},$$
(3)

where $\partial_t = \frac{\partial}{\partial t}, \partial_{\xi} = \frac{\partial}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x}, \partial_{\eta} = \frac{\partial}{\partial y} - \frac{\partial}{\partial x}$. We recall the necessary results on the inverse scattering problem for the equation $\frac{\partial}{\partial y}\psi - \mathbf{M}\psi = \mathbf{0}$, with $\mathbf{M} = \sigma \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + Q$ on the whole plane, where the matrix coefficient Q decrease quite fast with respect to variables x and y at infinity (see [4]). Then this results are applied to the integration of the nonlinear 2+1 dimensional systems of equations (3).

- B.G. Konopelchenko. Introduction to multidimensional integrable equations // The inverse spectral transform in 2+1 dimensions, Plenum Press, New York, 1992.
- [2] V.E. Zakharov, S.V. Manakov, S.P.Novikov, L.P.Pitaievski. Theory of solitons // The inverse scattering method, Nauka, Moscow, 1980 (in Russian).
- B.G. Konopelchenko, V.G. Dubrovsky. Some new integrable nonlinear evolution equations in 2+1 dimensions // Phys. Lett. A, Vol.102, No.1-2, 1984, pp.15-17.
- M.I. Ismailov. Inverse scattering problem for nonstationary Dirac-type systems on the plane // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.365, 2010, pp.498-509.





THE CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR DEGENERATE EQUATIONS OF MAGNETIC GAS DYNAMICS IN POROUS MEDIUM

D.A.Iskenderova, S.Tagikbaeva Kazakh Agro-technical University, Astana, Kazakhstan Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:iskenja_2005@mail.ru

The equations of magnetic gas dynamics in porous medium in Lagrangian coordinates have the form:

$$\frac{\partial v}{\partial t} - \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} = 0, v = \frac{\rho^0}{\rho},$$

$$\rho^0 \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \mu \frac{\partial}{\partial x} (\frac{1}{v} \frac{\partial u}{\partial x}) - \frac{\partial p}{\partial x} - \mu_\ell H \frac{\partial H}{\partial x} - \beta(x) |u|^\alpha u, p = k \rho^0 \frac{\theta}{v},$$

$$\rho^0 \frac{\partial \theta}{\partial t} = \lambda \frac{\partial}{\partial x} (\frac{1}{v} \frac{\partial \theta}{\partial x}) - p \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\mu}{v} (\frac{\partial u}{\partial x})^2 + \frac{\mu_\ell \mu_H}{v} (\frac{\partial H}{\partial x})^2,$$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t} (vH) = \mu_H \frac{\partial}{\partial x} (\frac{1}{v} \frac{\partial H}{\partial x}).$$
(1)

We study the system of educations under the initial conditions.

$$\rho|_{t=0} = \rho^0(x), u|_{t=0} = u^0(x), \theta|_{t=0} = \theta^0(x), H|_{t=0} = H^0(x), v|_{t=0} = 1,$$
(2)

where $(\rho^0, u^0, \theta^0, H^0)$ are continuous, (ρ^0, u^0, θ^0) are bounded non-negative functions and have finite limits at infinity:

$$\lim_{x \to -\infty} \rho^{0}(x) = \rho_{1}^{0}, \lim_{x \to +\infty} \rho^{0}(x) = 0,$$

$$\lim_{x \to -\infty} u^{0}(x) = u_{1}^{0}, \lim_{x \to +\infty} u^{0}(x) = u_{2}^{0}, u_{1}^{0} < u_{2}^{0},$$

$$\lim_{x \to -\infty} \theta^{0}(x) = \theta_{1}^{0}, \lim_{x \to +\infty} \theta^{0}(x) = \theta_{2}^{0}, \theta_{1}^{0} \neq \theta_{2}^{0},$$

$$\lim_{x \to -\infty} H^{0}(x) = H_{1}^{0}, \lim_{x \to +\infty} H^{0}(x) = H_{2}^{0}, H_{1}^{0} \neq H_{2}^{0}.$$
(3)

Global a priori estimates are derived and global in time existence of a unique generalized solution is proved.

References

 J.A.Iskenderova. Local solvability of the degenerating equations of magnetic gas dynamics // News of National Academy of Science of Kyrgyz Republic. No. 1-2, 2001, pp.11-17.




A NEW NON STANDARD METHOD OF REDUCTION TO THE SYSTEM AND STABILITY OF SOLUTIONS OF LINEAR VOLTERRA INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION OF FOURTH ORDER

S. Iskandarov

The Institute of Pure and Applied Mathematics National Academy of Sciences, Bishskek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:mrmacintosh@list.ru

All appearing functions and their derivatives are continuous at $t \ge t_0$, $t \ge \tau \ge t_0$; $J = [t_0, \infty)$; IDE - integro-differential equation; by the stability of solutions of a linear fourth-order IDE means boundedness on the interval J all its solutions and their derivatives up to third order inclusive.

The sufficient conditions for stability of solutions of linear IDE fourth-order Volterra type:

$$x^{(4)}(t) + \sum_{k=0}^{3} \left[a_k(t) x^{(k)}(t) + \int_{t_0}^{t} Q_k(t,\tau) x^{(k)}(\tau) d\tau \right] = f(t), t \ge t_0$$
(1)

are established. To do this, proceed as follows. First, the IDE (1) make the following change:

$$x'''(t) + px''(t) + qx'(t) + rx(t) = W(t)y(t),$$
(2)

where p, q, r - some auxiliary parameters, and p > 0, q > 0, r > 0; 0 < W(t) - some weighting function, y(t) - new unknown function. We find from (2):

$$\begin{aligned} x^{(4)}(t) &= -px'''(t) - qx''(t) - rx'(t) + W(t)y'(t) + W'(t)y(t) = -p[-px''(t) - qx'(t) - rx(t) + W(t)y(t)] - qx''(t) - rx'(t) + W(t)y'(t) + W'(t)y(t) = [p^2 - q]x''(t) + [pq - r]x'(t) + prx(t) + W(t)y'(t) + [W'(t) - pW(t)]y(t). \end{aligned}$$

$$(3)$$

Substituting (2),(3) to (1), we obtain the first order IDE for the y(t). Combining this with the IDE (1), we obtain the following system:

$$\begin{aligned} x'''(t) + px''(t) + qx'(t) + rx(t) &= W(t)y(t), \\ y'(t) + b_3(t)y(t) + b_2(t)x''(t) + b_1(t)x'(t) + b_0(t)x(t) + \\ &+ \int_{t_0}^t [P_0(t,\tau)x(\tau) + P_1(t,\tau)x'(\tau) + P_2(t,\tau)x''(\tau) + K(t,\tau)y(\tau)]d\tau = F(t), \quad t \ge t_0. \end{aligned}$$

$$\tag{4}$$

equivalent to the IDE (1), where $b_3(t) \equiv a_3(t) - p + W'(t)(W(t))^{-1}$, $b_2(t) \equiv [a_2(t) - pa_3(t) + p^2 - q](W(t))^{-1}$, $b_1(t) \equiv [a_1(t) - qa_3(t) + pq - r](W(t))^{-1}$, $b_0(t) \equiv [a_0(t) - ra_3(t) + pr](W(t))^{-1}$, $P_0(t, \tau) \equiv (W(t))^{-1}[Q_0(t, \tau) - rQ_3(t, \tau)]$, $P_1(t, \tau) \equiv (W(t))^{-1}[Q_1(t, \tau) - qQ_3(t, \tau)]$, $P_2(t, \tau) \equiv (W(t))^{-1}[Q_2(t, \tau) - pQ_3(t, \tau)]$, $K(t, \tau) \equiv (W(t))^{-1}Q_3(t, \tau)W(\tau)$, $F(t) \equiv (W(t))^{-1}f(t)$.

Now the first equation (4) squaring [1, p. 28], the second equation multiplied by y(t) add the resulting relations, we integrate from t_0 to t, including parts, while to the integrals with $K(t,\tau)$ and F(t) develop a method of cutting functions [1, p. 41]. We turn to an integral inequality and we obtain estimates for $x^{(k)}(t)$ (k = 0, 1, 2), y(t), from which we have $x^{(k)}(t) = O(1)$ (k = 0, 1, 2), y(t) = O(1). Finally, from (2) W(t) = O(1) should and x'''(t) = O(1)

References

 S.Iskandarov. Method of weighting and cutting functions and asymptotic properties of solutions of integro-differential and integral equations Volterra type // Bishkek: Ilim, 2002, 216p.





THE BETHE-SALPETER TYPE EQUATION FOR THREE-QUARK BOUND STATES

R.G.Jafarov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:tun-mat@list.ru, mdina84@mail.ru

In this report we present some our results of the investigation of multi-quark equations in the Nambu–Jona-Lasinio (NJL)[1] model with chiral symmetry of SU(2)–group in the mean-field expansion. To formulate the mean-field expansion we have used an iteration scheme [2] of solution of the Schwinger-Dyson equations with the fermion multi-local source.

The NJL model has been applied by many authors to study properties of hadrons. Baryons can be constructed either by directly building a bound state of three quarks by solving Fadeev equations or by considering chiral solitons, and possible via solving other equations (see [2]).

The unique connected function in leading order (LO) is quark propagator S. First step of iterations starts via $G_1 = P_1G_0$, $P_1 = \frac{1}{2}S_2\eta^2 + S^{(1)}\eta + \bar{\xi}G_3^{(0)}\xi_2$, where η and ξ are bilocal and triply-local sources, accordingly. S_2 is LO two-particle, and $G_3^{(0)}$ is LO three-particle functions, $S^{(1)}$ -next-toleading order(NLO) single-particle function, accordingly. The solution of corresponding equation

$$(i\hat{\partial} - m_0)G_3^{(0)}\xi + igG_3^{(0)}\xi \cdot trS = 3iS \cdot S \star \xi$$

is: $G_3^{(0)} = -3iS \cdot S \cdot S.$

Second step of iterations is: $G_2 = P_2 G_0$, $P_2 = \frac{1}{4!} S_4 \eta^4 + \frac{1}{3!} S_3 \eta^3 + \frac{1}{2} S_2^{(1)} \eta^2 + S^{(2)} \eta + \frac{1}{2} \bar{\xi} H_5 \eta^2 \xi + \bar{\xi} H_4 \eta \xi + \frac{1}{2} \bar{\xi}^2 G_6 \xi^2 + \bar{\xi} G_3^{(1)} \xi$, where G_6 , H_5 , H_4 , S_4 , S_3 are LO, six-particle, five-particle, four-particle, three-particle, $S_3^{(1)}$, $G_3^{(1)}$ and $S_2^{(1)}$ - NLO, three and two-particle, $S^{(2)}$ next-to-next-to-leading order single-particle Green's functions, accordingly.

From Schwinger-Dayson equation [2] we have

$$-S^{-1}\left[\frac{1}{2}H_5\eta^2\xi + H_4\eta\xi + \bar{\xi}G_6\xi^2 + G_3^{(1)}\xi\right] + ig[trH_5\eta + i\gamma_5\tau^a tri\gamma_5\tau^a H_5\eta]\xi + ig[trH_4 + i\gamma_5\tau^a tri\gamma_5\tau^a H_4]\xi =$$

= $\eta \star G_3^{(1)}\xi + 3i\{S_2 + [S_2\eta + S^{(1)}] \cdot S + S \cdot [S_2\eta + S^{(1)}] + S \cdot S[\frac{1}{2}S_2\eta^2 + S^{(1)}\eta + \bar{\xi}G_3^{(1)}\xi]\} \cdot \xi,$

Consequently the three-particle Bethe-Salpeter equation is:

 $G_3 = G_3^{(0)} + G_3^{(1)} = -3i[S \cdot S \cdot S + S \cdot S_2 + S \cdot S \cdot S^{(1)} + S \cdot S^{(1)} \cdot S] + ig[S \cdot trH_4 + S \cdot i\gamma_5 \tau^a \cdot tri\gamma_5 \tau^a H_4].$

- [1] Y. Nambu, G. Jona-Lasinio. Phys. Rev., Vol.122, 1961, 345 p., Vol.124, 1961, 246 p.
- R.G. Jafarov, V.E. Rochev. Multiquark functions in effective models // Talk given in 16th International Seminar on High Energy Physics QUARKS'2010, Kolomna, Russia, June 6-12, 2010, http://quarks.inr.ac.ru/program.php; R.G. Jafarov, V.E. Rochev. Central Eur. J. Phys., 2, 2004, 367(arXiv: hep-ph/0311339); R.G. Jafarov, V.E. Rochev. Russ. Phys. J., 49, 2006, 364(arXiv:hep-ph/0406333).





DIRECT AND ITERATIVE METHODS OF SOLVING INVERSE HYPERBOLIC PROBLEMS¹

Sergey I. Kabanikhin, Maxim A. Shishlenin Institute of Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Geophysics, Novosibirsk, Russia Sobolev Institute of Mathematics, Novosibirsk, Russia e-mail:Kabanikhin@sscc.ru, mshishlenin@ngs.ru

Methods for solving inverse and ill-posed problems can be divided into two groups: direct and iterative methods [1].

First we describe direct methods, i.e., method are linearization, finite-difference scheme inversion, Gel'fand-Levitan-Krein method, boundary control method, singular value decomposition and timedomain migration. Direct methods allow one to determine unknown coefficients in a fixed point of medium when additional information is given by the trace of the direct problem solution on a (usually time-like) surface of the domain. Direct methods in multidimensional inverse problems seem to be very promising trend of investigation because in iteration algorithms (method of steepest descent, Landweber iteration, Newton-Kantorovich method and so on) we have to solve the corresponding direct (forward) and adjoint (or linear inverse) problems on every step of the iterative process while in multidimensional case solving of a direct problem is hard enough.

In the second part we describe iterative methods. The usual way of formulation of inverse coefficient problem is the operator form [2]

$$A(q) = f$$

where q is the vector-function of desired coefficients, f is the inverse problem data.

The Newton-Kantorovich method

$$q_{n+1} = q_n - \left[A'(q_n)\right]^{-1} \left(A(q_n) - f\right)$$

is very sensitive to the initial guess q_0 , and include the inversion of the compact operator $A'(q_n)$. The Landweber iteration

$$q_{n+1} = q_n - \alpha \left[A'(q_n) \right]^* \left(A(q_n) - f \right)$$

include the solution of the direct and adjoint problem.

The comparative analysis of direct and iterative methods is presented and discussed as well as the results of numerical experiments.

References

 S.I. Kabanikhin, A.D. Satybaev and M.A. Shishlenin. Direct Methods of Solving Inverse Problems for Hyperbolic Equations // VSP, Utrecht, The Netherlands, 2004.

[2] S.I. Kabanikhin. Inverse and Ill-Posed Problems // Novosibirsk, Russia, 2009 (in Russian).

¹ The work by Kabanikhin was supported by RFBR grant 09-01-00746. The work by Shishlenin was supported by Federal Target Grant "Scientific and educational personnel of innovation Russia" for 2009-2013 (government contract No. 02.740.11.0429).





ON A SOLVABILITY OF THE SEMIPERIODICAL BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR LINEAR HYPERBOLIC EQUOTION

Symbat S. Kabdrakhova Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:S_Kabdrachova@mail.ru

We consider on $\overline{\Omega} = [0, \omega] \times [0, T]$ a semiperiodical boundary value problem for linear hyperbolic equation with two independet variables

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t \partial x} = A(x,t)\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + B(x,t)\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + C(x,t)u + f(x,t), \tag{1}$$

$$u(0,t) = \psi(t), \quad t \in [0,T],$$
(2)

$$u(x,0) = u(x,T), \quad x \in [0,\omega],$$
 (3)

where A(x,t), B(x,t), C(x,t), f(x,t) are continuous functions on $\overline{\Omega}$, $\psi(t)$ is continuously-differentiable function on [0,T] and satisfies the condition $\psi(0) = \psi(T)$.

Let's $C(\overline{\Omega})$ be a space of continuous function $u:\overline{\Omega}\to R$ on $\overline{\Omega}$ with norm $||u||_C = \max_{\overline{u}} |u(x,t)|$.

We study the question of solvability of the problem (1)-(3). Necessary and sufficient conditions of correct solvability of semiperiodical boundary value problem are received for linear hyperbolic equation with two independent variables in the term coefficient A(x,t) and T.

Definition. Boundary value problem (1)-(3) is called well posed, if for any $f \in C(\overline{\Omega})$ and cotinuously- differentiable function $\psi(t)$ on [0,T], it has unique solution u(x,t) and the following estimate holds

$$\max\left\{\|u\|_{C}, \|u_{x}\|_{C}, \|u_{t}\|_{C}\right\} \leq K \max\left\{\max_{t \in [0,T]} |\psi|, \|f\|_{C}\right\},\$$

where K is constant, not depending on $f(x,t), \psi(t)$.

Thorem. The boundary value problem (1)-(3) is well posed if and only if, for some $\delta > 0$ the following inequality holds $\left|\int_{0}^{T} A(x,\tau)d\tau\right| \geq \delta$ for any $x \in [0,\omega]$.





ON AN UNIQUE SOLVABILITY OF NON-LOCAL BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE SYSTEM OF LOADED HYPERBOLIC EQUATIONS

Zh.M. Kadirbayeva Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:apelman86pm@mail.ru

The boundary value problem for the following system of the loaded hyperbolic equations

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t \partial x} = A_0(x,t)\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + B_0(x,t)\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + C_0(x,t)u + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} B_i(x,t)\left.\frac{\partial u(x,t)}{\partial t}\right|_{t=\theta_{i-1}} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,t)\frac{\partial u(x,\theta_{i-1})}{\partial x} + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,\theta_{i-1}) + \sum_{i=1}^{m+1} A_i(x,\theta_$$

$$+\sum_{i=1}^{m+1} C_i(x,t)u(x,\theta_{i-1}) + f(x,t), \quad (x,t) \in \Omega = (0,\omega) \times (0,T), \quad u \in \mathbb{R}^n,$$
(1)

$$u(0,t) = \varphi(t), \quad t \in [0,T], \tag{2}$$

$$P_{2}(x)\frac{\partial u(x,0)}{\partial x} + P_{1}(x)\frac{\partial u(x,0)}{\partial t} + P_{0}(x)u(x,0) + S_{2}(x)\frac{\partial u(x,T)}{\partial x} + S_{1}(x)\frac{\partial u(x,t)}{\partial t}\Big|_{t=T} + S_{0}(x)u(x,T) = \psi(x), \quad x \in [0,\omega],$$
(3)

is considered on $\overline{\Omega} = [0, \omega] \times [0, T]$, where $A_j(x, t)$, $B_j(x, t)$, $C_j(x, t)$, $j = \overline{0, m+1}$, $P_k(x)$, $S_k(x)$, $k = \overline{0, 2}$ are $(n \times n)$ matrices, f(x, t), $\psi(x)$ are n - vector functions that are continuous on $\overline{\Omega}$, $[0, \omega]$ respectively and $\varphi(t)$ is n - vector function continuously differentiable on [0, T].

Following [1] we find conditions that guarantee unique solvability of the problem (1)-(3).

- A.T. Asanova, D.S. Dzhumabaev. Unique solvability of nonlocal boundary value problems for systems of hyperbolic equations // Differential equations, Vol. 39, No. 10, 2003, pp. 1414-1427.
- [2] Zh.M. Kadirbayeva. On convergence an algorithm of finding approximated solution of semi-periodical boundary value problem for the system of loaded hyperbolic equations // Mathematical journal, Vol. 10, No. 1(35), 2010, pp. 52-59.







ON A ABOUT NEW ASYMPTOTIC REPRESENTATION OF THE SOLUTION IT IS SINGULAR THE PERTURBED CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR THE ORDINARY DIFFERENTIAL SECOND-KIND EQUATION

T.S.Kalmenov, A.S.Shaldanbaev

Institute of Mathematics, Mechanics and Computer Science, Almaty, Kazakhstan The South Kazakhstan State University, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:kalmenov.t@mail.ru, shaldanbaev51@mail.ru

To study of problems for the is singular perturbed differential equations-equations with small parameter at the higher derivatives-are devoted numerous works. A.N.Tihonova, V.I.Vishika, L.A.Ljusternika, S.A.Lomova, A.B.Vasilevoj's works are basic. The review and classification of these and subsequent works are reduced in [1]. In the majority of existing works asymptotic expansions of a solution of the equations with small parametre in the form of the sum of regular and frontier layer parts [2-4] are considered.

In the given work, using a spectral resolution of a solution of a Cauchy problem for an operator with deviating argument, new effective recurrence formulas of representation of a solution of a Cauchy problem for an ordinary differential second-kind equation with small parametre are received at the higher derivative:

$$L_{\varepsilon}y = \varepsilon y''(x) + a(x)y'(x) + b(x)y(x) = f(x), x \in (0,1),$$

$$\tag{1}$$

$$y(0) = 0, y'(0) = 0.$$
⁽²⁾

Here, and - set real and smooth enough on functions, and small parameter. The basic outcome of work is

Theorem. Let, $a(x) \in C^{n+1}[0,1], b(x) \in C^n[0,1]$, satisfies to conditions

$$a(x) > \alpha > 0, b'(x) < 0, b(1) \ge .$$
(3)

Then for any the Cauchy problem (1) - (2) has a unique solution. This decision will be in a kind

$$y(x,\varepsilon,f) = \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} (-1)^k [B^{-1}D^k f(x)]\varepsilon^k - \psi(x) \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} [(B^{-1}D^k f)'(0)](-1)^k \varepsilon^k + (-1)^n \varepsilon^n y(x,\varepsilon,D^n f).$$
(4)

With an error term, satisfying to an inequality:

$$\|y(x,\varepsilon,D^{n}f)\|_{W_{2}^{\prime}(0,1)} \leq \frac{c}{\alpha} \|D^{n}f\|_{L_{2}(0,1)}.$$
(5)

Here $D^0 = I$, $Df(x) = \frac{d^2}{dx^2}B^{-1}f$, $B^{-1}f = \int_0^x \frac{f(t)}{a(t)} \exp\left\{\int_t^x \frac{b(\xi)}{a(\xi)}d(\xi)\right\}dt$, and $\psi(x)$ problem solution:

$$\varepsilon\psi''(x) + a(x)\psi'(x) + b(x)\psi(x) = 0, \tag{6}$$

$$\psi(0) = 0, \psi'(0) = 0. \tag{7}$$

- A.M. Ilyin. Boundary layer // Results of a science and technics. A series Modern problems of mathematics, The thematic review The Differential equations with private derivatives-5.: VINITI, 1988, Vol.34, pp.175-214.
- M.I.Vishik, L.A.Ljusternik. Regular degeneration and a boundary layer for the linear differential equations with small parameter // UMN., Vol. 12, No.5, 1957, pp.3-122.
- [3] A.B.Vasileva. Asymptotics of solutions of some problems for the ordinary nonlinear differential equations with small parameter at the higher derivative// UMN., Vol. 18, No.3, 1963, pp.15-86.
- [4] S.A. Lomov. Introduction in the general theory of singular perturbations// M: The Science, 1981.





SOLUTIONS BEHAVIOUR OF THE SINGULAR PERTURBED SYSTEM OF THE ORDINARY DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS IN PARTICULARLY CRITICAL CASES

S. Karimov, I. Bektenaliev Osh State University, Kyrgyzstan, Osh

The problem under consideration is as follows:

$$\varepsilon x'(t,\varepsilon) = D(t)x(t,\varepsilon) + \varepsilon [f(t) + B(t)x(t,\varepsilon)] + g(t,x(t,\varepsilon)),$$
(1)

$$x(-t_0,\varepsilon) = x^0(\varepsilon), \|x^0(\varepsilon)\| = O(\varepsilon),$$
(2)

where D(t)- simple classical form of certain initially given matrix A(t), that has its own values $\lambda_k(t)$, k = 1, 2, $f(t) - colon(f_1(t), f_1(t))$; $B(t) = (b_{kj}(t))_1^2$; $\varepsilon > 0$ small parameter; $[-T_0, T_0]$ -segment of actual axis, $t_0 < T_0$; $g(t, x(t, \varepsilon)) = colon(g_1(t, x), g_2(t, x)), g(t, 0) \equiv 0, [t_0, T_0 \subset S_r]$ -open radius circle $r \geq \frac{T_0 - t_0}{2} + d$ ($d \in R, d > 0$) with a centre at the point of $((T_0 + t_0)/2, 0)$; $t \in S_r, \Delta(t, x) = (t, x_1, x_2)$: $t \in S_r, |x_j| < \delta(j = 1, 2), 0 < \delta - const$,

 $\Phi(S_r)$ -space of analytical functions in S_r ,

 $\Phi_0(S_r)$ -space of analytical functions in S_r .

For the solution $x(t,\varepsilon) = colon(x_1(t,\varepsilon), x_2(t,\varepsilon))$ we will look in the class $x_k(t,\varepsilon) \in \Phi(S_r)$ (k = 1, 2) at t.

We will demand the solution of the following conditions:

I. Let $\lambda_k(t) \in \Phi(S_r); f_k(t) \in \Phi(S_r); b_{kj}(t) \in \Phi(S_r); g_k(t, x) \Phi(\Delta(t, x))(k, j = 1, 2);$ in the sphere of $\Delta(t, x)$ there is inequality of $||g(t, x) - g(t, \widetilde{x})|| \le M ||x - \widetilde{x}|| \max\{||x||, ||\widetilde{x}||\}^{\beta}$, where $0 < M, \beta$.

II. $\lambda_1(t) = \alpha(t) + i\beta(t); \quad \lambda_2(t) = \alpha(t) - i\beta(t);$ where $\alpha(t), \beta(t)$ -actual functions, at that a(t) < 0 at $t_0 \le t \le \alpha_0; \alpha(t) > 0$ at $\alpha_0 < t < T_0; \alpha(a_0) = 0, but\beta(a_0) \ne 0$

We will put a question on closeness of the solution of perturbed and unperturbed problems in the case of exchange of stabilities at the segment $[-T_0, T_0]$ at sufficiently small values ε .

III. We will think, that if $(t_1) + t_2$ the inner point of the range H then the harmonic function is $Jm\lambda_1(t_1, t_1, t_2) > 0$, where $H \subset H_0$.

The following is correct.

Theorem. Let conditions I, II, III be fulfilled. In that case for the problem (1), (2) at $t_0 \leq t < \widetilde{T_0} - \widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon)$ there is the only solution and the value $||x(t, \varepsilon)|| \leq cw(t, \varepsilon)$, where 0 < c - const

$$w(t,\varepsilon) = \begin{cases} \varepsilon \quad by \quad t_0 \leq t \leq \widetilde{T_0} - a \quad (0 < a - const), \\ \varepsilon^{1-\lambda} \quad by \quad \widetilde{T_0} - a \leq t \leq \widetilde{T_0} - \widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon) \quad (0 < \lambda < 1), \end{cases}$$

 $\widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon) \geq 0$ continuous function at $0 < \varepsilon \leq \varepsilon_0$ ($\varepsilon_0 - const.$), at that $\lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \widetilde{\delta}(\varepsilon) = 0$.

- K.S. Alybaev. Method of level line research of singular perturbed equations at negative stability // Doctorate dissertation in physics and mathematics: 01.01.02. Zhalal-Abad, 2001, pp. 33-376.
- [2] S. Karimov, G. Anarbaeva, A. Abdilazizova. Research of behaviour of the singular perturbed system of differential equations in a particularly critical case // Researches of integral-differential equations. Bishkek, Issue 40, 2009, pp. 169-181.







A SCHEME OF FRIEDRICHS FOR THE REGULARIZED HYPERBOLIC EQUATION

A.S. Kassymbekova Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kasar08@mail.ru

V.M. Shalov [1] in terms of the Hilbert space shows the possibility of extending the Friedrich's scheme for a wide class of non-selfadjoint equations. In the domain $Q = \Omega \times (0,T)$, $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ – with boundary Γ , $\Sigma = \Gamma \times (0,T)$ consider the problem bounded

$$\begin{cases} u_{tt} - Au = f & on \ Q, \\ u(x,0) = u_0, \\ u_t(x,0) = u_1 & on \ \Omega, \end{cases}$$
(1)

where $A = -\frac{\partial^2}{\partial x^2}$, $D(-A) = H^2(\Omega) \cap H_0^1(\Omega)$, $u_0 \in H_0^1(\Omega)$, $u_1 \in L^2(\Omega)$, $f \in H^{-1}(\Omega)$. Applying "parabolic regularization" the original problem can be written as:

$$L(t)\overrightarrow{u} \equiv \Lambda \overrightarrow{u} + M_{\varepsilon} \overrightarrow{u} = \{0, g\}, \quad \overrightarrow{u}(0) = \{u_0, u_1\}, \tag{2}$$

where

$$\vec{u} = \left\{ u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \right\}, \quad g = \exp(-kt)f, \quad \Lambda = \frac{d}{dt} + \mu I,$$
$$M_{\varepsilon} = \left(\begin{array}{cc} \lambda I & -I \\ A(t) & \varepsilon(A(t) + \lambda I) + \lambda I \end{array} \right),$$

k, λ , μ – some numbers [2]. This formulation of the problem enables the use of variational principle. Where

Assumption 1. a) for almost all t there exists an inverse operator $M_{\varepsilon}^{-1} : H \to H$ is selfadjoint and nonnegative, and; b) there exists a variety $\Phi \subset Y$ and a positive constant $\beta_1 : M_{\varepsilon}(t)\vec{u} \in H$, $(M_{\varepsilon}\vec{u},\vec{u}) \geq \beta_1 \|\vec{u}\|_Y^2$ for almost all $u \in \Phi$ and almost all $t \in [0,T]$.

Assumption 2. a) for almost all t there exists a family of operators $M_{\varepsilon}^{-1/2} : H \to H$ uniformly bounded, and; b) there are many Ψ maps $\vec{u} : [0,T] \to \Phi$ is a subspace $C^{1}([0,T]; H^{*}) :$ $M_{\varepsilon}(t)\vec{u}, M_{\varepsilon}^{-1}\vec{u'}, K(t)\vec{u} \in L_{2}(0,T; H^{*})$ at $\vec{u} \in \Psi$ where $K(t) = M_{\varepsilon}^{-1/2}(t)L(t)$. Notation and description of the spaces Y, H, H^{*} see [2]. The following theorem is proved

Theorem. By virtue of assumptions 1 and 2, there is expansion of C_e is the Friedrichs operator $C\vec{u} \equiv \{L\vec{u}, \vec{u}(x,0)\}$ problem (2) for which the equation $C_e\vec{u} = q, q \equiv \{f, \vec{u}(x,0)\}$ is Euler's equation for the functional $\mathcal{J}(u) = \|\vec{u}\|^2 - 2(((q, B\vec{u}))))$, where B – symmetrical operator [2].

References

V.M. Shalov. Some generalization of spaces Friedrichs // Dokl. NA USSR. Akad., Vol. 151, No. 2, 1963, pp. 292-294.
 J.L. Lions, E. Magenes. Nonhomogeneous boundary value problems and applications // M.: MIR, 1971, 371 p.





ON THE INVERSE PROBLEM FOR SINGULAR STURM-LIOUVILLE OPERATOR

Mehmet Kayalar, Murat Sat Erzincan University, Erzincan, Turkey e-mail:murat_sat24@hotmail.com

In this work, we give the solution of the inverse problem on two spectras for Sturm-Liouville operator with Coulomb Potential. In particularly, we obtain theorem concerning the structure of the difference potentials. Before formulating the main result of this work, we must mention that the analogous inverse problems were examined in the work [1].

We consider the Sturm-Liouville equation with Coulomb Potential [2]

$$Ly \equiv -y'' + \left[\frac{A}{x} + q(x)\right]y = \lambda y, \ \lambda = s^2, 0 < x \le \pi,$$
(1)

with boundary conditions

$$y(0) = 0,$$

 $y'(\pi) - Hy(\pi) = 0,$ (2)

where the function q(x) is real-valued and A and H real constants and $\frac{y(x)}{x} \in C[0,\pi]$. Let $\{\lambda_n, \alpha_n\}_{n=0}^{\infty}$ be spectral characteristics of L with conditions (2).

Consider a new operator

$$\widetilde{L}y \equiv -y'' + \left[\frac{A}{x} + \widetilde{q}(x)\right]y = \mu y, \ \mu = s_1^2, 0 < x \le \pi.$$
(3)

Let $\{\mu_n, \tilde{\alpha}_n\}_{n=0}^{\infty}$ be spectral characteristics of \tilde{L} with conditions (2). Under the assumption, it follows that

$$\max_{0 < x \le \pi} |\widetilde{q}(x) - q(x)| \le C.B$$

where $B = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \{ |\widetilde{\alpha}_n - \alpha_n| + |\mu_n - \lambda_n| \}$ and C is constant.

- [1] A. Mizutani. On the Inverse Sturm-Liouville Problem // Jour. of the Fac. od. Sci. Univ. of Tokyo, 1984, pp. 319-350.
- R.Kh. Amirov, Y. Cakmak. Trace formula for the Sturm-Liouville operator with singularity // Proceeding of the Eight International Colluquium on Differential Equations, Plovdiv, Bulgaria, 1997, pp. 9-16





OSCILLATIONAL SOLUTIONS OF DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS DETERMINATING ON GIVEN VECTOR FIELD

K. Kenzhebaev, Zh. Sartabanov Aktobe State University by K. Zhubanov, Aktobe, Kazakhstan e-mail:aiman-80@mail.ru

Let (θ, ω) -periodic on (τ, t) vector field be given

$$\frac{dt}{d\tau} = a(\tau, t),\tag{1}$$

where $a(\tau, t) = (a_1(\tau, t), ..., a_m(\tau, t))$ – vector-function of variables $\tau \in (-\infty, +\infty) = R, t = (t_1, ..., t_m) \in R \times ... \times R = R^m$, satisfing the condition of periodicity and of smoothness

$$a(\tau + \theta, t + k\omega) = a(\tau, t) \in C^{(0,1)}_{\tau,t}(R \times R^m)$$
⁽²⁾

with integer number vector $k = (k_1, ..., k_m) \in \mathbb{Z} \times ... \times \mathbb{Z} = \mathbb{Z}^m$, \mathbb{Z} - set of integer number, $\omega_0 = \theta, \omega_1, ..., \omega_m$ - periods, $k\omega = (k_1\omega_1, ..., k_m\omega_m)$.

At condition (2) system (1) has characteristic $t = \varphi(\tau, \tau_0, t_0)$ with any initial condition $(\tau_0, t_0) \in \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R}^m$, have possessing properties

$$\varphi(s,\tau_0,\varphi(\tau_0,\tau,t)) = \varphi(s,\tau,t)) \in C^{(1,1,1)}_{s,\tau,t}(R \times R \times R^m),$$

$$\varphi(s+\theta,\tau+\theta,t+k\omega) = \varphi(s,\tau,t) + k\omega, k \in Z^m.$$

We it could be that oscillational way discribes (θ, ω, ω) -periodic on (τ, t, φ) solutions of the system differential equations of type

$$D_a x = f(\tau, t, \varphi, x), \tag{3}$$

determinating on vector field (1), where D_a – differential operator on direct field. Consequently,

$$D_a = \frac{\partial}{\partial \tau} + \sum_{j=1}^m a_j(\tau, t) \frac{\partial}{\partial t_j}$$

The vector-function $f = (f_1, ..., f_n)$ of variables $\tau \in R, t \in R^m, \varphi(\tau_0, \tau, t) = \varphi \in R^m, x = (x_1, ..., x_n)$ satisfy property

$$f(\tau + \theta, t + k\omega, \varphi + k\omega, x) = f(\tau, t, \varphi, x) \in C^{(0,1,1,1)}_{\tau, t, \varphi, x}(R \times R^m \times R^m \times R^n), \quad k \in Z^m.$$
(4)

We shall study problem about existence of solutions $x(\tau, t, \varphi)$ of the system (3), satisfing property

$$x(\tau + \theta, t + k\omega, \varphi + k\omega) = x(\tau, t, \varphi), \quad k \in \mathbb{Z}^m$$
(3*)

under conditions (2) and (4),

$$x(\tau_0, t, t) = u(t) = u(t + k\omega) \in C^{(1)}_t(\mathbb{R}^m), \quad k \in \mathbb{Z}.$$
(30)

In the report there are some properties of solutions of the problem $(3) - (3_0)$, nasessary for solution main problem $(3) - (3_*)$. The sufficient condition of existence solutions of the problem $(3) - (3_*)$ is obtained and in linear case is being the integral type.

This problem to study when linear system is given constant matrix on characteristic of vector field (1).

In report and uniqueness of system (1).





SIMULATION OF THE DYNAMIC STABILITY OF BORING COLUMNS BY THE AT NONLINEAR COMPLICATING FACTORS

Lelya A. Khajiyeva Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:khadle@mail.ru

The problem of stability of movement the boring columns taking into account nonlinear complicating factors is considered. Final deformations of boring columns concern as such factors. They take place in case of action on a column big variable axial forces N(x,t) and turning moments M(x,t) and have nonlinear oscillatory character:

$$EJ_{V}\frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial x^{2}}\left[\frac{\partial^{2}V}{\partial x^{2}}\left(1-\frac{3}{2}\left(\frac{\partial V}{\partial x}\right)^{2}\right)\right] + \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial x^{2}}\left[M(x,t)\frac{\partial U}{\partial x}\right] + \frac{\partial}{\partial x}\left[N(x,t)\frac{\partial V}{\partial x}\right] + K_{1}V = -\frac{\gamma F}{g}\frac{\partial^{2}V}{\partial t^{2}},$$

$$EJ_{U}\frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial x^{2}}\left[\frac{\partial^{2}U}{\partial x^{2}}\left(1-\frac{3}{2}\left(\frac{\partial U}{\partial x}\right)^{2}\right)\right] + \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial x^{2}}\left[M(x,t)\frac{\partial V}{\partial x}\right] + \frac{\partial}{\partial x}\left[N(x,t)\frac{\partial U}{\partial x}\right] + K_{1}U = -\frac{\gamma F}{g}\frac{\partial^{2}U}{\partial t^{2}},$$
(1)

where U, V are motions an elastic line of a column in planes XOY and XOZ, accordingly. The boundary conditions in case of hinge leaning columns are set as equality to zero of motions and the bending moment on the ends:

$$V = EJ_V \frac{\partial^2 V}{\partial x^2} = 0, \qquad U = EJ_U \frac{\partial^2 U}{\partial x^2} = 0, \qquad (x = 0, x = l).$$
(2)

Decisions $V(x,t) = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} f_k(t) \sin \frac{k\pi x}{l}$, $U(x,t) = \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} g_k(t) \sin \frac{k\pi x}{l}$ satisfy to these conditions. The stability of boring column, rotating with a speed ω under the influence of variable longitudinal force $t = N_0 + N_t(t)$, when the equation of its bent axis (1) is led to the nonlinear parametrical equation of a kind:

$$\ddot{f} + C_k^2 (1 - 2\nu \cos \Omega t) f + \alpha f^3 = 0$$
(3)

is investigated. The case of the basic resonance of a boring column is considered. The equation of its excited state is led to the equation Mate-Hills type:

$$\frac{d^2\delta f}{dt^2} + \delta f \left[C_k^2 + 1, 5\alpha r_1^2 - 2C_k^2 \nu \cos\Omega t + 1, 5\alpha r_1^2 \cos 2\phi_1 \cos 2\Omega t + 1, 5\alpha r_1^2 \sin 2\phi_1 \sin 2\Omega t \right] = 0 \quad (4)$$

Character of behaviour of the solution of (4) allows to judge about stability or instability of the basic resonance. It is identical to criterion of stability by Lyapunov. Borders of zones of instability of resonant oscillations of a boring column depending on forms of oscillations and system parameters are defined. Another way the analysis of behavior the decision of the equation (4) is the method of its partial discretization. It allows to receive the analytical decision of the equation Hills type, character is ting behavi our of small indignation δf in time t. For this purpose, the second component of the equations (4) is is discrete in a class of the generalised functions:

$$\frac{d^{2}\delta f}{dt^{2}} + \frac{1}{2}\sum_{i=1}^{n} (t_{i} + t_{i-1})[(C_{k}^{2} + 1, 5\alpha r_{1}^{2} - 2C_{k}^{2}\nu\cos\Omega t_{i} + 1, 5\alpha r_{1}^{2}\cos2\phi_{1}\cos2\Omega t_{i} + 1, 5\alpha r_{1}^{2}\sin2\phi_{1}\sin2\Omega t_{i}) \times \delta f(t_{i})\delta(t - t_{i}) - (C_{k}^{2} + 1, 5\alpha r_{1}^{2} - 2C_{k}^{2}\nu\cos\Omega t_{i-1} + 1, 5\alpha r_{1}^{2}\cos2\phi_{1}\cos2\Omega t_{i-1} + 1, 5\alpha r_{1}^{2}\sin2\phi_{1}\sin2\Omega t_{i-1}) \times \delta f(t_{i-1})\delta(t - t_{i-1})] = 0$$

$$(5)$$

where $i = \overline{1, n}$ - the number of arguments t discrete; $\delta(t - t_k)$ - delta-function of Dirac. The decision of the equation (5) does not represent work. The results of researches received by two methods will be coordinated among them selves.





ON THE CONVERGENCE OF THE METHOD OF LINES AS APPLIED TO THE SOLUTION OF THE PROBLEM FOR THE LINEAR LOADED DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION OF PARABOLIC TYPE INVOLVING NON-LOCAL BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

Zakir F. Khankishiyev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:hankishiyev_zf@yahoo.com

Assume that it is necessary to find a continuous function u = u(x,t) in the closed set $\overline{D} = \{0 \le x \le l, 0 \le t \le T\}$ -i.e. the solution to the following boundary problem:

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} (k(x,t)\frac{\partial u}{\partial x}) + b(x,t)u(x,t) + \sum_{k=1}^{m} b_k(x,t)u(x,t_k) + f(x,t), \ 0 < x < l, \ 0 < t \le T,$$
(1)

$$\frac{\partial u(0,t)}{\partial t} + \alpha_1 u(0,t) + \beta_1 u(l,t) = \mu_1(t), \quad \frac{\partial u(l,t)}{\partial t} + \alpha_2 u(0,t) + \beta_2 u(l,t) = \mu_2(t), \quad 0 \le t \le T$$
(2)

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x), \ 0 \le x \le l.$$
(3)

Here k(x,t) > 0, b(x,t), $b_k(x,t)$, k = 1, 2, ..., m, f(x,t), $\mu_1(t)$, $\mu_2(t)$, $\varphi(x)$ are known continuous functions of their arguments; α_1 , β_1 , α_2 , β_2 the real numbers; $t_1, t_2, ..., t_m \in (0,T]$ the fixed points.

Partitioning the segment into N equal parts by points $x_n = nh$, n = 0, 1, ..., N, Nh = l, and considering equation (1) on the lines $x = x_n$, n = 1, 2, ..., N - 1, we juxtapose problem (1)-(3) with the following problem

$$\frac{dy_n(t)}{dt} = \frac{1}{h} \left[\frac{k(x_{n+1}, t) + k(x_n, t)}{2} \frac{y_{n+1}(t) - y_n(t)}{h} - \frac{k(x_n, t) + k(x_{n-1}, t)}{2} \frac{y_n(t) - y_{n-1}(t)}{h} \right] + b(x_n, t)y_n(t) + \sum_{k=1}^{m} b_k(x_n, t)y_n(t_k) + f(x_n, t), \quad n = 1, 2, \dots, N-1, \quad 0 < t < T,$$

$$(4)$$

$$+b(x_n,t)y_n(t) + \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} b_k(x_n,t)y_n(t_k) + f(x_n,t), \quad n = 1, 2, ..., N-1, \quad 0 < t \le T,$$
(4)

$$\frac{dy_0(t)}{dt} + \alpha_1 y_0(t) + \beta_1 y_N(t) = \mu_1(t), \quad \frac{dy_N(t)}{dt} + \alpha_2 y_0(t) + \beta_2 y_N(t) = \mu_2(t), \ 0 \le t \le T,$$
(5)

$$y_n(0) = \varphi(x_n), \quad n = 0, 1, 2, ..., N.$$
 (6)

Here $y_n(t)$ is approximate value of the solution u = u(x,t) of problem (1)-(3) on the line $x = x_n$.

We derive the conditions under which there takes place principle of maximum for problem (4)-(6). **Theorem.** Let coefficient k(x,t) of equation (1) satisfy the condition $k'_x(x,t) \ge k_0 > 0$, and coefficients $b(x,t), b_k(x,t), k = 1, 2, ..., m, \alpha_1, \alpha_2, \beta_1, \beta_2$ - the conditions

 $b_k(x,t) \ge 0, \ k = 1, 2, ..., m, \quad b(x,t) + \sum_{k=1}^m b_k(x,t) \le 0, \quad \beta_1 \le 0, \ \alpha_1 + \beta_1 > 0, \ \alpha_2 \le 0, \ \alpha_2 + \beta_2 > \varepsilon > 0.$

If the conditions $\sigma \ge -\xi \alpha_2 l/\varepsilon$, $\xi \ge 1/k_0$ hold true, then the solution to problem (4)-(6) is reduced to the solution to problem (1)-(3). At that there takes place the estimation

$$|y_n(t) - u(x_n, t)| \le Lh^2(\sigma + \xi l), \ n = 0, 1, ..., N.$$





SOLUTION OF THE CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR THE VOLTER CHAIN WITH UNBOUNDED INITIAL CONDITION

A.Kh. Khanmamedov, H.M. Masmaliev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

Consider the Cauchy problem for semi-infinite Volter chain

$$\dot{c} = c_n(c_{n-1} - c_{n-1}), n = 0, 1, \dots, c_{-1}, \ c_n = c_n(t) > 0,$$
(1)

$$c_n(0) = \hat{c}_n, \ n = 0, 1, \dots, \ \cdot = \frac{d}{dt}.$$
 (2)

We'll seek the solution in the class of sequences $c_n = c_n(t)$ such that difference expression

$$(ly)_n = \sqrt{c_{n-1}}y_{n-1} + \sqrt{c_n}y_{n+1}, \ n = 0, 1, \dots$$

together with boundary condition $y_{-1} = 0$ generates self-adjoint operator L = L(t) in $l_2(0, \infty)$.

Let $d\rho(t,\lambda)$ be spectral measure of the operator L as known [1], the following formulae is true

$$d\rho\left(\lambda,f\right) = \left(\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} e^{\lambda^{2}t} d\rho\left(\lambda,0\right)\right)^{-1} e^{\lambda^{2}t} d\rho\left(\lambda,0\right).$$
(3)

Suppose $S_n = S_n(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \lambda^n d\rho(\lambda, t)$. Then c_n can be found on by the formulae [1]

$$c_n = D_{n-1} D_{n+1} D_n^{-2}, (4)$$

where $D_{n-1} \equiv 1$, $D_n = |S_{j+k}|_{j,k=0}^n$ is Gankel's determinant.

It proves to be that Gankel's determinants satisfy the differential equations

$$\dot{D}_n = (n-1) D_1 D_n + D_{n-1} D_{n+1} D'_n + 2D_n \sum_{k=1}^{n-1} D_{k-1} D_{k+1} D_k^{-2},$$

It shows that constructed by the formulas (3), (4) function $c_n = c_n(t)$ is vally the solution of the problem (1), (2).

References

 Yu.M. Berezansky. Integrating nonlinear difference equations by the method of inverse spectral problem // DAN SSSR, 1985, Vol.281, No.1, pp.16-19.





ON THE HIGHT ORDER NONLINEAR SCHRODINGER EQUATION WITH A SELF-CONSISTENT SOURCE

A.B. Khasanov, A.A. Reyimberganov Urgench State University, Urgench, Uzbekistan e-mail:ahasanov2002@mail.ru, anwar2006@mail.ru

We consider the problem of integration of the following system of equations

$$iu_t - 4\sum_{k=0}^m \left(\frac{1}{2i}\right)^{k+1} D_x^k(u\Omega_{m-k}) = 2i\sum_{n=1}^N \sum_{j=0}^{m_n-1} C_{m_n-1}^j \left(\varphi_{1,n}^j \psi_{2,n}^{m_n-j-1} - (\varphi_{2,n}^j)^* (\psi_{1,n}^{m_n-j-1})^*\right), \quad (1)$$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial x}\varphi_{1,n}^{j} + i\xi_{n}\varphi_{1,n}^{j} + ij\varphi_{1,n}^{j-1} - u(x,t)\varphi_{2,n}^{j} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x}\varphi_{2,n}^{j} - i\xi_{n}\varphi_{2,n}^{j} - ij\varphi_{2,n}^{j-1} + u^{*}(x,t)\varphi_{1,n}^{j} = 0, \quad (2)$$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial x}\psi_{1,n}^{j} - i\xi_{n}\psi_{1,n}^{j} - ij\psi_{1,n}^{j-1} + u^{*}(x,t)\psi_{2,n}^{j} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x}\psi_{2,n}^{j} + i\xi_{n}\psi_{2,n}^{j} + ij\psi_{2,n}^{j-1} - u(x,t)\psi_{1,n}^{j} = 0, \quad (3)$$

$$n = 1, 2, \dots, N, \ j = 0, 1, \dots, m_{n} - 1,$$

with the initial conditions

$$u(x,0) = u_0(x), \quad x \in R,$$
 (4)

where vector-functions $\Phi_n^0 = (\varphi_{1,n}^0, \varphi_{2,n}^0)^T$ and $\Psi_n^0 = (\psi_{1,n}^0, \psi_{2,n}^0)^T$ are eigenfunctions of the system (2) and (3) corresponding to eigenvalues ξ_n ($Im \ \xi_n > 0$), with multiplicities m_n , n = 1, 2, ..., N. Here

 $\Omega_0(x,t) = -2i,$

$$\Omega_j(x,t) = -2D_x^{-1} \sum_{k=0}^{j-1} \left\{ \left(\frac{1}{2i}\right)^{k+1} u^* D_x^k (u\Omega_{j-k-1}) + \left(-\frac{1}{2i}\right)^{k+1} u D_x^k (u^*\Omega_{j-k-1}) \right\}, \quad D_x = \frac{\partial}{\partial x},$$

$$j = 1, 2, ..., m.$$

The function $u_0(x)$ $(-\infty < x < \infty)$ has the following properties:

 $\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} (1+|x|)|u_0(x)|dx < \infty;$ 1)

2) If t = 0, then systems (2) and (3) has no spectral singularities and in $Im\xi > 0$ it has exactly N eigenvalues $\xi_1(0), \xi_2(0), ..., \xi_N(0)$ with multiplicities $m_1(0), m_2(0), ..., m_N(0)$.

We assume that

$$\frac{1}{(m_n - 1 - l)!} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \tilde{\Psi}_n^{m_n - 1}(x, t) \Phi_n^{m_n - 1 - l}(x, t) dx = A_{m_n - 1 - l}^n(t), \ n = 1, 2, ..., N,$$
(5)

where $A_{m_n-1-l}^n(t)$ is a continuous function, n = 1, 2, ..., N, $l = 0, 1, ..., m_n - 1$. We look for complex-valued solution u(x, t) of the problem (1)-(5), that is satisfy the following assumption:

$$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \left((1+|x|)|u(x,t)| + \sum_{k=1}^{m} \left| D_x^k u(x,t) \right| \right) dx < \infty.$$
(6)

In this work the method of inverse scattering problem is applied to the integration of the problem (1)-(6).

References

[1] V.K. Mel'nikov. Integration of the nonlinear Schrödinger equation with a Self -Consistent source // Commun. Math. Phys. 1991, Vol.137, pp. 359-381.





SOLUTIONS ESTIMATIONS FOR THE LINEAR SYSTEM OF NEUTRAL TYPE DIFFERENCE DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Denis Khusainov Taras Shevchenko National University of Kyiv, Ukraine e-mail:dkh@unicyb.kiev.ua

The important place in modeling processes in economy, biology, population dynamics is occupied with the delay differential equations. They allow to make making more adequate models which can calculate system status in previous moments of time. A system of linear difference differential equations of the neutral type with constant coefficients is considered

$$\frac{d}{dt} [x(t) - Dx(t-\tau)] = Ax(t) + Bx(t-\tau), t \ge 0.$$
(1)

The second Lyapunov method is used with a next type of functional

$$V_0[x(t),t] = x^T(t) Hx(t) + \int_{t-\tau}^t e^{-\beta(t-s)} \left\{ x^T(s) G_1 x(s) + \overset{\bullet}{x} T(s) G_2 \overset{\bullet}{x}(s) \right\} ds.$$
(2)

We denote

$$S[\beta, H, G_1, G_2] = \begin{bmatrix} -A^T H - HA - G_1 - A^T G_2 A & -HB - A^T G_2 B & -HD - A^T G_2 D \\ -B^T H - B^T G_2 A & e^{-\beta\tau} G_1 - B^T G_2 B & -B^T G_2 D \\ -D^T H - D^T G_2 A & -D^T G_2 B & e^{-\beta\tau} G_2 - D^T G_2 D \end{bmatrix},$$

$$\varphi(H) = \frac{\lambda_{\max}(H)}{\lambda_{\min}(H)}, \ \varphi_1(H, G_1) = \frac{\lambda_{\max}(G_1)}{\lambda_{\min}(H)}, \ \varphi_2(H, G_2) = \frac{\lambda_{\max}(G_2)}{\lambda_{\min}(H)}.$$
(3)

We can formulate a next statement on stability of a zero solution of the system (1) and convergence estimations of the solution.

Theorem 1. Let |D| < 1 and there exist positively definite matrixes H, G_1 , G_2 and a parameter $\beta > 0$, in which the matrix $S[\beta, H, G_1, G_2]$ is positively definite matrix. Then the zero solution of the system (1) is exponentially stable in the C^1 metrics.

And for any solution x(t), t > 0 the following convergence estimation is held

$$|x(t)| \leq \left[\sqrt{\varphi(H)} |x(0)| + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_2(H,G_2)} \left\| \stackrel{\bullet}{x}(0) \right\|_{\tau} \right] e^{-\frac{1}{2}\gamma t}, \tag{4}$$

$$\left| \stackrel{\bullet}{x}(t) \right| \leq \left[\left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \tau \sqrt{\varphi_1(H,G_1)} \right) \right) \|x(0)\|_{\tau} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac{|B|}{|D|} + M \left(\frac$$

$$(5)$$

$$+ \left(\sqrt{\varphi(H)} + M\tau\sqrt{\varphi_{2}(H,G_{2})}\right) \left\| \stackrel{\bullet}{\mathbf{x}}(0) \right\| = e^{-\frac{1}{2}\varsigma t},$$

$$M = |A| + |DA + B| e^{\frac{1}{2}\gamma\tau} \left[1 - |D|^{m-1} e^{\frac{m-1}{2}\gamma\tau} \right],$$

$$\gamma = \min \left\{ \frac{\lambda_{\min}(S[\beta,H,G_{1},G_{2}])}{\lambda_{\max}(H)} \quad \beta \right\}, \quad \varsigma = \min \left\{ \frac{2}{\tau} \ln \frac{1}{|D|}, \quad \gamma \right\}.$$

An optimization method for finding functionals of the type (2), based on methods of nonsmooth optimization, is proposed.





INVERSE PROBLEMS FOR THE LIQUID FILTRATION IN ELASTO-PLASTIC REGIMES

Bakhtiyor Kh. Khuzhayorov, Erkin Ch. Kholiyarov, Firuz Z. Elomov

Complex Research Institute of Regional Problems, Academy of Sciences, Samarkand Division, Samarkand, Uzbekistan e-mail:b.khuzhayorov@uzpak.uz, e.kholiyarov@mail.ru, felomov@mail.ru

In this paper we solve an inverse coefficient problem with additional data, given on two points of the earea [0, L], L = const > 0, for elasto-plastic filtration equations

$$\downarrow \frac{\partial p_1}{\partial t_1} = a_1 \frac{\partial^2 p_1}{\partial x^2}, \quad \uparrow \frac{\partial p_2}{\partial t_2} = a_2 \frac{\partial^2 p_2}{\partial x^2}, \tag{1}$$

 p_1, p_2 - current pressure, t_1, t_2 - time, x - linear coordinate, $a_1, a_2 = \text{const}$ - pressure conductivity coefficients, $a_2 \ge a_1$, the signs \downarrow and \uparrow corresponds to pressure decreasing and ingreasing (restoring) regimes, respectively.

In the direct problem for (1) we have the following initial and boundary conditions

$$p_1(0,x) = p_0 = \text{const}, \quad w(t_1,0) = w_0 = \text{const}, \quad p_1(t_1,L) = p_0,$$
(2)

$$p_2(0,x) = p_1(x), \quad \frac{\partial p_2(t_2,0)}{\partial x} = 0, \quad p_2(t_2,L) = p_0,$$
(3)

where $p_1(x)$ - the pressure distribution at last moment $t_1 = T_1$ of pressure decreasing regime - \downarrow , w - filtration velocity. Time scale t_2 starts from $t_1 = T_1$ as $t_2 = 0$.

In inverse problem to determine a_1, a_2, k we pose conditions in two points of [0, L]

$$\downarrow w(t_1, 0) = -\frac{k}{\mu} \left. \frac{\partial p_1}{\partial x} \right|_{x=0} = z_0(t_1), \quad \downarrow p_1(t_1, x_1) = z_1(t_1),$$

$$\uparrow p_2(t_2, 0) = f_0(t_2), \quad \uparrow p_2(t_2, x_1) = f_1(t_2),$$

where k - permeability, μ - viscosity of liquid, $z_0(t_1)$, $z_1(t_1)$, $f_0(t_2)$, $f_1(t_2)$ - given functions, $x_1 \in [0, L]$.

To find a_1 and k we minimize the following functional

$$J_1\begin{pmatrix} m & m \\ a_1, k \end{pmatrix} = \int_0^{T_1} \left[-\frac{m}{k} \frac{\partial p_1^m(\xi, 0)}{\partial x} - z_0(\xi) \right]^2 d\xi + \frac{m}{\mu L} \int_0^{T_1} \left[p_1^m(\xi, 0) - z_1(\xi) \right]^2 d\xi,$$

where overscript m denotes that all values are calculated with $a_1 = a_1^m$, $k = k^m$. For test examples functions $z_0(t_1)$, $z_1(t_1)$, $f_0(t_2)$ and $f_1(t_2)$ are determined by solving corresponding direct problems (1)-(3) with given values of a_1 , k and a_2 . To minimize $J_1(a_1, k)$ we used the coordinate descent method. Comparatively small iterations are used to restore a_1 and k with precision $\varepsilon = 10^{-4}$. The gradient descent method gives larger number of iterations. To accelerate iteration procedure we used so called "ravine" method.

Coefficient a_2 is determined by minimizing the functional with respect $(p_2 - f_j(t_2))^2$, j = 0, 1. The following iteration procedure is obtained

$$\overset{m+1}{a_2} = \left\{ \sum_{j=0}^{1} \int_0^{T_2} \left[\overset{m}{a_2} \overset{m}{w} (\xi, x_j) - \overset{m}{p_2} (\xi, x_j) + f_j (\xi) \right] \overset{m}{w} (\xi, x_j) \, d\xi \right\} \left\{ \sum_{j=0}^{1} \int_0^{T_2} \overset{m}{w^2} (\xi, x_j) \, d\xi \right\}^{-1},$$

where w(x,t) is determined from the corresponding auxiliary problem.

In computational experiments the value of a_2 is restored for only three iterations.





NECESSARY AND SUFFICIENT CONDITIONS OF SOLVABILITY OF THE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEMS FOR THE NONHOMOGENEOUS POLYHARMONIC EQUATIONS IN A SPHERE

B.D. Koshanov

Institute Mathematics, Informatics and Mechanics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:koshanov@list.ru

Let *m* be natural number and in the *n* - dimensional unit ball $\Omega = \{x : |x| < 1\} \subseteq \mathbb{R}^n$ we consider the nonhomogeneous polyharmonic equation [1]

$$\Delta_x^m u(x) = f(x), \quad x \in \Omega, \tag{1}$$

with boundary conditions

$$\frac{\partial^{k_1}}{\partial n_x^{k_1}} u \Big|_{x \in \partial \Omega} = \varphi_1(x), \quad x \in S = \partial \Omega,$$

$$\frac{\partial^{k_2}}{\partial n_x^{k_2}} u \Big|_{x \in \partial\Omega} = \varphi_2(x), \quad x \in S,$$
...
$$\frac{\partial^{k_m}}{\partial n_x^{k_m}} u \Big|_{x \in \partial\Omega} = \varphi_m(x), \quad x \in S,$$

$$2m - 1.$$
(2)

where $0 \le k_1 < k_2 < \dots < k_m \le 2m - 1$.

Theorem 1. Let $f(x) \in C^{\alpha}(\overline{\Omega}), \varphi_s(x) \in C^{2m-k_s+\alpha}(S), s = 1, 2, ..., m$. Then a necessary and sufficient condition for the solvability of problem (1)-(2) in the class $u(x) \in C^{2m+\alpha}(\overline{\Omega})$ for arbitrary m and any $0 \leq k_1 < k_2 < ... < k_m \leq 2m-1$ is the condition:

$$rang A(k_1, k_2, ..., k_m) = rang \left(A(k_1, k_2, ..., k_m), \vec{F} \right),$$
(3)

where $A(k_1, k_2, ..., k_m)$ denotes a matrix of dimension $m \times m$, which stores the rows of matrix A (dimension $2m \times m$) with numbers equal to $k_1, k_2, ..., k_m$:

$$A = \begin{bmatrix} 1 = \frac{0!}{01} & 1 = \frac{2!}{2!} & 1 = \frac{4!}{4!} & 1 = \frac{6!}{6!} & \cdots & (2m-4)!/(2m-4)! & (2m-2)!/(2m-2)! \\ 0 & 2!/1! & 4!/3! & 6!/5! & \cdots & (2m-4)!/(2m-5)! & (2m-2)!/(2m-3)! \\ 0 & 2!/0! & 4!/2! & 6!/4! & \cdots & (2m-4)!/(2m-6)! & (2m-2)!/(2m-4)! \\ 0 & 0 & 4!/1! & 6!/3! & \cdots & (2m-4)!/(2m-7)! & (2m-2)!/(2m-5)! \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots & \vdots \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & \cdots & 0 & (2m-2)!/2! \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & \cdots & 0 & (2m-2)!/1! \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & \cdots & 0 & (2m-2)!/0! \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & \cdots & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

also a vector - columns \vec{U}, \vec{F} (dimension m) with elements $\vec{U} = (u_0(0), u_1(0), ..., u_{m-1}(0))^T$, $\vec{F} = (\frac{1}{\omega_n} \int_S \left[\varphi_1(x) - \frac{\partial^{k_1}}{\partial n_x^{k_1}} \varepsilon_{2m,n} * f \right] dS_x, ..., \frac{1}{\omega_n} \int_S \left[\varphi_m(x) - \frac{\partial^{k_m}}{\partial n_x^{k_m}} \varepsilon_{2m,n} * f \right] dS_x)^T$,

i.e. rang of matrix $A(k_1, k_2, ..., k_m)$ complies with the rang of extended matrix systems:

$$A(k_1, k_2, ..., k_m)\vec{U} = \vec{F}.$$
(4)

References

 A.V. Bitsadze. On some properties of polyharmonic functions // Differential equations. Vol. 24, No. 5, 1988, pp.825-831.





THE OSCILLATION PROPERTIES FOR THE SOLUTIONS OF HALF-LINEAR SECOND ORDER AND HIGHER ORDER DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Saltanat Kudabayeva, Ryskul Oinarov

 $L. \ N. \ Gumilyov \ Eurasian \ National \ University, \ Astana, \ Kazakhstan$

e-mail:rakhimova.salta@mail.ru, o_ryskul@mail.ru

On the interval $I = (a, b), -\infty \le a < b \le +\infty$ we consider the following differential equation:

$$(-1)^{n} (\rho(t)|y^{(n)}(t)|^{p-2} y^{(n)}(t))^{(n)} - v(t)|y(t)|^{p-2} y(t) = 0,$$
(1)

where $1 , v and <math>\rho$ are continuous and n-times continuously differentiable functions on I, respectively. Moreover, $\rho(t) > 0$ for any $t \in I$.

If n = 1, then equation (1) becomes a second order differential equation. Here, different criteria of oscillation of the second order differential equation have been obtained by depending on the integral behavior of the function $\rho^{1-p'}$ at the end points of I.

If n = 1 and p = 2, then equation (1) becomes a second order linear differential equation. We have obtained necessary and sufficient conditions of strong oscillation and of strong nonoscillation of the higher order differential equation.

Next, some spectral properties of the operators in the following form

$$l(y) = (-1)^n \frac{1}{v(t)} (\rho(t) y^{(n)})^{(n)},$$

we have obtained by the applications of our new results.





REPRESENTATION OF THE SOLUTION OF DISTRIBUTED SYSTEMS WITH AFTEREFFECT

Oleksandra Kukharenko Taras Shevchenko National University of Kyiv, Kyiv, Ukraine e-mail:akukharenko@ukr.net

We consider a system of two linear homogeneous second order partial differential equations with constant coefficients and constant delay:

$$\frac{\partial u(x,t)}{\partial t} = a_{11} \frac{\partial u^2(x,t-\tau)}{\partial x^2} + a_{12} \frac{\partial v^2(x,t-\tau)}{\partial x^2}, \qquad (1)$$

$$\frac{\partial v(x,t)}{\partial t} = a_{21} \frac{\partial u^2(x,t-\tau)}{\partial x^2} + a_{22} \frac{\partial v^2(x,t-\tau)}{\partial x^2}.$$

Functions u(x,t), v(x,t) are assumed to be defined for $t \ge -\tau$ and $0 \le x \le l$. Initial and boundary conditions are defined:

$$u(0,t) = \mu_1(t), u(l,t) = \mu_2(t), v(0,t) = \theta_1(t), v(l,t) = \theta_2(t), t \ge -\tau, u(x,t) = \varphi(x,t), v(x,t) = \psi(x,t), 0 \le x \le l, -\tau \le t \le 0.$$
(2)

And "matching conditions" are fulfilled:

$$\mu_{1}(t) = \varphi(0, t), \mu_{2}(t) = \varphi(l, t), \\ \theta_{1}(t) = \psi(0, t), \theta_{2}(t) = \psi(l, t), -\tau \le t \le 0.$$

The first boundary value problem for the system (1) has been solved using a special function called the delay exponential function. A solution is presented in an analytical form of formal series for the case, when matrixes of coefficients are commutative and their eigenvalues are real and different.







PERIODIC SOLUTION OF QUASI-LINEAR SYSTEM WITH CONSTANT COEFFICIENTS ON DIAGONAL

A. Kulzhumiyeva

West-Kazakhstan State University by M. Utemisov, Uralsk, Kazakhstan e-mail:aiman-80@mail.ru

In the report is considered the question of existence of the periodic on arguments $\tau \in (-\infty, +\infty) = R$, $t = (t_1, ..., t_m) \in R \times ... \times R = R^m$ and $\sigma = t - e\tau$ solution $x(\tau, t, \sigma)$ of systems of the type

$$D_e x = A(\sigma)x + f(\tau, t, \sigma, x) \tag{1}$$

with operator $D_e = \frac{\partial}{\partial \tau} + \sum_{j=1}^m \frac{\partial}{\partial t_j}$, where e = (1, ..., 1) - m-vector, $A(\sigma) - n \times n$ -matrix, $f(\tau, t, \sigma, x) - n$ -vector-function, $x = (x_1, ..., x_n)$ – vector.

The condition of periodicity and of smoothness is obtained:

$$A(\sigma + k\omega) = A(\sigma) \in C^{(1)}_{\sigma}(\mathbb{R}^m), \tag{2}$$

$$f(\tau + \theta, t + k\omega, \sigma + k\omega, x) = f(\tau, t, \sigma, x) \in C^{(0,1,1,1)}_{\tau, t, \sigma, x}(R \times R^m \times R^m \times R^n)$$
(3)

for all $k \in Z^m$, where Z – set of integer number, $k\omega = (k_1\omega_1, ..., k_m\omega_m)$.

It is possible to show that with the help of linear ω -periodic and continuously differential transformation $x = B(\sigma)y$ system (1) happens to system with jordanian matrix

$$D_e y = J(\sigma)y, \quad J(\sigma) = diag \left[J_1(\lambda_1), ..., J_m(\lambda_m)\right],\tag{4}$$

where $J_s(\lambda_s)$ – jordanian matrix, corresponding roots $\lambda_s(\sigma) = \alpha_s(\sigma) + i\beta_s(\sigma)$, $s = \overline{1, m}$, possessing properties periodicity, continuous differentiability, certainty of sign and separatiability.

The condition is obtained

$$Re \lambda_s(\sigma) = \alpha_s(\sigma) < 0, \quad s = \overline{1, d}, \quad \sigma \in \mathbb{R}^m.$$
 (5)

In the space $S_{\Delta}(\theta, \omega, \omega)$ -periodic unceasing function $x(\tau, t, \sigma)$ with rate $||x|| = \sup_{R \times R^m \times R^m} |x(\tau, t, \sigma)| \le \Delta = const > 0$ shall define the operator Q:

 $\mathbf{T} = const \neq \mathbf{0} \text{ shan define the operator } \mathbf{Q}.$ (τ, t)

$$(Qx)(\tau,t,\sigma) = \int_{(-\infty,-\infty)}^{(\gamma,\tau)} X(\tau-s,\sigma)f(s,\mathfrak{x},\sigma,x(s,\mathfrak{x},\sigma))d_e(s,\mathfrak{x}).$$
(6)

At condition (3) and volumes

 $|X(\tau,\sigma)| \le \Gamma e^{-\gamma\tau}, \quad \tau > 0, \quad \Gamma > 0, \quad \gamma > 0,$

 $X(\tau, \sigma)$ – matricant of linear system,

$$|f(\tau, t, \sigma, x)| \le H + N|x|,$$

where $H = \sup |f(\tau, t, \sigma, 0)|$ under $(\tau, t, \sigma) \in R \times R^m \times R^m$, N > 0 – of Lipshic constant,

$$\frac{\Gamma H}{\gamma - \Gamma N} < \Delta, \quad \frac{\Gamma N}{\gamma} < 1 \tag{7}$$

easy make sure that operator Q maps S_{Δ} in itself and is compressional. Consequently, the unique still point $x^*(\tau, t, \sigma) = (Qx^*)(\tau, t, \sigma)$ exists.

The still point $x^*(\tau, t, \sigma)$ is continuously differentity on own arguments and the solution of system (1) is proved.

In the report sufficient condition of existence and uniqueness of (θ, ω, ω) -periodic solution of system (1) is obtained.





ON OSCILLATION AND SPECTRUM OF THE GENERAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION

L. Kussainova, M. Otelbaev L.N Gumilev Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:leili2006@mail.ru

Let

$$Ly = (-1)^n y^{(2n)} + \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} (-1)^k \left(\rho_k(t)y^{(k)}\right)^{(k)} - \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} (-1)^k \left(r_k(t)y^{(k)}\right)^{(k)} = 0.$$
(1)

Here $\{\rho_k\}$ and $\{r_k\}$ are systems of non-negative smooth functions defined on $I = [0; \infty)$ such that

$$\sup_{x>0} \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} r_k(x) < \infty, \quad \lim_{x \to +\infty} \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} \rho_k(x) > 0.$$

The aim of this paper is the study of oscillatory properties of the equation (1) and spectrum of the operator L in (1). Lower are given part of results. Let

$$S(x,h|\{\rho_k\}) = \sum_{k=0}^{n-1} h_x^{-2k-1x+h} \rho_k(t) dt, \quad (h > 0, x \ge 0).$$

Denote

$$h^*(x) = \inf \left\{ h^{-2n} : h^{2n} S(x, h | \{\rho_k\}) \le 1 \right\}.$$

For $h = h^*(x)$ the following equation holds

$$\frac{S(x, h^*(x)^{-1/2n} | \{\rho_k\})}{h^*(x)} = 1 \quad (\forall x > 0).$$

Theorem. There exist constants c > 1, δ , $0 < \delta < 1$, independent on $\{\rho_k\}$ and $\{r_k\}$ such that if

$$\frac{1}{c} \lim_{R \to \infty} \sup_{x \ge R} \frac{S(x + 2^{-1}\delta h^*(x)^{-1/2n}, (1 - \delta)h^*(x)^{-1/2n} | \{r_k\})}{h^*(x)} > 1$$

then the equality (1) is oscillatory.

We have also obtained that (1) is non-oscillatory if

$$16c \sup_{x>0} \frac{S(x, h^{\#}(x)^{-1/2n} | \{r_k\})}{h^{\#}(x)} < \eta < 1.$$

Denotes see in [1].

References

 M. Otelbaev, L. Kussainova. Spectrum estimates of one class of differential operators // Trudy Instituta matematiki NAN Ukrainy, Vol.6, No.1, 2009, pp.165-190.





ON THE NUMBER OF EIGENVALUES OF THE DISCRETE SCHRÖDINGER OPERATORS

Saidakhmat N. Lakaev, Dildora A. Latipova, Gulnoza A. Muminova,

Samarkand State University, Samarkand Branch of Academy of Sciences of Uzbekistan, Samarkand, Uzbekistan e-mail:slakaev@mail.ru, dildora_q@mail.ru

Let \mathbb{Z}^d be the $d = 1, 2, ... - \text{dimensional hypercubic lattice and } \mathbb{T}^d = (\mathbb{R}/2\pi\mathbb{Z})^d = (-\pi, \pi]^d$ be the d - dimensional torus (Brillouin zone), the dual group of \mathbb{Z}^d . Let $L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d)$ - be Hilbert space of square-integrable even functions on \mathbb{T}^d .

In the momentum representation the discrete Schrödinger operator $h_{\mu\lambda}(k), k \in \mathbb{T}^d$ being the twoparticle quasi-momentum, is of the form [1, 2]:

$$h_{\mu\lambda}(k) = h_0(k) - \mu v.$$

The non-perturbed operator $h_0(k)$ on $L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d)$ is multiplication operator by the function

$$\mathcal{E}_K(q) = \sum_{j=1}^d \left[2 - 2\cos\left(\frac{K_j}{2}\right)\cos q_j \right].$$

The perturbation $v_{\mu\lambda}$ is an integral operator of rank d+1:

$$(v_{\mu\lambda}f)(p) = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{d/2}} \int_{\mathbb{T}^d} \left(\mu + \lambda \sum_{i=1}^d \cos p^{(i)} \cos t^{(i)}\right) f(t) dt, \quad f \in L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d).$$

The essential spectrum $\sigma_{ess}(h_{\mu\lambda}(k))$ of $h_{\mu\lambda}(k)$ fills the segment $[\mathcal{E}_{\min}(k), \mathcal{E}_{\max}(k)]$, where

$$\mathcal{E}_{\min}(k) = \min_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \mathcal{E}_k(q), \ \mathcal{E}_{\max}(k) = \max_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \mathcal{E}_k(q).$$

Note that according the Birman-Schwinger principle the operator $h_{\mu\lambda}(k)$ has no more than d+1 eigenvalues lying outside of the essential spectrum $\sigma_{ess}(h_{\mu\lambda}(k))$.

For the discrete Schrödinger operators $h_{\mu\lambda}(k)$ on d-dimensional lattice \mathbb{Z}^d , d = 1, 2, ... the following results have been established.

- (i) Let d = 1 or 2. Then for any μ, λ ≥ 0 and μ + λ > 0 the operator h_{μλ}(k), k ∈ T^d has an eigenvalue below the bottom E_{min}(k) of the essential spectrum σ_{ess}(h_{μλ}(k)).
 (ii) Let the operator h_{μλ}(0), 0 ∈ T^d has 1 ≤ n ≤ d + 1 eigenvalues (counting multiplicities) below
- (ii) Let the operator $h_{\mu\lambda}(0), 0 \in \mathbb{T}^a$ has $1 \leq n \leq d+1$ eigenvalues (counting multiplicities) below the bottom $\mathcal{E}_{\min}(0)$ of the essential spectrum $\sigma_{ess}(h_{\mu\lambda}(0))$. Then for any non-zero $k \in \mathbb{T}^d$ the operator $h_{\mu\lambda}(k), k \in \mathbb{T}^d$ has at least *n* eigenvalues (counting multiplicities) lying below the bottom $\mathcal{E}_{\min}(k)$ of the essential spectrum $\sigma_{ess}(h_{\mu\lambda}(k))$.

Remark that in [3] the number of eigenvalues of the discrete Schrödinger operator $h_{\mu\lambda}$ associated to an one particle system on \mathbb{T}^3 have been studied.

- [1] S. Albeverio, S.N. Lakaev, K.A. Makarov, Z.I. Muminov. Comm. Math. Phys., Vol. 262, 2006, pp.91-115.
- [2] P.A. Faria da Veiga, L. Ioriatti, M. O'Carroll. Phys. Rev. E, Vol.3, No. 66, 2002.
- [3] S. N. Lakaev and I. N. Bozorov. Theoretical and Mathematical Physics, Vol. 158, No.3, 2009, pp. 360-376.







ON AN ASYMPTOTICS OF EIGENVALUES OF THE DISCRETE SCHRÖDINGER OPERATORS

A.M. Khalkhujaev, Sh.S. Lakaev Samarkand State University, Samarkand, Uzbekistan e-mail:ahmad_x@mail.ru, shlakaev@mail.ru

Let \mathbb{Z}^d be the d - dimensional hybercubic lattice and $\mathbb{T}^d = (\mathbb{R}/2\pi\mathbb{Z})^d = (-\pi,\pi]^d$ be the d - dimensional torus (Brillouin zone), the dual group of \mathbb{Z}^d . Let $L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d)$ - the Hilbert space of square-integrable even functions on \mathbb{T}^d .

Let $h_{\mu}(k), k \in \mathbb{T}^d$ be the discrete Schrödinger operators, associated to the Hamiltonian of system of two identical particles (bosons), moving on d - dimensional lattice \mathbb{Z}^d , interacting via zero-range attractive potentials $\mu > 0$.

The operator $h_{\mu}(k), k = (k_1, \ldots, k_d) \in \mathbb{T}^d$ acts on $L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d)$ as follows [1, 2]:

$$h_{\mu}(k) = h_0(k) - \mu v$$

The non-perturbed operator $h_0(k)$ on $L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d)$ is multiplication operator by the function

$$\mathcal{E}_k(q) = \sum_{j=1}^d \left[2 - 2\cos\frac{k_j}{2}\cos q_j \right].$$

The perturbation $v_{\mu\lambda}$ is an integral operator of rank one

$$(v_{\mu}f)(p) = \frac{\mu}{(2\pi)^{d/2}} \int_{\mathbb{T}^d} f(t)dt, \quad f \in L_2^e(\mathbb{T}^d).$$

The essential spectrum $\sigma_{ess}(h_{\mu}(k))$ of $h_{\mu}(k)$ fills the segment $[\mathcal{E}_{\min}(k), \mathcal{E}_{\max}(k)]$, where

$$\mathcal{E}_{\min}(k) = \min_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \mathcal{E}_k(q) \ge 0, \quad \mathcal{E}_{\max}(k) = \max_{q \in \mathbb{T}^d} \mathcal{E}_k(q) \le 4d.$$

For the discrete Schrödinger operators $h_{\mu}(k), k \in \mathbb{T}^d, d = 1, 2$, the following results are obtained.

(i) For any $\mu > 0$ and $k \in \mathbb{T}^d$ the operator $h_{\mu}(k)$ has a unique eigenvalue $z(\mu, K)$ lying below the bottom $\mathcal{E}_{\min}(k)$ of the essential spectrum of $h_{\mu}(k)$. The function $z(\cdot, k)$ is monotonously decreasing on $(0, +\infty)$ and $z(\mu, \cdot)$ is even real-analytic function on \mathbb{T}^d . Moreover, for any $k \in \mathbb{T}^d \setminus \{\mathbf{0}\}$ the eigenvalue $z(\mu, k)$ satisfies the relation

$$z(\mu, k) > z(\mu, \mathbf{0}), \mathbf{0} = (0, ..., 0) \in \mathbb{T}^d.$$

(ii) For any $k = (k_1, ..., k_d) \in (-\pi, \pi)^d$ the function $z(\mu, k)$ has the following asymptotics as $\mu \to 0$:

if
$$d = 1$$
 then $z(\mu, k) = \mathcal{E}_{\min}(k) - \frac{\mu^2}{4\cos\frac{k}{2}} + O(\mu^3)$,
if $d = 2$ then $z(\mu, k) = \mathcal{E}_{\min}(k) - b(k)\exp\{-\frac{c(k)}{\mu}\} + o(\exp\{-\frac{c(k)}{\mu}\})$,
 $b(k) > 0, \ c(k) = 4\pi\sqrt{\cos\frac{k_1}{2}\cos\frac{k_2}{2}} > 0$.

In [3], analogously results for the continuous Schrödinger operators have been established.

References

- [1] S. Albeverio, S.N. Lakaev, K.A. Makarov, Z.I. Muminov: Comm.Math.Phys., Vol.262, 2006, pp. 91-115.
- [2] P.A. Faria da Veiga, L. Ioriatti, M. O'Carroll // Phys. Rev. E, Vol. 3, No. 66, 2002.
- [3] M. Klaus, B.Simon. Annals of Physics // Vol. 158, No.3, 2009, pp. 360-376.

where





THE CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR LANGMUIR CHAIN WITH STEPWISE INITIAL PROBLEM

A.Kh. Khanmamedov, M.G. Mahmudova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

The Langmuir chain has important applications in plasma physics and in biology (see [1]). The applications of the method of the universe spectral problem to integration of the Langmuir chain in the case of quick-decreasing initial conditions in the periodic case as well are known well.

The case when the scattering associated with Langmuir chain of difference operator exists only on one side is also of great interest.

Consider the following Cauchy problem for the Langmuir chain

$$c_n = c_n(c_{n+1} - c_{n-1}), \quad n = 0, 1, \dots, c_n = c_n(t) > 0,$$
(1)

$$c_n(0) = c_n^{\wedge}, \ n = 0, 1, \dots$$
 (2)

where the sequence satisfies the conditions

$$\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \left|n\right| \left|c_n^{\ \wedge} - 1\right| < \infty \,, \ c_n^{\ \wedge} \to 0 \ as \ n \to -\infty.$$

We'll look for the solution of problem (1)-(2) that for each satisfies the following conditions

$$\left\|\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} n \left| c_n(t) - 1 \right| \right\|_{C[0,T]} < \infty, \tag{3}$$

$$\|c_n(t)\|_{C[0,T]} < \infty$$

In the paper the formulas allowing to find the solution of problem (1)—(2) are obtained by the inverse scattering problem method

Theorem. The solution of problem (1)-(2) exists and is unique of (3) is fulfilled.

- [1] M. Toda Theory of nonlinear lattices // M. Mir, 1984.
- Yu. M. Berezanskiy Integration of nonlinear difference equations by the inverse spectral problem method // DAN SSSR, 1985, V.I.181, N.1, pp. 216-219.
- [3] M. Ablovits, Kh. Sigur. Solutions and inverse problem method // M. Mir, 1987.





ON THE PROPERTIES OF THE GENERALIZED SOLUTION OF THE CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR HYPERBOLIC EQUATION¹

N.K. Mamadaliev National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:mamadaliev57@mail.ru

Let's consider the equation

$$L_{\alpha}u \equiv yu_{yy} + u_{xx} + \alpha u_y = 0 \tag{1}$$

in domain D of the half plane y < 0, bonded by the characteristics of the equation (1) the modified Cauchy problem with initial conditions [1]

$$u_{\alpha}(x,0) = \tau(x), \quad \lim_{y \to -0} (-y)^{\alpha} \left[u_{\alpha} - A_{n}^{-}(\tau) \right]_{y}' = \nu(x).$$
⁽²⁾

As you see that solution is inconveniently in use, when we solve the boundary value problems of the mixed type. Because it is difficult to get the relation between $\tau(x)$, $\nu(x)$ on the type changing line. Thereupon Karol define new class of generalized functions for the solution of the Tricomi problem for the equation of the elliptic-hyperbolic type.

The author of this paper find the comfortable form of the solution in the class of generalized solutions for the defined above problem (1), (2):

$$u(\xi,\eta) = \int_{0}^{\xi} (\eta-\zeta)^{-\beta} (\xi-\zeta)^{-\beta} T(\zeta) d\zeta + \int_{\xi}^{\eta} (\eta-\zeta)^{-\beta} (\zeta-\xi)^{-\beta} N(\zeta) d\zeta,$$
(3)

where

$$N(\zeta) = \frac{1}{2\cos\pi\beta} T(\zeta) - (-1)^n \cdot 2^{4\beta - 2} \gamma_2 \nu(\zeta).$$

It let to prove the unique solvability of the boundary value problems as for the equation of the elliptic-hyperbolic type, as for the equation of the parabolic-hyperbolic type.

- I.L. Karol. About one boundary problem for the elliptic-hyperbolical equation mixed type // Reports AS USSR, Vol.88, No.2, 1953, pp. 197-200.
- [2] N.K. Mamadaliev. About of presentation solution of the modified problem Cauchy // "Sib. Math. Journal" RAS, Vol.41, No.5, 2000, pp. 1087-1097.







ON THE BEHAVIOR OF THE SOLUTION OF THE PSEUDO-HYPERBOLIC EQUATION WITH NONLINEAR BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

E.M. Mamedov Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:elchin.mamedov@hotmail.com

Consider the problem

ı

$$u_{tt} - \sum_{i=1}^{n} D_i(|D_i u|^{p-2} D_i u) - \alpha \Delta u_t + f(u) = 0, (x, t) \in \Omega x[0, T](1)$$
(1)

$$u(x,0) = u_0(x), u_t(x,0) = u_0(x), x \in \Omega,$$
(2)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{n} (|D_i u|^{p-2} D_i u) \cos(x_i, v) + \alpha \frac{\partial u_t}{\partial n} = g(u), (x, t) \in \partial \Omega x[0, T]$$
(3)

where $\Omega \in \mathbb{R}^n$, $n \geq 2$ is boundary domain with boundary $\partial\Omega$, $u_0(x) \in W_2^1(\Omega)$, $u_1(x) \in L_2(\Omega)$ given functions, f(u) and g(u)- some nonlinear functions, $\alpha > 0$ -some number, $p \geq 2$, $D_i = \frac{\partial}{\partial x_i}$, $i = 1, 2, ..., n, \frac{\partial}{\partial n}$ - is the derivative on the outward normal to $\partial\Omega$.

The problems with linear and homogeneous Dirihlet and Neumann boundary conditions for different pseudo-parabolic and pseudo-hyperbolic equation have been investigated enough (see, for instance [1]-[3]). There exist recent results for the cases when the boundary condition in linear (for example, in [4] the blowing up of the solutions of the Aller equation for p = 2).

In this research we study the question on blow up solutions of the non-linear pseudo-hyperbolic equation when $p \ge 2$. The following theorem is proved for the problem (1)-(3). **Theorem.** Let for any $u \in \mathbb{R}^1$ and some $\alpha > 0$ the conditions

$$2(2\alpha + 1)F(u) - uf(u) \ge 0, F(u) = \int_0^u f(s)ds,$$
$$ug(u) - 2(2\alpha + 1)G(u) \ge 0, G(u) = \int_0^u g(\tau)d\tau, \alpha \ge \frac{p-2}{4}$$

be valid. Then if $\int_{\Omega} F(u_0)dx - \int_{\partial\Omega} G(u_0)ds + \frac{1}{p} \int_{\Omega} \sum_{i=1}^{n} |D_i u_o|^p dx \leq 0, (u_0, u_1) > 0$ and $u(x,t) \in W_2^1(0,T; W_2^2(\Omega)) \cap W_2^2(0,T; L_2(\Omega))$ is a solution for the problem (1)-(3), then there exist $t_0 < \infty$ such, that the relation

$$\lim_{t \to t_0} \left[\|u(x,t)\|^2 + \alpha \int_0^t \|\nabla(x,t)\|^2 \, d\tau \right] = \infty$$

satisfied.

- H.A. Levine. Some additional remarks on the nonexistence of global solutions to nonlinear wave equations // SIAM J. Math. Anal., 1974, pp. 138-146.
- [2] V.K. Kalantarov, O.A. Ladijenskaya. On a collapse for quasi-linear parabolic and hyperbolic type equations // Proceedings of the seminar LOM, 1977, Vol.69, pp. 77-102.
- [3] J.L. Lions. Some Methods to the Solution of the Nonlinear Boundary Problems // M., Mir, 1972.
- [4] E.M. Mamedov. On Behavior of the Solutions of the Initial-Boundary Problems for the Nonlinear Aller Equarion // International Conference on Math. and Mech. Dedicated to the 50th Anniversary of IMM Azerbaijan National Academy of Sciences, Baku, 2009, 206 p.





CONSTRUCTION OF THE GENERAL SOLUTION TO LOADED EQUATION OF PARABOLIC TYPE

Rashad S. Mamedov

Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan

Assume that a controlled process is described by function u(t, x) that satisfies the equation

$$u_{t} = a^{2}u_{xx} + \sum_{k=1}^{m} b_{k}(t, x) u(t, x_{k}) + f(t, x)$$
(1)

inside the domain $\overline{Q} = [0, T] \times [0, 1]$. At the boundary Q it satisfies the following initial and boundary conditions

$$\begin{cases} u(0,x) = u^{0}(x), \\ u_{x}(t,0) = 0, \ u_{x}(t,1) + \alpha u(t,1) = 0, \ \alpha = const > 0, \end{cases}$$
(2)

where $b_k(t, x)$, f(t, x), and $u^0(x)$ are given quadratically summable functions.

As is well known, the solution to problem (1), (2) can be represented in the form

$$u(t,x) = \int_{0}^{1} G(x,\xi,t) u^{0}(\xi) d\xi + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} G(x,\xi,t-\tau) \left[\sum_{k=1}^{m} b_{k}(\tau,\xi) u(\tau,x_{k}) + f(\tau,\xi) \right] d\xi d\tau \quad (3)$$

with the use of source function $G(x,\xi,t)$. Entering $x = x_i$, i = 1, 2, ..., m into both sides of this equation, we obtain a system of integral equations to determine functions $u_i(t) = u(t, x_i)$:

$$u_{i}(t) = \int_{0}^{t} \sum_{k=1}^{m} R_{ik}(t,\tau) u_{k}(\tau) d\tau + \varphi_{i}(t), \ i = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$R_{ik}(t,\tau) = \int_{0}^{t} G(x_{i},\xi,t-\tau) b_{k}(\tau,\xi) d\xi, \ \varphi_{i}(t) = \int_{0}^{t} G(x_{i},\xi,t) u^{0}(\xi) d\xi + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} G(x_{i},\xi,t-\tau) f(\tau,\xi) d\xi d\tau.$$
(4)

Introducing the following notations

 $u(t) = \{u_i(t)\}_{i=1,2,...,n}, \quad \varphi(t) = \{\varphi_i(t)\}_{i=1,2,...,n}, \quad , \quad R(t,\tau) = \{R_{ik}(t,\tau)\}_{i=1,2,...,n}^{k=1,2,...,m},$ system (4) can be rewritten in the form of integral equation

$$u(t) = \int_{0}^{t} R(t,\tau) u(\tau) d\tau + \varphi(t).$$
(5)

Solution to this equation can be rewritten in the form

$$u(t) = \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} v_n(t), \tag{6}$$

where $v_0(t) = \varphi(t), v_n(t) = \int_0^t R(t,\tau) v_{n-1}(\tau) d\tau, n = 1, 2,$





THE VOLTERRNESS OF THE BITSADZE-SAMARSKII TYPE PROBLEM FOR THE MIXED PARABOLIC-HYPERBOLIC EQUATION OF THE THIRD ORDER

A.S. Berdyshev, D.S. Mamutova Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:berdyshev@mail.ru, dariya_mamyt@mail.ru

Let $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^2$ be the finite domain limited at y > 0 by segments AA_0, A_0B_0, B_0B of the straight lines x = 0, y = 1, x = 1, respectively, and at y < 0 by characteristics AC: x + y = 0 and BC: x - y = 1 of the mixed parabolic-hyperbolic equation of the third order

$$Lu = f(x, y), \tag{1}$$

where

$$Lu = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} lu = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \begin{cases} u_x - u_{yy}, \ y > 0\\ u_{xx} - u_{yy}, \ y < 0. \end{cases}$$

Let a smooth curve $AD: y = -\gamma(x), 0 \le x \le 1$, where $0, 5 < l < 1; \gamma(0) = 0, l + \gamma(l) = 1$ be located in a characteristic triangle $0 \le x + y \le x - y \le 1$. Further, concerning a curve AD we will assume that $\gamma(x)$ is twice continuously differentiable function and functions $x - \gamma(x)$ and $x + \gamma(x)$ monotonously increase, moreover,

$$0 < \gamma'(0) < 1, \ \gamma(x) > 0, \ x > 0.$$

In this work we investigate a nonlocal problem for the equation (1) in the domain Ω , in a hyperbolic part of it, the condition of Bitsadze-Samarskii connects values of a tangent of a derivative of the searched solution on the characteristic AC with derivatives along a direction of the characteristic BCof that function on any curve AD, lying in a characteristic triangle ABC, with the endpoints in the origin and on the characteristic BC (in a point D).

Problem A. To find a solution of the equation (1), satisfying to boundary conditions

$$\begin{aligned} u|_{AA_0 \cup A_0 B_0} &= 0, \\ \frac{\partial u}{\partial n}\Big|_{AA_0 \cup AC} &= 0, \\ \left[u_x - u_y\right] \left[\theta_0\left(t\right)\right] + \mu\left(t\right) \left[u_x + u_y\right] \left[\theta^*\left(t\right)\right] = 0, \end{aligned}$$

where n is an internal normal, $\theta_0(t)$ ($\theta^*(t)$) is an affix of a point of intersection of characteristics AC (curve AD) with the characteristic outgoing from the point (t,0), 0 < t < 1, $\mu(t)$ is a given function.

The main aim of the present work is to show that for a correctness and Volterrness of the problem A, crucial importance has a parity between "compression" coefficient $\mu(0)$ in the origin of the derivative in a direction of the characteristic BC and a polar corner α , generated by a curve AD an axis of abscissas.





THE COEFFICIENT OF THE INVERSE PROBLEM FOR NONLINEAR FORTH-ORDER PARTIAL INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION

K. Matanova

Kyrgyz-Turkish Manas University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:kalys_26@mail.ru

Let's consider in domain $G = \{(t, x) : 0 \le t \le T, 0 \le x \le 1\}$ the following equation

$$u_t(t,x) = a_0(Au)_t + a_1(Au) + \sum_{i=0}^3 b_i(t,x) \frac{\partial^{3-i}u(t,x)}{\partial x^{3-i}} + \int_0^t F(t,x,u(s,x))\lambda(t-s)ds + f(t,x)$$
(1)

satisfying to the initial, boundary and additional conditions

$$u(0,x) = u_0(x), \ x \in [0,1], \tag{2}$$

$$u(t,0) = u(t,1) = u_x(t,0) = 0, \ t \in [0,T],$$
(3)

$$u(t, x_0) = g(t), \ t \in [0, T], \ x_0 \in (0, 1),$$
(4)

where $a_0 \neq 0$, a_1 are given constants, $b_i(t,x)$ (i = 0,3), $f(t,x) \in C^{1,0}(G)$, F(t,x,u) are known functions, at that F satisfies a Lipschitz condition with respect to u. It is required to find functions u(t,x) and $\lambda(t)$. In equation (1) A is a differential operator as

$$Au = \frac{\partial^3 u}{\partial x^3} + \alpha_1 \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x^2} + \alpha_2 \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \alpha_3 u,$$

where $\alpha_1, \alpha_2, \alpha_3$ are given constants.

The inverse problem (1) - (4) reduces to the system of nonlinear Volterra operator equations of the second kind using integral equations method and Green function. The sufficient conditions of existence and uniqueness solution of problem are received.

- A. Asanov, E.R. Atamanov. Nonclassical and Inverse Problems for Pseudoparabolic Equations // VSP, Utrect, The Netherlands, Tokyo, Japan, 152 p.
- [2] S.I. Kabanikhin. Inverse and Ill-Posed Problems // Novosibirsk, Siberian Scientific Publishers, 2009.
- [3] K. Matanova. About one inverse problem for pseudoparabolic equation // Scientific works of OshSU. Osh, Vol. 2, 1999, pp. 137-147.





THE PROBLEM OF CONTROLLABILITY FOR THE VIBRATIONS OF BAR

H.F. Guliyev, A.A. Mehdiyev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:abbasmehdiyev@mail.ru

Recently controllability problems are intensively studied for the various partial differential equations. In the present work the problem of controllability for the equation for the vibration of the bar is studies. Assume that the controlled process is described by the equation

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} + \frac{\partial^4 u}{\partial x^4} = 0, \ 0 < x < 1, \ 0 < t < T,$$
(1)

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x), \quad \frac{\partial u(x,0)}{\partial t} = \psi(x), \quad 0 \le x \le 1(2)u(0,t) = 0, \quad u(1,t) = \mu(t), \quad 0 \le t \le T$$
(2)

$$\frac{\partial^2 u(0,t)}{\partial x^2} = \nu(t), \quad \frac{\partial^2 u(0,t)}{\partial x^2} = 0, \quad 0 \le t \le T,$$
(3)

where $\mu(t)$, $\nu(t)$ are control functions.

It needs to determine the time T > 0 and the corresponding controls functions $\mu(t)$, $\nu(t)$ such that corresponding solution u(x,t) of the problem (1)-(3) satisfies

$$u(x,T) = 0, \ \frac{\partial u(x,T)}{\partial t} = 0, 0 \le x \le 1.$$

$$\tag{4}$$

In this work the explicit form of boundary control, which ensures the conditions (4) is a obtained.





DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS OF THE TWO-DIMENSIONAL PARABOLIC RESTRICTED THREE-BODY PROBLEM

A.G. Mammadli

Batabat Astrophysical Observatory, ANAS, Nakhchivan Branch, Azerbaijan e-mail:azad_mammadli@yahoo.com

The present work is devoted to both of the perturbing function development and differential equations of the two-dimensional parabolic restricted three-body problem construction. The abovementioned differential equations of motion are presented in rectangular coordinates.

The existence of Lagrangian and Eulerian partial solutions of these equations in polar coordinates are considered. Lagrangian points dispositions are determined from the nonnegative condition of finite mass relation. Further the differential equations of perturbed motion in osculating elements are presented. Then accepting as independent variable the true anomaly v' of the perturbing body instead of time the latter equations are transformed to a view which is more convenient for the further examination.

At the end of work it is derived the expression of perturbing function for the case when two first members of its development on ascending powers of the distance relation are taken into account. It has the view:

$$R = \frac{\sqrt{2}}{32}\beta\sqrt{a} \left\{ \sum_{n=1}^{3} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{3} A_{i,n}^{0}(e) \cos\left[iM + (2-n)v'\right] + \sum_{i=-1}^{5} A_{i,n}^{2}(e) \cos\left(iM + 2\omega - nv'\right) \right\} + \frac{3}{16} \frac{a}{q'} \sum_{n=1}^{5} \left\{ \sum_{i=-2}^{4} A_{i,n}^{1}(e) \times \cos\left[iM + \omega + (2-n)v'\right] + \sum_{i=0}^{6} A_{i,n}^{3}(e) \cos\left(iM + 3\omega - nv'\right) \right\} \right\}$$

Here a, e, ω , M are the grand semi-axis, the eccentricity, the argument of pericenter and the mean anomaly of perturbing body accordingly, β is a small parameter proportional to the a/q' relation, where q' is the distance from the perturbing body pericenter up to the central body. Coefficients $A_{i,n}^{j}(e)$, (j = 0, 1, 2, 3) are found up to members proportional to cube of eccentricity. At last, calculating partial derivatives of R on elements a, e, ω , M, the differential equations of perturbed motion in these elements are derived.

- [1] G.N. Douboshin. A Celestial mechanics. A main problems and methods // Moscow: Nauka, 1975, 800 p.
- [2] M.F. Subbotin. An Introduction to Theoretical Astronomy // Moskow: Nauka, 1968, 800 p.
- [3] A. Cayley. Tables of the developments of the R. Astron // Society, 1861.





(2)

The 4th Congress of the Turkic World Mathematical Society (TWMS) Baku, Azerbaijan, 1-3 July, 2011

ON NECESSARY AND SUFFICIENT CONDITIONS OF EXISTENCE OF ISOLATED SOLUTION FOR NON-LINEAR TWO-POINT BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM WITH PARAMETER

Bayan B. Minglibayeva

Institute of Mathematics Ministry of education and science, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:anar@math.kz, anarasanova@list.ru

We consider non-linear two-point boundary-value problem

.1 . .

$$\frac{dx}{dt} = f(t, x, \mu), \qquad t \in [0, T], \qquad x \in \mathbb{R}^n, \qquad \mu \in \mathbb{R}^m$$
(1)

$$g(\mu, x(0), x(T)) = 0,$$

where $f: [0,T] \times \mathbb{R}^{n+m} \to \mathbb{R}^n$, $g: \mathbb{R}^{m+2n} \to \mathbb{R}^{n+m}$ are continuous functions.

A solution of the problem (1), (2) is the pair $(\mu^*, x^*(t))$, where continuous differentiable on [0, T] function $x^*(t)$ at $\mu = \mu^*$ satisfies to differential equation (1) and boundary condition (2).

Linear boundary value problems with parameter for systems of ordinary differential equations were investigated in [1, 2]. The algorithm to finding the approximate solution were offered and the criteria of its unique solvability were obtained.

In the communication non-linear boundary value problems with parameter (1), (2) are investigated by parametrization method [3]. The definition of isolated solution for two-point boundary value problem with continuous differentiable data are introduced. The nesessary and sufficient conditions for existence of isolated solution are obtained in terms of functions of right hand side of differential equation and boundary condition.

- B.B. Minglibayeva. Coefficient criteria of unique solvability of linear two-point boundary value problems with parameter // Mathematical journal, Vol.3, No.2, 2003, pp.55-62.
- [2] D.S. Dzhumabaev, B.B. Minglibayeva. Correct solvability of linear two-point boundary value problem with parameter // Mathematical journal, Vol.4, No.1, 2004, pp. 41-51.
- [3] D.S. Dzhumabaev, S.M. Temesheva. A parametrization method for solving nonlinear two-point boundary value problems // Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.47, No.1, 2007, pp. 37-61.







ON THE PROBLEM OF THREE-BODY-POINTS WITH VARIABLE MASSES

M.Zh. Minglibayev, G.M. Mayemerova Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail: mayemerova@gmail.com

The problem of three body-points under Newton interaction is considered. Masses of the points change isotropically by the different laws $m_0 = m_0(t)$, $m_1 = m_1(t)$, $m_2 = m_2(t)$. Equations of motion in the Jacobi coordinates are given by

$$\mu_1 \ddot{\vec{r}}_1 = \operatorname{grad}_{\vec{r}_1} U, \quad \mu_2 \ddot{\vec{r}}_2 = \operatorname{grad}_{\vec{r}_2} U - \mu_2 (2\dot{\nu}_1 \dot{\vec{r}}_1 + \ddot{\nu}_1 \vec{r}_1), \tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\dot{m}_i}{m_i} \neq \frac{\dot{m}_j}{m_j}, \ i \neq j, \quad \mu_1 = \frac{m_1 m_0}{m_0 + m_1} \neq const, \quad \mu_2 = \frac{m_2 (m_1 + m_0)}{m_0 + m_1 + m_2} \neq const,$$

where μ_i are the reduced masses, $\nu_1 = m_1/(m_0 + m_1)$, U is the power function [1]. In general, in contrast to the classical problem of three bodies with constant masses, non-autonomous differential equations (1) do not have any integral. The problem is investigated by the perturbation methods with use of the system of analytical calculations MATHEMATICA [2].

A periodical motion on quasionic section is used as an initial unperturbed intermediate motion. Equations of secular perturbations in the analogues of the second system of the Poincare elements [1, 3] have the form

$$\dot{\xi}_{i} = \frac{\partial R_{i \,\text{sec}}}{\partial \eta_{i}}, \quad \dot{\eta}_{i} = -\frac{\partial R_{i \,\text{sec}}}{\partial \xi_{i}}, \\
\dot{p}_{i} = \frac{\partial R_{i \,\text{sec}}}{\partial q_{i}}, \quad \dot{q}_{i} = -\frac{\partial R_{i \,\text{sec}}}{\partial p_{i}}, \quad i = 1, 2$$
(2)

here $R_{i \text{ sec}}$ are the corresponding expressions of the secular disturbing functions.

Masses of bodies are assumed to be comparable, but the laws of mass changing are arbitrary. Eccentricities and inclinations of the orbits of bodies are the small quantities. In expression of the perturbing function the members till the second degree inclusively concerning small quantities are preserved. And even in this case analytical calculations are very cumbersome and difficult foreseeable.

Under these assumptions the expression of the disturbing function in analogues of the second system of the Poincare elements is obtained. Equations of secular perturbations are obtained and solutions in the first approximation by the Picard method are analyzed.

- M.J. Minglibaev. Dynamics of nonstationary gravitating systems // Almaty, Kazakh National University, 2009, 209 p.
- [2] A.N. Prokopenya Solution of physical problems with the use of MATHEMATICA // Brest, BSTU Publishing, 2005, 260 p.
- [3] M. Minglibayev, G. Mayemerova. Secular perturbations in the three-body problem with variable masses // The Sixth International Workshop, Computer algebra systems in teaching and research, Siedlce Wydawnictwo Collegium Mazovia, 2011, pp. 198-204.





ON THE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE OPERATOR-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION OF THE THIRD ORDER

S.S. Mirzoyev, S.F. Babayeva Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:sabirmirzoyev@mail.ru, seva_babaeva@mail.ru

Let *H* is separable Hilbert space, *A* is the self- adjoined positive-defined operator in *H*, H_{γ} – a scale of Hilbert spaces, generated by operator *A*, i.e. $H_{\gamma} = D(A^{\gamma})$, $(x, y)_{\gamma} = (A^{\gamma}x, A^{\gamma}y)$, $x, y \in H_{\gamma}$ $(\gamma \ge 0)$, $H_0 = H$.

Let's determine Hilbert spaces

$$L_{2}(R_{+};H) = \left\{ \|f\|_{L_{2}(R_{+};H)} = \left(\int_{0}^{+\infty} \|f(t)\|_{H}^{2} dt \right)^{1/2} < \infty \right\},\$$

$$W_{2}^{3}(R_{+};H) = \left\{ u(t) : u'''(t), A^{3}u(t) \in L_{2}(R_{+};H), \\ \||u|\| = \left(||u'''||_{L_{2}(R_{+};H)} + \|A^{3}u\|_{L_{2}(R_{+};H)}^{2} + \|u'(0)\|_{3/2}^{2} \right)^{1/2} \right\}.$$

In this paper the conditions are obtained for resolvability of the boundary value problem

$$\frac{d^3u}{dt^3} + A^3u + \sum_{j=1}^2 A_j u^{(3-j)} = f,$$
(1)

$$u'(0) = Ku = 0, (2)$$

where $f(t) \in L_2(R_+; H)$, $u(t) \in W_2^3(R_+; H)$, $A_j A^{-j}$, $j = \overline{1,3}$ are bounded operators in H, and $K: W_2^3(R_+; H) \to H_{3/2}$.

As we see, the boundary condition and the equation are perturbed by some operator.

Theorem. Let A be the self-adjoined positive-defined operator, $B_j = A_j A^{-j}$, $j = \overline{1, 2}$, are bounded, $\kappa = \|K\|_{W_2^3(R_+;H) \to H_{3/2}} < 2^{-1/6}$ and

$$q = \sum_{j=1}^{2} \|B_j\| < 2^{1/6} \left(1 - 2^{1/6} \kappa\right)^{-1/2}.$$

Then for the $f \in L_2(R_+; H)$, there is existed unique $u \in W_2^3(R_+; H)$, such that it satisfies the boundary condition as $\lim_{t\to 0} ||u'(t) - Ku||_{H_{3/2}} = 0$ and the equation (1) almost everywhere.





ON THE DISCRETE SPECTRUM OF TWO-PARTICLE DISCRETE SCHRÖDINGER OPERATORS

Z.I.Muminov Samarkand State University, Uzbekistan Samarkand Division of Academy of Sciences of Uzbekistan e-mail:zimuminov@mail.ru

The fundamental difference between multiparticle discrete and continuous Schrödinger operators is that in the discrete case the analogue of the Laplasian $-\Delta$ is not rotationally invariant.

Due to this fact, the Hamiltonian of a system does not separate into two parts, one relating to the center-of-motion and other one to the internal degrees of freedom. In particular, such a handy characteristics of inertia as mass is not available. Moreover, such a natural local substituter as the effective mass-tensor (of a ground state) depends on the quasi-momentum of the system and, in addition, it is only semi-additive (with respect to the partial order on the set of positive definite matrices). This is the so-called *excess mass* phenomenon for lattice systems (see, e.g., [4] and [5]): the effective mass of the bound state of an N-particle system is greater than (but, in general, not equal to) the sum of the effective masses of the constituent quasi-particles.

The two-particle problem on lattices can be reduced to an effective one-particle problem by using the Gelfand transform instead: the underlying Hilbert space $\ell^2((\mathbb{Z}^d)^2)$ is decomposed to a direct von Neumann integral, associated with the representation of the discrete group \mathbb{Z}^d by the shift operators on the lattice and then the total two-body Hamiltonian appears to be decomposable as well. In contrast to the continuous case, the corresponding fiber Hamiltonians $h^d(k)$ associated with the direct decomposition depend parametrically on the internal binding k, the quasi-momentum, which ranges over a cell of the dual lattice. As a consequence, due to the loss of the spherical symmetry of the problem, the spectra of the family $h^d(k)$ turn out to be rather sensitive to the variation of the quasimomentum k, $k \in \mathbb{T}^d \equiv (-\pi, \pi]^d$.

For example, in [1, 3] it is established that the discrete Schrödinger operator $h^3(k)$, with a zerorange attractive potential, for all non-zero values of the quasi-momentum $0 \neq k \in \mathbb{T}^3$, has a unique eigenvalue below the essential spectrum if $h^d(0)$ has a virtual level (see [1]) or an eigenvalue below its essential spectrum (see [3]).

The similar result is obtained in [2], which is the (variational) proof of existence of the discrete spectrum below the bottom of the essential spectrum of the fiber Hamiltonians $h^{d}(k)$ for all nonzero values of the quasi-momentum $0 \neq k \in \mathbb{T}^{d}$, provided that the Hamiltonian $h^{d}(0)$ has either a virtual level (in dimensions of three and four) or a threshold eigenvalue (in all dimensions $d \geq 5$). We emphasize that the authors of [2] considered more general class of two-particle discrete Hamiltonians interacting via short-range pair potentials.

In this paper, we explore the some spectral properties of some d - dimensional two-particle discrete Schrödinger operator $h^{d}(k) = h_{0}^{d}(k) + \mathbf{v}, k \in \mathbb{T}^{d}, k$ being the two-particle quasi-momentum, corresponding to the energy operator H^{d} of the system of two quantum particles moving on the ddimensional lattice \mathbb{Z}^{d} with the short-range potential \mathbf{v} . In the case $k \in \mathbb{T}^{d} \setminus (-\pi, \pi)^{d}$, we establish necessary and sufficient conditions for the existence of infinite number eigenvalues of the operator $h^{d}(k)$.

- [1] S.Albeverio, S.N. Lakaev, Z.I. Muminov // Ann. Henri Poincaré, Vol.5, 2004, pp. 743-772.
- [2] S.Albeverio, S.N.Lakaev, K.A.Makarov, Z.I.Muminov // Comm. Math. Phys., Vol.262, 2006, pp. 91-115.
- [3] P.A.Faria da Viega, L.Ioriatti, M.O'Carrol // Phys. Rev. E(3), Vol.66, 016130, 2002, 9 pp.
- [4] D.C.Mattis // Rev. Modern Phys., Vol.58, 1986, pp. 361-379.
- [5] A.Mogilner // Advances in Soviet Mathematics, Vol.5, 1991, pp. 139-194.





CRITERION OF THE SPECTRUM DISCREETNESS OF A CLASS OF HYPERBOLIC TYPE DIFFERENTIAL OPERATORS

Mussakan B.Muratbekov, Madi M.Muratbekov Taraz State Pedagogical Institute, Taraz, Kazakhstan e-mail:musahan.m@mail.ru, madimm@list.ru

Let $\Omega = \{(x,y) : -\pi < x < \pi, -\infty < y < \infty\}$. In the space $L_2(\Omega)$ we consider the differential operator of hyperbolic type

$$(L + \mu E)u = u_{xx} - u_{yy} + a(y)u_x + c(y)u + \mu u$$
(1)

with the domain D(L) of infinitely differentiable functions satisfying the conditions $u(-\pi, y) = u(\pi, y)$, $u_x(-\pi, y) = u_x(\pi, y)$ and compactly supported with respect the variable y.

Everywhere, we assume that the coefficients a(y), c(y) satisfy the condition

 $|a(y)| \ge \delta_0 > 0, \ c(y) \ge \delta_0 > 0$ are continuous functions in $R(-\infty,\infty)$.

Note that the operator L admits closure in the space $L_2(\Omega)$ which will be again denoted by L.

Theorem 1. Let the condition i) be fulfilled. Then the operator $L + \mu E$ is continuously invertible in the space $L_2(\Omega)$ for sufficiently large $\mu > 0$.

This result covers a case when the coefficients are unbounded. The questions of existence of the resolvent in case of pseudodifferential operators have been well studied and ascertained typical problems connected with behaviour of coefficients [1,2].

Theorem 2. Let the condition i) be fulfilled. Then the resolvent of the operator L is compact in the space $L_2(\Omega)$ if and only if for any $\omega > 0$

$$\lim_{|y|\to\infty}\int_{y}^{y+\omega}c(t)dt=\infty.$$

Before, such a theorem was obtained by A.M.Molchanov [3] for the Sturm-Liouville operator.

- [1] M. Otelbaev. Coersitive estimates and separability theorems of elliptic equations in \mathbb{R}^n //Trudy Matem., Instituta AN SSSR, Vol.161, pp.195-217 (Russian).
- [2] K.H. Boimatov. The theorems of separability, weight spaces and their application // Trudy Matem., Instituta AN SSSR, Vol.170, pp. 37-76 (Russian).
- [3] A.M.Molchanov. On conditions of the spectrum discreteness of self-conjugate second order differential equations // Trudy Moscovskogo Matematicheskogo Obshestva, Vol.2, 1953 pp. 169-200.




ON AN INVERSE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR THE THIRD ORDER PSEUDOHYPERBOLIC EQUATION WITH INTEGRAL CONDITION

G.K.Namazov, Y.T. Mehraliyev, A.M. Guliyeva Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:yashar_aze@mail.ru

For the equation

$$u_{tt}(x,t) - \alpha u_{txx}(x,t) - \beta u_{xx}(x,t) = a(t)u(x,t) + f(x,t)$$
(1)

in the domain $D_T = \{(x,t) : 0 \le x \le 1, 0 \le t \le T\}$ consider an inverse boundary value problem under the conditions:

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x), \ u_t(x,T) = \psi(x) \quad (0 \le x \le 1),$$
(2)

$$u_x(0,t) = 0, \quad \int_0^1 u(x,t)dx = 0 \quad (0 \le t \le T),$$
(3)

$$u(0,t) = h(t) \quad (0 \le t \le T),$$
(4)

where $\alpha > 0, \beta > 0$ are the given numbers, $f(x,t), \varphi(x), \psi(x), h(t)$ are the given functions, u(x,t) and a(t) are the sought functions.

Definition. We call the pair $\{u(x,t), a(t)\}$ of the functions u(x,t) and a(t) possessing the following properties the classic solution of the inverse boundary value problem (1)-(4).

- (1) the function u(x,t) is continuous in D_T together with all its derivatives contained in equation (1):
- (2) the function a(t) is continuous on [0, T];
- (3) all the conditions (1)-(4) are satisfied in the ordinary sense.

In paper at first the given problem is reduced to the equivalent problem (in definite sense) and a theorem on the existence and uniqueness of the solution is proved for it. Further, using this fact, the existence and uniqueness of the classic solution of the input problem is proved.





A NON-LINEAR GROUND STATE PROBLEM

Sh. M. Nasibov Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:nasibov_sharif@hotmail.com

Using standard compactness and symmetrization methods (see. e.g., [L1] and also [L2]) one proves Lemma. *The infimum*

$$\inf\left\{\frac{\int_{R^n} |\nabla u|^2 \, dx}{\frac{1}{2} \iint_{R^n \times R^n} \frac{|u(x)|^2 |u(y)|^2}{|x-y|^2} \, dx \, dy} : u \in H^1(R^n), \|u\| = 1\right\}$$

is strictly positive and there exists a symmetric decreasing $\psi \in H^1(\mathbb{R}^1)$ with $\|\psi\| = 1$ which minimizes the ratio.

Theorem. One has

$$\int_{\mathbb{R}^n} |\nabla \psi_0|^2 \, dx = \min\left\{ \int_{\mathbb{R}^n} |\nabla u|^2 \, dx : \frac{1}{2} \iint_{\mathbb{R}^n \times \mathbb{R}^n} \frac{|u(x)|^2 |u(y)|^2}{|x-y|^2} dx dy = ||u||^2 \right\},$$

where ψ_0 -the ground state of the following equation

$$-\Delta\psi_0 - \int_{R^n} \frac{|\psi_0(y)|^2}{|x-y|^2} dy\psi_0 = -\psi_0$$

- E.H. Lieb. Existence and uniqueness of the minimizing solution of Choquard's nonlinear equation // Studies in Appl. Math. Vol.57, No.2, 1977, pp. 93-105.
- [2] E.H. Lieb. Sharp constants in the Hardy-Littlewood-Sobolev and related intequalities // Ann. of Math., Vol.118, No.2, 1983, pp. 349-374.





ELLIPTIC EQUATION RELATIVELY TO THE DOMAIN EVOLUTION

A.A. Niftiyev, C.I. Zeynalov, E.H. Mammadhasanov Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:aniftiyev@yahoo.com

Let's define the speed of the evolution of the domain U(t) as

$$\frac{\partial P_{U(t)}(x)}{\partial t} = \lim_{\Delta t \to 0} \frac{P_{U(t+\Delta t)}(x) - P_{U(t)}(x)}{\Delta t}, \quad x \in S_B.$$

$$\tag{1}$$

If there exist such domains $V_1(t)$, $V_2(t) \in M$, $t \in [0, T]$, that

$$\frac{\partial P_{U(t)}(x)}{\partial t} = P_{V_{1(t)}}(x) - P_{V_{2}(t)}(x),$$

then we write $v(t) = \dot{U}(t) = (V_1(t), V_2(t)) \in M \times M$.

Let $D \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ a given by bounded domain with smooth boundary S and convex domain $U \subset \mathbb{R}^m$ depends on the parameter $y = (y_1, y_2, ..., y_n) \in D$, i.e. . We'll write $U \in C(D)$, if support function $P_{U(y)}(x)$ of the domain U(y) continues on y in D. Analogically we can define $U \in C^1(D)$.

Consider the boundary problem

$$\Delta U = -F(y), \quad y \in D, \tag{2}$$

$$U(\xi) = G(\xi), \quad \xi \in S. \tag{3}$$

Let $F(y) = (F_1(y), F_2(y)) \in M \times M, y \in D, G(\xi) = (G_1(\xi), G_2(\xi)) \in M \times M, \xi \in S.$

In the difference of traditional problems, here solution of the problem (2) is convex domain $U = U(y) \in M$ or pair of the convex domains $U(y) = (U_1(y), U_2(y)) \in M \times M$. For the of simplicity, this type functions we'll call domain function. Equation (2) and boundary condition we understand as equality pair of the domains.

Theorem 1. Let $F_i \in C^1(D) \cap C(\overline{D})$ and $G_i \in C(S)$, i = 1, 2. Then there exists unequal solution $U(y) = (U_1(y), U_2(y)) \in M \times M, y \in D$ of the problem (2), (3).

It is interesting to investigate problem (2), (3), when F(y), $G(\xi)$ are convex domains from \mathbb{R}^m . There is, that in this case solution of the problem (2), (3) also is the convex set from.

Theorem 2. Let for any $y \in D$ and $\xi \in S F(y)$, $G(\xi)$ be convex closed set and $F \in C^1(D) \cap C(\overline{D}), G \in C(S)$. Then there exists domain function $U = U(y) \subset R^m$ solution of the problem (2), (3) and this solution is convex closed set.

Theorem 3. (Maximum principle). Let U = U(y) be harmonic inD, $U \in C(\overline{D})$ and $U(\xi)$, $\xi \in S$ be convex close bounded domains. If there exists domains G_0 , $G_1 \subset R^m$, such that

$$G_0 \subset U(\xi) \subset G_1, \ \forall \xi \in S,\tag{4}$$

Then, for any $y \in D$

$$G_0 \subset U(y) \subset G_1.$$

References

[1] V.F. Demyanov, A.M. Rubinov. Basises of non-smooth analyses and quasidifferential calculas // M.: Nauka, 1990.

 ^[2] A.A. Niftiyev, E.R. Akhmadov. Variational statement of an inverse problem for a domain // Journal Differential Equation, Vol.43, No.10, 2007, pp.1410-1416.





SPECTRAL ANALYSIS OF NON-SELFADJOINT MATRIX STURM-LIOUVILLE EQUATIONS

Murat Olgun, Yelda Aygar Kirikkale University, Kirikkale, Turkey, Ankara University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:olgunmurat@hotmail.com, yaygar@science.ankara.edu.tr

Let *E* be an n-dimensional $(n < \infty)$ Euclidian space with the norm $\|.\|$. We denote by $L^2(\mathbb{R}_+, E)$ the Hilbert space of vector-valued functions with the values in *E*. In the space $L^2(\mathbb{R}_+, E)$ we consider the BVP

$$-y'' + Q(x)y = \lambda^2 y , \quad x \in \mathbb{R}_+ , \qquad (1)$$

$$y\left(0\right) = 0 , \qquad (2)$$

where Q is a non-selfadjoint matrix-valued function (i.e. $Q \neq Q^*$). It is clear that, the BVP (1)-(2) is a non-selfadjoint. In this work we investigate the principal functions corresponding to the eigenvalues and the spectral singularities of the boundary value problem (1)-(2).

- [1] Z.S. Agranovich, V.A. Marchenko. The Inverse Problem of Scattering Theory // Gordon and Breach, 1965.
- [2] E. Bairamov, O. Cakar, A.O. Celebi. Quadratic pencil of Schrödinger operators with spectral singularities: Discrete spectrum and principal functions // J. Math. Anal. Appl., Vol.216, 1997, pp. 303-320.
- [3] E. Bairamov, O. Cakar, A.M. Krall. An eigenfunction expansion for a quadratic pencil of a Schrödinger operator with spectral singularities // J. Differential Equations, Vol.151, 1999, pp. 268-289.
- [4] E. Bairamov, O. Cakar, A.M. Krall. Non-selfadjoint difference operators and Jacobi matrices with spectral singularities // Math. Nachr., Vol.229, 2001, pp. 5-14.
- [5] E. Bairamov, A.O. Celebi. Spectrum and spectral expansion for the non-selfadjoint discrete Dirac operators // Quart. J. Math. Oxford Ser., Vol.50, No.2, 1999, pp. 371-384.
- [6] E. Bairamov, C. Coskun. The structure of the spectrum a system of difference equations // Appl. Math. Lett. Vol.18, 2005, pp. 384-394.
- [7] S. Clark, F. Gesztesy. Weyl-Titchmarsh M-function asymptotics, local uniqueness results, trace formulas and Borgtype theorems for Dirac operators // Trans. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.354, 2002, pp. 3475-3534.
- [8] S. Clark, F. Gesztesy, W. Renger. Trace formulas and Borg-type theorems for matrix-valued Jacobi and Dirac finite difference operators // J. Differential Equations, Vol.219, 2005, pp. 144-182.
- M. Olgun, C. Coskun. Non-selfadjoint matrix Sturm-Liouville operators with spectral singularities // Appl. Math. Comput., Vol.216, No.8, 2010, pp. 2271–2275.





ABOUT THE METHOD FOR THE STUDY OF CONDITIONALLY WELL-POSED BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Nurbek A. Orshubekov, Serikkaly E. Temirbolat Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:orshubekov@tcp.kz

The method consists two ways: direct and inverse. Each way consists of problems of three equations. The first level of a forward way is a problem for the equations partial private derivatives (an initial problem), which after applying the integral Laplace-Fourier transform becomes a problem of the second level – the boundary value problem for a parameterized system of ordinary differential equations (ODU), and the latter moves to the third level – to the system of linear algebraic equations (S.L.A.E.).

The problem is considered incorrect, when determinant S.L.A.E. $\Delta \equiv = \Delta(b, p, \omega) = 0$ and Rep << 1– is arbitrarily large, thus arguments specify dependence Δ accordingly from factors of an initial problem and from parameters of Laplace and Fourier transformation. Depending on structure of set P_0 (zero $\Delta = 0$) a condition of incorrectness of H, we will divide into three types: "the coefficient" – when P_0 is defined by an element b, and parameters p and ω - are free; "root" – when p and ω_j are fastened; " coefficient – root" - some part from parameters of integrated transformations is fixed, as there is a parity between elements b. "Coefficient" condition defines "incorrectness area O". So, as a result of a forward way tasks in view are allocated incorrectly. In reverse motion these problems are solved.

Find the solution of the degenerate S.L.A.E. – The first level of reverse, with his help recovering solution for the ODE, and then by calling (by using the inverse transformations) the latter is determined by the original problem.

By virtue of the degeneracy of S.L.A.E. there is normal solution C_H with the conditions of solvability or pseudonormalization decision C_H – without him. Value problem for ODEs, if defined with C_H , then it satisfies the system of equations and boundary equalities are satisfied only where C_H is defined. These two decisions: the decision S.L.A.E. C_H and the corresponding solution V_H – the boundary value problem is called conditional fine or normal. If the basis is C_H , then its approximate solution with accuracy of the method of least squares.

When the original problem is solved, there is difficulty encountered in accessing the condition of solvability and the meaning C_H , therefore proposed a non-standard way of treatment. The resulting solution satisfies the system of differential equations and the homogeneous initial condition, and the equality of the boundary condition may have the right parts, mismatched with the original.

In addition to constructability, the advantage of the method in the fact that obviously written solvability conditions. And the kind of decision, from which can be directly obtained estimates of stability.

The method is implemented by the problem of heat transfer and mass transfer for generalized Moise-Teoderesku and for Maxwell.







COERSIVE ESTIMATE FOR THE SOLUTION OF THE DIFFERENTIAL SECOND-ORDER EQUATION AND ITS APPLICATIONS

K. N. Ospanov

L.N. Gumilev Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:ospanov.k@mail.ru

Let $1 \leq p < \infty$. Consider the second order differential equation

$$ly = -y'' + r(x)y' + q(x)y = f(x),$$
(1)

where $f \in L_p \equiv L_p(R)$, $R = (-\infty, +\infty)$, the function r is continuously differentiable and q is a continuous function.

A solution of the equation (1) be called the function $y \in L_p$ if there exist a sequence $\{y_n\}_{n=1}^{\infty}$ of continuous and continuously differentiable up to second order finite functions such that $||y_n - y||_p \to 0$, $||ly_n - f||_p \to 0$ as $n \to \infty$.

In the report sufficient conditions under which the estimate of the form

$$\|y^{''}\|_{p} + \|ry^{'}\|_{p} + \|qy\|_{p} \le c\|f\|_{p}$$
(2)

holds for the solution y are discussed. Such estimates are called coercive estimates of a solution. If (2) holds then we say that the operator l, corresponding to the equation (1), is separated in space L_p .

In a case when r = 0 various sufficient conditions of the separability of the operator l in the space L_p have been obtained in [1-5]. Results of [1-5] can be extended to the case $r \neq 0$ when the operator rd/dx is a weak perturbation of the operator $d^2/dx^2 + qE$ (E is the identity operator). In particular, our results imply the separability of the operator l when rd/dx is a not necessarily weak perturbation of the operator $d^2/dx^2 + qE$.

Some consequences of estimate (2) for the solvability of quasilinear second order equation are resulted.

- M. Otelbaev. On summability with a weight of a solution of the Sturm-Liouville equation // Mathematical Notes, Vol.16, No.6, 1974, pp.1172-1179.
- [2] K.Kh.Boimatov. Separability theorems, weighted spaces and their applications // Trudy Mat. Inst. Steklov, Vol.170, 1984, pp.37-76 (in Russian).
- [3] M.B.Muratbekov, M.Otelbaev. Smoothness and approximation properties of solutions of nonlinear equations of Schrodinger type // Izv. Vyssh. Uchebn. Zaved. Mat., No.3, 1989, pp.44-47 (in Russian).
- [4] R. Oinarov. On separability of the Schrödinger operator in the space of summable functions // Dokl. AN SSSR, Vol.285, No.5, 1985, pp.1062 - 1064 (in Russian).
- [5] M.Otelbaev, E.Z.Grinshpun. On the smoothness of solutions of a nonlinear Sturm-Liouville equation in $L_1(-\infty, +\infty)$ // Izv. AN Kaz.SSR. Ser. phys.-math. No.5, 1984, pp.26-29 (in Russian).





OSCILLATION FOR CERTAIN IMPULSIVE PARTIAL DIFFERENCE EQUATIONS

Figen Ozpınar, Sermin Oztürk, Zeynep Fidan Koçak Bolvadin Vocational School Afyon Kocatepe University, Afyonkarahisar, Turkey Afyon Kocatepe University, Afyonkarahisar, Turkey Mugla University, Mugla, Turkey e-mail:fozpinar@aku.edu.tr

In this paper, we obtain some sufficient criteria for the oscillation of the solutions of linear impulsive partial difference equations with continuous variables.

Let $0 = x_0 < x_1 < \ldots < x_n < x_{n+1} < \ldots$, be fixed points with $\lim_{n \to \infty} x_n = \infty$, and let for $n \in \mathbb{N}$ $x_{n+r} = x_n + \tau$, where r is a fixed natural number, and $\tau > 0$ is a constant. Define $J_{imp} = \{x_n\}_{n=1}^{\infty}$, $\mathbb{R}^+ = [0, \infty), \ J = \{(x, y) : \ x \in J_{imp}, y \in \mathbb{R}^+\}.$

In this paper we shall consider the impulsive partial difference equations with continuous variables of the form

$$c_{1}u(x+a,y+b) + c_{2}u(x+a,y) + c_{3}u(x,y+b) - c_{4}u(x,y) + F(x,y)u(x-\tau,y) + G(x,y)u(x,y-\sigma) + H(x,y)u(x-\tau,y-\sigma) = 0, \ (x,y) \in (\mathbb{R}^{+} \times \mathbb{R}^{+}) \setminus J,$$
⁽¹⁾

$$u(x_n^+, y) - u(x_n^-, y) = L_n u(x_n^-, y), \qquad (x_n, y) \in J, \to (x, y) u(q, s), u(x_n^-, y) = \lim_{(q, s) \to (x, y)} u(q, s) \text{ and}$$
(2)

where $u(x^+, y) = \lim_{\substack{(q,s) \to (x,y) \\ q > x}} u(q, s), u(x_n^-, y) = \lim_{\substack{(q,s) \to (x,y) \\ q < x}} u(q, s)$ and $F, G, H \in C(\mathbb{R}^+ \times \mathbb{R}^+, \mathbb{R}^+ - \{0\}), a, b, \tau, \sigma$ positive constants, c_1, c_2, c_3 and c_4 are nonnegative constants.

- [1] R.P. Agarwal. Difference Equations and Inequalities // Marcel Dekker, 1992, New York.
- [2] R.P. Agarwal, F. Karakoc. Oscillation of impulsive partial difference equations with continuous variables // Math. Comput. Modelling, Vol. 50, 2009, pp.1262-1278.
- [3] R.P. Agarwal, P.J.Y. Wong. Advanced Topics in Difference Equations // Kluwer Academic, 1997, Dordrecht.
- [4] D.D. Baĭnov, M.B. Dimitrova, A.B. Dishlies. Oscillation of bounded solutions of impulsive differential-difference of second order // Appl. Math. Comput., Vol.114, 2000, pp.61-68.
- [5] D.D. Baĭnov, E. Minchev. Forced oscillation of solutions of impulsive nonlinear parabolic differential-difference equations // J. Korean Math. Soc., Vol.35, No.4, 1998, pp.881-890.
- [6] D.D. Baĭnov, E. Minchev. Oscillation of solutions of impulsive nonlinear parabolic differential-difference equations // Internat. J. Theoret. Phys., Vol.35, No.1, 1996, pp. 207-215.
- [7] D.D. Baĭnov, P.S. Simeonov. Impulsive Differential Equations Asymptotic Properties of the Solutions // World Scientific, 1995, Singapore.
- [8] B.T. Cui, Y. Liu. Oscillatory for partial difference equations with continuous variables // J. Comput. Appl. Math., Vol.154, 2003, pp.373-391.
- [9] V. Lakshmikantham, D.D. Baĭnov, P.S. Simeonov. Theory of Impulsive Differential Equations // World Scientific, 1998, Singapore.
- [10] E. Minchev. Oscillation of solutions of impulsive nonlinear hyperbolic differential-difference equations // Math. Balcanica, Vol.12, No.1-2, 1998, pp.215-224.
- [11] B.G. Zhang. Oscillation criteria of partial difference equations with continuous variables // Acta Math. Sinica, Vol.42, No.3, 1999, pp.487 -494 (in Chinese).





THE ISOSPECTRALITY PROBLEM FOR THE DIRAC SYSTEM

Etibar Panakhov, Tuba Yalcin Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:epenahov@hotmail.com

We call even a Dirac problem

$$By' + \Omega(x)y = \lambda y, \ 0 \le x \le \pi, \tag{1}$$

$$y_2(0) - hy_1(0) = 0, (2)$$

$$y_2(\pi) + Hy_1(\pi) = 0, (3)$$

with

$$B = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 1 \\ -1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}, \quad \Omega(x) = \begin{pmatrix} p(x) & q(x) \\ q(x) & -p(x) \end{pmatrix}, \quad y(x) = \begin{pmatrix} y_1(x) \\ y_2(x) \end{pmatrix}$$

in which H = h and $\Omega(\pi - x) = \Omega(x)$ on $[0, \pi]$. Here p(x) and q(x) are real functions which are defined and continuous on the interval $[0, \pi]$, h and H are real numbers, and λ is an eigenvalue.

The isospectrality problem is that of describing all problems of the form (1), (2) and (3) that have the same spectrum. This problem has been studied by Trubowitz. Then Max Jodeit and Levitan have studied this problem by using Gelfand-Levitan integral equation and transmutation operator. In this work we describe some results for Dirac operator.

References

- Jr. Max Jodeit, B.M. Levitan. The Isospectrality Problem for the classical Sturm-Liouville Equation // Adv. Differential Equations, Vol. 2, 1997, pp.297-318.
- [2] J. Pöschel, E. Trubowitz. // Inverse Spectral Theory, 1987.

INVERSE NODAL PROBLEM FOR DIRAC OPERATOR

E. S. Panakhov, E. Yilmaz, H. Koyunbakan Firat University, Department of Mathematics, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:emrah231983@gmail.com

Inverse nodal problems consist in constructing operators from the given zeros of their eigenfunctions. In this study, we have estimated nodal points and nodal lengths for Dirac operator. Furthermore, by using nodal points (zeros of eigenfunctions), we have shown that the potential functions of Dirac operator can be established uniquely.

- [1] V. A. Ambartsumyan. Über eine frage der eigenwerttheorie // Z. Phys., Vol. 53, 1929, pp. 690-695.
- [2] G. Borg. Eine umkehrung der Sturm-Liouvillesehen eigenwertaufgabe, Acta Math. Vol. 78, 1945, pp. 1-96.
- [3] N. Levinson. The inverse Sturm–Liouville problem // Mat.Tidsskr. B, 1949, pp. 25-30.
- [4] I. M. Gelfand, B. M. Levitan. On the determination of a differential equation from its spectral function // Amer. Math. Soc. Transl, Vol.1, 1951, pp. 253-304.
- [5] B. M. Levitan, I. S. Sargsjan. Introduction to spectral theory, American Matchematical Society // Providence, Rhode Island, 1975.





CONDITIONS FOR THE EXISTENCE OF THE SOLUTION OF ONE CLASS OF NONLINEAR EQUATIONS

M. Raikhan

L.N. Gumilev Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:mady1029@yandex.kz

Let H be a separable Hilbert space and $A(\cdot)$ some continuous transformation from H to itself. We will consider the following equation:

$$Au = f, \qquad u, f \in H. \tag{1}$$

Let assume, that if $\varepsilon \leq 1$ small number and $\omega, u \in H$, then

$$A(u + \varepsilon \omega) = A(u) + \varepsilon B(u)\omega + \varepsilon D(u, \omega, \varepsilon).$$
⁽²⁾

Where B(u)-is a linear operator for every $u \in H$, such that

$$|B(u)\omega|_H \le C(|u|)|\omega|,\tag{3}$$

where $C(\cdot)$ is continuous function on $[0,\infty)$ and $D(u,\omega,\varepsilon)$ is nonlinear transformation on the pair $\omega, u \in H$ such that

$$\|D(u,\omega,\varepsilon)\| \le [C_1(|u|) + C_2(|\omega|)]^2 |\omega|\varphi(\varepsilon).$$
(4)

Here $C_1(\cdot)$, $C_2(\cdot)$ and $\varphi(\cdot)$ are continuous functions defined on $[0,\infty)$ and $\lim_{\varepsilon \to 0} \varphi(\varepsilon) = 0$. For the solution of equation (1) we will make functional from $u \in H$:

$$J(u) = |A(u) - f|^2.$$
 (5)

To us it is necessary to impose some conditions on operator $A(\cdot)$:

$$A(0) = 0.$$
 (6)

If $|A(u)| \leq C_0 \neq 0$, then

$$|u| \le \varphi_0(C_0). \tag{7}$$

And operator $B^*(u)$ for every $u \in H$, satisfying (7) has limited inverse operator $B^{*-1}(u_n)$, such that $|B^{*-1}(u)| \le \varphi_1(C_0)$ (8)

Theorem 1. Let the conditions (3), (4), (6), (7) and (8) holds. If $||f||_H < \frac{C_0}{2}$, then there exist the sequence $u_0, u_1, ..., u_n$, such that $\lim_{n \to \infty} J(u_n) = 0$. Where C_0 is from (7).

Theorem 2. Let the conditions of theorem 1 is satisfied. We suppose that, if $\lim_{m,n\to\infty} |A(u_n - A(u_m))| = 0$, then $\lim_{m,n\to\infty} |u_n - u_m| = 0$. And then the solution of equation (1) exist, and hold the following correct estimations for the sequence which was constructed in the theorem 1:

$$|u_n - u| \le C2^{-n}, \quad |A(u_n) - f| \le C2^{-n}.$$

- M. Otelbaev, A. A.Durmagambetov, E.N.Seytkulov. Conditions for existence of a global strong solution to one class of nonlinear evolution equations in Hilbert space // Dokl. Ac. Sci. USSR, Vol.408 No.4, 2006, pp.446-449.
- [2] M. Otelbaev, A.A.Durmagambetov, E.N. Seytkulov. Conditions for existence of a global strong solution to one class of nonlinear evolution equations in Hilbert space // Siberian mathematical journal, Novosibirsk, Vol.49, No.3, 2008, pp. 620-634.
- [3] M. Otelbaev, M. Raikhan. On a property of nonlinear parabolic equasions in a Hilbert space // Abstract of the International conference on mathematical inequalities and applications, Lahore -PAKISTAN, 7-13 March, 2010, pp. 12-13.





ON THE HIGHT ORDER NONLINEAR SCHRODINGER EQUATION WITH A SELF-CONSISTENT SOURCE

A.B. Khasanov, A.A. Reyimberganov Urgench State University, Urgench, Uzbekistan e-mail:ahasanov2002@mail.ru, anwar2006@mail.ru

We consider the problem of integration of the following system equations

$$iu_t - 4\sum_{k=0}^m \left(\frac{1}{2i}\right)^{k+1} D_x^k(u\Omega_{m-k}) = 2i\sum_{n=1}^N \sum_{j=0}^{m_n-1} C_{m_n-1}^j \left(\varphi_{1,n}^j \psi_{2,n}^{m_n-j-1} - (\varphi_{2,n}^j)^* (\psi_{1,n}^{m_n-j-1})^*\right), \quad (1)$$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial x}\varphi_{1,n}^{j} + i\xi_{n}\varphi_{1,n}^{j} + ij\varphi_{1,n}^{j-1} - u(x,t)\varphi_{2,n}^{j} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x}\varphi_{2,n}^{j} - i\xi_{n}\varphi_{2,n}^{j} - ij\varphi_{2,n}^{j-1} + u^{*}(x,t)\varphi_{1,n}^{j} = 0, \quad (2)$$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial x}\psi_{1,n}^{j} - i\xi_{n}\psi_{1,n}^{j} - ij\psi_{1,n}^{j-1} + u^{*}(x,t)\psi_{2,n}^{j} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x}\psi_{2,n}^{j} + i\xi_{n}\psi_{2,n}^{j} + ij\psi_{2,n}^{j-1} - u(x,t)\psi_{1,n}^{j} = 0, \quad (3)$$

$$n = 1, 2, \dots, N, \ j = 0, 1, \dots, m_{n} - 1,$$

with the initial conditions

$$u(x,0) = u_0(x), \quad x \in R, \tag{4}$$

where vector-functions $\Phi_n^0 = (\varphi_{1,n}^0, \varphi_{2,n}^0)^T$ and $\Psi_n^0 = (\psi_{1,n}^0, \psi_{2,n}^0)^T$ are eigenfunctions of the system (2) and (3) corresponding to eigenvalues ξ_n ($Im \ \xi_n > 0$), with multiplicities m_n , n = 1, 2, ..., N. Here

 $\Omega_0(x,t) = -2i,$

$$\Omega_j(x,t) = -2D_x^{-1} \sum_{k=0}^{j-1} \left\{ \left(\frac{1}{2i}\right)^{k+1} u^* D_x^k (u\Omega_{j-k-1}) + \left(-\frac{1}{2i}\right)^{k+1} u D_x^k (u^*\Omega_{j-k-1}) \right\}, \quad D_x = \frac{\partial}{\partial x},$$

$$j = 1, 2, ..., m.$$

The function $u_0(x)$ $(-\infty < x < \infty)$ has the following properties:

 $\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} (1+|x|)|u_0(x)|dx < \infty;$ 1)

2) If t = 0, then systems (2) and (3) has no spectral singularities and in $Im\xi > 0$ it has exactly N eigenvalues $\xi_1(0), \xi_2(0), ..., \xi_N(0)$ with multiplicities $m_1(0), m_2(0), ..., m_N(0)$.

We assume that

$$\frac{1}{(m_n - 1 - l)!} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \tilde{\Psi}_n^{m_n - 1}(x, t) \Phi_n^{m_n - 1 - l}(x, t) dx = A_{m_n - 1 - l}^n(t), \ n = 1, 2, ..., N,$$
(5)

where $A_{m_n-1-l}^n(t)$ is a continuous function, n = 1, 2, ..., N, $l = 0, 1, ..., m_n - 1$. We look for complex-valued solution u(x, t) of the problem (1)-(5), that is satisfy the following assumption:

$$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \left((1+|x|)|u(x,t)| + \sum_{k=1}^{m} \left| D_x^k u(x,t) \right| \right) dx < \infty.$$
(6)

In this work the method of inverse scattering problem is applied to the integration of the problem (1)-(6).

References

[1] V.K. Mel'nikov. Integration of the nonlinear Schrödinger equation with a Self -Consistent source // Commun. Math. Phys., Vol.137, 1991, p. 359-381.





BEHAVIOUR OF SOLUTION DEGENERATE ELLIPTIC EQUATIONS

Tahir S. Gadjiev, Konul N. Mamedova, Nigar R. Sadigova Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:tgadjiev@mail.az

For linear elliptic and parabolic equations the questions on behavior of solutions near the boundary were studied on the papers of O.A.Oleinik and his followers [1]. For quasilinear equations, similar result were obtained in the T.S.Gadjiev [2]. S.Bonafade [3] and others studied quality properties of solutions for degenerate equations.

We obtained some estimations that are analogies of Saint-Venaut's principle known in theory of elasticity. By means of these estimations we obtained estimations on behavior of solutions and their derivative on bounded domains up to boundary.

In the cilindric domain $Q = \Omega \times (0,T)$, T > 0, where $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^n$, $n \ge 2$ bounded domain, a generalized solution from the Sobolev space $\dot{W}_{p,\omega}^{m,1}(\Omega)$ of the mixed problem for the equation

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} - \sum_{|\alpha| \le m} (-1)^{|\alpha|} D^{\alpha} A_{\alpha}(x, u, \nabla u, ..., \nabla^m u) = \sum_{|\alpha| \le m} (-1)^{|\alpha|} D^{\alpha} F_{\alpha}(x), \tag{1}$$

$$u/_{t=0} = 0,$$
 (2)

where $D^{\alpha} = \frac{\partial^{|\alpha|}}{\partial x_1^{\alpha_1} \partial x_2^{\alpha_2} \dots \partial x_n^{\alpha_n}}$, $|\alpha| = \alpha_1 + \alpha_2 + \dots + \alpha_n$, $m \ge 1$ is considered. Also we suppose Dirichlet conditions on boundary satisfying.

Our main goal is to obtain estimations of behavior of the integral of energy $I_{\rho} = \int_{\Omega_{\rho}} \omega(x) |\nabla^m u|^p dx dt$, for small ρ , dependent on Ω_{ρ} geometry of Ω in the vicinity of the point 0.

- O.A. Oleinik, G.A. Josifian. Boundary value problems for second order elliptic equations in unbounded domains and Saint-Venant's principle // Ann. Scuola Norm. Super Pisa. Ser. IV, Vol.2, 1977, pp. 269-290.
- [2] T.S. Gadjiev. On behaviour of solutions of mixed problems for quasilinear elliptic equations // Diff. Uravneniya, 1991, pp. 1031-1036 (Russian).
- [3] S. Bonafade. Quazilinear degenerate elliptic variational inequalities with discontinuous coefficients // Comment. Math. Univ. Carolinae, Vol.34, No.1, 1993, pp. 55-61.





INITIAL-BOUNDARY PROBLEM FOR THE HEAT EQUATION WITH THE NOT-STRONG REGULAR BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

Makhmud A.Sadybekov

Institute of Mathematics, Informatics and Mechanics, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:makhmud-s@mail.ru

The report is dedicated to a problem on finding solving of the heat equation in $\Omega = \{(x, t) : 0 < < x < 1, 0 < t < T\}$

$$u_t(x,t) = u_{xx}(x,t) - q(x)u(x,t) + f(x,t),$$
(1)

satisfying the initial condition:

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x), 0 \le x \le 1 \tag{2}$$

and the boundary conditions as

$$\begin{cases} a_1 u_x(0,t) + b_1 u_x(1,t) + a_0 u(0,t) + b_0 u(1,t) = 0, \\ c_1 u_x(0,t) + d_1 u_x(1,t) + c_0 u(0,t) + d_0 u(1,t) = 0, \end{cases}$$
(3)

where a_k, b_k, c_k, d_k are complex numbers, k = 1, 2.

Parabolic type problems with the two-point boundary general form conditions (3) studied earlier in N.I.Ionkin's and E.I.Moiseev's works [1] where the solving of the problems (1)-(3) is constructed in the strong regularity assumption of the conditions (3) by a modified method of variables separation, the solution's uniqueness and the stability to the initial data in various norms are proved.

The question on the eigen and adjoint functions' basis of an ordinary differential operator is still not fully resolved in case when the boundary conditions are regular but not strongly regular. In this case the problem (1)-(3) may not always be solved by the method of variables separation. The modified method of variables separation in solving the problem (1)-(3) for one case of the boundary conditions called nowadays as Samarskiy-Ionkin's conditions was justified in [2].

However, even in the simplest case $q(x) \equiv 0$ the solution's and problem correctness proof's unique way independent on the basis properties of the corresponding ordinary differential operator was not until today.

In this report we suggest a new method of problem solution (1)-(3) for the case when the boundary conditions are regular but not strongly regular. The suggested solution method can be applied for forming both classical and generalized solutions.

Theorem. The problem solution (1)-(3) in case of regular but not regular conditions when q(x) = q(1-x) can always be equivalently reduced to the sequential solution of two boundary problems with strong regular boundary Sturm conditions.

- N.I. Ionkin, E.I. Moiseev. On the problem with the heat equation with two-point boundary conditions // Differential equations, Vol.15, No.7, 1979, pp. 1284-1295.
- [2] N.I. Ionkin. One boundary problem solution of heat conduction theory with the non classical condition // Differential equations, Vol.13, No.2, 1977, pp. 294-304.







DEVELOPING OF THE ALGORITHMS TO REALIZATION OF THE PROBLEM **SCHEDULER**

K. Sagindykov

Institute of mathematics and mechanics KazNU, Almata, Kazakhstan e-mail:ksagin@mail.ru

Let $0 < \varphi_0 \leq 2\pi$, $0 < \varphi_1, \varphi_2 < \varphi_0, G = \{z = re^{i\varphi} : 0 \leq r < \infty, 0 \leq \varphi \leq \varphi_0\}$. We consider the equation

$$2\overline{z}a_1(\varphi)\frac{\partial w}{\partial \overline{z}} + 2za_2(\varphi)\frac{\partial w}{\partial z} + a_3(\varphi)w + \frac{r^{\alpha}b(\varphi)\overline{w}}{|y-k_1x|^{\alpha}} = \frac{f(\varphi)r^{\nu+\alpha}}{|y-k_2x|^{\alpha}} \tag{1}$$

in G, where $a_1(\varphi)$, $a_2(\varphi)$, $a_3(\varphi)$, $b(\varphi)$, $f(\varphi) \in C[0, \varphi_0]$; $k_1 = \tan \varphi_1$, $k_2 = \tan \varphi_2$, $0 < \alpha < 1$, $\nu > 0$ are real numbers. Let p > 1 if $\nu \ge 1$ and $1 if <math>\nu < 1$. The solutions of equation (1) we will find in the class

$$W_p^1(G) \cap C(G). \tag{2}$$

Here $W_p^1(G)$ is the Sobolev space. For $\alpha = 0$ and $a_2(\varphi) \equiv 0$ such equations are studied in the papers [1] to [5]. Our goal is to study equation (1) for $\alpha \neq 0$. We proved the following theorem.

Theorem 1. If $a_1(\varphi) \neq a_2(\varphi)$ on the interval $[0, \varphi_0]$, then the equation (1) has a variety of solutions from the class (2).

We consider the following Dirichlet and Neuman boundary value problems.

Problem D. Find a solution of equation (1) from the class (2) satisfying the half Dirichlet condition

$$w(r,0) = \beta_1 r^{\nu},\tag{3}$$

where β_1 is a given real number.

Problem N. Find a solution of the equation (1) from the class (2), satisfying the half Neumann condition

$$\frac{\partial w}{\partial \varphi}(r,0) = \beta_2 r^{\nu},\tag{4}$$

where β_2 is a given real number.

Let $\delta = |A_{\nu}(0)|^2 - |b_{\alpha}(0)|^2$, $A_{\nu}(\varphi) = -\frac{i(\nu a_1(\varphi)) + \nu a_2(\varphi) + a_3(\varphi))}{a_1(\varphi) - a_2(\varphi)}$, $b_{\alpha}(\varphi) = \frac{b(\varphi)}{|sin\varphi - k_1 cos\varphi|^{\alpha}(\alpha(\varphi) - a_2(\varphi))}$, $a_1(\varphi) \neq a_2(\varphi)$

We proved the following theorems.

Theorem 2. The half Dirichlet problem D has a unique solution from class (2).

Theorem 3. If $\delta \neq 0$, then the half Neumann problem N has a unique solution from (2) and if $\delta = 0$, then the half Neumann problem N has an infinite number of solutions from (2) having the form $w = r^{\nu}\psi(\varphi).$

- [1] A. Tungatarov, N.E. Burgumbaeva, D.E. Mukasheva. About one first order system of the partial differential equations of type Fuks in plane // Eurasian Mathematical Journal, No.3, 2006, pp. 58-67 (in Russian).
- Z.D. Usmanov. The Generalized Cauchy-Riemann Systems with Singular Point // Dushanbe, 1983, 244 p.
- [3] A. Meziani. Representation of solutions of a singular CR equation in the plane // Complex Var. Elliptic Eq., No.53, 2008, pp. 1111-1130.
- [4] A. Tungatarov. About continuous solutions of equation of Carleman-Vekua with singular point // DAN SSSR, Vol. 319, No. 3, 1991, pp. 570-573 (in Russian).
- A. Tungatarov, D.K. Mukasheva. About some boundary value problem system of the equations in partial differential |5| of the first order of Fuchs type in the plane // Eurasian Mathematical Journal, No.1, 2007, pp. 73-84 (in Russian).





INVERSE PROBLEM OF THE KIND OF TIKHONOV-LAVRENTEV INCLUDING THE CAUCHY-RIEMANN EQUATION ON A BOUNDED REGION

M. Sajjadmanesh, M. Jahanshahi, N. Aliev Azarbaijan University of Tarbiat Moallem, Tabriz, Iran Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:s.sajjadmanesh@azaruniv.edu

In this paper we consider an inverse problem which contains the Cauchy-Riemann equation with two non-local boundary conditions.

Besides the unknown function, the right-hand side of the second boundary condition is unknown. For this, at first by fundamental solution of the Cauchy-Riemann equation, necessary conditions are obtained and then some sufficient conditions to reduce this problem to a second kind Fredholm integral equations are presented. Finally singularities in the kernel of integrals are regularized.

At first, we consider the following inverse problem

$$\frac{\partial u(x)}{\partial x_2} + i \frac{\partial u(x)}{\partial x_1} = 0, \qquad x \in \Omega,$$
(1)

$$\alpha_j(x_1) u(x_1, \gamma_1(x_1)) + \beta_j(x_1) u(x_1, \gamma_2(x_1)) = \phi_j(x_1), \quad j = 1, 2, \ x_1 \in (a, b),$$
(2)

where $\Omega = \{ (x_1, x_2) \in \mathbb{R}^2 | x_1 \in (a, b), x_2 \in (\gamma_1(x_1), \gamma_2(x_1)) \}$ is a bounded region in \mathbb{R}^2 with the known smooth boundaries γ_1, γ_2 and the α_j, β_j $(j = 1, 2), \phi_1$ and ϕ_2, u are known continuous and unknown functions, respectively.

By finding the necessary conditions of equation (1) and inserting them in a linear expansions of boundary values of the unknown functions $u(x_1, x_2)$ and considering the relations (2), the unknown function ϕ_2 appears in the form of an integral equation that by solving this integral equation with respect to ϕ_2 and inserting it in the other relation, we can calculate the boundary values of unknown function $u(x_1, x_2)$. Finally by inserting them in the relation, the analytic solution of inverse problem (1)-(2) are obtained.

- [1] V.C. Veladimirov. Equations of Mathematical Physics // Science Publishers, Moscow, 1981.
- [2] A.L. Bukhgeim. Higher dimensional inverse problems // Lectures on some non-correct mathematical physics & analysis problems, Science Publishers, 1984, pp. 31-35.
- [3] V.G. Romanov. Inverse problems in mathematical physics // Lectures on some non-correct mathematical physics & analysis problems, Science Publishers, 1984, pp. 118-123.
- [4] A.N. Tikhonov. About on inverse problems // Lectures on Some non-Correct Mathematical Physics & Analysis Problems, Science Publishers, 1984, pp. 167-171.
- [5] M.M. Lavrentev. Inverse problems and integral geometric // Lectures on Some non-Correct Mathematical Physics & Analysis Problems, Science Publishers, 1984, pp. 81-86.
- [6] N. Aliev, M. Jahanshahi. Sufficient condition for reduction of B.V.P to Fredholm integral equations // Journal of Mathematical Eduction in Science and Technology, Taylor & Francis Group, Vol.28, No.3, 1997, pp. 419-425.
- [7] M. Jahanshahi, N. Aliev. Determing of analytic function on its analytic domain by Cauchy-Riemann equation // Southeast Asian Bulletin of Math., No.28, 2004, pp. 33-39.
- [8] R. Courant, D. Gilbert. Methods of mathematical physics // Interscience publisher, Vol.2, 1962.





INVESTIGATION OF BOUNDARY LAYERS IN SINGULAR PERTURBATION PROBLEMS WITH GENERAL LINEAR NON-LOCAL BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

M. Jahanshahi, A.R. Sarakhsi Azarbaijan University of Tarbiat Moallem, Tabriz, Iran e-mail:jahanshahi@azaruniv.edu, s.alireza.sarakhsi@azaruniv.edu

Singular perturbation problems have been studied by many mathematicians. Because of the approximate solutions of these problems are as the sum of internal solution (boundary layer area) and external ones, therefore the formation or non-formation of boundary layers should be specified. In this paper, we investigated this subject for a singular perturbation problem including a first order differential equation with general non-local boundary condition. It is necessary to say that for local boundary layers is not as stright forward as local case. To tackle this problem we make use of generalized solution of differential equation and some necessary conditions. At the end, some unsolved problems were presented for second and fourth order differential equations and matrix form of first order differential equations with general linear non-local boundary conditions.

One of the important subjects in applied mathematics is the theory of singular perturbation problems. The mathematical models for this kind of problems usually are in the form of either ordinary differential equation (O.D.E) or partial differential equation(P.D.E) in which the highest derivative is multiplied by some powers of " as a positive small parameter. The object theory of singular perturbation problems is to solve differential equation with some initial or boundary conditions with small parameter ". These problems are divided into 2 types i.e regular and singular cases. We consider the following perturbation problem,

$$lx \equiv \varepsilon \dot{x}(t) + x(t) = t, \ t \in (0, 1), \tag{1}$$

$$\alpha_0 x(0) + \alpha_1 x(1) = \alpha. \tag{2}$$

Where ε is the small parameter, and α_0 , α_1 and α are real constants. x(t) is real unknown function on [0,1].

Theorem 1. In singular perturbation problem (1)-(2), for any arbitrary values of α_0 , α_1 and α there is no boundary layer at the point t = 1; provided α_0 , α_1 are not zero together.

Theorem 2. Under conditions and hypothesis of theorem 1, there is no boundary layer at the point t = 0, provided $\alpha = \alpha_1$.

Theorem 3. Underconditions and hypothesis of theorem 1, there is a boundary layer at the point t = 0, provided $\alpha \neq \alpha_1$.

- L. Prandtle. Uber Flussigkeits-bewegung bei Kleiner Reibung Verhandlungen // III, INT, Math, Gongress, Tuebner, Leipzig page 1934, pp.484-491.
- [2] Ali Hasan Nayfeh. Perturbation Methods // John Wiley and Sons, 1973.
- [3] G.D. Birkhoff. On the asymptotic of the solution of certain linear differential equations containing a parameter // Trans.Amer.Math.Soc q, 1908, pp.219-231 and pp.380-382.
- [4] O.A. Olenik. Mathematical Problems of boundary layers, us pekhi // Math.Nauk, Vol.23, No.3, 1968.
- [5] A.R. Sarakhsi, M. Jahanshahi. Asymptotic solution of singular perturbation problem for second order linear O.D.E with local boundary conditions // 40th Annual Iranian Mathematics Conference, 2009.
- [6] J.R.E. O'mally. Singular Perturbation Methods For O.D.E's, Springer verlag, 1991.
- [7] N. Alievand, I. Abdullaeiva. Research of boundary value problem for a third O.D.E containing higher derivatives with small parameter // Dept.Az.NIINTI, No.1416, AZ-90, Baku, 1990.
- [8] M. Jahanshahi. Investigation of boundary layers in a singular perturbation problem including a 4th order ordinary differential equations // Journal of scinces, Vol.2 No.2, Iran, Tehran, 2001.





A HOCHSTADT-LIEBERMAN THEOREM FOR SINGULAR STURM-LIOUVILLE OPERATOR

Murat Sat, Mehmet Kayalar Erzincan University, Erzincan, Turkey e-mail:murat_sat24@hotmail.com

In this paper we shall be concerned with an inverse problem for singular Sturm-Liouville equation. We shall consider the equation

$$L_{i}y \equiv -y'' + \left[\frac{A}{x} + q_{i}(x)\right]y = \lambda y \quad [(i = 1, 2), \ (0 < x \le \pi)]$$
(1)

subject to the boundary conditions

$$y(0) = 0, \quad y'(\pi, \lambda) - Hy(\pi, \lambda) = 0.$$
 (2)

As is well known, the operator L_i subject to 2 has a discete spectrum consisting of simple eigenvalues $\{\lambda_n\}$. If second condition in (2) is replaced by

$$y'(\pi,\lambda) - H_1 y(\pi,\lambda) = 0, \qquad (3)$$

we obtain a second spectrum $\{\lambda'_n\}$. It is shown that here that if $q_i(r)$ is prescribed over the interval $(\frac{\pi}{2}, \pi)$, then a single spectrum suffices to determine $q_i(r)$ on the interval $(0, \frac{\pi}{2})$. Consequently $q_1(r) = q_2(r)$ almost everwhere on $(0, \pi)$ [1], [2].

References

- R. Kh. Amirov, Y. Cakmak. Trace Formula for the Sturm-Liouville operator with singularity // Proceeding of the Eight International Colloquium on differentials equations, Plovdiv, Bulgaria, 18-23 August, 1997, pp. 9-16.
- [2] H. Hochstadt, B. Lieberman. // SIAM J. Appl. Math., Vol.34, No.4, 1978, pp. 676-680.

TRAVELING WAVE SOLUTIONS OF THE RLW AND BOUSSINESQ EQUATION

Yavuz Ugurlu, Ibrahim E. Inan, Doğan Kaya Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:matematikci_23@yahoo.com.tr,ieinan@yahoo.com

In this study, we use the generalized tanh function method for the traveling wave solutions of the generalized regularized long-wave (gRLW) equation and Boussinesq equation system.

- [1] L. Debtnath. Nonlinear Partial Differential Equations for Scientist and Engineers, Birkhauser, Boston, MA, 1997.
- [2] A.M. Wazwaz. Partial Differential Equations: Methods and Applications, Balkema, Rotterdam, 2002.
- [3] W. Hereman, P.P. Banerjee, A. Korpel, G. Assanto, A. Van Immerzeele and A. Meerpoel. Exact solitary wave solutions of nonlinear evolution and wave equations using a direct algebraic method // J. Phys. A: Math. Gen. Vol.19, 1986, pp.607-628.





ON A ABOUT CLASSICAL SOLVABILITY OF SEVERAL PROBLEMS OF THE MAGNETIC HYDRODYNAMICS

Sharipkhan Sakhaev Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Sakhaev_Sh@mail.ru

In [1] 3 nonlinear initial-boundary problems are studied in the limited cylinder domain $Q_T = \Omega \times [0, T]$ for the following time-dependent combined equations of the magnetic hydrodynamics

$$\overrightarrow{\upsilon}_t - \nu \Delta \overrightarrow{\upsilon} + \sum_{k=1}^3 \left(\upsilon_k \overrightarrow{\upsilon}_{x_k} - \mu H_k \overrightarrow{H}_{x_k} \right) + \nabla \left(p + \frac{\mu \overrightarrow{H}^2}{2} \right) = f\left(\overrightarrow{x}, t \right), \tag{1}$$

$$rot\vec{E} = -\mu\vec{H}_t,\tag{2}$$

$$rot\vec{H} - \sigma\left(\vec{E} + \mu\left[\vec{v} \times \vec{H}\right]\right) = \vec{j}(x, t), \qquad (3)$$

$$\operatorname{div} \overrightarrow{\upsilon} (x, t) = 0, \quad \operatorname{div} \overrightarrow{H} (x, t) = 0, \tag{4}$$

in which $\overrightarrow{v}(x, t)$ - vector of the flow fluid; $\overrightarrow{H}(x, t)$, $\overrightarrow{E}(x, t)$ - vectors of the intensity of the magnetic and electrical field; $\overrightarrow{f}(x, t)$, $\overrightarrow{j}(x, t)$ – given outside fore of flow; μ – magnetic penetrability, σ – conductivity; ν – kinematic viscosity of fluid; the liquid density is equal to 1.

First problem: we need to find $\vec{v}(x, t)$, $\vec{H}(x, t)$, $\vec{E}(x, t)$ from (1)-(4) and p in a limited cylinder region $Q_T = \Omega \times [0, T]$ ($\Omega \in \mathbb{R}^3$, $t \in [0, T]$) under the following conditions:

$$\overrightarrow{\upsilon}(x, t)|_{t=0} = \overrightarrow{\upsilon}_0(x), \quad \overrightarrow{H}(x, t)\Big|_{t=0} = \overrightarrow{H}_0(x) \quad \overrightarrow{\upsilon}(x, t)|_{x\in S} = \overrightarrow{a}(x, t), \quad \overrightarrow{H}_n\Big|_S = 0, \quad \overrightarrow{E}_\tau\Big|_S = 0.$$

The second problem: vessel Ω_1 with liquid is covered by dielectric or vacuum, what takes limited domain Ω_2 , outer limit S_2 which is an ideal conductor. Magnetic penetrability of the liquid μ_1 , dielectric μ_2 , we must find $\vec{v}(x, t)$, $\vec{H}(x, t)$, $\vec{E}(x, t)$ and p from the system (1)-(4) in the domain Ω_1 , from the following combined equations

$$rot\vec{H} = 0, \ div\vec{H} = 0, \ rot\vec{E} + \mu\vec{H}_t = 0, \ div\vec{E} = 0.$$

In the domain Ω_2 by following boundary conditions

$$\vec{v} (x, t)|_{x \in S} = \vec{a} (x, t)|_{x \in S_1}, \ \left(a_n|_{S_1} = 0\right),$$
$$\vec{H}_{\tau}^{(1)}\Big|_{x \in S_1} = \vec{H}_{\tau}^{(2)}\Big|_{x \in S_1}, \ \mu_1 H_n^{(1)}\Big|_{x \in S_1} = \mu_2 H_n^{(2)}\Big|_{x \in S_1}$$
and on the surface

on the surface $S_1 \equiv \partial \Omega_1$ and on the surface

$$S_2 \equiv \partial \Omega_2, \quad H_n|_{x \in S_2} = 0, \quad \overrightarrow{E}_r\Big|_{x \in S_2} = 0$$

and also by the conditions in the region Ω_1 .

The results of this work are devoted to the expansion of the results O. A. Ladizhinskaya and V. A. Solonnikov for the functional space norms $W_p^{2,1}(Q_T)$ with p > 1 $C^{2+\alpha, 1+\alpha/2}(Q_T), \alpha < 1$.

References

 O.A. Ladizinkaya, V.A. Solonnikov. Solution of the several Time-dependent problems magnetic hydrodynamics for the viscosity uncontractible liquid, pp. 115-173.





INVERSE PROBLEMS FOR PARABOLIC EQUATIONS ON UNLIMITED TIME INTERVALS¹

Ilyas K. Shakenov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:ilias.shakenov@gmail.com

Let consider heat conduction equation in the following form

 $u_t = u_{xx} + f(x,t), \quad 0 < x < L, \quad 0 < t < T.$ (1)

$$u|_{t=0} = \varphi(x). \tag{2}$$

$$u_x|_{x=0} = b(t). (3)$$

$$u_x|_{x=0} = y(t).$$
 (4)

The right boundary restriction plays a role of parameter. It's also given that u(0,t) = a(t). On the problem (1) - (4) we need to minimize the functional:

$$I(y) = \int_{0}^{T} \left[u(0,t;y) - a(t) \right]^{2} dt \to \min.$$

We use gradient method to reach the goal. The minimizing sequence is built by recurrence relation:

$$y_{n+1}(t) = y_n(t) - \alpha_n I(y_n(t)), \ \alpha_n > 0$$

The first challenge is to find the exact expression for gradient of functional, I(y(t)). It can be determined by adjoint problem, which is stated below:

$$\psi_t + \psi_{xx} = 0,$$

 $\psi(x, T) = 0,$
 $\psi_x(L, t) = 0,$
 $\psi_x(0, t) = -2(u(0, t; y) - a(t)).$

The exact expression for gradient is $I'(y(t)) = \psi(L,t)$. Having in hand the value of gradient, the iteration process can be launched. The values of α_n -coefficients are calculated according to steepest descent method.

If the algorithm is launched you will have several problems. The first, algorithm doesn't make the values of subsequent approximations more precise. The second, this problem is ill-conditioned problem, that is, if you have an oscillating influence on the right boundary, it doesn't seem to be feasible to restore the values of y(t). These obstacles should be considered first.

The series of numerical experiments with known solutions were implemented. The information was collected and analyzed. The corresponding inferences were made about the solution on unlimited time interval, about nonlinear cases of problem, about the algorithm efficiency with different values of main parameters.

¹ This research is supported by al-Farabi Kazakh National University





A METHOD FOR THE SOLUTIONS OF THE MIXED PROBLEM FOR THE HEAT EQUATION

A.Sh. Shaldanbaev, K.Zh. Rustemova M.Auesov South Kazakhstan State University, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:rkzh@mail.ru

Let $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^2$ be a square, bounded by segments: $AB : 0 \leq t \leq 1, x = 0$; $BC : 0 \leq x \leq 1, t = 1$; $CD : 0 \leq t \leq 1, x = 1$; $DA : 0 \leq x \leq 1, t = 0$. The set of functions u(x, t) that are twice continuously differentiable with respect to x and once continuously differentiable with respect to t in the domain Ω is denoted by $C^{2,1}(\Omega)$. The boundary of the region Ω means a series of segments $\partial\Omega = AB \bigcup AD \bigcup CD$.

Let's consider in the Hilbert space $L^{2}(\Omega)$ the mixed problem for the heat equation:

$$Tu = u_t(x,t) - u_{xx}(x,t) = f(x,t), (x,t) \in \Omega$$

$$\tag{1}$$

$$u|_{t=0} = 0;$$
 (2)

$$u|_{x=0} = 0, \, u|_{x=1} = 0, \tag{3}$$

where $f(x,t) \in L^2(\Omega)$. This boundary-value problem corresponds to the linear operator

$$Tu = u_t(x,t) - u_{xx}(x,t) \tag{4}$$

with domain

$$D(T) = \left\{ u(x,t) \in C^{2,1}(\Omega) \bigcap C(\overline{\Omega}), \ u|_{t=0} = 0, \ u|_{x=0} = 0, \ u|_{x=1} = 0 \right\}$$
(5)

and range $R(T) \subset L^2(\Omega)$. It is known that the inverse operator T^{-1} exists and is Volterra type, i.e. it is a compact operator with non-zero eigenvalues. If $T^{-1}u = 0$, then applying the operator T on both sides of this equation, we obtain u = 0, i.e. the point $\lambda = 0$ is not an eigenvalue of the operator T^{-1} . The function $u \in C^{2,1}(\Omega) \cap C(\overline{\Omega})$, identifying equation (1) and boundary conditions (2) - (3) is called a regular solution of the problem (1)-(3). Function $u \in L^2(\Omega)$ is called a strong solution of the problem, if there is a sequence of functions $u_n(x,t) \in C^{2,1}(\Omega) \cap C(\overline{\Omega})$, n = 1, 2, ... and satisfying the boundary conditions such that $\{u_n\}$ and $\{Tu_n\}$, n = 1, 2, ... converges in $mL^2(\Omega)$, respectively, to u(x,t) and f(x,t) by $n \to \infty$. Boundary-value problem (1)-(3) is called strongly solvable if there exists a strong solution for any right hand side $f(x,t) \in L^2(\Omega)$ and is unique.

Theorem. (a) The mixed problem (1) - (3) for the heat equation is strongly solvable in the space $L^2(\Omega)$; (b) The inverse operator $(\overline{T})^{-1}$ is completely continuous on this space and is Volterra type; (c) There is a "spectral" decomposition

$$u(x,t) = T^{-1}f = \sum_{n,m=1}^{\infty} \frac{(Sf, v_{nm})}{\lambda_{nm}} v_{nm},$$
(6)

where

$$S(x,t) = f(x,1-t), \frac{\partial}{\partial t} \upsilon_{nm}(x,t) - \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x^2} \upsilon_{nm}(x,t) = \lambda_{nm}(x,1-t),$$
(7)

$$v_{nm}|_{t=0} = 0, v_{nm}|_{x=0} = 0, v_{nm}|_{x=1} = 0, v_{nm}(x,t) = \sqrt{2}\sin n\pi x \cdot \frac{B_{nm}\sin\nu_{nm}t}{\nu_{nm}}, n, m = 1, 2, \dots, \quad (8)$$

- roots of equation

$$\cos\nu_{nm} + \frac{n^2 \sin\nu_{nm}}{\nu_{nm}} = 0, \ n, m = 1, 2, \dots$$
(9)

References

 D.E. Allahverdiyev. The degree of approximation of completely continuous operators by finite-dimensional operators // Scientists write of Azeyrbadzhan University, 1957, pp. 27-35.





ON AN INVERSE CAUCHY PROBLEM

A.A. Shaldanbaeva The South Kazakhstan State University, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:altima_a@mail.ru

Let's consider the Cauchy problem in space $H = L^2(0, 1)$

$$y'(x) = f(x), x \in [0, 1]$$
(1)

$$y(0) = 0, (2)$$

where $f(x) \in L^2(0,1)$. As is known, the solution of this problem has the following form:

$$y(x) = \int_0^x f(t)dt, x \in [0, 1].$$
(3)

Let's assume, that the left hand side of (3) is known, whether it is possible to find the functions $f(x) \in L^2(0, 1)$, i.e. to find the solution of the integral equation

$$\int_0^x f(t)dt = y(x). \tag{4}$$

It seems, that is easier to differentiate the left part of this formula then under the theorem of Lebesgue [1] we will get f(x) = y'(x). But a differentiation operator an unbounded in space $L^2(0, 1)$, therefore this operation, generally speaking, cannot be applied, if a right hand side of the equation (4) is known only approximately, that often happens in practice. Hence, the problem is not always solvable and is among, so-called, incorrect problems [2]. The problem essence is reduced to search of result algorithm. In the present work the algorithm based on ideas of the work [3] is offered. The basic result is

Theorem. a) If λ is any real number not equal to zero, solution of the equation:

$$(SC^{-1} - ial)f_{\alpha} = Sy \tag{5}$$

exists for any $y \in L^2(0,1)$ and has a form:

$$f_{\alpha}(x) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \frac{(S_y, u_n)}{\mu_n + i\alpha} u_n(x), \tag{6}$$

where

$$C^{-1}f(x) = \int_0^x f(x)dt = y(x), Sy(x) = y(1-x),$$
(7)

$$\mu_n = \frac{\cos n\pi}{n\pi + \frac{\pi}{2}}, u_n(x) = \sqrt{2}\cos(n\pi + \frac{\pi}{2})x, n = 0, 1, \dots$$
(8)

b) For any $y \in R(C^{-1})$ the estimation holds

$$\|C^{-1}f_{\alpha} - y\| \le |\alpha| \|f\|,$$
 (9)

where $y = C^{-1}f$, which shows a velocity of approach of elements $C^{-1}f_{\alpha}$ to y at $\alpha \to 0$. c) If $y \in R(C^{-1})$ and $\alpha \to 0$, then $||f_{\alpha} - f||$ tends to zero.

- [1] A.N. Kolmogorov, S.V. Fomin. Element of the theory of functions and a functional analysis // M: The Science, 1968.
- [2] S.I. Kabanihin. Inverse and incorrect problems // Novosibirsk, 2009.
- [3] T.Sh. Kalmenov, A.Sh. Shaldanbaev, S.T. Ahmetova. To the spectral theory the equations with deviating arguments // Mathematical magazine Almaty, Vol.4, No.3, 2004, p.41-48.





AN INVERSE PROBLEM FOR THE HEAT EQUATION

A.Sh.Shaldanbaev, S.M.Shalenova M.Auesov South Kazakhstan State University, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:rahila009@yahoo.com

It is known that the mixed problem

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x^2} = \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \left(0 \le x \le \infty, t \ge 0 \right) \tag{1}$$

$$u|_{x=0} = \varphi(t), u|_{t=0} = 0$$
(2)

for the heat equation has the form

$$u(x,t) = \frac{x}{2\sqrt{\pi}} \int_{0}^{t} \frac{\varphi(\tau) e^{-\frac{x^{2}}{4(t-\tau)}}}{(t-\tau)^{\frac{3}{2}}} d\tau$$
(3)

where $\varphi(t)$ - continuous and bounded on the semiaxis $t \ge 0$, satisfying $\varphi(0) = 0$. The question, is whether one can find this function $\varphi(t)$, if the function u(x,t) is known is solve the inverse problem [1], [2]. The main result of this work is

Theorem. If the solution u(x,t) of the mixed problem (1)-(2) satisfies to the following two conditions

$$b)\lim_{t \to 0} \int_0^{-\infty} u(x,t) dx = 0,$$
(4)

$$b)\frac{1}{\sqrt{\pi}}\int_{0}^{t}\frac{\int_{0}^{+\infty}u\left(x,t\right)dx}{\sqrt{t-\tau}}d\tau\tag{5}$$

this function is absolutely continuous on each finite segment [0,T], then solution $\varphi(t)$ of inverse problem exists and has the form

$$\varphi(t) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{\pi}} \frac{d}{dt} \int_0^t \frac{\int_0^{+\infty} u(x,t) \, dx}{\sqrt{t-\tau}} d\tau, \tag{6}$$

where $0 \le t \le T$, and T > 0 - arbitrary positive value.

Thus, the problem reduces to the calculation of the derivative or to the integration of the functions u(x,t) with respect to the variable x [2].

- [1] S.I. Kabanikhin. Inverse and incorrect problems // Novosibirsk, 2009, 457 p.
- [2] A.N. Tikhonov, V.Y. Arsenin. Methods for Solving incorrect problems // M.: Nauka, 1974.







AN INVERSE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR A PSEUDOPARABOLIC EQUATION OF THIRD ORDER WITH INTEGRAL OVERDETERMINATION CONDITION

G.K. Namazov, Y.T. Mehraliyev, G.KH. Shafiyeva Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:yashar_aze@mail.ru

For the equation

$$u_t(x,t) - bu_{txx}(x,t) - a(t)u_{xx}(x,t) = p(t)u(x,t) + f(x,t)$$
(1)

in the domain $D_T = \{(x,t) : 0 \le x \le 1, 0 \le t \le T\}$ consider an inverse boundary value problem under the initial condition:

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x) \quad (0 \le x \le 1), \tag{2}$$

the boundary conditions

$$u(0,t) = u(1,t), \ u_x(1,t) = 0 \ (0 \le t \le T),$$
(3)

and the overdetermination condition

$$\int_{0}^{1} u(x,t)dx = h(t) \quad (0 \le t \le T),$$
(4)

where b > 0 the given number, a(t) > 0, f(x, t), $\varphi(x)$, h(t) are the given functions, u(x, t) and p(t) are the desired functions.

Definition. We call the pair $\{u(x,t), p(t)\}$ of the functions u(x,t) and p(t) possessing the following properties the classic solution of the inverse boundary value problem (1)-(4).

- (1) the function u(x,t) is continuous in D_T together with all its derivatives contained in equation (1):
- (2) the function p(t) is continuous on [0, T];
- (3) all the conditions (1)-(4) are satisfied in the ordinary sense.

In paper at first the given problem is reduced to the equivalent problem (in definite sense) and a theorem on the existence and uniqueness of the solution is proved for it. Further, using this fact, the existence and uniqueness of the classic solution of the input problem is proved.





EXISTENCE AND UNIQUENESS THEOREM FOR THE SOLUTION OF THE IMPULSIVE DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS WITH NON-LOCAL CONDITIONS

Y.A.Sharifov, N.B.Mammadova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:Sharifov22@rambler.ru

In this report our purpose is to study the existence and uniqueness of solutions for the following impulsive differential equation with non-local conditions,

$$\begin{cases} x'(t) = f(t, x(t)), 0 \le t \le T, t \ne t_i, \\ Ax(0) + Bx(T) = C, \\ \Delta x(t_i) = I_i(x(t_i)), i = 1, 2, ..., p; 0 < t_1 < t_2 < ... < t_p < T \end{cases}$$
(1)

in \mathbb{R}^n , where, f is a continuous function; $A, B \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times n}$; $C \in \mathbb{R}^n, \Delta x(t_i) = x(t_i^+) - x(t_i^-)$, and L_i are some functions.

Definition. A solution of the equation (1) is a function

$$x(.) \in PC([0,T], \mathbb{R}^n) \cap C^1([0,T] \setminus \{t_1, t_2, ..., t_p\}, \mathbb{R}^n)$$

which satisfies (1) on [0, T].

Theorem 1. A function $x \in PC([0,T], \mathbb{R}^n)$ is a solution of the equation (1) if and only if

$$x(t) = (A+B)^{-1}C + \int_{0}^{T} K(t,\tau) f(\tau, x(\tau)) d\tau + \sum_{i=1}^{P} M(t,t_{i})I_{i}(x(t_{i})), \qquad (2)$$
$$K(t,\tau) = \begin{cases} (A+B)^{-1}A, 0 \le \tau \le t \\ -(A+B)^{-1}B, 0 \le \tau \le T \end{cases},$$
$$M(t,t_{i}) = \begin{cases} (A+B)^{-1}A, 0 \le t_{i} \le t \\ -(A+B)^{-1}B, 0 \le t_{i} \le T \end{cases}$$

We list out the following hypotheses:

 $(H1) \quad \det \left(A+B\right) \neq 0$

(H2) $f:[0,T] \times \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}^n, I_i: \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}^n, i = 1, 2, ..., p$ are continuous and there exists constants $K > 0, L_i > 0, i = 1, 2, ..., p$, such that.

$$|f(t, u) - f(t, v)| \le K |u - v|, t \in [0, T], u, v \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$$

$$|I_i(u) - I_i(v)| \le L_i |u - v|, u, v \notin \mathbb{R}^n.$$

(H3) $L = \max\left\{ \left\| (A + B)^{-1} A \right\|, \left\| (A + B)^{-1} B \right\| \right\} \left[KT + \sum_{i=1}^P L_i \right] < 1.$

Theorem 2. Let assumptions (H1)-(H3) are satisfied. Then for every $C \in \mathbb{R}^n$ a equation (1) has a unique solution on [0, T], satisfying (2).





PROBLEMS OF INTERFACE FOR THE LINEAR PSEUDO-PARABOLIC EQUATIONS OF THE THIRD ORDER

A. Sopuev, N.K. Arkabaev Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgystan e-mail:sopuev@rambler.ru, nurkasym@gmail.com

In the domain D, bounded by lines x = 0, $y = -h_1$, $x = \ell$, y = h, $x = -\ell_1$, y = 0 $(h, h_1, \ell_1 > 0)$, it is considered the solution of the boundary value problem for the linear pseudo-parabolic equations of the third order

$$u_{xxx} - u_{xy} + a_1 u_x + d_1 u = 0, \quad (x, y) \in D_1, \tag{1}$$

$$u_{xxy} + a_2 u_{xx} + b_2 u_{xy} + c_2 u_x + d_2 u_y + e_2 u = 0, \quad (x, y) \in D_2,$$
(2)

$$u_{xyy} + a_3 u_{xy} + b_3 u_{yy} + c_3 u_x + d_3 u_y + e_3 u = 0, \quad (x, y) \in D_3,$$
(3)

where $a_i, d_i, b_j, c_j, e_j (i = \overline{1,3}, j = 2,3)$ - functions, in $D_1 = D \cap (x > 0, y > 0), D_2 = D \cap (x > 0, y < 0), D_3 = D \cap (x < 0, y > 0).$

The equations (1) - (3) is represented equations of the third order on classification of work [1]. Such equations often are called as pseudo-parabolic on character of properties of slutions [2, 3]. Special cases of the considered equations meet at studying of absorption of a soil moisture by plants [4].

Let C^{n+m} be a class of the functions having derivatives $\partial^{r+s}/\partial x^r \partial y^s$ (r = 0, 1, ..., n; s = 0, 1, ..., m). It is considered the problem.

Problem. To find function $u(x, y) \in C(\overline{D}) \cap [C^{1+1}(D_1) \cup C^{2+1}(D_2) \cup C^{1+2}(D_3)]$, $u_{xxx} \in C(D_1)$, satisfying the equations (1), (2) and (3) in the domains D_1 , D_2 and D_3 respectively, to initial value conditions

$$\begin{aligned} u(-\ell_1, y) &= \varphi_1(y), \ u(\ell, y) = \varphi_2(y), \ 0 \le y \le h, \\ u(0, y) &= \chi_1(y), \ u_x(0, y) = \chi_2(y), \ -h_1 \le y \le 0, \\ u(x, 0) &= \psi_1(x), \ u_y(x, 0) = \psi_2(x), \ -\ell_1 \le x \le 0 \\ u(x, -0) &= u(x, +0), \ u_y(x, -0) = u_y(x, +0), \ 0 \le x \le \ell, \end{aligned}$$

 $u(-0, y) = u(+0, y), \ u_x(-0, y) = u_x(+0, y), \ 0 \le y \le h,$

where $\varphi_i(y)$, $\chi_i(y)$, $\psi_i(x)$ (i = 1, 2) -- are smooth functions.

By the method of Rieman function of, is proved the existence of uniqueness of the solution of this problem.

- T.D. Djuraev, I. Popelyok. About classification and reduction to kanoni-cheskomu to a kind of the equations with private derivatives of the third order // The differential equations, Vol.27, No.10, 1991, pp. 1734-1745.
- [2] D. Colton. Pseudoparabolic equations in One Space variable // J. Differential Equations, No.12, 1972, pp. 559-565.
- W. Rundell, M. Stecher. Remarks concerning the supports of solutions of pseudoparabolic equation // Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol.63, No.1, 1977, pp. 77-81.
- [4] A.M. Nahushaev. Equation of mathematical biology // M.: The higher school, 1995, 301 p.





FAITHFUL TRANSFER OF SOMMERFELD'S RADIATION CONDITIONS TO AN BOUNDARY OF A DOMAIN¹

Durvudkhan Suragan

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Institute of Mathematics, Informatics and Mechanics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan

e-mail:suragan@list.ru

Consider the following problem

$$\Delta u + q^2(x)u = f, \ x \in \mathbb{R}^d, d > 1, \tag{1}$$

$$\lim_{m \to \infty} r^{(d-1)/2} \left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial r} + iku\right) = 0,$$
(2)

where $f, q \in C^1(\mathbb{R}^n)$, $supp f, supp (q^2 - k^2) \subseteq \overline{\Omega}$, $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^d$ is a bounded domain with sufficiently smooth boundary $\partial\Omega$, r is a radial coordinate and k is a wave number.

Theorem 1. Exists an unique classical solution of the problem (1)-(2) and satisfies the following boundary condition

$$-\frac{u(x)}{2} + \int_{\partial\Omega} \frac{\partial \varepsilon_n(x-y,\lambda)}{\partial n_y} u(y) dS_y - \int_{\partial\Omega} \varepsilon_n(x-y,\lambda) \frac{\partial u(y)}{\partial n_y} dS_y = 0, x \in \partial\Omega.$$
(3)

Conversely, if a function $u \in C^2(\Omega) \cap C^1(\overline{\Omega})$ satisfies the equation (1) and the boundary condition (3) then it coincides with the solution of the problem (1)-(2) in $\overline{\Omega}$.

Where $\varepsilon_n(x)$ is a fundamental solution of the Helmholtz operator $(\Delta + k^2)$, $k \equiv const$, which satisfies the Sommerfeld's radiation condition (2).

Example 1. Let be $q^2 \equiv k^2$ then the boundary value problem (1),(3) has the following unique solution

$$u = \int_{\Omega} \varepsilon_n(x - y, \lambda) f(y) dy, x \in \Omega.$$
(4)

On the other hand, since $q^2 \equiv k^2$, it is known that the volume potential (4) is an unique solution of the problem (1)-(2) in \mathbb{R}^d . Here we can verify that the solution of (1),(3) coincides with the solution of (1)-(2) in Ω .

It should be noted that Theorem 1 gives complete answer to Bezmenov's problem [see 1] for transfer of Sommerfeld's radiation condition to a boundary of a bounded domain and our method can be used more general elliptic problems and other type of PDE problems. In addition, obtained Theorems have many applications in numerical theory [see 2] and in spectral theory of volume potentials [see 3 and 4].

- I.V. Bezmenov. Transfer of Sommerfeld's radiation conditions to an artificial boundary of a domain, based on a variational principle // Sbornik Mathematics, Vol 81, No 2, 1995, pp. 261-279.
- [2] A. Ditkowski, A. Suhov. Near-field infinity-simulating boundary conditions for the heat equation // Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA, Vol 105, No 31, 2008, pp. 10646-10648.
- [3] T.Sh. Kalmenov, D. Suragan. To spectral problems for the volume potential // Doklady Mathematics, Vol 80, 2009, pp. 646–649.
- [4] T.Sh. Kalmenov, D. Suragan. A Boundary Condition and Spectral Problems for the Newton Potentials // Operator Theory: Advances and Applications, Vol 216, Springer, 2011 (appeared).

 $^{^{1}}$ This research is supported by Ministry of Education and Science of the RK Grant for talented young scientists 2010-2012.





DEFINITION OF THE SPEED AND DOMINANT FREQUENCY AHEAD SEISMIC WAVES IN THE MONODISPERSIVE SYSPENSIYA

M.M. Tagiyev

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

The proposed model describes the process of nonlinear wave propagation in the two-phase medium (One of these phases is solid and other is liquid) considering thermodynamic powers. The system of equations which describes the low of conserve of the every phase is complained by the reology equation of solid phase and thermodynamic relations. The problem of one-dimensional dynamics has been solver bu the method of small parameter. The dispersion type relations and evolutionary equation with the Kortevege de-Frise and diffusion type nonlinearities have been obtained. The interval of changes of the dominant frequencies in the layers saturated by water and gaz. There fore the essence of the theory of waves is contained in the construction of the transport equations and in explanation of secondary effects connected with the change in the change in the forms and amplitudes of the waves in medium with complicated properties. In this work the next modified partial differential equation in high order with nonlinearity Kortevege de-Frise, which form depends on dissipation, dispersion and interphase dissipation of resistance:

$$\frac{\partial v}{\partial x} + v \frac{\partial v}{\partial T} - R_2 v \left(1 + \frac{b}{|R_1|} \left| 1 - \frac{\alpha_1^{(0)} \rho_1^{(0)} - \frac{a_0}{b_0 c^2}}{\rho_1^{(0)} (\alpha_1^{(0)} - \gamma)} \right| |\overrightarrow{v}| \right) + R_3 \sum_{l=1}^n (-1)^{l+1} A_{l+1} \frac{\partial^{l+1} v}{\partial T^{l+1}} = 0,$$

where

$$A_{l+1} = \Gamma_{m-l} \frac{a_0 b_l}{b_0} - \Gamma_{n-l} a_l, \Gamma_{n-e} = 1, n \ge l, \Gamma_{n-l} = 0, n < l.$$

On the basis of the suggested model there are discovered new effects holding at analysis and regulation of development of oil-and-gas deposits as well as for forecasting consequences of accepted technological measures on influence upon stratum and stimulation of oil production.





ONE- DIMENSIONAL MOTION OF A COMPESSIBLE MEDIUM IN PIPES OF CONSTANT CROSS SECTION

M.M. Tagiyev

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

In technology and industry processes are often found, contact the unsteady flows in liquids and gazes in cylindrical tubes. When considering the corresponding problems in one-dimensional formulation for the case of compressible continuous medium the closed-loop system of equation of hidrodynamics includes the equation of state:

$$P = Z\rho gRT \tag{1}$$

the first low of thermodynamics in the form of the energy equation

$$dQ = du + Pd(\frac{1}{\rho}) \tag{2}$$

continuity equation

$$\frac{\partial \rho}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial (\rho w)}{\partial x} = 0 \tag{3}$$

and the equation of quantity of movement

$$\frac{\partial(\rho w)}{\partial t} = -\frac{\partial P}{\partial x} + \rho F_S + \rho X,\tag{4}$$

where *P*-pressure, *Z*-function introduced to account for real gas properties , ρ -density, *g*-acceleration due to gravity, *R*- gas constant, *T*- gas temperature , *w*- averaging over the cross rate of gas flow, *X*-mass force. The friction in turbulent flow is proportional to the square of velocity we take care,

$$F_S = -\frac{\lambda}{2d} w |w|,\tag{5}$$

where, d- diameter of the pipe, λ - coefficient of resistance. We consider the isothermal case, which is characteristic for piping lines, which have reached thermal equilibrium with the environment.

Combining equation (1)-(4), we obtain the following equation

$$C^2 \frac{\partial^2 P}{\partial x^2} = 2a \frac{\partial P}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial^2 P}{\partial t^2} \tag{6}$$

This hyperbolic equation is solved by the initial

$$P(x,0) = \varphi_1(x) \text{ and } \frac{\partial P(x,0)}{\partial t} = \varphi_2(x), \tag{7}$$

and boundary conditions:

$$P(0,t) = P1(t), P(l,t) = P_2(t).$$
 (8)

To solve the problem (6)-(8) use the finite difference method or the net method. The influence of physical and mechanical parameters on the wave characteristics.





ON A NUMERICAL METHOD FOR THE LINEAR FREDHOLM PARTIAL INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

A. Tari, S. Shahmorad Shahed University, Tehran, Iran University of Tabriz, Tabriz, Iran e-mail:tari@shahed.ac.ir, shahmorad@tabrizu.ac.ir

In this paper, a method based on the matrix Tau method with standard base is developed to obtain the numerical solution of two dimensional linear Fredholm integro-differential equations of the form

$$a_{1}\frac{\partial^{2}\phi(x,t)}{\partial x^{2}} + a_{2}\frac{\partial^{2}\phi(x,t)}{\partial x\partial t} + a_{3}\frac{\partial^{2}\phi(x,t)}{\partial t^{2}} + a_{4}\frac{\partial\phi(x,t)}{\partial x} + a_{5}\frac{\partial\phi(x,t)}{\partial t} + a_{6}\phi(x,t)$$
$$-\lambda \int_{c}^{d} \int_{a}^{b} K(x,t,y,z)\phi(y,z)dydz = f(x,t), \quad x\epsilon[a,b], \quad t\epsilon[c,d].$$

with conditions

$$\sum_{p=1}^{2} \sum_{j=0}^{1} \sum_{k=0}^{1-j} d_{ijk}^{(p)} \frac{\partial^{j+k} \phi(x,t)}{\partial x^k \partial t^j} |_{x=x_p} = \alpha_i(t), \qquad i = 1, 2$$

and

$$\sum_{k=0}^{1} e_{jk} \frac{\partial^k \phi(x,t)}{\partial t^k} |_{t=t_0} = \beta_j(x), \qquad j = 0, 1$$

where K(x,t,y,z), f(x,t), $\alpha_i(t)$, $\beta_j(x)$ and $a_1(x,t)$,..., $a_6(x,t)$ are continuous functions and λ is a constant.

Here some theoretical results to simplify the application of the Tau method are given. Then by proving some lemmas and theorems we convert TDLFIDE to a system of linear algebraic equations. Finally, some numerical examples are given to demonstrate efficiency and accuracy of the presented method.





THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE NORMAL-REGULAR SOLUTIONS FOR THE GENERAL SYSTEM OF SECOND ORDER PARTIAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Zh.N. Tasmambetov, A.Zh. Tasmambetova Zhubanov State University, Aktobe, Kazakhstan e-mail:tasmam@rambler.ru

In this paper, we consider the following general system of second order partial differential equations:

$$\begin{cases} P^{(0)} \cdot Z_{xx} + P^{(1)} \cdot Z_{xy} + P^{(2)} \cdot Z_{yy} + P^{(3)} \cdot Z_x + P^{(4)} \cdot Z_y + P^{(5)} \cdot Z = 0, \\ Q^{(0)} \cdot Z_{xx} + Q^{(1)} \cdot Z_{xy} + Q^{(2)} \cdot Z_{yy} + Q^{(3)} \cdot Z_x + Q^{(4)} \cdot Z_y + Q^{(5)} \cdot Z = 0, \end{cases}$$
(1)

where coefficients $P^{(i)} = P^{(i)}(x, y)$ and $Q^{(i)} = Q^{(i)}(x, y)$ $(i = \overline{0, 5})$ are analytical functions or polynomials of two variables; and Z = Z(x, y) is common unknown.

We need to define abilities of construction of normal-regular solutions for

$$Z = \exp Q(x, y) \cdot x^{\rho} \cdot y^{\sigma} \cdot \sum_{\mu, \nu=0}^{\infty} A_{\mu, \nu} \cdot x^{\mu} \cdot y^{\nu} \qquad (A_{0,0} \neq 0)$$
⁽²⁾

where $\rho, \sigma, A_{\mu,\nu}$, $(\mu, \nu = 0, 1, 2, ...)$ are unknown constants. Coefficients $\alpha_{p0}, \alpha_{0p}, ..., \alpha_{11}, \alpha_{10}, \alpha_{01}$ of a polynomial

$$Q(x,y) = \frac{\alpha_{p0}}{p} \cdot x^p + \frac{\alpha_{0p}}{p} \cdot y^p + \dots + \alpha_{11} \cdot xy + \alpha_{10} \cdot x + \alpha_{01} \cdot y \tag{3}$$

are also unknowns. We find degree of polynomial Q(x, y) using rank p = 1 + k (here, k is a subrank); rank was introduced by Poincare.

The solution of (2) exists if rank of a system $p \leq 0$ and antirank $m \leq 0$ ($m = -1 - \lambda$ ($\lambda - antisubrank$)). An antirank was introduced by L.Tome. Suppose system (1) is joint [1]. Singular curves of a system are determined by equating to zero coefficients at higher derivatives Z_{xx}, Z_{xy} and Z_{yy} , that is $P^{(j)}(x, y) \equiv 0$ and $Q^{(j)}(x, y) \equiv 0$ (j = 0, 1, 2).

For a construction of solutions for (2) the Frobenius-Latysheva method is used [2]. In general, normal-regular solutions are associated with (0;0) singularity.

In this paper:

1. there was performed for the various cases of coefficients' setting the classification of system (1) singular curves. Let us remark that *behavior* of solutions in the neighborhood of points where at least two singular curves are intersected *is still little known*.

2. The first and the second necessary conditions for existence of (2) solutions were established.

3. A theorem on necessary and sufficient condition for existence of normal-regular solutions of (2) is proved.

References

[1] E.J. Wilczynski. Projective Differential Geometry of Curves and Ruled Surfaces // Leipzig: Feubner, 120 p.

[2] Zh.N. Tasmambetov. Normal solutions for some special systems of second order partial differential equations with polynomial coefficients // Author's abstract of scientific paper, Almaty, 2004, 41 p.





OPTIMIZATION METHOD TO THE SOLVING THE GELFAND-LEVITAN EQUATION OF THE FIRST KIND

L.N. Temirbekova, G. Dairbaeva

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan

e-mail:Lazzat.Dairbaeva@kaznu.kz

Direct problem with a point source is to find a generalized solution u(x, t) of the Cauchy problem

$$u_{tt} = u_{xx} - q(x)u, \quad x \in R, \ t > 0,$$
 (1)

$$u|_{t=0} = 0, \ , \ u_t|_{t=0} = \delta(x).$$
 (2)

In the inverse problem it is required to recover a continuous function q(x) on the following for more information about solving the direct problem (1)-(2)

$$u(0,t) = f(t), \ u_x|_{x=0} = 0, \ t \ge 0,$$
(3)

where f is twice continuously differentiable function and f(+0) = 1/2. We extend u(x,t) and f(t) an odd way to negative t: u(x,t) = -u(x,-t), f(t) = -f(-t), where f(-0) = -1/2. Function f has a point t = 0 rupture of the first kind, and when $t \neq 0$ twice continuously differentiable. Then the extended function u(x,t) satisfies for all $(x,t) \in \mathbb{R}^2$ equation

$$u_{tt} = u_{xx} - q(x)u,\tag{4}$$

$$u(x,t) = 0, \ t < |x|.$$
 (5)

Assume, that the inverse problem (1)-(3) exists. Then function u(x,t) satisfies to the additional condition

$$u(0,t) = f(t), \ u_x|_{x=0} = 0, \ t \ge 0.$$
 (6)

In [1] it is shown, that a solution (4)-(6) is reduced to solving an integral equation of Gelfan-Levitan of the first kind

$$\frac{1}{2}[f(t+x) + f(t-x)] + \int_{-x}^{x} f(t-s)q(s)ds = 0, \ t \in (-x,x).$$
(7)

Equation (7) we write the operator form

$$Aq = h, (8)$$

where

$$Aq = \int_{-x}^{x} f(t-s)q(s)ds, \quad h = \frac{1}{2}[f(t+x) + f(t-x)], \quad t \in (-x,x).$$

For the numerical solution of the equation (8) we apply the optimization method. Consider the entire functional $J(q) = ||Aq - h||^2$. To minimize it using a simple iteration method $q_{n+1} = q_n - \alpha J'q_n$. We calculate the adjoint operator A^* : $\langle Aq, \varphi \rangle = \langle q, A^*\varphi \rangle$, $A^*\varphi = \int_{-x}^{x} f(t - \xi)\varphi(\xi)d\xi$. As

$$J'q(s) = 2A^*(Aq - h)(s) = \int_{-x}^{x} f(\xi - s) [\int_{-x}^{x} f(\xi - \beta)q(\beta)d\beta - h(\xi)]d\xi,$$

the method of simple iteration can be written $q_{n+1}(s) = q_n(s) - 2\alpha \int_{-x}^{x} f(\xi - s) \left[\int_{-x}^{x} f(\xi - \beta)q(\beta)d\beta - h(\xi) \right] d\xi.$ Parameter $\alpha \in (0, ||A^{-2}||).$

References

[1] S.Kabanikhin. Inverse and Ill-Posed Problems // Novosibirsk, 2009.





THE EFFECT OF DELAYS ON THE BOUNDEDNESS OF SOLUTIONS OF LINEAR VOLTERRA INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION OF SECOND ORDER

M.A. Temirov

Institute of Pure and Applied Mathematics, National Academy of Sciences, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:min.max@mail.ru

All appearing functions and their derivatives are continuous and the relations hold under $t \ge t_0, t \ge \tau \ge t_0; |x_i|, |y_i| < \infty \quad (j = 1..n); J = [t_0, \infty);$ IDE - integro-differential equation.

This work is devoted to the problem of establishing sufficient conditions for boundedness of all solutions on the interval J of weakly nonlinear IDE second-order Volterra type with delays:

$$x''(t) + a_1(t)x'(t) + a_0(t)x(t) + \int_{t_0}^t K(t,\tau)x'(\tau)d\tau = f(t) + \sum_{j=1}^m F_j(t,x(\alpha_j(t)), x'(\beta_j(t))), \quad t \ge t_0, \quad (1)$$

where

$$t_0 \le \alpha_j(t) \le t, \quad t_0 \le \beta_j(t) \le t,$$

 $|F_j(t, x_j, y_j)| \le g_{0j}(t) |x_j| + g_{1j}(t) |y_j| \quad (g_{kj}(t) \ge 0, \ k = 0, 1; \ j = 1..m),$

when all the solutions corresponding IDE without delays:

$$x''(t) + a_1(t)x'(t) + a_0(t)x(t) + \int_{t_0}^t K(t,\tau)x'(\tau)d\tau = f(t) + \sum_{j=1}^m F_j(t,x(t), x'(t)), \quad t \ge t_0$$
(2)

can be unbounded in J. Note, that this task is achieved by the integral term and the introduction of a weighting function $\varphi(t) > 0$. For example, we show that all solutions IDE with delays:

$$x''(t) + x(t) + \int_{0}^{t} 24e^{-t+\tau}x'(\tau)d\tau = 7[x(\frac{t}{2}) + x'(\frac{t}{3})], \ t \ge 0$$

bounded on the half-axis $R_+ = [0, \infty)$ and at the same time, all non-zero solutions $x(t) = (3e^t - 2e^{3t})c_1 + (9e^{2t} - 8e^{3t})c_2 \ (c_1, c_2 - \forall \ const)$ IDE without delays:

$$x''(t) - 7x'(t) - 6x(t) + \int_{0}^{t} 24e^{-t+\tau}x'(\tau)d\tau = 0, \ t \ge 0$$

are unbounded on the half-axis R_+ . The method of weighting and cutting functions [1] and the method of integral inequalities with delays [2, 3] are applied.

- [1] S. Iskandarov. Method of weighting and cutting functions and asymptotic properties of solutions of integro-differential and integral equations Volterra type // Bishkek, Ilim, 2002, 216 p(In Russian).
- [2] S. Iskandarov. Method of cutting functions and boundedness of solutions of Volterra second order integro-differential equations with retarded arguments // Vestnik KRSU, Bishkek, Vol.5, No.7, 2005, pp.71-74(In Russian).
- [3] S. Iskandarov, M.A. Temirov. About boundedness of solutions of weakly nonlinear Volterra second order integrodifferential equation with delays // Bishkek, Ilim, Vol.36, 2007, pp. 68-73(In Russian).





BOUNDARY PROBLEM FOR THE GENERALIZED SYSTEM MOISILA-TEODORESKU

Z.A. Tokibetov, S.Z. Sapakova Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:SapakovaS@mail.ru

The known system Moisila-Teodoresku is a special case of next system

$$u_x + v_y + b_1 w_z - b_2 s_z = 0, \quad v_x - u_y + b_1 s_z + b_2 w_z = 0, w_x - s_y - k b_1 u_z - k b_2 v_z = 0, \quad s_x + w_y - k b_1 v_z + k b_2 u_z = 0,$$
(1)

where $b = b_1 + ib_2$ – any complex number, $k = (b_1^2 + b_2^2)^{-2} \neq 0$ – a real number. When the $b_1 = 1$, $b_2 = 0$ from system (1) follows Moisila-Teodoresku's system.

The common decision of system (1) is expressed through two any harmonious functions σ and τ under the formula

$$u = b_1 \sigma_z - b_2 \tau_z, \quad v = b_1 \tau_z + b_2 \sigma_z, \quad w = -\sigma_x - \tau_y, \quad s = -\tau_x + \sigma_y.$$

$$\tag{2}$$

By using of (2) an analogue of the Riemann-Hilbert's problem for system (1) about finding of the regular decision in the field $D \equiv \{z > 0\}$ of the system (1), satisfying on border $G \equiv \{z = 0\}$ to conditions $\alpha_j u + \beta_j v + \gamma_j w + \delta_j s = f_j$, j = 1, 2, $(\alpha_j, \beta_j \gamma_j, \delta_j f_j - \text{set of continuous on Hölder functions on G)$ it is reduced to a problem of search of two regular in the field of D harmonious functions σ and τ , satisfying on border G of area D to conditions

$$(\overline{A}_j, \nabla \sigma) + (\overline{B}_j, \nabla \tau) = f_j, \quad j = 1, 2,$$
(3)

where $\overline{A}_j(-\gamma_j, \delta_j, \alpha_j b_1 + \beta_j b_2), \ \overline{B}_j = (-\delta_j, -\gamma_j, \beta_j b_1 - \alpha_j b_2), \ \nabla \equiv \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial x}, \frac{\partial}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial}{\partial z}\right).$

By method of Buligan-Zhiro we will search the decision of a problem (3) in a form

$$\sigma(X) = \int_{G} [G_1(X, P)\mu_1(P) + G_2(X, P)\mu_2(P)]dpG, \ \tau(X) = \int_{G} [H_1(X, P)\mu_1(P) + H_2(X, P)\mu_2(P)]dpG,$$

here $X = (x, y, z) \in D$, $P = (a, b, c) \in G$.

The following theorem is proved: if harmonious Ω function satisfies the equation

$$v_1\Omega_{xz} + v_2\Omega_{yz} + v_3\Omega_{zz} = \frac{\partial}{\partial n}\left(\frac{1}{r}\right),$$

 $\begin{array}{l} (v_1=-m_2\delta_1+n_2\gamma_1-m_1\delta_2+n_1\gamma_2), \ v_2=-m_1\gamma_2+n_1\delta_2+m_2\gamma_1+n_2\delta_1), \ v_3=m_1n_2+n_1m_2-\gamma_1\delta_2-n_1\gamma_2), \ m_j=\alpha_jb_1+\beta_jb_2, \ n_j=\beta_jb_1-\alpha_jb_2, \ j=1,2) \ \text{that} \end{array}$

 $G_1(X,P) = (\overline{B}_2, \nabla\Omega), \ H_1(X,P) = -(\overline{A}_2, \nabla\Omega), \ G_2(X,P) = -(\overline{B}_1, \nabla\Omega), \ H_2(X,P) = -(\overline{A}_1, \nabla\Omega)$ satisfies system

$$(\overline{A}_j, \nabla G_i) + (\overline{B}_j, \nabla H_i) = \delta_{ij} \frac{\partial}{\partial n} \left(\frac{1}{r}\right), \ i, j = 1, 2,$$

(here δ_{ij} – a symbol of Kronekera) and densities μ_1 , μ_2 are decisions of system of the Fredholm integrated equations

$$\mu_j(Q) + \frac{1}{2\pi} \int\limits_G \frac{\partial}{\partial n} \left(\frac{1}{r}\right) \mu_j(P) dpG = \frac{1}{2\pi} f_i(Q), \quad i, j = 1, 2, \quad Q \in D.$$





ON PROPERTIES OF THE HEAT POTENTIAL FOR THE HIGH-ORDER HEAT EQUATION

T.Sh. Kalmenov, N.E. Tokmagambetov

Institute of Mathematics, Mechanics and Computer science, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kalmenov.t@mail.ru, tokmagam@list.ru

When computing the solution of a partial differential equation in an unbounded domain, one often introduces artificial boundaries. In order to limit the computational cost, these boundaries must be chosen not too far from the domain of interest. Therefore, the boundary conditions must be good approximations to the so-called transparent boundary condition (i.e., such that the solution of the problem in the bounded domain is equal to the solution in the original domain). This question is of crucial interest in such different areas as geophysics, plasma physics, fluid dynamics [2,3,5]. In view of the mentioned shortcomings of the methods described, the need for practical transparent (artificial) boundary conditions combining efficiency and simplicity is evident. Such conditions must satisfy several criteria: (i) The resulting initial boundary value problem should be unique and stable; (ii) the solution to the initial boundary value problem should coincide or closely approximate the solution of the infinite problem on; and (iii) the conditions must allow for an analytical solution or an efficient numerical implementation. In this work we consider artificial boundary conditions for the high-order Cauchy problem for the heat equation. The conditions satisfy the above-mentioned criteria (i), (ii) and (iii). Similar results were taken for the Laplace equation in [4]. The transparent boundary condition is usually an integral relation in time and space between u and its normal derivative on the boundary, which makes it impractical from a numerical point of view. Alternatively, the requirement for boundary conditions can be avoided when the solution of a partial differential equation is approximated in the form of convolution in space and time with the fundamental solution. An efficient approximation of this type for the heat equation is proposed in [1].

- A. Ditkowski, A. Suhov. Near-field infinity-simulating boundary conditions for the heat equation // Proc. Nat. Acad. Sci., USA, Vol.105, No.31, 2008, pp. 10646-10648, Vol.2, 2003, pp. 249-255.
- B. Engquist, A. Majda. Radiation boundary conditions for acoustic and elastic wave calculations // Comm. Pure Appl. Math., Vol.32, 1979, pp. 313-357.
- [3] G.W. Hedstrom. Nonreflecting boundary conditions for nonlinear hyperbolic systems // J.Comput. Phys., Vol.30, 1979, pp. 222-237.
- [4] T.Sh. Kalmenov, D.Suragan. To Spectral Problems for the Volume Potential // Doklady Mathematics, Vol.78, No.3, 2008, pp.913-915.
- [5] Li J-R, L. Greengard. On the numerical solution of the heat equation I: Fast solvers in free space // J. Comput. Phys., Vol. 226, 1901.





BOUNDARY CONDITIONS OF THE WAVE POTENTIAL

T.Sh. Kalmenov, A.E. Toleukhanov

Institute of Mathematics, Computer Science and Mechanics, Almaty, Kazakhstan Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan

e-mail:aman_mkm@mail.ru

In the bounded domain $\Omega \equiv \{(x,t): (0,l) \times (0,T)\}$, we consider the following wave potential

$$u(x,t) = \int_{\Omega} \varepsilon(x-\xi,t-\tau) f(\xi,\tau) d\xi d\tau$$
(1)

where $\varepsilon(x - \xi, t - \tau) = \frac{1}{2}\theta(t - \tau - |x - \xi|)$ is a fundamental solution of Cauchy problem for the wave equation [1], i.e.

$$\frac{\partial^2 \varepsilon (x - \xi, t - \tau)}{\partial t^2} - \frac{\partial^2 \varepsilon (x - \xi, t - \tau)}{\partial x^2} = \delta(x - \xi, t - \tau), \tag{2}$$

$$\frac{\partial^2 \varepsilon(x-\xi,t-\tau)}{\partial \tau^2} - \frac{\partial^2 \varepsilon(x-\xi,t-\tau)}{\partial \xi^2} = \delta(x-\xi,t-\tau).$$
(3)

$$\varepsilon(x-\xi,t-\tau)\mid_{\tau=t} = \frac{\partial\varepsilon(x-\xi,t-\tau)}{\partial\tau}\mid_{\tau=t} = \frac{\partial\varepsilon(x-\xi,t-\tau)}{\partial t}\mid_{\tau=t} = 0.$$
(4)

If $f(x,t) \in L_2(\Omega)$, then $u(x,t) \in W_2^1(\Omega) \cap W_2^1(\partial\Omega)$ and the wave potential (1) satisfies to the following equation [see 1]

$$\frac{\partial^2 u(x,t)}{\partial t^2} - \frac{\partial^2 u(x,t)}{\partial x^2} = f(x,t), (x,t) \in \Omega,$$
(5)

with initial conditions

$$u(x,0) = u_t(x,0) = 0, 0 < x < l.$$
(6)

The wave potential (1) is widely used at solutions of various boundary problems for the wave equation. Below we find the lateral boundary conditions of the wave potential (1).

Theorem 1. If $f(x,t) \in L_2(\Omega)$, then u(x,t) the wave potential (1) satisfies lateral boundary conditions

$$(u_x - u_t)(0, t) = 0, x = 0, 0 < t < T.$$
(7)

$$(u_x + u_t)(l, t) = 0, x = l, 0 < t < T.$$
(8)

Conversely, if a function $u(x,t) \in W_2^1(\Omega) \cap W_2^1(\partial\Omega)$ satisfies to the equation (5) and initial conditions (6), also the lateral boundary conditions (7)-(8) then the function u(x,t) uniquely defines the wave potential (1).

Here we use the technique of [3].

- [1] V.S. Vladimirov. Equations of mathematical physics // M.: Nauka, 1981.
- [2] G.C. Hsiao, W.L. Wendland. Boundary Integral Equations // 2008.
- [3] T.Sh. Kalmenov, D. Suragan. To spectral problems of the volume potential // Doklady of Russian Academy of Sciences, Vol.428, No.4, 2009, pp. 16-19.





ON OSCILLATORY PROPERTY OF THE ELLIPTIC EQUATIONS

A. Torayev Institute of Oil and Gas, Ashgabat, Turkmenistan e-mail:torayev.amangeldi@mail.ru

We consider the following elliptic equation in \mathbb{R}^n

$$-\sum_{i,j=1}^{n} (a_{ij}(x)u_{x_i})_{x_j} + a(x)u = 0, \quad x \in \mathbb{R}^n,$$
(1)

where $a_{ij}(x), i, j = 1, ..., n$, and a(x) is the locally bounded measurable functions in \mathbb{R}^n . Assume $a_{ij}(x) = a_{ji}(x)$ and

$$\sum_{i,j=1}^{n} a_{ij}(x)\xi_i\xi_j \ge C|\xi|^2, \quad C = const > 0, \xi \in \mathbb{R}^n.$$
(2)

Let

$$V_i = x_1^{2p_1} + x_2^{2p_2} + \dots + x_i^{2p_i}, \ p_i > 0 (i = 1, \dots, n), \ \sum_{i=1}^n \frac{1}{2p_i} = \frac{n}{2},$$
$$R_{\alpha}^n = \{ x \in \mathbb{R}^n : \quad V_1 > \alpha \}.$$

In this article we give a new oscillatory and nonoscillatory conditions for the equation (1) in \mathbb{R}^n .

Definition. We say that the equation (1) is oscillatory in \mathbb{R}^n , if for any bounded domain $G \subset \mathbb{R}^n_{\alpha}$, $\alpha > 0$, the equation (1) have nontrivial solution $u(x) \in W_0^{1,2}(G)$ and is nonoscillatory in the contrary case.

Theorem. Let $a_{ij}(x) = \delta_{ij}, p_k = \max\{p_1, p_2, ..., p_n\}, p_i \neq p_j \text{ if } i \neq j$. If

$$a(x) \ge -\left[\left(\frac{n}{2} - \frac{1}{p_k}\right)^2 + \frac{1}{\ln^2 V_1}\right] \frac{p_k^2 (2p_k - 1)}{(n+2)p_k - 2} V_1^{p_k^{-1}} (V_2 V_3 \dots V_{k-1} (1 - V_k))^{1 - p_k^{-1}},$$

then the equation (1) is oscillatory in \mathbb{R}^n . If for some $\epsilon > 0$

$$a(x) \leq -\left[\left(\frac{n}{2} - \frac{1}{p_k}\right)^2 + \frac{1+\epsilon}{\ln^2 V_1}\right] \frac{p_k^2(2p_k - 1)}{(n+2)p_k - 2} V_1^{p_k^{-1}} (V_2 V_3 \dots V_{k-1}(1-V_k))^{1-p_k^{-1}},$$

then the equation (1) is nonoscillatory in \mathbb{R}^n .





ROBIN BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM OF n-ORDER ELLIPTIC SYSTEMS IN THE PLANE WITH ARE SINGULAR LINES

A.B.Tungatarov, D.K.Seilgazin

"Finance Academy" JCS, Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:tun-mat@list.ru, daul.s@mail.ru

Let $0 < \varphi_0 \leq 2\pi$, $G = \{z = re^{i\varphi} : 0 \leq r < \infty, 0 \leq \varphi \leq \varphi_0\}, 0 < \varphi_j < \varphi_0, (j = 1, 2, ..., m)$. We consider the equation

$$\sum_{j=1}^{n} f_j(\varphi) (2\bar{z}\frac{\partial}{\partial\bar{z}})^j V + f_{n+1}(\varphi) V + r^\alpha \frac{f_{n+2}(\varphi)}{\prod_{j=1}^{m} (y-k_j x)^{\alpha_j}} \overline{V} = r^\nu \frac{f_{n+3}(\varphi)}{\prod_{j=1}^{m} (y-k_j x)^{\alpha_j}}$$
(1)

in G, where

 $f_j(\varphi) \in C[0,\varphi_0], (j = 1, 2, ..., n + 3), f_n(\varphi) \neq 0$ for all $\varphi \in [0,\varphi_0], k_j = tan\varphi_j, 0 < \alpha_j < 1, \nu > 2 + \alpha, \alpha = \sum_{j=1}^m \alpha_j,$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial \bar{z}} = \frac{1}{2} (\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + i \frac{\partial}{\partial y}), \ \frac{\partial^j V}{\partial \bar{z}^j} = \frac{\partial}{\partial \bar{z}} (\frac{\partial^{j-1} V}{\partial \bar{z}^{j-1}}), \ (j = 2, 3, .., n).$$

Equation (1) is investigated for $\alpha = 0$, $f_j(\varphi) \equiv 0$, (j = 2, 3, ..., n), $f_1(\varphi) \equiv const \neq 0$ in [1]. For $\alpha = 0$, there is no singular line. This case is investigated for $f_j(\varphi) \equiv 0, (j = 3, 4, ..., n), f_2(\varphi) \equiv$ $const \neq 0$ in [2], and for $f_j(\varphi) \equiv 0, (j = 4, 5, ..., n), f_3(\varphi) \equiv const \neq 0$ in [3]. In [4] the Cauchy problem and in [5] the Robin problem for (1) with $\alpha = 0$, $f_j(\varphi) \equiv 0$, (j = 5, 6, ..., n), $f_4(\varphi) \equiv const \neq 1$ 0 are solved. We consider the Robin problem for system (1).

Problem R. Find a solution of equation (1) from the class $W_p^n(G) \cap C^{n-1}(G)$, satisfying the conditions $\sum_{k=1}^{n} \alpha_{j,k} \frac{\partial^{k-1} V(r,0)}{\partial \varphi^{k-1}} = \beta_j r^{\nu-\alpha}, \ (j = 1, 2, ..., n), \ where \ \alpha_{j,k}, \beta_j, \ (j = 1, 2, ..., n), \ (k = 1, 2, ..., n)$

are given real numbers.

Here $W_p^n(G), p > 1$, is the Sobolev space. We proved the following theorem.

Theorem. If $|A| \neq 0$ then problem R has a unique solution. Here |A|-is determinant of the matrix $A = \{a_{i,j}\}, (i, j = 1, 2, ..., n)$.

- [1] S.A. Abdymanapov, A.B. Tungatarov. Some Class of Elliptic Systems on the Plane with Singular Coefficients // Almaty, "Gylym", 2005, (Russian).
- [2] S.A. Abdymanapov, A.B. Tungatarov. An initial problem for a class of second order elliptic systems in the plane with a singular point // Complex Variables and Elliptic Equations, Vol. 52, No.8, 2007, pp. 655-661.
- [3] S.K. Burgumbayeva, A.B. Tungatarov. Cauchy problem for a class of elliptic systems of third order in the plane with Fuchsian differential operator // General Mathematics, Vol.17, No.1, 2009, pp. 95-103.
- [4] A.B. Tungatarov, A.K. Yessentemirova. About the Cauchy problem for a class of fourth order elliptic systems in the plane with Fuchs operator in the differential part // Eurasian Mathematical Journal, No.3, 2008, pp. 51-58 (Russian).
- A.B. Tungatarov, A.K. Yessentemirova. About a Robin type problem for a class of fourth order elliptic systems in the 5 plane with Fuchs differential operator // Aktobe, V. International Scientific Conference, 2009, pp. 113-114 (Russian).




OF ELLIPTIC SYSTEMS IN THE PLANE WITH A SINGULAR POINT

A. Tungatarov, S.A. Abdymanapov, B. Nurimov "Finance Academy" JCS, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:tun-mat@list.ru, nurbaur@mail.ru

Let G be bounded domain of the complex plane with the inner point z = a. Let S(G) be the set of measurable, essentially bounded functions f(z) in G with the norm $||f||_{S(G)} = \lim_{p\to\infty} ||f||_{L_p(G)}$. Now the spaces used below are defined: $S_{\nu}(G, a)$ is the class of functions f(z), for which $f(z)|z-a|^{\nu} \in S(G)$. The norm in $S_{\nu}(G, a)$ is defined by formula $||f||_{S_{\nu}(G,a)} = ||f(z)|z-a|^{\nu}||_{S(G)}$, where ν is a real number. $C_{\nu}(\bar{G}, a)$ is the class of functions f(z), for which $f(z)|z-a|^{\nu} \in C(\bar{G})$. The norm in $C_{\nu}(\bar{G}, a)$ is defined by the formula $||f||_{C_{\nu}(\bar{G},a)} = ||f(z)|z-a|^{\nu}||_{C(\bar{G})}$. $W_p^1(G), p > 1$ is the Sobolev space [1]. Let us consider in G the equation

$$\partial_{\overline{z}}V + A(z)V + B(z)\overline{V} = F(z), \tag{1}$$

where $A(z), B(z) \in S_1(G); F(z) \in S_\beta(G, a), 0 < \beta < \frac{2}{q}, q > 2$. For a = 0 we receive the equation

$$\partial_{\overline{z}}V + \frac{A_0(z)}{|z|}V + \frac{B_0(z)}{|z|}\overline{V} = F(z),$$
(2)

where $A_0(z), B_0(z) \in S(G); F(z) \in S_\beta(G, 0), 0 < \beta < \frac{2}{q}, q > 2.$

Equation of the form (2) with F(z) = 0 arise in the theory of infinitesimal deformations of surfaces of positive curvature with a flat point [2]. There it is required to prove the existence of continuous of equation (2) in the neighborhood of a singular point z = 0. In this connection the equation (2) is studied in many works of L.G.Mikhailov, Z.D.Usmanov [3,4], etc. In all results usually a sufficient smallness of the coefficients $A_0(z)$ and $B_0(z)$ or the smallness of the domain G is supposed. We proved existence of solutions V(z) of the equation (1), satisfying to the condition V(a) = 0, without any conditions on the smallness of the coefficients or on the smallness of the domain G in the class

$$W_q^1(G) \cap C_{\beta-1}(\overline{G}, a), \ 0 < \beta < \frac{2}{q}, \ q > 2.$$
 (3)

The Riemann-Hilbert problem for the equation (2) in the class (3) is solved without any smallness conditions on the coefficients assumed in [3,4]. The structures of the zeros and poles of the solutions of the equation (1) in the class (3) are investigated.

- I.N. Vekua. Generalized Analytic Functions // Fizmatgiz, Moscow, 1959 (Russian), English translation, Pergamon Press., Oxford, 1962.
- [2] Z.D. Usmanov. Infinitesimal bendings of surfaces of positive curvature with a flattening point // Differential Geometry, Banach Center Publications, Warsaw, Vol.12, 1984, pp. 241-272.
- [3] L.G. Mikhailov. A New Class of Singular Integral Equations and its Applications, to Differential Equations with a Singular Coefficient // Irfon, Dushanbe, 1963 (Russian).
- [4] Z.D. Usmanov. Generalized Cauchy-Riemann Systems with a Singular Point // Sib.Math., Vol.14, No.5, 1973, pp. 1076-1087 (Russian).





A NONLOCAL FREE BOUNDARY PROBLEM FOR QUASILINIEAR PARABOLIC EQUATION

Jozil O.Takhirov, Rasul N.Turaev

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies of the Uzbek Academy of Science, Uzbekistan e-mail:prof.takhirov@yahoo.com, rasul.turaev@mail.ru

The present paper is devoted to the study of a non-classical free boundary problem for nonlinear parabolic equation in one-space dimension. Free boundary problems arise naturally in a namber of physical phenomena with change of state (such as melting of ice and recrystallization of metals) and have been studied by many authors.

The precise statement of the problem is as follows:

Let T > 0 and $D = \{(t, x) : 0 < t \le T, 0 < x < s(t)\}.$

Find a pair of functions, u(t, x) and s(t), with are defined on \overline{D} and [0, T], respectively, and with satisfy

$$u_{xx}(t,x) = a(u)u_t(t,x), \quad (t,x) \in D$$
 (1)

$$u(0,x) = \varphi(x), \quad 0 \le x \le s_0, \tag{2}$$

$$u(t,0) = mu(t,x_0), \quad 0 \le t \le T, \quad 0 < x_0 \le s_0$$
(3)

$$u(t, s(t)) = 0, \quad 0 \le t \le T,$$
(4)

$$\dot{s}(t) = -cu_x(t, s(t)), \quad 0 \le t \le T,$$
(5)

where $s_0, 0 < m < 1, c$ - are positive constants, $a(u) \ge a_0 > 0$ is a function defined for $u(t, x) \ge 0$ and a'(u) > 0.

This kind of problems for a certain class of nonlinear parabolic equations was treated earlier by Douglas [1] and Kyner [2] in with they showed the existence and uniqueness of solutions by using a strong maximum principle for parabolic equations with variable coefficients.

Problems for linear equations with nonlocal (initial or boundary) conditions have been studied in many papers. But fue boundary value problems for non-linear equations with non-local conditions are almost investigated yet.

The principal difficulty under constructing the theory of nonlocal boundary value problems is the obtaining of apriori estimations for the absolute value of the derivative u_x and its Holder's constant.

We will first study the local solvability.

Then, some apriori estimates are derived to establish the global existence of the solution.

- J. Jr. Douglas. A uniqueness theorem for the solution of the Stefan problem // Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., Vol. 8, 1952, pp. 402-408.
- [2] W.T. Kyner. An existance and uniqueness theorem for a nonlinear Stefan problem // J. Math. Mech., Vol. 8, No. 4, 1959, pp. 483-498.







UNIFORM ASYMPTOTIC SOLUTIONS OF THE CAUCHY PROBLEM FOR A GENERALIZED MODEL EQUATION OF L.S.PONTRYAGIN IN THE CASE OF VIOLATION OF CONDITIONS OF ASYMPTOTIC STABILITY

D.A. Tursunov Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:d_osh@rambler.ru

In this paper, we construct a uniform asymptotic solution of the Cauchy problem of the small parameter for the inhomogeneous differential equation with small parameter at the derivative, when the linear part of the equation is a pure complex and his real part changes from negative to positive when one going from the left half on the right half plane.

Consider the Cauchy problem for a singularly perturbed equation

$$\varepsilon x'(t) = (t+i)x(t) + f(t), x(t_0) = x^0,$$
(1)

where $\varepsilon > 0$ - small parameter, f(t) - analytic function in D,

 $D = \{(|t| \le \rho > 1\}, x^0 - const, t \in D, x(t) - unknown function.\}$

This problem was first considered by a graduate student [1] of academician L.S.Pontryagin and restrictions solutions on the interval $t \in [-1, 1]$.

Here it is constructed a uniform asymptotic expansion of (1) on the interval $t \in D$. Theorem. Asymptotical of the solution of the problem (1) is represented in the form:

 $x(t,\varepsilon) = \mu^{-1}\pi_{-1}(t) + \pi_0 + x_0(t) + \dots + (\pi_n(t) + x_n(t))\mu^n + R_{n+1}(t,\mu), \text{ where } \mu = \sqrt{\varepsilon}, x_k(t) \text{- analytic functions in D, } \pi_k(t,\varepsilon) = O(1)e^{\frac{t^2-1}{\varepsilon}}, k = \overline{0,n},$

 $|R_{n+1}(t,\mu)| \le M, M - const.$

References

 M. A. Shishkova. Consideration of a system of differential equations with small parameter at higher derivatives // DAN SSSR, Vol.209, No.3, 1973, pp. 576-579.





THE SYSTEM OF KAUP'S EQUATION WITH A SELF-CONSISTENT SOURCE OF INTEGRAL TYPE IN THE CLASS OF PERIODIC FUNCTIONS

Alberto Cabada, Alisher Yakhshimuratov

University of Santiago de Compostela, Santiago de Compostela, Spain, Urgench State University, Urgench, Uzbekistan e-mail:alberto.cabada@usc.es, albaron@mail.ru

We study the following system of Kaup's equations ([1]) with self-consistent source

$$p_t = -6pp_x - q_x + \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \beta(\lambda, t)(\psi_+ \psi_-)_x d\lambda, \qquad (1)$$

$$q_t = p_{xxx} - 4qp_x - 2pq_x + 2\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \beta(\lambda, t) \{-p_x \cdot (\psi_+\psi_-) + (\lambda - 2p) \cdot (\psi_+\psi_-)_x\} d\lambda$$
(2)

coupled with the initial conditions

$$p(x,t)|_{t=0} = p_0(x), \qquad q(x,t)|_{t=0} = q_0(x).$$
 (3)

We look for real-valued solution p and q, that is π -periodic on the partial variable x and satisfy the following regularity assumptions: $1)p \in C^{3,1}_{x,t}(t > 0) \cap C(t \ge 0), q \in C^1(t > 0) \cap C(t \ge 0)$; 2) For any nontrivial function $y \in W_2^2[0,\pi]$, satisfying the equality $y'(0)\bar{y}(0) - y'(\pi)\bar{y}(\pi) = 0$, the following inequality holds $\int_0^{\pi} \left\{ |y'(x)|^2 + q(x,t) |y(x)|^2 \right\} dx > 0$. In the previous expressions, β is a given real continuous function having a uniform asymptotic behavior $\beta(\lambda, t) = O(\lambda^{-3}), \ \lambda \to \pm \infty$ and $\psi_{\pm}(x, \lambda, t)$ are the Floquet's solutions (normalized by the condition $\psi_{\pm}(0, \lambda, t) = s(\pi, \lambda, t)$) of the quadratic pencil of Sturm-Liouville's equations:

$$-y'' + q(x,t)y + 2\lambda \, p(x,t)y - \lambda^2 y = 0, \quad x \in \mathbb{R}^1.$$
(4)

We denote by $s(x, \lambda, t)$ the solution of (4) satisfying the initial conditions $s(0, \lambda, t) = 0$, $s'(0, \lambda, t) = 1$.

Theorem. Let (p, q, ψ_+, ψ_-) be the solution of (1)-(4). Then the eigenvalues λ_n , $n \in Z$ of the periodic and anti-periodic problem for the quadratic pencil of Sturm-Liouville's equations, with coefficients $p(x + \tau, t)$ and $q(x + \tau, t)$, do not depend on the parameters τ and t, and the eigenvalues $\xi_n(\tau, t), n \in Z \setminus \{0\}$ of the Dirichlet problem satisfy the analogue of system of Dubrovin-Trubovitz's equations. Corollary 1. This theorem provides a method for solving the problem (1)-(4).

Corollary 2. Using the results of [2] we can conclude, that if $p_0(x)$ and $q_0(x)$ are real analytical functions, then the solution of (1)-(4) p(x,t) and q(x,t) are also real analytical functions on x.

Corollary 3. Using the results of [3] we can conclude, that if $p_0(x)$ and $q_0(x)$ are $\pi/2$ -periodic functions, then the solution of problem (1)-(4) p(x,t) and q(x,t) are also $\pi/2$ -periodic functions on x.

- V.B. Matveev, M.I. Yavor. Solutions presque periodiques et a N-solitons de l'equation hydrodynamique nonlineaire de Kaup // Ann. Inst. Henri Poincare, Sect. A, Vol.31, 1979, pp. 25-41.
- [2] B.A. Babazhanov, A.B. Khasanov, A.B. Yakhshimuratov. On the inverse problem for a quadratic pencil of Sturm-Liouville operators with periodic potential // Differential equations, Vol.41, No.3, 2005, pp. 310-318.
- [3] A. B. Yakhshimuratov. Analogue of the inverse theorem of Borg for a quadratic pencil of operators of Sturm-Liouville // Bulletin Eletski State University. Ser. Math. Comp. Math., Vol.8, No.1, 2005, pp. 121-126.





THE KORTEWEG-DE VRIES EQUATION WITH A SELF-CONSISTENT SOURCE OF INTEGRAL TYPE IN THE CLASS OF PERIODIC FUNCTIONS

Aknazar Khasanov, Alisher Yakhshimuratov Urgench State University, Urgench, Uzbekistan e-mail:ahasanov2002@mail.ru, albaron@mail.ru

We study ([1]) the following Korteweg-de Vries equation with a self-consistent source

$$q_t = q_{xxx} - 6qq_x + 2\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \beta(\lambda, t) \left(\psi_+\psi_-\right)_x d\lambda, \quad t > 0, \ x \in \mathbb{R}^1$$
(1)

coupled with the initial condition

$$q(x,t)|_{t=0} = q_0(x).$$
(2)

We look for real-valued solution that is π -periodic on the partial variable x and satisfy the following regularity assumptions: $q(x,t) \in C_{x,t}^{3,1}(t>0) \cap C(t\geq 0)$. Here $\beta(\lambda,t)$ is a given real continuous function having a uniform asymptotic behavior $\beta(\lambda,t) = O(\lambda^{-3}), \quad \lambda \to \pm \infty$ and $\psi_{\pm}(x,\lambda,t)$ are the Floquet's solution (normalized by condition $\psi_{\pm}(0,\lambda,t) = s(\pi,\lambda,t)$) of the Sturm-Liouville equation

$$L(t)y \equiv -y'' + q(x,t)y = \lambda y, \quad x \in \mathbb{R}^1.$$
(3)

We denote by $s(x, \lambda, t)$ the solution of (3) satisfying the initial conditions $s(0, \lambda, t) = 0$, $s'(0, \lambda, t) = 1$.

Theorem. Let (q, ψ_+, ψ_-) be the solution of the problem (1)-(3). Then the eigenvalues $\lambda_n, n \ge 0$ of the periodic and antiperiodic problem for Sturm-Liouville's equation with coefficient $q(x + \tau, t)$ do not depend on the parameters τ and t, and the eigenvalues $\xi_n(\tau, t), n \ge 1$ of the Dirichlet problem satisfy the analogue of system Dubrovin-Trubowitz's equations.

Corollary 1. This theorem provides a method for solving the problem (1)-(3). **Corollary 2.** In [2] the generalization of Borg's inverse theorem for Sturm-Liouville's operator is proven. According to this result we can conclude, if $q_0(x)$ is π/n -periodic function, then the q(x,t) is also π/n -periodic function on x. Here $n \ge 2$ is a integer number. **Corollary 3.** Using the results obtained in [3] we can conclude that, if $q_0(x)$ is real analytical function, then the q(x,t) is also real analytical function on x.

Remark. If the KdV equation is given in the form $q_t = q_{xxx} - 6qq_x + f(t)$ then the spectrum of Sturm-Liouville operator (3) depends on the parameter t. More precisely, the spectrum moves along the axis while preserving its structure.

- A.B. Khasanov, A.B. Yakhshimuratov. The Korteweg-de Vries equation with a self-consistent source in the class of periodic functions // Theoret. and Math. Phys., Vol.164, No.2, 2010, pp. 1008-1015.
- H. Hochstadt. A Generalization of Borg's Inverse Theorem for Hill's Equations // Journal of mathematical analysis and applications, Vol.102, 1984, pp. 599-605.
- [3] E. Trubowitz. The inverse problem for periodic potentials // Comm. Pure. Appl. Math., Vol.30, 1977, pp. 321-337.





ON SOME CONSEQUENCES OF THEOREM I. AKBERGENOVA

S.T. Yessenbekov

L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:samat-20@mail.ru

Murdered in 1938, Ibatolla Akbergenov was the author of the first scientific papers on mathematics among Kazakhs.

Let the Fredholm integral equation of 2-nd kind

$$\varphi(x) = f(x) + \lambda \int_{a}^{b} K(x, y) \varphi(y) \, dy, \qquad (1)$$

be given (a < b). Replace the kernel K(x, y) by the kernel close to K(x, y) and consider the integral equation

$$\tilde{\varphi}(x) = f(x) + \lambda \int_{a}^{b} \tilde{K}(x, y) \,\tilde{\varphi}(y) \, dy.$$
(2)

The proximity of the kernel to the kernel is characterized by the smallness of the value determined by norm $L_2[a, b]^2$. Let λ be not an eigenvalue of (2). Function f(x) and K(x, y) assumed to be continuous in the square $a \le x \le b$, $a \le y \le b$. Then following is valid.

The extension of Theorem (I. Akbergenov [1]) to the case $K(x, y) = g(u) \in \ell^{\infty}(D_{2s})$ estimate (see the notation in [2-3])

$$\left\| g\left(u\right) - \sum_{n \in V_{q}} \Lambda_{\Omega\left(\nu\left(n\right);q\right)} \left(g\left(\cdot\right)e^{-2\pi i\left(n,\cdot\right)}\right) \cdot e^{2\pi i\left(n,u\right)} \right\|_{L^{2}\left(0,1\right)^{2s}} \ll \left(\sum_{\substack{n \in V_{q} \\ \mu = (\mu_{1}, \dots, \mu_{2s}): \mu_{j} \geq \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)} \\ \tau = (\tau_{1}, \dots, \tau_{2s}): \tau_{j} \in \mathbb{Z} \cup \left\{-\frac{1}{2}\right\}} \right| D_{2s}^{-1} \left(n + (2\tau + 1) 2^{\mu}\right) \sum_{\substack{\nu = (\nu_{1}, \dots, \nu_{2s}): \nu_{j} \geq \nu_{j}\left(n\right) \\ \nu_{1} + \dots + \nu_{2s} > q \\ \tau_{j} = -\frac{1}{2}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \tau_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \tau_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ s \nu_{j} = \mu_{j} + 1} \right) = \left(\sum_{\substack{\nu = (\nu_{1}, \dots, \nu_{2s}): \nu_{j} \geq \nu_{j}\left(n\right) \\ \tau_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \tau_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ s \nu_{j} = \mu_{j} + 1} \right) \right)^{2} \left(\sum_{\substack{\nu = (\nu_{1}, \dots, \nu_{2s}): \nu_{j} \geq \nu_{j}\left(n\right) \\ \nu_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \tau_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} = \nu_{j}^{\left(0\right)}, \\ \varepsilon_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}, \nu_{j} \in \mathbb{Z}$$

- I.A. Akbergenov. O priblizhennom reshenii integral'nogo uravneniya Fredgol'ma i ob opredelenii ego sobstvennyh znachenii // Matem. sb., Vol.42, No.6. 1935, pp. 679-698.
- [2] N. Temirgaliev, S.S. Kudaibergenov, A.A. Shomanova. An application of tensor products of functionals in problems of numerical integration // Izvestiya: Mathematics, Vol.73, No.2, 2009, pp. 393-434.
- [3] N. Temirgaliev. Tensor Products of Functionals and Their Application // Docklandy Mathematics, Vol.81, No.1, 2010, pp. 78-82.





RECONSTRUCTION OF THE POTENTIAL FUNCTION FOR SCHRODINGER EQUATION

Emrah Yilmaz, Hikmet Koyunbakan Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:m.mukim@gmail.com

This abstract is about the inverse problem for Schrodinger operator and consists of reconstruction of this operator by its spectrum and norming constants. In this paper, we solve inverse problem for Schrodinger operator using the nodal set of eigenfunctions. We prove the uniqueness theorem and a reconstructing formula for the potential function. The technique that we use to obtain the results is an adaptation of the method discussed in the references [1] and [2].

References

- P.J. Browne, B.D. Sleeman. Inverse nodal problem for Sturm-Liouville equation with eigenparameter depend boundary conditions // Inverse Problems, Vol. 12, 1996, pp. 377-381.
- [2] C.K. Law, C.L. Shen, C.F. Yang. The inverse nodal problem on the smoothness of the potential function // Inverse Problems, Vol. 15, 1999, pp. 253-263.

AN EXPANSION METHOD FOR FINDING TRAVELING WAVE SOLUTIONS TO NONLINEAR PARTIAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Asıf Yokus, Doğan Kaya Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:asfyokus@yahoo.com

In this study, we constructed an expansion method. We have implemented this method for finding traveling wave solutions of nonlinear KdV equation and Hirota-Satsuma equation. We also pointed out that this expansion method could implement the other nonlinear equations.

References

 M. Wang, X. Li, J. Zhang. The -expansion method and traveling wave solutions of nonlinear evolution equations in mathematical physics // Phys. Lett., Vol. 372, 2008, pp. 417-423.





ON ONE BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR EVEN-ORDER EQUATION

A.V. Yuldasheva

Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies of Academy Sciences of Uzbekistan, Tashkent e-mail:asal-yuldasheva@yandex.ru

Let's consider the equation

$$Lu \equiv \frac{\partial^{2k} u}{\partial x^{2k}} - \frac{\partial^{2p} u}{\partial t^{2p}} = f(x, t), \tag{1}$$

in the domain $\Omega = \{ (x,t): 0 < x < l, 0 < t < T \}$, where k, p are fixed natural numbers.

Problem. Find solution $u(x,t) \in C^{2k-1,2p-1}_{x,t}(\Omega) \cap C^{2k,2p}_{x,t}(\Omega)$ of the equation (1) in the domain Ω satisfying conditions

$$\frac{\partial^{2i}u}{\partial x^{2i}}|_{x=0} = \frac{\partial^{2i}u}{\partial x^{2i}}|_{x=l}, \ 0 \le t \le T, \ i = \overline{0, k-1},$$
(2)

$$\frac{\partial^{2j}u}{\partial t^{2j}}|_{t=0} = \frac{\partial^{2j}u}{\partial t^{2j}}|_{t=T}, \ 0 \le x \le l, \ j = \overline{0, p-1}.$$
(3)

In present work we study solvability of the problem (1)-(3) depending on values of the numbers k and p.

Lemma. Let (k - p) is odd. Then there exists a constant C > 0 that depends only on sizes of the domain and the numbers k, p and doesn't depend on function u(x,t) such that

$$||u||_{W_{2}^{k,p}(\Omega)} \leq C ||Lu||_{L_{2}(\Omega)}$$

Theorem 1. Let (k-p) is odd and $f \in C^{\alpha}(\Omega)$, $\alpha > \frac{1}{2}$, f(0,t) = f(l,t) = 0, $0 \le t \le T$ and f(x,0) = f(x,T) = 0, $0 \le x \le l$. Then there exists a unique regular solution of the problem (1)-(3).

Theorem 2. Let (k-p) is even. Then regular solution of the problem (1)-(3) is unique if and only if ratio $\frac{T}{T}$ of the seizes of the rectangle Ω is irrational.

Theorem 3. Let (k-p) is even and $\frac{l}{T\pi^{k-p}}$ is irrational. If $f(x,t) \in C^{k+3,p+2}_{x,t}(\overline{\Omega})$ and

$$\begin{split} &\frac{\partial^{2m}u}{\partial x^{2m}}|_{x=0} = \frac{\partial^{2m}u}{\partial x^{2m}}|_{x=l}, \ 0 \leq t \leq T, \\ &m=0,1,...,\frac{k+1}{2}, \ if \ k+3 \ is \ even, \\ &m=0,1,...,\frac{k+2}{2}, \ if \ k+3 \ is \ odd, \\ &\frac{\partial^{2n}u}{\partial t^{2n}}|_{t=0} = \frac{\partial^{2n}u}{\partial t^{2n}}|_{t=T}, \ 0 \leq x \leq l, \\ &n=0,1,...,\frac{p+1}{2}, \ if \ p+2 \ is \ even, \\ &m=0,1,...,\frac{p}{2}, \ if \ p+2 \ is \ odd. \end{split}$$

Then there exists a regular solution of the problem (1)-(3).







GENERALIZED FUNCTIONS METHODS IN THE DYNAMICS FOR THE PIEZOELASTIC MEDIUM

G.K. Zakiryanova Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:zakir@math.kz, gulmzak@mail.ru

Consider the system of hyperbolic -elliptical equations, which are typical for the dynamic of piezoelastic medium [1]:

$$C_{ij}^{ml(E)}u_{m,lj} + e_{lji}\varphi_{,lj} + G_i = \rho u_{i,tt} \quad i, j, m, l = \overline{1, N}$$

$$\tag{1}$$

$$e_{jml}u_{m,lj} - \epsilon_{jl}\varphi_{,lj} = 0, \quad E_m = -\varphi_{,m} \tag{2}$$

where ρ is the density of medium, E is density of electric field, φ is the electric potential, G(x,t) is the mass force which may be generalized vector-function with limited support; $C_{ij}^{ml(E)}$ is the elasticity tensor, measured at constant electric field; e_{lij} is the piezoelectric tensor; ϵ_{il} is the permittivity tensor, measured at constant strain. The material tensors exhibit the symmetries

$$C_{ij}^{ml(E)} = C_{ij}^{lm(E)} = C_{ji}^{ml(E)} = C_{ml}^{ij(E)}, \quad e_{lij} = e_{lji}, \quad \epsilon_{il} = \epsilon_{li}$$
(3)

and for general anisotropy they contain 21, 18 and 6 independent material constants respectively. Notice, constants $C_{ij}^{ml(E)}$ satisfy conditions of strong hyperbolicity: $C_{ij}^{ml(E)}n_mn_lv^iv^j > 0 \quad \forall n \neq 0, \quad v \neq 0$; $x \in S^- \subset \mathbb{R}^N$, S^- is limited by boundary S which belongs to the class of Lyapunov's surfaces with exterior normal n, ||n|| = 1, $(x,t) \in D^-$, $D^- = S^- \times [0,\infty)$, $D_t^- = S^- \times [0,t]$, $D = S \times [0,\infty)$, $D_t = S \times [0,t]$. We suppose $u, \varphi \in C(D^- + D)$, $G \in C(D^- + D)$, $G \to 0, t \to +\infty, \forall x \in S^-$. There are initial conditions

$$u_i(x,0) = u_i^0(x), \quad x \in S^- + S; \quad \partial_t u_i(x,0) = u_i^1(x), \quad x \in S^-;$$
(4)

and boundary conditions for $x \in S$, $t \ge 0$:

$$\sigma_i^j(x,t)n_i(x) = g_i(x,t), \quad \sigma_i^l = C_{ii}^{ml}u_{j,m} \tag{5}$$

$$D_j n_j = q^s(x,t), \quad \varphi(x,t) = \varphi^s(x,t) \tag{6}$$

here D_i are electric displacements.

The method of construction of conditions on wavefronts has been suggested [2,3]. The theorem of uniqueness of the solution (including the class of shockwaves) has been proved. Analogues of the Somigliana's formulae for the generalized solutions of nonstationary boundary value problems for piezoelastic media have been constructed. These formulae allow to find the displacements, tensions and electric field intensity if initial values and boundary displacements, surface forces, electric potential, charge flux density are known.

- [1] U. Kedi. Piezoelectricity and its practical application // M. 1949.
- [2] L.A. Alexeyeva, G.K. Zakiryanova. Generalized Solutions of Boundary Value Problems of Dynamics of Anisotropic Elastic Media // Journal of the Mechanical Behavior of Materials, Vol.16, No.4-5, 2005, pp. 259-267.
- [3] G.K. Zakiryanova. Dynamical analogy of the Somigliana's formula for solution of nonstationary boundary value problems for piezoelastic media // Problems of the evolution of open systems PEOS Journal , Vol.12, No.1, 2010, pp. 54-60.





SECTION V

Probability Theory, Mathematical Statistics and Fuzzy Systems

THE CONDITION OF NONPRECIPICING OF THE HOMOGENEOUS MARKOV PROCESSES BY FIRST COMPONENT

J. Alimov

Turkmen Politechnical Institute, Turkmenistan, Ashqabat

Let $\vec{S}(t) = (S^1(t), S^2(t)), t \ge 0$, is the homogeneous stochastic process with independent growing in $R^2 = (-\infty, \infty) \times (-\infty, \infty)$ such that

$$M \cdot \exp\{s(S^1(t) - S^1(0)) - \sigma(S^2(t) - S^2(0))\} = \exp\{tk(s,\sigma)\}, s \ge 0, \ \sigma \ge 0,$$

where

$$K(s,\sigma) = as + b\sigma + \lambda[\varphi(s,\sigma) - 1], \ 0 < b < a < +\infty, \ \lambda > 0,$$

are some constants, and

$$\varphi(s,\sigma) = M \cdot e^{s\xi - \sigma\eta},$$

where ξ, η are some nonnegative chance values and M is the mathematical expectation. For $t \ge 0$ we set

$$\begin{aligned} \tau[t] &= \inf\{u \ge 0 : S^1(u) \land S^2(u) = -t, \ if \ \exists u : S^1(u) \land S^2(u) = -t, \}, \\ \tau[t] &= \inf\{u \ge 0 : S^1(u) \land S^2(u) = +\infty, \ if \ \exists u : S^1(u) \land S^2(u) \neq -t, \}, \\ \tau &= \inf\{t > 0 : \ \tau(t) = +\infty\}, \end{aligned}$$

$$\sigma[t] = S^1(\tau[t]) - S^2(\tau[t]), \ \tau > t; \ \tau[t] = 0, \ \tau \le t,$$

where $x \wedge y = \min\{x, y\}$.

In this paper is proved that the Markov process $(\tau[t], \sigma[t], 0 \le t < T)$ is nonparticipating if and only if

$$\min\{\lambda M\xi - a, \,\lambda M\eta - b\} \le 0.$$





ABOUT FUZZY RECOGNITION SYSTEM OF AZERBAIJANI HAND-PRINTED $$\mathrm{TEXTS}^1$$

Nigar T. Aliyeva, Elviz A. Ismayilov Institute of Information Technologies of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:aliyevanig@rambler.ru, elviz.ismayilov@gmail.com

There a most of computer systems for solving the problem of recognition of handwritten characters. There are a lot of both theoretical and practical difficulties associated with a huge variety of possible ways to write individual handwritten characters in this problem. The hand-printed recognition systems for increase of input reliability and information processing, as a rule, make rigid requirements to the filling of handwritten forms, for example, to use only constrained caps characters. However, in practice it is not always possible to follow this rule since during filling casual infringements of this restriction are probable. Besides that, distortion of recognition area and additional parts in the scanning area are the problems, which are the reasons of poor quality of recognition systems.

The presented system for recognition of handwritten characters uses fuzzy neural networks with smooth class of membership functions, structural features and error back - propagation method for training of neural networks. Here the main goal is showing the importance of usage of fuzzy numbers with smooth membership function in the process of neural network's training.

Multilayered fuzzy neural network is used in the recognition system. Input elements of the network consist of the values of calculated features. For each these features are constructed terms and membership functions.



Fig. 1. Model of neural network

Membership degrees of terms for the features are calculated in the first layer (Fig.1). To distinguish classes of symbols IF and THEN type rules are constructed. Values of these rules $(z_i, i=1, 2, ..., M)$, where M is the number of classes) are calculated in the next layer of neuronal network. Then defuzzification according to the weight center (1) is conducted and output of the network is calculated.

$$f = \sum_{i=1}^{M} z_i \bar{y}_i \bigg/ \sum_{i=1}^{M} z_i.$$
(1)

Weights of the last layer consist of the peak points of membership functions constructed according to classes of symbols. Parameters of membership functions of terms of features and weights of the last layer are optimized during training process by the error back - propagation method.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





SMOOTH CLASS OF MEMBERSHIP FUNCTIONS FOR FUZZY SETS AND THEIR APPLICATION¹

Nigar T. Aliyeva Institute of Information Technologies of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:aliyevanig@rambler.ru

In this work was offered a class of parametrical membership functions constructed by spline principle, which generalized known types of MFs (triangular, trapezoidal, Gaussian, bell, etc.) and have following properties [1]:

1) Membership functions everywhere are continuous with their derivatives on both arguments: $(\mu_A(x, P))'_x$, $(\mu_A(x, P))'_p$, and for expression of all derivatives there are simply calculated analytical formulas;

2) For any possible values of a vector of parameters P and argument values $x \in X^0$, $X^0 = supp\mu_A(x, p) = \{x \in X : 0 < \mu_A(x; P)\}$ - support, MF are strictly unimodal functions;

3) Area X^0 generally can be broken into 5 parts: on the ends of area X^0 MF it is convex, in an average part it is bent, the convex and bent parts of membership functions separate with linear functions. In special cases any parts of MF can be absent;

4) For any numerical values of $x \in X^0$ values of MF are various for various parameters P_1, P_2 from any arbitrary small interval, i.e. from $\|P^2 - P^1\|_{R^{12}} < \varepsilon$, $P^1 \neq P^2$ follows $\mu_A(\bar{x}, P^1) \neq \mu_A(\bar{x}, P^2)$;

These properties have great importance in "training" problems, in which adjustment of parameters of MF is carried out, namely in computer recognition systems, constructed on the base of neuralfuzzy networks. The training level consists in using of iterative procedures in space of parameters of neural-fuzzy networks based on first-order optimization methods (gradient types), more exactly on back propagation method. Clearly that in case of using not differentiated MF it is impossible to prove application of these methods. For non-smooth MF it is necessary to use methods of not differentiated optimization which concede to "smooth" methods.

Formulas of definition of various characteristics of fuzzy numbers are defined, for example:

1) α - cut;

2) the weighed average and average representative;

3) Width.

and also arithmetical and logical operations.

The offered class fuzzy MF is used by authors in developed to recognition system hand-written texts of the Azerbaijan language.

References

 Aida-zade K.R., Aliyeva N.T. About a class of membership functions for fuzzy sets // Automatic Control and Computer Sciences, No.3, 2011.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





A NEW TYPE OF CONVERGENCE IN A FUZZY VALUED METRIC SPACE

Salih Aytar Süleyman Demirel University, Isparta, Turkey e-mail:salihaytar@sdu.edu.tr

In this study, we introduce the concept of τ_F -convergence of a sequence of fuzzy numbers in the fuzzy metric space of fuzzy numbers defined by Guangquan. We compare τ_F -convergence with the convergence in the supremum metric. We also transfer some results from classical mathematical analysis, namely, we present τ_F -convergence analogues of these results.

References

[1] Z. Guangquan. Fuzzy continuous function and its properties // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.43, 1991, pp. 159-171.

INVERSE SYSTEM OF FUZZY SOFT MODULES

Sadi Bayramov Kafkas University,Kars,Turkey Kocaeli University, Kocaeli, Turkey e-mail:baysadi@gmail.com, carasgunduz@gmail.com

Molodtsov [1] initiated the concept of soft set theory as a new mathematical tool for dealing with uncertainties. Later, work on the soft set theory is progressing rapidly. Maji et al. [2] have published a detailed theoretical study on soft sets. Aktaş and Çağman [3] introduced the basic properties of soft groups, and derived their basic properties. Gunduz and Bayramov [4] introduce fuzzy soft module and investigate some of fuzzy soft module basic properties. It is known that the inverse limit is not only an important concept in the category theory, but also plays an important role in topology, algebra, homology theory etc. To the date, inverse system and its limit was defined in the different categories. Using methods of homology algebra, we give inverse system of fuzzy soft modules. We introduce inverse system in the category of fuzzy soft modules and prove that its limit exists in this category. Later, we show that limit of direct system of exact sequences of fuzzy soft modules are exact. Generally, limit of inverse system of exact sequences of fuzzy soft modules is not exact. Then we define first derived functor of the inverse limit functor.

- [1] D. Molodtsov. Soft set theory-first results // Comput. Math. Appl., Vol.37, 1999, pp. 19-31.
- [2] P.K. Maji, R. Bismas, A.R. Roy. Soft set theory // Comput. Math. Appl., Vol.45, 2003, pp. 555-562.
- [3] H. Aktas, N. Cagman. Soft sets and soft group // Information Science, Vol.177, 2007, pp. 2726-2735.
- [4] C. Gunduz(Aras), S. Bayramov. Fuzzy soft modules // International Math., Forum 6, No.11, 2011, pp. 517-527.





ASYMPTOTIC BEHAVIOUR OF THE CONDITIONAL PROBABILITY OF INTERSECTION OF THE LEVEL OF MARKOV CHAIN TRAJECTORY

V.A. Abdurahmanov, F.Dzh. Azizov, V.S. Halilov Institute of Mechanics and Mathematics of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan

Let $X = \{X_n = X(u, n), n \ge 0\}$ be real-valued Markov chain, homogeneous in time with initial value $u = X(u, 0) = X_0$ and transitive probability

$$P(u,B) = P(X_1 \in B),$$

where $X_1 = X(u, 1)$ and $B \in \beta(R)$ are σ algebra of Borel sets in $R = (-\infty, \infty)$. Let's consider the moment of the first exit

$$\tau_c = \inf \left\{ n \ge 1 : X_n > c \right\}$$

of the Markov chains X_n for the level $c \ge 0$. We will assume that $\inf \{\emptyset\} = \infty$.

The moment of the first exit τ_c is investigated in many works in which the boundary problems connected with intersection of boundary by a trajectory of a Markov chain are studied.

In the present work the conditional probability $P(\tau_c \ge n | \bar{X}_n = x)$ of intersection is considered $P(\tau_c \ge n | \bar{X}_n = x)$, by the trajectory of a chain X of level c > 0 under the conditions, that $\overline{X}_n = \frac{X_n}{n} = x$ asymptotic behaviour of this probability is studied at and $n \to \infty$ and $c \to \infty$, in such a manner that $\frac{c}{n} \sim x$.

Similar problems are studied completely for the case when the Markov chain X_n is the sum of the independent equally distributed random variables.

Let's notice that the specified conditional probability of intersection of boundary plays a key role at study of an asymptotical behaviour of local probabilities of intersection of boundary a random walk.





INTUITIONISTIC FUZZY SOFT MATRIX THEORY AND ITS DECISION MAKING

Naim Çağman, Serkan Karataş, Serdar Enginoğlu Gaziosmanpaşa University, Tokat, Turkey e-mail:ncagman@gop.edu.tr

In this work, we first introduce the soft sets, fuzzy sets, soft matrices and their operations. We then define intutionistic fuzzy soft matrices and their operators which are more functional to make theoretical studies in the intuitionistic fuzzy soft set theory. By using the products of intuitionistic fuzzy soft matrices, we finally construct construct a decision making method which selects optimum alternative from the set of the alternatives. We finally give an example to show the method can be successfully applied to the problems that contain uncertainties.

References

- [1] H. Aktaş, N. Çağman. Soft sets and soft groups // Information Sciences 77, 2007, pp.2726-2735.
- [2] K.T. Atanassov. Intuitionistic Fuzzy Sets // Pysica-Verlag A Springer-Verlag Company, New York, 1999.
- [3] N. Çağman, S. Enginoğlu. Soft set theory and uni-int decision making // European Journal of Operational Research, 207, pp.848-855, 2010.
- [4] N. Çağman, S. Enginoğlu. Soft matrix theory and its decision making // Computers and Mathematics with Applications, 59, pp.3308-3314, 2010.
- [5] N. Çağman, F. Cıtak, S. Enginoğlu. Fuzzy parameterized fuzzy soft set theory and its applications // Turkish Journal of Fuzzy Systems, 1(1), pp.21–35, 2010.
- [6] N. Çağman, S. Enginoğlu, F. Cıtak. Fuzzy Soft Set Theory and Its Applications // Iranian Journal of Fuzzy Systems (In Press).
- [7] N. Çağman, S. Enginoğlu. Fuzzy soft matrix theory and its application in decision making // Iranian Journal of Fuzzy Systems (In Press).
- [8] D.A. Molodtsov. Soft set theory-first results // Computers and Mathematics with Applications, 37, 1999, pp.19-31.
- [9] L.A. Zadeh. Fuzzy Sets // Inform. and Control, 8, 1965, pp.338-353.

ON THE PROBABILITY FUNCTIONS OF ORDER STATISTICS FROM DISCRETE UNIFORM DISTRIBUTION

S. Calik, A. Turan Bugatekin, A. Metin

Department of Mathematics, Firat University, Elazig, Turkey

e-mail: scalik@firat.edu.tr, aturan@firat.edu.tr, aysemetin1986@hotmail.com

Ahsanullah M. and Nevzorov V. B. (2001) are given the probability functions of sample extremes of order statistics from discrete uniform distributions. In this study, probability function of rth order statistics from discrete uniform distribution are obtained.

- [1] M. Ahsanullah, V. B. Nevzorov. Ordered Random Variables // Nova Science Publishers, Inc., New York, 2001.
- [2] B. C. Arnold, N. Balakrishnan, H.N. Nagaraja. A First Course in Order Statistics // John Wiley and Sons, New York, 1992.
- [3] S. Calik, M. Gungor, C. Colak. On the Moments of Order Statistics From Discrete Distribution // Pak. J. Statist, Vol.26, No.2, 2010, pp.417-426.
- [4] S. Calik, M. Gungor. On the excepted values of the sample maximum of order statistics from a discrete uniform distribution // Appl. Math. Computation, Vol.157, 2004, pp.695-700.
- [5] H.A. David. Order Statistics // John Wiley and Sons, Newyork, 1981.
- [6] C.G. Khatri. Distribution of Order Statistics for Discrete Case // Ann. Inst. Statist. Math., Vol.14, 1962, pp.167-171.





STABILITY ESTIMATIONS OF SOLUTIONS OF STOCHASTIC SYSTEMS OF NEUTRAL TYPE

Dzhalladova I.A. Kiev National Economic University, Kiev, Ukraine e-mail:irada05@mail.ru

Systems of linear stochastic difference differential equations of the neutral type are considered in this report. The second Lyapunov method with quadratic Lyapunov-Krasovsky functionals and an exponential multiplier is used. Stability conditions are obtained and decay coefficients for solutions are calculated.

The significant amount of practical problems erased in last years require researches of stability and obtaining estimations of dynamic processes described by functional differential equations. These equations consider an impact of a prehistory and widely used in a description of processes in ecology, population dynamics, medicine, economy. It should be noted that it is almost impossible to make a differential equation which discribes dynamics of real processes absolutely adequately. There are always small unpredictable perturbations which impact on dynamics of process. The mathematical apparatus, which considers these phenomena, is the theory of stochastic functional differential equations.

A system of linear stochastic difference differential equations with constant coefficients of the neutral type is considered

$$d[x(t) - Dx(t - \tau)] = [A_0 x(t) + A_1 x(t - \tau)] dt + [B_0 x(t) + B_1 x(t - \tau)] dw(t).$$
(1)

Here A_0, A_1, B_0, B_1, D - matrixes with constant coefficients, $x(t) \in \mathbb{R}^n, \tau > 0$ - constant delay, w(t) - scalar standard Wiener process. By a solution of the system (1) we understand F_t - measurable stochastic process $\{x(t) \equiv x(t,\omega)\} \in \mathbb{R}^n$ which satisfies the Ito integral equation with probability 1.

The Lyapunov-Krasovsky functional is used to study stability:

$$V[x(t),t] = e^{\gamma t} \left\{ \left[x(t) - Dx(t-\tau) \right]^T H\left[x(t) - Dx(t-\tau) \right] + \int_{t-\tau}^t e^{-\beta(t-\xi)} x^T(\xi) Gx(\xi) d\xi \right\}, \quad (2)$$

Denote

 λ_{1}

$$\begin{split} S\left[H,G,\beta,\gamma\right] = \\ = \begin{bmatrix} -A_0^T H - HA_0 - B_0^T HB_0 - G - \gamma H & -A_0^T HD - HA_1 - B_0^T HB_1 - \gamma H \\ -D^T HA_0 - A_1^T H - B_1^T HB_0 - \gamma D^T H & -A_1^T HD - D^T HA_1 - B_1^T HB_1 - \gamma D^T HD - e^{-\beta\tau}G \end{bmatrix} \\ \lambda_{\min}\left(S\left[H,G,\beta,\gamma\right]\right) \text{ - a minimal eigenvalue of the matrix } S\left[H,G,\beta,\gamma\right]. \end{split}$$

The following result takes place.

Let there exist constants $\beta > 0$, $\gamma > 0$ and positive definite matrixes H, in which Theorem. the matrix $S[H, G, \beta, \gamma]$ is positive defined. Then a zero solution of the system (1) is exponentially (γ, β) -integrally mean-square stable. And for any solution x(t) the following convergence estimation is held

$$\begin{split} M\left\{\|x\left(t\right)\|_{\tau,\beta}^{2}\right\} &\leq \left[\sqrt{\left(1+|D|^{2}\right)\frac{\lambda_{\max}\left(H\right)}{\lambda_{\min}\left(G\right)}}\left(|x(0)|+|x(-\tau)|\right)+\|x(0)\|_{\tau,\beta}\sqrt{\frac{\lambda_{\max}\left(G\right)}{\lambda_{\min}\left(G\right)}}\right]e^{-\theta\left(H,G,\beta,\gamma\right)t},\\ \theta\left(H,G,\beta,\gamma\right) &= \min\left\{ \begin{array}{c} \beta, & \frac{\lambda_{\min}\left(S\left[H,G,\beta,\gamma\right]\right)}{\left(1+|D|^{2}\right)\lambda_{\max}\left(H\right)}+\gamma \end{array} \right\}, t \geq 0. \end{split}$$





ROUGH CONVERGENCE OF A SEQUENCE OF FUZZY NUMBERS¹

Fatma Gecit, Salih Aytar Süleyman Demirel University, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey e-mail:fatmagecit99@hotmail.com,salihaytar@sdu.edu.tr

In this talk, first we define rough convergence of a sequence $\{X_i\}$ of fuzzy numbers–based on Phu's definition–as follows:

The sequence $\{X_i\}$ is said to be *r*-convergent to the fuzzy number X_* , denoted by $\{X_i\} \xrightarrow{r} X_*$, provided that

$$\forall \varepsilon > 0 \; \exists i_{\epsilon} \in \mathbb{N} \colon \; i > i_{\epsilon} \Rightarrow d(X_i, X_*) < r + \varepsilon,$$

where r is a nonnegative number, and d is the supremum metric on the set $L(\mathbb{R})$ of fuzzy numbers. The set

$$LIM^{r}X_{i} := \{X_{*} \in L(\mathbb{R}) : X_{i} \xrightarrow{r} X_{*}\}$$

is called the *r*-limit set of the sequence $\{X_i\}$. Then we characterize the set LIM^rX_i when the sequence $\{X_i\}$ is convergent and when it is not. Later, we show that $\{X_i\}$ is bounded if, and only if, it is rough convergent. Finally, we investigate some topological properties of the set LIM^rX_i .

References

 H. X. Phu. Rough convergence in normed linear spaces // Numerical Functional Analysis and Optimization, Vol.22, No.1,2, 2001, pp.199-222.

EVALUATION OF FAULT INDICTION IN POWER ELECTRICAL CABLES USING FUZZY SYSTEMS

Mehrdad Ahmadi Kamarposhti, Babak Khabiri Islamic Azad University, Jouybar Branch, Iran e-mail:m.ahmadi@jouybariau.ac.ir

Transmission networks and distribution systems have made great progress and more advances than the past decade and it is considerable in high voltage networks and the ground medium voltage network. Ground network have more reliability than air networks, but their Fault Indication are difficult and time consuming, and require expensive and advanced equipment and high expertise. Fuzzy systems are knowledge-based systems and the heart of a fuzzy system is knowledge base that has been formed if - then rules. In this paper, determination of fault type and location of cable fault using fuzzy system will be studied. In this study Phase voltage and current are as the input designed fuzzy system.

¹ This research is supported by Süleyman Demirel University Grant Program SDÜ-BAP 2332-YL-10.





COMPUTER SIMULATION OF THE MODIFICATED STOCHASTIC -CONTINUAL MODEL OF COMBAT OPERATIONS VIA SIMULINK

Sahib T. Huseynov Ganja State University, Ganja, Azerbaijan e-mail:sahibhuseynov@yahoo.com

Let us consider the following modificated model of combat operations between two opposite parties (so called Lanchester models of combat operations):

$$\begin{cases} \frac{dx(t)}{dt} = -a_{11}x(t) - a_{12}y(t) + P(t,\zeta_1), \\ \frac{dy(t)}{dt} = -a_{21}x(t) - a_{22}x(t)y(t) - a_{23}y^2(t) + Q(t,\zeta_2). \end{cases}$$
(1)

$$x(0) = x_0, \ y(0) = y_0. \tag{2}$$

where, t is the time, x(t) and y(t) - are the quantities of alive forces of the opposing combat parties respectively, $a_{11}, a_{12}, a_{21}, a_{22}$ and a_{23} are the specific constant factors related with firepower rate and interior discipline rate of corresponding parties; x_o and y_o - are initial conditions (initial alive forces of both sides). We have accepted participation of non-regular (guerilla) armed subdivisions in the party of y. $P(t,\zeta_1)$ and $Q(t,\zeta_2)$ - are the periodic reinforcements functions with the stochastic parameters 1 and 2. the system of nonlinear ODE-s (1)-(2) we have simulated with using of SIMULINK, the MATLAB subsystem for simulation and modeling of dynamical systems. To implement of stochastic parameters ζ_1 and ζ_2 into dynamical system (1), we have used specific SIMULINK blocks for generation of random signals. The results of simulations were successfully: we have achieved main research goal. The designed SIMULINK model really has an effective flexibility and very convenient graphical outputs (the graphics of numerical solutions depending and phase portraits for analyzing stability of the stochastic dynamical model). So, results of computer simulations have showed us that the internal competition in the party y and consideration of stochastic parameters really have a big effect: they drastically have influenced to the dynamics of combat operations. On the other hand, with specially designed GUI of this SIMULINK model the user can very easily evaluate parameters of dynamical system during the simulation procedure.

- R. H.Brown. A Stochastic Analysis of Lanchesters Theory of Combat // Operations Research Office Technical Memorandum, 1955, ORO, T-323.
- [2] Gerge Isac and Alain Gosselin. A military application of viability: winning cones, differential inclusions, and Lanchester type models for combat // Pareto optimality, game theory and equilibrium optimization and Its applications, Vol.17, No.III, 2008, pp. 759-797.





NUMERICAL SOLUTION OF FUZZY FREDHOLM INTEGRAL EQUATIONS BY THE SPLINE INTERPOLATION¹

Yosef Jafarzadeh, Reza Ezzati Sama technical and vocational training college, Islamic Azad University, Karaj, Iran E-mail:mat2j@yahoo.com

In this paper, we propose a new numerical method by fuzzy spline interpolation to approximate the solution of the following linear fuzzy Fredholm integral equation of the second kind: $\tilde{F}(t) = \tilde{f}(t) + \lambda \int_{a}^{b} k(s,t)\tilde{F}(t)ds$ where $\lambda > 0, K(s,t)$ is an arbitrary kernel function over the square $a \leq s, t \leq b$ and $\tilde{f}(t)$ is a fuzzy function of t. We consider fuzzy Spline interpolation $\tilde{y}(x) \approx \sum_{i=0}^{n} s_i(x)\tilde{y}(x_i)$, where s_i is fuzzy polynomial spline that interpolates the $(x_i, \delta_{ij}), \delta_{ij}$ is Kronecker delta and obtain an upper bound for the distance between the exact and numerical solution. For this purpose, we apply the extension principle.

We prove the following theorem and introduce some numerical examples for iterative procedure for numerical solution of Fredholm integral equation of the second kind.

Theorem: Consider the following iterative procedure $\tilde{y}_0 = \tilde{f}(t), \tilde{y}_k(t) = \tilde{f}(t) + \lambda \sum_{i=0}^n (S_i.K(t_i,t)) \otimes \tilde{y}_{k-1}(t_i)$, where $k \ge 1, n \in N$, $S_i = \int_{t_0}^{t_n} s_i(t) dt$ and $\Delta : a = t_0 < t_1 < ... < t_n = b$ is a partition of the interval [a, b].

Then the upper bound for the distance between the exact (\tilde{F}) and numerical solution (\tilde{y}_k) for the Fredholm integral equation is $D(\tilde{F}, \tilde{y}_k) \leq \frac{l^k}{1-l}D(\tilde{F}_1, \tilde{F}_0) + \frac{l}{1-l}(\omega(\tilde{y}_m, v(\Delta)) + m_l(1 + \frac{2\hat{S}}{b-a}))$, where $\hat{S} = \max_{i=0,...,n} |S_i|$ and $m_l = \max\{m_0, ..., m_{k-1}\}, \ l = \lambda M(b-a), \ M = \max |K(s,t)|, \ a \leq s, \ t \leq s, \ m_i = \sup_{a < t < b} \|\tilde{y}_i(t)\|$.

According to the relation in theorem we can observe that the convergence of the iterative procedure is satisfied if the second term of the relation is a small value.

- M. Friedman, M. Ming, A. Kandel. Solution to the fuzzy integral equations with arbitrary kernels. // Int. J. Approx. Reason, Vol.20, 1999, pp. 249-262.
- M. Fariborzi, N. Parandin. Numerical solution of fuzzy Fredholm integral equation by the Lagrange interpolation based on the extension principle // Soft. Comput., DOI 10.1007/s00500-011-0706-3, 1999.
- [3] S. Abbasbandy, E. Babolian, M. Alavi. Numerical method for solving linear Fredholm fuzzy integral equations of the second kind // Chaos solitons fractals, Vol.31, No.1, 2007, pp. 138-146.

¹ This research is supported by Sama technical and vocational training college, Islamic Azad University, Karaj.





RESEARCH OF ONE-LINEAR SYSTEM OF MASS SERVICE FROM NOT ORDINARY ENTERING STREAM

A.G. Gadjiyev, A.B. Kasumov Azerbaijan Technical University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:adil.qasimov@mail.ru

The one-linear system of mass service on which is considered acts markovs a stream of the moments of occurrence of requirements which parameter during the moment t is equal λ_i if during this moment the length of turn was equal i. If during the moment of receipt of group of requirements the length of turn was equal i, probability of that in group will be j requirements, is equal $a_j^{(i)} \sum_{j=1}^{\infty} a_j^{(i)} = 1$. Speed of service is equal α_i , if the length of turn is equal i. At arrival of group of requirements, for example in quantity (amount) asses in λ_{i+j} , α_i - century α_{i+j} As well as earlier, for the requirement, during the moment of which beginning of service the length of turn was equal i, it is necessary to perform quantity of work, distribution under the law $H_i(x)$. the length of turn includes serving requirements. We shall designate in $\nu(t)$ length of turn during the moment t. It is necessary to find distribution length of turn the moment t.

Acting also as [1] we shall receive recurrent parities for $\tilde{P}_i(u)$ and $\tilde{\varphi}_i(s, u)$.

$$\tilde{P}_{1}(u) = \frac{1}{(u+\lambda_{1})\tilde{h}_{1}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right)} \left[\tilde{P}_{0}(u)(u+\lambda_{0})\left(1-\tilde{h}_{1}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right)\right) + P_{1}^{(0)}\tilde{h}_{1}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right) - P_{0}^{(0)}\left(1-\tilde{h}_{1}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right)\right) - \tilde{\varphi}_{1}^{(0)}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right)\right],$$

$$(1)$$

$$\tilde{\varphi}_{1}(s,u) = \frac{1}{(u-s\alpha_{1}+\lambda_{1})\tilde{h}_{1}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right)} \left[\left((u+\lambda_{0})\tilde{P}_{0}(u) - P_{0}^{(0)} \right) \left(\tilde{h}_{1}(s) - \tilde{h}_{1}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right) \right) + \tilde{\varphi}_{1}^{(0)}(s)\tilde{h}_{1}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right) - \tilde{\varphi}_{1}^{(0)}\left(\frac{u+\lambda_{1}}{\alpha_{1}}\right)\tilde{h}_{1}(s) \right],$$

$$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 0, \ i \neq j \\ 0, \ i \neq j \end{array} \right.$$

$$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} 0, \ i \neq j \\ 0, \ i \neq j \end{array} \right\} = \tilde{p}_{1}(s)\tilde{p}_{1}(s)\tilde{p}_{1}(s) = \tilde{p}_{1}(s)\tilde{p}_{1}(s) = \tilde{p}_{1}(s) = \tilde{p}_{1}(s)\tilde{p}_{1}(s) = \tilde{p}_{1}(s) = \tilde{$$

 $\delta_{ij} = \begin{cases} 0, & i \neq j \\ 1, & i = j \end{cases} \text{ Also } \tilde{P}_0(u) \text{ it is defined from a condition } \sum_{i=0}^{\infty} \tilde{P}_i(u) = \frac{1}{u}.$

References

 A.B. Kasumov. Research of non-stationary characteristics of length of turn of one-linear system of the mass service, requirements depending on number // A National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine. Institute of problems of modelling in power it{him}. G.E.Puhova, Electronic modelling, Vol. 32, No. 3, 2010, pp. 33-41.





THE LIMIT OF SEQUENCE OF A NEARLY CRITICAL BRANCHING PROCESSES WITH IMMIGRATION

Ya.M. Khusanbaev Institute of Mathematics, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:yakubjank@mail.ru

Let for each $n \in N\left\{\xi_{k,j}^{(n)}, k, j \in N\right\}$ and $\left\{\xi_k^{(n)}, k \in N\right\}$ be two independent a sequence of independent, nonnegative integer – valued and identically distributed random variables. We define for each $n \in N$ branching process with immigration $\left\{X_0^{(n)} = 0, k = 0, 1, \ldots\right\}$ recurrently

$$X_0^{(n)} = 0, \ X_k^{(n)} = \sum_{j=1}^{X_{k-1}^{(n)}} \xi_{k,j}^{(n)} + \varepsilon_k^{(n)}, \ k \in \mathbb{N}$$
(1)

Assume that

$$m_n = E\xi_{1,1}^{(n)}, \ \lambda_n = E\varepsilon_1^{(n)}, \ \sigma_n^2 = var\xi_{1,1}^{(n)}, \ b_n^2 = var\varepsilon_1^{(n)}, \ \tau_n = E\left(\varepsilon_{1,1}^{(n)}\right)^3, \ \gamma_n = E\left(\varepsilon_1^{(n)}\right)^3$$

are finite for all $n \in N$. The sequence (1) is said to be nearly critical, if $m_n \to 1$ as $n \to \infty$. Let $\{d_n, n \in N\}$ be sequence of positive real a number such that $d_n \to \infty$ and $nd_n^{-1} \to \infty$ as $n \to \infty$.

In this paper we will prove next theorem.

Theorem. Suppose that $0 \le \gamma < 1$ and 1) $m_n = 1 + \alpha d_n^{-1} + o(d_n^{-1}), \ \alpha > 0, \ d_n \sigma_n^2 \to \sigma^2 \text{ as } n \to \infty,$ 2) $d_n^{\gamma} \lambda_n \to \lambda \ge 0, \ d_n^{\gamma} b_n^2 \to b^2 \ge 0 \text{ as } n \to \infty,$ 3) $\tau_n \le m_n^3, \ n \in N \text{ and } d_n^{\frac{3\gamma-1}{2}} \gamma_n \to 0 \text{ as } n \to \infty.$ Then distribution of $\left(m_n^n d_n^{(1-\gamma)/2}\right)^{-1} \left(X_n^{(n)} - EX_n^{(n)}\right)$ weak convergence as $n \to \infty$ to the normal distribution with mean 0 and variance $(2\alpha)^{-1} (\alpha^{-1}\sigma^2\lambda + b^2).$





PROPERTIES OF THE ENTROPY OF EVENTOLOGICAL SUBDISTRIBUTIONS

Natali A. Lukyanova

Institute of Fundamental Preparation Siberian Federal University, Krasnoyarsk, Russia e-mail:nata00sfu@gmail.com

The term entropy is widely applied in various areas of knowledge. Probabilistic treatment of statistical entropy (or entropy of Boltzmann) and information entropy (or entropy of Shannon) are projected on entropy in eventology [1] – a new direction of probability theory. Eventology is based on the Kolmogorov's axiomatics which is added by two eventological axioms: a sufficiency and a simpliciality [2]. The basic objects of researches are random events, sets of random events and their eventological distributions (E-distributions). Eventology studies the structures of the dependences of the sets of events. It allows to include the mathematical model of a person, together with his/her persuasions, in a subject of the scientific research of in the form of E-distribution of the set of his/her own events, i.e. allows to consider any kinds of the set of events which are perceived and/or created by a person. New eventological language, new eventological methods and approaches allow to formulate and solve various tasks in socio-economic areas which did not manage to formulate and solve earlier within the limits of traditional approaches.

Let's consider the finite set of random events $\mathfrak{X} \subseteq F$, chosen of algebra of probability space (Ω, F, \mathbf{P}) . E-distribution of the set of random events \mathfrak{X} of the power $N = |\mathfrak{X}|$ is a collection $\{p(X), X \subseteq \mathfrak{X}\}$ of 2^N probabilities of event-terraces [1] generated by this set of events in which $p(X) = \mathbf{P}(\operatorname{ter}(X)) = \mathbf{P}(\bigcap_{x \in X} x \bigcap_{x \in X^c} x^c)$, $X \subseteq \mathfrak{X}$ where $x^c = \Omega - x$, $X^c = \mathfrak{X} - X$. The event-terraces $\operatorname{ter}(X)$ form the partition Ω in all $X \subseteq \mathfrak{X}$ and provide of probabilistic normalization $\sum_{X \subseteq \mathfrak{X}} p(X) = 1$ for this sort of E-distribution of the set \mathfrak{X} . The more events contains a given set of events, the more complex structures of probabilistic dependencies of events it has.

In given work the definitions of eventological subdistributions (E-subdistributions) of the set of random events \mathfrak{X} are introduced. It is dictated by necessity to analyze not all the set of events \mathfrak{X} entirely, but only its part - a subset of events $\mathfrak{Y} \subseteq \mathfrak{X}$ from the original set of events \mathfrak{X} . Thus, E-subdistributions of the set of events \mathfrak{X} can be interpreted as E-distribution of a subset of events $\mathfrak{Y} \subseteq \mathfrak{X}$ of the power $m = |\mathfrak{Y}|$, $m = 1, \ldots, |\mathfrak{X}|$, which are sets from 2^m probabilities and $\sum_{X \subset \mathfrak{Y}} p(X) = 1$.

Entropy of E-distribution $\{p(X), X \subseteq \mathfrak{X}\}$ of the set of events \mathfrak{X} is defined under the classical formula just as entropy of probabilistic distribution or entropy of a random variable with the finite number of values is defined in probability theory and can be interpreted as a measure of uncertainty of Edistribution of the set of events [1], [3], [4]. Entropy of E-subdistribution of the set of events \mathfrak{X} can be defined by analogy as the entropy of E-distribution and interpreted as a measure of uncertainty of E-distribution of the subset of events $\mathfrak{Y} \subseteq \mathfrak{X}$. In given work the properties of the entropy for E-subdistribution are formulated and proved. That expands a mathematical toolkit of eventology. Introduced definitions of E-subdistribution and properties of the entropy for them are illustrated on the simple example for any triplet of events, considering subsets of various powers.

- [1] O.Yu.Vorobyev. Eventology. Krasnoyarsk, Russia, Siberian Federal University (SFU), 2007, 435p. (in Russian).
- [2] O.Yu.Vorobyev. On elements of axiomatizing eventology // Journal of Siberian Federal University. Mathematics & Physics, Vol. 3, No. 2, Krasnoyarsk, Russia, 2010, pp.157–164.
- [3] O.Yu. Vorobyev, N.A. Lukyanova. Properties of the entropy of multiplicative-truncated approximations of eventological distributions // Journal of Siberian Federal University. Mathematics & Physics, Vol. 4, No. 1, Krasnoyarsk, Russia, 2011, pp.50–60.
- [4] N.A.Lukyanova. Eventology sight at entropy // Proc. of the III Int. Conf. "Problems of Cybernetics and Informatics" (PCI'2010), Vol. III, Baku, Azerbaijan, Azerbaijan National Academy of Sciences, 2010, pp.209–212.





A NEW ALGORITHM TO FORECAST FUZZY TIME SERIES WITH C PROGRAMMING

Memmedaga Memmedli, Ozer Ozdemir Anadolu University, Turkey e-mail:mmammadov@anadolu.edu.tr, ozerozdemir@anadolu.edu.tr

Neural network have been successfully used in nonlinear problems and relationships. To forecast fuzzy time series, this study aims to improve forecasting performance with different degrees of membership in establishing fuzzy relationships by using neural networks. Differing from previous studies, we used various degrees of membership in establishing fuzzy relationships with various numbers of hidden nodes and we performed different neural network models such as Generalized Regression Neural Networks, Multilayer Perceptron and Radial Basis Function to improve forecasting performance. We also used these models for forecasting without using fuzzy approach. We made a comparison study to improve forecasting performance of enrollment data for the University of Alabama and Istanbul Stock Exchange (ISE) national-100 index during 2006-2010 years with different number of hidden nodes and using an approach for determining the length of intervals proposed by Huarng[1]. Conventional time series refer to real numbers, but fuzzy time series are structured by fuzzy sets[2]. Song and Chissom first proposed the definitions of fuzzy time series [3]. A fuzzy set is a class of objects with a continuum of grade of membership. The some general definitions of fuzzy time series are given as follows: 1. Let U be the universe of discourse, where $U = u_1, u_2, ..., u_n$ and u_i are possible linguistic values of U, then a fuzzy set of linguistic variables A_i of U is defined by

$$A_i = \mu_{A_i}(u_1)/u_1 + \mu_{A_i}(u_2)/u_2 + \dots + \mu_{A_i}(u_n)/u_n \tag{1}$$

where μ_{A_i} is the membership function of the fuzzy set $A_i, \mu_{A_i} : U \to [0, 1]$. u_k is an element of fuzzy set A_i and $\mu_{A_i}(u_k)$ is the degree of belongingness of u_k to A_i . $\mu_{A_i}(u_k) \in [0, 1]$ and $1 \le k \le n$.

2. Let Y(t) which is a subset of real numbers be the universe of discourse defined by the fuzzy set $f_i(t)$. If F(t) consists of $f_i(t)$ (i = 1, 2, ...), then F(t) is defined as a fuzzy time series on Y(t). **3.** If there exists a fuzzy relationship R(t - 1, t), such that $F(t) = F(t - 1) \times R(t - 1, t)$, where \times is an operator, then F(t) is said to be caused by F(t - 1). The relationship between F(t) and F(t - 1) can be denoted by

$$F(t-1) \to F(t). \tag{2}$$

The novelty of this study is to apply a new algorithm based on Yu and Huarng's method(2010)[4] algorithm with some changes and modifications for improving forecasting performance of neural networkbased fuzzy time series and use C programming language in some steps of algorithm. Also, differing from previous studies, this study decides the length of intervals by using an effective approach instead of using constant length of intervals as 100 or 1000 by following previous studies. After obtaining the best results for our algorithm with C programming, it can be said that this method outperforms other methods including Yu and Huarng's neural network-based fuzzy time series method proposed in the literature.

- K. Huarng. Effective Lengths of Intervals to Improve Forecasting in Fuzzy Time Series // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol. 123, No.3, 2001, pp. 387-394.
- [2] S.-M. Chen. Forecasting Enrollments Based on Fuzzy Time Series // Fuzzy Sets and Systems Vol. 81, 1996, pp. 311-319.
- [3] Q. Song and B. S. Chissom. Fuzzy Time Series and its Models // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol. 54, 1993, pp. 269-277.
- [4] T. H.-K. Yu and K.-H. Huarng. A Neural Network-Based Fuzzy Time Series Model to Improve Forecasting // Expert Systems with Applications, Vol. 37, 2010, pp. 3366-3372.





WAVE PREDICTION BY REGRESSION SPLINES AND ADAPTIVE NEURO-FUZZY INFERENCE SYSTEM

Akhlitdin Nizamitdinov, Memmedaga Memmedli, Ozer Ozdemir Anadolu University, Turkey e-mail:ahlidin@gmail.com,mmammadov@anadolu.edu.tr,ozerozdemir@anadolu.edu.tr

In this paper we made nonparametric analysis using P-splines and cubic regression spline model and we used adaptive neuro-fuzzy inference system. For this purpose we used significant wave height data set. The selection of optimal smoothing parameter is made by Generalized Cross Validation (GCV). In this study we concentrate on B-splines with penalties, known as P-splines ([1], [2]). Eilers and Marx (1996) showed how P-splines can be used in many different contexts and illustrate their remarks with examples on density estimation and nonparametric smoothing.

From a least-squares perspective, the coefficients are chosen to minimize

$$S = \sum_{i=1}^{m} \left\{ y_i - \sum_{j=1}^{n} a_j B_j(x_i) \right\}^2 + \lambda \sum_{j=k+1}^{n} (\Delta^k a_j)^2.$$
(1)

For least squares smoothing we have to minimize S in (1). The system of equations that follows from minimization of S can be written as:

$$B'y = (B'B + \lambda D'_k D_k)a.$$
⁽²⁾

Where D_k is a matrix representation of the difference operator Δ^k , and the elements of **B** are $b_{lj} = B_j(l)$. The basic idea of Generalized Cross Validation is to replace the denominators $1 - (S_{\lambda})_{ii}$ of $CV(\lambda)$ by their average $1 - n^{-1}tr(S_{\lambda})$, giving GCV score function

$$GCV(\lambda) = \frac{1}{n} \frac{\sum_{i=1}^{n} \left\{ y_i - \hat{f}_{\lambda}(x_i) \right\}^2}{\left\{ 1 - n^{-1} tr(S_{\lambda}) \right\}^2}.$$
(3)

As for $GCV(\lambda)$, λ is chosen as the minimizer of $GCV(\lambda)$.

Adaptive neuro-fuzzy inference system(ANFIS) was first introduced by [3]. An ANFIS is a network structure consisting of a number of nodes connected through directional links. Each node is characterized by a node function with fixed or adjustable parameters. The basic learning rule is the well-known backpropagation method which seeks to minimize some measure of error [4].

Depending on the types of inference operations upon "if-then rules", most fuzzy inference systems can be classified into three types: Mamdani's system, Sugeno's system and Tsukamoto's system. In first-order Sugeno's system, a typical rule set with two fuzzy IF/THEN rules can be expressed as

Rule 1: If x is A_1 and y is B_1 , then $f_1 = p_1 x + q_1 y + r_1$ Rule 2: If x is A_2 and y is B_2 , then $f_2 = p_2 x + q_2 y + r_2$

More information for ANFIS can be found in related literature [3].

- P.H.C. Eilers, B.D. Marx. (1996). Flexible smoothing using B-splines and penalized likelihood (with comments and rejoinders) // Statistical Science, Vol.11, No.2, pp. 89-121.
- P.H.C. Eilers, B.D. Marx. Direct generalized additive modeling with penalized likelihood // Computational Statistics and Data Analysis, Vol.28, 1998, pp. 193-209.
- [3] J. Jang. ANFIS: adaptive-network-based fuzzy inference system // IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man and Cybernetics, Vol.23, No.3, pp. 665-685.
- [4] T. Takagi, M. Sugeno. Fuzzy identification of systems and its applications to modeling and control // IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man and Cybernetics Vol.15, 1985. pp. 116-132.





ASYMPTOTICAL BEHAVIOUR OF THE JOINT DISTRIBUTION OF THE MOMENT OF THE FIRST EXIT AND THE RANDOM WALK OVER NONLINEAR BOUNDARY

S.A. Aliev, F.G. Ragimov, M.M. Navidi Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Institute of Mechanics and Mathematics of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan

e-mail:ragimovf@rambler.ru

Let $\xi_n, n \ge 1$ be an independent equally distributed random variables with $E|\xi_1| < \infty$, defined in some probability space (Ω, \mathcal{F}, P) and let $f_a(t), t > 0, a > 0$ be some set of functions from the increasing parameter $a, f_a(1) \uparrow \infty$ by $a \to \infty$.

Let's consider the moment of the first exit

$$\tau = \tau_a = \inf \left\{ n \ge 1 : S_n > f_a(n) \right\}$$

of the random walk for $S_n = \xi_1 + ... + \xi_n$, $n \ge 1$ nonlinear boundary $f_a(t)$.

A lot of works (see [1]-[3]) have been devoted to the study of asymptotic properties of the distribution of the moment of the first exit τ_a .

In the present work for enough wide class of nonlinear boundaries $f_a(t)$ a theorem on asymptotic behavior of the joint distribution of the normalized moment of the first exit τ_a is proved and τ_a $\chi_a = S_{\tau} - f_a(\tau)$ at $a \to \infty$. In particular, from this theorem follows that normalized moment of the first exit τ_a and χ_a asymptotically are independent by $a \to \infty$.

References

[1] G. Allan. Stopped random Walks, Springer, Verlag 1988.

- [2] S. Aliev, T. Hashimova. Asymptotic behaviour of the conditional probability of the nonlinear boundary crossing by a random walk, Stochastic Processes, Vol.16, No.1, 2010, pp.12-17.
- [3] A.A. Novikov. One time of intersection of one-sided nonlinear boundary by the sums of independent random variables, Probability Theory and its Application, V.27, No.4, 1982, pp.643-656.





ASYMPTOTICAL BEHAVIOUR OF LOCAL PROBABILITIES INTERSECTIONS OF NONLINEAR BOUNDARIES BY THE RANDOM WALK

F.G. Ragimov, T.E. Gashimova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Institute of Mechanics and Mathematics of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:ragimovf@rambler.ru

Let ξ_n , $n \ge 1$ be a sequence of the independent equally distributed random variables defined in some probability space (Ω, F, P) .

Let's suppose

$$S_n = \sum_{k=1}^n \xi_k, \ n \ge 1.$$

We consider the moment of the first exit

$$\tau_a = \inf \left\{ n \ge 1 : S_n \ge f_a\left(n\right) \right\} \tag{1}$$

of the random walk for S_n , $n \ge 1$ nonlinear boundary $f_a(t)$, t > 0, depending on some increasing parameter a > 0.

At usual let's consider that $\inf \{\emptyset\} = \infty$.

In work [1] the asymptotical behaviour of the conditional probability of intersection of boundaries $P(\tau_a \ge n | \bar{S}_n = x)$ is studied by $a \to \infty$ for enough wide class of nonlinear boundaries and random walks $f_a(t)$.

Using the results of the work [1] in the present work an asymptotical behaviour of the density of joint distribution τ_a and χ_a by $a \to \infty$, also probability $P(\tau_a = n)$ and conditional density of exit χ_a under the condition $\tau_a = n$ are studied.

References

 S. Aliev, T. Hashimova. Asymptotic behaviour of the conditional probability of the nonlinear boundary crossing by a random walk, Stochastic processes, Vol.16, No.1, 2010, pp.12-17.





ECONOMICAL MATHEMATICAL FUZZY MODEL OF PROFIT MAXIMIZATION IN E-SHOP

R.Y. Shikhlinskaya, E.R. Shafizadeh Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:reyhan_sh@rambler.ru, elnure_sh@mail.ru

It was considered economical mathematical model of profit maximization in e-shop with applying fuzzy logic in the work.

The profit depends on price and costs. The price for each kind of product is defined in the market. But costs are regulated by e-shop. And costs depend on some quantity and quality factors. Usually, these factors are uncertain. The uncertain factors are working by different methods. One of them is fuzzy theory. That's why for defining the crisp value of the total costs for each product we'll use the expert values of these quantity and quality factors (Veb site, advertising and procedural costs and etc.), which are given linguistic. In order, on the base of expert values it was defined term sets and interval values of linguistic variables.

Then we use fuzzy logic inference method for defining each cost.

Fuzzy logic inference method consists of following steps:

- (1) Fuzzyfication. In this step is created the membership function of the fuzzy sets.
- (2) Creating rules. It is created logic rules on the base of expert reviews.
- (3) **Composition** is aggregation of the fuzzy inferences.
- (4) **Defuzzyfication**. In this step is defined crisp value by centroid method.

So it was defined crisp value of the each cost. Then, on the base of crisp values of each cost we define total costs. So, by subtraction total costs from price was defined profit for each product.





STOCHASTIC PROPERTIES OF THE DYNAMIC SERIES OF LINGUISTIC SIGNS

M.F. Tahirov

Center of Technologies of Education at the Ministry of Education of Azerbaijan Republic e-mail:mahir.tahirov@mail.ru

As we know, any sign of a mass phenomenon is characterized not only by a single number, but as a rule, with the several quantitative traits. Numeral characteristic of any sign of a mass phenomenon, in general, is not constant, but varies with the time. For example, the origin of rare linguistic events are subject to Poisson probability theory with parameter λ and time-dependent, $\lambda(t)$.

As a result of changes in the numerical characteristics of the linguistic sign is formed of a sequence is called a dynamic series.

Dynamic range, which characterized the mass phenomenon usually characterized by a specific feature, consisting of the addition, η_i , i = 1, ..., n that every member of this series is:

- (1) From certain "level" γ ;
- (2) From a random deviation ξ_k , k = 1, ..., n: from this level

$$\eta_i = \gamma + \xi_i, \ i = 1, ..., n.$$
 (1)

The first term γ on the right side of this oversight is essential typical features of this mass phenomenon, for example, the average length of word forms of language and the second ξ_i , i = 1, ..., n random deviation from the level γ . In quantitative linguistics, where we study the quantitative regularities of language, there are such linguistic phenomens as: information weight of morphemes and words; analytic of language; frequency of words and phrases, etc, each of which is to some extent characterized by the amounts, thus allowed mathematical interpretation.

Information, stimulus, speech Useful signal S and noise $\xi_t(\omega)$

$$I = S + \zeta_t(\omega).$$
⁽²⁾

Here under the random component $\xi_t(\omega), t = T, \omega = \Omega$ is meant a device or chain property, in particular the Markov property. Note that, such an expansion takes place in the theory of perturbation of operators. In modern Azerbaijan, compound components of the text and some relations according to this view also meet.





ON THE RESTORATION PROBLEM WITH DEGENERATED DIFFUSION

Marat I. Tleubergenov, Gulmira T. Ibraeva Institute of Mathematics, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:marat207@mail.ru

The sufficient conditions of restoration problem's solvability in a class of the Ito stochastic differential systems of the first order (with random disturbances from a class of Wiener processes and the diffusion degenerated with regard to a part of variables) on the given properties of a movement, when a control is included into the coefficient of drift, are obtained by separation method.

Let us give the system of the stochastic differential equations of first order of Ito type

$$\begin{cases} \dot{y} = f_1(y, z, v, w, t), & y \in R^{l_1}, & z \in R^{l_2}, & v \in R^{p_1}, & w \in R^{p_2}, \\ \dot{z} = f_2(y, z, v, w, t) + \sigma_1(y, z, v, w, t)\dot{\xi}, & \xi \in R^r, \\ \dot{v} = f_3(y, z, v, w, t) + L_1(y, z, v, w, t)u_1, & u_1 \in R^{k_1}, & u_2 \in R^{k_2}, \\ \dot{w} = f_4(y, z, v, w, t) + L_2(y, z, v, w, t)u_2 + \sigma_2(y, z, v, w, t)\dot{\xi}, \end{cases}$$
(1)

where $l_1 + l_2 + p_1 + p_2 = n$. It is required to define the vector-functions $u_1(y, z, v, w, t) \in \mathbb{R}^r$ and $u_1(y, z, v, w, t) \in \mathbb{R}^r$, entering into pulling down coefficient, by given integral manifold

$$\Lambda(t): \quad \lambda(y, z, v, w, t) = 0, \quad \text{where} \quad \lambda = \lambda(y, z, v, w, t) \in C^{12121}_{yzvwt}, \lambda \in \mathbb{R}^m.$$
(2)

The posed problem is solved in [1] by other method, namely, by a quasi-inversion method.

The following theorem is valid and it is proved by separation method.

Theorem. The set (2) is integral manifold of system of differential equations (1) if the following requirements are satisfied: 1) square submatrixes D', G' of matrixes D, G are nondegenerate det $D' \neq 0$, det $G' \neq 0$; 2) under arbitrarily given $u_1, u_2'' \in K$ the first m coordinates u_2' of vector u_2 looks like $u_2' = (D')^{-1} \left(N - \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial v} L_1 u_1 - D'' u_2''\right)$; 3) under arbitrarily given $\sigma_1, \sigma_2'' \in K$ a submatrix σ_2' of matrix σ_2 looks like $\sigma_2' = (G')^{-1} \left(B - \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial z} \sigma_1 - G'' \sigma_2''\right)$. Here $D = \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial w} L_2, \quad D = (D', D''), \quad \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial w} = (G', G''), \quad \sigma_2 = \begin{pmatrix} \sigma_2' \\ \sigma_2'' \end{pmatrix}, \quad u_2 = \begin{pmatrix} u_2' \\ u_2'' \end{pmatrix}$, where

 $D', G' \text{ are square matrixes of dimensionality } (m \times m), D'' - (m \times (k_2 - m)) \text{ matrix, } G'' - (m \times (p_2 - m)) \text{ matrix, } \sigma''_2 - (m \times r) \text{ matrix, } \sigma''_2 - ((p_2 - m) \times r) \text{ matrix, } u'_2 - m \text{-vector, } u''_2 - (k_2 - m) \text{-vector; } N = A - -\left(\frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial y}f_1 + \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial z}f_2 + \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial v}f_3 + \frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial w}f_4 + S_1 + S_2\right), S_1 = \frac{1}{2}\left[\frac{\partial^2 \lambda}{\partial z \partial z} : \sigma_1 \sigma_1^T\right], S_2 = \frac{1}{2}\left[\frac{\partial^2 \lambda}{\partial w \partial w} : \sigma_2 \sigma_2^T\right].$ The vector-function A and the matrix B possess property $A(0; y, z, v, w, t) \equiv 0, B(0; y, z, v, w, t) \equiv 0$ and an equality $\dot{\lambda} = A(\lambda; y, z, v, w, t) + B(\lambda; y, z, v, w, t)\dot{\xi}$ has place. K is a class of functions, which are continuous on t and Lipschitzian on y, z, v and w in a neighborhood of set $\Lambda(t)$.

References

 M.I. Tleubergenov, G.T. Ibraeva. To Stochastic Restoration Problem with Degenerated Diffusion // Izvestya NAN RK, Seriya fiziko-matematicheskaya, Almaty, No 5, 2006, pp. 8-13 (in Russian).





SECTION VI

Computational Mathematics

HIGH ACCURACY FACTORIZATION ALGORITHM FOR THE IRREGULAR POLYNOMIAL MATRIX RELATIVELY THE IMAGINARY AXIS

F.A. Aliev, N.I. Velieva Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:f_aliev@yahoo.com, nailavi@rambler.ru

The iterative factorization algorithm for the is offered irregular polynomial matrix relatively imaginary axis with use of procedure Symbolic Toolbox of package Matlab . Efficiency of this algorithm is illustrated by examples. In irregular polynomial matrix on is reduced for the regular polynomial matrix. For this purpose package Matlab procedure SVD.m is used(singular decomposition of a matrix) which supporting symbolical calculations. Reducing the unitary matrix into the diagonal matrix. Multiplying by the unitary matrix to given polynomial matrix on the left and right sides to until then while in result it will be received a regular polynomial matrix. Here the algorithm described in [1] is used for the multiplication of two polynomial matrix. Further algorithm [2,3] factorization a polynomial matrix will be used. It is known, that factorization of the polynomial matrix is reduced to the solution of algebraic Riccati equation (ARE). The for solution AER with use of procedure Symbolic Toolbox high accuracy software is created. It plays the important role at factorization polynomial matrix. For definition of a required polynomial matrix is used divisions of two a polynomial matrix. Thus is used algorithm Euclid supporting symbolical calculations. The software is created for factorization an irregular polynomial matrix concerning an imaginary axis in Matlab.

- [1] V. Kucera. Discrete Linear Control the Polynomial Equation Approach // Academia Praha, 1979, 206 p.
- [2] F.A. Aliev, B.A. Bordyng, V.B. Larin. H₂ Optimization and a State Space Method for Synthesis of Optimal Regulatory // Baku, ELM, 1994, 373 p.
- [3] M.F. Radjabov, N.I. Velieva, L.F. Aqamaliyeva. High algorithm factorization polynomial and separations of fractional rational expressions // Report National Academy of Scien. of Azerb., No.1, 2009, pp. 29-36.





DIFFERENCE SCHEME CORRECTNESS RESEARCH FOR NON-EQUILIBRIUM FILTRATION MODEL OF TWO-PHASE INCOMPRESSIBLE LIQUID¹

Nurlan M. Temirbekov

D. Serikbaev East Kazakhstan Technical University, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Kazakhstan

e-mail:temirbekov@rambler.ru

In this work difference scheme for numerical realization of the model of non-equilibrium filtration of two immiscible incompressible liquids is made up and scheme stability and convergence are studied.

Mathematical problem statement of non-equilibrium filtration of two incompressible liquids has the following form:

$$\bar{\tau}\nu m\frac{\partial\eta}{\partial t} = \bar{\tau}div\big(K_0a\nabla\eta + \vec{F} - b\vec{v}\big) + m(1-\nu)\Big(s_0e^{-\frac{t}{\bar{\tau}}} - \eta + \frac{1}{\bar{\tau}}\int_0^t \eta e^{-\frac{(t-\xi)}{\bar{\tau}}}d\xi\Big),\tag{1}$$

$$div(K\nabla\rho + \vec{f}) = 0, \tag{2}$$

$$\tau \frac{\partial s}{\partial t} - \tau \nu(x) \frac{\partial \eta}{\partial t} = \mathfrak{X}(x)(\eta - s), \tag{3}$$

here s, η are true and effective saturation, p is pressure, m is porosity, ν is non-equilibrium degree, K is permeability of the medium, k_{01} , k_{02} are phase permeability (of water and oil), μ_1 , μ_2 are coefficients of viscosity of the corresponding phases, $\bar{\tau} = \frac{\tau}{\chi}$ is substitution time, $\vec{v} = \vec{v}_1 + \vec{v}_2$ is filtration speed, $a = -\frac{\partial p_c}{\partial \eta} \cdot \frac{k_{01}k_{02}}{k}, \ b = \frac{k_{01}}{k}.$

(1) -(3) equations were considered in the following initial and boundary conditions:

$$\begin{aligned} |_{t=0} &= s_0, \ \eta|_{t=0} = s_0, \ p|_{t=0} = P_0(x), \\ \eta|_{\Gamma} &= \mu(x,t), \ p|_{\Gamma} = P_0(x) \end{aligned}$$
(4)

here, $x = (x_1, x_2), x \in G$ is bidimentional final area with Γ border.

s

Difference scheme of (1)-(4) boundary problem has the following form:

$$m_{ij}\nu \frac{\eta_{ij}^{n+1} - \eta_{ij}^{n}}{\tau} = K_{0}a_{ij}\Delta_{h}\eta_{ij}^{n} - m_{ij}(1-\nu)\frac{1}{\bar{\tau}}\left(1 - \frac{\tau}{2\bar{\tau}}\right)\eta_{ij}^{n+1} + \frac{m_{ij}(1-\nu)}{2}\frac{\tau}{\bar{\tau}^{2}}e^{-\frac{\tau}{\bar{\tau}}}\eta_{ij}^{n} + \\ + (div_{h}\vec{F}_{ij} - b_{ij}div_{h}\vec{v}_{ij}) + m_{ij}(1-\nu)\frac{1}{\bar{\tau}}\left(s_{0}e^{-\frac{t}{\bar{\tau}}} + \frac{1}{\bar{\tau}}e^{-\frac{(n+1)\tau}{\bar{\tau}}}\gamma_{ij}^{n}\right),$$
(5)

$$K_{ij}\Delta_h p_{ij}^{n+1} + div_{\bar{h}}\vec{f}_{ij} = 0, (6)$$

$$s_{ij}^{n} = (1-\nu)s_{0}e^{-\frac{(n+1)\tau}{\bar{\tau}}} + \nu\eta_{ij}^{n+1} + \frac{1}{\bar{\tau}}(1-\nu)e^{-\frac{(n+1)\tau}{\bar{\tau}}}\gamma_{ij}^{n+1},\tag{7}$$

$$\eta_{ij}^{0} = s_{ij}^{0} = const, \ p_{ij}^{0} = P_{0}(x_{ij}), \eta|_{\gamma_{h}} = \mu(x_{ij}, (n+1)\tau), \ p|_{\gamma_{h}} = P_{0}(x_{ij}).$$
(8)

The following theorem is proved.

Theorem. Let us consider that $m\nu - \frac{8\tau M_1}{h} \equiv \delta > 0$ condition is true, then (5)-(8) difference scheme solution is stable and coincides with (1)-(4) problem solving.

This research is supported by the Program for fundamental researcher F.0508 of Ministry of Education and Science of the Republic of Kazakhstan.





WEIGHTED ESSENTIALLY NON OSCILLATORY SCHEMES FOR SUPERSONIC AIR FLOW

A. Abdalla, A.Zh. Naimanova, A. Kaltayev, Ye. Belyayev Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan Kazakh National University al-Farabi, Almaty, Kazakstan e-mail:Hassan.Amr@kaznu.kz

In this work a planar supersonic turbulent multi-species flow is numerically simulated in the channel with perpendicular injection of hydrogen from slots located symmetrically on the lower and upper walls of the channel. Height of the channel is taken as 3cm, length 10cm. The slots of the width 0.1cm is located on distance 5cm from entrance. For the mathematical modelling of such flows the Favre-averaged Navier-Stokes equations for multi-species gas are used. For convenience of calculation the jet injection is considered from the bottom wall.

The WENO (Weighted Essentially Non oscillatory) scheme of 4th order has been used to approximate the inviscid fluxes of the system of the Favre-averaged Navier- Stokes equations. This scheme is based on the idea of ENO (Essentially Non oscillatory) - scheme developed in [1], which was constructed according to a principle of Godunov's scheme. Instead if choosing the smoothest stencil for interpolating polynomial for the ENO here was used a convex combination of all candidates to achieve the essentially non-oscillatory property. The algebraic Baldwin-Lomax's [2] turbulence model has been used to calculate the eddy viscosity coefficient. The boundary conditions are taken as: adiabatic no-slip walls at the bottom, supersonic inlet at the left boundary and sonic inlet on the slot; on the top condition of symmetry; on an outlet non- reflection condition [3]. In regions of large gradients, that is in the boundary layer, near the wall and at the slot level, the grid clustering is introduced. Then the system of the Navier- Stokes equations was formed in transformed generalized coordinates system. The computations were done on a staggered spatial grid with parameters: $2 \leq M_{\infty} \leq 4$, $M_0 = 1$, Pr = 0.7, $2 \leq n \leq 15$, here index " ∞ " concerns to values of parameters of a flow, index "0"-to values of parameters of a jet, $n = P_0/P_{\infty}$, where P_0 -pressure in jet and P_{∞} -pressure in a flow.

For testing the method a following numerical experiment was performed: the sound hydrogen jet was injected perpendicularly to the main air flow through a slot of width 0.1 cm with parameters: $M_{\infty} = 3.75, M_0 = 1, Re = 62.73 \times 10^6, n = 10.29, T_0 = 800K$, and $T_{\infty} = 629.34K$, the results are compared with solution obtained by using ENO scheme [1] and experimental work [4], it gave good agreements. The numerical experiment showed, that because of deceleration of the incoming flow, the pressure ahead of the jet increases, and a bow shock wave is formed. An oblique shock wave emanates upstream from the bow shock wave. In addition to the separation region, there is also a supersonic flow region behind the oblique shock wave; subsequent flow deceleration is accompanied by emergence of a second shock wave: barrel shock parallel to the jet axis. The detached shock wave, oblique shock wave, and barrel shock wave intersect at one point to form a complicated λ -shape structure of shock waves.

- A.O. Beketaeva, A.Zh. Naimanova. Application of ENO (Essentially nonoscillatory) scheme for modelling the flow of a multicomponent gas mixure // Journal of Computational Technologies, Vol.12, No.4, 2007, pp. 17-25.
- [2] C.A. Fletcher. J. Computational Technique for Fluid Dynamics // M.: World, Vol.2, 1991, pp. 474.
- Kevin W. Thompson. Time dependent boundary conditions for hyperbolic systemsm // Journal of computational physics, Vol.68, 1987, pp. 1-24.
- [4] C.F. Chenault, P.S. Beran. K ε and Renolds Stress Turbulence Model Comparisons for Two-Dimensional Injection Flows // AIAA Journal, Vol.36, 1999, pp. 1401-1412.





THE PROBLEM OF NUMERICAL INTEGRATION COMPUTER IS NOT COMPUTABLE

Ye. Bailov, A.Zh. Zhubanysheva, N. Temirgaliyev L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University e-mail:axaulezh@mail.ru

Computer as a technical device is constantly being improved, but in its modern version is nearing the limit of high-speed capabilities, which is due to the finite propagation of electrical impulse - "only" three hundred thousand kilometers per second. Moreover, as noted in [1, p.34] "Given that the lifetime of the universe is approximately 10^{10} years $<10^{18}$ seconds, it is clear that none of the fantastic speed calculations do not provide the accuracy required by simple addition of the series", where we mean the approximately sum of the series $S = \sum_{k=2}^{\infty} \frac{1}{k \ln^2 k}$ with accuracy 10^{-3} for this we

need not less than k, $k + 1 > e^{10^3} > 10^{300}$ members of the series. It follows that if all the people who have passed their way on earth, and living now and who should be born by the end of the twenty-first century (there are no more than a million billion) would have worked all the time as the immortal one on a million computers at a rate of a billion billion operations per second, that with all these impossible circumstances inflated will hold no more than $10^{18+15+6+18} = 10^{57}$ elementary arithmetic operations. All of these rough calculations are given in order to dispel the prevailing misconceptions about brand "omnipotence of computers." In this connection, let us consider the practical implementation of algorithms in the method of Quasi Monte Carlo. In the paper [2-4] there are given algorithm of construction uniformly distributed in the unit cube $[0, 1]^s$ (s = 1, 2, ...)Korobov's grid

$$\eta_k(a) = \left(\frac{k}{p}, \left\{\frac{k}{p}a^{\frac{p-1}{l}}\right\}, ..., \left\{\frac{k}{p}a^{\frac{p-1}{l}(s-1)}\right\}\right) \quad (k = 1, ..., p)$$

for $\leq c(s) p \ln \ln p$ elementary arithmetic operations.

This algorithm is "almost" optimal in the sense that the p nodes of the grid is find on $<< p \ln \ln p$ elementary arithmetic operations.

We can show that the constant $c(s) \ge 72s6^s$ can not be significantly lowered, while the above upper bound is the number of elementary arithmetic operations of practical importance in financial mathematics s = 365 dimension even when the number of p = 10 nodes is of $c(s) \ge 6^{365} > 36^{180} > 10^{180}$.

Output is seen in transition on the basis of efficient algorithms for computational experiments [4]

- [1] A.M. Il'in, A.R. Danilin. Asymptotic Methods in Analysis // M.FizMatLit, 2009.
- S.M. Voronin, N. Temirgaliev. Quadrature formulas associated with divisors of the field of Gaussian numbers // Matematicheskie Zametki, Vol.46, No.2, 1989, pp. 3441.
- [3] N. Temirgaliev, E.A. Bailov, A.Zh. Zhubanysheva. General algorithm for the numerical integration of Periodic function of several variables // Doklady mathematics, Vol.76, No.2, 2007, pp. 681-685.
- [4] A.Zh Zhubanysheva, N. Temirgaliev, Zh.N. Temirgalieva. Application of divisor theory to the construction of tables of optimal coefficients for quadrature formulas // Computational mathematics and mathematical physics, Vol.49, No.1, 2009, pp. 12-22.





ON CONVERGENCE, ASYMPTOTIC BEHAVIOR AND COMPUTATIONAL ALGORITHM OF THE GENERALIZED EXPONENTIAL INTEQRAL FUNCTIONS

Elgiz Bairamov Ankara University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:bairamov@science.ankara.edu.tr

In this paper, we investigate uniform convergence of the generalized exponential integral functions (GEI) arising in the study of quantum chemistry calculations of electronic structure of atomic and molecular systems. Using the uniform convergence, we study the properties and asymptotic behavior of the GEI functions. We also give an effcient algorithm for the computations of the values of the GEI functions.

References

- E. Bairamov, S. Yardimci. Uniform Convergence and the properties of the exponential integral functions // Journal of Quantitative Spectroscopy and Radiative Transfer, Vol.111, 2010, pp. 2471-2473.
- [2] E. Bairamov, N. Ozalp. Uniform convergence and Computation of the Generalized exponential integrals // Journal of Mathematical Chemistry, Vol.49, 2011, pp. 520-530.
- [3] Y. Aygar, E. Bairamov. Properties of the two-dimensional exponential integral functions // J. Math. Chem. Vol.50, 2011.
- [4] I.I. Guseinov. Addition theorems for Slater-type orbitals and their applications to multicenter multielectron integrals of central and noncentral interaction potentials // J. Mol. Model., Vol.9, 2003, pp. 190-194.
- [5] R.H. Probha, R.D.S. Yadav. Polynomial expressions for bickley and exponential integral functions // Ann. Nucl. Energy, Vol.23, 1996, pp. 1021-1025.

APPLICATION OF CUDA TECHNOLOGY FOR THE FILTRATION PROBLEM

T.T. Bekibayev, B.K. Assilbekov, U.K. Zhappasbayev, L. Naizabayeva Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:timur_bekibaev@mail.ru

Filtering process requires very accurate calculation. The key factor of accuracy is the size of computing model's grid of the layer. More dense computational grid and bigger discrete areas provide more realistic results. This paper is important because it makes possible to conduct rapid calculation of large models of the layer, without the usage of expensive computing systems such as supercomputers.

The novelty of this work is using GPU and CUDA technology to accelerate the calculations.

Nowadays, parallel computing is increasingly used in calculation in scientific applications. This paper considers the problem of filtering, in particular, the problem of oil displacement by water. It has been decided to use an efficient parallelization of Compute Unified Device Architecture (CUDA), which allows to speed up calculations to the tens- hundreds times. Choice of various methods for solving Poisson's equation is justified. Jacobi's method, the red-black Gauss-Seidel relaxation, which are suitable for GPU architecture, were selected. It is well known that the weakness of CUDA is working with memory that requires careful programming. In our calculation program there are huge amount of input data including a description of a complex non-uniform grid, and values of permeability, porosity, temperature, initial pressure, the saturation, capillary pressure for the reservoir, etc. The processing with such volume of data, unloading and loading operations significantly reduce the performance of CUDA. This article discusses effective techniques of working with memory in CUDA.





ITERATIVE METHOD FOR DEFINITION OF THERMO GRADIENT FACTOR OF SOIL MOISTURE

 R. Bolatbek, A.A.Alirahymovich, B.A. Tungatarovuch Kazakhstan-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan The Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan Kostanai State University, Kostanai, Kazakstan
 e-mail:b.rysbaiuly@mail.ru, adam1955@mail.ru, ismar_74@mail.ru

The first studies of permafrost migration revealed its important consequences for the economy. Its main positive values are replenishing of moisture content in the upper root layer of soil. At the same time, the redistribution of moisture in freezing soils and grounds can bring huge damage to national economy. In terms of agriculture it is very important to take into account negative impact of the moisture migration in soil on wintering conditions of winter cultures. Formation of ice layers, lenses and large crystals can lead to damage to root systems and a massive loss of winter cultures. Extremely negative consequence of moisture migration in freezing layer is a frost heaves leading to destruction of road and airfield pavements, foundations and structures foundation (Bastamov S.D. (1946), Goldstein, M.N. (1948), Puzakov N.A. (1950)). Participation of the liquid phase in the movement of moisture to the freezing front was proved experimentally by researches of Eisentadt R. (1955), Bakulin F.G. (1957), Globus, A.M. (1962), Jumikis A. (1962) Biersmans M., Dijkema K.M., de Vries D.A. (1978). Under the influence of the experimental works of Bouyoucos GJ (1915) there arose theories of film migration of moisture and the freezing front, based on the idea of a liquid film of unfrozen water covering the ice crystals and connecting with a capillary-film moisture of thickness (Fletcher NH, 1966). More clearly the theory of membrane migration was formulated by Taber S. (1954), whereby freezing of water wetting the ice crystals, causes movement of other molecules on its place from the water film that does not lose continuity due to the "tensile strength". Forces causing the migration of water, are called by Bouyoucos G.J. and Taber S. as "the forces of crystallization." In above studies it was unclear relation between permafrost moisture migration with its thermal transfer mechanisms that acts in the thawed soil - with a temperature gradient and the absolute temperature. In this paper the equation of heat propagation in a heterogeneous environment is studied. An approximate method for calculating the coefficient thermogradient multilayered soil is developed. Aprioristic estimations for the decision direct and interfaced adjoint problem are obtained. Limitation of the approached value for thermogradient factor is proved. Changes in temperature of soil and moisture on the surface of the earth are measured by special instrument. Under laboratory conditions, thermal characteristics of multilayered soil are defined. Numerical calculations with the data on a surface of the earth are carried out and thermogradient factor of a multilayered ground is defined. Calculated data were compared with measured data.

- M.Biermans, K.M. Dijkema, D.A.de Vries. Water movement in porous media towards an ice front // Journal Hydrol., Vol.37, 1978, pp.137-148.
- [2] G.J. Bouyoucos. Effect of temperature on the movement of vapor and capillary moisture in soils// Journal Agric. Res., No.5, 1915, p.141-172.
- [3] B. Rysbaiuly, A.T. Baymankulov. Approximate method for determining thermogradient coefficient of a homogeneous medium // Journal of National Academy of Sciences of RK, No.4, 2008, pp.3-5.





INVESTIGATION OF BLOOD FLOW AS A NON-NEWTONIAN FLUID IN THE STENOTIC VESSELS

Ahmad Reza Haghighi, Fatemeh Bonakdar, Farrokh Mobadersani Urmia University of Technology, Urmia, Iran Urmia Islamic Azad University, Urmia, Iran e-mail:ah.haghighi@gmail.com, fatemeh.bonakdar@yahoo.com, fmobadersani@gmail.com

Arterial stenosis is the consolidation of the entime layer of the vessel in which the arterial wall becomes sclerotic as a result of formation of a thin layer on it, which distorts the vessel (some researchers attribute this to overuse of lipids). Arterial stenosis leads to reduction of the blood flow in a proportion that sometimes blood clots and restricts the blood flow to the heart and causes unstable angina and cardiac muscle injury. It has been demonstrated that vessel fluid movement has an important role in progression of atherosclerosis. In recent years, vast investigation has been done on bio fluid movement in magnetic field. Magnetic systems have been established to separate the cells and magnetic article transfer. The most characteristic biofluid is the blood which behaves like a magnetic fluid. Oxygenated blood has magnetic properties while deoxygenated blood has paramagnetic properties. In this article non-Newtonian behavior of blood flow in stenotic blood vessels is studied and magnetic field effect on this flow in the stenotic sites will be investigated. It is an attempt to study the shape and radius of distortions in the stenotic sites on the fluid flow by mathematical modeling, In this study a proper finite difference scheme is used to solve momentum and continuity equations for non-Newtonian fluids in cylindrical coordinate systems. With numerical methods anyone can estimate effects of Heartman number (M), stenosis severity, Reynolds number (Re), force rule (n) on viscous flow, and wall shear stress. The results show that by increasing the Hartmann number, the axial velocity profile decreases. One can assume a mean velocity of the axial velocity to investigate the trend of the graph. According to the results high changes occur in the flow rate due to the severity of the stenosis in the vessel.

References

 P.K. Mandal. An unsteady analysis of non-Newtonian blood flow through tapered arteries with a stenosis // International Journal of Non- Linear Mechanics, Vol.40, 2005, pp. 151-164.




METHODS OF THE DECISION OF MATHEMATICAL MODEL

S.N. Boranbayev Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:sboranba@yandex.kz

Usually mathematical models are constructed in the form of the differential or integrated equations. Fitting and identification of models are follows further. Often, by virtue of step-type behavior of the information, at a stage of identification it is necessary to pass from the differential equations to certainly - different, from integrated - to the sums, etc. Then on the basis of known data it is necessary to estimate unknown parameters the equation of model. The present work is devoted to some questions of identification of model, development of corresponding methods and the software. At identification of model it is possible to pass from variables standing in the equations of model, to other variables. It is possible to establish steady parities on available numbers of supervision between these variables. For example, in economic-mathematical models for exception of action of inflation in variables of model, believes:

$$x(t) = x^n(t)/d^f(t),$$

where $x^n(t)$ - observable a number of some variable, $d^f(t)$ - deflator. If a number of supervision $x^n(t)$ does not cause the big trust in the equations of model instead of $x^n(t)$ it is possible to use

$$x(t) = \mu x^{n}(t) + (1 - \mu)x^{e}(t),$$

where $0 \le \mu \le 1$, μ - a degree of trust to a number supervision $x^n(t) x^n(t)$, $x^e(t)$ - an expert estimation. It is possible to use smoothing. Linear smoothing:

$$x_p(t) = \sum_{s=-p}^{p} \alpha_s x^n(t+s), \ \sum_{s=-p}^{p} \alpha = 1, \ \alpha_s > 0.$$

Exponential smoothing:

$$x(t) = (x^{n}(t) - x^{n}(t-1)) / (\ln x^{n}(t) - \ln x^{n}(t-1)).$$

Differential smoothing:

$$\frac{d^s x(t)}{dt^s} = \sum_{\theta=0}^s \alpha_\theta x^n (t-\theta).$$

Integrated smoothing:

$$\int_{t-\theta}^{t} x(t-s)q(s)ds = \sum_{i=0}^{\theta} \alpha_i x^n(t-i).$$

a

The smoothed derivative:

$$\frac{dx(t)}{dt_{(q)}} = \frac{\sum_{\theta=-q}^{q} \theta x^{n}(t+\theta)}{\sum_{\theta=-q}^{q} \theta^{2}}.$$

The smoothed trend:

$$\frac{1}{x(t)}\frac{dx(t)}{dt_{(q,s)}} = \frac{\sum_{k=0}^{q-1} x^n(t-k)}{\sum_{k=0}^{q-1} x^n(t-s-k)} - 1.$$





APPLICATION OF THE HOMOTOPY PERTURBATION METHOD FOR NONLINEAR (3+1)-DIMENSIONAL BREAKING SOLITON EQUATION

H. Bulut, H.M. Baskonus, S. Tuluce Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:hbulut@firat.edu.tr, hmbaskonus@gmail.com, stuluce@firat.edu.tr

In this paper we studied to in order to obtain numerical solution of the nonlinear (3+1)-dimensional breaking soliton equation (BSE) by Homotopy Perturbation Method (HPM) and then formed a tablo which is include numerical conclusion for this equation by drawing graphics of the this equation by means of Mathematica.

References

- [1] Mohammad Taghi Darvishi, Maliheh Najafi and Mohammad Najafi. Traweling wave solutions for the (3+1)dimensional breaking soliton equation by $\left(\frac{G'}{G}\right)$ -expansion method and modied F-expansion method // International Journal of Computer and Mathematics Science, Vol.6, No.2, 2012, pp. 64-69.
- [2] Mohammad Taghi Darvishi, Maliheh Najafi and Mohammad Najafi. Some exact solutions of the (2+1)-dimensional Breaking soliton equation using the three-wave method // International Journal of Computational and Mathematical Science, Vol.6, No.1, 2012.
- [3] Ji-Huan He. Homotopy perturbation technique // Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, Vol.178, 1999, pp. 257-262.
- [4] Ji-Huan He. The homotopy perturbation method for nonlinear oscillators with discontinuities // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.151, 2004, pp. 287-292.
- [5] Ji-Huan He. Bookkeeping parameterin perturbation methods // International Journal Non-Linear Science Numerical Simulation, Vol.2, No.4, 2001, pp. 317-320.
- [6] Ji-Huan He. Some asymptotic methods for strongly nonlinear equations // International Journal of Modern Physics B, Vol.20, No.10, 2006, pp. 1141-1199.
- [7] S. Abbasbandy. Application of He's homotopy perturbation method for Laplace transform // Chaos Solitons Fractals, Vol.30, 2006, pp. 1206-1212.

NUMERICAL SOLUTION OF KLEIN-GORDON-ZAKHAROV EQUATION USING CHEBYSHEV CARDINAL FUNCTIONS

Abdur Rashid Gomal University, Dera Ismail Khan, Pakistan e-mail:rashid_himat@yahoo.com

In this article, a numerical method is used for solving Klein-Gordon-Zakharov equations. The approximate solutions can be found by using the basis of Chebyshev cardinal functions. The partial differential equations are reduced to nonlinear algebraic equations by using operational matrices of derivatives. The computational results are compared with those obtained in previous work and found that the method is efficient and accurate.

- M. Colin, T. Colin. On a quasilinear Zakharov system describing laser-plasma interactions // Differ. Integral Eq., Vol.17, 2004, pp. 297–330.
- [2] B. Guo, G. Yuan. Global smooth solution for the Klein-Gordon-Zakharov equations // J. Math. Phys., Vol.36, No.8, 1995, pp. 4119–4124.





THE SOLUTION OF LATERAL HEAT LOSS PROBLEM USING COLLOCATION METHOD WITH CUBIC B-SPLINES FINITE ELEMENT

Duygu Dönmez Demir, Necdet Bildik Celal Bayar University, Manisa, Turkey e-mail:duygu.donmez@bayar.edu.tr, necdet.bildik@bayar.edu.tr

This work deals with the solutions of lateral heat loss equation by using collocation method with cubic B-splines finite elements. The stability analysis of this method is investigated by considering Fourier stability method. The comparison of the numerical solutions obtained by using this method with the analytic solutions is given by the tables and the figure.

References

- [1] A.M. Wazwaz. Partial Differential Equations Methods and Applications // Saint Xavier University, 2002.
- [2] I. Dag, B. Saka, D. Irk. Application Cubic B-splines for Numerical Solution of the RLW Equation // Appl. Maths. and Comp., Vol.159, 2004, pp. 373-389.
- [3] T. Goodman, D. Hardin. Refinable Multivariate Spline Functions, Topics in Multivariate Approximation and Interpolation // K.Jetter et al. (eds.), Elsevier, 2005, pp. 55-83.
- [4] I. Dag, D. Irk, B. Saka. A Numerical Solution of the Burgers' Equation Using Cubic B-splines // Appl. Maths. and Comp., Vol.163, 2005, pp. 199-211.
- [5] S. Kutluay, A.R. Bahadır, A. Özdeş. Numerical Solution of One Dimensional Burger Equation: Explicit and Exactexplicit Finite Difference Methods // J. Comp. App. Math., Vol.103, 1999, pp. 251-261.

THE NUMERICAL MODELING OF THE THREE-DIMENSIONAL VISCOSITY PLASTICS MOVING SURFACE $^{\rm 1}$

Altyngazy K. Karimov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Altyngazy-K@mail.ru

We consider the unsteady flow regime of oil in two-ply beds. They have stacked by muck with equal porosity, but they have different conductivity. The bed with less conductivity has a greater power than well conductivited bed. The setting of mathematical problem is a nonlinear parabolic equation system. The flow rate and bottom pressure on exploitation bore are given. The condition of front definition of perturbed viscosity plastics area is given. The filtration current and pressure function on butt two beds are continuous. The metathetical process with environment are absent. We have found the law of spatial movement of perturbed viscosity plastics area in case of hydrodynamic communication of two-ply oil beds. [1]

References

 M.S. Hantush. Modification of the theory of leake aquifers // Joorn., of Geophys. Res., Vol.65, No. 11, 1960. pp. 3713-3725.

¹ This research is supported by al-Farabi Kazakh National University.





ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF PARALLEL ALGORITHMS FOR DISCRETE MODELS OF FLUID DYNAMICS

Aizhan B. Dyussenbina Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:dusenbina_a@mail.ru

This goal of this paper is the applying the parallel algorithms to construct the discrete models of Boltzmann equation.

In classical kinetic theory, the macroscopic description of a gas needs the knowledge of the macroscopic variables: density, momentum and temperature (or energy). For a discrete gas, the set of macroscopic variables can be different, and it depends on the model [1]. A models of Boltzmann equation for a simple discrete velocity were introduced by Carleman, Broadwell [2], Godunov, Sultangazin [3]. They are described in the one dimensional case by the system of nonlinear hyperbolic equations. The most general discrete model of the Boltzmann equation has been written by Cabannes [4].

We construct 32-velocity 3-dimensional model relative to the dodecahedron [5]. We consider only the binary collisions, which can be written in the following form:

$$\frac{\partial f}{\partial t} + \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}} \nabla f_{i} = \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j,k,l} A_{ij}^{kl} (f_k f_l - f_i f_j), \ (i,j,k,l = 1,...,32),$$

where the vectors $\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}$ are constant vectors (discrete velocities); the coefficients A_{ij}^{kl} are non-negative constants (transition probabilities) and the unknowns $f_i(x, y, z, t)$ denote the densities of the particles with the velocity $\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}$.

We have 270 nontrivial collisions between particles in this models.

In this way we can construct 64-velocity model, where other 32 velocities are equal $\frac{\sqrt{5}+1}{2}\mathbf{u_i}$. That model has 1080 nontrivial collisions.

It is easy to see that if the number of velocities increases than calculation of nontrivial collisions becomes more complecated. Parallel computing allows to simplify the process of constructing the discrete models with any number of velocities. The collisions in each group and between groups can be calculate in different threads independently. As the result we obtain the system (1) and apply to this system the numerical schemes with parallel algorithms.

Parallel computations were implemented on a supercomputer with the use of the MPI technology.

- R. Gatignol. Discretization of the Velocity Space in the Kinetic Theory of Gases // Mechanique Theoretigue University, Paris, 1975, 225 p.
- [2] J.E. Broadwell. Shock structure in a simple discrete velocity gas // Phys. of Fluids, Vol.7, 1964, pp. 1243-1247.
- [3] S.K. Godunov and U.M. Sultangazin. On the discrete models of kinetic equation of Boltzmann // Uspekhi Mat. Nauk, Vol.26, 1971, pp. 3-51.
- [4] H. Cabanes. On the initial-value problem in discrete kinetic theory // Europian Journal of Mechanics, Vol.10, No.2, 1991, pp. 207-224.
- [5] A.B. Dyussenbina, U.M. Sultangazin. Many-group discrete models of nonlinear Boltzman equation // Izvestia of Academy of Science, Almaty, No.1, 1984, pp. 70-77





APPROXIMATION OF FUZZY INTEGRALS USING FUZZY BERNSTEIN POLYNOMIALS

R. Ezzati, S. Ziari Islamic Azad Karaj University, Karaj, Iran e-mail:ezati@kiau.ac.ir, shok_ziari@yahoo.com

In this work we approximate the integration of continuous fuzzy real number valued function of one and two variables on [0, 1] using monotone and bivariate Bernstein-type fuzzy polynomials. Moreover, the error estimates are obtained for this approximation in terms of the modulus of continuity.

- D. Dobois, H. Prade. Towards fuzzy differential caculus // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.8, 1982, pp. 1-7, 105-116, 225-233.
- [2] R. Goetschel. W. Voxman. Elementary fuzzy calculus // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.18, 1986, pp. 31-43.
- [3] M. Puri, D. Ralescu. Fuzzy random variables // J. Math. Anal. Appl, Vol.114, 1986, pp. 409-422.
- [4] O. Kaleva. Fuzzy differential equations, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.24, 1987, pp. 301-317.
- [5] S. Nanda. On integration of fuzzy mappings // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.32, 1989, pp. 95-101.
- [6] M. Friedman, M. Ma, A. Kandel. Numerical methods for calculating the fuzzy integral // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.83, 1996, pp. 57-62.
- [7] H.J. Zimmerman. Fuzzy Set Theory and Its Applications // Kluwer Academic, New York, 1996.
- [8] S. Gal. Approximation theory in fuzzy setting // Chapter 13 in Handbook of analytic-computational methods in applied mathematics, edited by G. Anastassiou, Chapman & CRC, Boca Raton, New York, 2000, pp. 617-666.
- [9] Hsien-Chung Wu. The fuzzy Riemann integral and its numerical integration // Fuzzy Sets and Systems 110, 2000, pp. 1-25.
- [10] George A. Anastassiou. Sorin G. Gal, On a fuzzy trigonometric approximation theorem of Weirstrass-type // Jornal of Fuzzy Mathematics, Vol.9, No.3, Los Angeles, 2001, pp. 701-708.
- [11] Congxin Wu, Gong Zengtai. On Henstock integral of fuzzy-number-valued functions // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.120, 2001, pp. 523-532.
- [12] B. Bede, S.G. Gal. Quadrature rules for integrals of fuzzy-number-valued functions // Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol.145, 2004, pp. 359-380.
- [13] T. Allahviranloo. Newton Cot's methods for integration of fuzzy functions // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.166, 2005, pp. 339-348.
- T. Allahviranloo. Romberg integration for fuzzy functions // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.168, 2005, pp. 866-876.
- [15] T. Allahviranloo, M. Otadi. Gaussian quadratures for approximate of fuzzy integrals // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.170, 2005, pp. 874-885.
- [16] T. Allahviranloo, M. Otadi. Gaussian quadratures for approximate of fuzzy multiple integrals // Applied Mathematics and Computation, Vol.172, 2006, pp. 175-187.
- [17] George A. Anastassiou. Fuzzy mathematics: Approximation theory // Springer-Verlag Berlin Heidelberg, 2010.





MODELING OF THE AGENT TECHNOLOGY FOR THE COMPUTING OPTION OF FLEXIBLE MANUFACTURE SYSTEM ELEMENT

A.G. Ghuseynov Sumgait State University, Sumgait, Azerbaijan

Investigation of the problems of computing design of flexible manufacture systems (FMS), especially in the beginning stages, it is necessary to do purpose-directly's option of elements, information data and parameters of the FMS Computing option of FMS. As a complex iteration process, is performed with many level organization of design procedures from design demands at first level to design solution of the demanded degree of detailing at the next levels. At computing option of FMS, for creation its informing, mathematical, program supports, the levels of logical and parametric designing application are demanded. In this connection, for design process advancement of efficiency and accuracy, in the work the problem of computing option and definition of FMS elements parameters on logical and parametric designing levels with agent's technology application in considered.

As well as now FMS posses a great number of industrial robots, grippers and specials manipulators of different purpose, installed on manufacture units, technological equipment, used in productions making, elements of control system. At logical sublevels of designing, criterions of efficiency variants of FMS and its elements option are heuristically and their levels - values are corrected. On each logical sublevel by means of the search models the set of suitable variants are chosen. Option on each sublevel is divided on complex of interacted designing problems (logical and mathematical procedures), which are suited aspects of designing.

Solution of the individual sub problems of computing option of FMS elements demands application of the knowledge, executed by agents (expert or software component), which are responsible for its solution. For formal description of subject's area of elements the expert knowledge defining them basis parameters, working out kinematical and dynamical schemes of active elements and manufacturing modules of FMS, defining commonly coordinates, speeds of industrial robots served technical units of manufacture modules, developing their control algorithm are applied. Process of FMS element option is excised by coordination use with traditional components of computing design and intelligence systems, passing between agents, worked out units of informing support (knowledge and data bases of the designed objects).

At elements and manufacturing modules of FMS manufacture appointment and technical characteristics (number of movement degree, load lifting, linear and revolving relocations, speed of linear and revolving relocations), maximal radius of service are necessary to define. In this case, each agent suit by some knowledge of subject area, knowledge about limitation and local problems of option an the base of common informing area of FMS active elements and composes structure, which is excised by means of the term conditions.





AN ESTIMATE OF THE ABSOLUTE VALUE AND WIDTH OF THE SOLUTION OF A LINEAR ALGEBRAIC SYSTEM OF EQUATIONS BY THE INTERVAL PENTAPOINT SWEEP METHOD

A.A. Ibragimov National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:alim-ibragimov@mail.ru

We consider linear systems of algebraic equations

$$Su = f, \tag{1}$$

where $\boldsymbol{S} \in \mathbb{IR}^{(n+1)\times(n+1)}$ – pentadiagonal interval matrix, $\boldsymbol{f} \in \mathbb{IR}^{(n+1)}$ – interval vector of the right part.

As a solution set for the system, we'll consider so called *united set of solutions*:

$$\Xi_{uni}(\boldsymbol{S}, \boldsymbol{f}) = \tilde{\boldsymbol{u}} = \{ \tilde{\boldsymbol{u}} \in \mathbb{R}^{(n+1)} \mid (\exists S \in \boldsymbol{S}) (\exists f \in \boldsymbol{f}) (S\tilde{\boldsymbol{u}} = f) \}.$$

In the attitude of $\Xi_{uni}(S, f)$ we give the problem of out interval estimate:

find an interval vector $\boldsymbol{u} \in \mathbb{IR}^{(n+1)}$, appropriate to $\Xi_{uni}(\boldsymbol{S}, \boldsymbol{f}) \subset \boldsymbol{u}$.

In the given problem are interested in \boldsymbol{u} (Cartesian multiply of n intervals), where there is an estimation Ξ_{uni} according to out attitude is in some sense much more exactly or closer to Ξ_{uni} . Supposing, that $\tilde{u}_i \in \tilde{\boldsymbol{u}}_i$, we can identify the system (1) in a more definite form:

$$\left.\begin{array}{c} \boldsymbol{c}_{0}\tilde{u}_{0} + \boldsymbol{d}_{0}\tilde{u}_{1} + \boldsymbol{e}_{0}\tilde{u}_{2} = \boldsymbol{f}_{0} \\ \boldsymbol{b}_{1}\tilde{u}_{0} + \boldsymbol{c}_{1}\tilde{u}_{1} + \boldsymbol{d}_{1}\tilde{u}_{2} + \boldsymbol{e}_{1}\tilde{u}_{3} = \boldsymbol{f}_{1} \\ \boldsymbol{a}_{i}\tilde{u}_{i-2} + \boldsymbol{b}_{i}\tilde{u}_{i-1} + \boldsymbol{c}_{i}\tilde{u}_{i} + \boldsymbol{d}_{i}\tilde{u}_{i+1} + \boldsymbol{e}_{i}\tilde{u}_{i+2} = \boldsymbol{f}_{i} \\ \boldsymbol{a}_{n-1}\tilde{u}_{n-3} + \boldsymbol{b}_{n-1}\tilde{u}_{n-2} + \boldsymbol{c}_{n-1}\tilde{u}_{n-1} + \boldsymbol{d}_{n-1}\tilde{u}_{n} = \boldsymbol{f}_{n-1} \\ \boldsymbol{a}_{n}\tilde{u}_{n-2} + \boldsymbol{b}_{n}\tilde{u}_{n-1} + \boldsymbol{c}_{n}\tilde{u}_{n} = \boldsymbol{f}_{n} \end{array}\right\}$$

where

$$\boldsymbol{a}_i, \ (i=\overline{2,n}); \quad \boldsymbol{b}_i, \ (i=\overline{1,n}); \quad \boldsymbol{c}_i, \ (i=\overline{0,n}); \quad \boldsymbol{d}_i, \ (i=\overline{1,n-1}); \quad \boldsymbol{e}_i, \ (i=\overline{0,n-2})$$

- corresponding to diagonal elements of the interval matrix S.

On the formula for pentapoint sweep method [1] we can calculate intervals u_i . The substantiation of the interval version of pentapoint sweep methods is supposed to be done the traditional condition of diagonal dominance.

In the given paper at some limits on the elements of the matrix S, under certain assumptions of the condition for the diagonal dominance we obtained estimates for absolute value and width of the interval solutions.

References

[1] S.A. Kalmykov, Yu.I. Shokin, Z.Kh. Yuldashev. Metods of Interval Analysis // Navasibirsk: Nauka, 1986.





EFFECTIVE NUMERICAL METHOD FOR INVERSE PROBLEM FOR GEOELECTRIC EQUATION

Kazizat T. Iskakov, Zhanar O. Oralbekova Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kazizat@mail.ru, oralbekova@bk.ru

In this work the physical formulation of direct and inverse problems of subsurface radar are considered. We had used a mathematical model of direct and inverse which reduced and studied in the paper [1].

For solving inverse problems applied optimization method described in detail in the monograph [2]. The formulas for calculating the gradient of the functional and the dual problem are obtained on the discrete level.

The statement of the problem of subsurface radar is: a source of external current j^{cm} , which having at the time bell-shaped form r(t) and length of about two nanoseconds, includes on the surface of the roadway. The electromagnetic field (the response of the medium) are measured, on which need to define ε (or σ) at depths ranging from zero to 10 meters.

It is assumed that the coefficients ε and σ depend on the depth x_3 and the source of the external current is sufficiently long cable, it is located in the center and stretched along the roadway. In this case, the system of Maxwell equations are remained regarding the components E_2 of electric intensity. Further, for variable x_1 we are applying the Fourier transform, get the problem:

$$\varepsilon U_{tt} + \sigma U_t = \frac{1}{\mu} (U_{x_3 x_3} - \lambda^2 U) - P_\lambda q(x_3) r'(t), \qquad (1)$$

$$U|_{t=0} = 0, \qquad U_t|_{t=0} = 0,$$
 (2)

here: $U = F_{x_1}[E_2(x_1, x_2, t)], P_{\lambda} = F_{x_1}[p(x_1)], \lambda$ - the parameter of the Fourier transform for variable x_1 .

Direct problem: The known values of piecewise continuous functions $\varepsilon(x_3)$, $\sigma(x_3)$ and the positive continuous μ function to define U as a solution to the generalized Cauchy problem of the relations (1)-(2). Let it be known additional information at the point $x_3 = 0$ (the response of the medium):

$$U^{\lambda}(0,t) = f(t). \tag{3}$$

The inverse problem: To determine $\sigma(x_3)$, U^{λ_0} (either $\varepsilon(x_3)$, U^{λ_0}) from (1)-(2), from the known values $\varepsilon(x_3)$, μ (either $\sigma(x_3)$) and additional information (3) (where: $\lambda = \lambda_0$ is fixed).

^[1] V.G. Romanov, S.I. Kabanikhin. Inverse Problems in Geoelectrics // Moscow: Nauka, 1991, 303 p.

^[2] S.I. Kabanikhin, K.T. Iskakov. Optimization Methods for Solving the Coefficient Inverse Problems // Novosibirsk, NSU, 2001, 316 p.





APPLICATION OF NUMERICAL METHODS IN SOLUTION OF THE INCOMPRESSIBLE NAVIER-STOKES EQUATIONS USING A COMPACT FINITE DIFFERENCE SCHEME

Ahmad Reza Haghighi, Amine Jafari, Rahman Dadvand Urmia University of Technology, Urmia, Iran Urmia Islamic Azad University, Urmia, Iran e-mail:ah.haghighi@gmail.com, amine.jafari@yahoo.com, rdadvand@gmail.com

The viscous incompressible Navier-Stokes equations are the basic equations governing a wide range of fluid flows. The numerical solution of these equations to study the issues associated with the incompressible fluid flows is of great importance. Several computational methods for solving these equations have been developed in the past years. Researches show that the high-order upwind compact finite difference schemes are more accurate than the non-compact finite difference methods. This is unlike most of other upwind compact methods where three or five points are used in implicit parts.In this paper, a detailed discussion on the implementation of the flux-difference splitting based third-order upwind compact method to the convective terms of the Navier-Stokes equations is given. In this paper, a compact finite difference scheme is developed for time-accurate solution of the Navier-Stokes (N-S) equations governing the unsteady, incompressible, viscous fluid flows. The scheme is implemented along with the artificial compressibility method, which is widely used to solve the N-S equations. The convective terms are discretized using a flux-difference splitting-based third-order upwind compact method. In addition, the viscous terms are discretized with a fourth-order central compact method. Dual-time stepping along with the beam-warming approximate method is employed for time-accurate calculation of the equations. It is found that, the third-order upwind compact method is more accurate than its non-compact counterpart.

References

 Abdullah Shah. A third-order upwind compact scheme on curvilinear meshes for the incompressible Navier-Stokes equations // Commun. Comput. Phys., Vol.5, No.(2-4), 2009, pp. 712-729.





THE EXTREMAL FUNCTION OF THE ERROR FUNCTIONAL OF QUADRATURE FORMULA AND ITS NORM IN $H_2^{\mu}(R)$ SPACE

I.I. Jalolov, N.T. Ochilova

 $Bukhara\ State\ University,\ Bukhara,\ Uzbekistan$

We consider the following quadrature formula

$$\int_{R} P(x)f(x)dx \approx \sum_{\beta=0}^{N} C_{\beta}f(x_{\beta}),$$
(1)

with the error functional

$$\ell(x) = P(x)\varepsilon_R(x) - \sum_{\beta=0}^N C_\beta \delta(x - x_\beta), \qquad (2)$$

on $H_2^{\mu}(R)$ space, where C_{β} and x_{β} are coefficients and nodes of the formula (1), $\delta(x)$ is Dirac's delta function, $\varepsilon_R(x)$ is the indicator of the domain R and P(x) is a weight function. Definition. The space $H_2^{\mu}(R)$ is defined as closure infinite differentiable functions given in R and decreasing in infinity faster than any negative degree in the norm

$$\|f(x) \mid H_2^{\mu}(R)\| = \left\{ \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \left| F^{-1}[\mu(\xi)] \cdot F[f(x)](\xi) \right|^2 dx \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}}.$$

Here F and F^{-1} are the Fourier transformations [1]:

$$F[f(x)](y) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} f(x)e^{2\pi i yx} dx, \quad F^{-1}[f(x)](y) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} f(x)e^{-2\pi i yx} dx,$$

 $\mu(\xi)$ is infinite differentiable and $\mu > 0$. The following holds Theorem. The extremal function of the error functional (2) of formula (1) has the form

$$\psi_{\ell}(x) = F^{-1} \{ \mu(\xi) \cdot F[\ell_N(x)](y) \} = [p(x) \cdot \varepsilon_R(x)] * \nu_m(x) - \sum_{\chi=0}^N C_{\beta} \nu_{\beta}(x - h\beta),$$

where $\nu_m(x) = F^{-1}[\mu(\xi)](x)$. The square of the error functional on the space $H_2^{\mu}(R)$ has the form

$$\left\|\ell_N \left| H_2^{\mu*}(R) \right\| = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \left| F^{-1} \left\{ \mu(\xi) \cdot F[\ell_N(x)](y) \right\}(x) \right|^2 dx.$$

References

[1] S.L. Sobolev. Introduction to the Theory of Cubature Formulas // Moscow, Nauka, 1974.





ON PARALLELIZATION OF PRIME FACTORIZATION ALGORITHMS

Selcuk Keskin, Fidan Nuriyeva, Urfat Nuriyev Ege University, Bornova, Izmir, Turkey e-mail:selcukkeskin@live.com, nuriyevafidan@gmail.com, urfat.nuriyev@ege.edu.tr

Security of the public key encryption algorithms are based on the fact that the prime factorization problems is mathematically hard. RSA, which is one of the most reliable encryption algorithm, also relies on the principle that prime factorization of the big numbers can not be computed efficiently with computers.

Prime factorization problem is the problem of finding the numbers "p" and "q", given the number "n" which is consists of the product of two big prime numbers "p" and "q". The prime factorization problems is too complex when the numbers are big enough.

In this work, the prime factorization algorithms, the center of the attacks against the encryption algorithms, are emphasized, different prime factorization algorithms are studied and new prime factorization algorithms are proposed. The parallel versions of the algorithms are designed.

Proposed algorithms were implemented in C using MPI and GMP libraries and computational experiments were done. Experiments showed that proposed algorithms are efficient.

- H. El-Rewini, M. Abd-El-Barr. Advanced Computer Architecture and Parallel Processing // A John Wiley & Sons, Inc Publication, 2005.
- [2] L. Friese. Primality Testing and Factorization Methods // University of Virginia, 2003.
- [3] P. Giblin. Primes and Programming-An Introduction to Number Theory with, Computing // Cambridge University Press, New York, Cambridge, 1993.
- [4] F. Leighton. Introduction To Parallel Algorithms And Architectures // Morgan Kaufmannn Publishers, 1992.
- [5] B. Parhami. Introduction To Parallel Processing Algorithms And Architectures // Kluwer Academic Publishers, 2002.





CUBIC B-SPLINE COLLOCATION FOR NONLINEAR FREDHOLM INTEGRAL EQUATIONS

Z. Mahmoodi, J. Rashidinia, E. Babolian Islamic Azad University, Abhar Branch, Iran Science and Research Branch, Islamic Azad University, Tehran, Iran e-mail:z_mahmoodi_a@yahoo.com

The collocation method based on cubic B-spline, is developed to approximate the solution of second kind nonlinear Fredholm integral equations. First of all, we collocate the solution by B-spline collocation method then the Newton-Cotes formula use to approximate the integral. Convergence analysis has been investigated and proved that the quadrature rule is third order convergent. The presented method is tested with four examples, and the errors in the solution are compared with the existing methods [1-4] to verify the accuracy and convergent nature of proposed methods. The RMS errors in the solutions are tabulated in table 3 which shows that our method can be applied for large values of n, but the maximum n which has been used by the existing methods are only n = 10, moreover our method is accurate and stable for different values of n.

NUMERICAL SOLUTION OF FREDHOLM- HAMMERSTEIN INTEGRAL EQUATION BASED ON HERMITE-SPLINE INTERPOLATION

Sedaghat Shahmorad, Masume Zeynali University of Tabriz, Tabriz, Iran e-mail:shahmorad@tabrizu.ac.ir

In this work, we introduce a numerical method for solving Fredholm-Hammerstein integral equation based on linear and cubic Hermite-spline interpolation. In each case we prove a convergence theorem and illustrate the convergence theorem by numerical examples.





THE NUMERICAL DECISION OF THE EQUATION OF A BOUNDARY LAYER OF AN ATMOSPHERE WITH USE CONDENSED CURVILINEAR NET POLLUTED AREAS OF CITY

E.A. Malgazhdarov, N.M. Temirbekov East Kazakhstan State Technical University, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Kazakhstan e-mail:nurlan@vkgu.kz, malgazhdarov_e@mail.ru

At numerical modelling a boundary layer of an atmosphere special complexity is represented with the account of orography of district and high-altitude a building in city buildings. For the decision of such problems for today there is a number of ways as a method of fictitious areas and construction orthogonal curvilinear nets. The construction of orthogonal curvilinear nets on physical area of research enables to receive a better picture and raises its accuracy even at the moderate quantity of units.

The basis of numerical model considered by us for city of Ust Kamenogorsk is made with spatial not hydrostatic numerical models of local atmospheric processes [1,2]. Thus hydrodynamical aspects of a problem - interaction of air weight with a spreading surface, formation of island of heat and local circulation on a background of an external stream first of all are considered. On development of atmospheric processes in considered industrial city, except for natural factors the wide spectrum of indignations of an anthropogenous origin influences. To consider their total effect, in numerical model the opportunity of change of its structure depending on characteristic existential scales of anthropogenous sources and the investigated phenomena has been incorporated.

In the given work as physical area the territory of city of Ust Kamenogorsk in the size 22000×20000 m² and height 2500 m is, the bottom border coincides with a lay of land. Condensations of units of a grid were spent in the central part of city where the basic street-high systems and high-altitude buildings of city [3] are located. In all physical area the orthogonal curvilinear grid which with height is straightened is constructed and on the top border is a plane.

At numerical realization of the given model the known method of splitting on physical processes which consists of two stages was used: Advective-diffusional carry of substances in view of force Koriolice; the coordination of meso-meteorological fields. The system of the equations at the first stage of a method of splitting for nonlinear composed is used the monotonous scheme in view of a sign.

References

- [1] G.I. Marchuk. Mathematical Modelling in a Problem Surrounding Environments // M.: The Science, 1982, 319 p.
- [2] V.V. Penenko, A.E. Aloiyan. The Models and Methods for Problems of Protection Surrounding Environments // Novosibirsk: The Science, 1985, 254 p.

[3] D. Anderson, Dj. Tannerhill, R. Pletcher. The Computing Hydromechanics and Heatexchange // M.: The World, 1990, 392 p.





ANALYTICAL DESCRIPTION OF THE 3D- MULTIDIMENSIONAL NONLINEAR MODULAR DYNAMIC SYSTEMS

F.G. Feyziev, G.G. Mammadova, M.R. Mekhtieva Sumgait State University, Azerbaijan, Baku Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Azerbaijan, Baku Baku State University, Azerbaijan, Baku

e-mail:gamarniz@rambler.ru

In the work the analytical description of the 3D - multidimensional nonlinear modular dynamic systems (3D - MNMDS) [1] with n_0 memory and $P = P_1 \times P_2$ bounded relation is considered. This system over the field GF(2) is described by the following functional relation

 $y[n, c_1, c_2] = G\{u[\sigma, c_1 + \rho_1, c_2 + \rho_2] | n - n_0 \le \sigma \le n, \rho_1 \in P_1, \rho_2 \in P_2\}, GF(2),$ (1) where $n \in Z_0, c_i \in Z, i = \overline{1, 2}, Z$ discreet space; $y[n, c_1, c_2] \in GF^k(2), u[n, c_1, c_2] \in GF^r(2), P_i = \{p_i(1), ..., p_i(r_i)\}, p_i(1) < ... < p_i(r_i),$ besides $p_i(1)$, and $p_i(r_i), (i = \overline{1, 2})$ - finite integers. The following theorem is proved.

Theorem. The full reaction of the 3D - MNMDS characterized by (1) is possible to present in the following form of two-digit analog of the Volterra polynomial

$$y_{\nu}[n,c_{1},c_{2}] = \sum_{i=0}^{(n_{0}+1)rr_{1}r_{2}} \sum_{\bar{\eta}\in\Lambda(i)} \sum_{\substack{(\gamma_{1},\gamma_{2},\bar{m})\in F(\bar{\eta})=\bar{j}\in L_{1}=\bar{\tau}\in L_{2}=n_{2}\in\Gamma(\gamma_{1},\gamma_{2},\bar{m})}} \sum_{h_{i,\bar{\eta},\gamma_{1},\gamma_{2},\bar{m}}=\bar{j},\bar{\tau},\bar{\tau},\bar{n}_{2}} \prod_{\ell\in Q_{0}(\bar{\eta})} X_{\ell\in Q_{0}(\bar{\eta})} X_{\ell\in Q_{\ell}(\ell),\gamma_{2}(\ell),\bar{m}_{\ell})} \prod_{\sigma=1}^{m_{\ell,\alpha_{\ell},\beta_{\ell}}} u[n-n_{1}(\alpha_{\ell},\beta_{\ell},\sigma),c_{1}+p_{1}(j_{\alpha_{\ell}}(\ell)),c_{2}+p_{2}(\tau_{\beta_{\ell}}(\ell))], GF(2),\nu=\overline{1,k},$$

$$(2)$$

where $\Lambda(i)$, $Q_0(\bar{\eta})$; $F(\bar{\eta})$, L_1 , L_2 , $\Gamma(\gamma_1, \gamma_2, \bar{m})$ are the characteristic neighborhoods or the templates of the neighborhood

Also the question of a finding of unknown coefficients of the polynomial (2) by known input and output sequences is investigated.

References

[1] F.G. Feyziev, M.R. Faradjeva. The Modular Sequential Machines // Baku, "Elm", 2006, 234 p.





NUMERICAL SIMULATION OF FLOWS AROUND TWO CIRCULAR CYLINDERS IN THE SIDE-BY-SIDE AND TANDEM BY COMPRESSIBLE GAS

S.D. Mausumbekova Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:s.mausumbekova@mail.ru

In many areas of engineering, circular cylinders form the basic part of structures, for example, cooling systems for nuclear power stations, chimney stacks, transmission cables, heat exchange tubes, etc. Named engineering structures are exposed to either air or water flow, and therefore they experience flow- induced vibration, which could lead to destruction. To avoid the situations and to improve the structure design, it is necessary for engineers to understand the details of the flow-structure interaction and possess the ability to predict the force and response of the cylinder-like structures. Flow past one cylinder has been well studied and it is now considered as a classical case for a validating new numerical schemes. It is known that the flow field around one cylinder shows a wide class of models. From the point of view of a geometrical configuration flow around two cylinders can be considered as the expanded case of one isolated cylinder. Despite it, the corresponding problem is much more complicated. That is because the dynamic interaction between the shed vortices, shear layers and vortex sheets appears in the wake of the cylinders. Consequently, the wake behaves quite differently from one isolated cylinder. Interest to characteristics of flow past a pair cylinders has attracted many researches. The early experimental studies of flow around to circular cylinders were reviewed by Zdravkovich [1]. With fast development of computer technology, the flow around two circular cylinders is also numerically investigated [2, 3]. At numerical modeling of a flow of obstacles there are the difficulties connected with satisfies of boundary conditions on an obstacle. Approaches to the permission of these problems are known, the most effective among them is the immersed-boundary method [4], a method of the fictitious areas, different simple realization. This paper is provided numerical solutions for the flows past two cylinders in the side-by-side and tandem arrangements by compressible turbulent gas in the field of the gravity, described by the non-stationary Navier-Stokes. For an exception of the difficulties arising at numerical integration of initial system of the equations for small Mach numbers, the model of hyposound flows is used.

The exact satisfaction of boundary conditions on an obstacle influences definition of the forces operating from a liquid on a body. Linear and bilinear interpolations are applied to increase of an order of approximation of dynamic characteristics on obstacles. It is already known that the wake interference behind two cylinders is influenced by the gap between the cylinders and there exists a so-called critical gap, which is used to classify the flow patterns behind the cylinder into several categories. To illustrate the detailed the structure of a stream near the wake region behind two circular cylinders, numerical visualization are presented in the form of vorticity contours and streamlines. To describe the flow pattern quantitatively, mean values of lift and drag coefficients are computed and compared with the results of other authors.

- M.M. Zdravkovich. Review of flow interference between two circular cylinders in various arrangements // Journal of Fluid Engineering, Vol.99., 1977, pp. 618-633.
- [2] S. Mittal, V. Kumar. Finite element study of vortex-induced cross-flow and in-line oscillations of a circular cylinder at low Reynolds numbers. // Int. J. Numer. Meth. Fluids., Vol.31, 1999. pp. 1087-1120.
- [3] H. Ding, C. Shu, K.S. Yeo, D. Xu. Numerical simulation of flows around two circular cylinders by mesh- free least square based finite difference methods. // Int. J. Numer. Meth. Fluids., Vol.5, 2007, pp. 305-332.
- [4] J. Kim, D. Kim, H. Choi. An immersed-boundary finite-volume method for simulations of flow in complex geometries. // Journal of Computational Physics., Vol.171, 2001, pp. 132-150.





ABOUT NUMERICAL SOLUTION OF THE INVERSE PROBLEM OF THE TWO-PHASE FLUID FLOW IN A POROUS MEDIUM

Sh. Mussiraliyeva Kazakh National State University, Almaty, Kazakhstan

e-mail:MussiraliyevaSh@mail.ru

Let's consider the Rapoport-Leas Model describing the Linear Two-Phase Fluid Flow in a Porous Medium [1]

$$\frac{\partial s}{\partial t} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \left(a(s) \frac{\partial s}{\partial x} - c(s) \right),\tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial s}{\partial x} = \frac{B\mu_0}{f'(s)f_2(s)k_0} \quad on \quad x = 0,$$
(2)

$$s(1,t) = \eta(t) \text{ on } x = 1,$$
 (3)

$$s(x,0) = s_0(x) \quad on \quad t = 0,$$
(4)

$$a(s) = \frac{k_0}{B} \frac{f_1(s)f_2(s)f'(s)}{f_2(s) + u_0f_1(s)}; c(s) = \frac{f_2(s)}{f_2(s) + \mu_0f_1(s)}; B = \frac{\mu_1 LV}{\sigma cos\theta \sqrt{nk_0}}$$

Here s is the saturation, the fractional pore volume occupied by the non-wetting fluid, k_0 is the permeability, $f_i(s)$ are the relative permeabilities, σ is the surface tension at the water-oil interface, n is porosity, V is the bulk flux, f(s) is the Leverett function, $x = \frac{\bar{x}}{L}, t = \frac{V\bar{t}}{Lm}$ are the dimensionless variables, L is the medium length.

We consider the following inverse boundary problem: find the condition on the right border (the function $\eta(t)$ is unknown). We also have the following additional condition on the left border

$$s(0,t) = \varphi(t). \tag{5}$$

By minimize the functional $J(\eta^{n+1}) = (s^{n+1}(0) - \varphi^{n+1})^2 + \alpha(\eta^{n+1})^2$ the numerical method of the identification the right boundary condition for the Rapoport-Leas Model is elaborated. On the base of numerical experiments, the performance capabilities of this method are analysing.

References

[1] L.A. Rapoport, W.J. Leas. Properties of Linear Waterfloods // Trans AIME, Vol.198, 1953, pp. 139-148.





ON A NUMERICAL METHOD FOR THE SOLUTION OF THE PROBLEM DESCRIBED BY THE SYSTEM OF HYPERBOLIC TYPE DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS¹

A.P. Guliyev, M.M. Mutallimov, M.A. Namazov, Y.A. Chasemi Habashi Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:maliknamazov@rambler.ru, yashar_g_habashi@yahoo.com

In [1] a model is developed for the gas-lift well, described by the system of hyperbolic type differential equations

$$\begin{cases} \frac{\partial P}{\partial t} = -\frac{c^2}{F} \frac{\partial Q}{\partial x}, & x \in (0, l) \cup (l, 2l), \\ \frac{\partial Q}{\partial t} = -F \frac{\partial P}{\partial x} - 2aQ, & t \in (0, T), \end{cases}$$
(1)

where P(x,t) - superfluous pressure on its stationary value, Q(x,t)- the volumetric charge hardening gas and gas liquid mixture in the lift; F, c and a some parameters of the well. For definition of P(x,t), Q(x,t) we use the following initial

$$P(x,0) = P^{0}(x), \quad Q(x,0) = Q^{0}(x),$$
(2)

and boundary conditions

$$P(0,t) = P_0(t), \quad Q(2l,t) = Q_{2l}(t), \tag{3}$$

also joining conditions

$$P(l+0,t) = \alpha P(l-0,t) + P_{pl}(t), Q(l+0,t) = \beta Q(l-0,t) + Q_{pl}(t),$$
(4)

where α , β -the parameters; $P^{0}(x)$, $Q^{0}(x)$, $P_{0}(t)$, $Q_{2l}(t)$ given functions, $P_{pl}(t)$, $Q_{pl}(t)$ -functions describing feedbacks of a layer. For the solution of the problem (1)-(4) it is used difference scheme. Denoting $\Delta t = T/M$, $\Delta x = l/N$ we receive the following grid:

$$x_0 = 0, x_i = x_0 + i\Delta x, \ i = \overline{1, N}, x_N = l - 0, \ x_{N+1} = l - 0, \ x_{N+i} = x_{N+1} + (i - 1)\Delta x, \ i = \overline{2, N+1}, \\ t_0 = 0, \ t_j = t_0 + j\Delta t, \ j = \overline{1, M}.$$

Then initial and boundary conditions turn to conditions:

$$P_{i}^{0} = P(x_{i}, 0) = P^{0}(x_{i}), \quad Q_{i}^{0} = Q(x_{i}, 0) = Q^{0}(x_{i}), \quad i = \overline{0, 2N + 1}, P_{0}^{j} = P(0, t_{j}) = P_{0}(t_{j}), \quad Q_{0}^{0}(2l, t_{j}) = Q_{2l}(t_{j}) = Q_{2l}^{j}, \quad j = \overline{0, M}.$$
(5)

Further, for the finding of value required functions on j + 1 layer we obtain the following relations

$$P_{i}^{j+1} = P_{i}^{j} - \frac{c_{1}^{2}}{F_{1}} \frac{\Delta t}{\Delta x} \left(Q_{i}^{j} - Q_{i-1}^{j} \right), \ i = \overline{1, N},$$

$$Q_{i}^{j+1} = Q_{i}^{j} - F_{1} \frac{\Delta t}{\Delta x} \left(P_{i+1}^{j} - P_{i}^{j} \right) - 2a_{1} \Delta t Q_{i}^{j}, \ i = \overline{0, N}, \quad j = \overline{0, M-1},$$

$$P_{N+1}^{j+1} = \alpha P_{N}^{j+1} + P_{pl}^{j+1}, \ Q_{N+1}^{j+1} = \beta Q_{N}^{j+1} + Q_{pl}^{j+1}, \ j = 0, \overline{M-1},$$

$$P_{i}^{j+1} = P_{i}^{j} - \frac{c_{2}^{2}}{F_{2}} \frac{\Delta t}{\Delta x} \left(Q_{i}^{j} - Q_{i-1}^{j} \right), \ i = \overline{N+2, 2N+1},$$

$$Q_{i}^{j+1} = Q_{i}^{j} - F_{2} \frac{\Delta t}{\Delta x} \left(P_{i+1}^{j} - P_{i}^{j} \right) - 2a_{2} \Delta t Q_{i}^{j}, \ i = \overline{0, N}, \quad i = \overline{N+2, 2N}.$$
(6)

References

 F.A. Aliev, M.Kh. Ilyasov, M.A. Jamalbekov. Simulation of operation of gas-lift well // Reports NAS of Azerbaijan, No.4, 2008, pp. 30-41.

¹ This research is supported by grant programs BSU "50+50".





NUMERICAL SOLUTION OF THE KINEMATIC ANALYSIS OF LINKAGES

E.S. Gebel, E.V. Solonin Omsk State Technical University, Omsk, Russia e-mail:Gebel_es@mail.ru

High class linkages are commonly present as the consisting components of complex industrial mechanisms. Their geometric and kinematic description can not be done in a standard way. The choice of settlement model describing of linkages motion is defined by the circuit of the mechanism. Due to the extensive use of computers and modeling program, creation of efficient models without analytical relations of required parameters in the explicit form gains more importance. In this thesis a model for describing four class mechanisms (fig. 1) is proposed.

Modeling of work of the investigated lifting mechanism [1] is executed in a program MVS. Position of output link PLQ has to be determined. Position of the hydraulic cylinder AD is known and is described equation (1) and (2) of equation system which is presented in fig. 2 in the program.



At fist, values for angles of the ODA dyad is calculated using equations (3) and (4) and coordinates of external joints O and A. Next, position angle of the ADF dyad and position of joint D are determined from kinematic group ADF using equations from (5) to (9). Then unknown position of joint F is received as a projection of the party of the triangular link ADF (13-14). Position of joint B of the link ODB is founded from the equals (10), (11) and (12). Coordinates of joint E of the link DEF are calculated from the system of quadratics (15-16). The solution of its system is given two possible configurations of the link DEF that why the equations (17-21) are determined the decision when the point E is located above or at left concerning the points D and F. The equals (22-31) for calculation positions of the moving joints C, G, P, L and Q are received similarly as is described above.

For the method convergence, the starting values of variables must be close to exact solutions, which find from the kinematic synthesis of the lifting mechanism. Presented model is developed primarily for position analysis; nevertheless it can be also used for velocity and acceleration analysis, but using expressions for velocity and acceleration kinematical parameters instead.

B.I. Zhursenbaev. Design of lift for work at height / B.I. Zhursenbaev, E.S. Gebel, A. Sarbasov // Proceedings of the VI International Scientific - Technical Conference "Problems of research and design of machines", Penza, 2010, pp. 29-31.





2D HYBRID NUMERICAL SIMULATION OF A GLOW DISCHARGE PLASMAS¹

I.R. Rafatov, E.A. Bogdanov, A.A. Kudryavtsev Middle East Technical University, Ankara, Turkey Saint Petersburg State University, St.Peresburg, Russia e-mail:rafatov@metu.edu.tr

Numerical modelling approaches for gas discharges can be classified as fluid methods, kinetic (particle) methods and their combinations, known as hybrid methods [1, 2]. Here we developed and tested 2D hybrid model [3], which includes the continuity equations for the three plasma species, namely, the electrons, positive ions, and metastable atoms with particle densities n_e , n_i , and n_m ,

$$\frac{\partial n_j}{\partial t} + \nabla \cdot \mathbf{\Gamma}_j = S_j,\tag{1}$$

with the particle flux Γ in the drift-diffusion approximation,

$$\mathbf{\Gamma}_j = sgn(q_j) \, n_j \mu_j \mathbf{E} - D_j \nabla n_j, \tag{2}$$

the Poisson's equation for the electric field in electrostatic approximation,

$$\epsilon_0 \nabla \cdot \mathbf{E} = \sum_j q_j n_j, \ \mathbf{E} = -\nabla \phi, \tag{3}$$

and the electron energy equation

$$\frac{3}{2}\frac{\partial w}{\partial t} + \frac{5}{2}\nabla \cdot \left(-D_e\nabla w - \mu_e \mathbf{E}\,w\right) = -e\mathbf{\Gamma}_e \cdot \mathbf{E} - \frac{3}{2}\frac{m_e}{m_g}K_{el}\,k_B\left(T_e - T_g\right) - \sum_k \Delta E_k R_k.\tag{4}$$

Here, subscripts j, i, e, and g indicate the jth species, ions, electrons, and background argon gas, respectively. **E** and ϕ are the electric field and potential, q is the charge, ϵ_0 is the dielectric constant, μ and D are the particle mobility and diffusion coefficients, S is the particle creation rate, $w = 2/3 \varepsilon n_e$, where ε is the mean electron energy. ΔE and R are the energy loss due to inelastic collision and the corresponding reaction rate, m is the particle mass, K_{el} is the momentum transfer rate between electrons and background gas, k_B is the Boltzmann constant, and the electron and gas temperatures are defined as $T_e = 2\varepsilon/3k_b$ and $T_q = 300$ K.

A separate solver for the electron Boltzmann equation is used to relate mean electron energy to the electron transport coefficients (diffusion, D_e , and mobility, μ_e) as well as the rates S of electron-induced plasma-chemical reactions for excitation and ionization.

We used COMSOL MultiphysicsTM finite element simulation software to develop the model. Calculation results have been compared with those obtained from the CFD-ACE+TM package for the identical discharge model under the same operating conditions. Although these models are sufficiently detailed and predict correctly the basic properties of the dc glow discharges, calculations show that the models are very approximate and cannot provide accurate quantitative results.

- [1] A. Derzsi, P. Hartmann, I. Korolov, J. Karacsony, G. Bano, and Z. Donko. J. Phys. D: Appl. Phys. Vol.42, 2009.
- [2] A. Bogaerts, K. Bleecker, V. Georgieva, D. Herrebout, I. Kolev, M. Madani, and E. Neyts. High Temp. Mater. Processes Vol.3, 2005 321p.
- [3] R. Arslanbekov and V. Kolobov. J. Phys. D: Appl. Phys., Vol.36, 2003.

¹ The work was supported by the joint research grant from the Scientific and Technical Research Council of Turkey (TUBITAK) 108T586 and Russian Foundation for Basic Research (RFBR).





CONNECTIVE HEAT TRANSFER FACTOR CALCULATION SITES OF A CUT OF OPEN-CAST MINING 'EKIBASTUZSKY'

 B. Rysbajuly, S.K. Moldabaev, T.B. Akishev, K. Matei Kazakhstan-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan Ekibastuz Technical-engineering Institute, Ekibastuz, Kazakhstan e-mail:b.rysbaiuly@mail.ru, toleu-ab@mail.ru

Physical and chemical processes and mathematical models of heat distribution was thoroughly studied in works of Martynov G.A. (1959). Methods of the some identification solving problems of heat distribution parametres were studied in the works of Rysbaiyly B., Baimankulov A., Ismailov A., Makhambetova G., (2008-2010). Theoretical problems of the developed approached method for a ground heat transfer factor definition to environment without a wind speed were studied in works Rysbaiyly B., Adamov ., Akishev T.B. (2009-2010). It is experimentally proved (Chudnovskij A.F., 1976) that with the increasing of ground wind speed heat transfer factor to environment increases. The iterative method of wind influence equation definition of connective heat transfer factor is considered. The connective heat transfer we search in a kind: $\alpha = a + b\omega^k$ here ω - a wind speed of m/s, a-exponent, k > 0, a and b - constants.

The Cut 'Ekibastuzsky' depending on quantity of homogeneous layers have broken into three sites And, In and And the site A (the top horizon) consists of 4 homogeneous layers: a damp ground - a stony ground-quartz sand-coal; the site In (on 8-10 m. below the top horizon) consists of two layers: quartz sand-coal, and at last a site C (on 15-20 m. below the top horizon) consists only of one layer - coal. From each homogeneous layer of the 'Ekibastuzsky' cut rock's samples are taken for research. Using devices and giving to the removed tests the cylindrical form, values of factors of a thermal capacity and heat conductivity have measured, and also have established relative density of each kind of rocks. Calculation was done with the use of the 'TOTEM' program complex created by us. Entrance data for each site are: a thickness of each layer, heat physical characteristics of each layer, air and ground temperature of surface.

And also set time has begun also the measurement end, an interval of measurement of temperature of air and a ground dt = 1/12 hour, a step on a spatial variable dz = 0.001 meter. Settlement data were compared to the measured data. The method error makes 3-4 percentage.

- G.A. Martynov. Warm and moisturecarrying in freezing through and thawing ground. Bases geocreology (introduction of frozen ground) // Vol.6, 1959, pp. 153-192.
- [2] A.M. Globe. Physics of no Isothermal Intrasoil Moisture Exchange // L. Gidrometisdat, 1983, 279 p.
- [3] B. Rysbaiyly, A. Baimankulov, A. Ismailov, L. Makhambetova. Methods of some conductivity of a ground infreezing process // Bulletin NAS RK., 2008, No.2, pp. 7-9.
- [4] A. Adamov, T.B. Akishev. One of an iterative method for ground heat transfer factor definition Bestnik ENU. No.4, 2010, Vol.77, pp. 178-181.





BICHARACTERISTICS METHOD IN NONSTATIONARY CONTACT PROBLEMS OF THE DYNAMICS OF ELASTIC MEDIA

Bakytbek T. Sarsenov International Kazakh - Turkish University, Turkestan, Kazakhstan e-mail:baha.matem@mail.ru

Consider the inhomogeneous composite elastic medium: homogeneous, isotropic half-space $x_1 > 0$ (D_1 with the density ρ_1 and Lame coefficients λ_1 and μ_1) and a rectangular surface inclusion ($D_2 : \rho_2, \lambda_2, \mu_2$) in plane strain conditions at relieving the stress on the horizontal fissure $S \in D_1$. To describe the motion of an elastic medium using two equations:

$$\sigma_{i\beta,\beta}^{(k)} + F_i^{(k)} = \rho_k \frac{\partial^2 u_i^{(k)}}{\partial t^2}, \qquad i,k = 1, \ 2, \tag{1}$$

and the ratio of the generalized Hooke's law :

$$\sigma_{ij}^{(k)} = \lambda_k \, u_{\beta,\beta}^{(k)} \delta_{ij} + \mu_k (u_{i,j}^{(k)} + u_{j,i}^{(k)}), \quad (i, j, k = 1, 2).$$
⁽²⁾

Here k is the medium number, $F_i^{(k)}$ are the components of body forces, δ_{ij} is Kronecker symbol. Over repeated Greek indices summation is implied from 1 to 2 (tensor contraction).

To simulate the stress-relief on the crack in the half-space we put the body force $F^{(1)}$, whose components are defined by a singular generalized function such as a simple layer on the horizontal crack S [1].

At the contact surface the conditions of hard connection are required:

$$\nu_i^{(1)} = \nu_i^{(2)}, \quad \sigma_{1i}^{(1)} = \sigma_{1i}^{(2)}, \quad i = 1, 2.$$
(3)

At infinity the damping conditions are performed:

$$u_j \to 0, \quad \sigma_{ij} \to 0 \qquad i, j = 1, 2 \quad \text{for } ||x|| \to \infty.$$

To solve this problem the bicharacteristics method is used with the ideas of the splitting method, which was proposed by G.T.Tarabrin [2]. The modified method for the solution of contact problems of interaction of elastic bodies with corners in plane strain conditions [3]. The difference equations for the internal, boundary, corner, and the special pair of contact points of the band and half are obtained. Numerical experiments on the stress-strain state of an elastic half-space and an elastic body when the vertical and horizontal stresses faulting on the horizontal crack by using physical and mechanical parameters, which are typical for rocks and building structures. Waveforms of displacement rates and the diffraction patterns of the velocity fields and the stress of shock waves are constructed. The effect of array parameters, crack depth and the nature of shock waves on the stress-strain state of the environment and the elastic body are studied.

- L.A. Alekxeyeva, I.Sh. Dildabaeva. Generalized solution of equations of the dynamics of an elastic medium with a curved crack under plane strain // Mathematical Journal, Almaty, Vol.7, No.2(25), 2007, pp. 19-31.
- [2] G.T. Tarabrin. Application of the method bicharacteristics for unsteady problems of the dynamics of anisotropic arrays // Structural mechanics and analysis of structures, Moscow, No 4, 1981, pp. 38-43.
- [3] S.S. Dzhuzbaev, B.T. Sarsenov. The dynamic stress-strain state of the band at the lateral pulse pressure // Mathematical Journal, Almaty, Vol.3, No.1(7), 2003, pp. 55-62.





DEAD BEAT CONTROL OF DC-DC CONVERTOR AND SIMILATION WITH MATLAB

Ibrahim Koldanca, H. Huseyin Sayan Gazi University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:ikoldanca@gmail.com, hsayan@gazi.edu.tr

In discrete-time control theory, the dead beat control problem consists of finding what input signal must be applied to a system in order to bring the output to the steady state in the smallest number of time steps. In this work, deat-beat control of DC-DC convertor is done and simulation of it realized.

References

- Irfan Ahmed. Implementation of PID and Dead beat Controllers with the TMS320 Family // Digital Signal Processor Products Semiconductor GroupTexas Instruments.
- [2] B.C. Kuo. Digital Control Systems, 1992.
- [3] M. Güzelkaya. Çok girişli sistemlerde sınırlandırmalı dead beat kontrolü, doktora tezi (Turkish).
- [4] Eiji Yamada, Mineo Tsuji, Katsuhiro Izumi. Dead Beat Control of DC Chopper System with nonlinear Load.
- [5] S.K. Spurgeon, A.C. Pugh. On output deadbat control of discrete-time multivariable systems // IEEE Trans On Automatic Control, Vol.36, July 1991, pp. 894-896.
- [6] Yasuyuki Funahashi, Katoh. Inpt/output deadbeat control // Int. J. Contr., Vol.56, No.3, 1992, pp. 515-530.
- [7] Yasuyuki Funahashi, Katoh. Robust tracking deadbeat control // Int. J. Contr., Vol.56, No. 1, 1992, pp. 213-225.
- [8] R. Iserman. Digital Control Systems, Springer-Verlag, 1981.
- [9] F. Lewis. Optimal Control // John Wiley and Sons, 1986.

ANALYSIS OF OIL DEPOSIT EXPLORATION STATE ON THE BASE OF MULTIFRACTAL APPROACH

F.S. Ismailov, B.A. Suleimanov, O.A. Dyshin, N.I. Guseinova Oil Gas Scientific Research Project Institute, Baku, Azerbaijan

On the base of multifractal approach the method is suggested in order to diagnost the current state of lay system. Thisn method allow to bring decision over regulation and control on line regime by deposit exploration. In limits on method of multifractal fluctuation analysis to field data the dynamic change of generalization fractal dimension to be considered for time series values of current oil production. Carring dynamic analysis give estimation of self organization for exploration process in purpose to select most effective method of deposit action and its aim direct correction at different deposit exploration stages.





NUMERICAL SOLUTION OF THE BOUNDARY INVERSE PROBLEM OF THERMAL CONDUCTION BY THE METHOD OF THERMALLY THIN LAYER

K.T. Iskakov, F.S. Telgozhaeva Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kazizatt@mail.ru, faridats@mail.ru

For a unrestricted plate there can be put the problems of thermal conduction with the various equivalent edge conditions generating same temperature field. On surfaces of a plate temperature (the first boundary value problem) or heat flow (the second boundary value problem) are set. By selection near to surfaces of a plate of the thin fictitious areas, the second boundary value problem is led to a boundary value problem of thermal conduction with small parameter at a derivative on time from temperature in boundary conditions. It stipulates generation of family of decisions $T_{\delta}(x,t)$ depend from small parameter δ (widths of a frontier thin layer). By $\delta \to 0$ the boundary condition with a derivative on time again passes in a boundary condition of the second type. The decision of the perturbed problem $T_{\delta}(x,t)$ tends to the decision of an initial problem. If on the given thermal flow $q_2(t)$ set on a surface x = l and the measured temperature $T_2(t)$ it is required to define the temperature $T_1(t)$ of a surface x = 0 then boundary inverse problem of thermal conduction (IPT) is solved. For its decision application of one of known special methods of the decision, for example a quasi-inversion method is required. However in this case for evaluation of the decision $T_1(t^{(k)})$ in the instant $t = t_k$ it is required knowledge of the measured temperature in all previous and the subsequent instants if time down to completion of investigated heat process. In case of research and control of process of heat in real time such methods are unsuitable.

For the decision boundary IPT the method of thermally thin layer [1,2], which allows on each step on time to realize direct count of the measured temperature $T_2(t^{(k)})$ to required temperature $T_1(t^{(k)})$, is in real time used. At one-sided monotonic heat initial boundary IPT is reduced to a Cauchy problem for the ordinary differential equation of the first order. By means of a contraction mapping principle parameters of a regularization δ and τ are find. The existence, uniqueness and conditional stability of the received decision on a small interval of time is proved. Process of electro contact heat is considered. According to data of imitational simulation of the measuring information the temperature inaccessible for direct temperature measure of electrode-detail contact surfaces is calculated. The results of the numerical experiment are presented which confirm efficiency of the offered method of a numerical IPT solution boundary.

- R.Z. Erzhanov, J.M. Matsevityj, U.M. Sultangazin, V.P. Sheryshev. Concentrat Capacity in Problems tasks of Thermophysics and Microelectronics // Kiev: Naukova Dumka, 1992, 295 p.
- [2] A.A. Bazhanov, V.N. Chizhov, V.P. Sheryshev. Method of Thermally Thin Layer in Problems tasks of Simulation and Identification Thermal Processes //Almaty: Avero, 2005, 186 p.





ON ONE ALGORITHM OF FINDING SOLUTION OF A NONLINEAR NONLOCAL BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEM FOR ONE CLASS THE SYSTEMS OF HYPERBOLIC EQUATIONS

Svetlana M. Temesheva Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:nur15@mail.ru

Consider the nonlinear boundary value problem

 $u_{xt} = f(x, t, u, u_x), \quad (x, t) \in \Omega = (0, \omega) \times (0, T),$ (1)

$$u(0,t) = 0, \quad t \in [0,T],$$
(2)

$$u(0,t) = 0, \quad t \in [0,T],$$

$$u(x,u_x(x,0), u_x(x,T)) = 0, \quad x \in [0,\omega],$$
(2)
(3)

where $f: \overline{\Omega} \times \mathbb{R}^{2n} \to \mathbb{R}^n, g: [0, \omega] \times \mathbb{R}^{2n} \to \mathbb{R}^n$ are continuous functions.

The step size is chosed as h > 0, where Nh = T ($N \in \mathbb{N}$). The partition $[0, \omega] \times [0, T) = \bigcup_{r=1}^{N} \Omega_r, \Omega_r =$ $= [0, \omega] \times [(r-1)h, rh), \text{ and the replacement } \lambda_r(x) = u_x(x, (r-1)h), v_r(x, t) = u_x(x, t) - u_x(x, (r-1)h),$ $(x,t) \in \Omega_r, r = 1 : N$ are made. The algorithm of finding of unknown quantity $\lambda_r(x), v_r(x,t), v_r(x,t)$ $(x,t) \in \Omega_r, r=1: N$ is offered. On each step of algorithm sequential approximations of functional parametres $\lambda_r(x)$, r = 1 : N are found from system following equations

$$h \cdot g\left(x, \lambda_1(x), \lambda_N(x) + \int\limits_{T-h}^T f\left(x, t, \int\limits_0^x \lambda_N(\xi) d\xi + \int\limits_0^x v_N(\xi, t) d\xi, \lambda_N(x) + v_N(x, t)\right) dt\right) = 0, \quad (4)$$

$$\lambda_s(x) + \int_{(s-1)h}^{sh} f\left(x, t, \int_0^x \lambda_s(\xi) d\xi + \int_0^x v_s(\xi, t) d\xi, \lambda_s(x) + v_s(x, t)\right) dt - \lambda_{s+1}(x) = 0,$$
(5)

 $s = 1 : (N - 1), x \in [0, \omega]$, at known $v_r(x, t), (x, t) \in \Omega_r, r = 1 : N$. Unknown functions $v_r(x, t), (x, t) \in \Omega_r$ $(x,t) \in \Omega_r, r=1: N$, are defined from the following integral equations

$$v_r(x,t) = \int_{(r-1)h}^t f\left(x,\tau, \int_0^x \lambda_s(\xi)d\xi + \int_0^x v_s(\xi,\tau)d\xi, \lambda_s(x) + v_s(x,\tau)\right)d\tau, \ (x,t) \in \Omega_r, \ r = 1:N, \quad (6)$$

at finding $\lambda_r(x)$, where $x \in [0, \omega]$.

Algorithm begins with solving of a set of equations (4), (5) with respect to parameters $\lambda_r(x)$, r = 1 : N, at $v_r(x, t) = 0$, $(x, t) \in \Omega_r$, r = 1 : N.

On the basis of the parametrization method [1] sufficient conditions of convergence of algorithm and existence of the isolated solution of a problem (1)-(3) are received.

References

[1] D.S. Dzhumabaev, S.M. Temesheva. A parametrization method for solving nonlinear two-point boundary value problems // Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.47, No.1, 2007, pp. 37-61.





ALGORITHM FOR NUMERICAL REALIZATION OF THE "LOGARITHMIC" DIFFERENCE SCHEMES

N.M. Temirbekov, A.N. Temirbekov Amanzholov East-Kazakhstan State University, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Kazakhstan e-mail:nurik_tem@mail.ru

The most compact differential equations of gas dynamics appear in the Lagrangian mass variables (s, t) [1-2]:

$$\begin{cases}
\frac{\partial}{\partial t_L} \left(\frac{1}{\rho}\right) = \frac{\partial u}{\partial s} \\
\frac{\partial u}{\partial t_L} + \frac{\partial p}{\partial s} = \frac{\partial}{\partial s} \left(\frac{\mu}{v} \cdot \frac{\partial u}{\partial s}\right) \\
\frac{\partial \varepsilon}{\partial t_L} = -p \frac{\partial u}{\partial s}
\end{cases}$$
(1)

Algorithm for the numerical solution of equations of gas dynamics in Lagrange variables (1) using the "logarithmic" difference scheme is written as

First step:

$$U_{i+1/2} = \frac{u_{i+1}^n + u_i^n}{2} - \left(p_{i+1}^n + p_i^n\right) + \left[\mu_{i+3/2} \cdot \frac{\ln v_{i+1}^n - \ln v_{i+1}^{n-1}}{v_{i+1}^n - v_{i+1}^{n-1}} \cdot \left(u_{i+1}^n - u_i^n\right) - \mu_{i+1/2} \cdot \frac{\ln v_i^n - \ln v_i^{n-1}}{v_i^n - v_i^{n-1}} \cdot \left(u_i^n - u_{i-1}^n\right)\right],$$

$$(2)$$

$$P_{i+1/2} = \frac{p_{i+1}^n + p_i^n}{2} - (\gamma - 1) \cdot \varepsilon^n \cdot (\rho^2)^n \left(u_{i+1}^n - u_i^n\right).$$
(3)

Second stage:

$$\frac{\mathbf{v}_{i}^{n+1} - \mathbf{v}_{i}^{n}}{\tau} - \frac{1}{h} \cdot \left(U_{i+1/2} - U_{i-1/2} \right) = 0, \frac{u_{i}^{n+1} - u_{i}^{n}}{\tau} + \frac{1}{h} \cdot \left(P_{i+1/2} - P_{i-1/2} \right) = 0, \tag{4}$$

$$\frac{e_i^{n+1} - e_i^n}{\tau} + \frac{1}{h} \cdot \left(P_{i+1/2} \cdot U_{i+1/2} - P_{i-1/2} \cdot U_{i-1/2} \right) = 0, \\ p_i^{n+1} = (\gamma - 1) \cdot \left(e_i^{n+1} - \frac{(u^2)_i^{n+1}}{2 \cdot v_i^{n+1}} \right).$$
(5)

Calculations were performed up to time, in the field $(-1 \le x \le 1)$ has a flat layer of a viscous gas. To the left of break point x = 0, the state of the gas as follows: $\rho = 1$, p = 1, and right $-\rho = 0, 125$, p = 0, 1. The initial condition for velocity is given as u = (1 - x)/31.

- [1] O.M. Belocerkovskiy, V.A. Andruschenko, YU.D. Stirred. Dynamics of Spatial Vertical Currents in a Non-Uniform Atmosphere // M.YAnus-To, 2000, 456 p.
- [2] YU.I. Shokin, N.T. Danaev, G.S. Hakimzyanov, N.YU. Shokina. Lectures on Different Schemes on Mobile Grids // Editorial-publishing centre treasury state al-Farabi, Almaty, 2006, A part 1, 132 p.





NUMERICAL METHODS TO THE FACTORIZATION OF THE MATRIX POLYNOMIAL WITH RESPECT TO UNIT CIRCLE

N.I. Velieva, L.F. Agamalieva Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail: nailavi@rambler.ru, lagamalieva@yahoo.com

It is known that one of the key procedures of the frequency methods for the synthesis problems is factorization of the matrix polynomials and separation of the fractional-rational matrices[1].

In this research we offer a calculation high accuracy algorithm to the factorization of the matrix polynomial with respect to unit circle. This algorithm doesn't contain the procedure of finding of the roots of the polynomial. The considered factorization is reduced to the solution of the discrete algebraic Riccati equation (DARE). Solution of these problems may be reduced to the solution of the matrix algebraic Riccati equation [2, 3]. To do this using the matrix sign-function method high accuracy algorithm is offered. The results are illustrated by examples. On a concrete example the analytical solution is compared with the results obtained by usual MATLAB and symbolical approaches.

- F.A. Aliev, V.B. Larin. Optimization of Linear Control systems // Analytical methods and Computational Algorithms, Amsterdam, Gordon and Breach Science Publishers, 1998, 272 p.
- [2] V.B. Larin. High-accuracy algorithms for solution of discrete periodic Riccati equations // Appl. Comput. Math, Vol.6, No.1, 2007, pp. 10-17.
- [3] A. Varga. On computing high accuracy solutions of a class of Riccati equations // Control Theory and Advanced Technology, Vol.10, No.4, 1995, pp. 2005-2016.





ALGORITHM OF NUMERICAL SOLVING OF EQUATIONS FOR NON-STATIONARY MOTION OF THE FLEXIBLE MASSIVE THREAD IN AN ARBITRARY FORCE FIELD

Ablay K. Yeraliyev Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:ablayyer@mail.ru

In present mechanisms are used widely, where connection between the links is realized by a flexible element in the form of tapes, thread, wires, ropes, etc. For example, such mechanisms are winding mechanisms, clutch with centrifugal flexible connections.

In many mechanisms non-stationary motion and masses of the flexible elements are so large that transient regimes of these mechanisms can not be fully studied, and we can be limited by consideration of small vibrations only. For study of non-stationary motion it is necessary to find the form and tension of the flexible element in the general case. It is reduced to study of non-stationary motion of a massive thread in the arbitrary force field. As non-stationary motion is poorly understood this problem is of definite interest.

In the paper the algorithm for numerical solving of equations of a plane non-stationary motion of a flexible thread in arbitrary force field is proposed [1],[2]

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial s} \left(\frac{1}{\gamma(s)} \frac{\partial T}{\partial s}\right) - \frac{T}{\gamma(s)} \left(\frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial s}\right)^2 = -\left(\frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial t}\right)^2 - \frac{\partial F_1}{\partial s} + F_2 \frac{\partial \varphi}{\partial s},\tag{1}$$

$$\frac{1}{T}\frac{\partial}{\partial s}\left(\frac{T^2}{\gamma(s)}\frac{\partial\varphi}{\partial s}\right) = \frac{\partial^2\varphi}{\partial t^2} - \frac{\partial F_2}{\partial s} - F_1\frac{\partial\varphi}{\partial s}.$$
(2)

Here s is coordinate of the point on the thread, measured along the thread from the arbitrarily chosen beginning; t is the time; $\varphi = \varphi(s, t)$ an angle between tangent to the thread and some fixed direction, for example, horizon; T = T(s, t) is thread tension; $F_1 = F_1(s, t), F_2 = F_2(s, t)$ are the projection of external forces F = F(s, t) on tangent and normal directions correspondingly; $\gamma = \gamma(s)$ is mass of thread per unit of its length (in general case it may be not constant and be some given function of s, while it is taken continuously). Forces are considered per unit mass of the thread element (in particular the forces of weight, forces of aerodynamic resistance and so on). In general case F = F(s, t)is nonlinear.

In paper the method is offered for obtaining of stable solutions of these equations on a computer by implicit finite-difference scheme with using of an iterative process.

As an example of the proposed algorithm, large fluctuations of the flexible thread in the gravitational field are considered, when one end of the thread is fixed and the other is free. Since aerodynamic resistance is not taken into account, control of the solution accuracy at each step in time is realized by condition of energy conservation. Forms of the thread, founded theoretically, were compared with photographs of various forms of real vibrating metal chain.

The proposed method can solve various problems of non-stationary motion of a massive thread by the corresponding boundary and initial conditions.

- A.P. Minakov. Fundamentals of the thread mechanics // The Research Work of the Moscow Textile Institute, M., Vol.9, No.1, 1941, pp. 87.
- [2] V.S. Shchedrov. Fundamentals of Mechanics of a Flexible Thread // M., MashGIZ, 1961, pp. 172.





SECTION VII

Control Theory and Optimization

GLOBAL BEHAVIOR OF SOLUTIONS TO DYNAMICAL PROBLEMS OF MATHEMATICAL BIOLOGY

Varga K. Kalantarov Koc University, Istanbul, Turkey

We are going to discuss the problems of global existence uniqueness, global stability and structural stability of the Cauchy problem and initial boundary value problems for FitzHugh - Nagumo equations, Arima-Hasegawa equation and Goodwin-Trainor system of nonlinear partial differential equations that model qualitative behavior of neurons and cellular morphogenesis.

SOME RESULTS ABOUT OPTIMAL CONTROL PROBLEMS UNDER WEAK HYPOTHESES

Serkan İlter Istanbul University, Istanbul, Turkey e-mail:serkanilter@hotmail.com, ilters@istanbul.edu.tr

In this paper, by considering vector-valued maximum-minimum type functions satisfying Lipschitz condition, and optimal control systems with continuous-time which is governed by systems of ordinary differential equation, we derive necessary conditions for obtimality under weak hypotheses and properties concerning the generalized Jacobian set for optimal control problems of these systems.

- S. İlter. Weak Maximum Principle for Optimal Control Problems of Nonsmooth Systems // Applied Mathematics and Computation, 20 March 2011.
- [2] F.H. Clarke. Optimization and Nonsmooth Analysis // SIAM Classics in Applied Mathematics, 1990.
- [3] F.H. Clarke. The Maximum Principle Under Minimal Hypotheses // SIAM J. Control and Optimization, Vol.14, No.6, 1976, pp. 1078-1091.
- [4] V.F. Demyanov, A.M. Rubinov. Constructive Nonsmooth Analysis // Peterlang, Germany, 1995.





ON A MINIMIZATION OF THE FIRST EIGENFREQUENCY OF THE PLATE WITH RESPECT TO ITS DOMAIN¹

Y.S. Gasimov, I.J. Mardanov, N.A. Safarova

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan Ministry of Communication and Information Technologies, Baku, Azerbaijan

e-mail:ysfgasimov@yahoo.com, narchis2003@yahoo.com

Let's consider the problem

$$\Delta^2 u = \lambda u, \quad x \in D,\tag{1}$$

$$\Delta u = 0, \qquad x \in S_D, \tag{2}$$

$$\frac{\partial \Delta u}{\partial n} = 0, \quad x \in S_D, \tag{3}$$

$$\lambda_1(D) \to \min, \quad D \in K,$$
(4)

where Δ - Laplace operator, $K = \{D \subset R^2 : \overline{D} \in K_0, S_D \in C^2\}$, K_0 is some subset of all bounded convex domains from E^2 .

The problem (1)-(3) is indeed mathematical description of the across vibrations of the free plate and eigenvalues of this problem λ_j , j = 1, 2, ... indeed are eigenfrequencies of the plate [1].

The following condition of optimality is proved for this problem using previous results [1], [2].

Theorem. If the domain $D^* \in K$ is a solution of the problem (1)-(4) then for any $D \in K$ is valid

$$\int_{S_{D^*}} u_1^2(x) \left[P_D(n(x)) - P_{D^*}(n(x)) \right] ds \le 0.$$
(5)

Here $u_1(x)$ is the first eigenfunction (indeed eigenvibration of the plate) corresponding to the first eigenfrequency, $P_D(x) = \max_{l \in D} (l, x)$, $x \in R^2$ - support function of the domain D.

If to define K_0 by the condition

$$K_0 = \left\{ D \subset R^2 : D_1 \subset D \subset D_2 \right\}$$

where $D_1, D_2 \subset \mathbb{R}^2$ are given bounded convex domains, then it will be equivalent to the condition

$$P_{D_1}(x) \le P_D(x) \le P_{D_2}(x), x \in \mathbb{R}^2.$$

In this case as one can see from (5) D_2 will be an optimal domain minimizing the functional (4), i.e. the first eigenfrequency of the free plate.

- Y.S. Gasimov. On one inverse problem for defining of the domain of the plate // Appl. Comput. Math., Vol.4, No.2, 2005, pp. 41-46.
- Y.S. Gasimov Some shape optimization problems for the eigenvalues // J. Phys. A: Math. Theor., Vol.41, No.5, 2008, pp. 521-529.

 $^{^{1}}$ This work is partially supported by the project PICS (4962) and partially by the grant TWAS (09-006 RG/MATHS/AS_I)





INVESTIGATION OF DYNAMIC ECONOMIC MODEL

Anar M. Sadigov Economics Institute of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan

In this work necessary extremum conditions are obtained for the optimal control problem of discrete inclusions.

Let $a_t : R^{n(t)} \to 2^{R^{n(t+1)}}$, t=0,1,2, ..., T-1 be a multivalued mapping, where 2^X denotes the set of all subsets of $X, n(t) \in N$. Let $k = n(1) + n(2) + \cdots + n(T)$ and $q : R^k \to R \bigcup \{+\infty\}$.

Consider the minimization of the function $q(x_1, \dots, x_T)$ on the trajectories of the problem

$$x_{t+1} \in a_t(x_t), \quad t = 0, 1, ..., T - 1,$$
(1)

$$x_0 = \bar{x}_0. \tag{2}$$

We denote the set of solutions (x_1, \dots, x_T) of problem (1),(2) by M. $(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T) \in M$ is called optimal, if $q(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T) \leq q(x_1, \dots, x_T)$ for $(x_1, \dots, x_T) \in M$. If we denote the sets in \mathbb{R}^k as

$$M_0 = \left\{ (x_1, ..., x_T) \in R^k : x_1 \in a_0(\bar{x}_0) \right\},\$$
$$M_t = \left\{ (x_1, ..., x_T) \in R^k : (x_t, x_{t+1}) \in gra_t \right\}, \quad t = 1, ..., T - 1$$

then the formulated problem will be reduced the minimization of the function $q(x_1, \dots, x_T)$ on the set $M = \bigcap_{i=0}^{T-1} M_t$. Let $grb_t = intT_{gra_t}(\bar{x}_t, \bar{x}_{t+1})$, where $gra_t = \{(x, y) \in R^{n(t)} \times R^{n(t+1)} : y \in a_t(x)\}, T_C(\bar{x})$ tangent Clarke cone.

Theorem 1. Let $(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T) \in M$ minimizes the function q on the set M, $gra_t t = \overline{1, T-1}$, are closed sets, $grb_t = intT_{gra_t}(\bar{x}_t, \bar{x}_{t+1}) \neq \emptyset$ for $t = \overline{1, T-1}$ and function q satisfies to Lipschitz condition in the neighborhood of $(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T)$, then there exist vectors $x_1^*(0) \in N_{a_0(\bar{x}_0)}(\bar{x}_1)$, $(x_t^*(t), x_{t+1}^*(t) \in N_{gra_t}(\bar{x}_t, \bar{x}_{t+1}), t = \overline{1, T-1}, and \lambda \in \{0, -1\}$ that $(x_1^*(0) + x_1^*(1), \dots, x_T^*(T-1) + x_T^*(T)) \in \in \lambda \partial q(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T)$, where $x_T^*(T) = 0$; $x_t^*(t-1), t = \overline{1, T}$ and λ non zero simultaneously, $N_C(\bar{x})$ normal Clarke cone. Let us consider the discrete inclusions

$$z_{t+1} \in b_t(z_t), \quad t = 1, ..., T - 1,$$
(3)

$$z_0 \in T_{a_0(\bar{x}_0)}(\bar{x}_1). \tag{4}$$

Theorem 2. Let $(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T) \in M$ minimizes the function q on the set M, gra_t , $t = \overline{1, T-1}$, closed sets, exist solution of problem (3),(4) and function q satisfy to Lipschitz condition in the neighborhood of $(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T)$, then there exist vectors $x_1^*(0) \in N_{a_0(\bar{x}_0)}(\bar{x}_1)$, $(x_t^*(t), x_{t+1}^*(t) \in N_{gra_t}(\bar{x}_t, \bar{x}_{t+1}), t = \overline{1, T-1}$, and $x_T^*(T) = 0$, that

$$x_1^*(0) + x_1^*(1), \cdots, x_T^*(T-1) + x_T^*(T)) \in -\partial q(\bar{x}_1, \cdots, \bar{x}_T).$$

Theorem 3. Let us suppose that $(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T) \in M$ minimizes the function q on the set M, gra_t are the convex sets, q is convex and continuous function of the point $(\bar{x}_1, \dots, \bar{x}_T)$ then there exist the vectors $x_1^*(0) \in N_{a_0(\bar{x}_0)}(\bar{x}_1)$, $(x_t^*(t), x_{t+1}^*(t) \in N_{gra_t}(\bar{x}_t, \bar{x}_{t+1}))$, and $\lambda \in \{0, -1\}$ that

$$(x_1^*(0) + x_1^*(1), \cdots, x_T^*(T-1) + x_T^*(T)) \in \lambda \partial q(\bar{x}_1, \cdots, \bar{x}_T),$$

where $x_T^*(T) = 0$; $x_t^*(t-1)$, $t = \overline{1, T}$ and λ are non zero simultaneously.







OPTIMIZATION OF FLOW ON STREAM DATA PROCESSING IN REAL TIME SYSTEMS

Kanat Aidarov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kanataidarov@yahoo.com

Let's imagine data stream as workflow of arbitrary particles. In that case we will get an assembly job on continuously arriving parts which is divided into several work items.

$$\mathbf{J} = (\mathbf{w}_{1}^{j}, \mathbf{w}_{2}^{j}, \dots, \mathbf{w}_{n_{i}}^{j}), \mathbf{w}_{i}^{j} : 1 \le i \le n_{j},$$

there are J is complete Job which consists of n_j work items. w_{i+1}^j cannot be started before w_i^j is completed. One or more work items may be carried out by an agent.

Thus, the entire system will have the following hierarchy: each Job is divided among several agents, each agent consists of number of work items (performs several works). Our goal is optimization of given workflow: to process each part as fast as possible (minimal overall processing time) with use of minimal agents. Of course, we assume that number of spare agents as many as needed.

Example: $J1=\{w_1^1, w_2^1, w_3^1, w_4^1, w_5^1\}$. Q_1^1, Q_3^1 – sizes of queues of arriving parts before each agent, Q_2^1, Q_4^1, Q_5^1 – sizes of internal queues before each work items inside appropriate agent. $t_1^1, t_2^1, t_3^1, t_4^1, t_5^1$ – times of processing of parts in each work item. L_1 – total time spent by system to process single part. See Figure 1. B_1^1 : % of time A_1 is busy doing Job 1. B_2^1 : % of time A_2 is busy doing Job 2. Ideally must be $B_1^1 \approx 100\%, B_2^1 \approx 100\%$. Job parts arrival rate λ_1 may be too slow or too fast.

In case of small λ_1 :

 B_1^1 and B_2^1 may be well below 100%. In that case, is is better to free either A₁ or A₂ and use a single Agent. Thereby, transportation cost is also saved.

In case of large λ_1 :

When Q_1^1 is full, object drop to backup queue BQ_1^1 of infinite length. θ -number of object movements between Q_1^1 and BQ_1^1 . The time for shuffling one object from Q_1^1 to BQ_1^1 is t_s . Increase in per object queuing delay (waiting in queue + actual processing time) $\approx \theta \cdot t_s$. Ideally θ must be kept close to 0.

Here we consider two forms of optimization of given workflow: load balancing (vertical partitioning) and parallelization (horizontal partitioning). In case of load balancing queue size is doubled, B_1^1 will decrease, additional transportation cost is introduced.



FIGURE 1. Example of continuously part processing Picture and two forms of workflow optimization.

References

 A. Arasu, M. Cherniack, E. Galvez, D. Maier, A. Maskey, E. Ryvkina, M. Stonebraker, R. Tibbetts. Linear Road: A Benchmark for Stream Data Management Systems // In Very Large Data Bases (VLDB) Conference, Toronto, CA, 2004.





CONTROL OF HEATING PROCESS WITH FEEDBACK AT LUMPED POINTS AND AT INSTANTS OF TIME¹

Kamil R. Aida-zade, Vagif M. Abdullayev Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:kamil_aydazade@rambler.ru, vaqif_ab@rambler.ru

Let some homogenous rods of length l be sequentially heated in a heating stove at the expense of temperature $\vartheta(t)$ created in it by an external source. The temperature is assumed to be the same all over the heating stove. Then the heating process of each rod is described by the following differential equation of parabolic type and including boundary conditions:

$$u_t(x,t) = a^2 u_{xx}(x,t) + \alpha \left[\vartheta(t) - u(x,t)\right], \ (x,t) \in \Omega = (0,l) \times [0,T],$$
(1)

$$u_x(0,t) = \lambda \left[u(0,t) - \vartheta(t) \right] , \quad t \in (0,T] , \quad u_x(l,t) = -\lambda \left[u(l,t) - \vartheta(t) \right] , \quad t \in (0,T] ,$$
(2)

where a, α, λ are given parameters of the process. For simplicity, we assume that the initial temperature of the rods is constant along their entire length, but different for each rod. Assume that we have an admissible set (interval) of possible initial values of temperatures $B = [\underline{B}, \overline{B}]$:

$$u(x,0) = b = const, \ b \in B, \ x \in [0,l],$$
(3)

at that we know of the density function of initial temperatures $\rho_B(b)$ such that

$$\int_{B} \rho_B(b)db = 1, \quad \rho_B(b) \ge 0, \quad b \in B.$$
(4)

Feedback control is sought in the form:

$$\vartheta(t) = K_j \sum_{i=1}^{L_x} \gamma_i u(\bar{x}_i, \bar{t}_{j-1}) = const, \ K_j = const, \ t \in [\bar{t}_{j-1}, \bar{t}_j), \ j = 1, 2, ..., L_t.$$
(5)

where K(t) is an optimized parameter of regulations; γ_i , i = 1, 2, ..., L weighting coefficients, $u(\bar{x}_i, \bar{t}_{j-1})$, $i = 1, 2, ..., L_x$, $j = 1, 2, ..., L_t$ current temperature at given discrete instants of time $\bar{t}_j \in [0, T]$, $j = 0, 1, ..., L_t$, $t_0 = 0$, $\bar{t}_{L_t} = T$ and at given L points $x_i \in [0, l]$, which is measured with the use of sensors, depending on the values of which the current temperature $\vartheta(t)$ is set in the heating stove.

Performance criterion of control of the heating process is set as follows:

$$J(K,\bar{\gamma}) = \int_{B} \left[\int_{0}^{l} \mu(x) \left[u(x,T;K,\gamma,b) - U(x) \right]^{2} dx \right] \rho_{B}(b) db + \varepsilon_{1} \left\| K(t) - K_{0} \right\|_{L_{2}[0,T]}^{2} + \varepsilon_{2} \left\| \gamma - \gamma_{0} \right\|_{R^{L}}^{2},$$
(6)

where U(x), $\mu(x) \ge 0$ are given functions, $\varepsilon_1 > 0$, $\varepsilon_2 > 0$, $K_0 \in \mathbb{R}^1$, $\gamma_0 \in \mathbb{R}^L$.

We obtain necessary optimality conditions, which contain formulas for the components of the gradient of the target functional on K(t). For numerical solution to the problem using iterative first order optimization methods, problem (1)-(6) is reduced using method of lines to a problem of control of a loaded system of ordinary differential equations involving non-local conditions.

Results of carried out numerical experiments are given in the work.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1 and Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





ANALYSIS OF OPTIMAL TRANSIENT CONDITIONS IN OIL PIPELINE SYSTEMS¹

Kamil R. Aida-zade, Jamila A. Asadova Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:kamil_aydazade@rambler.ru, jamilya_babaeva@rambler.ru

In the paper, we state the formulation and analysis of the results of numerical investigation of the problem of optimization of transient conditions in oil pipeline systems that arise during the transition from one steady-state condition of transportation of hydrocarbons to another.

We obtained the following main results of the qualitative analysis of transient conditions.

What is most important is the fact that the period of the transition process depends essentially on the chosen class of control actions and constraints imposed on the control and on phase state.

Minimal period of the transition process under piecewise-continuous control actions without any constraints imposed on the control process does not depend on the pipeline's diameter, the hydraulic resistance coefficient, oil viscosity and the values of the initial and final steady-state conditions, but does depend only on the length of the pipeline. But for all that obtained optimal regimes of pumping stations are practically not realizable.

If there are technological constraints imposed on control actions from the class of piecewise continuous functions, the following facts take place:

a) if the dissipation coefficient increases, the transition period decreases; at that, if the range of the set of admissible controls increases, the influence of the dissipation coefficient decreases;

b) the difference between the values of the parameters of the initial and final steady-state conditions affects the period of the transition process. Namely, the more we need to increase consumption, the longer the period of the transition process (the effect of this difference on the transient period decreases as the range of the set of admissible values of control actions increases);

c) if the pipe run increases, the period of the transition process increases much more slowly when narrowing the interval of admissible values of the control; this change becomes directly proportional to the increase of the pipe run when expanding the range of admissible values of the control actions; d) minimal period of the transition process under the transition from a lower value of the condition to a greater one and, vice versa, from larger to smaller is the same; at that, optimal regimes of transition are symmetrical.

When controlling the transition process on the class of piecewise constant functions under technological constraints imposed on the control regimes, all the quality characteristics which piecewise continuous regimes posses and listed above are also observed in this class. In addition to these, the following properties are established:

a) in comparison with the piecewise-continuous controls, in case of using piecewise constant actions we need more time for the transition process under the same initial values of the technological parameters and constraints;

b) the increase in the number of intervals of constancy and in the range of admissible values of the control results in the reduction of the period of the transition process;

c) in case when we also optimize the switching moments of the controls, the narrowing of the range of admissible values of the control results in significant reduction of the number of intervals of constancy for the controls.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1 and Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





DETERMINATION OF BREAKPOINTS IN OIL PIPELINE NETWORKS UNDER NON-STATIONARY REGIMES¹

Kamil R. Aida-zade, Yegana R. Ashrafova, Alesker A. Panahov Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:kamil_aydazade@rambler.ru, y_aspirant@yahoo.com

We investigate a problem of the determination of breakpoints and of volume of oil leakages under non-stationary regimes of transportation over a linear part of a main pipeline. With this purpose, we rewrite the linearized system of differential equations of unsteady laminar flow of incompressible fluid with constant density in the following form:

$$\begin{cases} -\frac{\partial P(x,t)}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial Q(x,t)}{\partial t} + 2a[Q(x,t) - \sum_{i=1}^{m} q_i^{loss}(t)\delta(x-\xi_i)], \\ -\frac{\partial P(x,t)}{\partial t} = c^2 \frac{\partial Q(x,t)}{\partial x}, \end{cases}$$
(1)

where P(x, t), Q(x, t) are pressure and flow rate, respectively, at the point $x \in (0, l)$ of the pipeline at point of time $t > t_0$; csound speed in the environment; 2*a* linearized friction coefficient; $q_i^{loss}(t)$ defines the unknown volume of oil leakage at unknown breakpoint $\xi_i \in (0, l)$, i = 1, ..., m of the pipeline; *m* the number of breakpoints.

We assume that there is permanent long-term observation over the expenditure and pressure at the ends of the pipeline, i.e. we have

$$\{P(0,t) = p_0(t), P(l,t) = p_l(t), \} \quad \{Q(0,t) = \bar{q}_0(t), Q(l,t) = \bar{q}_l(t)\}, \quad t \in [0,T].$$

It is evident that under known points ξ_i and expenditures of leakages q_i^{loss} , i = 1, ..., m to calculate the regimes of flow in pipelines, it is necessary to have one of the conditions (2).

The problem consists in solving for the values $q^{loss}(t) = (q_1^{loss}(t), ..., q_m^{loss}(t))$ $\xi = (\xi_1, ..., \xi_m)$, under which the functional

$$J(\xi, q^{loss}(t)) = \int_{t_0}^{T} [Q(0, t; \xi, q^{loss}(t)) - \bar{q}_0(t)]^2 + [Q(l, t; \xi, q^{loss}(t)) - \bar{q}_l(t)]^2 dt + \varepsilon_1 \left\| q^{loss}(t) - \tilde{q}^0 \right\|_{L_2^m[0,T]}^2 + \varepsilon_2 \left\| \xi - \bar{\xi} \right\|_{R^m}^2 \to \min$$
(3)

takes on its minimal value, where $t_0 > 0$ is the estimated time when a leakage occurred; ε_1 , ε_2 , $\bar{\xi}, \tilde{q}^0$ regularization parameters.

A numerical approach to the solution to problem (1)-(3) is proposed in the work. Results of numerical experiments are given.

- K.R. Aida-zade Computational problems in hydraulic networks. // J. of Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, No.2, 1989, (in Russian).
- S.E. Kutukov Technological and ecological monitoring of systems of main transport and commercial oil gathering // Safety of life activity. Appl., No.8, 2004, 16p(in Russian).

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1 and Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





DETERMINATION OF RESISTANCE COEFFICIENT FOR PIPELINE SECTION UNDER NON-STATIONARY REGIME¹

Kamil R. Aida-zade, Samir Z. Guliyev Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:kamil_aydazade@rambler.ru, azcopal@yahoo.com

In the paper, we consider the following process of non-stationary isothermal flow of incompressible fluid at linear section of main pipeline [1]:

$$\begin{cases} -\frac{\partial p(x,t)}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial \omega(x,t)}{\partial t} + \lambda \frac{\omega(x,t)}{2d}, \\ -\frac{\partial p(x,t)}{\partial t} = c^2 \frac{\partial \omega(x,t)}{\partial x}, \quad (x,t) \in \Omega = \{(x,t) : 0 < x < l, 0 < t \le T\}, \end{cases}$$
(1)

where $\lambda = \lambda (Re, \varepsilon/d)$ is the coefficient of hydraulic resistance of a pipeline section; ε/d roughness of the interior surface of the pipeline of diameter d. Then, for a particular pipeline, taking into account that $Re = \omega\beta d/\mu$, we have $\lambda = \lambda(\omega)$. To obtain this dependence, we put the following inverse problem. Assume that we have the results of long-term observations over the regimes at the ends of the pipeline of length l. Initial conditions may be given or not (in this case we have a problem without initial conditions):

$$p(0,t) = \varphi_1^p(t), \quad p(l,t) = \varphi_2^p(t), \quad \omega(0,t) = \varphi_1^\omega(t), \quad \omega(l,t) = \varphi_2^\omega(t), \quad t \in [0,T], \quad (2)$$

where $\varphi_1^p, \quad \varphi_2^p, \quad \varphi_1^\omega, \quad \varphi_2^\omega$ are given functions. It is possible to consider other types of observations;
particularly, observations may be carried out at internal points of the pipeline $x_s \in (0,l)$, for example,
over the pressure $p_s(t)$ and velocity $\omega_s(t), \quad s = \overline{1, N-1}, \quad x_0 = 0, \quad x_N = l.$

Introduce the following criterion of identification of the coefficient:

$$I(\lambda) = \sum_{s=0}^{N} \int_{0}^{T} \left[p\left(x_{s}, t; \lambda\right) - \overline{p_{s}}(t) \right]^{2} dx + \int_{0}^{T} \left[\omega\left(x_{s}, t; \lambda\right) - \overline{\omega_{s}}(t) \right]^{2} dx \to \min_{\lambda(\omega) \in A},$$
(3)

where A is given convex closed domain of admissible values of λ ; $p(x,t;\lambda)$, $\omega(x,t;\lambda)$ solution to problem (1), (2). To solve problem (1)-(3) and obtain the function λ we use an approach proposed in [2].

We obtain formulas for the components of the gradient of the target functional in the space of identified values of the parameters $\lambda \in \mathbb{R}^L$, which allow to use first-order optimization methods to solve the problem (1) numerically. The obtained values of the optimized vector are then used to build the function $\lambda(\omega)$ from any class of functions using interpolation and approximation methods.

- R.A. Aliyev, V.D. Belousov, A.G. Nemudrov. Pipeline transportation of oil and gas // M.: Nedra, 1988, 368p(in Russian).
- [2] K.R. Aida-zade, S.Z. Guliyev. Numerical solution to non-linear coefficient inverse problems for ordinary differential equations // J. of Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.51, No.5, 2011, pp. 1-13(in Russian).

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1 and Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





ON AN IMPLEMENTATION OF CRITERIA TRUNCATION METHOD IN VECTOR OPTIMIZATION PROBLEMS¹

Kamil R. Aida-zade, Marina N. Khoroshko

Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan

e-mail:kamil_aydazade@rambler.ru, khoroshko@yahoo.com

We consider the finite-dimensional problem of vector optimization:

$$F(x) = (f_1(x), ..., f_l(x)) \to \min_{x \in D \subset \mathbb{R}^n},$$
 (1)

$$D = \{x \in \mathbb{R}^n : g_i(x) \le 0, i = 1, ..., m\},$$
(2)

where the given functions $f_j(x), g_j(x)$ are continuously differentiable, convex, $D \subset \mathbb{R}^n$ is a nonempty bounded admissible set.

The approach in which the solution of the problem (1), (2) is carried out iteratively in an interactive mode is as follows. At each s-th iteration the user sets the desired values of criterion functions f_i^s , i = 1, ..., l. To find $x^s \in D$, satisfying conditions

$$f_i(x) \le f_i^s, i = 1, ..., l, \ x \in D,$$
(3)

the sequence $\{x_q^s\}$, $q = 0, 1, ..., x_0^s = x^{s}$ the solution taken at the previous iteration, x_0^0 - an initial admissible point of the admissible set is constructed:

$$F_q(x_q^s; x_{x-1}^s) = \min_{x \in D} F_q(x; x_{q-1}^s), \quad F_q(x; x_{q-1}^s) = \sum_{i=1}^l \frac{1}{f_i^s - f_i(x) + \xi_i^q} + \sum_{i=1}^m \frac{1}{g_i(x) + \varepsilon_i^q}$$

Here $\varepsilon > 0$ is the sufficiently small given value,

$$\xi_i^q = \left\{ \begin{array}{ll} f_i(x_q^s) - f_i^s + \varepsilon & \quad f_i(x_q^s) \ge f_{i_s}^s, \\ 0 & \quad f_i(x_q^s) < f_i \end{array} \right\}.$$

Theorem. The point $x^s = \lim_{q \to \infty} x^s_q$ belongs to the admissible set D, while it satisfies the constraints

(3) if they are compatible, otherwise it is a point of the Pareto set of problem (1), (2).

Based on the theorem, an algorithm for consistent implementation of criterion truncations was developed. Correlation properties of the objective functions $f_i(x)$, i = 1, ..., l and constraint functions $g_j(x)$, j = 1, ..., m are used in the developed algorithm. For this purpose, an extended function $F(x) = (f_1(x), ..., f_l(x), g_1(x), ..., g_m(x))$ and symmetric (m + n) dimensional matrix are entered. Elements of the matrices are:

$$r_{ij}(x) = (\nabla F_i(x), \nabla F_j(x)) / \|\nabla F_i(x)\| \cdot \|\nabla F_j(x)\|), \quad i, j = 1, ..., m + n,$$

where $r_{ij} \in [-1, 1]$. Elements of the matrices characterize the degree of antagonism (inconsistency) of functions at the current point $x^s \in D$. Depending on the values of $r_{ij}(x^s)$ and proximity of x^s to the boundaries of D, i.e. to $g_j(x) = 0, j = 1, ..., m$ new desirable values of criteria $f_i(x), i = 1, ..., l$ are assigned.

The results of test problems are presented in the report.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1 and Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.




IDENTIFICATION OF DOMAIN'S BOUNDARY WITH THE APPLICATION OF SPLINE TYPE FUNCTIONS¹

Kamil R. Aida-zade, Anar B. Rahimov Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Cybernetics Institute of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:kamil_aydazade@rambler.ru, anar_r@yahoo.com

Application of spline type functions for numerical solution to problems of identification of twodimensional domain's boundary of distributed systems described by evolutionary and non-evolutionary equations are considered in the work. In particular, we give results obtained in case when the system with distributed parameters is described by the following boundary problem with respect to elliptic equation:

$$\Delta u = f(x, y), \quad (x, y) \in D, \qquad u(x, y)|_{(x, y) \in \Gamma} = \varphi(x, y).$$
(1)

Here $\Gamma = \Gamma_1 \cup \Gamma_2$, $\Gamma_1 \cap \Gamma_2 = \emptyset$, is the boundary of the domain $D \subset E^2$; Γ_1 known part of the whole boundary Γ ; Γ_2 unknown part of Γ ; $\varphi(x, y)$ sufficiently smooth function defining boundary conditions of the problem. We assume that Γ_2 is determined by an unknown function y(x), $x \in [\tilde{x}, \tilde{\tilde{x}}]$.

Assume that we have results of observations over the state of the process at given L points (x^k, y^k) :

$$u\left(x^{k}, y^{k}\right) = u^{k}, \quad \left(x^{k}, y^{k}\right) \in D, \quad k = \overline{1, L}.$$
 (2)

Assume that the identified part of the boundary Γ_2 is sought in piecewise-given form of spline type functions:

$$y_{i}(x,\alpha) = \left(\frac{x-\bar{x}_{i-1}}{\bar{x}_{i}-\bar{x}_{i-1}}\bar{y}_{i} + \frac{\bar{x}_{i}-x}{\bar{x}_{i}-\bar{x}_{i-1}}\bar{y}_{i-1}\right) + (x-\bar{x}_{i-1})(x-\bar{x}_{i})\sum_{j=1}^{m}\alpha_{ij}\psi_{j}(x),$$

$$x \in [\bar{x}_{i-1},\bar{x}_{i}], \ i = \overline{1,n}.$$
(3)

Function (3) satisfies continuity conditions on the whole in $[\bar{x}_1, \bar{x}_n]$. Here \bar{x}_i , $i = \overline{1, n}$, $\bar{x}_1 = \tilde{x}$, $\bar{x}_n = \tilde{x}$ are fixed points; $\psi_j(x)$, $j = \overline{1, m}$ given linearly independent functions.

The problem consists in finding vector $z = (\bar{y}_1, \bar{y}_2, ..., \bar{y}_n, \alpha_{11}, ..., \alpha_{1m}, ..., \alpha_{nm})$ defining the identified boundary Γ_2 , for which the functional

$$J(\Gamma_2) = \sum_{k=1}^{L} \left[u\left(x^k, y^k, \Gamma_2\right) - u^k \right]^2 + \varepsilon \left\| z - \bar{z} \right\|_{R^{n(m+1)}}^2 \to \min_{\Gamma_2}$$
(4)

takes on its minimal value, where ε , \bar{z} are regularization parameters.

For numerical solution to problem (1)-(4), we use the schemes proposed in [1]. In the work, formulas for the gradient of the objective functional on the optimized parameters are obtained, thus providing a possibility of applying efficient first order optimization methods.

- K.R. Aida-zade. Investigation and numerical solution to finite-difference approximations of control problems in distributed systems // The journal of Computational Mathematics and Mathematical Physics, Vol.29, No.3, 1989, pp. 346-354.
- [2] A.B. Rahimov. On a problem of restoring domain boundary // 6th International ISAAC Congress, August 13-18, 2007, Middle East Technical University, Ankara, Turkey, 54p.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1 and Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





OPTIMAL CONTROL IMPULSIVE SYTEMS WITH NONLOCAL CONDITIONS DESCRIBED BY THE SECOND ORDER DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

I.T. Alekperova, R.A. Sardarova, Y.A.Sharifov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:Sharifov22@rambler.ru

In this talk we consider the following optimal control problem, which described by the second order impulsive differential equation with non-local conditions: to find a control $(u(\cdot), [v]) \subset U \times V$ that minimizes the cost functional

$$J(u,[v]) = \Phi(x(0), x(T))$$

$$(1)$$

on the solutions of the following impulsive differential equations with nonlocal conditions

$$\begin{cases} x''(t) = f(t, x(t), u(t)), 0 \le t \le T, t \ne t_i, \\ x(0) = x(T) = \int_0^T n(t) x(t) dt, \\ \Delta x(t_i) = I_i(x(t_i), v_i), i = 1, 2, ..., p; 0 < t_1 < t_2 < ... < t_p < T \end{cases}$$
(2)

$$(u(\cdot), [v]) \in U \times V \subseteq L_2[0, T] \times L_{2p}$$

$$(3)$$

where f is a continuous function, $n(t) \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times n}$, $\Delta x(t_i) = x(t_i^+) - x(t_i^-)$, and I_i are some functions, $x(t) \in \mathbb{R}^{n}, (u(\cdot), [v])$ are state and control of the system, respectively.

We list out the following hypotheses:

(H1) $f: [0,T] \times \mathbb{R}^n \times \mathbb{R}^r \to \mathbb{R}^n, I_i: \mathbb{R}^n \times \mathbb{R}^{r_i} \to \mathbb{R}^n, i = 1, 2, ..., p$ are continuous and there exists constants $K > 0, L_i > 0, i = 1, 2, ..., p$, such that.

$$|f(t, x, u) - f(t, y, u)| \le K |x - y|, t \in [0, T], x, y \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$$
$$|I_{i}(x, v) - I_{i}(y, v)| \le L_{i} |x - y|, x, y \in \mathbb{R}^{n}.$$
$$(H2) \left[KT + \sum_{i=1}^{P} L_{i} \right] < 1.$$

(H3) $n(t) \in L_1[0,T]$ is nonnegative and $\mu \in [0,1)$, where $\mu = \int_0^T n(t) dt$. If assumptions (H1)-(H3) are satisfied, then for every $C \in \mathbb{R}^n$, an equation (1) has a unique solution on [0, T] is proved. The formula of gradient of the functional was derived. Necessary conditions of optimality were obtained.





OPTIMIZATION OF MINERAL EXTRACTION PROCESS BY CONTROLLING OF REAGENT SUPPLY INTENSITY

Karlygash A. Alibayeva, Aidarkhan Kaltayev Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Karlygash.Alibaeva@kaznu.kz

In the present work optimization of in-situ leach mineral mining process is considered. Preliminary performed numerical calculations show that recovery degree of layer strongly depends on the input reagent concentration and the arrangement of wells at the in-situ leaching (ISL) of minerals. Therefore, solution of optimization problem of mineral leaching process is reduced to solve two problems, one of which is a problem of optimal control the intensity of reagent supply, and another - optimal arrangement of wells. The process of mineral extraction by the ISL method is described by the equations of mineral dissolution, transport liquid solution and dissolved minerals, on condition that the distribution of mineral in the reservoir is known and concentration of solution and dissolved useful element doesn't exist at initial time. During the leaching, when the arrangement of wells is already known, current process in layer can be controlled only by the input concentration of reagent on the injection well. Therefore, reagent concentration is taken as a control in the considering problem. Control of reagent concentration value on the injection well leads to the changing of mineral value in liquid phase. On the value of input reagent concentration imposed two constraints: 1) in the inequality form (inequality constraint) constraining amount of reagent concentration on each injection well, 2) an equality of the total reagent concentration to all wells to a definite value at each time station. Computational program for calculation of optimization problem is elaborated. Based on received results influence of reagent supply on excavation rate, mining efficiency and time of deposit excavation has been investigated and optimal value of reagent concentration on injection well is obtained.

- [1] V.A. Mamilov. Uranium extraction by in-situ leaching method // Moscow: Atomizdat, 1980, 248p.
- [2] K. Flecher. Numerical methods in uid dynamics // Moscow: Mir. Vol.1, No.2, 1991, 552p.
- [3] E. Polak. Numerical methods of optimization // Translation From English Ereshko F.I. Mir, 1974, 372p.







ON THE OPTIMAL GUILLOTINE CUTTING OF A RECTANGLE INTO RECTANGLES WITH TWO HEIGHTS

Marat Z. Arslanov Institute of Informatics and Control Problems, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:mars@ipic.kz

The problems of packing and cutting are difficult problems of discrete optimization. For example, the computational complexity of a problem of packing in a rectangular sheet (A, B) the maximum number of equal small rectangles (c, d), (d, c) (pallet loading problem (PLP)) is unknown. There exist fast polynomial algorithms for a problem of optimum guillotine cutting a rectangle (A, B) into rectangles (a, b), (c, d) [1].

Here we study a problem of optimum guillotine cutting a rectangular sheet (A, B) into rectangles $(a_i, b_1), i \in I_1, (a_i, b_2), i \in I_2$, without a restriction on the number of copies of each small rectangle. It is required to find a cutting pattern with a minimum trim loss. We consider the set of feasible solutions to the knapsack problem for the side B:

$$S(B) = \{(x_1, x_2) | b_1 x_1 + b_2 x_2 \le B, x_1, x_2 \in \mathbf{Z}_+ = \{0, 1, 2...\}\}.$$

It is easy to show, that the convex hull of this set P(B) = co(S(B)) is equal to the Minkowski sum of rectangular triangles:

$$P(B) = \oplus_{j=1}^{m} T(c_j, d_j),$$

where $T(c_j, d_j)$ is a rectangular triangle with vertices $(0, 0), (c_j, 0), (0, d_j), c_j, d_j \in \mathbb{Z}_+$. It is easy to show, that fractions $\frac{c_j}{d_j}$ are non-principal convergents of $\frac{b_1}{b_2}$. There are exist polynomial algorithms for calculating $P(B) = \operatorname{co}(S(B))$. The following theorem on the structure of the optimum solution of considered problem is fair.

Theorem 1. A problem of optimum guillotine cutting a rectangular sheet (A, B) into rectangles $(a_i, b_1), i \in I_1, (a_i, b_2), i \in I_2$ without a restriction on the number of copies of each small rectangle is decomposed into m integer knapsack problems

$$Z_{j} = \max\left\{\sum_{i \in I_{1}} c_{j}a_{i}x_{i} + \sum_{i \in I_{2}} d_{j}a_{i}x_{i}\right\},\$$

s.t. $\sum_{i \in I_{1}} c_{j}a_{i}x_{i} + \sum_{i \in I_{2}} d_{j}a_{i}x_{i} \le A, x_{i} \in Z_{+}, j = 1, 2, ..., m,$

so that $Z_1 + Z_2 + ... + Z_m$ is equal to maximum cutting area of a rectangle (A, B).

This theorem and known polynomial algorithm for an integer linear programming imply the existence of a polynomial algorithm for the considered problem.

Theorem 2. There exists a polynomial algorithm for problem of optimum guillotine cutting a rectangular sheet (A, B) into rectangles $(a_i, b_1), i \in I_1, (a_i, b_2), i \in I_2$ without a restriction on the number of copies of each small rectangle for any fixed set of indexes I_1, I_2 .

References

 M.Z. Arslanov. A polynomial algorithm for one problem of guillotine cutting // Operations Research Letters, Vol.35, No.5, 2007, pp. 636-644.





OPTIMIZATION OF CONTROL AND COMPLETION TIME OF NON-STATIONARY PROCESSES IN HYPERBOLIC TYPE SYSTEMS¹

Jamila A. Asadova Cybernetics Institute of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:jamilya_babaeva@rambler.ru

We consider a problem of optimization of boundary control and of completion time of non-stationary processes described by hyperbolic type equations. To solve the problem, we propose to use first order optimization methods based on analytical formulas for the gradient of the functional obtained in the work.

Consider a problem of optimal boundary control of a non-stationary process in an oscillating system the state of which is described by the following initial and boundary problem for telegraph equation:

$$y_{tt} = a^2 y_{xx} - by_t, \quad t \in (0, T], x \in (0, l),$$
$$y(x, 0) = \varphi_0(x), \ y_t(x, 0) = \varphi_1(x), \ x \in (0, l),$$

 $y(0,t) = v_1(t), \quad y(l,t) = v_2(t), \ t \in (0,T],$

where y(x,t) is phase function of the system's state, a speed of perturbation propagation in environment, b friction or dissipation coefficient, $\varphi_0(x) \in H^1[0,l], \varphi_1(x) \in L_2[0,l]$ given functions, $v_i(t) \in L_2[0,T], i = 1, 2$, control functions, T completion time of the process that is an optimized parameter.

We assume that the control actions satisfy the inequalities $\underline{v} \leq v_i(t) \leq \overline{v}$, i = 1, 2 nearly everywhere on [0, T].

The problem of time-optimal boundary control consists in solving for optimal values of piecewise continuous functions $v_i(t)$, i = 1, 2 and of parameter T that minimize the functional

$$J(u,T) = \alpha_1 \int_0^T \int_0^l f^0(y(x,t)) dx dt + \alpha_2 \int_0^l f^1(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,t)) dx dt + \alpha_2 \int_0^l f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,t)) dx dt + \alpha_2 \int_0^l f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \min_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x \in [0,T]} f^0(y(x,T), y_t(x,T)) dx dt + \Phi(T) \to \max_{x$$

where α_1, α_2 are positive constants; given functions f^0, f^1, Φ are assumed to be continuous together with their derivatives on all the arguments.

To solve the problem, two approaches are applied with the purpose of comparison. According to the first one T is considered as a parameter and double-level optimization is used: at the upper level, we apply some one-dimensional optimization method to determine optimal time T^* of the transient process; at the lower level, given the current values to find $J_T^* = J(u_T^*, T) = \min_u J(u, T)$, we solve a problem of optimal control of a distributed system with fixed time.

According to the second approach, T is considered as a component of the control, and to solve for its optimal value, we apply a procedure of simultaneous optimization of T and u(t).

Necessary optimality conditions are obtained. They contain formulas for the components of the gradient of the functional on the control actions and on completion time of the process.

Results of numerical experiments are given. They allow to compare the approaches described above.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1.





OPTIMAL CONTROL BY BOUNDARY OF A DOMAIN VARYING IN TIME AND BY COMPLETION TIME OF CONTROL PROCESSES¹

Yegana R. Ashrafova Cybernetics Institute of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:y_aspirant@yahoo.com

The problem of the optimization of the domain boundary and the completion time of the process of heating is considered in the given work, where boundary of the domain can vary in time [1,2]. Let us consider the problem of optimal control on the heating process describing by the next one-dimensional boundary problem of Dirichlet:

$$v_t = av_{xx} + u(x,t), \ (x,t) \in \Omega(t) \times (0,T],$$
(1)

$$v(x,0) = \varphi(x), \ x \in (0,l(0)),$$
 (2)

$$v(0,t) = \mu_1(t), \ t \in (0,T],$$
(3)

$$v(l(t),t) = \mu_2(t), \ t \in (0,T],$$
(4)

$$\underline{L} \le l(t) \le \overline{L}, \quad t \in (0, T], \tag{5}$$

where $\Omega(t) = (0, l(t)) \subset \mathbb{R}^1, t \in (0, T]$, \mathbb{R}^n is *n*-dimensional Euclidian space; v = v(x, t) is a phase position of the object; $a, \underline{L}, \overline{L}$ are given positive quantities; $\varphi(x), \mu_1(t), \mu_2(t)$ are given continuous functions satisfying adjoint conditions $\varphi(0) = \mu_1(0), \varphi(l) = \mu_2(0)$; l(t) is the position of the right border of the area, u(x, t) is the function of inside sources; T is a completion time of the process – are optimized parameters.

The problem consists in finding piecewise-continuous values of functions l(t), u(x, t) and parameter T, at which the given functional

$$J(u, l, T) = \alpha_1 \int_{0}^{T} \int_{0}^{l(t)} f^0(u(x, t), v(x, t)) dx dt + \alpha_0 \Phi(T) \to \min$$
(6)

takes on its minimum value, where α_0, α_1 are positive constants; the given functions $f^0(\alpha, \alpha) = f^1(\alpha, \alpha) - \Phi(T)$ are considered continuous with derivatives on their ensurements

 $f^0(u, v), f^1(u, v), \Phi(T)$ are considered continuous with derivatives on their arguments.

First order optimization methods based on the received analytical formulas for the gradient of the functional are proposed to use for solving the problem. The results and analysis of the numerical experiments will be given in the lecture time.

- Adam Kowalewski, Jan Duda. On some optimal control problem for a parabolic system with boundary condition involving a time-varying lag // IMA Journal of Mathematical Control and Information, Vol.9, No.2, 1992, pp. 131-146.
- [2] A.R. Inzarulfaisham, H. Azegami Solution to boundary shape optimization problem of linear elastic continua with prescribed natural vibration mode shapes // Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization, Springer Berlin, Heidelberg, Vol.27, No.3, 2004, pp. 210-217.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1.





AN ASYMPTOTIC METHOD TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE OPTIMAL REGULATOR IN GASLIFT WELLS ¹

I.M. Askerov, N.A. Ismailov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:idrak.asgerov@yahoo.com

The aim of the work is the solution of the stabilization problem with respect to the control and program trajectory which depends on small parameter in the gas-lift problem. Optimal control problem on time interval [0, T] has been considered. Let's consider the stabilization problem in the infinite time interval $[0, \infty)$ [1].

The stabilization problem consists of finding K that makes the closed-loop system stable when the equation of the object $\nu = K\beta$ is written as a system of linear differential equations

$$\dot{\beta} = (A_0 + A_1 \varepsilon)\beta + B\varepsilon\nu \tag{1}$$

and the functional

Here

$$J = \frac{1}{2} \int_0^T (\beta^T Q \beta + v^T R \nu) dx, \qquad (2)$$

takes its minimum value.

$$\beta(t) = x(t) - x_{np}(t), \nu(t) = u(t) - u_{np}(t), K = -R^{-1}B'S,$$
(3)

 ${\cal S}$ is a positively defined solution of the following Riccati equation

$$S(A_0 + A_1\varepsilon) + (A_0 + A_1\varepsilon)^T S - \varepsilon SBR^{-1}B'S + Q = 0.$$
(4)

Note that *Shur* and *Sign* function methods do not work to solve this problem for enough large n. Therefore to find the solution of the problem asymptotic methods are suitable. Let us seek the solution of the equation (4) in the form $S = S_0 + \varepsilon S_1 + \dots$. Then we got two Lyapunov equations with respect to S_0 and S_1

$$S_0 A_0 + A'_0 S_0 + Q = 0,$$

$$A'_0 S_1 + S_1 A_0 + S_0 A_1 + A'_1 S_0 - S_0 B R^{-1} B' S_0 = 0.$$
(5)

If consider solution of these equations in the expression of matrix K we can find its expression in the following form $K \approx -R^{-1}B'S_0 - \varepsilon R^{-1}B'S_1$. As a concrete example we give the following figures



Figure 1. shows that for n > 8 the results of the known methods Q_{deb} for infinite time t is not stabilized; Figure 2. we see that the result of the asymptotic calculation Q_{deb} is stabilized.

- M.M. Mutallimov, I.M. Askerov, N.A. Ismailov, M.F. Rajabov. An Asymptotical method to construction a digital optimal regime for the gaslift process // Appl. Comput. Math., Vol.9, No.1, 2010, pp. 77-84.
- [2] F.A. Aliev, M.Kh. Ilyasov, N.B. Nuriev. Problems of modeling and optimal stabilization in gaslift process // International Applied Mechanics, Vol.46, No.6, 2010, pp. 1-11.

¹ This research is supported by Baku State University Internal Grant Program "50+50".





ON AN EXTREMAL PROBLEM FOR THE DIFFERENTIAL INCLUSIONS

H.S.Akhundov

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:axund2005@rambler.ru

In this work the optimal control problem is studied described by Goursat-Darboux equation by using of the extremal problem for Goursat-Darboux type two dimensional differential inclusions [1].

We assume that $u(\cdot) \in A^n([0,1] \times [0,1])$ [1,2]. Let $f : [0,1]^2 \times R^{3n} \times Q \to R$; $g : [0,1]^2 \times R^{3n} \times Q \to R$; $\xi : R^n \to R$; $\varphi_1 : [0,1] \to R^n$; $\varphi_2 : [0,1] \to R^n$, where $Q \subset R^m$ be a compact set.

The following problem is considered

$$J(\nu) = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 g(t, s, u(t, s), u_t(t, s), u_s(t, s)) dt \, ds + \xi(u(1, 1)) \to \min$$
(1)

with the conditions

$$u_{ts}(t,s) = f(t, s, u(t, s), u_1(t, s), u_s(t, s), \nu(t, s))$$
(2)

$$u(t,0) = \varphi_1(t), u(0,s) = \varphi_2(s), \ \varphi_1(0) = \varphi_2(0),$$

where $\varphi_1(\cdot), \varphi_2(\cdot)$ absolutely continuous functions $\nu: [0,1] \times [0,1] \to Q$ measurable function.

The necessary condition of optimality for the problem (1), (2) is obtained.

^[1] M.A. Sadygov. Nonsmooth analysis and it applications to extremal problem for Goursat-Darboux type inclusions // Baku, Elm, 1999, 135p.

^[2] I. Ekeland, P. Temam. Convex analysis and variations problems // M., Mir, 1979, 400p .





ON AN APPROACH AND NUMERICAL SOLUTION TO CONTROL PROBLEMS FOR OBJECTS DESCRIBED BY LOADED HYPERBOLIC TYPE EQUATIONS

Gasim G. Gasimov

Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan

It is known that a number of biological thermal and of underground fluid flow processes are described by loaded equations of hyperbolic type. The controlled process that we consider is described by the following integral and differential equation of hyperbolic type:

$$p_{tt}(x,t) = ap_{xx}(x,t) + \int_{t-\tau}^{t} K(x,t,\nu)p(x,\nu)d\nu + \varphi_0(x,t),$$
(1)
(x,t) $\in \Omega = (0,l) \times (\tau, T)$

with boundary and initial conditions:

$$p(x,t) = \varphi_1(x,t), \quad 0 \le t \le \tau, \ x \in [0,l],$$
(2)

$$p(0,t) = \varphi_2(t), \ \tau \le t \le T, \tag{3}$$

$$p(l,t) = \varphi_3(t), \quad \tau \le t \le T, \tau = const > 0, \quad 2\tau < T, \quad a = const > 0.$$

$$(4)$$

Here the function p = p(x,t) defines the phase state of the object; function $K(x,t,\nu)$ is piecewise continuous on the first two arguments, and continuously differentiable on the third argument; functions $\varphi_0(x,t)$, $\varphi_1(x,t)$, $\varphi_2(t)$, $\varphi_3(t)$ are control actions.

The target functional is as follows:

$$J(\varphi) = \int_{0}^{1} \left[p(x,t;\varphi - P(x)) \right]^{2} dx + \sum_{i=0}^{3} \varepsilon_{i} \left\| \varphi_{1} \right\|_{L_{2}}^{2},$$
(5)

where P(x) is given function; ε_i , i = 1, 2.3 regularization parameters. Controlling function $\varphi(x, t)$ is sought on such class of functions that loaded boundary problem (1)-(4) would have unique solution. Moreover, they satisfy additional conditions resulting from technical and technological processes, for instance, in the following form:

$$\|\varphi_i(x,t)\|_{L_2} \le M_i, \quad i = 0, 1, 2.3.$$

In the work, we propose an approach to the numerical solution to the problem of optimal control of the object. The main problem is approximated by finite difference method and thus reduced to finite dimensional optimization problem and written in the form of difference equations. To calculate the gradient of the functional, we derive an analytical formula. Numerical experiments have been carried out by the example of the solution to test problems. The results obtain show the efficiency of the derived formula. To find the minimal value of the functional, we use first order optimization methods.





THE ALGORITHM OF POWER SYSTEMS REGIME OPTIMIZATION THROUGH SHORT-LINEAR APPROXIMATION OF NONLINEAR DEPENDENCES

Tulkin Sh. Gayibov

Tashkent State Technical University, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

In the given work the algorithm of Power Systems regime optimization based on short-linear approximation of nonlinear dependences and linear programming methods application is offered.

Let's consider the problem of Power Systems regime optimization which means to minimize the summary fuel expenses of n Thermal Power Stations (TPS)

$$B = \sum_{i=0}^{n} B_i(P_i) \tag{1}$$

taking into account the limitations on active power balance in Power System

$$\sum_{i=1}^{n} W_i(P_i) = 0,$$
(2)

on limit values of TPS active power Pi and its some functions

$$P_{i\min} \le P_i \le P_{i\max} \quad i = \overline{1, n}, h_l = \sum_{i=1}^n h_{li}(P_i) \le 0, \quad l = \overline{1, L},$$
(3)

Short-linear approximation of (1)-(3) provides by a choice in the set interval $[P_{i\min}, P_{i\max}] = m_i$ points with coordinates (P_{ik}, B_{ik}) and its replacement in each piece $[P_{ik}, P_{ik+1}]$ for linear functions.

Having presented thus values P_i laying in piece $[P_{ik}, P_{ik+1}]$ as

$$P_i = \lambda_{ik} P_{ik} + \lambda_{ik+1} P_{ik+1} \tag{4}$$

choosing λ_{ik} and λ_{ik+1} according to condition $\lambda_{ik} + \lambda_{ik+1} = 1$, receive the following task of linear programming for (1) - (3): to minimize the function

$$B = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{k=1}^{m_1} \lambda_{ik} \bar{B}_{ik} \left(P_i \right) \tag{5}$$

taking into account the limitations

$$\sum_{\substack{i=1\\ \sum_{k=1}^{mi} \lambda_{ik} \in I; \\ \sum_{k=1}^{mi} \lambda_{ik} = 1; \\ i = \overline{1, n}, \\ \lambda_{ik} \ge 0; \\ i = \overline{1, n}; \\ k = \overline{1, m_i} \\$$

where λ_{ik} - found parameters.

The problem (5) - (6) is solved by the simplex method taking into account the limitations on a choice of the basis consisting in inadmissibility to include in basis two vectors which correspond to two not next λ_{ik} . The results of experimental calculations approved that the offered algorithm is high effectively.





ZONAL FEEDBACK CONTROL IN SYSTEMS WITH LUMPED PARAMETERS¹

Samir Z. Guliyev Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:azcopal@yahoo.com

In the work, we propose an approach to numerical solution to a feedback control system for a process described by a system of non-linear ordinary differential equations:

$$\dot{x}(t) = f(x(t), u(t), p), \quad t \in (0, T],$$
(1)

$$x(0) = x_0 \in X^0, \quad p \in P \subset \mathbb{R}^m, \tag{2}$$

where x(t) is *n*-dimensional vector-function defining the state of the process; $u(t) \in U$ - *r*-dimensional vector-function of control, $U \subset R^r$ the closed set of admissible values of control actions; p - *m*-dimensional vector of parameters of the process, P the set of possible values of the parameters; $X^0 \subset R^n$ the set of possible initial states of the process with its density (weighting) function. In these equations, we have inaccurately given parameters defined in some domain with their density functions.

It is assumed that observations are carried on over the phase state of the process only at given discrete points of time $\tau_i \in [0,T]$, i = 0, 1, ..., N. The values of the control u(t), $t \in [0,T]$ are assigned subject to the value of the last observed current state of the process, to put it more precisely, subject to the set (zone) of the phase space to which the measured (observed) current state belongs:

$$u(t) = v^{i} = const, \ x(\tau_{j}) \in X^{i}, \ t \in [\tau_{j}, \tau_{j+1}),$$
$$v^{i} \in U, \quad i = 1, 2, ...L, \quad j = 1, 2, ...N.$$
(3)

The problem consists in finding such values of the control actions v^i , i = 1, 2, ..., L that minimize some given functional defining the quality of the control. Particularly, the functional is taken as follows:

$$J(v) = \int_{X^0} \int_{P} I(v; x_0, p) \cdot \rho_P(p) \cdot \rho_{X^0}(x_0) \, dP dX^0, \tag{4}$$

$$I(v; x_0, p) = \int_0^T f^0(x(t), u(t)) dt + \Phi(x(T)).$$
(5)

Necessary optimality conditions are obtained with respect to piecewise constant values of the feedback control. These conditions allow to apply finite-dimensional first-order optimization methods to find optimal values of the control. Results of numerical experiments obtained by the example of solution to several test problems are given.

References

 K.R. Aida-zade, S.Z.Guliyev. A task for nonlinear system control synthesis // Automatic Control and Computer Sciences, Vol.39, No.1, 2005, pp. 15-23.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1.





AN ALGORITHM FOR CALCULATION OF THE ATTAINABLE SETS OF THE NONLINEAR CONTROL SYSTEMS WITH INTEGRAL CONSTRAINT ON CONTROLS¹

Khalik G.Guseinov, Ali S.Nazlipinar Anadolu University, Eskisehir, Turkey Dumlupinar University, Kutahya, Turkey e-mail:kguseynov@anadolu.edu.tr, ali.serdar@dumlupinar.edu.tr

Attainable set of the controllable system is the set of all points to which the system can be steered at the instant of given time and it is very useful tool in the study of various problems of control systems, dynamical systems and differential game theory. The approximate construction of the attainable sets, allows to specify most properties of the given controlllable evolution systems in advance.

The control systems with integral constraint on controls arise in mathematical models of the systems having limited energy resources which are exhausted by using, such as fuel or financial recources. For example, the motion of flying apparatus with variable mass is described in the form of controllable system, where the control functions have an integral constraint (see., e.g. [3]).

Approximation method for the construction of attainable sets of affine control systems with integral constraint on the controls is given in [1]. Algorithm presented here is based on the results obtained in the paper [2] and is designed for approximate calculation of the attainable sets of nonlinear control systems with integral constraint on controls. The attainable set of given 3 dimensional control system with integral constraint on controls is calculated. This system describes the evolution of the controllable biological system which consists of 3 species.

- [2] Kh.G. Guseinov, O. Ozer, E. Akyar, V.N. Ushakov. The approximation of reachable sets of control systems with integral constraint on controls // Non. Diff. Equat. Appl. (NoDEA), Vol.14, No.1, 2007, pp. 57-73.
- [3] N.N. Krasovskii. Theory of control of motion: Linear systems // Nauka, Moscow, 1968 (In Russian).

Khalik G. Guseinov. Approximation of the attainable sets of the nonlinear control systems with integral constraints on control // Nonlinear Analysis, Theory Meth. Appl., Vol.71, No.1-2, 2009, pp. 622-645.

¹ This research is supported by project No. 106T012 from Turkish Scientific and Technological Research Council (TUBITAK).





ON ONE APPROACH FOR SOLVING OF SOME CLASS OF MULTICRITERIA OPTIMIZATION PROBLEMS WITH INTERVAL COEFFICIENTS¹

Sergey V. Drobishev, Sharif E. Guseynov, Dmitry V. Pavlyuk

Institute of Mathematical Sciences and Information Technologies, University of Liepaja, Liepaja, Latvia Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Riga, Latvia

e-mail:s.v.drobyshev@gmail.com, sh.e.guseinov@inbox.lv, dmitry.pavlyuk@tsi.lv

In present paper it a multicriteria linear programming problem under is investigated interval indeterminacy, when the significant coefficients of the model's constraints can take any value from the specified intervals, at that significance of criteria are not known a' priori. Such problems arise under a solving of some applied problems of physical and techno-economic processes and phenomenon, when the modeling process often reflects the subjective representation of experts and researchers about target processes and phenomenon, when it is revealed the interdependence between key factors and their influence to the constructible elements of the model. As a rule, used hypotheses, empirical dependencies and initial data in the modeling process lead to indeterminacy of conditions of the constructed mathematical model. It should be emphasized that the class of interval multicriteria programming problems essentially differs from the class of stochastic programming problems, in which we can always assume that there is additional information about the distribution of indeterminate values of functions within the intervals.

In this paper we use the point weights' estimation method (for instance, see [1] and respective references given inside) to reduce the original multicriteria problem to single-criterion interval problem, in which the criterion is a weighted sum of the criteria of the original problem with the normalized weight coefficients (i.e. strictly convex combination of the original criteria). Received interval single-criterion linear programming problem is intrinsically a parametric family of deterministic linear programming problems. Proposed approach consists in finding such common solution (so-called an universal solution, for instance, see [2] and respective references given inside) to all family of problems that would satisfy the constraints of the problem accurate within the minimal residuals norm.

In this paper with the help of the duality theory it is proved a solvability of the reduced interval single-criterion problem provided that the total length of the intervals within which the coefficients vary is not zero for each constraint, which is quite a weak condition/requirement of a rather general nature, that does not narrow the class of interval multicriteria optimization problems.

For practical application of the foregoing approach for solving of the reduced interval single-criterion problem the Big M Simplex method (see [1], [3]) is used. In additional, we develop the appropriate software for computer implementation of the obtained theoretical results of this paper.

- R.E. Steuer. Multiple Criteria Optimization: Theory, Computation, and Application // New York: John Wiley, 1986, 546 pp.
- [2] L.T. Aschepkov, D.V. Davydov. Universal solutions of interval problems of optimization and control // Moscow: Science, Nauka, 2006, 151p.
- [3] H.A. Taha. Operations Research: An Introduction // Moscow: Williams, 2005, 912p.

¹ Present research was executed within the framework of the European Regional Development Foundation Project No. 2010/0301/2DP/2.1.1.1.0/10/APIA/VIAA/151, and with the pointed Project financial support





NUMERICAL METHOD OF SOLUTION TO A BOUNDARY INVERSE PROBLEM OF TWO-PHASE FLOW¹

Khanlar M. Hamzayev Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan

We consider a process of water-oil displacement in a rectangular two-phase stratum. As a mathematical model of the process we take a model of two-phase flow of incompressible and immissible fluids in deformable stratum:

$$\frac{\partial m S_w}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial u_w}{\partial x} = 0, \quad \frac{\partial m S_o}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial u_o}{\partial x} = 0,$$
$$u_w = -\frac{kk_w}{\mu_w} \frac{\partial P}{\partial x}, \quad u_o = -\frac{kk_o}{\mu_o} \frac{\partial P}{\partial x}, \quad S_w + S_o = 1.$$
(1)

where S_w, S_o are water and oil saturations, respectively; P pressure; u_w, u_o velocities of water and oil filtration, respectively; m porosity coefficient; k absolute permeability; k_w, k_o relative phase water and oil permeability.

We assume that the movement of each phase obeys the generalized Darcy's law, and capillary pressure is taken equal to 0. By means of transformation, system (1) is reduced to the following system of non-linearly linked partial differential equations with respect to functions P(x,t) and $S_w(x,t)$:

$$\phi \frac{\partial P}{\partial t} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \left(\lambda(S_w) \frac{\partial P}{\partial x} \right), \quad \frac{\partial m S_w}{\partial t} = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \left(\lambda_w(S_w) \frac{\partial P}{\partial x} \right). \tag{2}$$

Here $\phi = \frac{dm}{dP}$. For system (2), we give the following initial conditions:

$$S_w|_{t=0} = s_0(x), \quad P|_{t=0} = p_0(x),$$
(3)

along with boundary conditions

$$S_{w}|_{x=0} = s_{w}(t),$$

$$-\frac{kk_{w}}{\mu_{w}}\frac{\partial P}{\partial x}|_{x=0} = q_{w}(t),$$

$$-\frac{kk_{o}}{\mu_{o}}\frac{\partial P}{\partial x}|_{x=L} = q_{o}(t)$$
(4)

where function $q_o(t)$ is also not given. To formulate a correct problem we give additional conditions:

$$P|_{x=0} = p_w(t). (5)$$

Problem (2)-(5) relates to a class of boundary inverse problems. For numerical solution to the stated problem we use difference schemes: implicit on pressure and explicit on saturation and propose a method of solution to the obtained system of difference equations.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1.





TIME-OPTIMAL CONTROL PROBLEM FOR THE OBJECT DESCRIBING BY THE HEAT-CONDUCTING EQUATION WITH NON-CLASSIC BOUNDARY CONDITION

K.Q. Hasanov, L.K. Hasanova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

Let the controlled process be described by the function y(x,t) that satisfies to the equation

$$\frac{\partial y}{\partial t} = \frac{\partial^2 y}{\partial x^2} + u(x,t),\tag{1}$$

with initial

$$y(x,0) = y^0(x),$$
 (2)

and boundary conditions

$$y(0,t) = 0, \ y_x(1,t) = y_x(0,t),$$
(3)

in the domain $D_T = \{(x, t), 0 < x < 1, 0 < t < T\}.$

The class of admissible controls U_{∂} assumed to be convex, closed and bounded subset of $L_2(D_T)$. It is proved that there exists almost everywhere unique solution y(x,t) of the problem (1)-(3) under conditions by $y^0(x) \in W_2^1(0,1), y^0(0) = 0, u(x,t) \in L_2(D_T)$.

For the given weak-closed subset K of $L_2(0,1)$ it needs to find the control $u(x,t) \in U_\partial$ such that corresponding solution y(x,t) satisfy to the condition

$$y(x,\tau_0)\in K,$$

moreover $\tau_0 \in [0, T]$ take possible minimal value.

The existence of the optimal control is proved for this problem. In the case when u(x,t) is of the form u(x,t) = p(x)v(t), where $p(x) \in L_2(0,1)$ is a given function, $v(t) \in U_{\partial} = \{v(t) \in L_2(0,T)\}, |v(t)| \leq 1$ almost everywhere.

The following theorem is proved:

Theorem. Let $u^* \in U_\partial$, $t \in (0, \tau_0)$ be an optimal control in the sense of time optimality. Then $|v^*(t)| = 1$ almost every where in $(0, \tau_0)$.

References

[1] A.I. Egorov. Optimal control of heat and diffusion processes // M., Nauka, 1978, 464 p.

 [2] N.I. Ionkin. Solution of a boundary value problem of heat conductivity theory with a non-classic boundary condition // Differents. Uravneniya, February 1977, Vol.13, No.2, pp. 294-304.







ON THE SOLVABILITY OF THE CAUCHY INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS IN PARTIAL DERIVATIVES

M.I. Imanaliev, A.B. Baizakov, T.M. Imanaliev

Institute of Theoretical and Applied Mathematics, National Academy of Sciences, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:asan_baizakov@mail.ru

Partial integro-differential equations, which enable mathematical representation of processes with delay, occurring in space and time play an important role in mathematics and its applications. Still scantily explored area of the problem determine the solvability of the Cauchy problem for integro-differential equations in partial derivatives. Consider the equation of the form

$$u_{txx} + \alpha u_{xx} + 2\beta u_{tx} + 2\alpha\beta u_x + (\beta^2 + 1) u_t + \alpha (\beta^2 + 1) u = f(t, x, u(t, x)) + \int_0^t K(t, s, x, u(s)) ds$$
(1)

with initial condition

$$u(0,x) = \varphi(x),\tag{2}$$

where α , β - some positive constants, $f(t, x, u(t, x)), K(t, s, x, u), \varphi(x)$ - are known continuous functions. In the region $R = \{0 \le t < T, -\infty < x, u < \infty\}$, the functions $f(t, x, u), K(t, s, x, u), \varphi(x)$ are continuous and bounded:

$$||f(t, x, u)|| \le M_1 = const, ||K(t, s, x, u(s))|| \le M_2 = const.$$

In addition:

$$\|f(t, x, u_2) - f(t, x, u_1)\| \le L \|u_2 - u_1\|, \|K(t, s, x, u_2) - K(t, s, x, u_1)\| \le L_1 \|u_2 - u_1\|, \frac{L + TL_1}{\alpha\beta} \le \frac{1}{2}$$

Propose a method for making the initial transformation of the Cauchy problem in an equivalent Volterra integral equation to which we apply the principle of contraction mapping. Cauchy problem (1)-(2) in the form

$$u(t,x) = c(t,x) + \int_{0}^{t} e^{-\alpha(t-s)} \int_{-\infty}^{x} e^{-\beta(x-\rho)} \sin(x-\rho)Q(s,\rho)d\rho ds$$

where c(t, x) - known continuous function, with

 $c(o, x) = \varphi(x),$

Q(t, x) - a new unknown function, which is defined as the solution of nonlinear Volterra integral equation. It is assumed that the function c(t, x) is uniformly bounded together with their derivatives appearing in (1).

- M.I. Imanaliev, T.M. Imanaliev, K. Kakishov. On Cauchy problems for nonlinear differential equations with partial derivatives of the sixth order // Issled. by integro-differential. equations. - Bishkek, Ilim, Vol.36, 2007, pp. 19-28(in Russian).
- [2] M.I. Imanaliev, K. Kakishov, J.K. Kakishov. Singularly perturbed second order differential equation with a turning point // Proc. Proceedings. International Scientific Conference "Actual problems of differential equations of mathematical physics", Almaty, 2005, 94p(in Russian).
- [3] M.I. Imanaliev, A.B. Baizakov. On the Cauchy problem for a class of nonlinear partial differential equations / / Search scientific application of the international journal "Higher School of Kazakhstan", series of natural-technical sciences, No.1, Almaty, 2009, pp. 209-213(in Russian).
- [4] M.I. Imanaliev, A.B. Baizakov, T.M. Imanaliev. Problem of Cauchy for the singularly-perturbed systems of the integro-differential equations with the turn point // Repots of the third Congress of the World mathematical Society of countries, Almaty, Vol.1, 2009, pp. 296-301.







REGULAR SOLUTIONS OF OPTIMAL CONTROL PROBLEMS WITH STATE CONSTRAINTS

M. H. Imanov

Ministry of Education of the Republic of Azerbaijan, Baku

The optimal control problems with state constraints are recognized as an important and difficult class of the similar problems, since the maximum principle for such problems [2] contains an unknown infinite-dimensional Lagrange multiplier of the complex nature-bounded regular Borel measure which has a rather complicated relationship with the optimal trajectory. Therefore, the optimal control problems with state constraints are outside the scope of the effective application of the Pontryagin maximum principle [1]. Questions arise: Are there any solutions of an optimal control problem for which the corresponding conjugate function is non-trivial and absolutely continuous, and if so, how to find them? Applying the method of similar solutions [3] try to answer these questions for non-autonomous systems with phase and endpoint constraints. Consider the time optimal control problem with state and endpoint constraints for non-autonomous system

 $\dot{x} = f(x, u, t),$ $x(0) \in C_{\alpha}, x(T) \in C_{\beta},$ $u(t) \in U(t), a.a. t \in [0, T],$ $x(t) \in X, t \in [0, T],$

$T \to \min$.

Here, $x \in E^n$ -state variable, $u \in E^m$ -control parameter. Let $\Omega(E^n)$ be the set of all nonempty compact and $\operatorname{conv} \Omega(E^n)$ the set of all nonempty compact convex subset of E^n . Functions f, $\frac{\partial f}{\partial x}$ are continuous in (x, u) and measurable in t. Let the set valued map $U: E^1 \to \Omega(E^m)$ be measurable and satisfy the estimate $|U(t)| \leq k(t)$, where k(t) is a scalar function, Lebesgue integrable on any finite time interval [0, T]. $f(x, U(t), t) \in \operatorname{conv} \Omega(E^n), t \in [0, T]$. $C_\alpha, C_\beta \in \operatorname{conv} \Omega(E^n), X$ is a closed convex subset of E^n .

This work is dedicated by using of the method of similar solutions [3] to deriving the maximum principle for which the optimal solution is regular. Optimal solution is called regular, if the corresponding conjugate function is a nontrivial absolutely continuous function. The case of terminal cost function is also considered by using of this method.

The results are illustrated by the examples.

- L.S. Pontryagin, V.G. Boltyanskii, R.V. Gamkrelidze, E. F. Mishchenko. Mathematical Theory of Optimal Processes, Moscow, Nauka, 1983(In Russian).
- [2] H.Ya. Dubovitsky, A.A. Milutin. Extremal problems with constraints // Zh. Math. and Math. Fiz., Vol.5, No.3, 1965(In Russian).
- [3] M.H. Imanov. The method of similar solutions in optimal control problems with state constraints // Dokl. AN. Azerb., Vol.64, No.5, 2010(In Russian).





REGULAR SOLUTIONS OF OPTIMAL CONTROL PROBLEMS WITH DELAY AND STATE CONSTRAINTS

M.C. Mardanov, M.H. Imanov Ministry of Education of the Republic of Azerbaijan

In the presence of the phase constraint optimal control problem turned out to be much more complicated due to the fact that the conjugate function to obtain the necessary conditions, in general, is a function of bounded variation, which was a rather complicated relationship with the optimal trajectory [3]. Therefore, the optimal control problem with state constraints are outside the scope of the effective application of the Pontryagin maximum principle [1], [2]. His language was complicated and more difficult to form an analytical study in specific situations. Questions arise: Are there any solutions of the optimal control problem for which the corresponding conjugate function is non-trivial and absolutely continuous, and if so, how to find them? Applying a similar technique in [4] we try to answer these questions for systems with delays and phase constraints.

This work is dedicated to eliminating the deficiencies to a great extent by means of which maximum principle for systems with delays and state constraints will be extracted in such a form where the corresponding optimal solution is regular. The optimal solution is called regular if the corresponding conjugate function is a nontrivial absolutely continuous function.

Consider the optimal control problem

 $\dot{x} = f(x, x(t - \tau), u), \ t \in [0, T], \ T \in (\tau, +\infty), \ \tau > 0,$ $x(t) = l(t), \ t \in [-\tau, 0), \ x(0) = x_{\alpha}, \ x(T) = x_{\beta}, x_{\alpha} \neq x_{\beta},$ $u(t) \in U, \ a. \ a. \ t \in [0, T],$ $x(t) \in X, \ t \in [0, T],$

$T \to \min.$

Here, $x \in E^n$ is state variable, $u \in E^m$ is control parameter. Let $\Omega(E^n)$ be the set of all nonempty compact and *conv* $\Omega(E^n)$ the set of all nonempty compact convex subsets of E^n .

Given function l(t), $t \in [-\tau, 0)$ is bounded and measurable. The functions f(x, y, u), $\frac{\partial f}{\partial x}$, $\frac{\partial f}{\partial y}$ are continuous. $U \in \Omega(E^m)$ and $f(x, y, U) \in conv \ \Omega(E^n)$, $x, y \in E^n$. X is a closed convex subset of E^n .

The case of terminal cost criterion is also considered by using of this method.

The results are illustrated by the examples.

- L.S. Pontryagin, V.G. Boltyanskii, R.V. Gamkrelidze, E.F. Mishchenko. Mathematical Theory of Optimal Processes // Moscow, Nauka, 1983(in Russian).
- [2] G.L. Kharatishvili. Maximum principle in the theory of optimal processes with delay // Dokl AN SSSR. Vol.136, No.1, 1961(in Russian).
- [3] H.Ya. Dubovitsky, A.A. Milutin. Extremal problems with constraints // Zh. Math. and Math. Fiz., Vol.5, No.3, 1965(in Russian).
- [4] M.H. Imanov. The Method of similar solutions in the optimal control problems with state constraints // Dokl. NAN Azerb., Vol.64, No.5, 2010(in Russian).





IDENTIFICATION OF DISCONTINUITY CONDITIONS IN DYNAMIC SYSTEMS¹

Rashad E. Ismibeyli, Samir Z. Guliyev Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:azcopal@yahoo.com

Assume that the dynamic of the investigated object is described by a discontinuous system of non-linear differential equations with variable structure [1]:

$$\dot{x}(t) = f^{l}\left(x(t), p^{l}(t)\right), \quad x(t) \in X^{l}(t), \quad t \in (0, T], \quad l = 1, 2, ..., L,$$
(1)

where $x(t) \in \mathbb{R}^n$ is the state vector of the process; $p^l(t) \in \mathbb{R}^{r_l}$ the values of the parameters when the state of the process belongs to $X^l(t)$ - the sub-domain (zone) of the phase space of all possible states X. The sub-domains of phase space

$$X^{1}(t) = \left\{ x \in R^{n} : g^{1}(x,t) \leq 0 \right\}, \ X^{L}(t) = \left\{ x \in R^{n} : g^{L-1}(x,t) > 0 \right\}, X^{l}(t) = \left\{ x \in R^{n} : g^{l-1}(x,t) > 0, \quad g^{l}(x,t) \leq 0 \right\}, \quad l = 2, 3, ..., L-1,$$
(2)

are simply connected and defined by their boundaries with the use of identified continuously differentiable functions $g(x,t) = (g^1(x,t), g^2(x,t), ..., g^{L-1}(x,t)).$

Assume that in the aim of identifying unknown parameters, we have the results of observations over the dynamics of the object at different initial conditions:

$$x^{i}(0) = x_{0}^{i}, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., N.$$
 (3)

We also have observations over the state of the object at different moments of time:

$$x^{i}(t_{ij}; x_{0}^{i}, p, g) = x^{ij}, \quad t_{ij} \in (0, T], \quad j = 1, 2, ..., N_{i}^{1}, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., N.$$
(4)

The investigated problem then consists in identifying (L-1)-dimensional vector-function g(x,t) and piecewise constant vector-function p(t).

In the aim of identifying the function g(x,t), we propose to use some known finite system of linearly independent continuously differentiable functions $\{\varphi^i(x,t)\}, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., \overline{v}$, and search for functions $g^l(x,t), \quad l = 1, 2, ..., L-1$ in the form

$$\begin{split} g^{l}\left(x,t\right) &= g^{l}\left(x,t;\alpha^{l}\right) = \sum_{i=1}^{\nu^{l}} \alpha_{i}^{l} \varphi^{i}\left(x,t\right), \quad l = 1, 2, ..., L - 1, \quad \alpha^{l} \in R^{\nu^{l}}, \quad \nu = \sum_{l=1}^{L-1} \nu^{l}, \\ \overline{\nu} &= \max_{1 \leq l \leq L-1} \nu^{l}, \quad \alpha = \left(\alpha_{1}^{1}, ..., \alpha_{\nu^{1}}^{1}, \alpha_{1}^{2}, ..., \alpha_{\nu^{L-1}}^{L-1}\right) \in R^{\nu}. \end{split}$$

Thus, the initial problem is reduced to identification of finite-dimensional vector α .

Formulas for the components of the gradient on the identified parameters are obtained. They allow to use first order optimization methods to solve the problem numerically. The results of numerical experiments are given.

References

 K.R. Aida-zade, S.Z. Guliyev. On a class of inverse problems for discontinuous systems // Journal of Cybernetics and Systems Analysis, Springer, Vol.4, 2008, pp. 915-924.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/11-1.





ANALYTICAL CONSTRUCTION OF THE OUTPUT REGULATOR IN THE SINGULARLY PERTURBUTED SYSTEM

A.J. Jainakov, Z.K. Imanaliev, B.Y. Ashirbaev National Academy of Sciences of the Kirgyzstan Kyrgyz State Technical University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:Jainakov-41@mail.ru

This work is devoted to development of the approximate methods of construction of the solution of singulary perturbuted output regulator problem. This problem is characterized by the free right end of trajektory and quadratic functional. Such problems are considered in [1,2,3] and reduced to investigation to Koshas problem for the system of singularly-perturbuted nonlinear differential equations. In [2,3] an asymptotical approximation to optimal control problem is formed by the boundary function. The considered problem is reduced to solution of three independent linear matrix differential equations relatively supmatix Gramm system. On the base of the obtained algorithms it is easy to get an asymptotical approximate solution of the considered problem.

Lets consider the problem

$$\dot{y} = A(t,\mu)y + B(t,\mu)u, y(t_0) = y_0, s = S(t)y,$$
(1)

$$J = \int_{t_0}^{t_1} u'(t)u(t)dt + S'(t_1)FS(t_1) \to \min,$$
(2)

where $A(t,\mu) = diag(A_1(t), (1/\mu)A_2(t)), y = col(x, z), \quad y_0 = (x_0, z_0), x \in \mathbb{R}^n, \quad y \in \mathbb{R}^m, u \in \mathbb{R}^r, B(t,\mu) = col(B_1(t), (1/\mu)B_2(t)), S(t) = (S_1(t) \mid S_2(t)), \mu > 0, S \in \mathbb{R}^k.$

It is required to estimate the quality of the transformation process not by errors of the process, but by the errors of the output variables of the system (1) comparing with the given values. In such formulation (2) has a form

$$J = \int_{t_0}^{t_1} u'(t)u(t)dt + \vec{S'}(t_1)F\vec{S}(t_1) \to \min,$$
(3)

where F is positive defined, constant matrix of $(k \times k)$ dimension,

$$\dot{S}(t_1) = diag(S_1(t_1), S_2(t_1)).$$

- Z.K. Imanaliev, B.I. Ashirbaev, Zh.T. Barakova. On one method of construction of the singular-perturbuted optimal control problem with quadratic functional // Inves. on Integro-Differential Equations, Bishkek, Ilim, 2001, pp. 165-261.
- [2] V.Y. Glizer, M.G. Dmitriev. Singular perturbations in the linear optimal control problem with quadratic functional //Doklady SSSR, Vol.225, No.5, 1975, pp. 997-1000.
- [3] V.Y. Glizer, M.G. Dmitriev. Asymptotics of solution of one singular-perturbuted Caoshi problem arising in the optimal control theory // Differential Equations, Vol.14, No.4, 1978, pp. 601-612.





WEIGHT OPTIMAL BY ORDER OF CONVERGENCE CUBATURE FORMULAS IN SOBOLEV'S FACTOR SPACE

O.I. Jalolov, F.B. Aslonov Bukhara State University, Bukhara, Uzbekistan

The problem of construction of weight optimal quadrature, cubature formulas is the general problem of optimal approximation of linear functionals at the present time, which is at the center of attention. In the present work the following cubature formula is considered

$$\int_{S_{n-1}} P(\theta) f(\theta) ds \cong \sum_{\lambda=1}^{N} C_{\lambda} f(\theta^{(\lambda)}),$$
(1)

in the space $L_2^{(m)}(S^{n-1})$ on sphere, where $\theta = (\theta_1, \theta_2, ..., \theta_{n-1}), \|\theta\| = 1$ and $P(\theta)$ is summable function on the sphere S^{n-1} , i.e. $P(\theta) \in L(S^{n-1}), \sum_{\lambda=1}^{N} C_{\lambda} = \frac{2\pi^{\frac{n}{2}}}{F(\frac{n}{2})}P_{0,0}$ and $P_{k,\ell} = \int_{S_{n-1}} P(\theta)Y_{k,\ell}(\theta)d\theta$ the error

functional of the cubature formula (1) has the form

$$\ell^{N}(\theta) = P(\theta) - \sum_{\lambda=1}^{N} C_{\lambda} \delta(\theta - \theta^{(\lambda)}),$$

where $\delta(\theta)$ is Dirac's delta function.

The following is holds.

Theorem. The cubature formula (1) for

$$D^{N}(\theta) = \prod_{i=1}^{n-1/2} D_{np}^{N_{i}}(\theta_{i}) \cdot \prod_{i=\frac{n-1}{2}+1}^{n-1} \widehat{D}^{N_{i}}(\theta_{i}),$$

where $D(\theta) = \sum_{\lambda=1}^{N} C_{\lambda} \delta(\theta - \theta^{(\lambda)})$, $||P(\theta_i) - D^{N_i}(\theta_i)/L_2^{m*}(\Omega_i)|| \le K_i N_i^{-m}$, $N_1 = N_2 = \dots = N_{n-1}$, $\prod_{i=1}^{n-1} N_i = N \text{ is optimal by order on the space } L_2^m(S^{n-1}), \quad \text{i.e. } \left\| \ell^N(\theta) / L_2^{m*}(S^{(n-1)}) \right\| = O(N^{-m/n-1}).$

References

[1] S.L. Sobolev. Introduction to the Theory of Cubature Formulas // Moscow, Nauka, 1974.





ON AN OPTIMAL CUBATURE FORMULA IN $\tilde{H}^{\mu}_{p}(T_{n})$ SPACE

F.I. Jalolov, F.B. Aslonov

Bukhara State University, Bukhara, Uzbekistan

Consider cubature formula

$$\int_{T_n} f(x)dx \approx \sum_{\lambda=1}^N C_\lambda f(x^{(\lambda)}),\tag{1}$$

with the error functional

$$\ell(x) = \varepsilon_{T_n}(x) - \sum_{\lambda=1}^{N} C_\lambda \delta(x - x^{(\lambda)}), \qquad (2)$$

in $\tilde{\mathrm{H}}_{p}^{\mu}(\mathrm{T}_{n})$ space, where C_{λ} and $x^{(\lambda)}$ the coefficients and the nodes of the formula (1), $\delta(x)$ is Dirac's delta function, $\varepsilon_{T_n}(x)$ is the indicator of the domain T_n and T_n is *n* dimensional torus. **Definition 1.** The set $T_n = \{x = (x_1, x_2, ..., x_n); x_k = \{t_k\}, t_k \in R \text{ is called } n \text{ dimensional}$

torus, where $\{t_k\} = t_k - [t_k]$ [1].

Definition 2. The space $\tilde{H}_{p}^{\mu}(T_{n})$ is defined as the space of periodic functions with matrix of period H of the form $f(x) = \sum_{\gamma} \hat{f}[\gamma] e^{-2\pi i \gamma^* H^{-1} x}$ for which the sum $\sum_{\gamma} \left| \hat{f}[\gamma] \right|^p \mu^p(\gamma H^{-1})$ is finite. The norm in H_p^{μ} space is defined by following formula

$$\left\| f(x) \middle/ \tilde{\mathbf{H}}_{p}^{\mu} \right\| = \left\{ \sum_{\gamma} \hat{f}[\gamma] |^{p} \mu^{p}(\dot{\gamma}\mathbf{H}^{-1}) \right\}^{\frac{1}{p}}, \quad 1 \le p \le \infty,$$
(3)

 $and \quad \left\|f(x)\big/\tilde{\mathbf{H}}_{\infty}^{\mu}\right\| = \sup_{\gamma} \left\{ \left|\hat{f}[\gamma] \left|\dot{\mu}(\gamma * \mathbf{H}^{-1})\right.\right\}, \quad p = \infty.$

Definition 3. The cubature formula

$$\int_{T_n} f(x)dx \approx \sum_{\lambda=1}^N c_\lambda f(h\lambda), \lambda = (\lambda_1, \lambda_2, \lambda_3, ..., \lambda_n)$$
(4)

is called exact on some set M if (4) is exact equality for any $f(x) \in M$. In particular, for M = Rthe following holds $\sum_{\lambda=1}^{N} c_{\lambda} = 1.$

Theorem 1. The rectangular cubature formula is optimal among cubature formulas of the form (4), which are exact on constants in $H_p^{\mu}(T_n)$ space.

References

[1] S.L. Sobolev. Introduction to the Theory of Cubature Formulas // Moscow, Nauka, 1974.





ON SPECIFIC ASYMPTOTIC STABILITY OF SOLUTIONS OF VOLTERRA FOURTH ORDER LINEAR HOMOGENEOUS INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Z.A. Japarova, S. Iskandarov

Kyrgyz National University, Bishskek, Kyrgyzstan The Institute of Pure and Applied Mathematics National Academy of Sciences, Bishskek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:meku83@mail.ru

IDE - integro-differential equation; under the asymptotic stability of solutions of a linear fourthorder IDE understand the desire to zero $t \to \infty$ all its solutions and their derivatives up to third order inclusive.

Solve the following problem.

Establish sufficient conditions for asymptotic stability of solutions of linear homogeneous IDE Volterra type:

$$x^{(4)}(t) - a_3(t) x^{\prime\prime\prime}(t) + a_2(t) x^{\prime\prime}(t) + a_1(t) x^{\prime}(t) + a_0(t) x(t) +$$

$$+\int_{t_0}^{t} [Q_0(t,\tau) x(\tau) + Q_1(t,\tau) x'(\tau) + Q_2(t,\tau) x''(\tau) + Q_3(t,\tau) x'''(\tau)] d\tau = 0, \quad t \ge t_0$$
(1)

in case $a_3(t) \ge 0$, i.e. in the case of asymptotic instability of the non-trivial solutions of the corresponding linear homogeneous differential equation of the fourth order:

$$x^{(4)}(t) - a_3(t) x^{\prime\prime\prime}(t) + a_2(t) x^{\prime\prime}(t) + a_1(t) x^{\prime}(t) + a_0(t) x(t) = 0, \ t \ge t_0,$$

that follows from formula Ostrogradskii - Liouville.

In the IDE (1) all functions $a_k(t)$, $Q_k(t,\tau)$ (k = 0, 1, 2, 3) are continuous at $t \ge t_0$, $t \ge \tau \ge t_0$. We are talking about the solutions $x(t) \in C^4(J, R)$ IDE (1) with any initial Cauchy data $x^{(k)}(t_0)$ (k = 0, 1, 2, 3). Each such solution exists and is unique.

To solve this problem are applied: non-standard method of reduction to the system [1] (in the IDE (1) made the following changes:

 $x'(t) + \lambda_1 x(t) = \overline{W}_1(t) y(t),$

 $y'(t) + \lambda_2 y(t) = W_2(t)u(t),$

where $0 < \lambda_k$ (k = 1, 2) - some auxiliary parameters, $0 < W_k(t)$ (k = 1, 2) - some weighting functions, y(t), u(t) - the new unknown function); the method of weighting and cutting functions with transformations [2], similar, the transformations in scheme A) \rightarrow B) \rightarrow C) [2, pp.113-162], [3] and the method for estimating solutions and their derivatives [4].

- S. Iskandarov. Method of a nonstandard reduction to a system and exponential stability of a third-order linear ordinary differential equation // Differential Equations, Vol.46, No.6, 2010, pp. 907-908 (On the Seminar on Qualitative Theory of Differential Equations at Moscow State University).
- S. Iskandarov. Method of Weighting and cutting Functions and Asymptotic Properties of Solutions of Integro-Differential and Integral Equations Volterra Type // Bishkek: Ilim, 2002, 216p.
- [3] M.I. Imanaliev, S. Iskandarov. Specific stability criterion for solutions of a fourth order linear homogenous Volterratype integrodifferential equation // Doklady Mathematics, Vol.79, No.2, 2009, pp. 1-5(In Russian).
- [4] S. Iskandarov. Specific exponential stability criterion of solutions of linear homogeneous Volterra integro-differential equation of the third order // Reports of the Third Congress of the World Mathematical Society of Turkic Countries, Kazak University Almaty, 2009, pp. 301-307.





DYNAMIC DESIGN OF THE CONTROL DEVICES FOR THE NON-STATIONARY SYSTEMS

R.N. Kurmanalieva, B.O. Dzholdoshev, T.T. Omorov

Kirghiz State University of Construction, Transport and Architecture named after N.Isanova,

Institute of Automatics and Information Technology of NAN KP, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan

e-mail:nas.roza@mail.ru, bekbolot2009@yandex.ru, fiztech-07@mail.ru.

In this research we consider the non-stationary controlling object described by the vector deviation equation:

$$\dot{x}(t) = A(t)x(t) + B(t)u(t) , x(t_0) = x^0, \quad t \in [t_0, t_k] ,$$
(1)

where x(t) is the state vector; $u(t)^{T}$ a control vector; $\widehat{A}(t)$, $\widehat{B}(t)$ real matrices, t_0, t_k – the initial and final moments of control.

Let the structure of the control law be given

$$u(t) = Ke(t) = -Kx(t), \qquad (2)$$

where $K - m \times n -$ dimension matrix of a regulator.

Theorem 1. Let $e_i(t_0) \in E_i(t_0)$ in the initial time moment. Then in order to $e_i(t) \in E_i(t)$ by $t > t_0$ it is sufficient fulfillment of the condition

$$\int_{t_0}^{t} e_i(\tau) \dot{e}_i(\tau) d\tau \leq \int_{t_0}^{t} 1_i(t) \dot{1}_i(t) d\tau, \qquad t \in [t_0, t_k] .$$

$$(3)$$

For all $t \in [t_0, t_k]$.

On the basis of conditions (3) one may to formulate the following theorem [2].

Theorem 2. Let $e(t_0) \in E(t_0)$. Then $e(t) \in E(t)$ is true for the vector of the control error if the conditions

$$\dot{\mathbf{e}}_{\mathbf{i}}^{+}(\mathbf{t}) \leq \dot{\mathbf{i}}_{\mathbf{i}}(\mathbf{t}), -\dot{\mathbf{e}}_{\mathbf{i}}^{-}(\mathbf{t}) \leq \dot{\mathbf{i}}_{\mathbf{i}}(\mathbf{t}), \qquad \mathbf{i} = \overline{\mathbf{1}, \mathbf{N}}, \quad t \in [t_0, t_k] ,$$

$$(4)$$

are satisfied . Here

$$\dot{e}_{i}^{+}(t) = \dot{5}_{i}(t) |_{5_{i}(t) = 1_{i}(t)}; \dot{e}_{i}^{-}(t) = \dot{5}_{i}(t) |_{5_{i}(t) = -1_{i}(t)}$$

Conclusion. The description of an admissible subset P in space of parameters of the regulator, guaranteeing to the closed multidimensional control system given experimental (engineering indicators) of quality is obtained. The analysis of this subset allows one to define required vector-parameter $p \in P$ of the regulator for the linear non-stationary system.

- [1] T.T. Omorov. The principle of guaranteed dynamics // Bishkek: Ylym, 2001, 136 p.
- [2] T.T. Omorov, R. N. Kurmanalieva. Multicriterial synthesis of the control systems on quality and complexity indicators // Bishkek, Ylym, 2007, 136p.
- [3] V. Zakian. New formulation for the Method of Inequalities //Proc. IEE, Vol. 126, No. 6, 1979, pp. 579-584.
- [4] B. H. Wheaten, JU.M. Danilin. The numerical methods in extreme problems // M: the Science, 1975, 319p.





+

EXTREME PROBLEM FOR PARTIAL INCLUSIONS

Misreddin A. Sadygov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:misreddin@box.az

In the paper (see [1,2]) the problems of a minimum for extreme problems of multidimensional differential inclusions are considered. The work consists of three parts. In p.1 extremal problem for multidimensional differential inclusions hyperbolic type are investigated. In p.2 extremal problem for multidimensional differential inclusions parabolic type are investigated. In p.3 extremal problem for multidimensional differential inclusions elliptic type are investigated.

Extremal problem for inclusions hyperbolic type consists of four parts. In p.1 continuous dependence of decisions of inclusions hyperbolic type on the right part and on boundary conditions(see [1,2]) are investigated. In p.2 of extremum for nonsmooth variational promlems are studied. In p.3 extreme problems for inclusions hyperbolic type are considered, necessary and sufficient conditions of extremum are obtained. In p.4 the necessary conditions of the second order of problems a minimum for inclusions hyperbolic type are obtained.

Let D be a bounded domain in \mathbb{R}^k , $comp\mathbb{R}^n = \{C \subset \mathbb{R}^n : C \neq \emptyset \ compact \ set\}, \ T > 0, \ Q_T = (0,T) \times D, \ M_1 : D \to comp\mathbb{R}^n, \ F : [0,T] \times D \times \mathbb{R}^{(k+2)n} \to omp\mathbb{R}^n, \ x = (x_1, ..., x_k), \ u_x(t,x) = (u_{x_1}(t,x), ..., u_{x_k}(t,x)), \ f : [0,T] \times D \times \times \mathbb{R}^{(k+3)n} \to \overline{\mathbb{R}} \ and \ g : D \times \mathbb{R}^{(k+2)n} \to \overline{\mathbb{R}} \ be normal \ integrants.$

 $\begin{aligned} &\text{Let } 1 \leq p < +\infty, \, k(\cdot) \in C^1(\bar{D})^n, \, a(\cdot) \in C(\bar{D})^n, \, k_j^0 > 0 \text{ for } j \in \overline{1,n}, \, k(x) = = (k_1(x), ..., k_n(x)) \geq \\ &(k_1^0, ..., k_n^0). \text{ We put } a(x)u(t, x) = (a_1(x)u_1(t, x), ..., a_n(x)u_n(t, x)), \\ &div(k_i(x)\nabla u_i)(t, x) = \sum_{j=1}^k \frac{\partial}{\partial x_j}(k_i(x)\frac{\partial}{\partial x_j}u_i)(t, x), \, (u_{tt} - div(k(x)\nabla u)(t, x) = \\ &= ((u_{1_{tt}} - div(k_1(x)\nabla u_1))(t, x), ..., (u_{n_{tt}} - div(k_n(x)\nabla u_n))(t, x)), \end{aligned}$

$$\dot{V}_p = \{ u \in L_p^n(Q_T) : (u_{tt} - div(k(\cdot)\nabla u)) + a(\cdot)u \in L_p^n(Q_T), \ u(0, \cdot) \in \dot{W}_{p,1}^n(D), \ u_t(0, \cdot) \in L_p^n(D) \}.$$

We consider the minimization of the functional

$$\begin{split} I(u) &= \int_0^T \int_D f(t, x, u(t, x), u_x(t, x), u_t(t, x), (u_{tt} - div(k(x)\nabla u))(t, x) \\ &+ a(x)u(t, x)) dt dx + \int_D g(x, u(0, x), u_x(0, x), u_t(0, x)) dx \end{split}$$

in space \dot{V}_p , where $1 \le p < +\infty$. The necessary and sufficient conditions of extremum for nonsmooth variational problems are studied.

The function $\bar{u} \in V_2$, satisfying problem

$$(u_{tt} - div(k(x)\nabla u)(t, x) + a(x)u(t, x) \in F(t, x, u(t, x), u_x(t, x), u_t(t, x)), (t, x) \in Q_T,$$
$$u(0, x) = 0, \quad u_t(0, x) \in M_1(x), \quad x \in D, \quad u \in \dot{V}_2$$

and minimizing of function J(u) among all solution problem is called an optimal. It is required to find necessary extremum conditions of the optimality.

- [1] M.A. Sadygov. Extremal problem for inclusions hyperbolic tape // Preprint 1, Baku, 2010, 62p.
- [2] M.A. Sadygov. Extremal problem for partial inclusions // Preprint 2, Baku, 2010, 101p.





NONSMOOTH STOCHASTIC OPTIMAL CONTROL PROBLEM

Sh. Maharramov, M. Sengul, E. Curbuza Yasar University, Izmir, Turkey e-mail:shahlar.maharramov@yasar.edu.tr

It is well known that the maximum principle, the necessary condition of the optimal control, which is a milestone-like result in the optimal control theory was established for the deterministic control system by Pontryakin's group[1] in the 19500s and 1960s. Since then, a lot of work has been done on the forward stochastic control system such as Bensoussan A[2], Bismut J. M [3], Kushner H J[4], Peng S[5] etc. Peng [6] firstly studied one kind of forward-backward stochastic control system which had the economic background and could be used to study the recursive utility problem in the mathematical finance. He obtained the maximum principle for this kind of control system with the control domain being convex. And then Xu [7] studied the non-convex control domain case and obtained the corresponding maximum principle. But all in these article authors investigate stochastic optimal control in smooth case (diffusion coefficient is smooth). In this paper we study the stochastic maximum principle for the optimal control problem. The diffusion coefficient is nonsmooth. More pricesely, we consider following stochastic optimal control problem.

Let (Ω, F, F_t, P) be a filtered probability space, satisfying the usual conditions, on which a ddimensional Brownian motion (B_t) is defined with the filtration (F_t) . Let T be a strictly positive real number, A_1 is a nonempty subset of R_n and $A_2 = ([0; \infty))^m$. U_1 is the class of measurable, adapted processes $u : [t_0, t_1] \times \Omega \to A_1$ and U_2 is the class of measurable, adapted processes $\xi : [t_0, t_1] \times \Omega \to A_2$. The problem is to find the couple $(\bar{u}, \bar{\xi})$ which is satisfying the the relation

The problem is to find the couple (\bar{u}, ξ) , which is satisfy the the relation

$$dx_t = b(t, x_t, u_t)dt + \sigma(t, x_t)dB_t + M_t d\xi, \quad t \in [t_0, t_1]$$

$$\tag{1}$$

and takes minimum value of the expected cost

$$J(u,\xi) = E\left[\int_{t_0}^{t_1} f(t,x_t,u_t)dt + \int_{t_0}^{t_1} k_t d\xi_t + g(x(t_1))\right]$$
(2)

Assume that b, σ, f, M and g are Borel measurable, bounded functions. By using some useful lemmas and theorems we got necessary optimality conditions for the problem (1) and (2) in the case of diffusion coefficient is nonsmooth in equation (1).

- L.S. Pontryagin, V.G. Boltyanskti, R.V. Gamkrelidze, E.F. Mischenko. The Mathematical Theory of Optimal Control Processes // New York: John Wiley, 1962.
- [2] A. Bensoussan. Lectures on stochastic control // In: Lecture Notes in Mathematics, 972, Berlin: Springer- Verlag, 1982.
- [3] J. M. Bismut. An introductory approach to duality in optimal stochastic control // SIAM Journal on Control and Optimization, Vol.20, 1978, pp.62-78.
- [4] H.J. Kushner. Necessary conditions for continuous parameter stochastic optimization problems // SIAM Journal on Control and Optimization, Vol.10, 1972, pp. 550-565.
- [5] S. Peng. A general stochastic maximum principle for optimal control problems // SIAM Journal on Control and Optimization, Vol.28, 1990, pp. 966-979.
- S. Peng. Backward stochastic differential equations and application to optimal control // Applied Mathematics and Optimization, Vol. 27, 1993, pp. 125-144.
- [7] Xu Wen-Sheng. Stochastic maximum principle for optimal control problem of forward and backward system.





FIRST AND SECOND ORDER NECESSARY OPTIMALITY CONDITIONS IN CONTROL PROBLEM DESCRIBED BY A SYSTEM OF VOLTERRA DIFFERENCE EQUATIONS

Kamil B. Mansimov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:mansimov@front.ru

The report is devoted to derivation of necessary optimality conditions of first and second orders in the processes described by a system of Volterra type difference equations under assumption that the control domain is open.

It is required to minimize the functional

$$S(u) = \varphi(x(t_1)), \qquad (1)$$

under restrictions

$$u(t) \in U \subset R^{r}, t \in T = \{t_{0}, t_{0} + 1, ..., t_{1}\},$$
(2)

$$x(t) = \sum_{\tau=t_0}^{t} f(t, \tau, x(\tau), u(\tau)), t \in T.$$
(3)

Here x(t) is *n*-dimensional vector of phase variables, u(t) is *r*-dimensional vector of control actions, U is the given non-empty, bounded and open set, t_0 , t_1 are the given numbers.

By means of the method that is a modification of the increment method, at first the analogue of the Euler equation is established.

Then different necessary optimality conditions of second order are obtained.

- V.B. Kolmanovsky. On asymptotic properties of the solutions of some Volterra nonlinear systems // Avtomatika i Telemexanika, No.4, 2000, pp. 42-50.
- [2] R. Gabasov, F.M. Kirillova. Optimization Methods // Minsk, BSU, 1981, 400 p.
- $[3]\,$ K.B. Mansimov. Discrete systems // Baku, BSU, 2002, 114 p.
- [4] K.B. Mansimov, M.J. Mardanov. Quality Theory of Optimal Controls of Goursat-Darboux Systems // Baku, ELM, 2010, 360 p.





NECESSARY AND SUFFICIENT CONDITIONS OF MINIMALITY OF THE IMAGE OF THE GIVEN SURFACE IN THE MAPPING OF P-DIMENSIONAL SURFACES OF N-DIMENSIONAL EUCLIDEAN SPACE

Gulbadan Matieva, Jyldyz Artykova Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:gulbadan_57@mail.ru, artyk_jyldyzka@mail.ru

It is considered two p-dimensional surfaces F, F' of Euclidean space E_n .

$$\Re = (X, \overrightarrow{e}_i, \overrightarrow{e}_\alpha) \qquad (X \in F, i, j, k = 1, ..., p; \ \alpha = p + 1, ..., n)$$

is moving frame on F, where $\overrightarrow{e}_i \in T_p(X)$ - tangent vector space of $F, \overrightarrow{e}_\alpha \in N_{n-p}(X)$ - orthogonally complementary vector space to $T_p(X)$. Derivation formulas of the frame \Re are following:

$$d\overrightarrow{x} = \omega^{i}\overrightarrow{e}_{i}, \qquad d\overrightarrow{e}_{i} = \omega^{j}_{i}\overrightarrow{e}_{j} + \omega^{\alpha}_{i}\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha}, \qquad d\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha} = \omega^{i}_{\alpha}\overrightarrow{e}_{i} + \omega^{\beta}_{\alpha}\overrightarrow{e}_{\beta}$$

differential forms ω^i , ω^j_i , ω^{α}_i are satisfied structure equations of Euclidean space. It is defined the differential mapping $f: F \to F'$ so that

$$f(X) = Y \in F', \ Y = F' \cap (X, \overrightarrow{e}_{p+1}).\Re' = (Y, \overrightarrow{a}_i, \ \overrightarrow{a}_{\alpha})$$

moving frame on F', where $\overrightarrow{a}_i = p_i^j \overrightarrow{e}_j + p_i^\beta \overrightarrow{e}_\beta$, $\overrightarrow{a}_\alpha = \overrightarrow{e}_\alpha$. Derivation formulas of the frame \Re' are following:

$$d\overrightarrow{y} = \omega^{j}\overrightarrow{a}_{j}, \ d\overrightarrow{a}_{i} = \overline{\omega}_{i}^{j}\overrightarrow{a}_{j} + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{\alpha}\overrightarrow{a}_{\alpha}, \ d\overrightarrow{a}_{\alpha} = d\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha} = \overline{\omega}_{\alpha}^{i}\overrightarrow{a}_{i} + \overline{\omega}_{\alpha}^{\beta}\overrightarrow{a}_{\beta}.$$

$$\overrightarrow{M'}_p = \frac{1}{p} \sum_{i=1}^p \overline{a}_{ii}^{\alpha} \overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha}$$

mean curvature vector of the surface F'.

It is proved that surface is minimal if ant only if when

$$\overrightarrow{K}_{N(i)}\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha} = h(\overrightarrow{K}_{T(i)})\overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha},$$

where $\overrightarrow{K}_{N(i)}$ - forced curvature vector, $\overrightarrow{K}_{T(i)}$ - tangent curvature vector of coordinate line ω^i ,

$$\begin{split} h: T_p(X) &\to N_p(X), \\ \forall \overrightarrow{m} = m^i \overrightarrow{e}_i \in T_p(X) : h(\overrightarrow{m}) = p_k^{\alpha} \widetilde{p}_i^k m^i \overrightarrow{e}_{\alpha} \end{split}$$

References

[1] I.A. Schouten, J. Struik. Introducing in knew methods of Differential Geometry // Moscow, 1948, 348 p.





ON A RELATION BETWEEN THE SETS OF SOLUTIONS OF MAIN AND CONVEX BOUNDARY VALUE PROBLEMS IN A CONTROL SYSTEM

M.A. Yagubov, R.B. Huseynova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

In the work the relation between the sets of solutions of the following equations

$$\beta z_{tt} + z_t - \varepsilon \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x \partial t} F_1(z_x) - \frac{\partial}{\partial x} F(z_x) = f_1(x, t, u), \qquad (1)$$

$$\beta z_{tt} + z_t - \varepsilon \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x \partial t} F_1(z_x) - \frac{\partial}{\partial x} F(z_x) = \langle f_1(x, t, u), \mu_{xt} \rangle$$
(2)

with the initial boundary conditions

$$z(0,t) = z(1,t) = 0, \ z(x,0) = z_0(x), \ z_t(x,0) = z_1(x),$$
(3)

is established.

Here $(x,t) \in Q(0,1) \times (0,T)$, u(x,t)- measurable on Q r-dimensional control vector –function with values from $U \subset R^r$ ("ordinary" control), μ_{xt} - weakly measurable finit set of the probability Radon measures ("generalized" control),

$$\langle \cdot, \mu_{xt} \rangle = \int_{R^r} (\cdot) d\mu_{xt}.$$

The set of solutions of the problem (1)-(3) we define by G_0 , the sets (2), (3) by G correspondingly. In the work the relation between the sets G_0 and G is established

In the work the relation between the sets G_0 and G is established.

MAXIMUM PRINCIPLE ON SOLUTIONS OF PARTIAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS OF ELLIPTIC TYPE

Mohd Mahameed Irbid National University, Irbid, Jordan e-mail:al_mahameed2000@yahoo.com

On this paper we establish a maximum principle which applies on solutions of some partial differential equations of elliptic type.

This maximum principle related to some harmonic and biharmonic functions.







INTEGRAL EQUATIONS METHOD IN NON-HOMOGENEITY DETECTION IN RESISTIVITY SOUNDING PROBLEM

B.G. Mukanova Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan

e-mail:mbsha01@gmail.com

The problem of the vertical electrical sounding above the local heterogeneity or the buried relief is considered. The surrounded medium is assumed to be homogeneous. The form of the inclusion need to be detected. For a stationary field the electrostatic potential can be defined by the integral equation method [1]. This method is considered as the most accurate and appropriate one in numerical solution of the BVP for considered model of medium. The corresponding inverse problem is written as a minimization problem of the residual functional with respect to the parametrization of the inclusion boundary[2]:

Let the Γ be an inclusion boundary and given by the following parametrization:

$$x_3 = q(x_1, x_2) \in C^2(\Omega), (x_1, x_2) \in \Omega \subset R^2, x_1 \in [a, b], x_2 \in [c, d]$$

Consider the mathematical model of the resistivity sounding problem. The corresponding minimization problem can be reduced to a following statement:

$$J(q) = \int_{\alpha}^{\beta} \Phi(s, u(x(s)), u'(x(s))) ds \to \min \text{ with respect to } q(x_1, x_2), \tag{1}$$

$$u(\mathbf{x}) = \int \int_{\Gamma} G(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{x}') d\Gamma$$
(2)

$$\nu(\mathbf{x}) = \int \int_{\Gamma} F(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{x}') d\Gamma + f(\mathbf{x}, \nabla q) \equiv A\nu + f$$
(3)

It was proved that the Frechet derivative of the residual functional (1) has the form:

$$\begin{aligned} \nabla J &= \int_{\alpha}^{\beta} [\Phi_u (G_q \nu I + G \nu I_q - (G \nu)_{x_1}) I - (G \nu)_{x_2} I + \\ B(E+R) (F \nu I_q + F_q \nu I - (F I(\nu+f))_{x_1} - (F I(\nu+f))_{x_2}] ds + \int_{\alpha}^{\beta} \sum_{i=1}^{3} \frac{\partial \Phi}{\partial u_{x_i}} \frac{dx_i}{ds}, \end{aligned}$$

here $R = (I - A)^{-1}$ is the resolvent of the operator (3) and B is the notation of the integral operator

$$Bf = \int \int_{\Omega} G(...)\nu(...)I(q,\nabla q)fd\Omega,$$

 ${\cal I}$ is the Jackobian of the boundary parametrization.

In numerical simulation the gradient was calculated by the empirical formula. Some numerical results were obtained. The efficiency of the method was improved by using a multi processor parallelization technology MPI. It turns out that the parallelization considerably increases calculations efficiency.

- M. Orunkhanov, B. Mukanova, B. Sarbassova. Convergence of the method of integral equations for quasi threedimensional problem of electrical sounding // Computational Science and High Performance Computing II, The Second Advanced Research Workshop. Stuttgart, Germany.Springer. March 14 to 16, 2005, pp. 175-180.
- [2] M. Orunkhanov and B. Mukanova. The integral equations method in problems of electrical sounding // In book Advances in High Performance Computing and Computational Sciences, Springer, Heidelberg. Vol.93, 2006, pp. 15-21.





STABILIZATION OF ONE CLASS OF THE NONLINEAR SYSTEMS WITH THE LIMITED CONTROL

Z.N. Murzabekov

The Kazakh National University named after al-Farabi, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:murzabekov-zein@mail.ru

Let's consider one of the class nonlinear operated systems which is described by the differential equation of a following kind

$$\dot{x}(t) = Ax(t) + b\varphi(\sigma) + u(t), \ t \in (t_0, \infty), \\ x(t_0) = x_0, \ x(\infty) = x_1,$$
(1)

$$\varphi(\sigma) = \sigma^{\alpha}, \quad \sigma = c^* x, \quad 0 < \alpha < 1, \quad \beta_0 \varphi(\sigma_0) \le u(t) \le \beta_1 \varphi(\sigma_1) ,$$

$$(2)$$

where x(t) - a vector of state of dimension $n \times 1$; $u = u(\varphi(\sigma), t)$ - control vector $-n \times 1$; A - gurvisev matrix of dimension $n \times n$; b, c, β_0 , β_1 - vectors of dimension $n \times 1$; x_0 , x_1 - the given vectors.

In work [1] considered the three-sector model of branch. The three-sector model is dynamic and described by the differential equations. It is nonlinear because releases of sectors are given by nonlinear production functions. For distribution of labor and investment resources was used control which provides growth of economics sectors. Considered model (1) - (2) can be applied at studying of the transients occurring at change of one variant of economic policy by another.

Let

$$J(u) = \frac{1}{2} \int_{t_0}^{\infty} [(x(t) - x_1)^* Q(x_0, x_1)(x(t) - x_1) + u^* R(x, \varphi) u] dt,$$
(3)

where $Q(x_0, x_1) = diag\{(x_{i0} - x_{i1})^{-2}\}$ - a symmetric positively definite matrix, $R(x, \varphi) = diag\{\frac{(x_{i1} - x_i)\varphi^{-1}(\sigma)}{2\lambda_i^2(x_{i0} - x_{i1})^2(x_{i1}\varphi_1^{-1} - x_{i0}\varphi_0^{-1})}\}$ - a symmetric positively definite matrix.

Problem. To find stabilizing control $u(\varphi(\sigma), x_0, x_1)$ such that admissible pair corresponding to it $\{x(t), u(t)\}$ satisfied to the differential equation (1) with conditions (2) and set the minimal value to functional (3). In the given work considered problems of optimum stabilization when boundary conditions are set, i.e. it is necessary to result operated object from some initial condition x_0 in the set desirable condition x_1 . The new approach of construction of the stabilizing control based on a principle of feedback taking into account restrictions on controls in a following kind is offered

$$u(x,\varphi) = K(x_1\varphi_1^{-1} - x_0\varphi_0^{-1})\varphi(\sigma).$$
(4)

The matrix K and boundary conditions are used control to (4) satisfy to conditions of optimality [2] and to set restrictions (2). At the received control (4) movement of system x(t) satisfy to a conditions $x(t_0) = x_0$ and $\lim x(t) = x_1$ when $t \to \infty$.

- [1] V.A. Kolemaev. Economical mathematical modeling // M.:YUNITI, 2005.
- [2] Z.N. Murzabekov. Optimization of the control systems // Almaty, ATU, 2009.





PROBLEM OF CONTROLLABILITY FOR SOME LINEAR HYPERBOLIC EQUATIONS

T.M. Mustafayeva Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:tunzalemustafayeva@mail.ru

Let controlled process is described by the following mixed problem for the hyperbolic equation

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} - \sum_{i,j=1}^n \frac{\partial}{\partial x_i} \left(a_{ij} \left(x \right) \frac{\partial u}{\partial x_j} \right) + a \left(x \right) u = f \left(x, t \right), \tag{1}$$

$$(x,t) \in Q_T = \Omega \times (0,T), n = 1,2,$$

$$u(x,0) = u_0(x), \quad \frac{\partial u(x,0)}{\partial t} = u_1(x), \quad x \in \Omega,$$
(2)

$$\left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial \nu} + \sigma\left(x\right)u\right)|_{S_{T}} = g\left(x\right)\upsilon\left(t\right), S_{T} = \partial\Omega \times \left(0,T\right), x \in \partial\Omega, \ t \in \left(0,T\right),$$
(3)

where the coefficients $a_{ij}(x)$, $i = \overline{1, n}$ are measurable bounded functions; $a_{ij}(x) = a_{ji}(x)$, $\sum_{i,j=1}^{n} a_{ij}(x) \xi_i \xi_j \ge \alpha^2 \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} a_{ij}(x) \xi_i^2$, $\alpha = const > 0$; $a(x) \ge 0$, $\sigma(x)$ is measurable bounded functions; $f(x,t) \in L_2(Q_T)$, $u_0(x) \in W_2^1(\Omega)$, $u_1(x) \in L_2(\Omega)$, $g(x) \in L_2(\Omega)$ are given functions, the function v(t) is considered as a control from $L_2(0,T)$.

The problem is: to find a control v(t) from $L_2(0,T)$ that for the corresponding solution u(x,t) of the boundary value problem (1)- (3) be satisfied the conditions

$$u(x,T) = \psi_0(x), \ \frac{\partial u(x,T)}{\partial x} = \psi_1(x).$$
(4)

It is proved that if sequence $\left\{\frac{c_n^1}{g_n}\sqrt{\lambda_n}\right\}$ or $\left\{\frac{c_n^2}{g_n}\sqrt{\lambda_n}\right\}$ is unbounded, then the equation Ma = c has

no solution in some class of sequences, where *M*- infinite matrix, $c = \left\{ \begin{pmatrix} c_n^1 \\ c_n^2 \end{pmatrix} \right\}_{n=1}^{\infty}$, which expressed

by the problem data, $\{\lambda_n\}$ are eigenvalues of some spectral problem associated with an initial mixed problem, $\{g_n\}$ - factors Fourier coefficients of function g(x).





OF THE ASYMPTOTICS OF OPTIMAL CONTROL DESCRIBED BY SINGULARLY PERTURBED PARABOLIC EQUATION

Asan S.Omuraliev, Shaarbu K.Sheishenova "Manas" Kyrgyz-Turkish University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:asan.omuraliev@mail.ru

Let's see the following problem of the optimal control:

$$\partial_t u(x,t,\varepsilon) = \varepsilon^2 a(x) \partial_x^2 u(x,t,\varepsilon) + b(x,t) u(x,t,\varepsilon) + p(x,t,\varepsilon) + f(x,t), (x,t) \in \Omega,$$

$$u(x,t,\varepsilon)|_{t=0} = 0, \ \partial_x u(x,t,\varepsilon)|_{x=0} = 0, \ (\partial_x u(x,t,\varepsilon) + \alpha u(x,t,\varepsilon))|_{x=1} = 0,$$
(1)

with $\alpha = const > 0$, $\varepsilon > 0$ - the small parameter, $\overline{\Omega} = \{(x,t) : x \in [0,1], t \in [0,T]\}, f(x,t) \in [0,T]$ $C^{\infty}(\bar{\Omega}), \ 0 < a(x) \in C^{\infty}[0,1], \ \partial_t = \partial/\partial t, \ \partial_x^2 = \partial^2/\partial x^2, \ p(x,t,\varepsilon)$ - the control function from $L_2(\bar{\Omega})$. The allowable control of $p^0(x,t,\varepsilon)$ shall be found as well as it's relevant solution of $u^0(x,t,\varepsilon)$ of

problems (1), so that the functional

$$I = \int_0^1 [u(x,T,\varepsilon) - \Phi(x)]^2 dx + \beta \int_0^1 \int_0^T p^2(x,t,\varepsilon) dt dx, \beta = const > 0$$

takes over the smallest possible value with $p(x,t,\varepsilon) = p^0(x,t,\varepsilon), u(x,t,\varepsilon) = u^0(x,t,\varepsilon)$. Here $\Phi(x)$ - is given function from $L_2[0, 1]$.

Based on the maximum principle on the analogy of [1], the problem presented is brought to determination of p^0, u^0 and ψ^0 from (1) and correlations

$$p(x,t,\varepsilon) = \frac{1}{2\beta}\psi(x,t,\varepsilon), \qquad \partial_t\psi(x,t,\varepsilon) + \partial_x^2(a(x)\psi(x,t,\varepsilon)) - b(x,t)\psi(x,t,\varepsilon) = 0, \tag{2}$$

 $\psi(x,t,\varepsilon)|_{t=T} = -2[u(x,T,\varepsilon) - \Phi(x)], \ \partial_x(a(x)\psi)|_{x=0} = 0, \ \left[\partial_x(a(x)\psi) + \alpha a(x)\psi(x,t,\varepsilon)\right]|_{x=1} = 0.$

As opposed to the work [1], here there is only one regularizing variable for both problems (1) and (2)

$$\xi_l = \frac{\varphi_l(x)}{\varepsilon} = \frac{(-1)^{l-1}}{\varepsilon} \int_{l-1}^x \frac{ds}{\sqrt{a(s)}}, \qquad l = 1, 2.$$

The solutions of the extended problems found are looked as series with powers of the small parameter ε . The iterative problems received are solved within special spaces, namely, the iterative problems relevant to problems (2) within the space

$$Y = \left\{ y(x,t,\xi) : y = q(x,t) + \sum_{l=1}^{2} \left[X_l(x,t,\xi_l) + c_l(x,t) \operatorname{erfc}(\frac{\xi_l}{2\sqrt{T-t}}) \right],$$

$$\left| X_l(x,t,\xi_l) \right| < c \exp\left(-\frac{\xi_l^2}{8(T-t)}\right), \ c_l(x,t) \in C^{\infty}(\bar{\Omega}), \ \operatorname{erfc}(x) = \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \int_x^{\infty} \exp(-s^2) ds \right\},$$

$$\operatorname{extractive problems for (1) within the space}$$

and the iterative problems for (1) within the space

$$U = \left\{ u(x,t,\xi) : u = v(x,t) + \sum_{l=1}^{2} \left[Z_l(x,t,\xi_l) + d_l(x,t) erfc\left(\frac{\xi_l}{2\sqrt{t}}\right) \right], |Z_l(x,t,\xi_l)| < c \exp\left(-\frac{\xi_l^2}{8t}\right) \right\}.$$

So the asymptotic nature of the solutions found is proved.

^[1] A.S. Omuraliev, R.R. Rafatov. On the Asymptotics of Solution of One Problem of Optimal Control of the Smallparameter Parabolic Equation // Automation and Remote Control, Vol.72, No.1, 2011, pp. 61-73.







CONTROL WITH MINIMAL ENERGY IN THE ILL-POSED LINEAR INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL SYSTEM

R.R. Rafatov

Kyrgyzstan-Turkey Manas University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:ramiz.rafatov@manas.kg

We assume that controlled process is described by the integro-differential equation of the Fredholm type

$$L[x] \equiv x^{(n)} + \sum_{i=1}^{n} p_i(t) x^{(n-i)} = f(t)u(t) + \lambda \int_0^1 \sum_{i=0}^n M_i(t,s) x^{(i)}(s) ds$$
(1)

subject to the boundary conditions

$$x(t_1) = a_1, x(t_2) = a_2, \dots, x(t_n) = a_n.$$
(2)

Here $0 \le t \le 1$; $0 \le s \le 1$; $0 \le t_1 < t_2 < ... < t_{n-1} < t_n \le 1$, $u(t) \in L^2[0,1]$, λ is a parameter and functions $p_i(t), f(t), M_i(t,s)$ are given. Function $u(t) \in L^2[0,1]$ can be interpreted as a controllable parameter.

Problem of control with the minimal energy is formulated in the following form. Assume that different set of points $\{\tau_i\}, i = 1, ..., n, 0 \le \tau_1 < \tau_2 < ... < \tau_{n-1} < \tau_n = 1$ is specified in the interval [0, 1] and the conditions

$$x(\tau_1) = b_1, x(\tau_2) = b_2, \dots, x(\tau_n) = b_n$$
(3)

are satisfied. The problem is to find the function $u = u^0(t)$ from the set of permissible controllable parameters $u(t) \in L^2[0, 1]$ such that the corresponding solution x = x(t) of the problem (1), (2) will satisfy the condition (3) and provide the minimum possible value of the quadratic integral functional

$$J[u] = ||u||_{L^{2}[0,1]}^{2} = \int_{0}^{1} u^{2}(t)dt = \min.$$
(4)

The formulated problem has been considered in [1] under certain conditions on the kernel of Fredholm type integral equation, which provided uniqueness of the solution. In the present work, the problem is studied in the case that these conditions are violated, i.e., when the problem is ill-posed.

References

 R.R. Rafatov. Minimum-energy Control in the Itegro-Differential Linear Systems // Automation and Remote Control, Vol.69, No.4, 2008, pp. 570-578.





OPTIMIZATION PROBLEM FOR A SINGULAR NONSMOOTH SYSTEM WITH POINTWISE STATE CONSTRAINTS AND NONCONVEX SET OF ADMISSIBLE CONTROL

Simon Serovajsky Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:serovajskys@mail.ru

Consider the homogeneous Dirichlet problem

$$\Delta y + a(y) = v + f$$

in the bounded three dimensional set Ω , where continuous function a has a bounded velocity of the increment, $f \in H^{-1}(\Omega)$. The control v is a point of the nonconvex closed subset V of $H_0^1(\Omega)$. The state function y includes to the convex closed subset Y of the space $H_0^1(\Omega)$. The pair $(v, y) \in V \times Y$ is called *admissible* if it satisfies the given equation. The *optimization problem* is the minimization of the functional

$$I(v, y) = ||y - z||^{2} + \nu ||v||^{2}$$

on the set M of admissible pairs, where $\nu > 0$, $z \in H_0^1(\Omega)$ with the norms of the space $H_0^1(\Omega)$. This problem is solvable if the set M is not empty.

Our problem is difficult enough because of the singularity of the boundary problem (existence and uniqueness of its solution for all control are not guarantee), nonsmoothness of the function a, nonconvexity of the set V, and state constraints. We propose to use the penalty method with smooth and convex regularization for analysis of this problem. Let us determine the functional

$$I_{k}(v,y) = I(v,y) + (\varepsilon_{k})^{-1} \int_{\Omega} [\Delta y + a_{k}(y) - v - f]^{2} dx + (\varepsilon_{k})^{-1} \Phi(v)$$

on the set $U = V \times Y$. The set U is the convex closed span of V, $\varepsilon_k > 0$ and $\varepsilon_k > 0$ for $k \to \infty$, $\{a_k\}$ is a sequence of smooth functions, which converges uniformly to a, Φ is no negative Frechet differentiable functional on U that equals to zero only on the set V. The problem of the minimization of the functional I_k on the set W has a solution w_k .

The pair w is an *approximate solution* of the initial problem if it includes in a small enough neighborhood of the set M and satisfies the inequality

$$I(w) \le \inf I(M) + \varepsilon$$

for small enough positive value ε .

Theorem 1. If $k \to \infty$ then $I(w_k) \to \inf I(M)$, besides the sequence $\{w_k\}$ has a weak accumulation point from the set M.

Thus the solution of the approximate problem for large enough number k can be chosen as an approximate solution of the initial optimization problem.

Theorem 2. The point w_k of minimum of the functional I_k on the set w satisfies the variational inequality

$$I'_k(w_k)(w - w_k) \ge 0 \ \forall w \in W.$$

Last formula is in really the system of too variational inequalities with respect to control and state function and a corresponding adjoint system. This problem can be solved by standard iterative methods.





ON EXISTENCE OF THE BEST CUBATURE FORMULAS OF THE GENERAL FORM ON SOBOLEV SPACE $W_2^{(m)}(T_n)$

Kh.M. Shadimetov, O.I. Jalolov, N.T. Ochilova Institute of Mathematics and Information Technologies, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

In investigation of the best formulas of approximate integration first occurs the question about existence of such type formulas. This problem is investigated completely even if is sufficiently complicated (see, for example [1]). Up to present time investigation of the best quadrature formulas based on investigation of splines, which connected with formulas under consideration. So far these methods of investigation is not applied effectively in investigation of cubature formulas in $W_2^{(m)}(T_1)$.

We consider the following cubature formula in $W_2^{(m)}(T_n)$ space

$$\int_{T_n} P(x) f(x) dx \approx \sum_{\lambda=1}^N \sum_{|\alpha| \le r} c_{\lambda}^{\alpha} f^{(\alpha)}(x_{\lambda}),$$
(1)

where $c_1^{\alpha}, ..., c_N^{\alpha}, |\alpha| \leq r$, are constants, $x_1, ..., x_N$ are knots and T_n is torus.

$$<\ell, f>= \int_{T_n} P(x) f(x) - \sum_{\lambda=1}^N \sum_{|\alpha| \le r} c_{\lambda}^{\alpha} f^{(\alpha)}(x_{\lambda})$$

$$\tag{2}$$

is the error functional of the formula (1).

Definition 1. The space $W_2^{(m)}(T_n)$ is defined as linear normed space consisting of functions f with the norm [2]

$$\left\| f \middle/ W_2^{(m)}(T_n) \right\|^2 = \left(\int_{T_n} |f(x)| \, dx \right)^2 + \left\| f \middle/ L_2^{(m)}(T_n) \right\|^2.$$

Theorem 1. There exists the best cubature formulas of the form (1) on the space $W_2^m(T_n)$ if $\frac{n}{2}$ is not integer number. **Definition 2.** The cubature formula with the error functional $\ell \in \tilde{L}(N)$ is called the best periodic if $\left\| \ell / \tilde{W}_2^{(m)^*} \right\| = J(N)$, where $\tilde{J}(N) = \inf_{\ell \in \tilde{L}(N)} \left\{ \left\| \ell / \tilde{W}_2^{(m)^*} \right\| \right\}$.

Theorem 2. The best periodic cubature formulas of the form (1) in $\tilde{W}_2^{(m)}$ exist if n/2 is not integer.

References

[2] S.L. Sobolev. Introduction to the Theory of Cubature Formulas // Moscow, Nauka, 1974.

B.D. Bojanov. Existence of Optimal Quadrature Formulas with Given Multiplicity of the Nodes // Math., No.3, 1978.




THE SOLUTION OF THE PARAMETRIC INVERSE PROBLEM OF STOCHASTIC **OPTIMAL CONTROL**

Kanat Shakenov

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Space Researches Institute, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:shakenov2000@mail.ru

We consider PDF-parameters estimating a problem. The problem has additional control parameter. This parameter perhaps can be randomly chosen. Let f(y|x,z) is PDF relative to measure function $\mu(dy)$ and depends on two parameters: x, z, where $x \in X \subset E_l$, respectively $y \subset E_k, z \in Z \subset E_k$, E_l and E_k is l - dimensional and k - dimensional Euclidean spaces, the parameter $x = x_0$ is unknown and estimated by random samples with f PDF. The parameter z is playing role of control. The problem is in determining a random sample of admissible control (plan) $Z_1, Z_2, ...,$ providing quality test $\mathbf{E}(x_n - x_0)^2 \to \min$.

NECESSARY CONDITIONS OF OPTIMALITY IN THE SYSTEMS WITH **IMPULSE INFLUENCES**

Sh.Sh. Yusubov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan

In this research we consider minimization of the functional

$$S(u_1, v_1, \dots, u_n, v_n) = G_n(x_n(\theta_n^{m_n - 1}), x_n(\theta_n))$$

with restrictions

$$\dot{x}_{i}(t) = f_{i}(t, x_{i}(t), u_{i}(t), v_{i}(t)), t \in [\theta_{i-1}, \theta_{i}], i = \overline{1, n},$$
$$x_{i+1}(\theta_{i}) = G_{i}(x_{i}, (\theta_{i}^{1}), \dots, x_{i}(\theta_{i}^{m_{i}-1}), x_{i}(\theta_{i})), i = \overline{1, n-1},$$

$$x_i(\theta_0) = x_0$$

Here $f_i(t, x_i(t), u_i(t), v_i(t))$ are given n_i -dimensional vector functions, continuous in $[\theta_{i-1}, \theta_i] \times \mathbb{R}^{n_i} \times \mathbb{R}^{n_i}$ $\times R^{r_i} \times R^{k_i}$ together with its partial derivatives with respect to x_i, u_i, v_i up to second order; - given n_{i+1} -dimensional two times continuously differentiable vector-functions; $G_n(z_1, ..., z_{m_n})$ - given twotimes continuously differentiable function, $x_0 \in \mathbb{R}^{n_i}$ -given point;

 $\begin{array}{l} \theta_0, \theta_i, \dots, \theta_n(t_0 = \theta_0 < \theta_i < , ,, \theta_{n-1} < \theta_n = T) \text{-fixed time moments;} \\ \theta_i^1 \in (\theta_{i-1}, \theta_i], \ i = \overline{1, n}, \ j = \overline{1, m_i}(\theta_{i-1} < \theta_i^1 < \dots < \theta_i^{m_i - 1_i} < \theta_i^{m_i} = \theta_i) \text{-given points, } u_i(t), v_i(t)) - (r, Tk,) \text{- dimensional piece-wise vector functions of the controlling influences with values from given points.} \end{array}$ sets $U_i \times V \subset \mathbb{R}^{r_1} \times \mathbb{R}^{k_2}$, moreover $u_i(t) \in U \subset \mathbb{R}^{r_i}$, $v_i(t) \in V_i \subset \mathbb{R}^{k_i}$, $t \in [\theta_{i-1}, \theta_i]$, $i = \overline{1, n-1}$ given points, U-bounded, V- bounded convex sets. Various type first and second order conditions of optimality are obtained for the considered problem.







OPTIMAL PROBLEM FOR THE CONTROL IMPULSIVE SYSTEMS WITH NONLOCAL CONDITIONS

Y.A. Sharifov Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:sharifov22@rambler.ru

Impulsive equations arise from many different real processes and phenomena which appeared in physics, chemical technology, population dynamics, medicine and economics.

On the other hand, boundary problems with nonlocal conditions are appropriate models for describing a lot of natural phenomena, which cannot be described using classical Cauchy or boundary problems. In this report we consider the following optimal control problem, which described by impulsive differential equation with non-local conditions: to find a $\operatorname{control}(u(\cdot), [v]) \subset U \times V$ that minimizes the cost functional

$$J(u, [v]) = \Phi(x(0), x(T))$$
(1)

on the solutions of the following impulsive differential equations with nonlocal conditions

$$\begin{cases} x'(t) = f(t, x(t), u(t)), 0 \le t \le T, t \ne t_i, \\ Ax(0) + Bx(T) = C, \\ \Delta x(t_i) = I_i(x(t_i), v_i), i = 1, 2, ..., p; 0 < t_1 < t_2 < ... < t_p < T, \end{cases}$$
(2)

$$(u(\cdot), [v]) \in U \times V \subseteq L_2[0, T] \times L_{2p}, \tag{3}$$

where f is a continuous function; $A, B \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times n}, C \in \mathbb{R}^n, \Delta x(t_i) = x(t_i^+) - x(t_i^-), I_i$ are some functions, $x(t) \in \mathbb{R}^n, (u(\cdot), [v])$ -are state and control of the system, correspondingly.

We list out the following hypotheses:

(H1) det $(A+B) \neq 0$

(H2) $f: [0,T] \times R^n \times R^r \to R^n, I_i: R^n \times R^{r_i} \to R^n, i = 1, 2, ..., p$ -are continuous and there exists constants $K > 0, L_i > 0, i = 1, 2, ..., p$, such that

$$|f(t, x, u) - f(t, y, u)| \le K |x - y|, t \in [0, T], x, y \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$$

$$|I_i(x,v) - I_i(y,v)| \le L_i |x - y|, x, y \in \mathbb{R}^n$$

(H3) $L = \max\left\{ \left\| (A + B)^{-1} A \right\|, \left\| (A + B)^{-1} B \right\| \right\} \left[KT + \sum_{i=1}^P L_i \right] < 1.$

It is proved that if assumptions (H1)-(H3) are satisfied, then for every $C \in \mathbb{R}^n$, the equation (1) has a unique solution on [0, T]. The formula of gradient for the functional was derived. Necessary conditions of optimality have been obtained.







ON NEW EFFECTS OF CONSTANT DELAYS IN VARIATION FORMULAS AND OPTIMALITY CONDITIONS¹

Tamaz Tadumadze

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Tbilisi State University, Tbilisi, Georgia

e-mail:tamaztad@yahoo.com

Let E_f be the space of functions f(t, x, p, z) continuous on $[a, b] \times R_x^n \times R_p^k \times R_z^m$ and continuously differentiable with respect to (x, p, z), where k + m = n; let $0 < \tau_1 < \tau_2, 0 < \sigma_1 < \sigma_2$ be given numbers, E_{φ} and E_g be spaces of continuously differentiable functions $\varphi : [\hat{\tau}, b] \to R_p^k$ and $g : [\hat{\tau}, b] \to R_z^m$, where $\hat{\tau} = a - \max\{\tau_2, \sigma_2\}$. To any element $\mu = (t_0, \tau, \sigma, p_0, \varphi, g, f) \in E_{\mu} = (a, b) \times (\tau_1, \tau_2) \times (\sigma_1, \sigma_2) \times R_p^k \times E_{\varphi} \times E_g \times E_f$, we assign the delay functional-differential equation

$$\dot{x}(t) = (\dot{p}(t), \dot{z}(t))^T = f(t, x(t), p(t - \tau), z(t - \sigma)),$$
(1)

with the initial condition

x

$$(t) = (\varphi(t), g(t))^T, t \in [\hat{\tau}, t_0), x(t_0) = (p_0, g(t_0))^T.$$
(2)

A function $x(t;\mu), t \in [\hat{\tau}, t_1], t_1 \in (t_0, b]$, is called a solution of equation (1) with the condition (2) or a solution corresponding to μ , if it satisfies condition (2) and on $[t_0, t_1]$ satisfies equation (1). Let $\mu_0 = (t_{00}, \tau_0, \sigma_0, p_{00}, \varphi_0, g_0, f_0) \in E_{\mu}$ and $x(t;\mu_0)$ be solution defined on $[\hat{\tau}, t_{10}]$. We introduce the set of variations $V = \{\delta\mu = (\delta t_0, \delta\tau, \delta\sigma, \delta p_0, \delta\varphi, \delta g, \delta f) \in E_{\mu} - \mu_0 : | \delta t_0 | \leq \alpha, | \delta\tau | \leq \alpha, | \delta\sigma | \leq \alpha, | \delta p_0 | \leq \alpha, \delta\varphi = \sum_{i=1}^{\nu} \lambda_i \delta\varphi_i, \delta g = \sum_{i=1}^{\nu} \lambda_i \delta g_i, \delta f = \sum_{i=1}^{\nu} \lambda_i \delta f_i, | \lambda_i | \leq \alpha, i = \overline{1,\nu} \}$, where $\delta\varphi_i \in E_{\varphi} - \varphi_0, \delta g_i \in E_g - g_0, \delta f_i \in E_f - f_0, i = \overline{1,\nu}$ are fixed functions, $\alpha > 0$ is a fixed number.

Theorem. Let $t_{00} + \tau_0 < t_{10}$, then there exist $\varepsilon_1 > 0$ and $\delta > 0$ such that $x(t; \mu_0 + \varepsilon \delta \mu) = x(t; \mu_0) + \varepsilon \delta x(t; \delta \mu) + o(t; \varepsilon \delta \mu), \forall (t, \varepsilon, \delta \mu) \in [t_{10} - \delta, t_{10}] \times [0, \varepsilon_1] \times V$, where

$$\delta x(t;\delta\mu) = \left[Y(t_{00};t)\{(\Theta_{k\times 1},\dot{g}_{0}(t_{00}))^{T} - f_{0}[t_{00}]\} - Y(t_{00} + \tau_{0};t)f_{01}\right]\delta t_{0} + Y(t_{00};t)(\delta p_{0},\delta g(t_{00}))^{T} \\ - \left\{Y(t_{00} + \tau_{0};t)f_{01} + \int_{t_{00}}^{t} Y(s;t)f_{0p}[s]\dot{p}_{0}(s - \tau_{0})ds\right\}^{*}\delta\tau - \left\{\int_{t_{00}}^{t} Y(s;t)f_{0z}[s]\dot{z}_{0}(s - \sigma_{0})ds\right\}^{**}\delta\sigma \\ + \int_{t_{00}}^{t} Y(s;t)\delta f[s]ds + \int_{t_{00}-\tau_{0}}^{t_{00}} Y(s + \tau_{0};t)f_{0p}[s + \tau_{0}]\delta\varphi(s)ds + \int_{t_{00}-\sigma_{0}}^{t_{00}} Y(s + \sigma_{0};t)f_{0z}[s + \sigma_{0}]\delta g(s)ds, (3)$$

 $\begin{aligned} f_0[s] &= f_0(s, x_0(s), p_0(s - \tau_0), z_0(s - \sigma_0)), f_{01} = f_0[t_{00} + \tau_0] - f_0(t_{00} + \tau_0, x_0(t_{00} + \tau_0), \varphi_0(t_{00}), z_0(t_{00} + \tau_0 - \sigma_0)); \\ \Theta_{k \times 1} \text{ is the } k \times 1 \text{- zero matrix, } Y(s; t) \text{ is a matrix function satisfying the equation } Y_s(s; t) = -Y(s; t) f_{0x}[s] - (Y(s + \tau_0; t) f_{0p}[s + \tau_0], Y(s + \sigma_0; t) f_{0z}[s + \sigma_0]), s \in [t_{00}, t] \text{ and the conditions } Y(t; t) = I, Y(s; t) = \Theta_{n \times n}, s > t; I \text{ is the identity matrix.} \end{aligned}$

The expression (3) is called the variation formula. The expressions *) and **) in (3) are the effects of perturbation of delays τ_0 and σ_0 . Variation formulas for various classes of functional-differential equations without perturbation of delay are given in [1]. Finally, we note that the necessary optimality conditions of delays $\tau \in [\tau_1, \tau_2]$ and $\sigma \in [\sigma_1, \sigma_2]$ are obtained on the basis of variation formula (3).

References

 G.L. Kharatishvili, T.A. Tadumadze. Variation formulas of solutions and optimal control problems for differential equations with retarded argument // J. Math. Sci. (N.Y.), Vol.104, No.1, 2007, pp. 1-175.

¹ This research is supported by the Sh.Rustaveli National Science Foundation (Georgia), Grant No. GNSF/ST08/3-399.





CALCULATION OF THE GRADIENT IN THE PROBLEM OF OPTIMAL CONTROL FOR ONE NON-LOCAL PROBLEM FOR WEAK-LINEAR WAVE EQUATION

H.F. Guliyev, H.T. Tagiyev Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:hkuliyev@rambler.ru, tagiyevh@rambler.ru

Let the controlled process be described in the cylinder $Q = \Omega x(0,T)$ by the equation

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2} - \Delta u = f(x, t, u(x, t), \vartheta(x, t)), \tag{1}$$

with initial conditions

$$u(x,0) = \varphi(x), \frac{\partial u(x,0)}{\partial t} = \psi(x)$$
(2)

and non-local condition

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial \nu}|_{S} = \int_{\Omega} K(x, y) u(y, t) dy, \tag{3}$$

where u(x,t) is a state of the process, $\vartheta(x,t)$ – controlling function, Ω – bounded domain in \mathbb{R}^n with smooth boundary, $\partial\Omega, S = \partial\Omega x(0,T)$ – lateral surface of the cylinder Q. As a class of admissible controls we take the given set from $L_2(Q)$.

The problem is: to find a control from U that together with the corresponding solution of the problem (1)-(3) gives minimum to the functional

$$I(\vartheta) = \int_Q f_0(x, t, u(x, t), \vartheta(x, t)) dx dt.$$
(4)

In the work under natural conditions on the problem data, a formula for the gradient of the functional (4) is obtained.





ON LIMITING ERROR OF INACCURATE INFORMATION AT THE OPTIMUM DISCRETIZATION SOLUTIONS OF THE HEAT OF THE TRIGONOMETRIC FOURIER COEFFICIENTS

G.E. Taugynbaeva Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:galija_1981tau@mail.ru

The reconstruction problem of inaccurate information is put in different formulations (see, eg., [1-4]). In formulation of [3] studied the Cauchy problem for the heat equation

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x_1^2} + \ldots + \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x_s^2} \ (t \ge 0, x \in R^s)$$

with initial conditions

 \succ

$$u(0,x) = f(x), \ x \in \mathbb{R}^s.$$

Indicate a computational aggregate D_N defined as following. Let $\varphi_N(z_1, ..., z_N; x)$ is an arbitrary measurable function on $L^2(0, 1)^s$ At any fixed $z_1, ..., z_N$ (and, of course, $\varphi_N(0, ..., 0; x) \equiv 0$). Let

$$D_N = \left\{ l_1(f) = \hat{f}(m^{(1)}), ..., l_N(f) = \hat{f}(m^{(N)}) : m^{(1)} \in Z^s, ..., m^{(N)} \in Z^s \right\} \times \{\varphi_N\}$$

where $\hat{f}(m)$ - trigonometric Fourier coefficients.

Theorem. Let s(s = 1, 2, ...) be given and r > 3, numerical sequence $\tilde{\varepsilon}_N = \frac{(lnN)^{r(s-1)}}{N^r}$ (N = 1, 2, 3, ...). Then the following relation

$$\delta_N(0) \equiv \delta_N(D_N; \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \Delta u, u(x, 0) = f(x); E_s^r; 0)_{L^2} \succ \prec$$
$$\prec \delta_N(D_N; \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \Delta u, u(x, 0) = f(x); E_s^r; \tilde{\varepsilon}_N = \frac{(lnN)^{r(s-1)}}{N^r})_{L^2} \succ \prec \tilde{\varepsilon}_N \sqrt{N} = \frac{(lnN)^{r(s-1)}}{N^{r-\frac{1}{2}}}$$

valid, for any tending to $+\infty$ positive sequence $\{\eta_N\}_{N=1}^{\infty}$ the equality

$$\frac{1}{\lim_{N \to \infty}} \frac{\delta_N \left(D_N; \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \Delta u, u(x, 0) = f(x); E_s^r; \tilde{\varepsilon}_N \eta_N = \frac{(\ln N)^{r(s-1)}}{N^r} \eta_N \right)_{L^2}}{\delta_N \left(D_N; \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \Delta u, u(x, 0) = f(x); E_s^r; \tilde{\varepsilon}_N = \frac{(\ln N)^{r(s-1)}}{N^r} \right)_{L^2}} = +\infty.$$

- [1] L.Plaskota. Noisy information and computational complexity // Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 1996.
- [2] N. D. Vysk, K.Yu. Osipenko. Optimal reconstruction of the solution of the vawe equation over non-complite initial data// Mat. zametki, Vol.81, No.6, 2007, pp.803-815.
- [3] N. Temirgaliev. Calculational crossing. Algebraic number theory and harmonic anlysis in the problems of reconstruction quasi Monte-Karlo method // Embedding theory and approximations // Vest.ENU named after N.Gumileva, 2010.
- [4] Sh. K. Abikenova, N.Temirgaliev. On a exact order of the information power of all possible linear fixed by discretization of the solution of the vawe equation//Diff. Equation, Vol.46, No.8, 2010, pp.1201-1204.





OPTIMAL CONTROL OF A CLASS OF DISTRIBUTED PARAMETER SYSTEMS WITH MOVING SOURCES

Rafig A.Taymurov

Sumgait Branch of Azerbaijan Teachers Institute, Sumgait, Azerbaijan e-mail:rafiqt@mail.ru

Let the condition operated object is described by functions u(x,t) and s(t), moreover functions u(x,t) in domain $\Omega = \{0 < x < l, 0 < t \le T\}$ satisfies to the equation of parabolic type

$$u_t = a^2 u_{xx} + \sum_{k=1}^n p_k(t)\delta(x - s_k(t)),$$
(1)

with initial and boundary conditions

$$u_x|_{x=0} = 0, \ u_x|_{x=l} = 0, \ 0 < t \le T,$$
(2)

$$u(x,o) = \varphi(x), 0 \le x \le l, \tag{3}$$

where a, l, T > 0 are given numbers; $\varphi(x) \in L_2(0, l)$ -is the known function; $\delta(\cdot)$ - Dirac's function; $p(t) = (p_1(t), p_2(t), ..., p_n(t)) \in L_2(0, T)$ is the control function. The function $s(t) = (s_1(t), s_2(t), ..., s_n(t)) \in H^1(0, T)$ is supposed the solution of the following problem of Kosher

$$\dot{s}(t) = f(s,\vartheta,t), 0 < t \le T, s(o) = s_0, \tag{4}$$

where s_0 -is the given real number; $\vartheta = \vartheta(t) = (\vartheta_1(t), \vartheta_2(t), ..., \vartheta_r(t)) \in L_2(0, T)$ - is the control function; function $f(s, \vartheta, t) = (f_1(s, \vartheta, t), f_2(s, \vartheta, t), ..., f_n(s, \vartheta, t))$ is continuous, has continuous derivatives on s and ϑ at $(s, \vartheta, t) \in E^n \times E^r \times [o, T](s, \vartheta, t) \in E^n \times E^r \times [o, T]$ and they are limited: $|f_\vartheta(s, \vartheta, t)| \leq M_\vartheta$, $|f_s(s, \vartheta, t)| \leq M_s$.

It is required to find such controls $\bar{\vartheta} = (p(t), \vartheta(t))$ from following set V

$$\bar{\vartheta} \in V = \left\{ \overline{\vartheta} = (p,\vartheta) : p = p(t) = (p_1(t), ..., p_n(t)), \vartheta = \vartheta(t) = (\vartheta_1(t), ..., \vartheta_r(t)), \\ p_i(t) \in L_2(0,T), \vartheta_j(t) \in L_2(o,T), 0 \le p_i(t) \le A_i, 0 \le \vartheta_j(t) \le B_j, i = \overline{1,n}, j = \overline{1,r} \right\},$$
(5)

that the functional

$$J(\overline{\vartheta}) = \int_0^l \int_0^T [u(x,t) - \tilde{u}(x,t)]^2 dx dt + \alpha_1 \sum_{k=1}^n \int_0^T [p_k(t) - \tilde{p}_k(t)]^2 dt + \alpha_2 \sum_{m=1}^r \int_0^T [\vartheta_m(t) - \tilde{\vartheta}_m(t)]^2 dt,$$
(6)

accepted the least possible value at conditions (1)-(4). Here $\alpha_1, \alpha_2 \ge 0, \alpha_1 + \alpha_2 > 0, A_i > 0, i = \overline{1, n}, B_j > 0, j = \overline{1, r}$ are given numbers; $\tilde{u}(x, t) \in L_2(Q), \omega = (\tilde{p}(t), \tilde{\vartheta}(t)) \in H, \tilde{p}(t) = (\tilde{p}_1(t), \tilde{p}_2(t), \dots, \tilde{p}_n(t)) \in L_2(0, T), \ \tilde{\vartheta}(t) = (\tilde{\vartheta}_1(t), \tilde{\vartheta}_2(t), \dots, \tilde{\vartheta}_r(t) \in L_2(0, T))$ - are the known functions.

References

 R.A. Taymurov. About existence and uniqueness of the solution of a problem of optimal control with moving sources // Proceedings of Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics of National Academy of Sciences of Azerbaijan, 2009, Vol.31(39), pp. 219-224.





STATISTICAL MODELLING OF OIL TRANSPORTATION THROUGH THE MAIN PIPELINE

L.V. Topko, Y.A. Zalyubovskaya Pavlodar State University named after S. Toraigyrov, Pavlodar, Kazakhstan e-mail:Ltopko@gmail.com

Statistical modeling of processes for oil transportation through the pipelines taking into account casual parameters is considered in this paper. As casual parameters of ambient temperature, factor of the heat transfer from oil in environment and the empirical factors depending on a mode of a current of oil is considered. Casual parameters are played by the method of Monte-Carlo, then they are used for calculation of model of oil transportation through the pipeline.

Oil movement through the pipeline with diameter D and length L is described by differential equations [1-4]

$$\frac{\partial\theta}{\partial t} + v\frac{\partial\theta}{\partial x} = \frac{4k}{\rho cD}(\theta_e - \theta) + \frac{4W}{\rho c\pi D^2},\tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial P}{\partial x} = -\rho g a \frac{\nu^m}{D^{m+1}} \left(\frac{\pi v}{4}\right)^{2-m} - \rho g \frac{dH_b}{dx}, \ (t,x) \in Q \tag{2}$$

with the initial

$$\theta(0,x) = \theta_0(x), \ x \in (0,L) \tag{3}$$

and boundary conditions

$$\theta(t,0) = \alpha(t), \ P(t,0) = \beta(t), \ t \in (0,T),$$
(4)

where t - time; x - spatial coordinate; $\theta(t,x)$, P(t,x) – temperature and pressure of oil; W = W(t,x) – capacity of electroheating sources.

The basic symbols in the system (1)-(4) are correspondent accepted in [1-4].

The task for choosing the function W(t, x) that minimizes the functionce is set up here:

$$\begin{split} J(W) &= \omega_{\theta} \int_{0}^{T} \int_{0}^{L} (\theta(t,x) - \theta_{*}(x))^{2} dx dt + \omega_{p} \int_{0}^{T} \int_{0}^{L} (P(t,x) - P_{*}(x))^{2} dx dt + \\ &+ \omega \int_{0}^{T} \int_{0}^{L} W^{2}(t,x) dx dt, \end{split}$$

where $\omega_{\theta}, \omega_{P}, \omega > 0$ - weight indicators; $\theta_{*}(x)$, $P_{*}(x)$ - desirable modes of oil transportation. The method of successive approximations and its convergence is applied to the solving of the task for optimal control.

- T.K. Thernyaev, A.K. Galyamov, A.F. Yukin, P.M. Bondarenko. Pipeline oil transportation in difficult service conditions // M.: Nedra, 1990, 232 p.
- [2] B.M. Agapkin, B.L. Krivoshein, V.A. Yufin. Thermal and hydraulic calculations of pipelines for oil and oil products // M.: Nedra, 1981, 256 p.
- [3] M.A. Guseinzade, V.A. Yufin. Unsteady movement of oil and gas in the main pipelines // M.: Nedra, 1981, 232 p.
- [4] A.U. Evseyeva, V.S. Neronov. The mathematical model of the viscoplastic fluids flow through the pipelines // Modeling, Simulation and Control, ser. B, AMSE Press.-France, Paris, Vol.18, No.1, 1988, pp. 31-42.





ON O-MINIMAL LATTICIES

Ernar Bazarov, Viktor Verbovskiy Suleyman Demirel University, Almaty, Kazakhstan, Institute for Problems of Informatics and Conrol, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail: yernarb@yahoo.com, vvv@ipic.kz

Since 1984 o-minimality of totally ordered structures is one of the main branches of model theory. This notion was introduced by A. Pillay and Ch. Steinhorn in [1]. Now this branh of model theory is deeply investigated and has various application to other fields of mathematics. In this work we study o-minimality for partial ordered sets, mainly for lattices. The aim of this work is to describe o-minimal lattices.

Let a < b. By an interval in a lattice L we mean the following sets: $\{c \in L : a < c < b\}$.

Definition. A lattice L is called *o-minimal* if any parametrically definable subset of L is a finite union of intervals and points.

Define the following formulae:

Theorem 1. Each relation E_1 and E_2 is an equivalence relation.

Theorem 2. If L is an o-minimal lattice then the number of finite, but not one-element classes of the equivalence E_i is finite, for i = 1, 2.

Theorem 3. If L is an o-minimal lattice then so is the quotion lattice L/E_1 as well as L/E_2 .

Corollary 4. The number of non-one-element E_2 -classes is finite.

Lemma 5. The number of E_1 -classes which have a minimal (maximal) element is finite.

Lemma 6. Let (a,b) be an interval such that for any $c, d \in (a,b)$ with $\neg E_1(c,d)$ it holds that $a = c \land b$ and $b = c \lor b$. Then the number of E_1 -classes in the interval (a,b) is finite.

Theorem 7. The number of non-one-element E_1 -classes is finite.

References

[1] A. Pillay, Ch. Steinhorn. Definable sets in ordered structures.1 // Trans. Amer. Math. Soc, Vol.295, 1986, pp.565-592.





THE PARAMETRICAL SYNTHESIS TASK OF CONTROL BY THE OBJECTS IN A FUZZY ENVIRONMENT ON THE BASE OF COMMON PARAMETER METHOD

Nadiya R.Yunicheva

Institute for problems of informatics and control, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:naduni@mail.ru

The application of computer facilities and creation of automatic control systems of a various direction is necessary and urgent for development of every possible spheres of human activity at the present stage. Almost in all cases the parametrical uncertainty is characterized by an inhering of real values of parameters of technical object to some intervals, which boundaries are a priori known. Their mathematical models can be presented by systems of interval differential or difference equations with use of rules and notations of the interval analysis. Such object can be considered as family of objects, which is determined by an inhering of parameters of this object with the given interval. It means, that there is a problem of control not only by unique object, but of whole family of objects. The theory of the interval analysis is applied to a solution of the problem also of the analysis of dynamic properties and synthesis of control by a similar class of objects. In considered operation on the basis of common parameter method [1] with multiplicate parametrical tunable and device of the interval analysis the task of parametrical synthesis of control of the interval-given object is solved.

Let's present a required interval vector of tunable parameters **K** from control actions $U(t) = \mathbf{K}^T X(t)$ as follows:

$$U(t) = \beta K_0^T X(t), \tag{1}$$

where $\beta = \beta, \overline{\beta}$ - multiplicate common interval tunable parameter; $K_0 \subseteq \mathbb{R}^n$ - pointwise vector of tunable parameters of system of the algebraic equations of the following form:

$mid\mathbf{P}K_0 = mid\mathbf{H}.$

Consider algebraic inclusion to which solution of the problem of parametrical synthesis is reduced. An interval system of such algebraic inclusion for the algorithm of control (1) is represented as:

$$\mathbf{P}\beta K_0 \subseteq \mathbf{H},\tag{2}$$

or in scalar form:

$$\sum_{j=1}^{n} \mathbf{p_{ij}} k_{0j} \left[\underline{\beta}, \overline{\beta}\right] \subseteq \mathbf{h_i}, \qquad i = \overline{1, n}$$
(3)

We find the solution of the equation (2) in the class of allowable set of solutions. To solve the problem it is necessary to determine such a parameter β which provide the inclusion (2). The following theorem conditions ensure the solution of formulated problem:

Theorem 1. The interval vector $\mathbf{K} = \beta K_0$ provides the following inclusion $\mathbf{P}\beta K_0 \subseteq \mathbf{H}$, if the vector K_0 represents the solution of system of equations $mid[P] K_0 = mid[H]$ and satisfies to the inequality $\sum_{j=1}^{n} rad(\mathbf{p_{ij}}) \cdot k_{0j} \leq rad\mathbf{h_{i}}$, and the common tunable parameter β is determined by the following expression:

$$\beta = \min_{1 \le i \le n} \left\{ \frac{rad\mathbf{h}_i - \sum_{j=1}^n rad\mathbf{p}_{ij} |k_{0j}|}{\sum_{j=1}^n mid |\mathbf{p}_{ij}| |k_{0j}| + rad\mathbf{p}_{ij} |k_{0j}||} \right\}$$

References

 A.A. Ashimov, D.Zh. Syzdykov. Identification by the common parameter method: Reference book on the theory of automatic control // Edited by Krasovsky A.A., M.:Science, 1987, pp.263-271.





TRANSFORMATION OF PROGRAM MOTION'S DEGENERATE AUTOMATIC CONTROL SYSTEMS

Sailaubay S. Zhumatov Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:sailau.math@mail.ru

Let's consider the differential equations' system unsolved with respect to high derivative, arising at constructing of control's systems by given program manifold Ω :

$$H(t, x(t))\dot{x} = -A(t)x - q(t) - b\xi, \ \xi = \varphi(\sigma), \ \sigma = c^T \omega, \ t \in I = (\alpha, \beta),$$
(1)

where $H(t, x(t)) = \partial \omega / \partial x$, $x \in \mathbb{R}^n$, $\omega \in \mathbb{R}^s$, $H \in \mathbb{R}^{s \times n}$, α, β - are finite or infinite numbers, b, c- are vectors, nonlinearity ξ satisfies conditions of local quadratic connections. We examine the case when s = n and matrix H has r zero roots, Erugin's function $F(t, x, \omega) = -A_1(t)\omega$, $\omega \equiv H_1(t)x + g(t) = 0$, $A(t) = -A_1(t)H_1(t)$, where $A_1(t)$ and $H_1(t)$ are given continuous matrices, g(t) is given continuous function, $q(t) = \partial \omega / \partial t + A_1(t)g(t)$.

We consider the problem of finding transformation matrices for the system (1) permissive to reduce to equivalent system.

Theorem 1. Let H(t) and A(t) are absolute continuous matrices bounded together with their first derivatives in the interval I, $rankH(t) = k \forall t \in I$, for all k, 1 < k < s and there is submatrix $H_0(t) \in \mathbb{R}^{k \times k}$ of matrix H(t) satisfying the following conditions

$$\inf[det(H_0(t))] > 0 \quad t \in I, \quad \inf[\partial^r / \partial \lambda^r det(H(t)\lambda + A(t))] > 0 \quad t \in I.$$
(2)

Then for all $t \in I = (\alpha, \beta)$ nonsingular matrices T and S exist such that multiply by T the left hand side and replacing by x = S(t)z the system (1) is reduced to equivalent system, where the matrices T(t) and S(t) are of the form:

$$T(t) = \left\| \begin{array}{cc} E_1 & -C_1(t) \\ O_1 & H_0^{-1}(t) \end{array} \right\|, \ S(t) = \left\| \begin{array}{cc} E_1 & O_2 \\ -C_3(t) & E_0(t) \end{array} \right\|.$$
(3)

We find absolute continuous matrices $C_1(t)$ and $C_3(t)$ bounded together with their derivatives. Hence the matrix H will be represented in bloch form

$$H(t) = \left\| \begin{array}{cc} C_1(t)H_0(t)C_3(t) & C_1(t)H_0(t) \\ H_0(t)C_3(t) & H_0(t) \end{array} \right\|.$$
(4)

Consequently the system (1) is equivalent to the following system

$$F_{1}(t)z_{1} + F_{2}(t)z_{2} = q_{1}(t),$$

$$\dot{z}_{2} = F_{3}(t)z_{1} + F_{2}(t)z_{2} - H_{0}^{-1}(t)q_{2}(t) - B_{2}\xi_{2}, \ \xi = \varphi(\sigma),$$

$$\sigma = P^{T}A_{1}(t)S(t)z + P^{T}g(t),$$
(5)

Here matrix F has the following structure

$$F(t) = T(t)(H(t)\dot{S}(t) + A(t)S(t)).$$
(6)





METHOD OF SOLUTION OF OPTIMAL CONTROL PROBLEM WITH MULTIPOINT BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

M.M. Mutallimov, R.T. Zulfuqarova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:mutallim@mail.ru, renafred@yandex.ru

Assume that the considered process is described by the equation

$$\dot{x}(t) = F(t)x(t) + G(t)U(t) + v(t), t \in [0, T],$$
(1)

with multipoint boundary conditions

$$\sum_{i=0}^{p} \Phi_{i} x\left(t_{i}\right) = q, 0 = t_{0} < t_{1} < \dots < t_{i} < \dots < t_{p-1} < t_{p} = T.$$

$$\tag{2}$$

It needs to minimize the functional

$$J = \frac{1}{2} \int_0^T \left[x'(t)Q(t)x(t) + u'(t)C(t)u(t) \right] dt.$$
(3)

For this purpose, we find the corresponding Euler-Lagrange equations by constructing the expanded functional [1]:

$$\dot{x}(t) = F(t) x(t) - M(t) \lambda(t) + v(t), \quad \dot{\lambda}(t) = -Q(t) x(t) - F'(t) \lambda(t),$$

$$\lambda(t_0) = \lambda(0) = -\Phi'_0 \gamma,$$

$$\lambda(t_i + 0) = \lambda(t_i - 0) - \Phi'_i \gamma, \qquad i = \overline{1, p - 1},$$

$$\lambda(t_p) = \lambda(T) = \Phi'_p \gamma,$$
(4)

where $M(t) = -C^{-1}(t)\lambda'(t)G(i)$, $\lambda(t)$ and the constant γ are Lagrangian multipliers. The unknown function $\lambda(t)$ in (4) is being searched for the form

$$\lambda(t) = S(t)x(t) + N(t)\gamma + \omega(t), \quad t \in [0, p],$$
(5)

where S(t), N(t) and $\omega(t)$ are the discrete functions to be found. By substituting the expression (5) into the equation (6) and after some transformations we obtain the system of equations

$$\dot{S}(t) = -F'(t) S(t) - S(t) F(t) + S(t) M(t) S(t) - Q(t) \dot{N}(t) = [S(t) M(t) - F'(t)] N(t) \dot{\omega}(t) = [S(t) M(t) - F'(t)] \omega(t) - S(t) v(t).$$
(6)

Further n(i) and W(i) are determined from the differential equations

$$\dot{n}(t) = N'(t) M(t) N(t) \dot{W}(t) = N'(t) [M(t) \omega(t) - v(t)].$$
(7)

To find the unknowns x(0) and γ we obtain the system of equations:

$$\begin{bmatrix} S(t_0) & N(t_0+0) + \Phi'_0 \\ \Phi_0 + N'(t_0+0) & \sum_{i=1}^{p-1} n(t_i+0) \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} x(t_0) \\ \gamma \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} -\omega(t_0) \\ q - \sum_{i=0}^{p-1} W(t_i+0) \end{bmatrix}.$$
 (8)

Then the control u(t) is determined in the form $u(t) = C^{-1}(t)G'(t)(S(t)x(t) + N(t)\gamma + \omega(t))$ and x(i) as the solution of the problem $\dot{x}(t) = (F(x) + M(t)S(t))x(t) + M(t)N(t)\gamma + M(t)\omega(t) + v(t)$, with the initial condition $x(0) = x_0$.

References

 A.E. Bryson, Ho Yu-Chi. Applied Optimal Control Optimization, Estimation and Control // London, Waltham, 1972, 412 p.





SECTION VIII Mathematical Modeling

COMPUTATIONAL ISSUES IN THE SYNTHESIS OF PARALLEL MECHANISMS FOR THE MODELING OF ARTICULAR HUMAN JOINTS

Nicola Sancisi, Vincenzo Parenti-Castelli Department of Mechanical Engineering - University of Bologna, Italy e-mail:nicola.sancisiQunibo.it, vincenzo.parentiQunibo.it

Mathematical models of human articular joints proved to be of great theoretical and practical relevance. They play, indeed, a fundamental role in many important issues such as preplanning surgical operations, diagnosis procedures and prosthesis design. Many planar and spatial models have been proposed in the literature. Planar models are generally simpler but they provide very limited information, especially for the design of advanced (sophisticated) prostheses. On the other hand, spatial models are very involved and quite often the model results are not easy to be used practically. Recently, we developed a procedure which aims at defining human joint models that can take into account the main (and many) anatomical structures of the joint such as ligaments and articular bone surfaces. The models are based on the use of equivalent spatial parallel mechanisms that mimic both the joint anatomical structures and the joint motion. The procedure to synthesize these mechanisms has however some critical points which deserve a great attention in order to be successfully overcome. This study focuses on the main mathematical issues involved in the procedure and on the strategies the authors have devised in order to overcome these problems and let the algorithms to be stable and efficient. In particular, the treated issues are the avoidance of singularity problems in the solution of non-linear systems for the synthesis of the equivalent mechanisms, and the definition of efficient algorithms to converge to a satisfactory solution by recursive optimization procedures. Examples are reported for the definition of joint models of the lower limb (knee and ankle) that show the efficiency of the adopted strategies.





MATHEMATICAL MODELING OF THE PROBLEMS RELATED TO THE EFFECTS OF THE MULTI-PARAMETRIC, MULTI-SCALE AND SINGULARITY IN PHYSICS, CLIMATOLOGY AND ECONOMY

R.I. Nigmatulin

P.P Shirshof Institute of Oceanology, L.M. Lomonosov Moscow State University, Moscow, Russia

The formation of the multi-parametric, multi-scale and singularity effects with respect to the problems related to the behavior of the spherical bubble cluster in acoustical field, in ocean flow and economical distribution of the consumption of the energy and cash income are investigated.

The enlargement (in the case where the acoustical pressure is negative) and collapse (in the case where the acoustical pressure is positive) processes of the steam cavitations cluster are characterized with the huge change of the problem parameters: the pressure changes from 0 up to 10^{11} bar; temperature T changes from 10^2 up to $10^8 K$, velocity changes from 1 up to $10^5 m/c$. Micro-shock waves, heat transfer, evaporation, condensation, dissociation and ionization of steam accompany these processes. The plasma is formed at moment of convergence of micro-shock waves in center of the bubble, according to which, the corresponding conditions for appearing of the thermonuclear reaction may be realized. Within this scope, the bubble can be taken as hydrogen bomb.

Analyzes show that in the cases where the maximal radius of the bubble is about 0.7 mm the conditions for the thermonuclear reaction realize in the central nucleus of the imploding bubble the radius of which is about 100 nm during the 100 sec. In this case the liquid which is on the surface of the phase interface has a high pressure (about $10^5 - 10^6 \text{ bar}$) during, approximately, 10^{-9} sec. The characteristic scale of a time for the one extension-compression cycle is equal, approximately, to $5 - 10^{-5}$ sec from which the multi-scale character of the considered phenomenon follows.

Numerical results show that within the scope of the foregoing conditions 10 neutrons appear because of the collapse of the micro-bubble. In experiments with deuterated acetone (C_3D_6O) in the ultrasonic acoustic field it can be provide the appearing about 10^4 collapses during one second by the use of the light flashes, at the same time, there are about $10 - 10^2$ collapsed micro-bubble in the cluster. Therefore, theoretical results agree with the flux measurements of the fusion neutrons and with the intensity of the appearance of the tritium nuclei $(5 \times 10^5 \ sec^{-1})$.

Analyzes show that significant resources preservation of the spherically symmetric collapse of the micro-bubbles is caused by the viscosity of fluid and by the high density of the steam in the compressed bubble.

Further, it is considered the multi-scale processes with singularity in the two-phase systems consisting of ocean and atmosphere which influences on the climatologically changes, in particular, on the global warming.

Finally, it is shown that as singularity or abnormally concentration of the cash income in the hand of a small proportion (0.1 - 1%) of the population leads not only to obstruction of the development of productive forces, but also to degradation of their.





GENERAL PROBLEM OF MODELING AND CONTROL OF GAS-LIFT PROCESS

Fikret A. Aliev, Navazi A. Ismailov, Mirmemmed F. Radjabov, Nargiz A. Safarova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:F_aliev@yahoo.com

As is known [1], when exploitation of the oil way by gushing way finishes - the second stage of the oil well exploitation gas-lift method is used. Despite of wide application of this method, till now their precise mathematical model and solution methods of the corresponding problems (control and stabilization) are absent. However some problems have been considered. For example, in [2] the problems of control of the movement of gas and gas-liquid mixtures in ring and elevating pipes are investigated at replacement of properties of the layer by the corresponding impulse equation, in [3], the properties and characteristics of the layer are studied. All these and others approaches do not allow one to represent the real description of the gas-lift process. In our opinion it is connected by the fact that the real factors of the layer are not taken into account.

In the present work the movement in the layer which is described by the essentially nonlinear partial differential equations is identified by the ordinary linear differential equation [4]. It carried out by the methods of least squares and unconditional minimization [5]. Further instead of the impulse equations which are included in the well+layer system, the identified equation is taken that allows one to develop complete mathematical model of gas-lift process. As such system has a variable structure, the application of known methods meet some serious difficulties [6]. Therefore describing the condition of compatibility in a top and bottom, and also in the exit the problems of choice of the optimal rejime, i.e. the problems of control of gas-lift are put. Further the algorithm to the solution of the given problem, i.e. the problem of linear - square-law control is offered. The results are illustrated on the concrete example.

References

- A.H. Mirzadzhanzadeh, I.M. Ahmetov, A.M. Hasaev, V.I. Gusev. Technique and Technology of Oil Exploitation Under edition of acad. A.H.Mirzadzhanzadeh, M., Nedra, 1986, 382 p.
- [2] F.A. Aliev, M.H. Ilyasov, N.B. Nuriev. The problem of mathematical modeling, optimization and control of gas-lift. Reports of NAS of Azerbaijan, 2009, No.2, pp. 43-57.
- [3] M.T. Abbasov, F.G. Orudjaliev, M.A. Djamalbekov. Scientific basis gas condensate reservoirs development in deformed reservoir rocks?

Proceedings of the II Symposium on Mining Chemistry Vise grad., Hungary, October, 1986, pp. 187-206.

[4] F.A. Aliev, N.A. Ismailov. Optimization of periodic systems with the feedback on a target variable // Reports of Academy of Sciences of Az. SSR, Vol.64, No.4, 1988, pp. 3-6.





THE CALCULATION OF THE LONGITUDINAL-TRANSVERSE SPECTRUM BASED ON NUMERICAL SOLUTIONS OF THE NAVIER-STOKES EQUATION

B.T. Zhumagulov, D.B. Zhakebayev, A.U. Abdibekov, A.N. Abdigaliyeva Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:daurjaz@mail.ru

In this work the influence of the impact of the strain flow associated with a change of the Reynolds number on the characteristics of isotropic turbulence, and the process of degeneration of isotropic turbulence is considered. Characteristics of turbulence of gas flow or liquid have a great importance for many technical devices [1].

The calculation of the longitudinal-transverse three dimensional energetic spectrum of degeneracy of homogeneous isotropic turbulence is usually produced on the basis of spectral equations and the von Karman-Howarth's equation, for the closure of which it is necessary to determine the correlation functions. When calculating the energy spectrum, is reduced to computational complexity.

In this paper, this problem is solved on the basis of the numerical solution of three-dimensional Navier-Stokes equation by large eddy method on the high-performance cluster. The idea was concluded in specify in the phase space of initial conditions for the velocity field, which satisfies the condition of continuity. At the same time main spectral equation is not solved, and given initial condition with phase space translates into the physical space using a Fourier transform. Obtained velocity field is used as an initial condition for the filtered Navier-Stokes equation. Then we solve three-dimensional nonstationary Navier-Stokes equation for modeling of the degeneration of isotropic turbulence.

To solve the Navier-Stokes equation splitting scheme is used by physical parameters, which consists of three stages. In the first stage Navier-Stokes equation without pressure is solved. To approximate the convective and diffusion terms of this equation compact scheme of high order accuracy is use. In the second stage is solved Poisson's equation, obtained from the continuity equation, taking into account the velocity field from the first stage. For solving the three-dimensional Poisson equation an original algorithm is developed for solving - the spectral transformation in combination with a matrix factorization [2, 3]. The resulting pressure field in the third stage is used to recalculate the final velocity field.

Proposed numerical algorithm allows to calculate changing in the characteristics of isotropic turbulence with high Reynolds numbers. Analyzing the results of modeling can make the following conclusion: One dimensional spectra of the fields were non-negative and monotone, which corresponds to the requirements of the Khinchin's theorem. The viscosity of the flow have a significant effect on the turbulence and therefore can be used for control the turbulence. The obtained results allow us to calculate precisely changing in the characteristics of isotropic turbulence in time, at high Reynolds numbers.

Thus, based on the solution of the Navier-Stokes equations has been constructed a numerical algorithm, allowed to accurately calculate changing in the longitudinal-transverse energy spectrum.

- [1] A.C. Monin, A.M. Yaglom. Statistical Hydromechanics, Part 2. // Moscow: Nauka, 1967. 720 p.
- [2] U.S. Abdibekov, B.T. Zhumagulov. Surapbergenov B.D.: Numerical simulation of turbulent flows by large eddy method // Computational Technologies. Vol.12, No.4, 2007. pp. 4-9.
- [3] N.T. Danaev, D.B. Zhakebaev, A.U. Abdibekov. Algorithm for solving non-stationary three-dimensional Navier-Stokes equations with large Reynolds numbers on multiprocessor systems // Notes on Numerical Fluid Mechanics and Multidisciplinary Design., Vol.115, 2011, pp. 327-338.





FORECASTING OF THE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES OF PERSPECTIVE QAS CONDENSATE STRUCTURES WITH THE HELP OF HYDRODYNAMICAL MODEL

V.D.Abdullaev SRPI "Petrogas" SOCAR, Baku, Azerbaijan

Both operations of exploitation of old gas condensate deposits, and research and development of the new perspective gas condensate structures is very important branch of the modern oil-gas industry. But, introduction to exploitation of the new structures, drilling of wells, development and introduction of various methods, etc. are accompanied by colossal financial costs. Therefore, the creation of the development project, forecasting of multiple prospective parameters (including technical and economic) development of such structures before the industrial development is of great importance. The purpose of the development projecting of the oil deposits is the formation and the choice of variants of developing of the productive layers, providing the efficiency of the exploitation of the deposits. One of the basic directions oriented to achievement of this purpose, is the modeling of the deposits, allowing to imitate the exploitation at the various variants. The modeling allows the engineer to understand the geology of a layer and to predict its behavior, quantitatively and qualitatively to estimate the reaction of layers on various technological decisions at various scripts of development. Forecasting of behavior of the layer is used for the solution of the problems connected to planning, exploitation and diagnostics at all stages of the deposits development. Therefore, the modeling and forecasting of various activities with the help of modern software products, is the basic part of the projecting of the development of oil and gas deposits.

In the given work, by using of the software package "VIP", hydro dynamical models of three new gas-condensate structures - A, D and B, situated in the Azerbaijan sector of Caspian Sea and having the huge hydrocarbon stocks are constructed. Analyzed the various variants of development and are predicted parameters of development.

By using of the interpreted seismic data the geological models of structures A, D and B have been constructed, and then on the basis of these models hydro dynamical models have been constructed.

In the future, using the results of physic-chemical and thermodynamic researches spent on samples taken from the received extraction, we can precise the calculations and give more precise forecast of development and exploitation of deposits.

- [2] Tarek Ahmed. Reservoir Engineering Handbook // Houston, Gulf Professional Publishing Company, 2001, 1186 p.
- [3] R.D. Kanevskaya. Mathematical Modeling of Hydromechanical Processes of Development of Deposits of Hydrocarbons // Institute of computer researches, Moscow, Izhevsk, 2002, 140 p.

Coats, H. Keith. Simulation of Gas Condensate Reservoir Performance // Journal of Petroleum Technology, Oct., No.2, 1985, pp. 1870-1886.





RATIONALE OF THE MODEL OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES SPREAD IN LOWER LAYER OF ATMOSPHERE

G.A. Aidosov, B. Bakirbaev KazTransGazAymak, Taraz State Pedagogical Institute, Almaty, Taraz, Kazakhstan e-mail:Allayarbek@mail.ru

In the layer of air above the earth's surface with a thickness of 10 to 100 m-called Ground-layer, all the meteorological elements have maximum gradients and the relative constancy of the height of the turbulent potokov. Pri certain meteorological conditions, even small emissions can create unfavorable environmental conditions in human settlements. Even more dangerous is the natural and manmade disasters, which may result in large-scale pollution of the environment^[1-3]. A pilot study of these phenomena is expensive and in some cases it is not possible to conduct a complete physical simulation of interest theoretical research methods - methods of mathematical, modeling. Mathematical models can be divided into two classes: deterministic and stochastic (probabilistic). In this paper, the model only the first type. Mathematical modeling using a deterministic approach that includes the following steps [3]: 1. Physical analysis of the phenomenon under study and the establishment of a physical model of the object. 2. Determination of the reaction medium properties, transport coefficients and structural parameters of the medium and the withdrawal of the basic system of equations with appropriate initial and boundary conditions. 3. The choice of method of numerical or analytical method for solving boundary-value problem. 4. Obtaining a discrete analogue for the corresponding system of equations, if you want a numerical solution. 5. The choice of method used to obtain solutions for the discrete analogue. 6. Develop a program for calculating computer. Test validation program for calculation. Obtaining a numerical solution of differential equations. 7. Comparing the results with known experimental data, their physical interpretation. Parametric study of the object. The main requirement for a mathematical model - the consistency of the results of numerical analysis with experimental data. To perform this sufficient condition requires that:- in the mathematical model were carried out fundamental laws of conservation of mass, energy and momentum; - mathematical model correctly captures the essence of the phenomenon under study. In general, we have to solve timedependent spatial tasks that require considerable effort in preparing the programs for calculating and sufficiently powerful computers. To overcome the above problems in setting targets used reasonable assumptions, no significant effect on the result of calculations for the task. Thus, by constructing a mathematical model (in the surface layer of the atmosphere in the aquatic environment, etc.) you can explore the dynamics of the pollution under the influence of various external conditions (air temperature, wind speed, temperature stratification in the atmosphere, etc.) as well as the parameters of the source of contamination. Comparing these data with the established maximum - allowable concentrations (MACs), we can analyze the pollution levels of various components at different time points and suggest ways to reduce the concentration of air pollution.

- A.A. Aidos, G.A. Aidos, N.S.Zaurbekov. Models of Ecological Conditions of the Environment Under Real Atmospheric Processes And Almaty // INDA, 2010, 308 p.
- [2] G.A. Aidos, N.S. Zaurbekov. Mathematical models of transport and dispersion of harmful substances in the atmosphere, taking into account orography earth's surface and gravity field // Proceedings of the International Conference on the propagation of elastic and elastic waves, the 100th anniversary J.A. Rakhmatulina, Bishkek, 2009, pp. 234-236.
- [3] A.A. Aidos, G.A. Aidos. Theoretical Foundations of Forecasting Natural Processes and Ecological Conditions of the Environment // Book 1, The theoretical foundations of forecasting of atmospheric processes and environmental conditions of the environment, Almaty, Kazakh University, 2000, 2 p.





MATHEMATICAL MODELLING HEAT AND MASS EXCHANGE PROCESSES IN POROUS MEDIA

D.Zh. Akhmed-Zaki, N.T. Danaev, B. Matkerim Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:darhan_a@mail.ru

Very many researches of the world in the field of the theory of a filtration with a sufficient set of those or other mathematical models and various approaches of their decision, but unfortunately in a reality by development of oil fields and gas there are more complex variants of course of processes of a filtration in view of kinetics heat exchange, mass exchange, etc., that is natural on a straight line influences the technological scheme of object operation. The basic moments are reduction of problems of a nonequilibrium filtration problems with free (unknown) boundaries of Stefan and Verigin type's. Last fact is justified by the fact that, having information on well-boring to restore boundary of considered area. It is known, that the boundary or a part of boundary can vary gradient of temperature or gradient of pressure [1,2].

The problem of a nonequilibrium filtration is considered, following statement. In the bounded domain Ω with piece - smooth boundary $\equiv \partial \Omega$, consider

$$\vec{u}_{i} = -\frac{K_{0}f_{i}}{\mu_{i}}\nabla p\left(i=1,2\right), \quad mH\frac{\partial s}{\partial t} + \operatorname{div}\left(H\vec{u}_{1}\right) = 0, \quad -mH\frac{\partial s}{\partial t} + \operatorname{div}\left(H\vec{u}_{2}\right) = 0, \quad s+s_{1} = 1,$$

$$mH\frac{\partial}{\partial t}\left[c_{1}s + (1-s)c_{2}\right] + H\frac{\partial a}{\partial t} + \operatorname{div}\left(Hc_{1}\vec{u}_{1}\right) + \operatorname{div}\left(Hc_{2}\vec{u}_{2}\right) = r, \quad (1)$$

$$H\frac{\partial((1-m)\rho_{0}C_{0}T_{p})}{\partial t} + H\frac{\partial(m(\rho_{1}C_{1}s\tilde{c}_{1}+\rho_{2}C_{2}s_{1}\tilde{c}_{2})T)}{\partial t} + \\ \operatorname{div}\left(H(\rho_{1}C_{1}v_{1}\tilde{c}_{1}+\rho_{2}C_{2}v_{2}\tilde{c}_{2})\cdot T\right) + H(\rho_{1}C_{1}v_{1}\varepsilon_{1}+\rho_{2}C_{2}v_{2}\varepsilon_{2})\cdot\nabla(p)$$

$$= \operatorname{div}\left(H\left(\bar{\lambda}(s,T,\tilde{c}_{1},\tilde{c}_{2})\nabla T + \bar{\lambda}_{0}(T_{p})\nabla T_{p}\right)\right) - 2\sqrt{\frac{\lambda_{3}C_{3}}{\pi \cdot t}}\rho_{3}(T_{p}+t\frac{\partial T_{p}}{\partial t}),$$

with the equations of heat and mass exchange kinetics in the porous medium:

$$\alpha_T \frac{\partial T_p}{\partial t} = \eta(T) - T_p, \quad \frac{\partial a}{\partial t} = \frac{1}{\tau} \cdot (G(c) - a), \qquad (2)$$

where taking $c_1 = c$ and $c_2 = \varphi(c)$ the functions $\eta(T)$ and G(c) are defined as,

$$\eta(T) \equiv T, \quad G(c) = \begin{cases} 1, & c > c* \\ [0,1], & c = c* \\ 0, & c < c* \end{cases}$$
(3)

$$s\big|_{t=0} = s_0(x), \ c\big|_{t=0} = c_0(x), \ a\big|_{t=0} = a_0(x), \ T\big|_{t=0} = T_0(x),$$
 (4)

$$(P, S, \theta) = (P_0, S_0, \theta_0), \quad -D \cdot \frac{\partial c}{\partial n} + \vec{v}_{1n} \cdot c = q_n \cdot c^*, \quad (x, t) \in \Sigma^1 = \Gamma^1 \times [0, \bar{t}], \tag{5}$$

where q_n - set of charge on unit of the area, c^* – known value of concentration of an impurity. For the given problem the computing algorithm is constructed and the analysis of distribution of the basic technological parameters of oil extracting is obtained.

- N.T. Danaev, N.K. Korsakova, V.I. Pen'kovskii. Mass Transfer in Near Well-Boring Zone and Electromagnetic Karotag of Oil Layers // Almaty: Kazakh University, 2005, 180 p. (Russian).
- [2] A.M. Meirmanov. Stefan's problem // Novosibirsk: The Science, 1986, 239 p. (Russian).





SIR EPIDEMIC MODEL WITH FUZZY INITIAL VALUES

Ömer Akın, Ömer Oruç TOBB Economics and Technology University, Ankara, Turkey e-mail:omerakin@etu.edu.tr, ooruc@etu.edu.tr

Infectious diseases such as mumps, rubella, measless are modeled by classifying individuals in the population according to their status with respect to the disease: healthy, infected and immune. The disease states, S,I and R are defined as follows: S = susceptible; individuals not affected but who are capable of contracting the disease and becoming infective I = infected; individuals who are infected and infectious, capable of transmitting the disease to others R = removed; individuals who have had the disease and have recovered, and who are permanently immune, or are isolated until recovery and permanent immunity occur. The progress of individuals is schemetically described by

$$S \to I \to R.$$

Such models are often called SIR models. Differential equations corresponding to an SIR model is as follows:

$$\frac{dS}{dt} = -\alpha SI,$$
$$\frac{dI}{dt} = -\alpha SI - \beta I,$$
$$\frac{dR}{dt} = \beta I,$$

 $\alpha > 0$ is the infection rate

 $\beta > 0$ is the rate of recovery.

N = total population size (we assume N is constant and there are no births and deaths in the population). We will investigate graphical solutions of the SIR model with fuzzy initial values which are fuzzy triangular numbers.

- Y. Chalco-Cano, H. Romn-Flores. On the new solution of fuzzy differential equations // Chaos Solutions Fractals, Vol.38, 2006, pp. 112-119.
- [2] J.S. Linda Allen. An Introduction to Mathematical Biology, Pearson, 2007.





MATHEMATICAL MODELS OF GENE ACTIVITY REGULATION PROCESSES: MECHANICAL PERTURBATION OF DNA STRUCTURE¹

J.V. Aleksejeva, S.E. Guseynov, Y.D. Nechipurenko

Latvian Biomedical Research and Study Centre, University of Latvia, Riga, Latvia

Institute of Mathematical Sciences and Information Technologies, University of Liepaja, Liepaja, Latvia

Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Riga, Latvia

Engelhardt Institute of Molecular Biology, Russian Academy of Sciences, Moscow, Russia

e-mail:kate@biomed.lu.lv, sh.e.guseinov@inbox.lv, nech@eimb.ru

Binding of proteins and low molecular weight ligands to DNA play a fundamental role in processes of gene activity regulation. Binding of a protein to DNA can be coupled with DNA confirmation changes which can be transmitted over great distance extending outside the DNA region immediately covered by a bound ligand. The perturbed DNA structures and even DNA cleavage can induced by mechanical tensions. Electromechanical perturbation of DNA is a wide-spread phenomenon which may play a fundamental role in processes of gene activity regulation.

In present paper a simple mathematical approach is developed to describe electromechanical perturbations of DNA in complexes with large ligands, as revealed from recent studies (for instance, see [1]–[6] and the broad list of corresponding references in them) on effects of ultrasound irradiation on DNA complexes with sequence specific binding ligands.

- Yu.D. Nechipurenko. Determination from binding isotherms of thermodynamic parameters characterizing interactions between ligand molecules bound DNA // Studia Biphys., Vol.87, 1982, pp. 217-218.
- [2] Yu.D. Nechipurenko, S.B. Bound. Theoretical model for binding of ligands to ribosome // European Journal Biochemistry, Vol.135, 1983, pp. 469-470.
- [3] Yu.D. Nechipurenko, G.V. Gursky. Cooperative effects on binding of proteins to DNA // Journal of Bioph. Chem., Vol.24, 1986, pp. 195-209.
- [4] Yu.D. Nechipurenko, A.L.Mikheikin, S.A. Streltsov, A.S. Zasedatelev and I.R. Nabiev. Mixed mode of ligand-DNA binding results in S-shaped binding curves // Journal of Biomol, Structure and Dynamics, Vol.18, 2001, pp. 703-708.
- [5] Yu.D. Nechipurenko, D.Yu. Nechipurenko, R.N.Polozov, S.L. Grokhovsky and G.V. Gursky. DNA-based nanostructures: changes of Mechanical properties of DNA upon ligand binding // Nanomaterials for Application in Medicine and Biology NATO Workshop in Bonn, Springer Press, 2008, pp. 59-67.
- [6] Yu.D. Nechipurenko, Sh.E. Guseynov, J.V. Aleksejeva and G.V. Gursky. Mechanical perturbation of DNA Structure // Journal of Molecular and Cellular Biology, The American Society for Microbiology, 2011, 14 p. (in appear).





DYNAMICS OF ELASTIC MEDIUM AT THE ACTION OF TRANSPORT LOADS ON STRIP CONCENTRATED

L.A.Alexeyeva, G.K. Kaishibayeva Institute of Mathematics MES RK, Kazakhstan e-mail:alexeeva@math.kz, gkk@math.kz

Mathematical simulation of the dynamic processes, connected with the transport moving, brings about decision of the problems dynamics of elastic mediums in class of functions, parametric and automodel on row variables. The parameter of the problem - a velocity of the moving the source of loadings in medium - greatly influences at type of the motion equations, which depends on velocities of the spreading the waves in medium, so named as sonic velocities. In isotropic elastic medium their two, characterizing velocity of the spreading transverse and longitude of the waves. The type of the differential equations, describing moving the medium, is changed depending on relation of the velocities of the source of the loadings to sound velocities (the Mah's numbers).

Here for describing of the moving of elastic mediums at action of the transport loads $G(x_1, x_2, x_3 + +ct)$, moving with constant velocity, are used equations of the Lame's equation in mobile coordinate system $x' = (x'_1, \ldots, x'_N) = (x_1, \ldots, x_3 + ct)$, [1]:

$$\left\{ \left(M_1^{-2} - M_2^{-2}\right) \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x_i' \partial' x_j} + \left(M_2^{-2} \Delta - \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x_3'^2}\right) \delta_j^i \right\} u_i + c^{-2} G_j = 0, \quad j = 1, 2, 3, \tag{1}$$

where u_j - components of the moving medium, $M_k = c/c_k$ – Mah's numbers, $M_1 < M_2$ (on of the same name indexes is tensor convolution).

At $M_k < 1 \ (k = 1, 2)$ load is subsonic, system (1) of the elliptical type; if load supersonic, then $M_k > 1 \ (k = 1, 2)$ and system becomes hyperbolic; if velocity transonic, $M_1 < 1$, $M_2 > 1$ and the type of the equations hyperbolic-elliptical. Under sound velocity of the equation parabolic-elliptical if $M_2 = 1$, but under $M_1 = 1$ become parabolic-hyperbolic.

Under $M_j > 1$ appear the shock waves [2,3]. Conditions on fronts (F) are of the form of:

$$[u]_F = 0, \quad [n_3 \ u_{i,j} - n_j \ u_{i,3}]_F = 0, \quad [\sigma_{ij} n_j - \rho \ c^2 \ n_3 \ u_{i,3}]_F = 0, \quad i, j = 1, 2, 3;$$

 n_j - normal's components to front of the wave F, σ_{ij} - stress tensor, ρ - density of the medium.

Generalised decisions have built (1) at action vertical and horizontal transport loads concentrated on strip for difficult motion velocities.

Results of numerical experiment have reduced, describing dynamic elastic medium for subsonic, transonic and supersonic velocities. It is studied influence of motion velocities on character stressstrain state of medium.

- L.A. Alexeyeva. Fundamental decisions in elastic space in the event of running loads // Applied mathematics and mechanics, Vol.55, No.5, 1991, pp. 854-862.
- [2] L.A. Alexeyeva, G.K. Kaishybaeva. Mathematical model of array dynamics in the vicinity of extended underground structures at action of moving loadings // Int. J. Mathematics and Computers in Simulation, Vol.67, No.4-5, 2004, pp. 441-450.
- [3] G.K. Kaishibayeva. Stress-strained state of elastic medium at action of the of the concentrated supersonic loads // Mathematical Journal Almaty, Vol.6, No.4(22), 2006, pp. 57-65.





INTERACTION OF TWO-PHASE GAS-DROPLET TRANSVERSE JET WITH THE ONCOMING SUPERSONIC FLOW

Tulegen R. Amanbayev, Ainur Jumagalieva, Gamidulla Tyleuov South Kazakh State University, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:tulegen_amanbaev@mail.ru

In this paper we numerically investigate the interaction of the jet containing dispersed liquid droplets, with a supersonic flow of gas. It was believed that the jet flows from the transverse to the main flow of a plane gap with a velocity of sound. Modeling of flow was based on assumptions and equations of mechanics of multiphase media [1]. Numerical simulation was based on the method of large particles [2] using the algorithm developed in an environment MATLAB. In this case, the size of the computational domain were chosen such that the disturbance caused by gas injection, did not reach the free boundaries. The calculations were performed to obtain the steady flow pattern. Optimal step account was set sustainability criteria and the required accuracy of calculation. As the characteristic length of problem, was used the minimum characteristic length $L_* = \min(L_v, L_T, \ell)$ where L_v and L_T are the relaxation lengths of the velocity and temperature of phases, ℓ - width of the split. As a typical time convenient to take $\tau_* = L_*/a_\infty$ (a_∞ is velocity of sound in the oncoming flow). Determining influence on the flow conditions in the interaction of the two-phase jet with the oncoming stream usually have the effects of interfacial friction. Therefore, the main criteria for the approximate similarity of such flows can be considered the following parameters: ratio of specific heats of gas, the Mach number, pressure and temperature ratio of the incoming stream and injected gas, the ratio of the characteristic length of relaxation rates of the phases to the width of the split, as well as the relative mass content of the dispersed phase in the injected mixture.

Calculations showed that a jet is formed in front of a wave of compression. It should be noted that in contrast to the injection of a pure gas jet, in the case of injection of gas-drop jet at some distance from the slit wave compaction, how-to forks, taking "lambda"-shaped. And near the site of branching wave front seal occurs a narrow zone of strong dilution of the gas. Apparently, this is due to heating of the gas due to the work of friction forces on the interfacial surface of the droplets and its subsequent expansion. Another feature of the flow produced when blowing a two-phase gas-droplet jet is the presence of two zones of rarefaction wave for sealing. This is because the jet is blown out of gas after a gap of almost immediately turns to the direction of motion of the incident flow, and "jet" drops out of inertia rises to a considerable height, and thus, before the incident flow there are two "obstacles" in the interaction with which There are two areas of rarefaction.

- [1] R.I. Nigmatulin. Dynamics of Multiphase Media // Moscow, Nauka, 1987.
- [2] M.J. Belotserkovsky, Yu.M. Davydov. The Method of Large Particles in Gas Dynamics // Moscow, Nauka, 1982.





MODELING OF TURBULENT CURRENTS IN CHANNELS WITH SMALL CURVATURE

Olzhas A. Ametov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:olzhas.ametov@kaznu.kz

The solution of the fluid flow problem plays an important role in the practical engineering design. There is a very wide range of applications from a supersonic flow over a space ship to blood flow in the circulatory system of a human being. The equations of fluid mechanics - which have been known for over a century - have analytical solutions for only a limited number of flows. Numerical simulations represent an alternative or at least a complementary method to the experimental approach. This field is known as computational fluid dynamics (CFD). CFD is able to avoid some of the most annoying problems of the experimental approach such as the blockage effect caused by the boundary layers along the walls of a wind tunnel. Boundary conditions are easily prescribed in the computations.

This paper presents a new procedure for the simulation of unsteady incompressible turbulent flows using Galerkin finite element and adaptive grids. The adaptive grids are generated during the simulation using a new mesh generation technique. This technique is fast, produces a quad-dominant mesh while preserving the quality of the elements without the need to move any grid points. The new points are nested to the old mesh to avoid hanging nodes. Interpolation operators are used to map the different variables from one grid to the next one. Refinement zones are defined using the gradient of the vorticity from the previous time step.

A Galerkin finite element method is implemented to simulate unsteady incompressible turbulent flows in channels with small curvature using the primary variables with mixed elements for the velocity components and the pressure. The resulting linearized system is solved using Krylov subspace iterative methods and multigrid. The least-squares commutator is implemented as a preconditioner of the indefinite linear system. The turbulence model to close the RANS equation is based on method by Kolmogorov-Rotta [1,2] and the solver is coupled with the adaptive grid generator in order to produce a new solution resolved grid for everytime step.

The technique was implemented through an object oriented platform written in C++ and used the Message Passing Interface (MPI) for parallel programing.

- U.S. Abdibekov, O.A. Ametov, Sh.S. Smagulov. Numerical simulation of turbulent shear ow in a curved channel // Computational Technologies, Russia, Vol.8, 2003, pp. 18-24.
- [2] U.S. Abdibekov, O.A. Ametov, B.T. Zhumagulov. Second Order Closure of heat and Mass Transport Equation for shear turbulence // Mechanics, Poland, Vol.25, No.3, 2006, pp. 57-63.





THE MODEL FOR OPTIMAL MANAGEMENT OF THE ECONOMY BASED ON R. LUCAS PRODUCTION FUNCTION

G.A. Amirkhanova, S.M. Grechko, M.N. Kalimoldayev Institute of informatics and control problems, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:gulshat.aa@gmail.com

Problems of economic growth currently occupy a central place in economic discussion of leading countries. The growing volume of real production rather allows to resolve the problem faced by any economical system: the limited resources with the growth of human needs.

Many models are known, among them are R. Lucas model [1] of endogenous economic growth, which that takes into account the factor of human capital accumulation described by the following production function:

$$Y = \bar{\bar{A}}K^{\beta}(whL)^{1-\beta}h_{a}^{\psi},$$

where h – human capital, L – labor force, wL – amount of unskilled labor force and whL – amount of labor in efficiency units, ψ – elasticity of Y output to the average for the whole economy level of human capital.

This production function is used in the economic optimization models and for its optimality criterion is assumed to maximize the discounted sum of a finite (non-industrial) consumption for the forecasting (planning) duration [0; T]:

$$W = \int_0^T e^{-\delta t} \frac{C}{L} dt \to \max_D,$$

where δ - discount factor, $0 < \delta < 1$.

To find the optimal v = (K(t), X(t), u(t)) - process of model, Krotov V.M. theorem was used [2]. According to this and from the condition

$$\bar{k}(t), \bar{x}(t) \to \max_{0 \le x \le f(k,t)} R(t,k,x)$$

optimal $\hat{k}(t) = A_1^{\frac{1}{1-\beta}} e^{\frac{\gamma t}{1-\beta}}$, $A_1 = \frac{\beta(1-a)A}{\mu+n+\delta}$ and $\hat{u}(t) = 1 - \frac{(\mu+n+\frac{\gamma}{1-\beta})\beta}{\mu+n+\delta}$, were found where $R(t,k,x) = e^{-\delta t}[(1-a)x - (\mu+n+\delta)k]$.

- N.I. Akimov. The Political Economy of Modern Mode of Production // Book. 3, Part 1, Macroeconomics, Moscow: Economics, 2004, 293 p.
- [2] Foundations of Optimal Control Theory Ed. V.M. Krotov // M.: Higher School, 1990, 430 p.





ANALYSIS OF THE CONVERGENCE OF ITERATIVE ALGORITHMS TO SOLVE GRID EQUATIONS OF INCOMPRESSIBLE FLUID IN THE VARIABLES "STREAM FUNCTION-VORTICES OF VELOCITY

N.T. Danayev

Research Institute of Mechanics and Mathematics, Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Nargozy.Danaev@kaznu.kz

The report discusses the convergence of some iterative algorithms to solve grid Navier-Stokes equations for incompressible fluid variables stream function and vortices of velocity with the boundary conditions for a vortex in the form of Thomass formula. Estimations of convergence for the considered relatively stable iteration schemes were obtained in the case of one-dimensional boundary value problem. The grid equations for Navier-Stokes with homogeneous boundary conditions for the stream function and vortices of velocity were considered in the nonlinear two-dimensional case by introducing an auxiliary function vortices of velocity. Under certain conditions equivalent to the uniqueness conditions of the nonlinear difference problem, the theorems on convergence, stability have been proved by using energy inequalities, and an estimation of the convergence rate is provided.

BY VARIATIONS OF THE ELEMENTS IN MATHEMATICAL MODELS OF THE DYNAMICAL SYSTEMS

G.T. Arazov

Institute of Applied Mathematics Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:arazov_h@yahoo.com

Real observations dynamical systems to be realized from many elements which have different initial value and parameter. Then observations, theory and numerical simulation shows that the control strategy needs to select right error valuation. The mathematical model an research this system to admit as predicting evolution system and as to find out all interactions structural: last time, the present and the future tense. This be dependent on the interactions and evolution systems elements.

Evolution of the nonlinear dynamical systems, in arbitrary time t, can be represent in the form

$$X_t = \left\{ x_t^1 x_t^2, x_t^3, \ \dots, x_t^N \right\},\tag{1}$$

where N-number of the interactions elements, which jointly represent dynamical systems. In particular when N = 5: x_t^1 -time; x_t^2 -space; x_t^3 -matter; x_t^4 -energy; x_t^5 - law and order evolution elements of the dynamical systems.

Mathematical modeling state variables of the evolutions dynamical system are important in practical result estimating observations, which can be represent values of the elements in different moments time t. After appropriate cutting statistical results observations evolutions dynamical system can be represent formula

$$X_t^i = \left\{ x_t^i, \ x_{t+\tau}^i, \dots, \ x_{t+(m-1)\tau} \right\},\tag{2}$$

where τ - time intervals between observations, *m*- necessary number observations and measuring τ .

Effectiveness interpretations estimates results work request important attention to selection values τ and m. This connection which, that particularly to keep key to open interactions and evolution compound structures elements estimates models (1) and (2).





MATHEMATICAL MODELING AND NUMERICAL CALCULATION BY THE METHOD OF LARGE PARTICLES OF THE IMPACT OF ACTIVE LAYER OF SOIL TO THE CONTAMINATION IN THE REGION TAKING INTO ACCOUNT PROCESSES IN THE LOWER ATMOSPHERE

A.A. Aidossov, G.A. Aidossov, N.S. Zaurbekov SRI MM KazNU named after Al-Farabi, Almaty, Kazakhstan KazTransGazAymak, KazEU named after T.Ryskulov, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Allayarbek@mail.ru, agu_nurgali@mail.ru

One of the central problems of physics of atmosphere is the study of the variability of atmospheric composition and the effects of atmospheric pollution of the environment [1]. In many numerical models of atmospheric dynamics the soil temperature is found using the heat balance equation. Thermophysical characteristics of the soil are very diverse, which leads to the fact that temperatures above different soil types can differ dramatically on even small distances from each other, and thus influencing the dynamics of the lower layers of the atmosphere [1]. Additionally, due to their mutual dependence, the heat and humidity conditions in the soil-air system influence the formation and development of plants and thus affect the environment [2].

Currently, the solution of this complex problem can be obtained through a number of simplifications. Based on a joint review processes of molecular and turbulent thermal conductivity of the soil conductivity in the atmospheric boundary layer, the thermal regime of the soil is described in more detail.

Modeling of the regional atmospheric processes is implemented according to the field of meteorological variables in a limited area. Time-dependent boundary conditions are formulated on the basis of data obtained for the bordering areas. The proposed mathematical model differs from the known and widely implemented models by the use of a vertical coordinate σ . The solution of the problem gives the Y(n, t) distribution along the axis n and time t. Mean values of substance Y at each time t were found using the Reynolds's integral averaging.

The diurnal cycle of temperature was modeled in a single cell in the summer, cloudless, windless day for the latitude and declination values of 55, 7⁰ and 23, 4⁰ respectively. The surface was considered sufficiently hydrated ($q_0 = q_{HAC}(T_0)$) with the reflection coefficient (albedo) r = 0,2. Solid and gaseous impurities were not taken into account. The initial state was set to: $T_{-1} = 287$, $T_0 = 283$, $\theta_1 = 285$, $\theta_2 = 282$, $\theta_3 = 260$, $q_1 = 0,0054$, $q_2 = 0,0045$, $q_3 = 0,0014$. The system of equations integrated by the Runge-Kutta with the time step t=1 h. The calculation results were compared with the expeditionary observations.

- A.A. Aidossov, G.A. Aidossov, N.S.Zaurbekov. Models of Ecological Conditions of the Environment Under Real Atmospheric Processes // Almaty, "INDAN", 2010, 308 p.
- [2] G.A. Aidossov, N.S. Zaurbekov. Mathematical models of transportation and dispersion of harmful substances in the real atmosphere, taking into account orography of the Earth's surface and the gravity field // Proceedings of the International Conference on the propagation of elastic and elastoplastic waves, devoted to the 100-th anniversary of J.A. Rakhmatulin, Bishkek, 2009, pp. 234-236





MATHEMATICAL MODELING OF SYSTEM OF OIL LAYER – GASLIFT WELL

Vahid Y. Babanly

Institute of Applied Mathematics Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:babanly@rambler.ru

The work of the oil layer - gaslift well is mathematically modeled as an association of two problems: problem of oil filtration to central well and problem on motion of the qas-liquid mixture in the well tube.

1. A filtration of incompressible oil to the central well in a circular layer. This process is mathematically described by the equation:

$$\frac{1}{r}\frac{\partial}{\partial r}\left(r\frac{\partial P}{\partial r}\right) + \frac{\partial^2 P}{\partial z^2} = \chi\frac{\partial P}{\partial t},\tag{1}$$

where P is a pressure, r - radial coordinate, z - vertical coordinate, t - time, $\chi = \frac{k}{m\mu\beta}$ - pieseconductivity factor, k - factor permeability of a layer, m - factor of porosity of a layer, μ - factor of dynamic viscosity of oil, $\beta = m\beta_o + \beta_\tau$ - factor of volume elasticity of the layer, β_o, β_τ - factors comeressity oil and rock of a layer, correspondingly.

The equation (1) is solved under following conditions:

$$\begin{cases}
P = P_b = \rho_H gL, & \text{at } t = 0, \quad r_c \le r \le r_k, \\
P = P_k(t), & \text{at } r = r_k, \quad 0 \le z \le h, \\
\frac{\partial P}{\partial z} = 0, & \text{at } z = 0, \quad r_c \le r \le r_k, \\
r \frac{\partial P}{\partial r} = \frac{\mu}{2k\pi h}q, & \text{at } z = r_c.
\end{cases}$$
(2)

Solving this problem we find a condition $P_b = P(t)$ on a botton of the well that is a boundary condition for the problem on motion of the mixture in the pipe.

2. Motion of the mixture in elevating pipe. Nonstasionary Motion is modelled of the mixture accepting it as a viscous liquid, mathematically in the following way it is necessary to solve following differential equations:

$$\begin{cases} -\frac{\partial P}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial(\rho \vartheta)}{\partial t} + \frac{\lambda}{8R_n} \rho \vartheta^2 + \rho g \cos \alpha + \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \left[(1+\beta) \rho \vartheta^2 \right], \\ -\frac{\partial P}{\partial t} = c^2 \frac{\partial(\rho \vartheta)}{\partial z}, \qquad 0 < x < l, \ t > 0 \ , \end{cases}$$
(3)

under the conditions:

$$\rho v = q(z,t) = 0 \text{ at } t = 0, \ z \in [0,L]$$

$$P(x,t) = 0; \ P_b(0,t) = P_1(t) \text{ at } z = 0;$$
(4)

$$P(z,t) = P_y(L,t) = P_2(t)$$
 at $z = L$,

Solving the problem (3), (4) the considered process -i.e. the working of the qas-lift well is investigated.





MATHEMATICAL MODELLING OF PROCESS OF A NONEQUILIBRIUM FILTRATION OF A VISCOUS LIQUID TO AN INCOMPLETE SLIT

Vahid Y. Babanly

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:babanly@rambler.ru

In many cases the consideration of the filtrations is of great importance in the exploration oil of the layers.

The classical model of the elastic rejime describes the process of the equilibrium filtration. As the experiments show, it is not suitable for research of the nonequilibrium filtration when defining movement, conditions change fast. It takes place at definition of parametres of the layer, at layer opening etc.

The isothermal nonequilibrium filtration week-compresseble a viscous liquid in isotropic weak defermorable to a porous medium, mathematically is described by the equation of continuity of the elastic rejime

$$\beta \frac{\partial \mathbf{P}}{\partial t} + \nabla \cdot \bar{\vartheta} = 0 \tag{1}$$

and by the law of a filtration of the viscous liquid, taking into account a velocity and pressure relaxation

$$\bar{\vartheta} + \tau_{\vartheta} \frac{\partial \bar{\vartheta}}{\partial t} = -\frac{k}{\mu} \nabla (P + \tau_p \frac{\partial P}{\partial t}), \tag{2}$$

where β -factor elastic values of the a layer, and τ_{ϑ} - τ_p time of a relaxation of the velocity and pressure, ϑ - filtration velocity, *p*- pressure.

The solution of the system (1), (2) is searched with following initial and boundary conditions:

- $P = P_0 = constand \ \vartheta = 0 \text{ at } t = 0r_c \le r \le R_k;$ $\vartheta = \frac{q}{2\pi r_c h} \text{ at } r = r_c h_1 \le z \le h;$ $\vartheta = 0, \text{at}r = r_c, \ 0 \le z \le h_1;$

 $\vartheta = 0$ at z = 0 and $hr_c \leq r \leq R_k$; $P = P_0 at r = R_k$,

where q- the liquid production rate expense, h- thickness of the a layer, $h - h_1$ - discover of the layer by the well, r_c - well radius, R_k - radius of a contour of the well.

The problem is gloved by known methods of mathematical physics.





MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF DYNAMICS THE EARTH'S CORE

Abay A. Baimukhametov Institute of Mechanics and Science Engineering, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:e-mail:abayab@mail.ru

The oscillatory mode of movement of an internal core of the Earth is studied. Numerical parameters are received at various initial deviations. The period of fluctuations is found at the account and without forces of viscous resistance. The problem is considered in statement about progress of two bodies. Numerical calculation is spent for systems Earth - Moon, Earth - Sun. The equation of movement of an internal core in own field is received in a kind:

$$m\ddot{x} + n\dot{x} + cx = 0,\tag{1}$$

where

$$n = \pi \mu_2 \left[16ab^3(b^3 - a^3) + 16a^4b(b^2 - a^2) + 8ab(b^5 - a^5) \right] / \left[9(b - a)(b^5 - a^5) - 5(b^3 - a^3)^2 \right] , \quad (2)$$

$$A = (4\pi/3)Gm\rho(1 - \rho/\rho_0).$$

Here μ_2 - dynamic factor of viscosity of an external core, x - forward displacement of an internal core, a- radius of an internal core, b- radius of an external core, G- a gravitational constant, mweight of a firm internal core, ρ - density of an external viscous core, ρ_0 - density of an internal core. Forces of viscous resistance of an external core at forward displacement of a firm internal core from balance position are found by statement and the decision of a corresponding hydrodynamic problem of Nave-Stoksa, and on own gravitational field of a core of the Earth returning force is defined. At the geophysical data the parameters defining the decision of a problem, and also the period of fluctuations of an internal core are found at the account of forces of viscous resistance and in the absence of these forces. The oscillative motion of an internal core is studied at various initial deviations, depending on change of values of factor of dynamic viscosity of an external core, and also sizes of density both internal, and an external core of the Earth. The oscillative motion of an internal core of the Earth in a Newtonian field of the external drawing center is investigated. Thus in the movement equations, except forces of viscous resistance and forces of own gravitational field, the force defined as a difference of gravitational force operating from the drawing center and force of inertia is considered. The equation of movement of an internal core in a gravitational field of the external drawing center is found in a kind:

$$m\ddot{x} + n\dot{x} + \left(c - 2G \ \frac{\mathrm{Mm}}{\mathrm{R}^3}\right)x = 0; \tag{3}$$

where n, care defined by the above-stated formulas (2). Influence of mechanical properties of a core and the external drawing center on its oscillatory mode is investigated. As an example the field of an attraction of the Moon and a field of an attraction of the Sun are considered.

- [1] J.N. Avsjuk. About movement of an internal core of the Earth // Reports S USSR, Vol.212, No.5, 1973, pp. 1097-1100.
- [2] J.N. Avsjuk. Oscillatory a mode of evolution of system the Earth-moon and its comparison to the geological processes of phanerozoic // Reports AS USSR, Vol.287, No.5, 1986, pp. 1103-1104.
- J.N. Avsjuk, V.V. Adushkin, V.M.Ovchinnikov. Complex research of mobility of an internal core of the Earths // Physics of the Earth, No.5, 2001, pp.64-75.
- [4] Zh.S. Erzhanov, A.A. Kalybaev, A.A. Baimukhametov, T.T. Korzhymbaev. Movement and Stability Layered Earth // Alma-Ata, Science, 1986, 240 p.
- [5] A.A. Baimukhametov. Mechanics of Geopulsations // Almaty, Science, 2003, 244 p.





ON THE WELL POSED PROBLEM FOR HYDROGEN ATOM EQUATION

Erdal Baş, Etibar Panakhov, Reşat Yilmazer Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:erdalmat@yahoo.com

We consider the following singular Sturm-Liouville Problem:

$$Ly = -y'' + \left[\frac{\ell(\ell+1)}{r^2} - \frac{a}{r} + q_0(r)\right] y = \lambda y, \quad (0 < r \le \pi),$$
(1)

$$y\left(0\right) = 0,\tag{2}$$

$$y(\pi,\lambda)\cos\beta + y'(\pi,\lambda)\sin\beta = 0,$$
(3)

where $q(r) = \frac{\ell(\ell+1)}{r^2} - \frac{a}{r} + q_0(r)$. Let the second singular Sturm-Liouville Problem be given as:

$$\tilde{L}y = -y'' + \left[\frac{\ell(\ell+1)}{r^2} - \frac{\tilde{a}}{r} + \tilde{q}_0(r)\right]y = \tilde{\lambda}y, \qquad (0 < r \le \pi)$$

$$\tag{4}$$

with the same boundary conditions above.

We denote the spectrum of the two Sturm-Liouville Problems above by $\{\lambda_n\}_{n=0}^{\infty}$ and $\{\tilde{\lambda}_n\}_{n=0}^{\infty}$ respectively.

In this research, we prove that the difference between two potential functions q(r) and $\tilde{q}(r)$ becomes sufficiently small whenever the spectral datas $\{\lambda_n, \alpha_n\}$ and $\{\lambda_n, \alpha_n\}$ for q(r) and $\tilde{q}(r)$ respectively are chosen sufficiently close to each other (see [1, 2]).

- [1] B.M. Levitan and I.S. Sargsyan. Introduction to Spectral Theory // Moscow, 1975.
- [2] A. Mizutani. On the inverse Sturm-Liouville Problem // J. Fac. Sci. Univ. Tokyo sect. IA, Math. Vol.31, 1984, pp. 319-350.





NUMERICAL SIMULATION OF DISPROPORTIONATE PERMEABILITY REDUCTION TO CONTROL WATER PRODUCTION¹

Bakhbergen E. Bekbauov, Aidarkhan Kaltayev Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:bakhbergen.bekbauov@gmail.com

The MLT model [1] of the two-phase immiscible fluids' (water and oil) flow through a porous medium can be written in the form (indexes i = 1, 2, 3 correspond respectively water, oil and porous medium below):

$$m\frac{\partial s}{\partial t} = \operatorname{div}\left[a_1\nabla s + \vec{f_1} + a_2\nabla\theta\right], \quad \operatorname{div}\left(K\nabla p + \vec{f_2} + a_3\nabla\theta\right) = 0,$$
$$-\vec{v} = K\nabla p + \vec{f_2} + a_3\nabla\theta, \quad \frac{\partial\theta}{\partial t} = \operatorname{div}[\lambda\left(x, s, \theta\right)\nabla\theta - \vec{v}\theta],$$

$$\begin{split} m &= m_0(1-s_1^0-s_2^0); \quad m_0-\text{porosity}; \quad s_i^0, \quad (i=1,2) - \text{residual water and oil saturations respectively}; \\ s &= \frac{s_1-s_1^0}{1-s_2^0-s_2^0} \in [0,1]; \quad s_i-\text{saturation}; \quad a_1 = -K_0 \frac{k_1k_2}{k} \frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s}; \quad K_0 - \text{symmetrical flow tensor of an} \\ \text{anisotropic porous medium. In the case of anisotropic porous medium } K_0 \text{ can be expressed via } k_h - \\ \text{horizontal permeability and } k_v - \text{vertical permeability components of symmetrical flow tensor.} \\ k_i &= \frac{\bar{k}_i}{\mu_i}; \quad 0 \leq \bar{k}_i \leq 1 \quad - \text{ relative permeabilities}; \quad \mu_i - \text{dynamic viscosity coefficient}; \quad \mu_1 = \text{const}; \\ \mu_2 &= \mu_2 \max + (\mu_2 \min - \mu_2 \max) \frac{\theta - \theta_{\min}}{\theta_{\max} - \theta_{\min}}; \quad \theta - \text{ temperature}; \quad k = k_1 + k_2; \\ p_2 - p_1 &= p_c \left(x, s, \theta\right) \geq 0; \quad p_c \left(x, s, \theta\right) = \bar{p}_c \left(x, \theta\right) J\left(s\right); \quad \bar{p}_c = \sigma \cos \vartheta \left(\frac{m_0}{|K_0|}\right)^{1/2} = \gamma\left(\theta\right) \left(\frac{m_0}{|K_0|}\right)^{1/2}, \\ \text{where } \sigma \text{ -interfacial tension coefficient}; \quad \vartheta \text{ -wetting angle}; \quad |K_0| \text{ -determinant of matrix } \{k_{i,j}\}; \quad \gamma = \\ \gamma_{\max} + (\gamma_{\min} - \gamma_{\max}) \frac{\theta - \theta_{\min}}{\theta_{\max} - \theta_{\min}}; \quad J\left(s\right) \text{ -Leverett function.} \quad \rho_i \text{ -density (both fluids are assumed to be incompressible, i.e. \\ \rho_i = \text{const}; \quad g - \text{acceleration of gravity}; \quad h \text{ -height}; \\ \vec{f}_1 = K_1 \left(\nabla p + \int_s^1 \nabla \frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k} ds\right); \quad K_i = K_0 \left(x\right) k_i \left(s\right) = K_0 \left(x\right) \frac{\bar{k}_i \left(s\right)}{\mu_i}; \quad \vec{v} = \vec{v}_1 + \vec{v}_2; \\ p = p_1 - \int_s^1 \frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k} ds + \rho_1 gh; a_2 = K_1 \int_s^1 \frac{\partial}{\partial \theta} \left(\frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k}\right) ds; \quad \vec{f}_2 = K_1 \int_s^1 \nabla \frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k} ds + K_2 \left(\nabla p_c + (\rho_2 - \rho_1) \vec{g}\right) \frac{1}{\rho_i} \frac{\partial}{\partial s} \left(\frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k}\right) ds; \quad \vec{f}_2 = K_1 \int_s^1 \nabla \frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k} ds + K_2 \left(\nabla p_c + (\rho_2 - \rho_1) \vec{g}\right) \frac{1}{\rho_i} \frac{\partial}{\partial s} \left(\frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k}\right) ds; \quad \vec{f}_2 = K_1 \int_s^1 \nabla \frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k} ds + K_2 \left(\nabla p_c + (\rho_2 - \rho_1) \vec{g}\right) \frac{1}{\rho_i} \frac{\partial}{\partial s} \left(\frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k}\right) ds; \quad \vec{f}_2 = K_1 \int_s^1 \nabla \frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k} ds + K_2 \left(\nabla p_c + (\rho_2 - \rho_1) \vec{g}\right) \frac{1}{\rho_i} \frac{\partial}{\partial s} \left(\frac{\partial p_c}{\partial s} \frac{k_2}{k}\right) ds; \quad \vec{f}$$

 $a_{3} = K \int_{s}^{1} \frac{\partial}{\partial \theta} \left(\frac{\partial p_{c}}{\partial s} \frac{k_{2}}{k} \right) ds + K_{2} \frac{\partial p_{c}}{\partial \theta}; \quad \lambda \left(s, \theta \right) = \sum_{i=1}^{3} \frac{\alpha_{i} \lambda_{i}}{\rho_{i} c_{pi}}; \quad \alpha_{1} = m_{0} s_{1}; \quad \alpha_{2} = m_{0} (1-s_{1}); \quad \alpha_{3} = 1-m_{0}.$

 λ_i – thermal conductivity; c_{pi} – heat capacity coefficient at constant pressure.

References

 B.T. Zhumagulov, V.N. Monakhov. The Fluid Dynamics of Oil Production // Translated & ed. by AgipK CO. Milan: Interservice, 2003, 307 p.

 $^{^1}$ $\,$ This research is supported by Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, The Research Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics.





SIMULATION OF ACID HYDRAULIC FRACTURING PROCESS

Bakhbergen E. Bekbauov, Madina S. Tungatarova, Assylkhan Zh. Bibossinov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Bakhbergen.Bekbauov@kaznu.kz, Madina.Tungatarova@kaznu.kz, bibossinov@yahoo.com

Influence of regime parameters such as geometric structure, rock conductivity and fracturing pressure and acid solution composition on efficiency of acid hydraulic fracturing process is studied. Hydraulic fracturing is a complicated process to model, as it involves the coupling of at least three processes: the mechanical deformation induced by the fluid pressure on the fracture surfaces; the flow of fluid within the fracture; and the fracture propagation.

For study of hydraulic fracturing process the fracture growth and propagation is modeled by KGD model for plane strain assumptions applicated to horizontal sections. The fracture volume is zero at initial time. The volume of fracture would be equal to the total volume of fracturing fluid in term of fracturing fluid leak-off at the fracture surface. The basic equations governing a hydraulic fracturing model are: the fluid flow equation (expressing the conservation of fluid mass, which yields the velocity field of the fluid inside the fracture); the leak-off term (describing the history-dependent loss of the injected fluid from the fracture into the porous reservoir, due to a positive pressure gradient between the fluid-filled fracture and the reservoir); the proppant transport equation (describing the time-dependent distribution of the concentration of proppant in the fracture) and the fracture growth condition. The fracture size and propagation is defined by solving of given governing equations.

Modulus of elasticity is an important parameter describing geomechanical properties of formation. Received results shows that modulus of elasticity has influence on fracture propagation and thereby on average velocity of flow in fracture. Hydraulic fracturing leads to low width fracture formation and low average velocity of flow in fracture correspondingly in the soil with high modulus of elasticity value.

Length of acid propagation in fracture depends on liquid leak-off of fracturing fluid from the fracture to the surrounding rock and acid reaction rate with formation. High acid reaction rate reduce to acid leak-off therefore retardation of acid reaction rate is important part of projection of acid hydraulic fracturing processes.

Distribution of acid in a fracture for different values of acid reaction rate is received. Increasing of acid reaction rate reduce acid content in fracture deals with acid leak-off. Porosity also affects on acid distribution in fracture.

- J. Adachia, E. Siebritsb, A. Peircec, J. Desrochesd. Computer simulation of hydraulic fractures // International Journal of Rock Mechanics and Mining Sciences, Vol.44, 2007, pp. 739-757
- [2] T.K. Perkins, L.R. Kern. Widths of hydraulic fractures // J Pet Tech., Vol.9, No.13, 1961, pp. 937-949 [SPE 89].





TURBULENCE MODELING IN SIMULATION OF SUPERSONIC FLOW WITH PERPENDICULAR INJECTION OF THE GAS

A. Naimanova, A. Kaltayev, Ye. Belyayev, A. Abdalla Institute of Mathematics, Ministry of Education and Science, Almaty, Kazakhstan Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Yerzhan.Belyaev@kaznu.kz

Numerical study of perpendicular injection jets in supersonic flow were conducted by many researchers. In practice, the problem of interaction of the gas jet with a supersonic flow is a major problem in the simulation of supersonic combustion chambers of scramjet engines. The flow field in such devices is very complex: the turbulent fuel-air mixing, chemical reactions, shock waves, separation region ahead of the jet and behind of it. One of the important problems in the correct physical description and in numerical realization of such tasks is the turbulence modeling, namely, definition of influence of turbulence on shock wave, supersonic and subsonic regions of the flow. The given characteristics are well described with the Jones-Launder k-e turbulent model with and without compressibility correction, where Navier-Stokes equation for k and e consist of low-Reynolds number terms for near-wall turbulent boundary layer modeling in subsonic region and compressibility correction in turbulent kinetic energy equation for supersonic region.

In this work the numerical simulation of supersonic air flow with perpendicular injection of sonic hydrogen jet in 2D channel is investigated. A mathematical model of this process is described by two-dimensional Favre-averaged Navier-Stokes equations for multi-component gas flow. Turbulence effects are modeled with algebraic Baldwin-Lomax's model, Jones-Launder k-e model with and without compressibility correction. The boundary conditions are taken as: supersonic inlet at the left boundary, adiabatic no-slip walls at the bottom, sonic inlet on the slot; on the top condition of symmetry; on an outlet non-reflection condition. The following parameters were taken at the left boundary and on the slot: $M_0 = 1, T_0 = 642, M_{\infty} = 3, 75, T_{\infty} = 800, n = 10, 26$. The space grid was taken as 241x181, the height of the channel - 7,62 cm, and length - 15 cm, width of slot 0,0559 cm. The slot was located on distance of 10 cm from entrance.

The comparative analyses of influence of turbulence models (algebraic Baldwin-Lomax's model, Jones-Launder k-e model with and without compressibility effect) on the surface pressure profiles, supersonic and subsonic zones, recirculation zones was made. The qualitative agreement of results is obtained, namely, boundary layer separation regions ahead of the jet and behind of it, and barrel structure of the expanding jet. The quantitative difference in results is seen in near-jet region.

Numerical experiments show, the constructed numerical model and computer code for studied the turbulent supersonic multi-species flow with different turbulent models allows to study influence of parameters to the shock wave structure and character of jet-supersonic flow interaction.

- D.P. Rizzetta. Numerical Investigation of Supersonic Wing-Tip Vortices // 26th AIAA Fluid Dynamics Conference, 1995.
- [2] F. Clarence. Chenault and Philip S. Beran, k-e and Reynolds Stress Turbulence Model Comparisons for Two-Dimensional Injection Flows // AIAA Journal, Vol.36, No.8, August 1998
- [3] A.O. Beketaeva, A.Zh. Naimanova. Numerical simulation of a supersonic flow with transverse injection of jets // Journal of Applied Mechanics and Technical physics, Vol.45, 2004, pp. 367-374.





2D SIMULATION OF INITIAL STAGE OF HYDROGEN COMBUSTION IN A TUBE

Assylkhan Zh. Bibossinov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:bibossinov@yahoo.com

The focus of this study is the role of the turbulence and pressure waves in the acceleration of stoichiometric hydrogen-oxygen flame propagating in a tube and how it affects to the transition processes. The interaction between the wall and the flow behind the leading shock wave generates turbulence in the whole flow field, starting at the wall and propagating toward the centre. Correspondingly, as known from experimental data, the leading point of the turbulent flame is in the vicinity of the wall and this determines the flame velocity.

The first necessary and obvious mechanism of flame acceleration and its transition to detonation is increase of turbulence intensity before flame. Turbulence intensity before flame is defined by local velocity and distance to the lead wave of pressure, behind which gas comes to movement. At the moment of igniting rather weak first pressure wave is generated, carries away motionless in the beginning gas and creates a turbulent flow before flame. The flame, extending on turbulence field, accelerates and in turn generates pressure waves which moves on the perturbed field with higher speed than previous and catch up with them. Intensity of pressure wave before a flame becomes more. Gas motion velocity is increased and turbulence before a flame also increased.

The predictions are based on numerical solutions of two-dimensional, non-steady set of the conservation equations for individual species, mass, and total energy and applied to the analysis of hydrogen-air gaseous mixture combustion in a tube ignited on closed end. For modelling of mixture and combustion kinetics of hydrogen combustion in air is realized by mechanism, which has seven reversible reactions and seven species - H2, O2, H2O, OH, H, O, N2. Molecular nitrogen is presented as an inert body.

The numerical procedure for solving the set of equations is based on a two-step, time splitting technique for the different physical processes. In the first step, the shock wave propagation is found by solving Euler equations using an explicit TVD scheme with Roes average. In the second step, the diffusion processes and the kinetic terms are solved fully explicitly.

- P.A. Urtiew, A.K. Oppenheim. Experimental observation of the transition to detonation in an explosive gas // Proc. Roy. Soc. A, Vol.295, 1966.
- [2] A. Kaltayev. Leblanc and Fujiwara T. In uence of Turbulence on the De Agration to Detonation Transition in a Tube // 17th International Coll. on the Dynamics of Explosions and Reac-tive Systems, Heidelberg, Germany, July 25-30, 1999.





MATHEMATICAL MODELING OF THE PHENOMENON SEPARATION BEAM WITH INSTANTANEOUS POINT DYNAMIC IMPACT BASED DISCHARGE BASE

N.T. Danaev, A.A. Aidossov, G.A. Aidossov SRI MM KazNU Al Farabi, Almaty, Kazakhstan Institute of MM KazNU Al Farabi, Almaty, Kazakhstan KazTrasGaz Aimag, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Allayarbek@mail.ru

Assuming that at some point in time, the rate of deflection of the beam axis begins to decrease. In this case, the rod base will cover the unloading wave [1-3]. Assuming that the increments of stress and strain is linear, define the character of the front discharge in geometric plane, which separates the field of active and passive deformation. In our case, the unloading wave will not be the front of strong discontinuity, as the transition from loading to unloading at the end of the rod is smooth. Unloading wave front will be weak discontinuity whose speed, in general, variable, in contrast to the speed of the unloading wave of strong discontinuity, which spread the unloading waves of weak discontinuity following estimate. The problem of determining traffic in the area of discharge is not reduced to classical problems for hyperbolic equations. Assuming that the unloading wave propagates to determine the speed end of the rod at the time and released from this point of the characteristic negative direction before crossing the line of discharge. As is known, the relationship between stress and strain in the discharge is given and it is assumed that the relationship between the beam and the base is one-sided [2]. Then, for sufficiently large loads, properly distributed along the beam length, beam separation can occur from the ground. Accounting separation phenomenon is significant, particularly when moving loads at high velocities, when considering the impacts, etc. with flexible and extended beams on elastic foundation. Not accounting separation phenomenon in some cases, the cause of discrepancies of experimental results with theoretical calculations^[3]. If in a certain section of the beam deflection of the beam axis becomes negative, there is a separation of the beam from the base. With increasing load, the size of the separation zone will increase. In the separation zone is reasonable to assume that the reaction of the base is missing. Consequently, the right side of the equation will be zero. Accounting separation phenomenon has shown that its influence is most significant in the separation zone than at the point of force application. For example, the deflections of the beam axis in the separation zone increases almost in half.

- A.A. Aidossov, G.A. Aidossov, S.N. Toybaev. Model of shock wave propagation in the ground with the cavity // Proc. International conference on distribution of elastic and elastic-plastic waves, the 100th anniversary of the birth of Denia kademika, the Hero of socialist labor electric HA Rakhmatullina, Bishkek, 2009, pp. 237-239.
- [2] A.A. Aidossov, G.A. Aidossov, S.N. Toybaev. SN Solution of the effects of moving load on an inhomogeneous halfplane // Proc. International conference on distribution of elastic and elastic-plastic waves, the 100th anniversary of the birth of Denia kademika, the Hero of socialist labor electric HA Rakhmatullina, Bishkek, 2009, pp. 242-245.
- [3] A.A. Aidossov, G.A. Aidossov, S.N. Toybaev. Model calculation of loan-action of beams (plates and strip) with the deformable multilayer nym basis for dynamical loads // Proc. International conference on distribution of elastic and elastic-plastic waves, the 100th anniversary of the birth of Denia kademika, the Hero of socialist labor electric HA Rakhmatullina, Bishkek, 2009, pp. 239-242.





RESEARCH OF STABILITY OF FLUCTUATIONS OF THE OIL PIPELINE SPENT IN SEA WATER UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF PULSE LOADINGS

Anatoly K. Egorov, Murat A. Baimukhametov Institute of Mechanics and Science Engineering, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:muratabish@gmail.com

Oil pipeline fluctuations can be caused by the reasons of technogenic or natural character: artificial explosions in a vicinity of the oil pipeline or earthquakes [1-5]. It is supposed that the oil flows on the oil pipeline laminarly and is modelled by a viscous incompressible liquid flows. The external forces operating on an internal surface of the oil pipeline are forces of a friction of constant intensity and normal pressure to this surface, linearly changing on length of the oil pipeline, caused by current oil are. Uniformly distributed pressure from the side of sea water operates on an external surface of horizontally spent oil pipeline. The oil pipeline is modelled by a circular cylindrical pipe of the set length with set internal and external radiuses, the module of shift and the factor of Poisson. Physical properties of oil are characterized by dynamic viscosity. The problem about meridional deformations of a pipe under the influence of the forces caused by action on an internal surface of a pipe by oil flowing in it and also pressure upon an external surface of a pipe from the side of sea water is solved. Axial and radial movings are functions of cylindrical coordinates. The decision of this problem as the basic precritical condition for research of a problem of stability of fluctuations of the oil pipeline on a method of Leibenzon - Ishlinsky is expressed through axisymmetric harmonious functions of Papkovich - Neiber. Arbitrary constant of integration are defined thus by means of boundary conditions taking into account expressions for pressure. Thus, the basic precritical condition is defined. Free azimuthal elastic fluctuations of a cylindrical pipe are investigated. Internal and external regional problems for elastic indignations in cylindrical system of coordinates taking into account the inertial composed are solved. The equation in movings, presented in the form of Tedone, is solved for a compressed elastic material of a cylindrical solid. Relative volume expansion or dilation submits to Helmholtz equation. The ordinary differential equations are received by the method of division of variables from the differential equations in private derivatives. Decisions of the homogeneous equations are found in bessel functions and heterogeneous - a method of uncertain factors. The characteristic equation for definition of frequencies of free azimuthal fluctuations is received by means of boundary conditions for free fluctuations. According to the method of Leibenzon - Ishlinsk, the bifurcational disturbances connected with dynamic forms of loss of stability differ from disturbances at free fluctuations by only arbitrary constants of integration. The boundary stability conditions containing sizes of the basic precritical condition are deduced. The characteristic equation for definition of frequencies bifurcational fluctuations is received. In process of the dynamic susceptibility depending on frequencies compelled bifurcational and free fluctuations, resonant effects which can lead to oil pipeline destruction are defined.

- A.K. Egorov, M.A. Baimukhametov. To research of free azimuthal fluctuations of an elastic cylindrical pipe // III Erzhanov's readings, Aktobe, NU, 2010, Vol.1, pp. 61-66.
- [2] A.K. Egorov, M.A. Baimukhametov, K.I. Muhanbetkaliev, M.S. Karymsakova. To research of free azimuthal fluctuations of an elastic two-layer cylindrical pipe // Modern problems of geotechnics, mechanics and building of transport constructions, Almaty, KazATC, 2010, pp. 135-140.
- [3] A.K. Egorov, M.A. Baimukhametov, D. Dzhumagulov. To research of azimuthal forms of loss of stability of the oil pipeline in ideally liquid // Reports of NAS R, No.3, 2010, pp. 19-22.
- [4] A.K. Egorov, M.A. Baimukhametov, K.I. Muhanbetkaliev, D. Dzhumagulov. To research meridional forms of loss of stability of the oil pipeline // Mechanics and building of transport constructions, Almaty, KazHAACI, 2010, pp. 584-588.
- [5] A.K. Egorov, M.A. Baimukhametov. Mathematical modeling of georesonance phenomena as a trigger of earthquakes // Journal of Mathematics and Technology, 2010, February, pp. 13-17.




ONE MODEL FOR DEFINITION THE DIRECTION AND AN AREA OF POLLUTION IN A COASTAL ZONE

R.M. Mammadov, R.Y. Ahmadova Geography Institute of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail: ramiz.mamedov@geo.ab.az

One of the most polluted sites of the Azerbaijan shelf of Caspian Sea is the Absheron coast. For definition the direction and an area of pollution in a coastal zone is lead model calculation distribution of mineral oil. The modeling-settlement complex consists of two parts: the module of carrying over of stains of oil and the hydrodynamic block. At the heart of model of carrying over of substance the method of wandering particles lies. The essence of this method consists in direct modeling of movement of the particles arriving from sources in the investigated environment. The hydrodynamic block is constructed on the basis of modified Princeton Ocean Model (POM) (Mellor, Yamada, 1982) . Numerical modeling has shown, that the basic direction distribution of the oil pollution will be east, i.e. along northern coast Absheron peninsula.

STATISTICAL MODELING OF EXPERIMENT APPLICATIONS IN THE SOLUTION OF THE LEARNING SCENARIOS BASED ON PROBLEM

Emre Eroğlu, İbrahim Güney, Nazan Yıldız, Ersin Şener, Ümmü Şahin Gebze Institute of Technology, Kocaeli, Turkey Istanbul Aydin University, Istanbul, Turkey Marmara University, Istanbul, Turkey Yildiz Technical University, Istanbul, Turkey e-mail:y.v.z.eroglu@gmail.com

In education, especially scientific, new attractive techniques based on problem are most important instrument for the success of the students. The techniques based on problem are significant when using computer programs like Matlab, SPSS. But they do not say to researcher what one should do. The programs say correlations between modelling and inevitable results. Data, which even not be original, may say some results. But if data is not original, the modelling is not to be the new one. It will be repatition of whatever. So, data must be original.

In this study, we use original data with the new thechiques about secondary school in Turkey. Data have been analyzed by means of correlation-regression, general linear model and cluster analysis methods. We obtain regression equations and cluster dendograms.

- [1] M.R. Anderberg. Cluster Analaysis for Applications // New York: Academic Press, 1973.
- [2] R.R. Hocking. The Analaysis and Selection of Variables in Linear Regression // Biometrics, Vol.32, 1976, pp. 1-51.
- [3] D.G. Kleinbaum, L. L. Kupper and K. E. Muller. Applied Regression Analysis and Other Multivariable Methods // Boston: PWS-KENT, 1988.
- [4] K.V. Mardia, J.T. Kent and J. M. Bibby. Multivariate Analaysis // New York: Academic Press, 1979.
- [5] E.M.L. Beale. Euclidean Cluster Analysis // Bulletin of the Intenational Statistical Institute, Vol.43, No.2, 1969, pp. 92-4.





ANALYSIS OF MATHEMATICAL MODEL WITH MULTI-PARAMETRIC BINARY LINEAR DYNAMICAL SYSTEM

Yakup Haci Canakkale Onsekiz Mart University, Canakkale, Turkey e-mail:yhaciyev@comu.edu.tr

The system of multiparametric dual linear difference equations

$$\xi_v s(c) = \Phi_v(c) s(c) \oplus \Psi_v(c) x(c), \ c \in G_d, \ v = 1, 2, ..., k \ [GF(2)]$$
(1)

is analysed and exact solution is given. In this paper,

 $c = (c_1, c_2, ..., c_k) \in G_d = \{c | c \in Z^k, \ c_1^0 \le c_1 \le c_1^{L_1}, ..., c_k^0 \le c_k \le c_k^{L_k} \ c_i \in Z\}$

are the points in Z^k . L_i , i = 1, 2, ..., k are integers. $Z = \{..., -1, 0, 1, ...\}$ is a set of integers. $S = [GF(2)]^m$ and $X = [GF(2)]^r$ are state and input alphabets respectively. But s(c) and x(c) are m and r size state and input vectors which are described in set Z^k . $\xi_v s(c)$ is a shift operator defined as follows:

$$\xi_v s(c) = s(c+e_v), \ e_v = (0, ..., 0, 1, 0, ..., 0), \ v = 1, 2, ..., k$$

 $\{\Phi_v(c), v = 1, 2, ..., k\}, \{\Psi_v(c), v = 1, 2, ..., k\}$ are characteristic Boolean transition matrices of size $m \times m$ and $m \times r$ respectively over the Galois field [GF(2)].

Suppose that c^0 and c are points from Z^k , N is a discrete curve, connecting these points and $s_N(c)$ is solution of system (1), along to the discrete curve at the point c. It is clear that there is a unique solution to system (1) if and only if the solution of $s_N(c)$ is independent from the form of the discrete curve N. In this paper the following theorem shows that these phenomene is analytically expressed.

Theorem: There is an exact solution to the system of equations (1) if and only if the following equality is satisfied:

$$\begin{aligned} \phi_v(c+e_{\mu})\psi_{\mu}(c)x(c) \oplus \psi_v(c+e_{\mu})x(c+e_{\mu}) &= \\ &= \phi_{\mu}(c+e_v)\psi_v(c)x(c) \oplus \psi_{\mu}(c+e_v)x(c+e_v), \quad (v,\mu=1,2,...,k), \quad [GF(2)] \\ for fixed \ x(c) \ and \ all \ (c,s) \in Z^k \times [GF(2)]^m. \end{aligned}$$

- I.V. Gaishun. Completely Solvable Multidimensional Differential Equations // Nauka and Tekhnika, Minsk, 1983 (in Russian)
- [2] A. Anderson. Discrete Mathematics with Combinatorics // New Jersey, 2004.
- [3] Y. Haci. Optimal Control Problem for Processes with Multi-Parametric Binary Linear Difference Equation System // Applied and Computational Mathematics, Vol. 8, No.2, 2009.
- [4] Y. Haci and K. Özen. Terminal Control Problem For Processes Represented by Nonlinear Multi-Parameter Binary Dynamic System // Control and Cybernetics, Vol.38, No.3, 2009.





INVESTIGATION OF EFFECT OF LOW PRESSURE ON THE PHYSIOLOGICAL ASPECT ON HUMAN BODY BY USING ANALYTICAL METHODS

Ahmad Reza Haghighi Urmia University of Technology, Iran e-mail:ah.haghighi@gmail.com

One of most fascinating and amazing aspect of the human body is to all the adverse conditions and its functioning part; be it in desert bound regions having temperature ranges of 40-50°C or be at glacier kind whether having temperatures as low as -40 to -50° C. Though body is capable of sustaining of most of adverse conditions however, not all the human body behaves alike; some have a capability to sustain on the higher side and some on very low side of adverse weather conditions. The cold bite injuries (frost bite) are very dangerous. If adequate precautions are not taken, one may end up losing the affected tissue altogether. Though precautionary measurements have been already available [acclimatization] however, it has been observed that just acclimatization is not mere sufficient to cope with the adversaries but enough care has to be taken by understanding the physiological aspect of the individual [heart rate, blood pressure variation, flow rates of heart, heart beat etc] with respect to higher altitude. In the present studies physiological aspect of the blood flow has been modeled with a view to estimate the physiological flow parameters such as pressure, flow rates, and shear stress against adverse conditions. Mathematical model for blood flow has been developed in the present model with a view to correlate the finding with its impact on higher altitude [for the benefit of mountaineer or service, personnel getting inducted onto higher altitudes]. It is assumed that the flow is steady and laminar and turbulence effects in the body are neglected

$$\eta \nabla^4 u - \mu \nabla^2 u + \delta B_0^2 u = -\frac{\partial p}{\partial z} + \rho G,$$

where u(r) is the velocity in the axial direction, ρ and μ are the density and viscosity of blood, η is the couple stress parameter, σ is the electrical conductivity, B_0 is the external magnetic field and r is the radial coordinate.

References

 R.+N. Pralhad, and D.H. Schultz. Modeling of arterial stenosis and its applications to blood diseases // Mathematical Bio-sciences 2004, pp. 203-220.





MATHEMATICAL MODELLING AND CALCULATION FROM POLYDISPERSE MATERIALS

B. Ismailov, A.SH. Sharafiev, Kh.B. Ismailov The South Kazakhstan state university of M.Auezova, Shymkent, Kazakhstan e-mail:IsmailB@rambler.ru

In the given work the technique of mathematical modeling and calculation a target component depending on the sizes of polydisperse raw materials and time of stay of particles of fractions in is developed. The raw materials structure, according to classical models and adsorptions from porous environments, is presented in the form of enclosed in each other channels and the sizes. The modeling equations of impregnation of a skeleton of raw materials and a target component in and micropores are written down in a following kind:

$$\frac{\partial^2 \psi_a}{\partial u^2} + \sigma \gamma \frac{\partial \psi_i}{\partial \omega} |_{\omega=0} = \gamma \frac{\partial \psi_a}{\partial \tau},\tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial^2 \psi_i}{\partial \omega^2} = (1+\Gamma) \frac{\partial \psi_i}{\partial \tau},\tag{2}$$

where functions ψ_i , ψ_a are functions of coordinates and time: $\psi_i = \psi_i(u, \omega, \tau)$, $\psi_a = \psi_a(u, \omega, \tau)$ also represent concentration of a target component in disperse units.

By approximation of derivatives in the differential equations (1), (2) the issue is brought to the system of finite-difference equations:

$$\frac{P_{k+1,l,m} - 2P_{k,l,m} + P_{k-1,l,m}}{h_u^2} + \sigma \gamma \frac{S_{k,l+1,m} - S_{k,l,m}}{h_\omega} |_{l=0} = \gamma \frac{P_{k,l,m+1} - P_{k,l,m}}{h_\tau},$$
(3)

$$\frac{S_{k,l+1,m} - 2S_{k,l,m} + S_{k,l-1,m}}{h_{\omega}^2} = (1+\Gamma)\frac{S_{k,l,m+1} - S_{k,l,m}}{h_{\tau}}.$$
(4)

The scheme (3), (4) is obvious, the stability condition is provided with a choice of steps on time and coordinate. Realization of the presented problem has allowed to find dependence of distribution of concentration on time and a settlement way to define time of stay of fractions of polydisperse raw materials in :

$$T = \frac{1}{(1 - g^*)Kf} \ln\left(\frac{1 - g(C_0)/C_0}{1 - \eta (1 - g^*)}\right),\tag{5}$$

where

 C_0 – initial concentration a target component in a firm phase, kmol/kmol;

 $f - size of an interphase surface, m^2;$

K - kinetic factor, / (m²s);

g(C) – quilibrium concentration on the interphase surface, defined under the thermodynamic diagram, kmol/kmol;

 η - degree of extraction of a target component.





COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF RECOGNITION SYSTEM FOR AZERBAIJANI TEXTS WITH VARIOUS FEATURES CLASSES¹

Elviz A. Ismayilov Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:elviz.ismayilov@gmail.com

Various approaches to a problem of image recognition were generated. Those are the discriminated analysis, neuro-fuzzy approach, construction of the decision trees, application of fuzzy qualifiers, etc. Each approach offers the advantages and can be applied with updating to the majority of practical problems. Using various approaches, it is possible to receive similar on their structure algorithms. The complex approach at creation of qualifiers will allow connecting of advantages for each of the chosen approaches.

The data analysis is an essential part at the decision of all problems. Therefore at the decision of problems of image recognition synthesized on final samples of precedents, always it is necessary preliminary data analysis. The result of such analysis defines a way of the decision of a problem. In work the method of recognition with using of hybrid neural network is offered. Results for various classes of structural features which are calculated by various formulas according to a skeleton of the set symbol are received:

To define first class features the symbol is placed into the rectangle of defined size and divided into 9 parts. Following features are defined in each part (Fig.1):

Number of pixels- "empty" (N1), "less full" (N2), "full" (N3) and "more full" (N4);

Angle coefficient-"vertical" (A1), "less right slopping" (A2), "right slopping" (A3), "horizontal" (A4), "left slopping" (A5) and "less left slopping" (A6);

Maximal lengths for x coordinat-"short" (L1), "middle" (L2), "long" (L3) and "more long"

Maximal lengths for x coordinat-"short" (L1), "middle" (L2), "long" (L3) and "more long" (L4). (L4).



To define second class features, the area of symbol is transformed into a square and then is divided into 9 parts. Number of pixels in each part is calculated. Then diagonals of the main square and of 9 smaller squares are drawn and number of pixels in each resulting part is calculated. For each of part the terms "empty", "little full", "full", "very full". Membership functions had been constructed for these terms.

After calculating features are being grouped, then are presenting to the input of neural network and results are defining.

The various features, their groups influence the time of training and quality of recognition. Recognition accuracy of the system with the first class of features is high, but there are many undefined characters and the accuracy of recognition, time of learning and the number of undefined characters of the system with the second class of features is getting decreased. By this way after such experiments we can define an optimal group of features.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





MATHEMATICAL MODELLING OF SELF- ORGANIZED STATES IN LAMINAR FLAME

Polina G.Itskova Kazakh National University named after Al-Farabi, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:lasko@nursat.kz

Recently, the problem of self-organization in non-equilibrium systems has intensively been discussed [1]. The major role in the process of successive generation and formation of more complicated temporal and spatial structures is played by fluctuations. In the present paper some possible bifurcations in combustion systems are considered, namely, the onset of self-sustained oscillations, formation of new temporal and spatial structures. Approximate analytical prediction of the region of bifurcations is based upon the models of concentrated (zero-dimensional [2]) systems.

The problem is mathematically formulated by a system of equations for diffusion of the heat and reagents with chemical conversions for flat laminar flame. Two examples are considered: lean methaneoxygen-nitrogen mixture (simple kinetics) and rich hydrogen-oxygen-nitrogen mixture (two-step kinetics).

The concentrated system is obtained from the distributed one, the spatial derivatives being substituted by three-node finite-differences including boundary nodes. The analysis of stability of combustion regimes is reduced to analysis of motion stability in the phase plane (the first example) and phase space (second example) by applying the first Lyapunov's method. It has been found, that when some characteristic parameters are varied (e.g. Peclet number), the motion can become unstable, and new types of motion (structures) may result. In the plane of external parameters the parametric boundaries of stability have revealed the regions of nonsingular stationary states, steady and damped oscillations.

Numerically solutions of initial one - dimensional systems show that the stationary values of functions, the period of oscillations and possible parametric regions, can be predicted from analysis of zero-dimensional systems. The fact that the non-unique stationary states are available depending on the burner temperature, was established by the zero-dimensional and was confirmed by numerical solutions. The hysteresis in the dependence on the gas flow velocity was obtained numerically. The theoretically predicted stationary profiles of temperature and concentration are conform with experiment. In the second example the system exhibits self-oscillations and damped oscillations in the domain of non-unique regimes for high temperature stationary states.

If the process is periodically disturbed, then both regimes of undamped oscillations and combustion cut-off can occur in the system, depending on the amplitude and frequency of disturbance, i.e. different temporal and spatial structures are formed and stabilized.

Thus, the approximate analysis based upon a zero-dimensional model and one-dimensional numerical experiments can reveal the phenomena of self-organization in combustion.

- [1] G. Nicolis, I. Prigogine. Self-Organization in Nonequilibrium Systems // Wiley, New York, 1977.
- [2] A.T. Luk'yanov, L.U. Artyukh, P.G. Itskova. Mathematical Simulation of the problems of Combustion Theory // Alma-Ata, Nauka, 1981.
- [3] P.L. Stephenson, R.G. Taylor. Combustion and Flame // Vol. 20, 1973, pp. 231-244.





APPLYING EXPERT SYSTEM DECISION THEORY IN ALLOCATING QUOTAS FOR CASPIAN SEA BIORESOURCES

N. Jaichibekov, M. Gabbasov, T. Kuanov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:jaich@mail.ru

In order to achieve the second goal and to determine the weights to be assigned to each, the factors are arranged according to significance by acknowledged experts. These experts clearly need to know the system and the resources, to have no obvious allegiance to any country's specific political view, and to be acceptable to all countries no matter which state nominates them for the task. They do not necessarily need to hold the nationality of any Caspian littoral state, though if they are acceptable to all states for the purpose of ranking performance by factor and parameter, they can be. Once accredited as experts for the process, they need to rank the factors in order of significance, as a rule ranking them using integer numbers from 1 to the total number of factors, p. Using an established method for processing expert opinion, all factors can then be ranked and their weight in the allocation process assigned. The sum of all weight coefficients should be equal to 1 (a condition of normalization).

To evaluate the correspondence of expert opinion, a function of collective ranking (FCR) is applied. This is defined as follows. Let $A = \{a_1, a_2, \ldots, a_p\}$ be the set of factors and $N = \{1, 2, \ldots, n\}$ the group of experts. The total number of factors is p, and the number of experts is n. L(A) is the set of all linear ordering of the elements of set A. In this case, this is the set of all possible rearrangements of factors a_1, a_2, \ldots, a_p . Then, the ranking of factors by each expert is equal to the selection of one element of set L(A). Element $u_i \in L(A)$, i = 1, 2, ..., n is referred to as the preference or ranking of the *i*-expert, and vector $u = (u_1, u_2, \ldots, u_n) \in L(A)^n$ is the profile of preferences (rankings) of all experts.

The FCR, φ , should ensure the correspondence of each ranking profile u with some optimal ranking from set L(A): $\varphi : L(A)^n \to L(A)$, which is a reflection of the ranking profile u by φ .

In order for φ actually to reflect the collective opinion of experts and to meet the reasonable expectations of fairness, rationality, and stability of choice, it should have the following properties (Gurvich V. A., and Menshikov, placeI. S. 1989. Institutes of the Agreement. Mathematics and Cybernetics, 6. Znanie, CityplaceMoscow. 48 pp.): Without these properties, the FCR cannot be put into practice. For the collective preference mechanism to work, one needs to put into φ the preferences of experts $u = (u_1, u_2, \ldots, u_n)$ the resultant ranking will be \overline{u} .

Lemma: Let Mij be the rank of the i- factor in the opinion of the j-expert, and let Fij be the number of ranked factors in the opinion of the *j*-expert. Then, MFij, j = i, and $FMij, j = i \forall i, j$. The values Mij and Fij are integer numbers from 1 to p.

 φ may be defined in several ways. As shown, sums of r_i (the last column) are found for each factor. If all sums of r_i are different, then the optimal ranking will be the ascendant order of factors in terms of the sums of r_i . If there are equal sums among r_i , then the optimal will be the ranking \overline{u} satisfying the condition:

Arg min $\sum_{k} \sum_{j} \rho(F_{j}, u_{k}) = \overline{u}$, where $\rho(u_{i}, u_{j}) = \frac{p(p+1)(2p+1)}{6} - \sum_{k=1}^{p} b_{ki} \cdot b_{kj}$. **Theorem.** φ as defined as above is anonymous, neutral, and efficient if it is defined in the form

of a vector $ri = \sum M_{ij} + \sum M_{ij}^2$, where $i = 1, 2, \dots, p$.





THE PULSATION ACCOUNT AT MODELLING OF THE GASLIFT PROCESS

Mahammad A. Jamalbayov, Saday M. Nasibov, Mehman F. Guliev Institute of Applied Mathematics Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:mjamalbayov@ctnet.az

As it is known, mathematical modeling of process at oil recovery is connected with serious difficulties. It is connected with specificity of the process, its discrete character. It is necessary to notice that the action principle of gaslift consists in periodic emission of certain quantity of a liquid from the well. Thus, in each interval of such emissions the pressure in the lift goes down and the condition for inflow of the next portion to the bottom-hole is created. Thus the liquid level in the lift rises and the dynamic level is formed. And so all repeats anew. The frequency of these repetitions depends on a gas injection regime and reservoir performance. And so, it is visible that gaslift is the oscillatory process consisting of several phases



In work the algorithm for the forecasting of the gaslift process is offered. The idea, the offered approach is based on the account of noted phases which consist from the discrete conditions of enough small time interval.

The phase 1. The bottom-hole pressure The liquid inflow to the well restoration. should form the liquid column in the lift of height H_{st} wich equates the bottom-hole pressure to the reservoir pressure:

 $p_w = \gamma_l \sum \Delta h_{st} + p_i$, where p_i is the overpressure created by injected gas; Δh_{st} is the incremental value of the liquid level in the lift at the Δt time interval. For the definition of the current liquid level value in the lift we will write (without gas weight): $h_{st} = \frac{1}{f} \sum Q_o \Delta t$, where Q_o is the reservoir flow rate at the time interval Δt . It is defined by the numerical solution of the equations of movement of fluids in the formation [1]. And p_i is defined by the numerical solution of the following system of the equations [2]:

$$-\frac{\partial P_i}{\partial x} = \frac{1}{F}\frac{\partial Q_i}{\partial t} + \frac{2a}{F}Q_i, 2a = \frac{g}{w_c} + \frac{\lambda_c w_c}{2D}$$

 $-\frac{\partial P_i}{\partial t} = \frac{c^2}{f_i} \frac{\partial Q_i}{\partial x}$, where physical sense of all designations same as well as in work [2]. And so, h_{st} raises to the value $H_{st} = \frac{p_r}{\gamma_6}$. As h_{st} will reach to value H_{st} the second phase - the emission phase begins.

The phase 2. The emission phase. The volume of the lifted liquid is defined by empirical expression of type $Q_l = f(Q_i, d, \overline{\varepsilon}), V_l = Q_l \cdot \Delta t$. And as a result a new liquid level and a new value of the bottom-hole pressure is formed:

 $h_{st}^1 = h_{st}^0 - \frac{V_l}{f} \quad p_w^1 = \gamma_l h_{st}^1 + p_h$. Thus the condition for inflow of a liquid from the reservoir is created and the process repeats until as the reservoir pressure can't provide depression for inflow. The described approach allows to consider real features of the gaslift process and can be a basis at modeling.

- [1] M.T. Abasov, F.G. Orudjaliev, M.A. Djamalbekov. Scientific Basis Gas Condensate Reservoirs Development in Deformed Reservoir Rocks // Proceedings of the II Symposium on Mining Chemistry. Visegrad, Hungary. 22-24 October, 1986, pp. 187-206.
- [2] M.A. Jamalbayov, N.A. Ismailov, S.M. Nasibov. Algorithm To Forecasting Of The Gaslift Prosses On The Well-Reservoir System // Reports National Academy of Siences of Azerbaijan, Vol.LXVI, No.5, 2010, pp. 21-27.





DIFFERENT FORMS AND EXACT SOLUTIONS FOR THE EVOLUTION EQUATION OF A PLASTIC LAYER SPREADING ON A PLANE

N.A. Belov, V.A. Kadymov Institute for Problems in Mechanics RAS, Russia, Moscow State Technical University "MAMI", Russia e-mail:belov@ipmnet.ru, vkadymov@yandex.ru

The problem of plastic layer spreading between the surfaces of converging external bodies [1] has been analyzed. Earlier [2] the nonlinear evolution differential equation for determining the contour $y = \varphi(x, t_1)$ of free spreading plastic layer on a plane was deduced:

$$\frac{\partial\varphi}{\partial t_1} - \varphi \left(1 + \left(\frac{\partial\varphi}{\partial x}\right)^2 \right) - \frac{1}{2}\varphi^2 \frac{\partial^2\varphi}{\partial x^2} = 0, \tag{1}$$

where $t_1 = \ln(h(t_0)/h(t))$ - the dimensionless time; h(t)- the thickness of plastic layer. In [3] the evolution equation for $y = \varphi_1(x_1, t_1)$, where $x_1 = x/h(t), y_1 = y/h(t)$,

$$\frac{\partial \varphi_1}{\partial t_1} + x_1 \frac{\partial \varphi_1}{\partial x_1} - \varphi_1 \left(2 + \left(\frac{\partial \varphi_1}{\partial x_1} \right)^2 \right) - \frac{1}{2} \varphi_1^2 \frac{\partial^2 \varphi_1}{\partial x_1^2} = 0$$
(2)

was deduced with the help of another original method. In [3] it is also showed that the equation (2) passes to particular form of thermal conductivity equation

$$\frac{\partial w}{\partial \tau} = \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \left(w^2 \frac{\partial w}{\partial x} \right) \tag{3}$$

The exact solutions for evolution equations (1)-(3), the well-known and some new ones, are described.

- [1] A.A. Ilyushin. Trudy (1946-1966) // Plasticity, Moscow: Fizmatlit, Vol.2, 2004, pp. 211-219 (Russian).
- [2] I.A. Kiyko. In: Scientific foundations of modern technics and technology // Moscow: Mashinostroenie, 1986, pp. 102-133 (Russian).
- [3] N.A. Belov, V.A. Kadymov. Mechanics of Solids // Vol.46, No.1, 2011.





A METHOD OF PAIRWISE RECOGNITION OF SOUNDS COMBINING FREQUENCY ANALYSIS WITH ANALYSIS OF FILTERED SIGNAL IN THE TIME DOMAIN

Muslima Kh. Karabalayeva L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:mkarabal@gmail.com

A sound and a word are acoustically different phonetic objects, in essence. A sound has got comparatively homogeneous spectrum, while a word consists of a few parts having heterogeneous spectra. For this reason, when recognizing a whole word we should use a feature *vector* of some kind. While it is reasonable to use a suitable *scalar* feature or a set of independent scalar features to recognize pairs of sounds (or pairs of their classes). Each scalar feature must provide its own result of recognition. As a rule, it is possible to make a few tests and determine the range of values every feature can take, for each class of the two. Values out of the range should be interpreted as recognition failure.

Suppose that we have detected a speech segment with a single vowel, by using the segmentation algorithm described in [1], [2]. Now, how can we determine what exactly vowel is it? To solve the problem we use a complex approach, which combines frequency analysis (that is, processing the signal by a set of band-pass filters) with analysis of the filtered signal in the time domain.

So after we have selected a segment in the speech signal, we split it into windows n samples each. Suppose we have got m windows in number. In every window we calculate the value of

$$V = \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} |x_{i+1} - x_i| \tag{1}$$

- the numerical analogue of total variation for the discrete case. Then we count the arithmetic mean of m values of (1) calculated in m sequenced windows. We call the new value variation V of selected segment.

We also use the numerical analogue V of total variation with variable upper bound to define a new quantity - variation measure of signal. We consider an auxiliary function W that increases along with V, but is "thrown down" to 0 on reaching some specified value A. Suppose, it reaches A and gets thrown down to 0 at consecutive points N_1 , N_2 , ... We continue the series of points until the selected segment with a vowel is over. We count distances between neighboring points N_k , and get a series of numbers N_1 , $N_2 - N_1$, $N_3 - N_2$, ...

Then we count the arithmetic mean of these numbers in the selected segment of the signal. We call the new value variation measure or measure M of selected segment.

V/M ratio calculated for a segment of the signal pre-processed by a set of digital band-pass filters will be eventually used as a feature for scalar recognizers allowing of discrimination between pairs of sounds.

- [1] V.Yu. Shelepov. Lectures on Speech Recognition // Donetsk: Nauka i osvita, 2009, 196 p.
- [2] M.Kh. Karabalayeva. Mathematical Support and Software for Phoneme Recognition of Kazakh Speech Based Upon Segmentation of the Speech Signal // Astana, 2010, 136 p.





NUMERICAL MODELING OF MULTIPHASE FLOW IN POROUS MEDIUM

Nail S. Khabeev Department of Mathematics, University of Bahrain, Kingdom of Bahrain e-mail:nail@sci.uob.bh

The mathematical model is presented for unsteady two-dimensional percolation of two-phase multicomponent liquid in porous medium. The practical problem was considered of oil recovery from the system of wells by using chemical reagents during injections of water. Numerical results are presented. The micellar-polymer water flooding is investigated under the following assumptions: the fluids following through the porous medium are incompressible, the porosity is a piecewise-constant function of the Space coordinates, the skeleton of the porous medium is rigid, the flow is equilibrium and isothermal, and the pressures in the liquid phases are equal. The motion is assumed to be two-dimensional and obeys the Darcy's law. The polymer absorption by the skeleton is assumed to proceed in accordance with Henry law. We considered the flow for a five point well location diagram. The hyperbolic transport equations were approximated using an implicit upwind first-order scheme with minimization of the numerical dispersion. The elliptic equation for the pressure was solved by the stabilization method with sweep in variable directions. In order to take the features of the pressure distribution near the wells into account, in the neighborhood of the wells we distinguish zones in which the motion is assumed to be plane-radial. In the case of a five-point spacing scheme, for micellar-polymer flooding we found the two-dimensional pressure, saturation, and surfactant and polymer concentration distributions. On the basis of these distributions we can draw the following conclusions: the injection well pressure changes sharply with variation of the viscosity of the injected fluid and the mixture flow velocity is significantly different over the flow region, having a maximum in the neighborhood of the injection well and a minimum along a line equidistant from the wells. The efficiency of the process of improving oil recovery is analyzed: both the absolute permeability range over which the time of break-through of the micellar solution into the producing well is greater than for homogeneous reservoir.





MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF PHENOMENA AT CLOSURE OF ELECTRICAL CONTACTS IN VACUUM

S.N. Kharin Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:staskharin@yahoo.com

Phenomena occurring at closure of electrical contacts in vacuum circuit breakers are very important for understanding of arc evolution, mechanism of contact erosion and welding.

Electrical breakdown, micro-arcing, melting and evaporation of micro-asperities are described by axisymmetric Stefan problem with two free boundaries corresponding to melting and evaporation interfaces. Three zones in contact area should be considered to find temperature dynamics and pressure of metal vapours in contact gap, including the zone of evaporated micro-asperity $D_0[-l \le z \le 0]$ with adjoining evaporated area inside contact $D_1[0 \le z \le \sigma_b(r,t)]$, melted zone $D_2[\sigma_b(r,t) \le z \le \sigma_m(r,t)]$ and solid zone $D_3[\sigma_m(r,t) \le z < \infty]$.

The heat equation for the temperature field for each domain D_i , i = 0, 1, 2, 3 should be written in the form

$$c_0\gamma_0\frac{\partial T_0}{\partial t} = \frac{1}{S(z)}\frac{\partial}{\partial z}[S(z)\lambda_0\frac{\partial T_0}{\partial z}] + \frac{I^2\rho_0}{S^2(z)}, c_i\gamma_i\frac{\partial T_i}{\partial t} = \Delta T_i + j^2\rho_i \quad i = 1, 2, 3.$$

The Stefan's conditions on free boundary surfaces are

$$-\lambda_2 \frac{\partial T_2}{\partial n} = -\lambda_3 \frac{\partial T_3}{\partial n} + L_m \gamma_m \frac{\partial \sigma_m}{\partial t} - \lambda_1 \frac{\partial T_1}{\partial n} = -\lambda_2 \frac{\partial T_2}{\partial n} + L_b \gamma_2 \frac{\partial \sigma_b}{\partial t}.$$

This problem is solved using method of majorant functions [1]. Results of solution are verified by experimental data [2]. It was found that metallic vapor pressure plays very important role at contact bouncing and welding.





MODELING UNSTABLE STRATIFIED TURBULENT FLOW IN OPEN CHANNELS

B.T. Zhumagulov, U.S. Abdibekov, A.K. Khikmetov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:askar.khikmetov@kaznu.kz

This work considered an unstable stratified turbulent flow in the open channel. Constructed mathematical model allows to simulate the unstable stratified flows and define averages and pulsation characteristics of turbulent flow. Developed the algorithm to solve of the problem and receive results of calculations which well coordinated with the known experiment data.

Unstable stratified turbulent flow is a common type of geophysical flows. The main property of unstable stratified flow is the process of turbulence generation. The basic part of the turbulent energy in stratified flows is generated by the Archimedean buoyancy force. The mechanism of this process is one of the weak-studied problems of atmospheric and ocean science, as it differs from natural convection. In this paper we consider the problem of practical meaning, when the chilled liquid on the surface interacts with the main traffic flow and changes its temperature. In this case, the temperature can not be considered passive, since there is a complex correlation of velocity and temperature.

To study the interaction of velocity and temperature fields, we consider the turbulent flow in the three-dimensional open channel. In order to the problem we use the three-dimensional unsteady Reynolds equation for the motion and the turbulent heat transfer [1].

The system of the equations dares numerically. The splitting method is applied to the decision of the equation of movement on physical parameters where the method of rhythmic steps is applied to a finding components of speed. The equations for temperature dare a method of rhythmic steps by means of the three-step-by-step scheme where on each coordinate implicit difference the equations dares a method of scalar prorace. Vertical speeds is from the indissolubility equation.

The obtained numerical simulation results are compared with experimental data [2]. The results of simulation satisfy to the experimental data. The experiment was conducted in a rectangular tray for different values of Reynolds and Richardson. Unstable stratification was generated by cooling of the free surface, where measurements of the following correlations were made:

$$R_{uv} = \frac{\overline{u_1 u_3}}{-\sqrt{u_1^2}\sqrt{u_3^2}}, \quad R_{ut} = \frac{\overline{u_3 t}}{-\sqrt{u_3^2}\sqrt{t^2}}$$

Thus, a mathematical model was built that allows simulating the unstable stratified flows to determine average and pulsation characteristics of turbulent flow.

- [1] V.M. Ievlev. Numerical Simulation of Turbulent Flows // M.: Nauka, 1990, 216 p.
- S. Komori, H. Ueda, F. Ogino, T. Mizushina. Turbulence structure in unstably-stratified open channel flow // The Physics of Fluids., Vol.25, No.9, 1982, pp. 1539-1546.





MATHEMATICAL MODELING INSTALLED THERMO OF THE MECHANICAL PROCESSES IN DEFORMED HARD SUBJECTS AT PRESENCE OF THE LOCAL TEMPERATURE, HEAT FLOW, HEAT EXCHANGE AND HEAT TO INSULATION

K A. Kudaykulovich, N. E. Nurlybaevna

Institute Mechanical Engineers and Machine of Conduct Kazakh Nationale Technical University e-mail:NurEmuk@mail.ru

The Carryinging elements of the engines of internal combustion and technological line processing industry work in complex heat and power field. In consequence of which in they appear the process of the heat expansion, which brings and thermo-tense-deformed to condition. For provision of toughness and reliability these element necessary to develop the special method allowing research the law of the sharing the temperature, displacement forming deformation and voltages in volume of the considered body. Herewith appears the corresponding to difficulties. These difficulties is motivated that that field of the sharing the temperature in volume of the under investigation body are described by equation in quotient of the derived parabolic type. In that time field distribution forming displacement, deformation and voltages are described by equation in quotient of the derived hyperbolic type. But in spite of these inconvenience possible to describe the under investigation phenomenas by means of using the laws of the conservation to energy. As a matter of convenience, the interpretations of the proposed methods shall consider the questions of mathematical modeling warm-up and thermo of the mechanical phenomenas in deformed hard body in peg of the limited length residing simultaneous under influence of the local temperature, heat flow, heat exchange and heat insulation. For this first form the expression a function to full energy. Minimizing her(it) on node importance of the temperature is got allowing system of the linear equations, which decision allows to build the field of the sharing the temperature in volume of the under investigation body. Whereupon using founded law of the sharing the temperature is formed function to potential energy springy deformation. Minimizing last on node importances of the displacement is built allowing system of the linear equations, which decision allows to build the field of the distribution, but on he is built field of the distribution all forming deformation and voltages. Here follows to note that proposed algorithm and method allows to take into account all existing heterogeneous border conditions and condition to usages.

References

[1] V.F. Nozdrev. Course of the Thermodynamics // M.: World, 1967, 247 p.

 $[2]\,$ L. Segerlind. Using the Method Final Element // M.: World, 1979, 392 p.





UNSTEADY VIBRATIONS OF THE ROTOR SYSTEM WITH TIME-VARYING MASS

A.B. Kydyrbekuly Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:almatbek@list.ru

We consider the problem of unsteady vibrations of flexible rotor with variable mass on elastic supports having a linear characteristic of elasticity, with taking into account of internal and external friction and gyroscopic effect of the system caused by a simultaneous change of mass and angular velocity of the rotor. The rotor shell is motionless.

On the basis of an asymptotic single-frequency method of Bogoliubov-Mitropolsky the solutions are built of resulting systems of differential equations with variable coefficients, describing behavior of various schemes of rotor systems with time-varying masses. The obtained solutions allow to investigate both transient and stationary modes of operation of such systems.

For various schemes of the rotor systems with time-varying mass, it is shown that amplitude of the non-stationary oscillations depends on the "relative velocity" changing of its own and forced frequencies. If "relative velocity" of change of these frequencies is high enough, the system passes quickly the resonance zone and amplitude growth is avoided. Conversely, by small "relative velocity" of change of these frequencies, the system delays in the resonance zone and the amplitude reaches high values. By appropriate choice of velocity of mass changing and hence the own frequency, as well as the angular velocity of the system, it is possible to choose the best mode of passing through the zone of the main resonance of the rotor system with variable mass.





MATHEMATICAL MODELLING OF THE PROBLEM OF HYDRODYNAMICS BY THE METHOD OF FICTITIOUS DOMAINS

Sh.N. Kuttykozhaeva, Y.N. Nurpeyissov Kokshetau State University, Kokshetau, Kazakhstan e-mail:shaharzat@mail.ru

In this work justification of the fictitious domains method is given. For the first time obtained not improving mark of confergence rate of the solving the from auxiliary problem to solving the original problem at the time when the small parameter strive to zero.

Let's consider the boundary value problem for nonlinear elliptic equations in $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^3$ with boundary S

$$\Delta v - v^3 = f,\tag{1}$$

$$v|_s = 0. (2)$$

As method of fictitious domains for the continuation of the lower coefficient in the auxiliary area $D \supset \Omega$ with boundary $S_1, S_1 \cap S = \emptyset$, solving equation with small parameter

1

$$\Delta v^{\varepsilon} - (v^{\varepsilon})^3 - \frac{\xi(x)}{\varepsilon} v^{\varepsilon} = f, \qquad (3)$$

$$v^{\varepsilon}|_{S_1} = 0, \tag{4}$$

where f - continued with zero out of Ω and $\xi(x) = \{ \begin{array}{c} 0, \ x \in \Omega \\ 1, \ D_1 = D \backslash \Omega ... \end{array}$

Theorem 1. Let's $f \in W_2^{-1}(D)$. Then there exists a unique weak solution of the problem (3)-(4) that satisfies to the estimate

$$\|v_x^{\varepsilon}\|_{L_2(D_1)}^2 + \|v^{\varepsilon}\|_{L_4(D)}^4 + \frac{1}{\varepsilon} \|v^{\varepsilon}\|_{L_2(D_1)}^2 \le C \|f\|_{W_2^{-1}(D)}^2 ,$$

$$\|f^{\varepsilon}\|_{W_2^{-1}(D)} = \sup_{\substack{\|\psi\|_{0} = \\ W_2^{1}(D)}} (f, \psi)_{L_2(D)}.$$
(5)

Moreover this solution converges to the generalized solution of the problem (1), (2) by $\varepsilon \longrightarrow \infty$. **Definition 1.** Strong solution of the problem (3)-(4) is called function $v^{\varepsilon} \in W_2^1(D) \cap W_2^2(D)$, that satisfies to the equation (3) almost everywhere.

Theorem 2. Let's $f \in L_2(\Omega)$, $S, S_1 \in C^2$. Then there a stronger solution of the problem (3)-(4) satisfying to the estimete

$$\|v^{\varepsilon}\|_{W_{2}^{2}(D)\cap W_{2}^{1}(D)} \leq C_{\varepsilon} \quad where \quad C_{\varepsilon} \to \infty \quad then \ \varepsilon \to \infty.$$
(6)

Theorem 3. Let's $f \in L_2(D)$, $S, S \in C^2$. Then

 $\|v^{\varepsilon} - v\|_{L_2(\Omega)} \le C_0 \sqrt{\varepsilon},$ (7)

where C_0 -positive constant that does not depend on ε .





OPTIMAL CONTROL OF THE INDUCTIVE HEATING PROCESS OF OIL-WELL CASING IN COLD, INTERMEDIATE AND HOT MODES

Liliia G. Lelevkina Kyrgyz-Russian Slavic University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:lelevkina_l@mail.ru

Mathematical model of the inductive heating process of oil-well casing is represented as the equation of heat conduction that involved the control action with the boundary conditions and the criteria of heat quality. The performance criterion is energy functional that involves penalty function with penalty parameters governing heat quality during the process [1]. Control action satisfies the constraints according to the physical significance of the process of inductive heating. The optimal control action structure for the internal source heat intensity in cold, intermediate and hot modes is obtained in the paper. It is performed using the necessary condition of optimality for distributed systems [2] and application of optimization method with internal control actions [3]. Hot mode was carefully analyzed in this paper[4].

The practical problem of optimal inductive heating of oil-well casing in hot mode is solved numerically in this work. Numerical computation is carried out by means of integro-interpolation method using Crank-Nikolson scheme [5]. Numerous experiments and analysis allow tracing the dependence of minimized functional on the penalty parameters and get its three-dimensional plots. The analysis prompts to assign penalty parameters which provide optimal heat mode. According to the results of the carried research recommendations are given how to use them in practice.

- H.P. Blatt, R. Felix, L.G. Lelevkina, M. Sommer (Eds.). Analytical and Approximate Methods // International Conference at the Kyrgyz-Russian Slavic University, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan, 2002, Shaker Verlag, Aachen, 2003.
- [2] A.I. Egorov. Fundamentals of Control Theory // Moscow, Phizmathlit, 2004.
- [3] L.G. Lelevkina, S.N. Sklyar, O.S. Khlybov. Optimal control for heat induction process under the boundary governing in uence // Materials of international conference. Program systems: theory and applications, Moscow, 2006, pp. 121-138.
- [4] R. Grothmann, L.G. Lelevkina, M. Sommer (Eds.). Actual Problems of Control Theory, Topology and Operator Equations // Shaker Verlag, Aachen, 2009.
- [5] L.G. Lelevkina, S.N. Sklyar, O.S. Khlybov. Optimal control and heat conductivity // Automation and Remote Control, Springer Science + Business Media, 2008, Vol.69, No.4, pp. 654-667.





GEOINFORMATION SYSTEM IS BASED ON MATHEMATICAL MODEL MICROCLIMATE INDUSTRIAL CITY

M.N. Madiyarov East-Kazakhstan State University, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Kazakhstan e-mail:madiyarov_mur@mail.ru

In recent years the problem of interaction between human society and the environment is an increasingly growing interest and the task of evaluating and abating air pollution in cities now bothers many people. Therefore, nowadays one of the most important tasks of science is to forecast changes in ecosystems caused by natural and anthropogenic factors. The first step in solving these problems is the study of pollution emissions of waste industrial enterprises, transport and the influence of anthropogenic heat on urban climate, the next step is to assess the impact of harmful contaminants on the biological environment. In this paper, to solve a mathematical model of the microclimate of an industrial city in computing the transition region from the Cartesian (x, y, z) to the curvilinear coordinate system (ξ, η, ζ) . It was created a numerical algorithm for solving the finite - difference equations of the model of the microclimate of the industrial city by the splitting method by physical processes. Relevance of the work is determined by the needing to automate the modeling of air pollution in industrial centers, the establishment of geographic information system for the integrated study of the dynamics of pollutants in the air pool of a certain region, providing opportunities for computational experiments in the light of current information, and the study of various situations within a given situations. There are already developed in the CIS geographic information systems that is solving such problems, but they use only calculation method of emissions of AML-86 and to study the spread of harmful substances using a Gaussian plume model, which does not give the real picture of pollution, because it does not take into account the dynamics of city climate change, typical of the investigated area vortex flows, terrain. On the basis of the considered mathematical model of the microclimate of the industrial city was established GIS system which is implemented and used in the work of an engineer-ecologist in the field of air protection in the Regional Center of Ecological Monitoring of Ust-Kamenogorsk city.

References

 B.T. Zhumagulov, N.M. Temirbekov, M.N. Madiyarov. Using computer technology to optimize traffic flow, taking into account ecological requirements // The Scientific and technical journal "Bulletin of Engineering Academy of the Republic of Kazakhstan - Almaty, Vol.33, No.3, 2009.

[2] M.N. Madiyarov, etc. Numerical modeling of atmospheric processes in the limited territory and their adaptation for modeling a microclimate of Ust-Kamenogorsk // ENVIROMIS, International conference on environmental observations, modeling and informational systems, Tomsk, Russia, 2006.





THE NETWORK MODEL USED IN DESIGNING INFORMATION SYSTEMS

S.N. Boranbayev, A.S. Boranbayev, E.M. Maimanov Eurasian National University named L.N. Gumilyov, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:sboranba@yandex.kz,aboranba@yahoo.com,maimanov2011@yandex.kz

In designing of information system the stage of work can be presented in the type of network model. Presenting of stages of work in the type of network model provides strict and obvious description

of the structure elaborating information system, multileveled decomposition of the processes on the separate stages and types of work, presenting them on logical organization and ties, separate representation of inlet and outlet of managing information, also implementing methods and means of processes of life cycle software information system.

Main content of projecting technology includes of technological instructions composing of sequence description of technological operations, requirements which one or another operations and descriptions of the very operations would be depend on.

Information technology as one of the other system should meet the following demands: to provide high leveled partitioning of all process of informational implementation of the stage, operation and action; to include all kind of elements necessary for achieving the aims; to have regular character.

Stages, actions and operations of the technical processes could be standardized and unified; it would allow implementing goal-seeking agency on information system effectively.

Implementing technology for projecting of information system based on the structure-functional and object-oriented methods of analyses.

Object-oriented methods play an important role in the system analysis and projecting, based on decomposition in the domain object presenting in the kind of object package interacting by means of message passing.

This approach does not controversy the structure approach, moreover the fragments of structure analysis methodology (basic models are DFD, ERD, STD) is used on object-oriented methods of analyses for modeling the structures and conducts of the very objects.

In the implemented technology could be used combined methods of structure-functional and objectoriented methods of analyses. Depending on concrete requirements to projecting there could be offered the most optimal methods to create information system. The choice of methods are presenting as a pattern (of ready determination).

According to the projecting methodology were choose modeling methods and CASE-means for selected methods.

As a method were defined: IDEF0 - for modeling business processes "As is"; Use Case - for modeling business processes "What is"; DFD - for modeling dataflow "As is" and "What is"; Activite diagram, Sequence diagram - for modeling workflow "What is"; Class diagram - for modeling data "What is".

As CASE-means were selected: AllFusion Process Modeler BPwin 7.0 - for building IDEF0 and DFD models; Ration Rose 2003 - for building UML - chart.

In the implemented technology regardless selected methods of functional modeling IDEF0 USE CASE could be build network model of business-processes carrying out by information system.

Every functional block in IDEF0 or precedent in USE CASE can be presented as a type of subnetwork of network model. Network model of business-processes shows connection between functions, and also allows to see the scheme of functional model system for further system decomposition on major components and functions.





APPLICATION OF NEURAL NETWORKS TO THE PROBLEMS ON FINDING THE FORM IN DYNAMIC PROCESSES

K.M. Majidzadeh Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:Kambiz823@yahoo.com

In this paper we considered the form identification problem in dynamic processes. According to the given situation of different forms of the initial and recent moments, we considered definition of recent situation with respect to another initial form application. Algorithm for applying artificial neural network to training of this problem is given. The prognostication problem related with evolution of the form is investigated and model examples are considered. For investigating the considered problems, at first the type of a neural network should be defined. The type of a neural network is chosen from the problem statement and data used in the training process. At the same time notice that there are no strict methods for chosing the structure of a neural network and in most cases each investigator choses the structure of this network a priori.

Now, the main problem is to perform the training process in the chosen neural network. For that we use the given n number data and n number outputs and define the weight coefficients of a neural network. But as it was noted, there is a difficulty in including (training) the form of a body to a network. For that we can use the following two rules. This method may be applied when the considered domains are convex. The continuous positive-homogeneous support functions $P_1(x), P_2(x), ..., P_n(x), x \in \mathbb{R}^2$ and $\overline{P}_1(x), \overline{P}_2(x), ..., \overline{P}_n(x), x \in \mathbb{R}^2$ are found for iput $D_1, D_2, ..., D_n$ and output $\overline{D}_1, \overline{D}_2, ..., \overline{D}_n$ domains, respectively. We try to construct such a neural network that associates the functions $P_1(x), P_2(x), ..., P_n(x), x \in \mathbb{R}^2$ with the functions $\overline{P}_1(x), \overline{P}_2(x), ..., \overline{P}_n(x), x \in \mathbb{R}^2$.

Increasing the number of the k number points $x_1, x_2, ..., x_k \in \mathbb{R}^2$, we can minimize the error in the training. To this network we train the values $P(x_1), P(x_2), ..., P(x_k)$ of the support function P(x) of a new domain D at corresponding points. In this case, the constructed neural network will give us the collection $(y_1, y_1, ..., y_k)$ as an output variable. These outputs are the values of the support function $\overline{P}(x)$ of the desired domain \overline{D} at appriate points, i.e. $\overline{P}(x_1) = y_1, \overline{P}(x_2) = y_2, ..., \overline{P}(x_k) = y_k$.

According to these values, we can find the support function and its appropriate domain by the rule in [1, .12; 3, .32].

When the input $D_1, D_2, ..., D_n$ and output $D_1, D_2, ..., D_n$ domains are not convex or it is difficult to find their appriate support functions, we can use the following rule.

- A.A. Niftiyev, Y.S. Gasimov. Control by Boundaries and Eigevalue Problems by Variable Domain // Publishing House "BSU", 2004, 185 p.
- R.M. Alguliev, R.M. Aliguliev, R.K. Alekperov. New approach to optimal appointment for distributed system // Informatics and computer science Problems, No. 5, 2004, pp. 23-31.
- [3] V.F. Demyanov, A.M. Rubinov. Bases of Non-Smooth Analysis and Quasidifferential Calculus // M.: Nauka, 1990.







THE DEPENDENCE OF THE KAON ELEKTROMAGNETIC FORM FACTOR ON THE FACTORIZATION SCALE

Y.V. Mamedova

Institute of Applied Mathematics, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:leman87us@yahoo.com

In this work the kaon electromagnetic form factor $F_K(Q^2)$ is calculated by means of the infrared matching scheme [1]. The dependence of the meson's distribution amplitude (DA) $\Phi_M(x,Q^2)$ on the factorization scale Q^2 is taken into account [2]. It is demonstrated that this method as the running coupling constant method allow one to evaluate power-suppressed corrections to $F_M(Q^2)$. In calculations the meson's model DA obtained in the context of QCD sum rules approach is used. We choose the renormalization scale μ_R^2 to be equal to the gluon virtuality

$$\mu_R^2 = xyQ^2, \mu_R^2 = (1-x)(1-y)Q^2 \tag{1}$$

depending on the Feynman diagram under consideration. For the factorization scale μ_F^2 a natural choice is $\mu_F^2 = Q^2$, which eliminates the logarithms of Q^2/μ_F^2 .

The kaon DA have the following form

$$\Phi_K(x,\mu_F^2) = \Phi_K^{asy}(x) \left[\alpha + \gamma \left(2x - 1 \right) + \beta \left(2x - 1 \right)^2 + \delta \left(2x - 1 \right)^3 \right],$$
(2)

where $\Phi_K^{asy}(x) = \sqrt{3} f_K x(1-x)$, $f_K = 0.112 \, GeV$. By freezing one of variables $(\langle y \rangle = 1/2)$, we can express $Q^2 F_M(Q^2)$ in terms of moment integrals $f_p(Q)$ defined as

$$f_p(Q) = \frac{p}{Q^p} \int_0^Q dk k^{p-1} \alpha_S(k^2).$$
 (3)

For $p \ge 4$ we have to use the running coupling constant method for their calculation by including the dependence of $\Phi_M(x,Q^2)$ on Q^2 , in the region of small Q^2 , are larger than the ones obtained neglecting this dependence and become smaller in the region of large values of Q^2 . The size of these regions depends on the chosen renormalization scale (1 or 2 variables x, y) and on the meson under consideration.

- [1] R. Webber. QCD power corrections from a simple model for the running coupling // J. High Energy Phys., Vol.10, No.1, 1998, pp. 12-22.
- [2] V. Zakharov. QCD perturbation expansions in large orders // Nucl. Phys. B, Vol.385, No.3, 1992, pp. 452-480.





A NUMERICAL MODEL FOR STUDY OF STENOSES ARTERY AND UNSTEADY BLOOD FLOW

Ahmad Reza Haghighi, Ghila Khorram Maslak, Farrokh Mobadersani Urmia University of Technology, Urmia, Iran Urmia Islamic Azad University, Urmia, Iran e-mail:ah.haghighi@gmail.com, gkhorram@yahoo.com, fmobadersani@gmail.com

Arterial stenosis is one of the most prevalent illnesses. Some of the scientists believe that damaging of the inner coating of the artery is the primary reason of stenosis. Moreover, some researchers offer angiography to distingue the irregularities in the blood flow. In numerical simulation of blood flow, the level of the irregular stenosis adds to the complexity of problem. Many researchers have been accomplished, studying the characteristics of blood flow along the artery stenosis. One of the most important parameters in this mathematical model is the blood viscosity and Revnolds number. The shape and irregularities of surface have an effect on the viscous flow. Also the stenosis of the cross-section in cosine-shaped one, leads to the more stenosis of the artery and as a result, causes high flow resistance. In this study, we have presented a mathematical model for observing characteristics of the Newtonian blood flow which passes through a part of the artery. Some of the characteristics of the Newtonian blood flow studied in this article are such as: flow instability, artery coating flexibility, comparison of numerical flow with different geometrical shapes of stenosis, the intensity of different stenosis and its effect on the blood flow characteristics. The aim of this study is to present a mathematical model for observing the characteristics of the blood flow in a part of an arterial which is committed to stenos. The obtained equations are solved with proper boundary and initial conditions with marker and cell (MAC) method. The accuracy and stability of this method are examined. In addition multi- irregular cosine-shaped and single stenosis are compared and investigate the effect of Reynolds number on them is investigated.

References

 N. Mustapha, S. Chakravarty, P.K. Mandal, N. Amin. Unsteady response of blood how through a couple of irregular arterial constrictions to body acceleration // J. Mech. Med. Biol., Vol.8, 2008, pp. 395-402.







MODELING OF SPECTRAL RADIANT THERMAL SOURCE AND BOUNDARY CONDITIONS FOR NEYMAN PROBLEM

Vladimir G. Merzlikin, Oleg V. Sidorov, Izmir M. O. Ugurliev, Maxim S. Krass

Moscow State Technical University, Moscow, Russia Financial University, Moscow, Russia

e-mail:merzlikinV@mail.ru

The analysis of radiant heat transfer for semitransparent media (SM) such as natural ones: (1) clean and polluted (by oil) seawater; (2) planetary and terrestrial glaciers and also artificial materials: (3) thermal barrier coatings (TBC) of aero-space apparatuses, (4) heat-insulating ones (SHIC) of combustion chamber (CC) of diesels, turbines shows how modeling of spectral radiant thermal source $F\lambda$ (at optical parameters $A, b, k^{\lambda}, \sigma^{\lambda}$ of SM in short wave length SWL) and boundary conditions for Neyman problem influences the solution of the inhomogeneous heat conductivity equations (with thermal physical c, ρ, K_T properties) and its physical interpretations. Modeled boundary conditions, determined by 1- absorption on exposed surface of long wavelength LWL radiation ε^{λ} ; 2 - SWL one q_0^{IR}, q_0^{UV} for opaque media; 3 - characteristics α_T, T_A of natural or forced convection; 4- thermal losses at melting L_m or evaporisation L_v define formation of volumetric (surface) heating. There is appearance subsurface temperature maximum at intensive penetrating radiation q_0^{λ} through the media - environments interface. Similar processes take place for seawater and glacier at solar radiation, internal walls of CC at one of red-hot soot particle, rockets surface at boundary layer radiation, but there are difference effects. This phenomenon of radiant volumetric heating of SM dependences from their optical heterogeneity. The ice crystal or pores of snow, sintered ceramic micro- and nano-particles of TBC and SHIC, pollutions, oil emulsions, phytoplankton inside subsurface zone of seawater - are considered as ensembles of selective scattering σ^{λ} and absorbing k^{λ} particles in SWL and LWL. Also its could have essential spatial and temporal variability. Then heat conductivity equation for SM in one-dimensional have spectral radiant thermal source for SM layer with thickness H:

$$\begin{split} F^{\lambda} &= q_0^{\lambda}(t) \cdot \frac{(1-A) \cdot b_-(x) \cdot}{1} - A^2 \exp(-2 \cdot b_-(x) \cdot H) \times \\ &\times \left\{ e^{-b_-(x) \cdot x} - A \cdot e^{\cdot b_-(x) \cdot (x-2 \cdot H)} + \frac{\tau_{se}(H) \cdot R_{sub}}{1 - r_{se}(H) \cdot R_{sub}} \cdot \left[e^{-b_-(x) \cdot (H-x)} - A e^{b(x) \cdot (H-x-2 \cdot H)} \right] \right\}, \end{split}$$

but for opaque media $\lambda = 0$. Temperature distributions T(x, t) depend also from radiant flux transmitted by top SM layer r_{se}, τ se and reflected by substrate R_{sub} (soil bed of a glacier or an ocean; a metal wall of the CC or space rockets. Boundary conditions at front and back sides of SM are:

$$-K_T \cdot \frac{\partial T_{se}(x=0,t)}{\partial x} = \alpha_T \cdot (T_A - T_{se}(0,t)) + c_0(\varepsilon_A(t) \cdot T_A^{(t)})^4 - \varepsilon_W \cdot T_{se}(0,t)^4) + q_0^{IR} + q_0^{UV} - \rho (L_v x_v' + L_m x_m'),$$
$$-\frac{\partial T_{sub}}{\partial x}(x=H^+) = -\frac{\partial T_{se}}{\partial x}(x=H^-) = -q_0(t) \cdot \frac{\tau_{se}(H) \cdot (1-R_{sub})}{1-R_{sub} \cdot r_{se}(H)}.$$

The numerical simulations make possibility to regulate and predict thermal regimes of these SM by changing optical properties. For example, determination of subsurface melting of glaciers allows to forecast snowslip. In 2010 appearance of oil pollution (as scattering TBC) on the Atlantic Ocean surface would lead to cardinal changes in thermal regime of the ocean-atmosphere system (Zangari, 2010; Krass, Merzlikin, 2011). Application of semitransparent TBC (SHIC) for aero-space and auto car equipments is an opportunity to decrease overheating of these coatings, to increase efficiency and to improve ecological characteristics.





ON THE 3-D PROBLEM OF MULTIPHASE FLUID FILTRATION IN THE OIL RESERVOIR

B.T. Zhumagulov, M.Zh. Mukimbekov, B.S. Omarov Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:m.mukim@gmail.com

With the rapid development of the petroleum industry, with an increase in the number of marginal fields, exhaustion recovery raises the question of the qualitative analysis of the effectiveness of oil facilities, using modern methods of mathematical tools for modeling the formation processes for the analysis of oil production [1-3]. Today, the possibility of common types of flooding is already exhausted and, therefore, apply additional ways to increase the effective impact on the oil reservoirs. For enhanced oil recovery using secondary, tertiary methods to improve the filtration-capacitive parameters of the reservoir. These methods include flooding with surface-active substances, steam-calorific method, gas injection, etc. Mentioned methods to improve the efficiency of development based on directional impact on the adjustable parameters of the process to ensure the best physical conditions of oil displacement from the natural reservoir. In turn, the reality is far impose conditions necessary to have an extensive bank of advanced mathematical models of multiphase flow in mining to identify ways to improve them and reduce capital and financial costs of their development.

In this paper the three-dimensional non-isothermal multiphase fluid filtration problem through a porous medium in the system of wells is considered. Simulated field consists of water, oil and gas zone and the network injection and production wells, respectively. The development of such deposits, taking into account the gas phase is very difficult.

Based on the theory of parallel programming computational algorithms for solving this problem were offered. Initial data and thermo physical parameters of the reservoir are taken from geological and production data, filtration-capacitive parameters of the oil fields of Western Kazakhstan. The results of calculations described in this paper can clarify the dynamics of development of these deposits from the use of a secondary method. Calculations reveal the regularities of the main technological parameters of development of oil and gas, as well as allow us to find the scheme of effective technologies to enhance and improve the pace of development of these fields.

- [1] X. Aziz, E. Settari. Mathematical Modeling of Stratum Systems // M.: Nedra, 1982, 407 p.
- M.Zh. Mukimbekov. About one two-dimensional problem in hydrocarbons extraction process // Investigations on the integro-differential equations, Vol. 39, 2008, pp. 217-226.
- [3] B.T. Zhumagulov, V.N. Monakhov, Sh.S. Smagulov. Computer Modeling in Oil Extraction Processes // Almaty, SRC "Gylym", 2002, 307 p.





ON PROBLEMS OF LAND INVENTORY PERFORMING ON REMOTE SENSING DATA

Assiya A. Zeinullina, Salim A. Mustafin Institute of informatics and control problems, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:mustafinsal@mail.ru

The materials of the report contains the experience of use of geoinformation systems of the National Company "Kazakhstan Gharysh Sapary". Experience in application of methods of Earth remote sensing in the practical problems of agriculture has a long history and currently this experience extends dynamically due to the new spacecrafts, techniques, methods and algorithms. However experience in solving these problems in Kazakhstan is insignificant - geoinformation technologies in the regional management underutilized. On the basis of the report - review of systems that provide the invert means and monitoring of agricultural areas on the basis of remote sensing data. The ultimate goal of systems of this type is the control of crop yield forecasting in the early stages and help farmers. In the regional level, designed for the needs of the Ministry of Agriculture. A method of pattern recognition of crops is represented with the use of interpreting functional.

References

 Assiya A. Zeinullina. Processing of space images and analysis of vegetation indexes // News of Kazakhstan sciences, NC STI, No. 3, 2008, pp. 43-46.

MATHEMATICAL MODELING AND NUMERICAL INVESTIGATION OF THE STRESS ANALYSIS IN THE RECTANGULAR THICK PLATE FROM COMPOSITE MATERIAL WITH SPATIALLY PERIODICALLY CURVED STRUCTURE

Nurdan Tokatli, Elif T. Tarim, Isim G. Demiriz, Selmahan Selim Yildiz Technical University, Istanbul, Turkey e-mail:nur.nurdan@gmail.com, tekintar@yildiz.edu.tr, idemiriz@yildiz.edu.tr, sselim@yildiz.edu.tr

In this work the stress distribution in a thick plate fabricated from the composite material with spatially periodically curved structure is studied. It is assumed that all the adges of the plate are simply supported and uniformly distributed normal forces act on its upper face.

Mathematical modeling of the considered boundary-value problem is formulated within the framework of continuum theory of Akbarov and Guz [1] and three dimensional exact equations of elasticity theory. We have system of partial differential equation with variable coefficients. Solution to the considered problem is made numerically by using 3D Finite Element Method. After the numerical solution to the problem the effects of some geometrical and material parameters on the stresses distribution in the plate are determined. All algorithm and programmed required for the numerical solution are made by authors.

References

[1] S.D.Akbarov, A.N. Guz. Mechanics of Curved Composites // Kluwer Academic Publishers, 2000, 464 p.





MATHEMATICAL MODELING OF THE INTERRUPTION DETONATION WAVE IN GAS SUSPENSIONS UNITARY FUEL

Vladimir F. Burnashev, Umarali A. Nazarov Complex Research Institute of Regional Problems, Samarkand, Uzbekistan e-mail:umaralin@rambler.ru

In the proposed mathematical model of two-dimensional axisymmetric unsteady motion of the dispersed-phase two-component reactive mixture of gas, particles of unitary fuel and inert particles, numerical study of the interruption of detonation waves in gas suspensions of unitary fuel layers of homogeneous and inhomogeneous monodisperse inert dispersed particles.

As an example, numerically solved the following problem: the initial time t = 0 from the inert gas $(0 \le z \le z_f)$ in the direction of the clouds monopropellant $(z_f < z < \infty)$, enclosing a layer of homogeneous and inhomogeneous monodisperse inert particles $(z_L \le z \le z_R, z_L > z_f)$ shock wave moves with a triangular profile. Required to examine the influence of the distribution layer of inert particles to interrupt detonation waves in gas suspensions of unitary fuel.

The calculations were performed for mixtures of components: air, gaseous products of combustion of gunpowder, gunpowder particles and particles of quartz sand.

As a result of the numerical investigation found that, at a fixed total weight of the suspension is better interrupt effects of detonation waves in gas suspensions of unitary fuel layers are inhomogeneous monodisperse gas suspension with a positive gradient of the initial concentration of particles in comparison with the case of layers of gas suspensions with a negative or zero gradient of particle concentration. Obtained an integral dependence of the minimum initial relative mass content of inert particles from their initial diameter in a gas suspension of unitary fuel. It is shown, that for fixed particle size of inert and reactive phase dependence of the minimum relative weight content of inert particles required to suppress detonation process increases linearly with increasing the relative weight content of particles of the unitary fuel.

Comparison with experimental results showed the adequacy of the proposed model with the physical processes.





MATHEMATICAL MODELS AND METHODS OF THE FINANCE INVESTMENT ANALYSIS

K. Nurtazina L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:knurtazina@mail.ru

A new view on formation of security portfolio in the conditions of uncertainty is suggested. The most recent methodology of investment is based on dynamics of development. The complete description of various statements and methods of problem solving about an optimum portfolio of securities is quite given. A duality in a problem of formation a new type portfolio is filled with economic content-richness.

Security portfolio means column vector $X = (x_i)$, $i = \overline{1, n}$, in which x_i is a share of cost of *i*-th security in the portfolio value. In this case $\sum_{i=1}^{n} x_i = 1$, i.e. the whole portfolio value is taken as a unit. Let us introduce column vector I of dimensionality n, all components of which constitute 1, in this case the last clause will be written as $I^T X = 1$, where means transposition. Yield of portfolio X is a variate $\xi_X = \Xi^T X = \sum_{i=1}^{n} x_i \xi_i$. Portfolio efficiency, i.e. its average yield, is $e_X = \sum_{i=1}^{n} e_i x_i = E^T X$. Portfolio dispersion is $\nu_X = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} x_i \nu_{ij} x_j = X^T V X$, where V is a matrix of mutual yield variances. Quadratic mean of portfolio yield $\sigma X = \sqrt{v_X}$ is identified with portfolio risk and is sometimes designated r_X .

On efficient market the portfolio is formed with consideration of predictions actual for the moment of forming, and in any case this portfolio should have quite high. A competitor – the person who makes the decision – for preparation for coming events considers several variants $j = \overline{1, m}$. It is predicted that the market will be in one of these m conditions – variants, and we do not know the exact variant. Let *j*-th situation is characterized with vector Ξ_j of random quantities (ξ_{ij}) – yield of the same securities $(j = \overline{1, m}, i = \overline{1, n})$, but already in new conditions. Every variant reflects changes of efficiencies E_1, E_2, \ldots, E_m predicted on financial market, and $E_j = (e_{ij})(j = \overline{1, m}, i = \overline{1, n})$.

We want the security portfolio X to have efficiency (average yield expected) not less that set level θ ; and we would like to make set level θ as high as possible.

Let investor has non-risk assets with non-risk yield rate α and risk assets with average expected yield rate β , that can possess some value β , j = 1, ..., m in future period, the risk r of these assets depend on β by the formula $r = \alpha + k\beta$, k > 0.

It is necessary to solve the question of forming the portfolio for the future period and to limit the risk of future assets and maximize their average expected yield. Exact statement is reflected by the following problem.

The new indicator of stock market - the Ns-factor of securities - is worked in. The meaning of security Ns-factor: when capital K for the most rapid growth of capital should buy the amount of $K_s = sK$ of given security.

Theorem 1. O(f) is a consistent estimate of Ns-factor. **Theorem 2.** There is such 0 < z < t when f(z) < 0. This is because $f(s) \underset{s \to t}{\rightarrow} -\infty$. **Theorem 3.** $\Pr(|O(R, f) - O(f)| < \varepsilon) \underset{|R| \to \infty}{\rightarrow} 1$ for any $\varepsilon > 0$.

The considered model allows ample opportunities for the analysis of efficiency of enterprise activity directions in modern conditions and it is a component of problem solving for the active investor.

New statements of abstract problems with applied illustrations to economic problems of decisionmaking in the conditions of uncertainty are analyzed. Constructive algorithms of a finding of the best approximation to optimum decisions by means of linear programming are offered.





THE FOREIGN INVESTMENT IN THE SYSTEM OF INDICATORS OF SUSTAINABILITY OF SOCIO- ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AZERBAIJAN REPUBLIC

Sh. Abbasova, M. Orujova Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:sh.abbas@mail.ru, morucova@mail.ru

Sustainable development is development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. The goal of environmental sustainability is minimizing environmental degradation. Sustainable development does not focus solely on environmental issues. The classification of parameters offered by the commission of the United Nations on preservation of the environment is applied to the analysis of stability of social - economic development. According to this classification, 130 parameters considered more are divided on economic, social, ecological indicators. In article the role of foreign investments in the system of some indicators of sustainable development in Azerbaijan Republic is analyzed by the method of main components. This method is a statistical data reduction technique used to explain variability among observed random variables in terms of fewer unobserved random variables called factors. For period 2000-2009 year we considered 23 indicators and used program SPSS for our calculating. Application of a method of main component has allowed reducing set of the described indicators to three factors. The received results have shown, that the foreign investments have the largest factor loading. Then the regression equation between volume of foreign investments Y and these factors (F1, F2, F3) have been constructed.

 $Y = 3340, 141 + 1572, 316F1 + 813, 219F2 + 226, 327F3, R^2 = 0,969,$

DW = 1,843F = 41,172. $t_0 = 22,238$, $t_1 = 9,792$, $t_2 = 5,064$, $t_3 = 1,409$.

Econometric model shows that the first factor have more influence on the foreign investment. Increasing the first factor by1 unit leads to increasing of the foreign investment by 1572, 3 units. Rsquared coefficient is dood, show that 96% variation of the foreign investment is explained by variation of the factors. The t- statistic of the third factor shows weak influence on the volume of foreign investment. So $t_3 = 1,409 < t_{kr} = 2,776(n - k - 1 = 4 \text{ degree of freedom})$ and it means that factor F3 is statistically insignificant at the 5% level. T- test for other factor shows that they are significant. Durbin Watson (DW) coefficient is closed to 2. It means there is not autocorrelation. F-statistic also shows that econometric model is significant. The result of the researching describes the place and role foreign investments in the system of indicators of sustainability of sosio- economic development in Azerbaijan Republic. Using information about factors it is possible to forecast the tendencies of their development. Possible to forecast the tendencies of their development.





THE FOAM DRAINAGE EQUATION: A REACTION-DIFFUSION PROBLEM WITH A FREE BOUNDARY

Ersin Özuğurlu

Department of Mathematics Computer Science, Bahcesehir University, Istanbul, Turkey e-mail:ersin.ozugurlu@bahcesehir.edu.tr

The equation modeling the evolution of a foam (a complex porous medium consisting of a set of gas bubbles surrounded by liquid films) is solved numerically. We are interested in the process of drainage of water into edges of the lattice (Plateau borders) in which the foam is contained in a vertical column and is broken. The model considered is described by the reaction-diffusion problem with a free boundary. As a numerical method, namely the averaging in time and forward differences in space (the Crank-Nicolson scheme), in combination with Newtons method, is proposed for solving the governing equations and the results are presented graphically. The solution of the Burgerss equation is considered as a special case. The numerical solution of the foam drainage equation has been studied by many researchers, see [1-5] and [7]. We are interested in the case where the foam breaks due to the rupture of thin films during the drying process, i.e. the model considered is described by the reaction-diffusion problem with a free boundary, see [2], where they discuss the theoretical aspects of the convergence and well-posedness of the foam drainage equation. The following foam drainage equation is derived from assumptions which best apply to dry foam. The contribution of the films to drainage is not included in this model. On the basis of simple considerations of continuity and pressure balance, as well as the treatment of dissipation in a manner analogous to Darcys law in the theory of porous media, if we follow the steps given in [6], in dimensionless variables, and the foam drainage equation is obtained:

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial u^2}{\partial x} - \varepsilon \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \left(\sqrt{u} \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} \right) = 0, \tag{1}$$

with the boundary and initial conditions

$$u(t,\gamma(t)) = \beta, \ \dot{\gamma}(t) = \beta - \frac{\varepsilon}{\sqrt{\beta}} \left[\frac{\partial u(t,x)}{\partial x} \right]_{x=\gamma(t)},$$

$$u(0,x) = u_0(x), \ x \in (\gamma(t), +\infty),$$
(2)

where $0 < \beta < 1$ and $u_0(x) \ge \beta$, $\forall x \in (\gamma(0), +\infty)$ and u(t, x) is the dimensionless cross section area of Plateau borders at time t and level x, i.e. u(t, x) is a local measure of the foams liquid.

- T. Colin, P. Fabrie. Semidiscretization in time for nonlinear Schrodinger-waves equations // Discrete Contin. Dynam. Systems 4, 1998, pp. 671-690.
- [2] T. Colin, P. Fabrie. A free boundary problem modeling a foam drainage // Mathematical Models and Methods in Applied Sciences 10, 2000, pp. 945-961.
- [3] M. Durand, D. Langevin. Physicochemical approach to the theory of foam drainage // Eur. Phys. J. E 7, 2002, pp. 35-44.
- [4] S.A. Koehler, H.A. Stone, M.P. Brenner, J. Eggers. Dynamics of foam: drainage // Phys. Rev. E 58, 1998, pp. 2097-2106.
- [5] G. Verbist, D. Weaire, A.M. Kraynik. The Foam Drainage Equation // J. Phys.: Condens. Matter 8, 1996, pp. 3715-3731.
- [6] D.Weaire, S.Hutzler. The Physics of Foams // Clarendon Press, Oxford, 1999.
- [7] D. Weaire, S. Hutzler, S. Cox, N. Kern, M.D.Alonso, W. Drenckhan. The fluid dynamics of foam // J. Phys.: Condens., Matter 15, 2003, pp. 65-73.







ABOUT NEW FORM OF EQUATIONS IN THE PROBLEM OF A SOLID BODY ROTATIONAL MOTION¹

Zaure Rakisheva

Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Space Researches Institute, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Zaure.Rakisheva@kaznu.kz

The problem of rotational motion of a solid body with fixed point is considered. The solid body is in gravitational field of forces. As is known [1] this motion is described by nonlinear ordinary differential equations of Euler. This system has three well-known first integrals: geometrical integral, energy integral and area integral. In paper with a help of original linear change of variables [2] the initial system is reduced to the normal type, i.e. to the system of the non-dimensional equations with explicitly expressed linear part:

$$\dot{\mathbf{u}} = \widetilde{A}\mathbf{u} + \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{u}),\tag{1}$$

where $\mathbf{u} = \{u_1, ..., u_6\}$ is the column vector of new variables; \widetilde{A} is the constant square matrix of the 6th order; $\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{u})$ is the 6th order vector function, consisting of nonlinear members of equations. In new variables the known first integrals of the system take another form. Superposition of two of them gives us the new integral of the norm type:

$$u_1^2 + u_2^2 + u_3^2 + u_4^2 + u_5^2 + u_6^2 = C_1 = const.$$
 (2)

As any first integral expression (2) can be obtained from the motion equations too. This integral provides the convergence in sense of norm of solution of the original system to solution of the transformed system. New form of equations is very convenient for studying of the motion stability. Solution of the transformed system was accepted as the non-perturbed motion and was investigated on stability on first approximation by Lyapunov.

- [1] Ju.A. Arkhangelsky. Analytical dynamics of the solid body // Moscow: Nauka, 1977, 393 p. (Russian).
- Z.B. Rakisheva. Motion stabilization of a solid body with fixed point // Proceedings of the 7th International ISAAC Congress, London: Imperial College, 2010, pp. 630-636.

¹ This research is supported by al-Farabi Kazakh National University.





MATHEMATICAL MODELS OF SYNTACTICAL RULES OF THE KAZAKH LANGUAGE SUBJECT TO SEMANTICS OF PARTS OF THE SENTENCE

Altynbek A. Sharipbayev, Bibigul Sh. Razakhova L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:sharalt@mail.ru, utalina@mail.ru

There are two kinds of sentences in Kazakh: simple and composite. A composite sentence consists of a few simple sentences. For this reason, here we confine ourselves to mathematical modeling of syntactical rules of simple sentences only.

In Kazakh, a simple sentence has one or more parts (subject, predicate, object, attribute, adverbial modifier). Each part has its definite place [1]. There are 20 variants of simple sentence structure in all: sentence with only one part -1 variant, two parts -1, three parts -2, four parts -9, five parts -7.

We consider principles of construction of simple sentence and ways of collocation of its parts subject to their morphological regularities and semantics. As a rule, there are used formal grammars and finite automata to generate (synthesis) and recognize (analysis) sentences of any natural language, respectively. However, they do not allow of describing sentence structure subject to semantics of their parts. Thus they are not sufficient for automatic processing of a natural language (machine translation or speech technology).

In the present work we suggest usage of semantic neural networks to generate Kazakh sentences subject to grammatical categories, such as part of speech, animate/inanimate object, number, voice, form, etc.

It is known that semantic neural network is equivalent to finite cellular automaton. Therefore the problem of syntactic analysis boils down to alteration of states of a sub-automaton that corresponds with the dictionary entry and its features [2].

Software implementation of the semantic neural network and the corresponding finite automaton have made it possible to automate analysis and synthesis of Kazakh sentences. This software will be used to develop new information technologies, including speech technologies for the Kazakh language.

- [1] Zh.K. Tuymebaev. Kazakh Language // Grammar reference book, Almaty: Gylym, 2004, 108 p.
- [2] D.E. Shuklin. Structure of semantic neural net parsing text meaning in real time // Kibernetika and Sistemny Analiz, Kiev, No.2, 2001, pp. 43-48.







CONSTRUCTION OF THE MATHEMATICAL MODEL ON THE OLLENDORFF METHOD FOR FILTRATION OF WEAKLY COMPRESSIBLE CHEMICAL COMPOUND IN THE POROUS HETEROGENEOUS 3D MEDIUM¹

Janis S. Rimshans, Sharif E. Guseynov, Patriks Morevs, Edvins Gingulis, Oleg V. Schiptsov Institute of Mathematical Sciences and Information Technologies, University of Liepaja, Liepaja, Latvia Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Riga, Latvia

e-mails:janis.rimsans@liepu.lv, sh.e.guseinov@inbox.lv, pmorev@gmail.com, o.schipcovs@balticom.lv

In this work the filtering process is considered, which occurs in a non-homogeneous porous curvilinear truncated pyramid with isotropic and spatially periodic (not compulsory with the constant period) structure. The general filtering model of fluids in non-homogeneous isotropic mediums with periodically changing permeability contains equations of filtering, where functional coefficients are rapidly oscillating functions and, generally speaking, are piecewise continuous functions. Therefore, finding of analytical solution of the corresponding initial-boundary problems for such equations is problematic (for instance, see fundamental monograph [1], as well as [2] and [3]). In this work a mathematical model is constructed, which describes basic filtering properties of isotropic mediums

with a multiplicative coefficient of permeability $k(x) = \prod_{i=1}^{3} K^{\{i\}}(\alpha_i(x))$, where $x = (x_1, x_2, x_3)$; aux-

iliary arguments-functions $\alpha_i = \alpha_i(x)$ $(i = \overline{1, 3})$ set the geometry of the periodic structure of the porous environment, and periods as to $\alpha_i(i = \overline{1, 3})$ are the dimensions of the repeating structure elements – rectangular parallelepipeds, which altogether form a non-homogeneous porous curvilinear truncated pyramid. To construct required mathematical model the following assumptions are made: 1) level surfaces $\alpha_i(x) = \alpha_{0,i} \equiv const.$ $(i = \overline{1, 3})$ in the non-homogeneous porous curvilinear truncated pyramid form a triorthogonal system of surfaces; 2) anywhere in the filtering domain

the length $L_{\omega, T_{per.}(\omega)} \stackrel{def}{\equiv} \int_{\omega(xz)}^{\omega(x)+T_{per.}(\omega(x))} \left| \frac{\partial}{\partial \omega(x)} \sum_{j=1}^{3} x_j(\alpha) \cdot \vec{i}_j \right| d\omega$ of arc of the $\omega = \{\alpha_i, i = \overline{1, 3}\}$ -th co-

ordinate line, which corresponds to the period $T_{per.}(\omega)$, is infinitesimally small in comparison to its characteristic size L; 3) in a curvilinear parallelepiped, which is limited by coordinate planes $\alpha_i = \alpha_{0,i}$ and $\alpha_i = \alpha_{0,i} + T_{per.}(\alpha_i(x))$ $(i = \overline{1,3})$, arc ends of length $L_{\omega, T_{per.}(\omega)}$ quite insignificantly deviate from the ends of the corresponding tangent lines. Such assumptions make it possible to divide the non-homogeneous porous curvilinear truncated pyramid into elementary approximately-averaged parallelepipeds, and this makes it possible to consider the elementary curvilinear parallelepiped as elementary rectangular parallelepiped with OA_i $(i = \overline{1,3})$, lengths are equal to $L_{\omega, T_{per.}(\omega)}$, and such elementary rectangular parallelepiped is called approximately-averaged parallelepiped. Further, taking into account the made assumptions, Ollendorff method (see [4]) is applied to the studied filtering problem in order to construct a filtering model (consisting of fluid filtering equations and the corresponding initial-boundary conditions) in the porous curvilinear layered environment with periodically changing permeability in respect to space, the coefficient of permeability is multiplicative.

References

- [1] P.Ya. Kochina. Theory of Groundwater Movement // Moscow: Science ("Nauka"), 1977, 664 p.
- [2] N.N. Kochina, P.Y. Kochina, V.N. Nikolayevsky. The Groundwater World // Moscow: RAS Institute of Physics, 1994, 112 p.

 [3] P.Y. Kochina, N.N. Kochina. Problems of Movements With Free Surface in Underwater Hydrodynamics // Moscow: Edition of the Journal "Advances in Physical Sciences", 1996, 176 p.

[4] F. Ollendorf. Currents in the Ground // Moscow-Leningrad: "GNTI", 1932, 215 p.

¹ Present research was executed within the framework of the European Regional Development Foundation Project No. 2010/0301/2DP/2.1.1.1.0/10/APIA/VIAA/151, and with the pointed Project financial support





MATHEMATICAL MODELS AND METHODS IN SPEECH UNDERSTANDING SYSTEMS¹

Samir S. Rustamov Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:samir.rustamov@gmail.com

One of development parameters of information technologies is the achievement intellectual processing of an information. As the basic communicative means is a speech in society, automatic speech recognition and determining its meaning are urgent problems of the modern science. Speech understanding is the speech processing that involves the mapping of the acoustic signal, usually derived from some form of speech recognition system, to some form of abstract meaning of the speech.

The first stage of implementation of speech understanding is speech recognition process. Automatic speech recognition by computer is a process where speech signals are automatically converted into the corresponding sequence of words in text. The following mathematical methods are applied for speech recognition:

Speech processing. Speech signal is converted to the digital form, the digital signal cleaned from noise by passing through a special high pass filter, divided into frames and windowing in this stage. Different mathematical methods of spectral analysis are used for the carrying out these operations.

Calculation of speech features. For calculation of speech features is constructed speech generation model. The parameters of the vocal tract filter which necessary in speech recognition are calculated by the spectral analysis. The Fourier or Wavelet transformations, Levinson-Durbin Algorithm, Mel filtering and so on. operations are carried out in this stage.

Training and recognition of the speech recognition system. There are different mathematical models for training and recognition of the speech features. Most widely using models are Artificial neuron networks and Hidden Markov models. Artificial Neural Networks trained by Back Propagation method. But for training Hidden Markov Model used Baum-Welch algorithm.

The next stages in automatic speech understanding are syntactic, semantic and progmatic analysis.

Syntactic component. Syntax analysis is carried out after speech recognition for selected object in speech understanding system. Lexical and grammatical analysis of the language are applied for checking spelling of the words on the basis of vocabulary. Edit Distance method is used for the lexical analysis. Purpose of the syntactic analysis to find subject, predicate, verbal and object in sentences. The role of syntactic analysis is to check correctness of the syntax rules in sentences.

Semantic component. The Context-free grammar used for determining the meaning of the sentences and words in the speech understanding system. There is investigated the diapason of the words for selected field.

Pragmatic component. One of wide applicable fields of the speech understanding is spoken dialogue systems. The systems have been defined as computer systems with which humans interact on a turnby-turn basis are called spoken dialogue systems. The main purpose of a spoken dialogue system is to provide an interface between a user and a computer-based application. System can be answered user's questions in different forms during dialogue process. The ultimate goal of pragmatic analysis to shortening dialogue by intellectual answering. The System has to choose so optimal strategies, that suggested assumption doesn't let user to repeat information and able to get the necessary information. There are used different heuristic methods.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/12-1.





FLOW OF RELAXING COMPRESSIBLE FLUIDS IN A DEFORMABLE POROUS MEDIUM

Abduvakil S. Savurbaev, Erkin Ch. Kholiyarov, Lola A. Rustamova

Samarkand State Architecture and Civil Engineering Institute, Uzbekistan Complex Research Institute of Regional Problems, Academy of Sciences, Samarkand Division, Uzbekistan e-mail:a.savurbaev@mail.ru, e.kholiyarov@mail.ru

At resent time several experimental and theoretical investigations have been carried out with gased fluids in pre-transitional conditions (in the field of saturation pressure). It is shown that flow characteristics in such systems are determined by the content of small gas-bubbles [1, 2].

In the present paper flow of compressible gased relaxing fluid in a deformable porous medium is considered.

The equation of state of such systems is described as [3]:

$$P(\rho) = \frac{\alpha_{20}}{\alpha_{10}} \frac{P_0 \rho}{\rho_{10} - \rho},$$
(1)

where α_{10} , α_{20} – volume contents of liquid and gas phases P_0 – initial pressure; ρ_{10}^0 , ρ – real and related densities the liquid phase.

Non-steady filtration equation with pressure relaxation is derived in the following form

$$\frac{\partial P}{\partial t} = \chi \sigma_1 \left(P \right) \frac{\partial P}{\partial x} \left(\frac{\partial P}{\partial x} + \lambda_P \frac{\partial^2 P}{\partial x \partial t} \right) + \chi \sigma_2 \left(P \right) \left(\frac{\partial^2 P}{\partial x^2} + \lambda_P \frac{\partial^3 P}{\partial x^2 \partial t} \right),\tag{2}$$

where P – current pressure, x – linear coordinate, t – time, λ_P – relaxation time of the pressure gradient, $\chi = \frac{k}{\mu\alpha\beta_C}$, $\alpha = \frac{\alpha_{10}}{\alpha_{20}}$, k – permeability, μ – viscosity of liquid, β_C – coefficient of change in porosity, m_0 – initial (at $P = P_0 = \text{const}$) porosity,

$$\sigma_1(P) = \frac{\alpha P_0}{P^2 / \alpha + 2P_0 P + P_0 \left(\frac{m_0}{\beta_C} - P_0 \right)}, \quad \sigma_2(P) = \frac{P^2 + \alpha P_0 P}{P^2 / \alpha + 2P_0 P + P_0 \left(\frac{m_0}{\beta_C} - P_0 \right)}.$$

Equation (2) with (1) is numerically solved for semi-infinite beds with the following initial and boundary conditions

$$P(x,0) = P_0, \quad P(0,t) = P_C, \quad P(\infty,t) = P_0, \quad P_C = \text{const}, (P_C < P_0).$$
 (3)

Numerical experiments show that with increasing of relaxation time λ_P pressure decreasing is intensified.

- [1] A.H. Mirzazhanzadeh at al. Modeling of Oil and Gas Production Processes // Moscow: Izhevsk, 2004.
- [2] A.S. Savurbaev. On some special features of pressure restoration in two-phase unbalanced systems // Proceedings of VI-th Kazakh-Russian International Scientific-Practical Conference, 2007, pp. 278-282.
- [3] R.I. Nigmatullin. Dynamics of Multi-Phase Systems, Vol.1,2, M.: Nauka, 1987, 464 p.





TEXT NORMALIZATION FOR AZERBAIJAN TTS SYSTEM¹

Aida M. Sharifova Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:aid_tr@yahoo.com

All written languages have special constructs that require a conversion of the written form (orthographic form) into the spoken form. Text normalization is an automated process that performs this conversion.

Text normalization - is a text transformation that makes the text consistent with some pre-defined rules. Text normalization module takes the raw text and converts entities such as numbers and abbreviations into their written-out word equivalents. Output is normalized text containing common orthographic transcription suitable for subsequent phonetic conversion.

The general structure of normalizer explained in Figure 1. Apparently from the figure this module has several stages [1].



Spellchecking of the text - The sounded text can be entered in any form. The size or font type is of no importance. The main requirement is that the text must be in Azerbaijani language.

A pre-processing module - a pre-processing module organizes the input sentences into manageable lists of words. First, text normalization isolates words in the text. For the most part this is as trivial as looking for a sequence of alphabetic characters, allowing for an occasional apostrophe and hyphen.

Number Expansion - there are many types of numeric representations, such as date, time, currency, identification number, range, percentage etc. Sentence analysis is performed to identify the type of the numbers. If the type is identified, the numbers can be normalized rules.

Punctuation analyze - normal writing, sentence boundaries are often signaled by terminal punctuation from the set: full stop, exclamation mark, question mark or comma {. ! ? ,} followed by white spaces. This block creates information base for the Voicing speech signal.

NSW-s observation - the aim of this stage is converting None Standard Words (NSWs) into their standard word pronunciations.

Disambiguation - in some system disambiguation module is generally handled by hand-crafted context-dependent rules [2].

- Kamil Aida-Zade, Aida Sharifova. Analysis of approaches to text to speech synthesis and their application to Azerbaijani language // The second international conference "Problem of Cybernetics and Informatics" dedicated to the 50th anniversary of the ICT in Azerbaijan, September 10-12, 2008 Baku, Azerbaijan PCI, 2008, pp. 191-194.
- [2] D. Yarowsky. Homograph Disambiguation in Text-to-Speech Synthesis // 2nd ESCA /IEEE Workshop on Speech Synthesis, New Paltz, NY, pp. 244-247.

¹ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/13-1.





MATHEMATICAL MODELS OF DESIGNING AUTOMATIC TRANSCRIPTION

Sharypbaev A., Bekmanova G., Karabalayeva M. L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:gulmira-r@yandex.ru

Automatic transcription is the transfer program of any orthographic text into transcriptional record and vice versa on the basis of linguistic rules. Transcription of words into transcript record is present in all systems of natural language processing, such as translators, systems of recognition or speech synthesis. However depending on a system special-purpose designation this or that transcription model is chosen. So, for example, for systems of recognition of speech the simplified transcription can be used whereas for systems of speech synthesis it is necessary to use the most detailed transcription containing acoustic characteristics of sounds. Let's introduce the following designations for vowel sounds: G set of vowel sounds of the Kazakh language, G_1 - set of hard vowel sounds, G_2 - set of soft vowel sounds, G_3 - set of not labial vowel sounds, G_4 - set of labial vowel sounds, G_5 - set of back tongue vowel sounds, G_6 - set of front tongue vowel sounds, G_7 - set of open vowel sounds, G_8 - set of the closed vowel sounds, G_9 - middle vowel sounds in pair distinguishable signs of sounds in each group, i.e. Also, we will introduce designations for consonants: S - set of consonants of the Kazakh language, S_1 - set of voiceless consonants, S_2 - set of sonorous consonants, S_3 - set sonorous consonants, S_4 - set of labial consonants, S_5 - set of front tongue consonants, S_6 - set of middle tongue, S_7 - set of back tongue consonants, S_8 - set occlusive consonants, S_9 - set round fricative consonants, S_{10} - set flat fricative consonants, S_{11} - set of shivering consonants, S_{12} - set of lateral consonants, i.e. Let A - the alphabet of the Kazakh language, i.e.

$$A = G \bigcup S \tag{1}$$

then the set of all. Now we will start the formalization of phonologic rules of the Kazakh language: Connection of two voiceless consonants. On a connection of two voiceless consonants in one word or in a case when one word ends to a voiceless consonant, and other word begins with a deaf consonant, both of these consonants remain voiceless:

$$\frac{\alpha \subseteq \gamma, \alpha = \alpha_1 x, \alpha_1 \neq \epsilon, x \in S_1, \beta \subseteq \gamma, \beta = y\beta_1, y \in S_1}{\gamma = (\alpha_1 x)(y\beta_1).}$$
(2)

The formal phonologic rules of the Kazakh language received thus will allow to construct transcription which automatically builds transcript word record which is the important element at system elaboration of the Kazakh speech recognition.

References

 G. Bekmanova. Methoda and algorithms of recognition words of Kazakh Language // Astana: "L.N.Gumilev ENU", 2010, 132 p.




MODELING RADIATION DEFECTS IN SEMICONDUCTORS IRRADIATED BY IONS

A. I. Kupchishin, A.A. Kupchishin, K.B. Tlebaev, T.A. Shmygaleva *Abai Kazak National Pedagogical University* e-mail:shmyg1953@mail.ru

The equation (1) is used for calculation the concentration of radiation defects at ion irradiation:

$$C_{k}(E_{0},h) = \frac{E_{d}E_{2\max} - E_{c}}{E_{c}E_{2\max} - E_{d}} \sum_{n=n_{0}}^{n_{1}} \int_{h-k\lambda_{2}}^{h} \psi_{n}(h') \exp\left(-\frac{h-h'}{\lambda_{2}}\right) \frac{dh'}{\lambda_{1}(h')\lambda_{2}},$$
(1)

where E_d is an average energy of the displacement, E_0 is the initial energy of the particle, E_c is the threshold energy, $E_{2 \max}$ is the maximum energy, passing to atom and corresponding to head - on collision, $\psi_n(h')$ is the cascade and probabilistic function in modified types (1).

It is necessary to find the range of definition of the result at the calculations the concentration of radiation defects at ion irradiation. Finding this range of definition could allow us to reveal the following regularities:

1. With decreasing initial energy of the primary particle the range of the result is displaced to right and the values of concentration are increasing.

2. At the high atomic weight of collision particle and small target the time of a count is very strongly increasing and reaches of several hours.

3. In dependence from the depth of penetration the initial and final values of the number of interactions are increasing, the interval of the range of definition of the result $(n_0 \ n_1)$ is also increasing and displaced to right.

4. With increasing atomic number of collision particle, the interval of the range of definition of the result is considerably displaced to right and increasing, the value of concentration at the point of the maximum and the concentrations values are strongly increasing. The results of calculations are presented on the figure 1.



Figure 1. The dependence concentration of the radiation from the depht at irradiation silicon by silver ions at: $E_0 = 800 \ keV, \ E_c = 50 \ keV(1), \ 100 \ keV \ (2), \ 200 \ keV \ (3).$

References

 A.I. Kupchishin, A.A. Kupchishin, T.A. Shmygaleva and so on. Computer Modeling and Radiation Processes Researches in Iron and Solid allows // Monograph., Almaty, NPU n.Abai, RI EP NU n. l-Frbi, Ltd, 2010, 263 p.





APPLICATION OF GEORADAR LOZA-B FOR THE STUDY OF CIRIC-RABAT AND MOUNDS IN THE KYZYL-ORDA REGION.

K.T. Iskakov, B.B. Sholpanbaev Kazakh National Pedagogical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:kazizat@mail.ru, Sholpanbaev.Bakytgerey@yahoo.com

The object of study - the city of Upland Ciric-Rabat and mounds in the Kyzyl-Orda region. *Problem* – identifying the internal structure of the structure of Ciric-Rabat and mounds in Kyzylorda region. Comparison of the geophysical data and a priori information can reduce the work on archaeological excavations.

Justification of the method. The property is located in the wilderness, away from populated areas. Formulation of the problem requires the use of non-destructive, fast method, which gives an idea of the location of subsurface objects with an accuracy of ± 0.5 meters in plan. The method should be economically feasible, giving significant savings compared with available archaeologists by visual observation with the subsequent opening of the archaeological sites.

In this regard, was chosen as high-frequency pulse electromagnetic ground penetrating radar which allows to examine the structure of the soil within a depth of 0 to 15 meters. Georadar "Loza-B" allows us to study the geological structure of the soil to provide anomalous areas waterlogged, loosening, subsidence, karst, erosion, etc.

Technique. As a methodological procedure was chosen areal probe on a grid with increments of 0.5 meters. This observing system is adequate for the task. Total measurements were made at 8 stations. The overall plan of the measured sites $90 \ge 40$ meters.

This sort of problem related to inverse. Georadiolocation inverse problem - the restoration of the structure of the underground environment of georadar data - a general statement, like all inverse problems, is incorrect. The possibility of its solution is determined by the specific wording of the problem, which includes a priori information about the environment, as well as the method of removal Georadars data.

Under the inverse problem we mean a further recovery in the stratified case geoelectric section: the permittivity and conductivity with the help of Georadars data. We used a mathematical model of direct and inverse of the reduced and studied in [1]. To solve the inverse problem using optimization method, described in detail in the monograph [2].

^[1] V.G. Romanov, S.I. Kabanikhin. Inverse Problems of Geoelectrics // M. Nauka, 1991, 303 p.

^[2] S.I. Kabanikhin, K.T. Iskakov. Optimization Methods for Solving the Coefficient Inverse Problems // Novosibirsk, NSU, 315 p.





MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF DISTRIBUTION OF RESOURCES

S.N.Boranbayev, A.S.Boranbayev, R.Taberkhan Eurasian National University, Gumilyov, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:sboranba@yandex.kz, aboranba@yahoo.com, taberkhan@yandex.kz

Problem 1. Let's network is set by the list of operation and technological communications between them. The ordered sequence Z is set technological, according to which operation of a network start to use resources. The problem will consist in definition of minimal time of performance of operation of a network, and also times of the beginning, the termination and intensity performance of all of operation of a network provided that statement of operation on service is carried out in conformity with technological allowable sequence Z at restrictions on resources and sequence of performance Statement of operation on performance in conformity with technological allowable of operation. sequence Z means, that the situation at which performance at present time of some operation blocks statement on performance of the operation, occupying in Z higher position is inadmissible. Let's assume, that technological the allowable sequence Z unequivocally defines the order of statement of operation on service [1]. Operation uses resources during the performance and returns back after the end. The resources which have been not used during some moment of time, do not increase cash quantity of resources during the subsequent moments of time, they do not accumulate. Intensity of performance of operation in given moment of time we shall name speed of increase of a point of a condition of operation during this moment of time. Let's designate u_i a condition of managing objects for operation $i, i \in I$. Management's, in a problem of calculation of performance of a complex of operation of a network, are intensity of the operation, appointed for performance at present time. We shall designate u a vector of intensity of performance of a complex of operation at present time $u = (u_1, u_2, ..., u_n)$, where u_i - intensity of performance of operation i at present time. The condition of operation i depends on a condition of operation $v, v \in I_i^+ \subset I$, management u_i , and also is defined by value of the parameters. Process of performance of a complex of operation of a network is controlled. There is certain freedom in a choice of intensity of performance of operation of a network. It is necessary to execute a complex of operation of a network for minimal time.

Problem 2. We shall make now changes to an above mentioned problem 1 (and we shall name its problem 2). We shall assume, that intensity of performance of each of operation are constant

$$u_i(t) = u_i^0, i \in I$$

and thus all restrictions of a problem carried out. In particular, it is carried out:

$$b_i \le u_i^0 \le B_i,$$

Let's designate Φ_1 - optimum value of efficiency function in a problem 1; Φ_2 - optimum value of efficiency function in problem 2. Rights the following theorem.

Theorem. Optimum value of efficiency function in a problem 1 not more than optimum value of efficiency function in a problem 2:

$$\Phi_1 \leq \Phi_2.$$

Enough plenty of numerical experiments (on problems of various dimension, various structure of a network and various sets of resources) which have shown efficiency of the offered method for the decision of the specified problems has been lead.

S.N. Boranbayev. Mathematical Model for the Development and Performance of Sustainable Economic Programs // International Journal of Ecology and Development, Vol.6, No.W07, 2007.





DETERMINATION OF GROSS EMISSION FROM VEHICLES ON THE ENVIRONMENT CITY ALMATY

A.N. Temirbekov Amanzholov East-Kazakhstan State University, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Kazakhstan e-mail:almas_tem@mail.ru

In this paper, we estimate the amount of energy and ecological impacts of road flows on a regular cell decomposition of the territory of Almaty. It is assumed that the flow involves the entire motor vehicle fleet, is uniformly distributed over the road network. Motorization is a progressive phenomenon and brings enormous benefit to society. However, along with many of the benefits of motorization is accompanied by a number of negative phenomena causing substantial damage to society and nature, which may manifest itself as directly and as wasting resources. Auto-road complex is one of environmental pollutants and makes it unfavorable changes.

To get started on a city map was overlaid uniform grid and used cellular functions of the road network in the city of Almaty. By this method was designed gross pollutant emissions from road transport.

Motorization is a progressive phenomenon and brings enormous benefit to society. However, along with many of the benefits of motorization is accompanied by a number of negative phenomena causing substantial damage to society and nature, which may manifest itself as directly and as wasting resources. Auto-road complex is one of environmental pollutants and makes it unfavorable changes [1].

Currently, all the more urgent becomes the problem of reducing the emissions of cars with exhaust gases, especially when driving in urban areas of complicated high-speed cyclic loading conditions and different modes of engine [2]. To begin with, we impose a uniform grid on the map of the city, and use the cellular functions of the road network in Almaty, obtained in each square of the partition. The considered algorithm was applied to the city of Moscow [3]. Impose on the region grid partition Δ increments of 2 km (Figure 1). Applying the algorithm for cellular function, we obtain the length of the road network in the bands.

In Almaty, there are three categories of roads: Three Way in one direction (Abay, Al-Farabi, etc.), two Way in the same direction (str Dzhandosov Str. Timiryazev etc); Plank in one direction.

- [1] D.N. Kavtaradze. Roadways in ecological systems // D.N. Kavtaradze M.: Cheraw, 1999, 240 p.
- [2] E. Pavlov. Ecology of Transportation // E.I. Pavlova. M.: Transport, 2000, 248 p.
- [3] V.N. Lukanin. Vehicular flows and the environment // Textbook handbook for schools, V.N. Lukanin, A.P. Buslaev, M.V. Yashin. - Moscow: INFRA-M, 2001, 646 p.





MOVEMENT OF THE PISTON IN A REACTING MIX OF GASES

D.A. Iskenderova, A.M. Toktorbaev

Kazakh Agro-technical University, Astana, Kazakhstan, Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:ain7@list.ru

A one-dimensional motion of the piston mass "m" in a tube filled with a mixture of reacting gases. The piston moves through the voltage difference, the piston friction on the walls is neglected. We will investigate the challenge in the mass Lagrangian variables. We assume for simplicity that the ends of the tube are x = 1, the point x = 0 is the initial position of the piston. Introduce the notation:

$$\Omega_1 = (-1, 0), \quad \Omega_2 = (1, 0), \quad \Omega = \Omega_1 \cup \quad \Omega_2, \quad Q_i = \Omega_i \times (0, T), \quad i = 1, 2,$$
$$\Gamma = \{(0, t) | 0 < t < T\}, \quad 0 < T < \infty,$$

 $v = \rho^{-1}, \quad \sigma = \mu \rho u_x - p, \quad F = \lambda_1 \rho \theta_x, \quad H = \lambda_2 \rho \theta \theta_x, \quad G = \chi \rho c_x, \quad p = R \rho \theta,$

[f] = f(+0,t) - f(-0,t)- jump of function f. The system of the equations describing a condition of gas looks like:

$$v_t = u_x,$$

$$c_t = G_x - cg,$$

$$u_t = \sigma_x \qquad (1),$$

$$\theta_t = F_x + H_x + u_x \sigma + \delta cg,$$

$$(x, t) \in (\Omega_1 \times (0, T)) \cup (\Omega_2 \times (0, T)),$$

The movement piston is defined (determined) by the second law of Newton:

$$nU_t = [\sigma], \quad U = u(0, t), \quad t \in (0, T).$$
 (2)

On a line x = 0 the conditions are carried out:

1

$$[u] = [\theta] = [c] = [H] = [F] = [G] = 0.$$
(3)

The system (1)-(3) becomes isolated by addition of the boundary and initial data:

$$u = F = G = 0$$
 on $x = -1, x = 1, t \in (0, T)$ (4)

$$u = u_0, \quad v = v_0, \quad \theta = \theta_0, \quad c = c_0 \quad on \quad t = 0$$
 (5)

and the conditions of the coordination are executed. The functions u_0, v_0, θ_0, c_0 are assumed smooth at $x \neq 0$ and satisfying to conditions (2)-(3) at x = 0.

We proved an existence of a unique generalized solution of problem (1) - (5) by a method of a priori estimates. Our aim is to find global a priori bounds, in which the constants depend only on the data and the length of the time interval, but not on the interval of existence of the local solution. These estimates permit us to extend the local solution [1] to the whole time interval.

References

 D.A. Iskenderova. Motion with a contact discontinuity in a reacting mixture of gases // Reports of National Academy of Science of Kazakhstan Republic, 1998, No.1, pp. 49-54.





MODELS AND ALGORITHMS OF TRANSLATION OF THE KAZAKH LANGUAGE SENTENCES INTO ENGLISH LANGUAGE WITH USE OF LINK GRAMMAR AND THE STATISTICAL APPROACH

U.A. Tukeyev, A.K. Melby, Zh.M. Zhumanov 1Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan Brigham Young University (BYU), Provo, USA e-mail:ualsher.tukeyev@kaznu.kz, akmttt@byu.edu, zh.zhake@gmail.com

Creation of tools of the automated translation from the Kazakh language on English language and back is one of actual problems, in connection with an increasing role of Republic Kazakhstan on international scene. Creation of tools of the automated translation, which will allow increasing productivity and speed of translation is very much claimed now.

In the given work the machine translation system of the Kazakh language into English language and back with use of the link grammar and the statistical approach is considered. Feature of link grammar is the description of connections between words in the sentence that allows to make effective realization of the syntactic analysis of the sentence [1,2].

The link grammar defines connections between word pairs in the sentence, but as against the traditional approach to syntax does not try to construct them in a full tree of analysis. The basic element of link grammar is connector. A connector consists of a name of connection (for example, S - a subject, O - addition, etc.), which the analyzed word can enter, and a suffix determining a vector of a direction of connection ("+" the right - directed connector and "-" is left - directed connector). Left - directed and right - directed connectors of one type form a connection. To one word the whole formula of connectors, made with the help of the following operations can be attributed: & - asymmetrical conjunction, or - a disjunction, {} - optionality, @- limitlessness. For example, for the sentence " Marat jana kino kördi " is possible to use the following rules of connections:

<subject $>$:	S+;
<adjective>:</adjective>	A+;
<object>:</object>	A- & O+;
<verb>:</verb>	S- & O

They mean, that in sentences of the given type the element < subject > can have one connection such as S, directed to the right, < object > can have one connection such as A at the left and one connection such as O on the right, etc.

Parser of the link grammar consists of the grammatical file describing words of analyzed language, and directly the analyzer. At creation of a grammatical file the morphological analyzer is used. Efficiency of the syntactic analysis of sentences of language and translation thereof can be increased by using of statistical data, frequency of word use in Kazakh and English languages.

- Daniel Sleator, Davy Temperley. Parsing English with a Link Grammar // Carnegie Mellon University Computer Science technical report CMU-CS-91-196, October 1991.
- [2] Jon Dehdari. A Primer for Localizing Link Grammar // http://www.ling.ohio-state.edu/jonsafari/link-grammar/primer.html





THE VORTEX MODEL OF THE WINDTURBINE DARRIE

Asylbek K. Tulepbergenov, Kayrat E. Sherniazov Al-Faraby Kazakh National University, Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan e-mail:asylbek12@mail.ru

In this work the developed vortex model for interaction research windturbine carousel type "Darrie" with a stationary air stream with use of the theory of complex variables on the basis of the equations of Bio-Savar is considered. The mathematical model of influence of a stationary air stream with a speed "V" on rotating windturbine "Darrie" with angular speed is described on the basis of the equations of Bio-Savar.

Under the influence of a wind stream on the blades executed in the form of a plane wing with a symmetric profile, there is a carrying power and forces of aerodynamic resistance. Carrying power operates on the blade positively, untwisting a rotor. It is known vertically-axial windturbine "Darrie", using carrying power of a wing for transformation of energy of an air stream to an electricity [1-3]. Advantage such windturbine was reflected in earlier published publications. In the given section calculation of scale characteristics windturbine devices "Darrie" is resulted. As it is above told the vortex model of the turbine is considered. All vortex models are based on this or that form of the equation of carrying over vorticity. One of advantages of this equation consists that pressure isn't included into it obviously and the field of speeds can be calculated, without knowing a field of pressure. Besides, in many currents it is possible to present area vortical veils or an even dot whirlwind that strongly facilitates reception of numerical decisions.

To calculation of a flow of vertically-axial rotors apply vortical models in the basic two types though there are some variations of that and another. Both types make models of "a free trace" and model of "a rigid trace". In the models of a rigid trace used for economy of time of the account, movement of whirlwinds in a trace set in advance while in models of a free trace movement of whirlwinds only slightly limit.

According to the theory each blade break into some segments on scope and model occurrence, a convection and interaction of the vortical systems descending from each segment. On these systems find "inductive speed" (or "speed of indignation") in various points of a field of speeds. Inductive speed it is simple speed which pluses to speed of not indignant wind stream in the given point owing to wind turbine work. Knowing inductive speeds, it is possible to find carrying power and resistance of a segment of the blade if to use aerodynamic characteristics of a profile or methods of the theory of a bearing surface.

In the report the problem statement, the received results and their analysis will be stated in detail.

- Jon Paraschivoiu and Philippe Desy. Aerodynamics of Small Scale Vertical Axis Wind Turbines // J. Propulsion, 1986, Vol.2, No.3, pp. 282-288.
- Kenji Horiuchi, Izumi Ushiyama, Kazuichi Seki. Straight wing vertical axis wind turbines: A flow analysis // WIND ENGINEERING., 2007, Vol. 29, No.3, pp. 243-252.
- [3] 3 A.K. Tulepbergenov, K.E. Sherniazov. About one application of methods of the complex analysis in modeling wind turbine of round robin type // III Congress of the World Mathematical Society of Turkic Countries. - Kazakhstan, Almaty, 2009, pp. 119.





(2)

ANALYTICAL SOLUTION OF SOME NONLINEAR PROBLEMS FOR THE MOTION OF THE RIGID BODY WITH FIXED POINT DEPENDENCE

Abibulla Tyurehodzhayev, Muhamady Bersugar Kazakh National Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan Kazakh Academy Transport and Communication, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:tyurekhod_ya@mail.ru

Based on the method of partial discretization of nonlinear differential equations [1] constructed by one of the authors of the paper obtain new analytical solutions of the problems of motion with a fixed point of the solid and gyros described by a nonlinear system of ordinary differential equations of Euler and a system of ordinary differential equations with variable coefficients.

Great interest in classical and celestial mechanics and in other areas to this problem for over two centuries is due to the fact that this kind of movement in conjunction with the so-called progressive movement are done by the planets, stars, galaxies, metagalaxy, artificial satellites and many other systems and objects [2].

The report describes the analytical solutions of three problems.

1. In the first problem right sides of nonlinear differential equations of Euler reprezent disturbing external effects on the body, having the dimension of force moment:

$$A\frac{dp}{dt} + (C - B)qr = -\lambda_1 p + f_1(t),$$

$$B\frac{dq}{dt} + (A - B)rp = -\lambda_2 q + f_2(t),$$

$$C\frac{dr}{dt} + (B - A)pq = -\lambda_3 r^n;$$

(1)

 $t = 0: \quad p = p_0, \quad q = q_0, \quad r = r_0,$

where p, q, r - are unknown functions, $A, B, C, \lambda_1, \lambda_2, \lambda_3, n$ - are constant parameters.

2. In the second problem right sides of differential equations, during some moment of time partially or completely distroy.

3. In the third, the parameters $A, B, C, \lambda_i, (i = \overline{1,3})$ are variables and can change almost any law.

- L. Eiler. Decouverte d'un nouveau princine de mecanique // Mem. de l'Acad. des sciences de Berlin, Vol.1750, 1758, No.6, pp. 185-217.
- [2] V.N. Koshlyakov. Problem of rigid body dynamics and applied theory of gyroscopes // Analytical Methods, M: Nauka, 1985, 286 p.
- [3] A.N. Tyurehodzhayev, G.K. Kalzhanova, G.U. Mamatova. Complex axisymmetric bending of nonhomogeneous circular plate when the temperature changes along the radius // International Scientific Conference Actual Problems of Mechanics and Engineering, Kazakhstan, Almaty, 2005, pp. 348-353.





THE COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF THE DYNAMIC INFLUENCE OF MOVING TORQUE LOAD ON NON-SUPPORTED AND SUPPORTED CAVITES IN ELASTIC HALF-SPACE

V.N. Ukrainets Pavlodar State University after S. Toraigyrov, Pavlodar, Kazakhstan e-mail:vitnikukr@mail.ru

Using the solution in moving coordinates of the problem of the effect of torque load, attached at random to the surface of a circular cylindrical cavity (or to the internal surface of the elastic shell supporting it) and moving uniformly along the cavity's axis, on elastic half-space the mode of deformation of the earth surface in case of the shallow location of a tunnel under the influence of mobile axisymmetric load of the given kind distributed evenly along the finite length of the cavity (such influence takes place, for example, under the inequality of the dynamic loads transmitted to each rail tracked in a cylindrical tunnel) is investigated. It is believed that the load function can be expanded into Fourier line on angular coordinate and Fourier integral on axial coordinate. The motion of the half-space is described by the dynamic equations of the elasticity theory in Lam potentials for the solution of which the method of decomposition of potentials into plane waves and of re-decomposition of plane waves into series of cylindrical functions is applied, and the shells are described by the classical equations of the thin-shell theory.

Calculations were carried out given the following parameters: radius of the cavity in the siltstone solid - one meter, location depth - two meters, concrete shell thickness - 0,05 meters, load speed - 100 m/s. The intensity of the load was chosen so that the general load along the length of the 0.4 meter loading section was equal to the concentrated circular torque load P_0 .

The figure shows the result of the load's influence on the earth surface where the deflection curves u_x are given in the cross plane passing the middle of the loading section (designation: $u_x^0 = u_x \mu/P_0$, where μ is the modulus of siltstone shift). Curve 1 is plotted for a non-supported tunnel, curve 2 - for a supported tunnel. It follows from the analysis of curve behaviour, that the shell reduces the surface deflections on sections $-2.4 \leq y/R \leq -0.2$ and $0.2 \leq y/R \leq 2.4$. The shell has similar impact also on horizontal displacement and normal stress.







DRIVE WORK OF FRONTAL VARIATOR OF UNSTAGED TRANSMISSION

P.Z. Zhunisbekov, A.A. Aulanbergenov, M.S. Undirbaev, T. Mendebaev KazNAU, KazNTU, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:polatbek@ramler.ru

To provide wide range of regulation in unstaged drives, frontal friction variators, having disks and rollers, are used.

To describe mathematical model of frontal variator work (schema 1), which corresponds to 2 set general coordinates, the second type Lagrange equation [1]

$$\begin{cases} \frac{d}{dt} \left(\frac{\partial T}{\partial \dot{\varphi}} \right) - \frac{\partial T}{\partial \varphi} = -\frac{\partial \Pi}{\partial \varphi} + Q_{\varphi}, \\ \frac{d}{dt} \left(\frac{\partial T}{\partial \dot{s}} \right) - \frac{\partial T}{\partial s} = -\frac{\partial \Pi}{\partial s} + Q_{s}. \end{cases}$$
(1)

FIGURE 1. Diagram 2 - Scheme of transmission of frontal variator movement.

Differentiating the hand sides of equation (1) and using obtained results, we get following differential equations describing the motion

$$\begin{cases} \frac{J_2}{r_2^2} (2s\dot{s}\dot{\varphi}) + J_1 \ddot{\varphi} = M, \\ m_2 \ddot{s} - \frac{J_2}{r_2^2} s\dot{\varphi}^2 = F - fG \frac{s\varphi}{\sqrt{(\frac{\dot{s}}{\dot{\varphi}})^2 + s^2}}. \end{cases}$$
(2)

To get nonlinear differential equation of frontal variator motion (2), let's take primary data from [2]

$$\varphi(t=0) = \varphi_0, \ \dot{\varphi}(t=0) = \dot{\varphi}_0, \ s(t=0) = s_0, \ \dot{s}(t=0) = \dot{s}_0.$$
 (3)

There is no analytical solution of the equation (2) with initial data (3). Because the system of differentiative equations is nonlinear.

After solving we'll get final system of differentiative equation of frontal variator motion

$$\begin{cases} \varphi^{n+1} = \frac{M \frac{J_2}{r_2^2} (2s^n \frac{s^n - s^{n-1}}{\Delta t} \frac{\varphi^n - \varphi^{n-1}}{\Delta t} + s^n \frac{-2\varphi^n + \varphi^{n-1}}{\Delta t^2}) - J_1 \frac{-2\varphi^n + \varphi^{n-1}}{\Delta t^2}}{(\frac{J_2}{r_2} s^n + J_1) \frac{1}{\Delta t^2}}, \\ s^{n+1} = \frac{F + \frac{J_2}{r_2^2} 2s^n \left(\frac{\varphi^n - \varphi^{n-1}}{\Delta t^2}\right)^2 + s^n \frac{-2s^n + s^{n-1}}{\Delta t^2} - m_2 \frac{-2s^n + s^{n-1}}{\Delta t^2}}{\frac{M^2}{\Delta t^2}} - fG \frac{s^n \varphi^n}{\sqrt{\left(\frac{s^n - s^{n-1}}{\varphi^n - \varphi^{n-1}}\right)^2 + (s^n)^2}}. \end{cases}$$
(4)

Mathematical model has been developed, which describes work of frontal variator drive of unstaged transmission. Control system of this mechanism with using of equation the second type Lagrange equation was done.

References

<

^[1] N.I. Levitskii. Fluctuations Mechanism // Moskow, Nauka, 1988.

^[2] A.A.Samarskii, A.B. Golin. Numerical Methods // Moskow Nauka, 1989.





CYLINDRICAL WAVES DIFFRACTION ON THE BOARDER OF ELASTIC AND LIQUID MEDIA

E.I. Urazakov Institute of Mathematics Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:erlik@math.kz

Diffraction problem of various waves by rough surface was considered in plenty papers. The sound reflection from rough surface was considered in [1]. In this work the perfectly rigid body was considered, therefore the influence any spreading waves wasn't considered.

Although this problem has a strong practical interest [2], particularly as one of methods of nondestructive check. We consider a sound reflection from incident cylindrical axial-symmetric wave source deepened in the liquid on some middle distance h from the boarder of the liquid-solid, which is a random rough surface. At the average it is supposed that the surface is flat and average amplitude of roughness is smaller than normal component of wave length and length of distance the roughness noticeable change. Thus we can decompose the boundary conditions to serial expansion by the length of deviation, like as it use in the perturbation method [3].

In our approach we use a small parameter which is a ratio of the relative liquid impedance to solid body γ . The vector field image in the neighborhood of source and boundary surface liquid is presented for the displacement field.

In our paper we give explanation for experimental behavior of the reflection factor for the waves, falling from liquid to real boarder of solid body.

References

- M.S. Howe. On some properties of the eigenvalues by the variation of the domain // Proc. Roy. Soc. London, No.A337, 1974, pp. 413-419.
- [2] F.R. Rollins. On some properties of the eigenvalues by the variation of the domain // Mat. Eval., Vol.24, No.413, 1974, pp. 683-687.
- [3] E.I. Urazakov, L.A. Falkovskii. On some properties of the eigenvalues by the variation of the domain // Zh.ETPhyz, No.77, 1979, pp. 1174-1178.

MATHEMATICAL MODELS FOR INDEPENDENT COMPUTER PRESENTATION OF TURKIC LANGUAGES

Pavel S. Pankov, Batyigul J. Bayachorova, Mukhtar Juraev National Academy of Sciences of Kyrgyz Republic e-mail:pps50@rambler.ru

We give new definition of the notion "language" and the definitions of mathematical and computer models of a notion of a natural language suitable for computer presentation and offer the syntax of an auxiliary algorithmic language for such presentation with random choose of additional objects. We propose to create interactive presentations of foundations of Turkic languages with the following aims: to offer all computer users an acquaintance with Turkic languages without other languages as a media; to develop effective electronic text-books and complex examinations on Turkic languages; to fix their up-to-date state and to distinguish similar and same notions in them by comparing corresponding mathematical models.





A MICROSCOPIC DESCRIPTION OF THE SPIN POLARIZATION EFFECTS ON THE MAGNETIC MOMENTS¹

H. Yakut, E. Guliyev, A.A. Kuliev, E. Tabar Department of physics, Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey Institute of Physics, National Academy of Sciences, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:hyakut@sakarya.edu.tr, guliyev@physics.ab.az

In this study the effects of the spin-spin and spin-isospin interactions on magnetic moments were investigated by using a microscopic method called as Quasiparticle-phonon model (QPM). The aim of this approach is to take into account the interaction of quasi-particles with phonons of the eveneven nucleus. The phonon states in doubly even nuclei are described in RPA and their structure is conserved in odd-mass nuclei when one takes into account the spin-spin interactions between phonons and quasiparticles. In this model the internal wave function for an odd-mass nucleus in a state with an angular momentum projection K is taken in the form (K > 1/2)

$$\Phi_{K}(\tau) = \left\{ N_{K}(\tau)\alpha_{K}^{+}(\tau) + \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \sum_{\tau'} \sum_{\nu} G_{i}^{KK_{\nu}}(\tau,\tau')\alpha_{K_{\nu}}^{+}(\tau)Q_{i}^{+} \right\} \Psi_{0}.$$
(1)

Here $\alpha_{K_{\nu}}^{+}$ and Q_{i}^{+} are the quasiparticle and phonon creation operators. Isospin index τ and τ' represent neutron and proton. The function Ψ_{0} represents the phonon vacuum which corresponds to the eveneven core of the nucleus. The quantities $N_{K}(\tau)$ and $G_{i}^{KK_{\nu}}$ determine the contribution of the one quasiparticle and the quasiparticle-phonon component in the wave function, respectively. In order to derive the secular equation that the energies η_{K} are calculated for an odd nucleus, we used the variational principle in the form

$$\delta \left\{ \langle \Phi_K(\tau) H \Phi_K(\tau) \rangle - \eta_K \left[N_K^2(\tau) + \sum_{i,\nu} [G_i^{KK_\nu}]^2 - 1 \right] \right\} = 0$$
⁽²⁾

in which the normalization condition is expressed though $\langle \Phi_K(\tau)H\Phi_K(\tau)\rangle$; η_K acts as a Lagrange factor and the variations δN_K and $\delta G_i^{KK_\nu}$ are treated as independent variations. Finally, we derived an analytical expression for the effective spin gyromagnetic factor in the form of

$$g_s^{eff} - g_\ell^\tau = (g_s^\tau - g_\ell^\tau) \left\{ 1 - 2N_K^2(\tau) \sum_i \frac{\kappa R_q^i(\tau, \tau') R_q^i}{(\varepsilon_K(\tau) + \omega_i(\tau) - \eta_K(\tau))} \right\} - (g_s^{\tau'} - g_\ell^{\tau'}) 2N_K^2(\tau) \sum_i \frac{\kappa R_q^i(\tau, \tau') R_q^i}{(\varepsilon_K(\tau) + \omega_i(\tau) - \eta_K(\tau))}.$$

$$(3)$$

The detailed information about the equations represented above is in ref. [1].

References

 A.A. Kuliev, H. Yakut, E. Guliyev, Z. Yildirim. Azerbaijan Journal of Physics, Fizika, Vol.XVI, No.2, 2010, pp. 502-505.

¹This research is supported by Ekber Guliyev.





THE MATHEMATICAL DESCRIPTION OF KAZAKH PHONETICS

Zhandos A. Yessenbayev, Altynbek A. Sharipbayev L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:yessen@mail.ru, sharalt@mail.ru

One of the important research areas in information technology is speech recognition and synthesis, which is an attempt to advance human-machine interaction. The ability of a computer to understand speech and act accordingly would potentially reduce the human load and the risks in human-dependent applications. It is clear that the design and development of such speech-enabled systems mostly depend on the phonetic structure and the mathematical description of the underlying language.

However, if Kazakh language is concerned, there are no common standards regarding its phonetics. Current studies about the phonetics of Kazakh language were inherited from the Russian and do not precisely reflect the characteristics of the former what has been shown in [1, 2]. Moreover, with the bilingual status of the country, people frequently use words from both languages in their daily conversations and this adds more complication to processing of Kazakh speech [see Fig.]. Another issue is that there are no acoustic databases, which would include the utterances of Kazakh speech for speakers of different gender, age and region. The existence of such a database could help reveal physical properties of the Kazakh sounds and test the hypotheses stated by the linguists. Definitely, all these decelerate the process of the development of speech-enabled systems.

Therefore, to foster research in speech recognition and synthesis, we focus on Kazakh speech and its phonetic diversity. Here we aim to revise and understand the phonetical structure of Kazakh language and suggest a phonetic dictionary, which includes the mathematical description of unique physical characteristics of phonemes in time and frequency domains. Such characteristics are pitch, formants, frequency range, duration, periodicity and other acoustic parameters of the phonemes in speech signals of the various speakers. This study provides the classification of the phonemes, their variation among the speakers as well as the properties of phonetic transitions.

Our approach is based on the work done in [3] with the application to Kazakh speech. The results of the study can be beneficial to a broad audience that is doing research on Kazakh speech.



Figure. Difference in starting sound o in Kazakh and Russian words: a) Kazakh on sounds like English on; b) Russian on sounds like English on

- S.I. Torehanov, A.A. Sharipbayev. About the current state of the Kazakh phonetics // Eurasian National University Bulletin, Astana, 2001, pp. 3-4.
- [2] S.I. Torehanov, A.A. Sharipbayev. The mathematical model of the set of Kazakh vowels // Eurasian National University Bulletin, Astana, 2002, pp. 3-4.
- [3] J.P. Olive, A. Greenwood, J. Coleman. Acoustics of American English Speech // A Dynamic Approach, Springer, 1993.





N-FRACTIONAL CALCULUS OPERATOR N^{μ} METHOD TO A MODIFIED HYDROGEN ATOM EQUATION

Resat Yilmazer, Erdal Bas Department of Mathematics, Firat University, Elazig, Turkey e-mail:rstyilmazer@gmail.com

Let

$$q\left(r\right) = \frac{\ell\left(\ell+1\right)}{r^2} - \frac{n}{r} \quad \left(0 < r < \infty\right),$$

where ℓ is a positife integer or zero and n > 0. Then

$$\frac{d^2y}{dr^2} + \left[E + \frac{n}{r} - \frac{\ell(\ell+1)}{r^2}\right]y = 0.$$
 (1)

In the quantum mechanics the study of the energy levels of the hydrogen atom leads to this equation [1].

Theorem. Let $y \in \{y : 0 \neq |y_{\mu}| < \infty; \mu \in \mathbb{R}\}$ and $f \in \{f : 0 \neq |f_{\mu}| < \infty; \mu \in \mathbb{R}\}$. Then the nonhomogeneous modified hydrogen atom equation (putting $E = k^2$ (k the corresponding wave number), $m = \ell + (1/2)$ in (1)):

$$L[y, r, m, n] = y_2 + y \left[k^2 + \frac{n}{r} + \frac{(1/4) - m^2}{r^2} \right] = f \quad (r \neq 0)$$
⁽²⁾

has particular solutions of the forms:

$$y = r^{m+\frac{1}{2}} e^{-ikr} \left\{ \left[\left(fr^{\frac{1}{2}-m} e^{ikr} \right)_{-m-\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}} e^{-2ikr} r^{m-\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}} \right]_{-1} e^{2ikr} r^{-m+\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}} \right\}_{m+\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}}, \quad (3)$$

$$y = r^{-m+\frac{1}{2}} e^{-ikr} \left\{ \left[\left(fr^{\frac{1}{2}+m} e^{ikr} \right)_{m-\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}} e^{-2ikr} r^{-m-\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}} \right]_{-1} e^{2ikr} r^{m+\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}} \right\}_{-m+\frac{in}{2k}-\frac{1}{2}}.$$
 (4)

Here $y_2 = d^2 y/dr^2$, $y = y(z)(z \in \mathbb{C})$, f = f(z) (an arbitrary given function) and m, n are given constants.

- D.I. Blohincev. Foundations of Quantum Mechanics // GITTL, Moscow, 1949, 3rd ed., Vyss. Skola, Kiev, 1961, English Transl., Reidel, Dordrecht, 1964, MR B1896; 29 6806.
- [2] S.S. de Romero, H.M. Srivastava. An Application of the N- Fractional Calculus Operator method to a Modified Whittaker Equation // Appl. Math. and Comp., Vol.115, 2000, pp. 11-21.





THE SIMULATION OF FORMATION PROCESS OF CERAMICS BY A HOT MOULDING METHOD

Uzak K. Zhapbasbayev, Gaukhar I. Ramazanova, Zamira K. Sattinova Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:gauhar.r@yandex.ru

The hydrodynamics of the thermoplastic slurry molding should be attributed to the class of physical processes of deformation and flow. The flow of the slurry after a feeder retains its configuration. In doing so, the flow velocity and pressure are constant. In the experiments it was found that in the range of possible casting speed the mode of the motion of the thermoplastic slurry in the molding form is laminar. The slurry comes in the form of injection molding at a temperature 75°C, cools it to a temperature at which the casting can be removed from the form without warping, i.e., (20-25)°C. The movement and the heat transfer of the slurry in the form molding is viewed as a set of steps: the slurry motion and the heat transfer in the liquid state; the motion and the heat transfer of the slurry in the light of crystallization; the movement of the casting and the heat transfer in the solid state [1-4].

The intensity of heat exchange between the hot slurry and the coolant liquid depends on the regime of the flow, the thermal and the physical characteristics of the slurry, the coolant temperature of the liquid, the wall material and the geometry dimensions of the bushing. In the process of the heat change flow the rheological properties, and a solidification of the slurry. The peculiarity of solidification is that the temperature of the external wall of bushing washed by cold water, will lower the temperature of its central part, this comes to uneven of the profile of the temperature and the rheological characteristics of the slurry. The solidification starts from that the temperature Tw of the outer wall, while the slurry will be in liquid state in the central part. In the result is a liquid makeup of the slurry to compensate for internal shrinkage during hardening in the cooled zone of the bushing.

The mathematical model includes a system of equations of motion of non-Newtonian Bingham's fluids, continuity and heat transfer, taking into account the speed of crystallization of the slurry. The thermal properties of the slurry (density, viscosity, limiting shear stress, thermal conductivity, heat capacity, heat of crystallization) are a function of the temperature.

Results of mathematical simulating of formation process of ceramics by a hot moulding method are resulted. The calculated data describes changes of modular condition thermoplastic slurry in process of cooling in a form-building cavity. The moulding characteristics providing homogeneous properties of thermoplastic slurry at formation of ceramics by the hot moulding method are received.

- [1] A.G. Dobrovolski, Slurry casting // M., Metallurgy, 1977, 240 p.
- [2] S.A. Shakhov, G.D. Bitsoyev. Application of ultrasound in the production of highly heat-conducting of ceramic products // Ust-Kamenogorsk, 1999, 145 p.
- [3] U.K. Zhapbasbayev, A. Kaltayev, G.D. Bitsoyev, S.K. Turnayev. Hydrodynamics of moulding of ceramic articles from beryllium oxide with ultrasonic activation // Proceedings ASME International Mechanical Engineering Congress and Exposition, Orlando, 2005, Vol.3, 177 p.
- [4] S.A. Shakhov, A.E. Gagarin. Rheological characteristics of thermoplastic disperse systems, treated by ultrasound // Glass and ceramics, 2008, No.4, pp. 19-21.





ON EINSTEIN'S PRESCRIPTION

Kanat Zhunussov Kazakh National Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:zhzhkh@mail.ru

The notation of the energy has been one of the most theory and important problem in Einstein's theory. There are many attempts to get a well defined expression for local or quasi-local energy and impulse [1-3]. However, there is still no generally accepted definitions known as result, different people have different points of view. Energy and impulse density are usually defined by the second rank tensor T_a^b . The conservation of energy and impulse are described by the requirement that the tensor divergence is zero. A contribution from the gravitational field must be add to obtain an energy-impulse expression with zero divergence. Einstein first obtained such an expression and many others such as Landau and Lifshits, Papapetrou, and Weinberg gave similar prescriptions [4-6]. These definitions only give meaningful results if the calculations are performed in "Cartesian" coordinates. Muller has shown that it is impossible to find a satisfactory expression for the energy-impulse complex in any coordinate system [5-6]. In a series of papers Cooperstock has propounded a hypothesis according to which, in curved space-time, energy impulse tensor T_a^b of the matter and all non-gravitation fields. Nashed and Mourad calculate the energy and impulse of the stationary beam of light. The results of Xulu and Bringley support this hypothesis. Sharif and Gad have applied some prescriptions to calculate energyimpulse densities of Godel space time [1-7]. The aim of this work is to calculate the energy-impulse densities of the stationary cylindrically symmetric of rotating perfect fluid with constant pressure, rigid rotation and the r-z space is flat. By using Einstein's and Papapetrou's prescriptions for four classes these solutions explicitly as Godel type solutions by using Einstein's prescription and Papapetrou's prescription. The energy and impulse densities in Einstein's prescription are given by

$$\Theta_b^a = \frac{1}{16\pi} M_{a,c}^{bc},$$

where

$$M_{a}^{bc} = \frac{g_{ad}}{\sqrt{-g(-g(g^{bd}g_{ce} - g^{cd}g_{be})_{e})}},$$

where a, b, c, d, e = 0, 1, 2, 3. Θ_0^0 is the energy density, Θ_0^a is the momentum density components, and Θ_a^0 is the energy current density. Einstein energy impulse satisfies the local conservation laws

$$\frac{\partial \Theta_a^b}{\partial x^b} = 0.$$

In order to evaluate the energy and impulse densities for Godel-type metrics, we need to calculate the non-vanishing components of M_a^{bc} and then we obtain the energy and impulse densities in Einstein's prescription. Then we calculate the non-vanishing components of the energy and impulse for the four cases.

- [1] R. Penrose. proc. Roy. soc. Lond.A , Vol.35, 1982, 381 p.
- [2] C.W. Minser, P.H. Sharp. Phys. Rev., A, Vol.571, 1964, 163 p.
- [3] H. Bondi. proc. Roy. soc. Lond.A , 1990, 427 p.
- [4] L.D. Landau, E.M. Lifshitz. The Classical Theory of Field // Pergamon Press, 1987, 280 p.
- [5] A.Papapetrou. Proc. R. Irish Academy A., Vol.11, 1948, 25 p.
- [6] S. Weinberg. "Gravation and Gosmology" Principles and Applications of General Theory of Relativity // John Wieley and Sons, Ins., New York, 1972, 72 p.
- [7] M.F. Mourad. Mathematical J, Almaty A., Vol.68, 2005, 5 p.





SECTION IX

Theoretical Bases of Information Technologies

QUALITY ANALYSIS OF THE INDUSTRIAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Rahila A. Abdullayeva

Ministry of Education of the Azerbaijan Republic, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:rahila009@yahoo.com

The problem of modeling and quality analysis of the industrial information systems (IS) is considered. The variety of the project variants of IS obtained from the modules (M) of the system is presented with accuracy of isomorphism by means of the ortree D(M, F), where M is the set of vertices corresponding to the functional structure of the information system; F are the mappings indicating the incidence of the vertices of the ortree [1].

According to the theory of additive utility the integrated criterion W is represented in the form: $W = \sum_{i=1}^{k} \lambda_i f_i(v_i) \quad (i=1,2,\ldots,k),$ where λ_i is the weight of the *i*-th local quality criteria; $\lambda_i = [0,1];$ $\sum_{i=1}^{k} \lambda_i = 1, \quad f_i(v_i)$ is the normalized value of the *i*-th quality index.

To each ortree D(T, Fi), D(P, Fp), D(I, Fi) we correspond the ortree of the complex criteria D(W,Q), and to each configuration on the ortree D(W,Q), the total value of the integral quality criteria $X_T = \sum_{i=1}^k \omega_i$, where $\omega_1 \in W_1$, $\omega_2 \in W_2$, ..., $\omega_k \in W_k$. To define the set of effective with respect to x_T configurations of the information system and to

To define the set of effective with respect to x_T configurations of the information system and to define the components of these configurations the notion of generalized graphs [2] of information system and module - graph of the subsystem of information system [3, 4] is introduced.

The proposed model defines enough universal and useful techniques for the modeling of the quality of information system. The important advantage of this model is that, it enables to obtain an integral estimate for the quality of the information system, differential quality estimate on the intersection of the different properties and also on the intersection of the different subsystems of information system.

- A.M. Abbasov, R.A. Abdullayeva, R.A. Karayev. Model for Design Syntheses of Adaptive Information Systems // Proc. of the Institute of Mathematics and Mechanics of Azerbaijan National Academy of Sciences, Baku, 1999, Vol.11(19), pp. 195-200.
- [2] A.A. Zykov. Theory of finite graphs // Novosibirsk: Nauka, 1989, 543p.
- [3] R.A. Abdullayeva. To the question on structurization of the problem of adaptive information systems design // Transaction of Baku State University, No.1, 2000, pp. 185-189.
- [4] R.A. Abdullayeva. Design Model of Adaptive Information Systems // Proc. of the 9th International Machine Design and Production Conference UMTIK - 2000, 13-15 September, 2000, METU Ankara, Turkey, pp. 49-53.





NETWORK MECHANISM DESIGN: AN OVERVIEW¹

Tansu Alpcan Deutsche Telekom Laboratories, Technical University of Berlin, Germany e-mail:alpcan@sec.ut-labs.tu-berlin.de

Network mechanism design aims to achieve system level goals such as maximization of aggregate user performance on computer and communication networks, where users are independent and often selfish decision-makers with individual preferences. By imposing certain rules and pricing schemes, the mechanism designer aligns the system-wide objectives with those of the users, and achieves the targeted goals while ensuring user incentive-compatibility. The resulting mechanisms and games are useful in distributed control of a broad class of networks, including wired, optical, wireless, mesh, and heterogeneous. The methodology and algorithms developed are applicable to diverse network control problems such as interference and spectrum management, energy efficiency, as well as security, privacy, and adversarial user behavior.

Let us define an N-player strategic (noncooperative) game, \mathcal{G} , where each player $i\mathcal{A}$ has a scalar decision variable x_i such that $x = [x_1, \ldots, x_N] \in \mathcal{X} \subset \mathbb{R}^N$, where \mathcal{X} is the convex and compact decision space of all players. The player objective is to solve the following individual optimization problem

$$\min_{x_i} J_i(x),$$

under the given assumptions and constraints of the strategic game, and rules and prices imposed by the designer. The designer objective, e.g. maximization of aggregate user utilities or social welfare, can be formulated using a smooth objective function V for the designer:

$$\max_{x} V(x, U_i(x), c_i(x))$$

where $c_i(x)$ and $U_i(x)$, $i \in A$, are user-specific pricing terms and player utilities, respectively. It is important to note that the designer can only influence the outcome, e.g. Nash equilibrium of the game indirectly and cannot dictate actions of players, which would have immediately negated preferencecompatibility. The goal is then to align these N + 1 optimization problems, which can be formulated as a static or dynamic problem. An iterative and control-theoretic approach to network mechanism design is illustrated in the next figure.



References

 A.K. Chorppath, T. Alpcan, H. Boche. Pricing mechanisms for multi-carrier wireless systems // in Proc. of IEEE Intl. Dynamic Spectrum Access Networks (DySPAN) Symp., Aachen, Germany, May, 2011.

¹ This research is supported by Deutsche Telekom Laboratories.







CONDITIONS OF IMAGE EXISTANCE IN AN INFRARED IMAGE CONVERTER¹

Bahtiyar Salamov

 $Gazi\ University,\ Physics\ Department,\ Besevler,\ Ankara,\ Turkey$

e-mail:bala@gazi.edu.tr

For infrared (IR) image converters following conditions of image existence can be formulated

$$\mathbf{j}_c \ge \alpha j_T \tag{1}$$

$$j_c + j_T \ge j' \tag{2}$$

where j'- the threshold current for the visualizing unit of system, α - constant, determining 'minimal current' contrast. The following system of the inequalities defining (CIE) can be written as

$$q_c \ge \alpha q_T \tag{3}$$

$$q_c + q_T \ge q_m. \tag{4}$$

where q_m - minimum quantity of electricity. Considering that, $j = e\mu n\varepsilon$, CIE can be written as

$$n_c \ge \alpha n_T,$$
 (5)

$$n_c + n_T \ge n' \tag{6}$$

where n_c and n_T - the concentration of nonequilibrium and equilibrium carriers, correspondingly. If in the limit of considering (5) and (6) as the equalities

$$n_c = \alpha n_T \tag{7}$$

$$n_c + n_T = n' \tag{8}$$

that this is the system 2 - x equations in two unknowns, that has the unique solution $n_c(\alpha, n')$ and $n_T(\alpha, n')$, that represents point on the plane $n_T(n_c)$

$$n_T = n' / \left(1 + \alpha \right) \tag{9}$$

$$n_c = \alpha n' / \left(1 + \alpha \right) \tag{10}$$

At $n_T > n'$ an inequality (6) is satisfied due to one only this condition, in this region the system ((5), (6) turns to system

$$n_c = \alpha n_T \tag{11}$$

$$n_c + n_T > n' \tag{12}$$

moreover the condition for exceeding threshold charge (12) is satisfied automatically; in the region $n_T < n'/(1 + \alpha)$ the system (5), (6) has the form

$$n_c > \alpha n_T \tag{13}$$

$$n_c + n_T = n' \tag{14}$$

and the condition of multiplicity (13) is satisfied automatically. It follows from above mentioned that full function $n_c(n_{\rm T})$ it cannot be analytically expressed by one formula, but in individual ranges one of the inequalities of system turns to equality, whereas another inequality is fulfilled automatically.

¹ This research is supported by Gazi University BAP research projects 05/2010-31 and 05/2010-60.





SLA BASED COMPUTING CLOUDS MERGER AND SEPARATION USING GAME THEORY

Assel Zh. Akzhalova, Bolatzhan A. Kumalakov, Darkhan Zh. Akhmed-Zaki Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail: Asel.Akzhalova@kaznu.kz, B.Kumalakov@gmail.com, Darhan.Ahmed-Zaki@kaznu.kz

High performance systems are offered considerable computing possibilities to enterprises and individuals. However, day-to-day application demand for computing resources has volatile nature, causing overconsumption at demand decreases and shortage at demand peaks. This problem has been addressed through numerous ways and the perspective solution is adopting cloud computing system [1].

The main idea behind the cloud computing is in dynamically increasing and decreasing processing power, depending on the executed application needs. As a result, resources are not overspent and, on the other hand, processes are supplied with required processing power on fly. Another conceptual characteristics of cloud computing is in perceiving it as a self managed distributed resources pool. This pool consists of numerous independent clouds, which are equipped with the quality-of-service (QoS) and service level agreements (SLA). Those are used in order to ensure adequate resources leverage and their fair utilization, as well as ensure that provided services do meet quality levels declared in contract agreements.

In this paper authors propose an approach to an SLA reconfiguration based cloud merger and separation framework. Particular attention is drawn to the secure physical and virtual resources leverage management using game theory. Main contribution of this paper is in applying alternative to existing methods - game approach to leveraging resources, and outlining its conceptual advantages.

References

 R. Buyya, C.S. Yeo, S. Venugopal, J. James Broberg, I. Brandic. Cloud computing and emerging IT platforms: Vision, hype, and reality for delivering computing as the 5th utility // Future Gener. Comput. Syst., Elsevier, Vol. 25, No.6, 2008, pp.599-616.





ON THE METHOD OF CALCULATION OF THE LIKELIHOOD-TIME INDICATORS OF OPTIMAL SERVICE IN THE DIGITAL NETWORK WITH INTEGRATION OF SERVICES

D. Ashigaliev, L. Salybek Institute of Informatics and Control Problems, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:ashigalievdj@mail.ru

In the given work the problem of calculation of the probabilistic time characteristics of a computer network functioning is investigated on the basis of an integrated digital communication network. At the present stage, this combination is the most perspective direction in the development of networks of electric communication. The developed analytical models of calculation of these characteristics of a computer network allows to adequately display interaction between working loading and resources of a network and to estimate its expected productivity, for preventing the peak situations which inevitably arise at an overload of networks. The given methods allow to supervise such undesirable situations at the expense of an effective utilization of circuitious directions of transfer of loading.

The system of equations determining values of node loading subnetworks of switching of channels with circuitious directions of its transfer is received. The uniqueness of solution to this system is proved. In the research a method allowing to calculate for each pair of nodes the current values of probabilities of node losses also is offered. The estimation of average time of a delay in transfer of a package subnetwork of switching of packages in structure of an integrated network is investigated and the dependence of function of a temporary delay subnetwork of switching of packages, in structure of an integrated COMPUTER network of the , from values of the missed flow subnetwork of switching of channels is shown.

The formalized mathematical problem of calculating the optimum probabilistic time characteristics for all computer network as a whole is given. The analytical approach to calculation of the optimum probabilistic time characteristics for a computer network is submitted, on the basis of a digital network with integration of services, with use of the concept of virtual connections care of multichannel calls on circuitious directions. Thus, a number of assumptions is made which with a rather exact degree allow to approach considered model to really functioning integrated networks of communication. The method of mathematical researches receives analytical representation of a considered problem. Further, through a method of Lagrange multipliers are received and the necessary and sufficient conditions of an optimality of the decision of a mathematical problem of calculating optimum probabilistic time characteristics for a digital network with integration of services are proved.

Decentralized algorithm of calculation probabilistic time characteristics for optimum performance of a digital network with integration of services is developed. On the basis of the received theoretical results the basic principle of functioning of algorithm is stated which consists in local procedure of performance of steps of algorithm on each node of an integrated network, that at the end results to the optimization of parameters of quality of service for all network as a whole.

The constructed algorithm of adaptive management of calculation probabilistic time characteristics of a digital network with integration of services is a decentralized algorithm. That is for its realization it is not required the additional information from all nodes of a network at correction of sizes of delays. For this purpose it is enough to carry out an exchange of such information only between the adjacent nodes. Thus the exchange is made by the strictly established rule according to order of nodes in relation to a direction of movement of a channel flow. With the help of consecutive transformations of algorithm the initial set variable is changed and approached to the optimum. At a final stage of algorithm the set of variables, being the decision of a problem of calculation optimum probabilistic time characteristics for a digital network with integration of services, is calculated.





SIMULATION OF THE RADIAL DRILLING METHOD IN THE FIELD DEVELOPMENT BY WATERFLOODING FIELD

B.K. Assilbekov, I.K. Beisembetov, U.K. Zhapbasbayev, B.K. Kenzhaliev, A.S. Kelimbetova, T.T. Bekibaev, B.B. Sakhariev Kazakh-British Technical University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:b.assilbekov@kbtu.kz

Today, most oil fields in oil-producing countries of the world operate at a late stage of development, the recoverable reserves of such fields have been extracted, and the remaining oil is left unrecovered confined to low-permeability reservoirs. Moreover, the formations of these fields are highly watered out. Lately, in oil fields with complex geological structure at a late stage of development the method of drilling radial channels in the well by the hydro-monitored drilling is successfully applied. With the use of this method in 20 wells of EmbaMunaiGaz the average daily oil production rate from the sandstone formation has risen from 410 bbl/day to 1,161 bbl/day, which altogether comprised an additional oil production of 7,316 tons in 8 months. The experience of applying this technology in practice shows the need for a throughout analysis of the geophysical conditions and filtration capacity properties of the formation to determine the effectiveness of a use of this method in a given field. This is achieved through the development of 3D geological and hydrodynamic models of the reservoir. This report presents the results of calculations made on the 3D geological and hydrodynamic model of the radial drilling method and investigates the oil displacement efficiency by injected water through the radial channels. The results show 5-7the radial channels in the injection well, the additional production is 400 tones in case of the 5 spot injection pattern of the wells. The displacement front in the common waterflooding (Figure 1.a) is highly heterogeneous, which leads to a decrease in sweep efficiency. While with the use of the radial channels created by the hydro-monitored drilling method results in more homogeneous displacement front distribution through the formation (Figure 1.b).



Figure 1. Distribution of the displacement front by a normal waterflooding (a) and by waterflooding through the radial channels (b)

References

[1] Radial drilling technology // http://www.radialdrilling.com/.





APPLICATIONS OF NEAR-RINGS TO SOFT SETS: SOFT PARTS OF SOFT INT AND SOFT UNI NEAR-RINGS

Akın O. Atağun, Aslıhan Sezgin Bozok University, Yozgat, Turkey Amasya University, Amasya, Turkey e-mail:aosman.atagun@bozok.edu.tr, aslihan.sezgin@amasya.edu.tr

In this study, we introduce soft parts of soft int and soft uni near-rings called soft zero-symmetric and soft constant parts and derive their basic properties. We give some applications of parts of nearrings to soft sets and study relations between parts of near-rings and soft parts of soft int and soft uni near-rings. We illustrate the results by giving several examples.

ON AN EMPLOYMENT PERIOD OF ONE CLASS OF SERVICE SYSTEMS

T.M. Aliev

Institute of Cybernetics of ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:tofik_aliev44@rambler.ru, may1959@rambler.ru

The service system with expectation and the unreliable server not ordinary Poisson's stream of demands with intensity arrives, depending on some parameter $x \in R^+ = [0, \infty)$ is considered. This parameter characterizes out of work time the server or the time of processing of the demand (the period of repair of the server).

The state 0^+ or k^{\pm} , $k \ge 1$ of the system means that in the considered moment the system is free, the server is working or there exists a processing demand in the system, correspondingly. Such system is described by the homogeneous Markov process $\{\xi_t, \eta_t\}, t \ge 0$ with phase space $\{0^+, 1^{\pm}, 2^{\pm}, \ldots\} \times R^+$ and the set of transitive probabilities, containing arrival intensities $\lambda^{\pm}(x)$, service $\nu(x)$, failure (server restoration) $\mu^{\pm}(x)$, accordingly.

In the work the condition of the property of employment period is proved. For the considered service system this condition is equivalent to the condition of ergodicity of the same system.





THE WAY OF CREATING AN INTEGRATED INFORMATION SPACE BASED ON THE INDEPENDENTLY DEVELOPED COMPONENTS

A.S. Boranbayev Nazarbayev University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:aboranba@yahoo.com

Today the most commonly used technological approach to component integration systems within an information space is - SOA (Service-Oriented Architecture). It is a very popular approach to software development based on Services with standardized interfaces.

SOAP (Simple Object Access Protocol) is a standard data transfer protocol between SOA web services and client applications. A Web Service is an application that serves as a cross-point in a distributed system. The disadvantage of Web Services is a limited performance of information systems using this technology. This is because of a low text data transfer speed (using the XML format).

In our example another approach was used to create an integrated information space based on independently developed components, which is called - EAI (Enterprise Application Integration). This technology was used to create an integration bus that ensured the management system components' joint operation.

Not long ago, the most popular alternative to the EAI technology was through replacing system components with standardized modules, which required large-scale financial investments.

EAI-based integration systems serve as an interface between heterogeneous information systems and link poorly connected business processes. EAI- based systems eliminate the need to modify each application and improve internal work efficiency. The following tasks can be solved within the EAI technological framework: a) managing heterogeneous IT systems' cooperation; b) improving flexibility and operational efficiency of the utilized information systems and components; c) having the chance to use a centralized management system; d) viewing data from various systems using a single interface (we used web technologies).

Data could be transferred from one system to another using a model, in which an application sends messages to other applications, and they, in their turn, inform the message broker about the data request. This level was implemented using queue servers. Queue servers guarantee message delivery in both asynchronous and synchronous modes. Asynchronous operation capability is important, because it ensures that the infrastructure is independent of EAI systems.

EAI information systems organized access to various business systems through specialized interfaces "connectors", which interact with systems via API either by feeding data stored in databases, or by using special transfer formats, such as XML.

Different information systems store data in different formats. The most important function of EAI systems is data transformation into the format required by the receiving information system. These kinds of transformations are affected using a set of transformation guidelines, which establish data formats' compatibility between various information systems.

Nowadays many major software manufacturers have solutions that support EAI.





DETECTION OF POTENTIAL REGULATORY SITES IN GENOMES OF PH.SOJAE AND PH.RAMORUM USING COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

V.Q. Amikishiev, G.N. Ibrahimova, U.A. Shahmaliev, A.A. Salamov Genetic Resources Institute of ANAS, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan DOE Joint Genome Institute, Walnut Creek, CA, USA e-mail:vamikishiyev@yahoo.com

Phytophtoras are members of Oomycetes clade, whose members causing enormousdamage to various crops worldwide. *Ph.sojae* has been developed as model species for the genus, while *Ph.ramorum* is very vurulent species, destroying many oak forests in USA and Europe. We analysed 979 ortologous genes and corresponding promoterregions in 2 genomes in order to determine the potential conserved regulatory motifs. These sites may be found inside coding sequences where they have no sense. Therefore we should look for each site from tfrr.set both in coding and promoter regions. And sort out those ones which display much higher frequency in promoters than in genes and at the same time they are better preserved in both promoters than in both genes. That is, for each site from tfrr.set we count the number of its occurrences in all 979 promoter sequences and calculate the corresponding frequency (sum of occurrences divided by total length of all promoters) or, more exactly

$N/Sum(L_i - L_{site} + 1),$

where N – the number of sites detected, Li – length of the sequence (i = 1,979) and Lsite – length of the site. Along with the number of cases when given site was detected in both corresponding promoter sequences. We do the same with coding sequences. And select sites where frequency of occurrence in promoters is higher than in genes and at the same time these sites are preserved in promoters.

We searched both for known motifs from transcription factor binding sites (TFBS) database TRANS-FAC (http:/<u>www.generegulation.com/pub/databases.html</u>), as well as for the de novo motifs using program MEME (Bailey and Elkan, 1994). For known sites we selected only motifs which were statistically more enriched in promoter regions relative to genic regions of the genomes and conserved in both genomes. Based on found motifs we developed a computer program for recognition of promoter regions using an algorithm of Boyer-Moore. This algorithm searches for patterns in the sequences from right to left using 2 methods: bad character heuristics and good suffix heuristics. In the worst-case scenario algorithm performs approximately 3n comparisons in the aperiodic sequences. We plan further to include into analysis another Oomycetes sequences, including the recently sequenced Phytophtora infestans genome.





CREATION OF ELECTRONIC DATABASE OF TECHNICAL TERMS IN KYRGYZ LANGUAGE

S.J. Karabaeva

Kyrgyz State University of Construction, Transport and Architecture, Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:sonun2008@mail.ru

The present stage of development of science and technology is characterized by intensive enrichment of conceptual devices and occurrence of new terms designating advanced concepts. It is natural that new terms don't always designate well defined concepts, clear and accurate definitions which are available in corresponding area of knowledge. In this connection, the first and most significant to adopt new words is the area of computer technologies. Prominent features of technical style are its informative (pithiness), logicality (strict sequence, accurate communication between the basic idea and details), accuracy and objectivity, clearness and understandability.

The texts belonging to given style, can possess the specified lines to a greater or lesser extent. Primary use of language promotes and satisfaies requirements of a given sphere of dialogue, and is found in all such texts. In the field of lexicon it assumes use of scientific and technical terminology and special lexicons. Last year a new law was enacted in the Parliament, making it mandatory for all scientific and technological literature to be in the Kyrgyz language. This has forced scientists-teachers to create an electronical dictionaries of technical terms in various branches of science and technology for more unified and systematic use of technical terms. It is necessary to create automation in the field of lexicography of unique and original terminological dictionaries and automatic databases.

The purpose: To create an electronic dictionary of word indicators in the Kyrgyz language, the last achievements in programs using computer and information technology are directed to create electronic base of dictionaries of technical terms in the Kyrgyz language in object oriented language Delphi, to arrange all units entering into the dictionary. To arrange terms in alphabetic order, to carry out the morphological analysis of the terms, to define type (simple or difficult) to find the general and terminological rates in the Kyrgyz lexical units, in education, mathematics, physics and computer sciences.



Caprana .	Granthampenarase arrow	with a		Aswawane	BINK - CMH BTOON
Orena	[double contract of the second			arropana -	381 81034
	ben been united and	Francia			
1-0	Terean				
1.49-444	Математикальск	*	P Net a ser represence		
					-
	air t	Tex	Tapara	Iowen	Nor angen represences
Los dy	10.952	Татавл	Matematican		Cota
Annalisen	100	Managara	Managaryanitya	Adaptionment	Orifia
Assessor	MERTINE CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR	Taraan	Matesativember	Adapter and the second of	Oute
	VIGN/RAN INFOCUSION	Taraan	Materiality	Accelerations	Oute
ADDRESS	VISITIVE INVISIOND	Tatana	Managaryamitus	Accelorementation and	Outa
ASHEMI	HORFSAM DAMAGERCULARY NO.	Tatana	Mateseatoriation	Challengerborn acted	Oote
Asingham	HORFACE GENTLE	Terrent	Matesaturenture	Accelowerpressoant	Oofe
April David	VISITIVE CROWNER	Terrent	Managaatusatus	Appelmentreporter,	Oofa
Acetown	DESIGNATION VOLUMENTAR	Terrent	Manusaaturkaturk		Oofa
ASHENO	COLUMN NUMBER OF	Татавл	Manusaaturkanturk		Oofe
Asingway	PROBABILIER REPORTED	Terrent	Mancavarivember	Appendiate and a second	Oofa
Asupar	HORFACE MIRCORD	Terrent	Manowarykanisk	Apertment-example	Oofa
Asupar	NUMPER OF TONO OBM	Terrent	Manowarykanisk	Co-spine april 2017	Oofa
Asingwa	MORTAN PEOPEROMA	Terment	Manowarvember	Apostamenteecome	Oofa
Asupan	MORTANE PEDOTTOPLANE	Taraan	Manesaarveense		Oofa
Asuman	MORTAN TRANSP	Taraan	Manesaryantum	Acuspmenteeousla	Oofa
Asupan	NUMPER TYPETODA	Taraan	Manasaaruwantuwa	Apartmenteences	Oofa
Apaseoas	(100)	KononoN	Manawarveenux	Apageogram	Oofa
Appendicute	910	KononoN	Manasaarveenture	Apasocanyo	Cofe
Agenetter	(de au)	Moreneway)	Manasaarveenture	Accounterrows	Code
Apacessa	0	Monom	Manasaarvaarius	Apecenano	Oofe
Assessary		Moneya M	Matematives/set	Apressive	Cota
Asarance	ee0	Kononak	Matesativisities	Aparamento	Oute
Assesses	646	Konoroji	Matesativaniture	Ackeyman	Oota

Fig.1. The Informational and logical scheme of a database Fig.2. General view of electronic base of technical terms The developed electronic base starts search and gives (sends) the report in Excel:

- (1) Terms : simple and difficult terms, total amount;
- (2) Search : terms (computer science, mathematics, physics), total amount;
- (3) Search :international terms, total amount;
- (4) Analysis : the main parts of sentence, total amount;
- (5) Kyrgyz terms;
- (6) Search the words.

This electronic base can be applied not only in the mathematics and computer science, but also in chemistry, biology and other sciences, it also completely supports technology Unicode .

^[1] S.J.Karabaeva. No.180 certificate. State Certification Organization. Bishkek, 24.12.2008.





USE OF PARALLEL COMPUTING FOR IMAGE COMPRESSION

Madina Mansurova, Moldir Nakibayeva, Gulnur Mussagulova Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:mansurova01@mail.ru

Digital images take up an increasing part of the information world. Therefore, there is continued interest in improving the image compression algorithms. In this paper methods of wavelet transform for image compression use the redundancy in data representation is considered. The wavelet transform data is represented as a subtree that can be efficiently coded.

Wavelets are the foundation of a powerful new approach to image processing and analysis, called multiresolution theory. Basic idea of multiresolution theory is the process of decomposition of a discrete sequence of values in the middle and detailing values at different scales. This paper presents the multiresolution analysis based on Haar wavelets.

The Haar normalized scaling functions and wavelets are defined respectively as follows:

$$\phi_{kj}(t) \equiv \sqrt{2^k} \phi(2^k t - j), \quad j = 0, ..., 2^{n-1} - 1$$
(1)

$$\psi_{kj}(t) \equiv \sqrt{2^k} \psi(2^k t - j), \quad j = 0, ..., 2^{n-1} - 1$$
(2)

Wavelet compression scheme is as follows:

Performing the wavelet transform.

Wavelet coefficients are sorted.

Remembered only x% largest coefficients, while the remaining (100 - x)% of the coefficients are set equal to 0.

Decoding is performed by applying the inverse wavelet transform to a thinned array of coefficients.

Wavelet transform of images allows a very efficient image compression and restoration of low-loss information. However, its implementation is very time-consuming. Meantime, parallel computing technologies are an efficient method for image compression using wavelets.

In this paper, we propose a parallel compression algorithm based on Haar wavelets. We implement the algorithm using C++ and MPI technology. The experimental results confirm the efficiency of the algorithm.

- Stephen Welstead. Fractal and Wavelet Image Compression Techniques // SPIE Optical Engineering Press. Bellingham, Washington USA, 1999, 320 p.
- [2] S.A. Nemnyugin, O.L. Stesik. Parallel programming for high-performance multiprocessor systems // St. Petersburg, 2002, 400 p.





THE METHOD OF SPEECH SIGNAL INTONATION SYNTHESIS BASED ON SPLINE APPROXIMATION

Rustam R. Musabayev, Maxat N. Kalimoldayev, Yedilkhan N. Amirgaliyev Institute of Informatics and Control Problems, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:rmusab@gmail.com

An important component part of the most text-to-speech synthesis systems is the intonation synthesis module. This module is intended for generation of an intonation contour and its subsequent applying to a synthesized signal. Naturalness of the synthesized signal is substantially determined by intonation contour definition quality. During the synthesis process it is important to realize the smooth control of speech signal parameters. Otherwise the synthesized speech will have unnatural sounding. Thus during the implementation of speech synthesis and recognition systems, the problem of smooth intonation processes modeling is actual. The given article describes the synthesis method of speech signal intonation component based on the splines - mathematically calculated curves which smoothly connect separate control points of an intonation contour. This method was used during the realization of speech signal compilative synthesis system which was developed at the Institute of Informatics and Control Problems of the Ministry of Education and Science of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

For the synthesis of a speech signal on the compilative principle, it is necessary to obtain preliminary the formalized description of its phonetic and intonation properties. As a part of the given description it is necessary to specify intonation characteristics for all phonemes. Their composition includes also a set of control points of parametrical curves. The parameters of the neighbor phonemes should be smoothly matched under these conditions. Thus the development of the specialized language is defined as a goal. This language will help to make the preliminary description of phonetic and intonation properties of a synthesized speech signal. Another necessary task is an algorithmization of the process of smooth parametrical curves calculation. The dynamics of change of the controlled parameters will be defined with their help. The ready-made and normalized by phonemes duration and by the common amplitude level, smoothly connected out of various fragments speech signal is submitted to the input of the parameters regulation system. Depending on required intonation characteristics the fundamental frequency contour is formed and applied to the initial speech signal. Then the amplitude envelopes are applied to the signal. The comparison of the method proposed in the given work with the method of linear interpolation which is used in the most of existing speech synthesis systems [1] has been conducted. The estimation was performed by the criterion of a deviation square sum minimum between calculated values according to the both methods and the natural etalon contour. As a result, for the method of linear interpolation, the average criterion is 0.25. For the proposed method the value of the average criterion is 0.07. Thus, the parametrical description of the synthesized speech signal in the UPL language in aggregate with the method of approximation of its intonational component by splines improve the quality of approximation in comparison with the existing methods.

References

 B.M.Lobanov, L.I.Tsirulnik. Computer synthesis and speech cloning. Minsk, Belorussian science // 2008, 344p(In Russian).





THE DEVICE OF RECOGNITION AND SCORING OF PRINTED TEXTS¹

Elshan E. Mustafayev, Jamal Z. Hasanov, Aida M. Sharifova Institute of Cybernetics ANAS, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:elshan.mustafayev@gmail.com, jhasanov@gmail.com, aid_tr@yahoo.com

The system is designed for reading and playing of Azerbaijani printed, hand-printed, handwritten texts. The proposed software-device system consists of mechanical device that fixes the document for reading, camera (mobile phone, scanner) and software application for printed text recognition and speech synthesis. The described system operates in a following order: Reading material is fixed in a special place of the device and captured by a special camera. The captured image is sent to the input of the text recognition system. After recognition the received text is scoring by means of a subsystem of speech synthesis.



Fig.1 - Recognition Steps

The recognition module. On Fig.1 the stages of recognition of the printing edition are shown. At the first stage there is a preliminary processing of the image (fig. 1)[1]:

1) converting in the B/W format; 2) noise removal; 3) removal of elements of the fixing device and edges of the printing edition; 4) normalizing page orientation; separate pages detection; 5) analysis of page structure and exception of non-text information for further processing; 6) text columns detection; 7) lines detection; 8) allocation of separate symbols; 9) recognize symbols; 10) post-recognition processes.

The module of speech synthesis. Module consist of two blocks: the block of linguistic processing and the voicing module. It is possible to allocate two main blocks in our synthesizer: the block of linguistic text processing and the block of voicing or actually formation of a speech signal. An acoustic signal database (ASD), which consists of fragments of a real acoustic signal elements of concatenation (EC), is the basis of our system of the speech synthesis based on concatenation a method. Dimension of these elements can be various depending on a concrete way of synthesis of speech ([2]).

Conclusion. On the basis of a software-hardware complex the device is developed for recognition and scoring printing texts by means of the computer program focused on using of the Azerbaijan language. The given device will help to receive the information from printing sources for blind or visually impaired people.

- K.R. Aida-zade, E.E. Mustafayev. Associative multi-level systems of pattern recognition // Transactions of the NAS of Azerbaijan, series of PTMS, No.3, 2001, pp. 15-18(in Russian).
- [2] K.R. Aida-zade, A.M. Sharifova. The analysis of approaches of computer synthesis Azerbaijani speech // Transactions of Azerbaijan National Academy of sciences, Informatics and control problems, Vol. 24, No.2, Baku, 2006, pp. 227-231(in Azerbaijani).

 $^{^1}$ $\,$ This research is supported by the Science Development Foundation under the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan – Grant EIF-2010-1(1)-40/13-1.





RESEARCH OF DYNAMIC PROPERTIES OF INTELLECTUAL COMPLEX SYSTEMS

Galina N. Pachshenko Institute of Informatics and Control Problems, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:galina_pashenko@mail.ru

Opportunities of immunocomputing - the new computing paradigm, shown at the decision of concrete applied problems in various subject domains, such as: monitoring of especially dangerous processes, information and ecological safety, estimating of dynamics of the fund markets, management, etc. allow to achieve a high level of efficiency, reliability, flexibility and speed of computing procedures [1].

The control systems based on traditional methods, as a rule, do not use modern information technologies, therefore application of these systems for control of complex dynamic objects results in decrease in quality of control. The control systems constructed on the basis of artificial neural networks, have no this lack and are intellectual control systems.

The procedure of research of asymptotic stability of the interval-given object with delay on the basis of interval analogue of the Lyapunov's direct method with use of the scalar-optimizing function and the Razumikhin's approach is offered.

The problem of parametrical synthesis is solved, results of experiment on modeling transients in a researched intellectual control system are given. Neurocontrol after the ending of training provides control in real time. Such systems are very flexibly adjusted on real conditions and do not contain restrictions which arise in construction of the given systems.

References

 A.O. Tarakanov, V.A. Skormin, S.P. Sokolova. Immunocomputing: Principles and Applications // N.Y. Springer, 2003, 193p.







ANALYSIS OF THE APPLICATION OF ATTRIBUTE GRAMMAR IN MACHINE TRANSLATION

D.R. Rakhimova Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan e-mail:Diana.Rakhimova@kaznu.kz

Attribute grammar – this is a context-free grammar with attributes that define the semantics of language constructs. The semantics of the program is determined by a set of attribute values, the root node. Attribute grammars were introduced by Donald Knuth in the late sixties as an extension of the idea of computing the semantics of the whole expression through the semantics of its subexpressions.

Attribute grammar is a quadruple $AG = (G, A_S, A_I, R)$, where

- G = (N, T, P, S) reduced CF grammar;
- A_S a finite set of synthesized attributes;
- A_I a finite set of inherited attributes, $A_S \bigcap A_I = \emptyset$;
- R finite set of semantic rules.

In addition to the synthesized and inherited attributes, also appeared attributes-collection (collections), depending on the total parse tree, recursive attributes (circular attributes) and attributes of links (referenced attributes).

Attributes are two types of inherited and synthesized. Inherited attributes are used to pass semantic information down the parse tree program and synthesized attributes - upwards. The most widespread inherited attributes received in the implementation of multipass compilers.

Attribute grammars allow expanded rules on the existing syntax. As the analyzed program is subordinated to the set syntax we can enclose under each syntactic rule formulas of calculation of properties/attributes. Further we can recursively walk on a syntactic tree and calculate properties according to the set formulas.

Here is an example of possible record of attribute grammar:

{{ expression := literal { lhs.is
static := True } | function call { lhs.is static := \$1.is static } |
type conversion { lhs.is static := \$1.is static } ... type
conversion := type name (expression) { lhs.is static := \$1.denote
static subtype and \$2.is static } }}.

Formulas for computing a lot - because many syntactic rules, but the formulas are simple, because part of each syntactic rules known in advance. Thus, attribute grammars allow to divide the computation complexity of semantics for a set of simple formulas organized by the syntax of the language.

Compilers are automatically created using attribute grammars are often inefficient in execution time and memory usage.

- 1. In attribute grammars are often lacking convenient modular tools. Thus, specification languages, created with attribute grammars are often extremely cumbersome.
- 2. Calculations in attribute grammars are quite strict for example, it is impossible to calculate an attribute value, if not calculated all the values of attributes on which it depends.

- [1] Donald E. Knuth. Semantics of Context-Free Languages // Moscow: Mir, 1980 (in Russian).
- [2] S.L. Graham, M.A. Harrison, W.L. Ruzzo. An Improved Context-Free Recognizer // ACM Trans. Program. Languages and Systems, No.2, 1980.
- [3] M.A. Harrison. Introduction to Formal Language Theory // Reading, Mass.: Addison-Wesley, 1978.





USAGE OF TERMINAL VOCABULARY IN THE PROCESS OF SPEECH SYNTHESIS BY CONCATENATIVE METHOD

Almaz E. Sadenov L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:almaz4u@gmail.com

Concatenation synthesis comes down to the compilation of message from the pre-recorded vocabulary of basic elements of synthesis. The size of the synthesis elements is not more than a combination of two phonemes. The main issue in concatenation synthesis is the volume of memory for storing the dictionary of phoneme combinations.

Speakers read aloud sets of texts and isolated phrases. Then the relevant acoustic files are segmented exactly in the middle of each sound combination. In the combination of two phonemes the initial segment is in the middle of the first phoneme and the end of this segment is noted in the middle of the second phoneme. Then obtained audio file is saved under the name "[first phoneme][second phoneme].wav". It is quite clear that such amount of sound combinations is a finite number. It is ample to analyze a large vocabulary of the required language.

Then, each element of the database, which has quasi-periodic nature (vowels and voiced consonants) by definition, is subjected to automatic segmentation into quasiperiods of the basic one.

Simple example: the word "moloko" (milk) represents the following elements that should be stuck together: "ma" - "al" - "la" - "ko".

By using this method, we can create new high-quality speech database. In collaboration with colleagues there was written program software, during which all the operations associated with the accumulation and segmentation of speech databases, were performed semi-automatically.

The technique of segmentation in the middle of the original sound allows us to "stick together" ready words, in accordance with transcription and to receive good quality synthesis, devoid of impairing the quality of synthesis traditional clicks – audible joints at different phonemes.

- [1] T.K. Vintsjuk. Analysis, Clarification and Interpretation of Speech Signals // Kiyev, 1987, 262p.
- [2] Speech Analysis FAQ // http://svr-www.eng.cam.ac.uk/~ajr/SA95/SpeechAnalysis.html.





DEVELOPMENT OF THE INTELLECTUAL STOCHASTIC CONTROL SYSTEMS ON THE BASIS OF ARTIFICIAL IMMUNE SYSTEMS

G.A. Samigulina, M.N. Kalimoldayev Institute of Informatics and Control Problems of Kazakhstan, Almaty, Kazakhstan, e-mail:galinasamigulina@mail.ru

The largest catastrophes and accidents in power sector, industry, on transport etc. show inability of the people to work in not regular situations because of the huge volume of the real information and the insufficient quality of the designing of the controlled complex systems. In this connection it is necessary to develop new non-traditional information technologies for automation of the complex nonlinear technological control objects with that or other kind of uncertainty. The majority of the complex control objects function in the stochastic environment. For the research of dynamic properties of the separated class of the control systems the quasi-splitting method is used [1].

Last achievement in cybernetics, computer science and artificial intelligence have resulted in formation and impetuous development of new area of research - artificial or intellectual control. The given area of researches is at the border of the classical theory of control and artificial intelligence. Now in the field of intellectual control the application of Artificial Immune Systems (AIS) is rather advanced. AIS are constructed on the principles of processing of the information by the proteins molecules. The processes taking place at information handling by human immune system and principles of their functioning amaze by the efficiency, economy and speed. The mathematical bases of the given approach consist in introduction of the concept of formal peptide [2], as mathematical abstraction of free energy of the protein molecules from its spatial form described in algebra of quaternion. AIS have ability of training, recognition and acceptance of the decisions in an unfamiliar situation.

The report is devoted to the development of intellectual technology of construction of stochastic quasi-splitting control systems on the basis of AIS.

The statement of the task is formulated as follows: it is necessary to develop the technology of the research of dynamic properties of quasi-splitting stochastic control systems on the basis of the biological approach of Artificial Immune Systems with the purpose of operative control of the current situation [3].

- S.V. Emelyanov, S.K. Korovin. The discrete binary automatic systems of the control // Results of the Science and Engineering. Technical Cybernetics, M., No.17, 1984, pp. 70-160 (Russian).
- [2] A.O. Tarakanov. Formal peptide as a basic of agent of immune networks: from natural prototype to mathematical theory and applications // Proceedings of the 1 st. Int. Workshop of Central and Eastern Europe on Multi-Agent Systems, 1999.
- [3] G.A. Samigulina. Intellectual system of prediction of the asymptotical stability on the average of quadratic stochastic control system // Proceedings of the IX of International Conference "Intellectual Systems and Computer Sciences", M.: MSU by Lomonosov, Vol.2, Part 2, 2006, pp. 265-269(in Russian).





APPLICATION OF CASE-BASED REASONING TO INFORMATION SECURITY MANAGEMENT

Dina Zh. Satybaldina L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:dinasaty@gmail.com

Case-based reasoning (CBR) is now a mature subfield of artificial intelligence. The fundamental principles of case-based reasoning have been established, and numerous applications have demonstrated its role as a useful technology [1]. Recent progress has also revealed new opportunities and challenges for the field. For example, a hybrid model on the base of CBR and production rules is used for works in conditions of incompleteness and uncertainty of the information in complex dynamical domains [2]. A formal model of a combination of the script and case approaches for information security management is considered in this paper.

Definition 1. A situation S_i is an estimation of values set of the system parameters and bonds between them at the time moment t_i :

$$s_i = \left\langle \widetilde{C_{t_i}}, L, t_i \right\rangle,\tag{1}$$

where \widetilde{C}_{t_i} - a system status evaluation (or parameters values), L - a propositional language which is describing set of the bonds between the factors.

A set of the language formulas makes a knowledge base about the data domain, which is received on the formal model base [3] of information security management systems (ISMS), on the basis of expert evaluations or by means of machine training methods [4].

Definition 2. Precedent e is the pair

$$\langle s, r \rangle \in \wp = S \times R,\tag{2}$$

consisting of the situation $s \in S$ and a decision $r \in R$ of the situation.

The decision for any precedent is a plan of the actions for influences compensating which have resulted to a deviation of the ISMS from the given goal status.

Definition 3. A script \sum is considered as a tuple

$$\sum_{i=1}^{n} \langle s_n, \{y_i, s_{k_i}, \mu_i\} | i \in 1..n \rangle,$$
(3)

where s_n - an actual state of system (the situation), s_{k_i} - a goal state of system (and-or values of goal factors), y_i -sets of the achievement plans of the goal state, μ_i - an estimation of possibility of the goal situation achievement at the plan realization.

- A. Aamodt, E. Plaza. Case-based reasoning: Foundational issues, methodological variations, and system approaches// AI Communications, Vol.7, No.1, 1994, pp. 39-52.
- [2] J. Main, T.S. Dillon. A hybrid case-based reasoner for footwear design // Case-Based Reasoning Research and Development. Lecture Notes in Artificial Intelligence, Vol.1650, 1999, pp. 499-509.
- [3] D. Satybaldina. Formalized Approach to Determining Security Requirements // Abstracts of the third Congress of the World Mathematical Society of Turkic Countries, Almaty, 2009, 215p.
- [4] D. Satybaldina, A. Sharipbayev. Application of Fuzzy Set Theory to Information Security Risk Analysis // Abstracts of the third Congress of the World Mathematical Society of Turkic Countries, Almaty, 2009, 216p.





ON CYCLE PROBLEM IN LINEAR PROGRAMMING

Y.B. Seyisov, H.A. Geldiyev Institute of Physics and Mathematics, Academy of Science, Ashgabat, Turkmenistan

Simplex method to the solution of the problems of linear programming (LP), proposed by G. Dantzig in 1947 still remains to be the most popular. This popularity is connected with the fact that solution method harmonically combined with principles underlying at designing of the electronic computer-performance of the whole range of similar operations, connected with laborious arithmetic and logical actions. One could be contended with such state of affairs, if Beale E. [2] hadn't published the example of LP problem in 1955, the attempt for solving of which by simplex method resulted to cycling of computation process. After that immediately was started up the process for struggling with this phenomenon-anti-cyclene [3]. Introducing the notion of "non-degenerate basis" to the LP theory led to additional difficulties. Possible variations, connected with alteration of only one element is considered in simplex method. Exactly by this is defined appearance of "unclear" situations at realization of simplex method. In the row of LP problems, possible directions may be defined not only by one non-basis vector, but linear combination of several non-basis vectors. The quantity of non-basis vectors, required for definition of possible direction, may reach K quantity, whereas K-the level of degenerate basis, that is the number of zeroes in basis. The problem on finiteness of the numbers operation is completely solved considering notes above. In this aspect the situation it should be called the degenerate mode where the attempt to introducing one separate non-basis vector to basis (simplex-method) will not be a successful, this fact, will not contribute to increase the functional quality, and not situation, where basis include zero elements. Application of full arsenal of the nonbasis vectors, provided by LP problem itself, exclude problem situations (cycles) at realization of computation process of successive improving the feasible solutions (basis). One of the algorithms to the solution of the LP problem, excluding cycling phenomenon is given in [4].

- G.B. Dantzig. A proof of the equivalence of the programming am the game problem // Activity Analyses of Production and Allocation, ed. By Koopmans T.C., Cowles Commission Monograph, No.13, New York, Wiley, 1951, pp. 330-335.
- [2] E.M.L. Beale. Cycling in the dual simplex algorithm // Nav. Res. Logist. Quart. No.2, 1955, pp. 269-275.
- [3] F.P. Vasilyev. Numerical methods to the solution of the extremal problems // M.: Nauka, 1980.
- [4] Y.B. Seyisov, I. Kaibov. Kamilleşdirilen simleks usuly // Turkmenistanda Ylym we Tehnika, No.5, 2009, pp. 56-65.







REALIZATION OF SHORT LINEAR BLOCK CODES DECODER WITH PARITY-CHECK

N.N. Tashatov, B.B. Absattar L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:tash_nur@mail.ru

Decoder must take the following steps:

- (1) compute the syndrome
- (2) isolate error's model and
- (3) modulo 2 addition of model error and the received vector, which leads to the elimination of errors.

Let's consider the short linear block code, for example code (6,3), which decoder can be implemented as simple scheme. Let the transmitted codeword U = 101110 and received vector r = 001110 [1].

Let e_j be a basic element of the coset or j-th coset's model error, then vector $U_i + e_j$ is n-tuple in this coset. Syndrome of the n-tuple is in the following form:

$$S = rH^{T} = (U_{i} + e_{j})H^{T} = U_{i}H^{T} + e_{j}H^{T}.$$
(1)

As $U_i H^T = 0$ codes vector is U_i , then it can be written:

$$S = rH^{T} = (U_{i} + e_{j})H^{T} = e_{j}H^{T}.$$
(2)

As we see from (2) each member of the coset has the same syndrome. Syndrome of each coset distinguishes from other cosets' syndromes; this particular syndrome is used to determine the model error.

From equation (2) let's compute all bits of syndrome through the digits of received code words:

$$S = rH^{T},$$

$$S = (r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{3}, r_{4}, r_{5}, r_{6}) \cdot \begin{pmatrix} 1 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 1 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 1 \\ 1 & 1 & 0 \\ 0 & 1 & 1 \\ 1 & 0 & 1 \end{pmatrix}$$

and $s_1 = r_1 \oplus r_4 \oplus r_6$, $s_2 = r_2 \oplus r_4 \oplus r_5$, $s_3 = r_3 \oplus r_5 \oplus r_6$.

For longer codes, such realization is much more complicated; more preferred method of decoding is a series circuit. To correct the models with two erroneous bits requires additional circuit.

References

[1] B. Sklyar. Digital relation // Theoretical basis and practical applications. Vil'yams, 2004, 1104 p.




MATHEMATICAL MODELLING AND STRESSED STATE OF THE COUPLED TONNELS IN THE ANISOTROPIC ENVIRONMENT

B.T. Zhumagulov, Zh.K. Masanov, N.T.Azhikhanov, T.A. Turumbetov A. Yassawi International Kazakh-Turkish University, Kazakhstan e-mail:ajihanov@mail.ru

In this work the questions of designing and development of the software of computer modeling to intense - isotropic environment with doubly periodic system of cracks is considered. The static distribution of movings and voltage near to pair extended transversally isotropic tunnels in anisotropic nonlinear file weakened doubly periodic system of a crack in conditions of small and finite motions is investigated. Such tasks do not give in to the decision by an analytical method, but are solved by methods. A method of finite elements is used in this case. In a method of finite elements the physical ratio between deformations and voltage are established in a number of finite element points volume. Let two parallel extended tunnels which are taking place on distance L from each other, identical size and vaulted structure passed along a line spreading of a isotropy file plane. A plane of cross section are in conditions of the flat generalized deformation [1-3]. The elastic condition which is described by the equation of the generalized Hooke's law transversally isotropic medium with an inclined plane isotropy[4].

For the solution of the considered problem the program complex Tonnel 3D in Delphi environment is developed. The program complex Tonnel 3D allows to automate the majority of stages of task modeling such as, definition is intense of deformed condition of two underground tunnels in a file with not continuous coupling of layers. The basic functions of a complex: creation and editing of geometrical parameters of considered area; automatic performance of settlement area splitting on finite of irregular grids; visual and tabulated definition of numerical results.

- Zh. Erzhanov, Sh. Aitaliev, Zh. Masanov. Stability of horizontal developments in an inclined layered medium. AlmaAta, "Science", 1971, 160p.
- [2] Zh. Erzhanov, Sh. Aitaliev, Zh. Masanov. Seismotension of underground constructions in an anisotropic layered medium // Alma-Ata, "Science", 1980, 212p.
- [3] Zh. Masanov, A. Omarov, N. Maxmetova. Static and a seismotension of transport underground constructions in anisotropic geometrically nonlinear medium // Almaty, Bastau, 2002, 244p.
- [4] N. Shabrov. The finite element method in calculations of details of thermal engines // Leningrad, Mashinostroenie, 1983, 212p.





SECTION X

History and Teaching Methods of Mathematics

MATHEMATICS AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES AS A TOOL FOR REHABILITATION OF DISABLED PEOPLE

Ziyavidin Yuldashev, Mina Yuldasheva

National University of Uzbekistan, Faculty of Mechanics and Mathematics, Tashkent, Uzbekistan National University of Uzbekistan The specialized school N 25, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:ziyaut@mail.ru, yulmina@mail.ru

In the present work the thesis about necessity of introduction of social policy in regards of disabled people on a new intellectual level it put forward and substantiated. Mathematics and information technologies are proposed as important tools in the achievement of this purpose.

The mathematics at auxiliary school solves one of the important objectives of education – **overcom**ing of objective difficulties arising during cognitive activities of students, development in them positive personal merits. By developing elementary mathematical thinking and skills to solve the computing and logical tasks related with calculations, it establishes and corrects such forms of thinking as analysis, synthesis, comparison, develops ability to generalize and concretize, creates conditions for memory correction, attention and other mental functions.

Visual aids, mathematical games and competitions have a significant importance at education to mathematics. The important tool in formation of acoustical images of mathematical concepts are mathematical dictations when under dictation of teacher students write down mathematical expressions, in the beginning rather simple and then calculate their values. It should not be treated as an impossible goal the formation at students of auxiliary schools of skills of independent way of thinking, even at the solution of simple problems. Education to mathematics promotes also the solution of educational objectives. The regular solution of computational problems imparts to students correct perception of such concepts as duty, teaches discipline, provides skills of right orientation in world through an opportunity of correct evaluation of quantitative characteristics of people and subjects.

It is necessary to note that now it became essential to equip auxiliary schools with computer classes together with necessity to introduce in them the computer science lessons. First of all, it is crucial to utilize at these lessons the multimedia tools. This powerful factor of visualization of education is especially significant at auxiliary school. If even some portion of graduates will master the skills of computer work, even at a level of common user then it in a significant way will improve their position in modern society and also will raise chances of employment, make their life more protected, colorful and interesting.

The creative approach in choosing the methods of educational material for lessons of mathematics, introduction at auxiliary school the lessons of computer science, constant attention to successes of students, their individual problems, combination of learning with educational process, undoubtedly, will promote equipment of graduates of auxiliary schools with vital-practical skills of orientation in the society, their communion with useful activity, to reduction of feeling of impairment, to increase of self-respect and importance in modern complicated world.





THE APPLICATION OF THE RECURRING DECIMALS IN FINDING REMAINDERS

R.Z. Abasov Azerbaijan State Oil Academy, Baku, Azerbaijan

The finding of the effective division signs for the division of the natural numbers has always been one of the important problems in arithmetic. We come across some different division signs in school textbook and in articles dealing with elementary mathematics/ this investigation is going on now/ the new division signs are found even in modern articles. But there is a lack in these division signs: these signs don't determine the rule for finding remainders if there is not the whole division. Some division signs determine rules for finding remainders. But the investigations show that these rules are not efficient. This lack even belongs to Pascal's sign. The reasons of the absence of the rules on finding remainders are very various. In this work these reasons are investigated in different variants. For instance in investigating the efficient variants of Pascal signs, it was known that this investigation was connected with recurring decimals. So the problem appeared about such an important connection between two great themes of school mathematics. That's why the recurring decimals theory taught in school mathematics is enriched and improved in the presenting article.

This investigation was carried out for many other division signs and satisfactory results have been received.

WHERE IS THE NON-EUCLIDIAN GEOMETRIES PLACE IN NON-HIGHER AND HIGHER CURRICULUM?

Nasim Asghary, Ahmad Reza Haghighi Central Tehran Brunch, Islamic Azad University, Tehran, Iran, Urmia University of Technology, Iran, Urmia e-mail:nasimsana@yahoo.com,ah.haghighi@gmail.com

This analysis begins with a historical view of Geometry. One presents the evolution of Geometry (Commonly known as Euclidean Geometry) since its beginning until Euclid's Postulates. Next, new geometric worlds beyond the Fifth Postulate are presented, discovered by the forerunners of the Non-Euclidean Geometries, as a result of the flaw that many mathematicians encountered when they attempted to prove Euclid's Fifth Postulate (the Parallel Postulate). After this brief perspective, a reflection is made on the presence of Non-Euclidean Geometries in Nature and Art and some philosophical implications. Then, we analyse the study of Geometry in Portuguese Secondary Education and the absence of Non-Euclidean Geometries in Higher Education curricula in Portugal. Finally, some suggestions will be made on the inclusion of Non-Euclidean Geometries in some details of the curricula of Geometry in Non Higher Education.

References

 Greenberg, Marvin Jay. Euclidean and Non-Euclidean Geometries: Development and History // 2nd ed., San Francisco: W.H.Freeman Company, 1980.





PERFECTION OF THE THEORY AND MATHEMATICS TRAINING METHODS IN CONDITIONS OF INTEGRATION OF NATIONAL EDUCATIONAL SYSTEMS

Abylkassymova Alma Esimbekovna

President of the National Education Academy of Kazakhstan, Kazakhstan

Preservation of unity of educational space in the CIS member countries is considered by us as a priority task. At the present time an education sphere is witnessing certain tendencies for integration of educational systems, rapprochement of educational programs and training cycles, formation of uniform approaches in an estimation and maintenance of quality of education. Practice of multilateral and mutually advantageous cooperation with these countries has confirmed presence of ample opportunities for its further development in all spheres including an education sphere.

Considering that during the Soviet period a considerable practical experience in mathematics has been reached, it is expedient within the borders of existing national educational systems to introduce corresponding corrective amendments with a goal of further perfection and rapprochement of educational programs, teaching materials, etc., both for schools and for other educational levels which would correspond to the advanced world standards. Without doubt, it is necessary to study more deeply and take on board an advanced practical experience of the theory and mathematics training methods which is available in a number of Turkic language countries.

FACTOR ANALYSIS OF THE EFFECT OF CLASS RULES ON THE BEHAVIOURS

Ibrahim Güney, Emre Eroğlu, Ümmü Şahin, Ersin Şener Istanbul Aydin University, Istanbul, Turkey Gebze Institute of Technology, Kocaeli, Turkey Yildiz Technical University, Istanbul, Turkey Municipality of Bayrampasa, Istanbul, Turkey e-mail:y.v.z.eroglu@gmail.com

Intraclass behaviours effect on education is substantial. The behaviours are designated by the class rules.

In this study, the survey consists of 35 questions which are class rules' in regard to effect of behaviours are implemented to 400 secondary school students. Obtained data that eliminated by SPSS is analysed via factor analysis and is compared with other studying about the subject. Thereby is turned out statistical discussion substantial main components are gained.

- [1] T. W. Anderson. An Introduction to Multivariate Statistical Analysis //Wiley Series in Probability and Statistics.
- [2] K.V.Mardia, J.T.Kent, J.M.Bibby. Multivariate Analysis // New York: Academic Press, 1979.
- [3] B.Roland. Freedom and Discipline Teaching as Though students Mattered // F.d.J.Katz, Jossey-Bass nc.San Fransisco, 1985.
- [4] C.Celep. Sınıf Yönetimi ve Disiplini, Anı Yayıncılık, Ankara, 2004 (Turkish).





DIDACTICAL BACKGROUND FOR STUDYING THE ELECTIVE COURSE "ELEMENTS OF NUMERICAL MATHEMATICS" IN TECHNICAL SPECIAL INSTITUTES IN CREDIT SYSTEM OF TEACHING

Kosybai Aitkozhin

Kokshetau State University named after Sh. Ualikhanov, Kokshetau, Kazakhstan e-mail:universi@kokshetau.online.kz

Though many kinds of computing techniques have appeared nowadays the necessity of manual, written and approximate calculation is still obvious. The use of a computer provides a quicker, more effective solution of the problem. The development of computer techniques on the one hand and the requirements of Mathematics on the other makes necessary to search more efficient ways of calculation teaching.

The term "Numerical mathematics" can't be considered as an established one because this field of science develops rapidly nowadays. Numerical mathematics as a branch of Mathematics settled at the beginning of the XX century. By that time different, rather effective and reliable algorithms of approximate calculation were worked out.

Progress in the development of numerical techniques led to the extended use of Mathematics in different spheres of science. Mathematical modeling became one of the most effective ways in natural sciences.

There is a very important question: what part of Mathematics is necessary to study in technical special institutes? The necessity to study Mathematics thoroughly on the one hand and peculiarities of the credit system of teaching on the other requires studying Numerical mathematics and to carry out laboratory works.

That's why working at the technical university for more than forty years I prepared out the elective course "Elements of Numerical Mathematics". The given course can attract students' attention; let them study the methods and ideas of the subject. This course deals with the questions and problems that were not worked out in the school program. The elective course "Elements of Numerical Mathematics" is studied for 1 semester and consists of 30 hours for the first year students of technical specialties. The elective course has an integrated character and provides intersubject connection between Mathematics and Computer science. The main theoretical aim of the course is a thorough study of some themes, stimulating students' interest in the sphere of Numerical Mathematics. The main practical aim is the improvement of students' skills in the use of different techniques for solution of a problem. Traditional forms of classes such as a lecture and a seminar can be practiced, but the first place in the course is taken by such forms as laboratory works, presentations of reports, individual and group work. The course allows to realize research and creative abilities of students. The teacher explains new material briefly and formulates the problem. The teacher is to offer consultations while students complete a practical task.

After studying the elective course "Elements of Numerical Mathematics" students should know: - what Numerical Mathematics is, its tasks and methods;

- notions of precise and approximate calculations, measure of inaccuracy in calculations, their classifications and sources;

- basic numerical methods in solution of simple equation;

- elementary methods of numerical integration.

The contents and examples of laboratory-numerical works are presented in the publication "Mathematical laboratory course" (Part I, part II). It is necessary to use the above mentioned publication in teaching Mathematics by means of new innovative techniques. It is very important to intensify the teaching of Mathematics by means of new opportunities in credit system of teaching. Due to the reduction of Mathematics' lessons in technological universities the holding of the elective courses increasing students' training on Mathematics is suggested.





INNOVATIVE-DIDACTIC PROGRAM COMPLEX AND NEW FORMALIZED MODEL OF EDUCATION

Z.KH. Yuldashev, D.N. Ashurova National University of Uzbekistan, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:ziyaut@mail.ru, dilfuz_2004@mail.ru

In this work, by the example of educational system of Uzbekistan, the new paradigm of education is substantiated in the following edition: education through out all life. It is demonstrated that the proposed in correspondence to this paradigm the formalized model reflects multi-component system, multi-variant approaches and cyclicity of educational process in a modern society. The examples of educational processes which are modelled within the framework of the proposed formalized model of education are presented.

The place of the concept of innovative - didactic program complex (IDPC) introduced earlier by authors in the new model of education is considered.

At that it is considered that IDPC is intended for providing effective educational process at studying of a specific subject. In the work the definition of IDPC components is provided, as well as their functional filling, the description of program interface which accompanies the process of education and also examples on specific university lecture course "Algebra and the theory of numbers".

This message anticipates the received results on creation of optimization model of educational system of the higher education school of Uzbekistan which is intended for forecasting of optimal quantity of experts in different branches at conduction of admission into higher educational institutions.

USE OF ICT IN TEACHING OF THE REGIONAL PHYSICAL GEOGRAPHY

M.M. Aripov, Kh.B. Nikadambaeva Uzbekistan National University, Tashkent, Uzbekistan e-mail:mirsaidaripov@mail.ru, hilola.nika@ mail.ru

A modern teacher has to control the teaching process and lead a pupil to get the knowledge by using of up-to-date technologies that contributes to their self learning and self realization. In this case the teacher becomes not only a source of knowledge and also coauthor, organizer of the research process, information processing and creative works. In the report, we offer a method of using of computer techniques to the teaching of the physical geography of the countries by on the example of Uzbekistan at in the faculty of geography of the Uzbekistan National University named after Mirzo Ulukbek. The results of the research have been successfully tested in other universities.

Teaching of the subject of physical geography of Uzbekistan by using of modeling different processes by computers essentially increased the interest of the students to the subject efficiency of the teaching and learning process, made it possible to independently learn some fields of the subject , consider a number of examples from real life, made easy caring out the main forms of teaching in the form of dialogue between teacher and students. Electronic teaching-methodological complex i.e. automatic learning system one have to accept as a learning informational media that is a logic continuation of the traditional methods based on the text books and which considering the specific intellectual properties of PC provides permanent improving of the teaching process: using of the innovative technologies, development of the teaching-methodological complexes on the base of using of the information and multi- media technologies.





METHOD OF DECOMPOSITION FOR THE DECISION OF THE PROBLEM OF DISTRIBUTION OF RESOURCES

S.N. Boranbayev, A.S. Boranbayev, A.T. Baydauletov L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:sboranba@yandex.kz, aboranba@yahoo.com, baydauletov.AT@yandex.kz

Process of performance of a complex of operation of a network is controlled. There is certain freedom in operation select which will be carried out at present time, and intensity their performance. The problem consists in that for each moment of time, at existing restrictions on resources, should be named a vector of intensity u with which it is necessary for operation of a network to carry out. As the best are considered such u which deliver a minimum to the some functional.

All restrictions with which should satisfy intensity u, are broken into restrictions of two types.

Restrictions of the first type describe interdependence of performance of operation (the attitude of precedence). Generally restrictions of the first type are described by some function which to each condition x of a complex of operation of a network puts in conformity allowable values u operations intensity, from some set U(x) with which operations of a complex in the given condition can be carried out. Thus, generally, restrictions of the first type look like:

$$u \in U(x).$$

Restrictions of the second type include restrictions on resources. Generally the vector of the resources spent on performance of a complex of operation at the moment of time t, depends on conditions x(t) of a complex of operations and intensity u(t) at the moment of time t. We shall designate V(t) - a vector of the total resources available in system at the moment of time t. D(x(t), u(t)) - total of the resources spent on performance of operation of a complex during the moment t. Then, generally, restrictions of the second type look like:

$$D(x(t), u(t)) \le V(t).$$

If the vector V(t) during each moment of time is set, calculation of performance of a complex of operations is reduced to the following: for each moment the vector intensity u(t) with which it is necessary to carry out operations of a complex should be named. It is considered the best such u(t) at which some functional will be minimal. As functional it is possible to take, for example, a degree of satisfiability of complex of operation by some directive fixed moment of time T.

It is possible to replace restrictions of the first type the penalty for their infringement. As is known, computing methods of search of the optimum decision can be treated as use of penalties. In one cases the penalty is imposed without taking into account features of a problem, in other cases there is a communication between a deviation from the optimum decision and size of the penalty.

The penalty for infringement of restriction of the first type we shall take into account in functional. Then instead of functional F, it is optimized functional with the penalty.

The considered problem is solved a method offered in [1]. Use of this method allows to carry out decomposition of an initial problem on sequence of problems of linear programming not the big dimension. Thus, the problem of planning and distribution of resources of a network with directive terms of performance of a complex of operation of a network is reduced to sequence of problems of construction of the decision for set technological independent operations on the basis of methods of local optimization.

S.N. Boranbayev. Mathematical Model for the Development and Performance of Sustainable Economic Programs // International Journal of Ecology and Development, Vol.6, No.W07, 2007.





"QUESTIONING AS A LEARNING TOOL" - MATHEMATICS TEACHING METHOD

Irada B. Dadashova Department of Mathematical Analysis, Baku State University, Baku, Azerbaijan e-mail:irada-dadashova@rambler.ru

In this report I would like to talk about one mathematics teaching method in mathematical lecture. Teaching skills are important for lecturers at all levels, as well as the role of the lecturers and theirs mathematics teaching methods has an important role in guiding students' mathematical development. You should be ready to show some interest in your teaching and must know key of teaching methods. For example, you have a lecture, and you know how much time it will be long. You know as much about the topic as anyone in the lecture hall except, maybe, your advisor. You know topic of your talk and what do you need for talk? Is there a definition you need for comprehension? Firstly you must know that an illustrative example will usually give the audience more sense of the topic than proofs. Some students do better with practical examples while others do better with definitions.

One of the key teaching methods that is of great importance is using questioning as a learning tool. Questioning students not only allows the lecture to evaluate the level of understanding but also provides for feedback, fine tuning the levels of teaching, as well as improving the educational material presented. Teaching is learning. To teach is to learn. Good lecturers learn and adapt to their students, and expand or refine their teaching material as they learn about themselves as well. Questions allow the instructor to continually adapt the material and level of the lesson to better meet the students needs. By questioning students and seeing their strengths and weaknesses are one can provide better educational material. Fine tuning lessons can be very important.

To find the constitutive questions and those very questions are perhaps is one of the most important tools of teaching and Teaching Method.





THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE ANXIETY LEVEL AND THE BELIEFS ABOUT TEACHING MATHEMATICS OF THE FRESHMAN ELEMANTARY TEACHER CANDIDATES

Yüksel Dede, Figen Uysal Cumhuriyet University, Turkey Bilecik University, Turkey e-mail:ydede@cumhuriyet.edu.tr, figen.uysal@bilecik.edu.tr

One of the important subjects of mathematics education is the determination of the beliefs of the teachers/teacher candidates (Baydar&Bulut 2002). Beliefs are affecting the learning in their domain of expertise, anxiety and attitude of the students. (Krows 1999). The mathematics anxiety which have both emotional and cognitive structures is one of the most important affective factors that have influence on the attitude and achievement of the students (Bessant 1995). For this reason in this study, the relationship between the beliefs about teaching mathematics and anxiety level of the prospective elementary teachers was investigated. For data collection, two instruments were used: "Mathematics Anxiety Rating Scale: Short Version (MARS-SV)" of Suinn and Winston (2003) which was adapted by Baloğlu into Turkish (2010) and "Beliefs about the Teaching of Mathematics [BaToM]" which was developed by Baydar (2000). The BaToM reflects the child-centredness beliefs. The five factors of the MARS-SV are also labelled as the Mathematics Test Anxiety, Course Anxiety, Computation Anxiety, Application Anxiety, and Social Anxiety. The questionnaires were administered to 96 students of Department Primary Education in a state university in Central Anatolia. Data analysis involved descriptive and inferential statistics. A significance level of 0.05 was set for all inferential tests. The results of this study were: a) the freshman elementary teacher candidates' scores on the childcentredness beliefs were high in general whereas the mathematics anxiety levels were low in general, b) the correlations between the sub-scales of the MARS-SV and child-centredness beliefs are not significant.

- M. Baloğlu. Validity and reliability of the turkish mathematics anxiety rating scale-short version (MARS-SV) // European Journal of Psychology of Education, 2010, No.25, pp. 507-518.
- [2] C.S. Baydar. Beliefs of Preservice Mathematics Teachers at the Middle East Technical University and the Gazi University About the Nature Of Mathematics and the Teaching of Mathematics // Yayınlanmamış Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Orta Doğu Teknik Üniversitesi, 2000 (Turkish).
- [3] S.C. Baydar, S. Bulut. Öğretmenlerin matematiğin doğası ve öğretimi ile ilgili inançların matematik eğitimindeki önemi // Hacettepe Üniversitesi Eğitim Fakültesi Dergisi, 2002, No.23, pp. 62-66 (Turkish).





INTERSUBJECT CONNECTION PROBLEMS IN TEACHING OF THE SUBJECT ALGEBRA

Rovshan Hasanov Nakhchivan State University, Nakhchivan, Azerbaijan e-mail:h_rovshan51@rambler.ru

One of the important purposes set for ward in any mathematical course as well as Algebra is to deliver aquired knowledge to students consciously in a scientific way. To reach this target the material of the course must be delivered to students in a related way, systematically and in a unique in way. To realize this creating and fortifying of intersubject connections are of special importance. Study of creation technology of intersubject connections is the content of the presented work. Related with education refertus this problem is especially actual in teaching modern Algebra which is embodiment of the integration of subjects that used to be taught differently.

In the paper o number of definite teaching technologies has been determined:

- (1) Using of symbols and theoretical-set language;
- (2) Creation of intersubject connections with structure schemes, [1];
- (3) Denoting mathematical suggestions in a lecture, [2];
- (4) Eliminating of misunderstanding of expression with different terms of definitions with the same content, [3];
- (5) Eliminating of confusion which arise by giving in different content of the same definition;
- (6) Strengthening of coordination of learnt materials in lectures and practical works.
- (7) Using of repetitions of various types;
- (8) Over-emphasizing on the place and importance of algebraic definitions separately in the whole course.

- R.A. Hasanov. On the experience of using schemes in teaching algebra // NEWS of Pedagogical University, Baku, 2010, No.2, pp. 249-253.
- [2] R.A. Hasanov. On the experience of creation inter disciplinary relations // NEWS of the Nakhchivan Teachers Institute, 2010, No.2, pp. 4-7.
- [3] R.A. Hasanov. On some definitions and terms of Algebra // Materials of international symposium "PREPATION OF PEDACOGICAL PERSONNEL: PROBLEMS, TASKS", Nakhchivan, 2009, pp. 127-130.





EDUCATIONAL DEVELOPMENTAL TRAINING OF MATHEMATICS AT SCHOOL

Kaiyrzhan G. Kozhabayev Kokshetau State University named after Sh. Ualikhanov, Kokshetau, Kazakhstan e-mail:labdid_2008@mail.ru

The following provisions shall be put to present the given Thesis: The theoretical ground of Mathematics teachers educational evolutive activity is to be based on philosophical perception of personality development with system and activity approach to the educational system. It will help to present teachers training activity as the one aimed at the formation of subject knowledge and skills, and at the development of cognitive, affective and evaluative spheres of students activities, while the student is considered as a self-improving subject of learning process. Educational humanization is significantly changing the attitude toward the nature and essence of the pedagogical process, where teachers and students are the subjects of creative activity. Educational humanization is an important basis of the future teachers training improvement. It allows preparing teachers for implementation of educational and developmental functions of an academic discipline. The learning process model implements educational and developmental function of Mathematics in school. It should include the following components: didactic conditions updating educational and developmental functions of Mathematics teaching; learning objectives, making the prior educational and developmental functions of the educational process; learning content corresponding to the main types of mathematical activity, which describes the essence of the subject matter of Mathematics, its basic ideas and methods of the cognition of reality, revealing the structure of mathematical objects; teaching methods providing students incentives in motivational and cognitive spheres, and forming the basic mental operations and reflective learning activities; learning tools included in the structure of educational and developmental process, which provide search and creative activity of students in the educational process. The process of preparing future teachers of Mathematics should be based on interdisciplinary integration of the target, substantial, procedural and effective components of academic disciplines, among which the Theory and Methods of Mathematics Teaching course is the main. This will provide a more complete disclosure of educational and developmental functions of the special disciplines. Methodological system of training future teachers increases the didactic-educational potential of the subject, psychological, educational, teaching, special subjects and teaching practices, if the process of learning is build on the principles of fundamentality, binarity, main idea, continuity, students' independent work of research nature increase.





OBJECTIVES AND TASKS OF EDUCATING IN THE XXI CENTURY

Gulbadan Matieva, Anarkan Attokurova Osh State University, Osh, Kyrgyzstan e-mail:gulbadan_57@mail.ru, attokurovanarkan@rambler.ru

Training of highly qualified personnel competent to the XXI century is one of the first-priority tasks of any state. These requirements are caused by the peculiarities of modern time.

The first of the peculiarities is a process of globalization. The mankind as never before is aware of open society building importance, i.e. humane society without national, religious and other boundaries. A citizen of this society should be free, tolerant and open for changes person. To educate this sort of person we need to search other approaches through analyzing the world know-how.

The another peculiarity is information explosion that is resulted by the uncontrollable information growth, by the prompt obsolescence due to new knowledge about the world, from the one side; and that currently the information can be easily found, from the another side. How can one orient in the existing information variety? Because books, manuals, mass media and worldwide Internet net contain too much knowledge and facts that are not applicable at the same time to human's mind. How to screen the information, how and on the basis of what a person can evaluate the information given to him? And at last, how can one chase the actual for today information, what does one have to do to utilize his knowledge to extend his knowledge?

These complex issues are in front of a modern human-being.

The third peculiarity is changes. They are swift and actually they touch upon the whole planet, all spheres and conditions of society's activity and human life. The character of a work varies as well it is becoming more and more intellectual. All these changes result another demand for qualified structures of the population's different categories; require professional and social mobility, constant education and permanent professional retraining not only at the beginning, but also at the middle of career.

How can one teach and learn? How can we prepare a schoolchild and a student to the life? Knowledge of what does have importance? How can we imagine a teacher of the XXI century? What is a teacher's purpose in new conditions and how can we achieve a compliance with a targeted ideal?

These are issues questioned by life and discussed all over the world. This article expounds appropriate treatment of the mentioned above problems.





COMPUTERIZED ANALYZE OF MOTION PROBLEMS WITHOUT PARAMETERS BASED UPON THE GRAPHIC STRUCTURE¹

Vasif V. Nabiyev, Ali Kürşat Erümit, Ayça Çebi Karadeniz Technical University, Trabzon, Turkey e-mail:vasif@ktu.edu.tr, kerumit@ktu.edu.tr, aycacebi@hotmail.com

Problem solving is a very important concept not only as a teaching method but also as a matter which takes place in the mathematics curriculum, and needs to be focused on. NCTM standards also emphasize the priority of problem solving skills to include in the teaching of mathematics and teaching mathematics with problem-solving approach. Among the issues related to the curriculum of math problems; the movement problems, has a significant role because it includes different kinds of problems; and different solution ways and non-routine problems can be used. It is expressed in literature examination that the students have number of difficulties in learning concepts and the relationship between them, so difficulty in teaching mathematics is usually taken. Therefore, mathematics educators agree on the issue that, students should develop problem-solving skills and this should be the primary purpose of education. for better understanding of Problem solving by the students, test questions or open-ended problems are available. However, test questions cause not to evaluate the process of problem-solving, open-ended questions cause teachers in large classes not to find out deficiencies of their students learning. In this case, the students' individual weaknesses cannot be understood and cannot be achieved in the level of learning required. Therefore, in this study; students instead of memorizing the solutions with formulas are suggested to use a solution model based upon graphic structure in order to understand and achieve to format their meaningful learning. By programming this model both the weaknesses of students' learning will be corrected and heavy burden on teachers learning outcomes will be fully evaluated. In the study, made on the movement problems, firstly the problems asked about the issue are classified. Then in the generated classes 250 movement problems in different kinds are analyzed with the solution model based upon graphic structure prepared. Because the structure can solve the problem in both forward and backward chaining method; it provides different solutions of the problem, if any to be viewed.

References

- M.A. Simon, R. Tzur, K. Heinz, M. Kinzel. Explicating a Mechanism for Conceptual Learning: Elaborating the Construct of Reflective Abstraction // Journal for Research in Mathematics Education, Vol.35, No.5, 2004, pp. 305-329.
- [2] M. Ben-Hur, Concept-Rich Mathematics Instruction: Building a Strong Foundation for Reasoning and Problem Solving // Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development, Alexandria, VA, 2006.
- [3] S. Vicente, J. Orrantia, L. Verschaffel. Influence of situational and conceptual rewording on word problem solving // British Journal of Educational Psychology, Vol.77, No.4, 2007, pp. 829-848.

¹This research is supported by The Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey





ABOUT CHARACTERIZATION OF INNOVATIVE EXPERIENCE TEACHERS OF MATHEMATICS IN MODERN CONDITIONS

K. Ostonov, M. Ostonov Samarkand State University, Samarkand, Uzbekistan e-mail:ostonov@rambler.ru

Innovative experience, we understand the range of tools, methods, forms and resources used by the teacher to introduce new innovative technologies in the learning process or solve a specific set educational and methodological problems. Formation of the innovative experience teachers include [4]: Subject innovative pedagogical experience, the source changes (contradictions, new learning tools, new conditions of education activities, etc.), the idea of change (the essence of an ICT: in the educational, communication and information, or other technologies to change the content of education, organization of educational or training process, the concept of change (processes, their advantages over similar products and innovation, restrictions, complexity, risk), the terms of the implementation of changes (including personal and professional qualities of the teacher and achieved by level of professionalism, the result changes, the publication of submitted innovative pedagogical experience. The main characteristics of the description of the innovative experience of teachers are similar in structure research on mathematical education should include the following aspects: relevance of the problem of an ICT and a working hypothesis, scientific novelty, theoretical value of an ICT, the practical significance of an ICT. For example, improving methods differentiation in the process of teaching mathematics is to develop diagnostic and methodological support in teaching pupils to create different groups of students to master the material and implement differentiated approach to learning through the use of "different levels of training tasks, reproduction - where problems are solved by students on the basis of the newly learned knowledge and ways of work that they reproduce from memory the general education-related tasks require students to use learned knowledge and methods of activity in atypical, but a familiar situation, which is accompanied by a transformative playback. Creative level, require students to creative activity in the selective application of learned knowledge and techniques solutions and design in a relatively new situation for him. This allows us to define the basic requirements to the skills of students at different levels. Research and practice has shown [1], [2] that the main characteristics of the innovative experience are: values and value orientations, goals and objectives, management education, the content of education technology, including ICT tools, methods, organizational forms, learning environment, organizational methodical environment informational, organizational, motivational, staffing, methodological, logistical resources, and regulatory resources to influence the most important aspects of training and education. Record and document them not only promote the dissemination of best innovative experience, but also systematically develop the use of innovative technologies in learning mathematics. It is necessary to navigate a wide range of modern innovative technologies [3], ideas, schools, directions, do not waste time on the opening of the already known and use the entire arsenal of experience. Teacher needs to adjust its innovative experience of the most characteristic of innovative technologies such as ICT, learner-oriented technologies, information and analytical support to the educational process and quality management education school, monitoring, educational technology, teaching technology as well as psychological and pedagogical support innovative technologies.

- [1] V.P. Bespalko. Terms of pedagogical technology // M., Pedagogy, 1989, 192 p.
- $[2]\,$ G.K. Selevko. Modern Education Technology: Textbook // M., Education, 1998, 26 p.
- [3] S.O. Baturin. Modern innovative technologies in the school obrazovanii // M., 2001.
- [4] O.V. Odysheva. Information card innovation experience. of the National Project "Education", 2009, pp.1-7





STRENGTHENING OF APPLIED MATHEMATICS TEACHING ORIENTATION

Azatgeldi Ovezov Mahtimkuli Turkmen University, Ashgabat, Turkmenistan e-mail:mircherkez@rambler.ru

Mathematician's ability to conduct rational reasoning is the attribute of thinking. The success of using mathematic to solve practical problems is directly dependent on how the subject is armed in solving problems, by the skills of conducting rational reasoning. Therefore, to form in students initial ability using rational reasoning at the school bench must be considered as an important component of applied way of teaching mathematics. There are the following five most common types of rational arguments in applied mathematics: a) the use of statements that are valid in real cases, but allows to construct the artificial counterexamples; b) the involvement in the process of solving practical considerations; c) the arguments that are based on analogy or experiment; d) the proof based on the consideration of particular cases; e) using the results of the approximate calculation in the absence of a specific assessment of the resulting errors. Directly we can't form these types of rational reasoning in students. In this regard, we identified the following actions that are underlying the above types of reasoning: 1) discarding the redundant features, the choice of missing 2) the reasonable refinement and modification of problem's statement and intermediate results along the solutions, and 3) a reasonable involvement of physical experiments in solution with real content, and 4) replacement of the exact but complicated approximate formula but relatively simple formula, and 5) ensuring consistency between the degrees of precision stages of formalization and intramodel solutions; 6) the exclusion from consideration cases or subtasks that are inadequate to the initial actual situation, 7) model selection with taking into an ease of practical implementation of proposed solutions; 8) compared intramodel result with the original real situation. Connection between the types of rational reasoning and selected actions are shown in table 1.





Coupling between FEM and FDM in one dimension. The interior nodes of the unstructured FEM grid are denoted by stars, while circles and crosses denote nodes, which are shared between the FEM and FDM grids. The circles are interior nodes of the FDM grid, while the crosses are interior nodes of the FEM grid. At each time iteration, FDM solution values at circles are copied to the corresponding FEM solution values, while simultaneously the FEM solution values are copied to the corresponding FDM solution values at cross nodes.

- I.N. Vekua. Generalized Analytic Functions // Fizmatgiz, Moscow, 1959 (Russian), English translation, Pergamon Press. Oxford, 1962.
- [2] Z.D. Usmanov. Infinitesimal bendings of surfaces of positive curvature with a flattening point // Differential Geometry. Banach Center Publications, Warsaw, Vol. 12, 1984, pp. 241-272.
- [3] L.G. Mikhailov. A New Class of Singular Integral Equations and its Applications to Differential Equations with a Singular Coefficient // Irfon, Dushanbe, 1963 (Russian).
- [4] Z.D. Usmanov. Generalized Cauchy-Riemann Systems with a Singular Point // Sib.Math., Vol. 14, No. 5, 1973, pp. 1076-1087 (Russian).





ON THE MODULAR TRAINING FOR STUDENTS OF MATHEMATICAL DISCIPLINES

ZH.S. Suleymenov Al-Farabi Kazakh National University, Almaty, Kazakhstan

At the present stage of development of the educational process of a gradual abandonment of the priority of forming ZUN (Knowledge, skills and abilities) in pure form. The center of attention is transferred to the formation of the ability to self-awareness, ability to solve everyday professional tasks based on the knowledge. These categories are included under the term "competence". Educating a competent person should be the primary ultimate objective of the educational process in schools and universities. Achieving this objective is facilitated if there is an improvement of the educational process of learning to build a modular approach that is based on the predicted order to optimize the workload. The modular approach is based on systematic, structured, dynamic and exible principles.

In general, modular training could be defined as an approach to training, which involves the following: - Student works independently with the curriculum provided to him in the form of modules; -Content and process of development of modules adapted to individual abilities and needs of the learners; - Management of the learning process occurs in a mode of feedback to the establishment of the initial, intermediate and final states of the learner to orient it on the learning objectives; - Interaction between teacher and student is based on a parity basis.

The main object of the modular training is creating exible educational structures, both in content and in providing training, which guarantees the satisfaction of needs, appropriate that time, and which defines a new vector of occurring interest. Tool of the modular training is a module. Usually, the module understands the autonomous organizational and methodological structure of the discipline, which includes teaching objectives, is logically complete unit of learning material (aligned with the inter-subjective and interdisciplinary connections), guidance (including didactic materials) and the control system.

Within a single discipline module is the targeted functional site that combines educational content and methods of training activities on the mastery of this content, i.e. instruction to achieve a goal of teaching and learning activities, individual program, which contains the target action plan, a block of information, guidance on the implementation of self-control, self-esteem, self-analysis. The module includes: 1) an action plan with specific goals; 2) block of information; 3) guidance to achieve these goals.

The module involves the following activities: - At the beginning of the module incoming inspection skills of students to determine their level of preparedness for future work is carried out. When necessary, the correction of knowledge through further explanation is taking place. - It is required to implement the current and intermediate control at the end of each training element. Most often it is self-control, checking the samples, etc. Its goal is to identify gaps in learning levels of educational elements and eliminate them. - After the completion of the module the output control is carried out. Its goal is to reveal the level of assimilation of the module with subsequent modification.

Technology of modular training creates a solid foundation for individual and group self-studies to the students and saves up to 30 percent of training time without sacrificing completeness and depth of the material under study. In addition, the achieved exibility and mobility in the formation of knowledge and skills of students develop their creative and critical thinking.





ON HISTORY OF DEVELOPMENT OF MATHEMATICS

E.J. Tagi-zade, G.Sh. Salayev, S.N. Musayeva Azerbaijan Technical University, Baku, Azerbaijan

It is impossible to imagine our present world without mathematics, application of mathematical knowledge in one or another field of humanity activity. That's why we offer to make a short excursus in dynamics of the mathematics development from ancient times till today, which continue with growing rate about 4-5 thousand years.

Development of mathematics, as well as our life is full of light up idea splashes and its stagnation, triumphs and tragical moments. It is enough to recollect Gipatiy Aleksandriyskiy, fallen a victim of religious fanaticism (V century), Ulubek Taragay, who was killed as a result of conspiracy against him (XV century), Galua Everist, who was lost in 21 years old in a duel for practical motives in days of French revolution in France (XIX century).

In XYIII-XIX centries the swift development of mathematics aroused high progress in many sciences, both scientific and applied plan. In connection with it in our work we made an attempt to show in short how was making contribution to a mathematical science by the countries ancient East, West Europe and Russia. The basic results and mathematics researches making by scientists of ancient times up to now also is briefly described. Then separately was shown directions in mathematics obtaining by those or other scientists and how were formed various sections of mathematics.

Dynamics of mathematics development in Azerbaijan and acquaintance the reader with representatives making contribution to mathematics science of republic are marked out. Then there was given some list of main mathematical organizations, societies and institutes, being world cradle of mathematical science.

Information on awards and winners in mathematics area on a world scale is of interest. It is quite a lot important the acquaintance of reader with mathematical symbolism close connecting with general development of concepts and methods of mathematics.

Certainly, the wide range of questions light up in given work aren't exhaustive and is given enough briefly, but for the first acquaintance is enough interesting. This book can became handbook for many mathematics and students.





OF REVIEW ARTICLES ON THE RESULTS OF SCIENTIFIC SCHOOLS

N. Temirgaliyev L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University e-mail:temirgaliyev_nt@enu.kz

In many ways beneficial, as experience shows, reviews of scientific schools in the context of international mathematics - a quick introduction to the topic, determining the place of results in the development of themes, etc., and finally, the convenience of registration papers and theses. Overview of 2010 [1] is based on 613-page book [2] and materials [3] International Conference "Function theory and computational methods," in 2007 (and four other publications, 2010) and partly a continuation and development of those studies included in the survey [4] of 1997, set out on pages 5-261 edition [2]. The content of the review [1] are topics and subtopics.

Computer width. Functions classes. Algebraic number theory and tensor product of functionals (in combination with harmonic analysis) in the tasks of recovery. Uniformly distributed grid and the problem effectivization Monte Carlo method. Algebraic number theory and harmonic analysis in numerical integration. Application of tensor products of functionals in numerical integration. Reconstruction functions. Discretization of solutions of partial differential equations. Probability-theoretic approach to the problems of analysis. Embedding and approximation theory. Fourier series.

- A.N. Temirgaliev. Computer width. Algebraic number theory and harmonic analysis to problems of recovery (by the quasi-Monte Carlo). Embedding and approximation theory. Fourier series. //Proceeding of L.N.Gumilov ENU, 2010, p. 11-94.
- [2] A.N.Temirgaliev. Matematika: Selected. Science edited by B. S. Kashina // Astana, Izd-vo ENU im. L.N. Gumileva, 2009. pp. 1-613.
- [3] Function theory and computational methods // Proceedings of the International conference on the 60 th anniversary of prof. N. Temirgalieva. Ed. of ENU. Astana-Borovoye, June 5-9, 2007, pp. 1-233.
- [4] A.N. Temirgaliev. Theoretic methods and theoretical and probabilistic approach to problems of analysis // Embedding and approximation theory, absolute convergence and transformations of Fourier series, Vestn. Eurasian University, 1997, No.3, pp. 90-144.





MATHEMATIZATION OF EDUCATION IS THE PRIMARY CONCERN OF TECHNICAL EDUCATION QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

Saule J. Tynybekova

D. Serikbaev East Kazakhstan Technical University, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Kazakhstan e-mail:hisamiev@mail.ru

These days higher school teachers face the issue of the quality of higher education as the main criterion of an expert's competence is his/her achievement of such a level that allows to be a claimed expert in any country of the world on receiving corresponding education and qualification. And exact

and engineering sciences in the sphere of higher education are higher-priority at the new stage of education development. In this connection mathematical education plays an important part. Considering the issue of fundamental education it is impossible to overlook basic mathematical knowledge. It is very important, because in engineering education the solution of technical problems in many respects depende on the relationship between mathematical abusical archiver.

in many respects depends on the relationship between mathematical, physical, technical and other knowledge. In this connection mathematical preparation of engineers-to-be is considered on the one hand a necessary means for studying general technical disciplines, on the other, a device for solving professional

necessary means for studying general technical disciplines, on the other, a device for solving professional tasks. In this aspect mathematical education should not stop with the end of the core course in Mathematics. We the need for optional courses in Mathematics, without which it is impossible to design mathematical models of technical processes.

Mathematical preparation of a future engineering should be continuous, i.e. the knowledge of the general course in Mathematics should be applied in special courses, the content of which is variable and is connected to students' specialization. Special courses in Higher Mathematics will provide mathematical apparatus for qualitative mathematical preparation of university graduates of various specializations within the framework of the selected specialty. Course and degree projects should naturally follow special courses, as they require mathematical knowledge. Such approach will allow to shorten the gap between the Mathematics studied as a general course, and the Mathematics used in practical activities for solving professional tasks.

The structure of mathematical preparation of a technical university student should be such that each subsequent level should be based on the previous one: 1- Higher Mathematics, 2 - special courses in Higher Mathematics, 3 - course project work together with major sub-departments, 4 - mathematical provision of degree projects.

Taking into account the role of Mathematics in technical universities and the objectives of the study of Mathematics, we have introduced the sequence of the study of Higher Mathematics sub-disciplines according to the State Standards. After the general course there come special courses in Mathematics, directly related to students' future profession.

Thus, the concept of professional applied orientation of training university students in Mathematics is implemented in practice.





AN INVESTIGATION ABOUT HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS' MATHEMATICS ANXIETY LEVEL ACCORDING TO SOME VARIABLES

Figen Uysal, Aylin Selışık Bilecik University, Turkey Selahattin Şeker Anatolia Hotel Menegment and Tourizm Vocational High School, Turkey e-mail:figen.uysal@bilecik.edu.tr, aylinselisik@gmail.com

Mathematics anxiety is one of important components of mathematics classroom. The mathematics anxiety which have both emotional and cognitive structures is one of the most important affective factors that have influence on the attitude and achievement of the students (Bessant 1995). Negative attitudes and mathematics anxiety are identified as barriers in learning mathematics and attending courses and jobs/careers which require mathematics (Baloğlu, 2010). For this reason, to investigate stundents' mathematics anxiety level and reason of this is the one of the most important issues of mathematics education.

In this study, we investigated high school students' mathematics anxiety level according to school type, perceived primary and secondary mathematics teachers' attitude and gender. For data collection, "Mathematics Anxiety Questionnaire" which developed by Dede (2008) was used. The questionnaire has four foctors: Individual Anxiety, Peer Anxiety, Task anxiety, Test Anxiety. The questionnaire was administered to 76 high school students in the one of the city of Central Anatolia. Data analysis involved descriptive and inferential statistics. A significance level of 0.05 was set for all inferential tests. Data analyzing show that the anxiety level of the students is quite high. After analyzing data, there were considerable statistical differences among students' mathematics anxiety levels according to perceived primary school mathematics teachers' attitude at task anxiety factor. We also had the same results at school type variable. On the other hand, there was no significant difference among mathematics anxiety level of the students according to perceived middle school teachers' attitude and gender.

- K.C. Bessant. Factors associated with types of mathematics anxiety in college students // Journal for Research in Mathematics Education, 1995, No.26, pp. 327-345.
- [2] O. Birgin, M. Baloğlu, H. Çatlıoğlu, R. Gürbüz. An investigation of mathematics anxiety among sixth through eighth grade students in Turkey // Learning and Individual Differences, 2010, No.20, pp. 654-658.
- [3] Y. Dede. Mathematics Anxiety Questionnaire: Development and Validation // Essays in Education, Vol.23, Winter 2008.





"UNDERSTANDABLE" STRANGE NOTIONS AND OTHER "VERMIN" OF PROFESSIONAL MATHEMATICS IN SCHOOL MATHEMATICS

N. Temirgaliyev, M.A. Zhajnibekova, K.E. Vokaze L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan Institute of Theoretical Mathematics and Scientific Computations, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:temirgaliyev_nt@enu.kz

As you know, all used in math concepts and terms must be made in strict definition, which is mainly done in the school mathematics course, taking into account the age factor of students.

Nevertheless, in our view, a number of important concepts in school mathematics is applied without any explanation for granted that can not pay its share of difficulties in learning this, is not related to an easily accessible, discipline.

Identified a number of mathematical concepts, which at the school level require explanation: the set, the quantity, variable, dependent variable, function as the dependent variable, compliance, dependence, formula, direct and inverse proportionality; scope; range.

There are things that should be left without the inherent professional mathematics (school math as a glow of understanding of the mathematics with its objectives and subordinate to its content rules) through the formalization of the definition.

With regard to some of them, such as a set, match, dependence can restrict ourselves to the explanation of examples, without any formalized: "The concept of the set taken as the basic, ie not reducible to other concepts "- we read in [1, p.5-6]. Meaning of the term "set" can be illustrated by examples, as well as, for example, under "housing" can be understood as the house, hut, cottage, villa, apartment, or as a "stationery" understand the pen, pencil, eraser, notebook, paper. The notion of "correspondence" used in school mathematics in the usual sense with the simultaneous involvement of the words "relationship", etc., as a synonym;

Others, such as *value* and *variable*, should be consumed with great caution, if only to "do no harm" And quite renounce the *dependent variable* and *independent variable or argument of function* name symbol, which denotes an arbitrary element of the function definition.

Thirdly, the type of formula - in the development of a particular situation. "Formula - an expression of a formalized language designed for writing judgments. … In practice, the mathematical formula known as meaningful combination of symbols that carry a variety of semantic meaning" We read in [2, p. 637]. But such a definition is too difficult to understand students. Attempts to clarify what is meant by a "formula" we do not find in textbooks, operating in Kazakhstan.

Fourthly - type "domain of definition" is replaced by "set of definition" Better than in the definition of the term "domain" of the term "set"? The term "area" in a professional mathematics means "open connected set".

Fifth - such as "directly proportional" to apply only after a clear-cut definitions. Apparently, in the general case of direct proportionality should be defined as a function of the form f(x) = kx, and the inverse proportionality - as a function of the form $f(x) = \frac{k}{x}$ with a description f of the rules in the form of "algorithm", followed by comments by the identities of $\frac{y}{x} = \frac{f(x)}{x} \equiv k$ and $y \cdot x = f(x) \cdot x \equiv k$ (see [3, pp. 60,65]).

And finally, We must confess that I do not quite understand is widely used in mathematics, the term "concept", which, apparently, it is necessary to devote a separate study.

- [1] I.V. Proskuryakov. Chisla i Mnogochleny // 2-e izd., M.: Prosveshenie, 1965, 284 p. (Russian).
- [2] Matematicheskaya Enciklopediya. Vol.5, M., Sov. enciklopediya, 1977, 1052 p. (Russian).
- [3] N. Temirgaliev, B. Aubakir, E. Bailov, M.K. Potapov, K. Sherniyazov. Algebra i Nachala Analiza, 10-11 klassy // A., "Zhazushy", 2002, 422 p. (Russian).





ON PRESENTATION OF THE FUNCTIONS IN SCHOOL MATHEMATICS

M.A. Zhajnibekova, K.E. Vokaze L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University, Astana, Kazakhstan e-mail:zhanbanukz@mail.ru

The notion of function relates to the central concepts of mathematics in general, particularly for School Mathematics.

The history of the concept of functions pervades the whole history of mathematics from antiquity to the time of Dedekind (1887), Lobachevski (1834), Dirichlet (1837), and according to some views (e.g., A. Church (1960) This concept should be attributed to the initial or undetectable. All this once again underlines the complexity of learning the concept of function, especially in high school.

Secondary school teachers and university professors of Soviet and post-Soviet era have gained various experience in teaching this topic. It seems to us common way to determine the function of the sequence of the variable as something changing, the independent variable, the dependent variable and function as a definite relationship between the variables, on a plan designed to facilitate, in fact, creates a formidable obstacle to understanding.

In order to make it more comprehensible students is a complex concept of mathematics, discuss the main points that need to be, in our opinion, to consider the study of functions in high school.

- (1) The introduction of the function is necessary to discuss each key word (x argument, the rule f, the value of the function f(x), the set of definitions, a set of valid values) in the definition [1, p.24].
- (2) "Rule" is the same as a law, and an algorithm, and compliance.
- (3) Teach students to write an analytic function to formulate a rule that a given function describes, "as well as" has to be taken out and vice versa, according to the verbal formulation of rules to be able to write it analytically.
- (4) Algorithmic definition of the function should be used when setting studied in the school of numerical functions.
- (5) With proper study of the concept of a function, students are free to give examples of functions from the surrounding reality.
- (6) Students should recognize correspondences among those that are and are not functions.
- (7) A visual representation of the function is its geometric interpretation is a more detailed study of the coordinate system in conjunction number the point.
- (8) Need to develop students' skills of working with graphs of functions, build them with the transition.

Our goal is to clarify the definition of the rules, the algorithm of the law applied to the argument x as a symbolic designation of an arbitrary element of its set of tasks. At the same time refrain from the notion of "dependent variable", focuses on skill to clearly specify in each case the argument, the rule specifying the function, the set of values. To consolidate the concepts proposed by the students to make the problem

During the trainings on working with the definition of the functions of students to set clear and correct perception of a function.

References

 N. Temirgaliyev, B. Aubakir, E. Bailov, M.K. Potapov, K. Sherniyazov. Algebra i nachala analiza, 10-11 klassy // Almaty, "Zhazushy", 2002 (Russian).

LIST OF AUTHORS

Abasov R.Z. 507 Abbasova Sh. 460 Abdalla A. 320, 429 Abdibekov A.U. 411 Abdibekov U.S. 445 Abdigaliyeva A.N. 411 Abdikalikova G.A. 138 Abdraimova M.A. 61 Abdullaev V.D. 412 Abdullah Altin 160 Abdullayev A.A. 139 Abdullayev V.M. 140, 356 Abdullayeva R. A. 485 Abdurahmanov V.A. 302 Abdykassymova S.A. 81 Abdyldaeva E. 62 Abdymanapov S.A. 289 Abedi E. 15, 41 Abikenova Sh. 141 Ablabekova C.A. 77 Absattar B.B. 504 Abylkairov U.U. 142, 143 Abylkassymova Alma 508 Agamalieva L.F. 350 Aghazadeh Nasser 64 Ahmadkhanlu A. 148 Ahmadova R.Y. 433 Ahmet Shahiner 121 Ahmet Yucesan 58 Aidarov K. 355 Aida-zade K. R. 358, 359, 360, 361, 356, 357 Aidos E.Zh. 6 Aidosov G.A. 413, 422, 431 Aidossov A.A. 422, 431 Aitbaev K.A. 145 Aitzhanov S.E. 143 Aitkozhin Kosybai 509 Akanbai N. 146, 147 Akbulut Selman 39 Akhazhanov T.B. 65 Akhmanova D.M. 149 Akhmedov A.M. 120 Akhmed-Zaki D.Zh. 144, 414, 488 Akhmetkaliyeva R. 150 Akhtaeva N. 179 Akhundov H.S. 368 Akhundova E.M. 173 Akin O. Atagun 491 Akishev T.B. 344 Akturk T. 182 Akysh A.Sh. 151 Akzhalova A. Zh. 488

Akzhigitov E.A. 152 Alberto Cabada 292 Aldibekov T.M. 153 Alekperova I.T. 362 Aleksejeva J. V. 416 Alexeyeva L. A. 7, 154, 417 Ali Aral 133 Ali Kursat Erumit 517 Ali Mutli 49 Ali S.Nazlipinar 372 Ali Ulger 5 Alibayeva K. A. 363 Aliev S.A. 313 Aliev A.B. 155 Aliev A.M. 156, 157, 158 Aliev A.R. 67 Aliev C.M. 76 Aliev F.A. 318, 410 Aliev N.A. 156, 157, 189, 266 Aliev T.M. 491 Alieva A.C. 76 Alimov J. 298 Alimzhanov Y.S. 159 Alirahymovich A.A. 323 Aliyev N.A. 197 Aliyeva N.T. 299, 300 Alymkulov K. 162 Amanbayev T. R. 418 Amangaliyeva M.M. 132, 163 Ametov O.A. 419 Amikishiev V.Q. 493 Amirgaliyev Y. N. 496 Amirkhanova G.A. 420 Amirov R.Kh. 164 Aniyarov A.A. 165 Apakov Y.P. 166 Arazov G.T. 421 Aripov M. 167, 510 Arkabaev N.K 276 Arslanov M.Z. 364 Artykova J. 388 Asadova J.A. 365, 357 Asadova O.G. 158, 168 Asanbekovich B. B. 9 Asanov A. 169 Asanova A.T. 170 Asghary Nasim 507 Ashigaliev D. 489 Ashirbaev B.Y. 380 Ashirov A. 68 Ashrafova Y.R. 358, 366 Ashurova D.N. 510

Ashyralyev A. 171 Asif Yokus 295 Askerov I.M. 367 Aslanov G.I. 172 Aslanova N.M. 71 Aslhan Sezgin 491 Aslonov F.B. 101, 381, 382 Assilbekov B.K. 322, 490 Assylbekov Y. M. 40 Asylbekov T.D. 162 Ataeva J. 198 Attokurova Anarkan 516 Aulanbergenov A.A. 478 Ayca Cebi 517 Aylin Selisik 524 Aytekin M.O. Anwar 160 Azanova Alina 188 Azhgaliev Sh.U. 129, 130 Azhikhanov N.T. 505 Azimbaev M.A. 175 Azizov F.Dzh. 302 Babak Khabiri 305 Babanly V.Y. 423, 424 Babayeva S.F. 250 Babolian E. 336 Badaev S.A. 69 Badalova K.G. 172 Baegizova A.S. 154 Bahtiyar Salamov 487 Bailov Ye. 321 Baimukhametov A.A. 425, 432 Bairamov Elgiz 322 Baizakov A.B. 145, 376 Baizhanov B.S. 70 Bakirbaev B. 413 Bakirova E.A. 176 Baltaeva U.I. 177 Basak Gever 100 Baskonus H.M. 326 Bayachorova B. J. 479 Baydauletov A.T. 511 Bayramoglu M. 71 Bayramov S. 31 Bayramova N.V. 178 Bazarov E. 404 Beisembetov I.K. 490 Beisenbaeva K. 8 Bekbauov B. E. 427, 428 Bekibaev T.T. 322, 490 Bekmanova G. 468 Bektenaliev I. 175, 223 Belov N.A. 441 Belyayev Ye. 320, 429 Berdyshev A.S. 179, 180, 244 Berezhnoy V. A. 202 Bersugar M. 476

Bibossinov A. Zh. 428, 430 Bilal Sh. 125 Bilalov B.T. 72 Bliev N.K. 181 Bogdanov E.A. 343 Bokayev N.A. 73 Bolatbek R. 323 Boranbayev A.S. 451, 471, 492, 511, Boranbayev S.N. 325, 451, 471, 511 Borubaev A.A. 74, 75 Bulent Karakas 42 Bulut H. 182, 326 Burgumbayeva S. 183 Burnashev V.F. 458 Cabada A. 180 Calik S. 303 Cem Tezer 39 Chamashev M. 185 Chasemi Habashi Y.A. 341 Chekeev A.A. 61, 74, 77, 78, 112 Chinchaladze N. 186 Curbuza E. 386 Dadakhodjaev R.A. 117 Dadashova I.B. 512 Dadvand R. 333 Dairbaeva G. 187, 282 Dairbekov N.S. 79 Danaev N.T. 414, 431, 421 Dauylbayev M.K. 188 Delshad Gharehgheshlaghi A.Y. 189 Deniz Aral 63 Djumabaev D.Kh. 80 Dogan Kaya 268, 295 Drobishev S.V. 373 Dujsengalieva B. 191 Dumitru Baleanu 160 Dursun Tasci 33 Duygu Donmez Demir 327 Dyshin O.A. 346 Dyussenbina A. B. 328 Dzhabarzadeh R.M. 11 Dzhalladova I.A. 304 Dzholdoshev B.O. 384 Dzhumabaev D.S. 79 Dzhumadil'daev A. S. 10, 12, 45, 81 Ebru Cavlak 214 Efendiev R.F. 192 Egorov A.K. 432 Elbably A.L. 67 Eleuov A.A. 193 El-Hadidi A.M. 194 Elif T. Tarim 457 Elomov F.Z. 232 El-Shabrawy S.R. 120 Emrah Yilmaz 295 Emre Eroglu 433, 508

Erdal Bas 184, 426, 482 Ersin Ozugurlu 461 Ersin Sener 433, 508 Ezzati R. 307, 329 Fahd Jarad 160 Fahreddin Abdullayev 63 Farrokh Mobadersani 324 Fatemeh Bonakdar 324 Fatemi M.R. 197 Fatma Ayaz 160 Fatma Gecit 305 Fattayev H.D. 13 Ferdag Kahraman 48 Fethi Halici 32 Feyziev F.G. 338 Figen Ozpinar 259 Figen Uysal 513, 524 Formanov Sh. 196 Fulya Ozge Caglar 55 Gabbasov M. 439 Gadjiev A.D. 60 Gadjiev T.S. 263 Gadjiyev A.G. 308 Gaffarov R. 27 Galaev A.S. 14 Garajaev A. 198 Gasanov K.K. 204 Gashimova T.E. 314 Gasimov G.G. 369 Gasimov G.R. 199, 200 Gasimov Y.S. 353 Gavibov T. Sh. 370 Gebel E.S. 342 Geldiyev H.A. 503 Ghuseynov A.G. 330 Gingulis E. 464 Gofurov A.A. 84 Grechko S.M. 420 Guldu Y. 164 Guliev M.A. 194 Guliev M. F. 440 Guliyev A.F. 201 Guliyev A.P. 341 Guliyev E. 85, 480 Guliyev H.F. 246, 400 Guliyev S.Z. 371, 359, 379, Guliyeva A.M. 253 Gulsah Kartal M. 58 Guner M. 85 Guseinova N.I. 346 Guseinov Khalik 372 Gusein-Zade S.M. 5 Guseynov Sharif 202, 373, 416, 464 Guseynov S.G. 203 Guseynova Kh.T. 204 Hacisalihoglu H. H. 48

Haghighatdoost G. 15 Haghighi Ahmad Reza 324, 333, 435, 454, 507 Halilov V.S. 302 Hamidova G.J. 205 Hamzayev K.M. 374 Hasanov J. Z. 497 Hasanov K.Q. 375 Hasanov Rovshan 514 Hasanova L.K. 375 Hayati Olgar 174 Hikmet Koyunbakan 295 Holmatov Sh.Yu. 86 Hudaykuliyev B. 207 Husainov A.A. 16 Huseyin Albayrak 66 Huseyin Sayan H. 346 Huseynov T.H. 208 Huseynov H.M. 190 Huseynov S.I. 210 Huseynov S.T. 306 Huseynova A.T. 208 Huseynova N.Sh. 209 Huseynova R.B. 389 Ibadov N.V. 87, 88 Ibatullin I.Zh. 191 Ibraeva G. T. 317 Ibragimov A.A. 331 Ibrahim E. Inan 121, 268 Ibrahim Guney 433, 508 Ibrahim Guney 508 Ibrahim Koldanca 346 Ibrahimova G.N. 493 Ilmakchi M. 41 Ilvasov M.H. 211 Ilyassov M.N. 89 Imanaliev M.I. 376 Imanaliev T.M. 212, 376 Imanaliev Z.K. 380 Imanbaev N.S. 90 Imanberdiyev K.B. 163 Imankul T.Sh. 213 Imanov M. H. 377, 378 Isakhov A. 137 Isim G. Demiriz 457 Iskakov K. T. 332, 347, 470 Iskandarov S. 217, 383 Iskenderov N.Sh. 215 Iskenderova D.A. 216, 473 Ismail Gok 48 Ismailov B. 436 Ismailov F.S. 346 Ismailov Kh.B. 436 Ismailov M.I. 215 Ismailov Navazi A. 410 Ismailov Navazi.A. 367 Ismailov N.A. 45

Ismavil J.K. 17 Ismayilov E.A. 299, 437 Ismavilov E.A. 299 Ismet Yuksel 134 Ismibeyli R.E. 379 Israfilov D.M. 91 Itskova P. G. 438 Jabbarov I.Sh. 88, 92 Jafari A. 333 Jafari M. 25 Jafarov R.G. 218 Jafarov Sadulla 93 Jafarzadeh Y. 307 Jahanshahi M. 148, 214, 266, 267 Jaichibekov N. 439 Jainakov A.J. 380 Jalilov A.A. 94 Jalolov F.I. 382 Jalolov I.I. 334 Jalolov O.I. 381, 396 Jamalbayov M.A. 440 Jamilov U.U. 95 Jamshidi Pour 190 Jantakbaeva A.M. 96 Japarova Z.A. 383 Jenaliyev M.T. 149, 163 Jumaev D. 97 Jumagalieva A. 418 Juraev I. 19 Juraev M. 479 Kabanikhin S.I. 219 Kabdrakhova S.S. 220 Kadenova Z. 169 Kadirbayeva Zh.M. 221 Kadriye Aydemir 174 Kadymov V.A 441 Kaishibayeva G.K. 417 Kalantarov Varga K. 352 Kalieva A.K. 85 Kalimoldayev M.N. 420, 496, 501 Kalmenov T.Sh. 136, 222, 285, 286 Kaltayev A. 320, 363, 427, 429 Kanetov B.E. 75 Kanguzhin B.E. 98, 193 Karabaeva S.J. 494 Karabalayeva M. Kh. 442, 468 Karimov E.T. 180 Karimov J. A. 20 Karimov S. 175, 223 Kasimov V. 83 Kassymbekova A.S. 224 Kasumov A.B. 308 Kasymova T.J. 74, 78 Kazemi Balgeshir M.B. 99 Kazymov A.A. 155 Kelimbetova A.S. 490

Kenzhaliev B.K. 490 Kenzhebaev K. 226 Kerimbayev R. K. 17 Khabeev N.S. 443 Khajiyeva L.A. 227 Khalkhujaev A.M. 239 Khaniyev T. 100 Khankishiyev Z.F. 228 Khanmamedov A.Kh. 229, 240 Kharin S.N. 444 Khasanov A.B. 230, 262, 293 Khayatov Kh.U. 101 Khikmetov A.K. 445 Khisamiev N. G. 21 Kholiyarov E. Ch. 232, 466 Khompysh Kh. 142 Khoroshko M.N. 360 Khusainov D. 231 Khusanbaev Ya.M. 309 Khuzhayorov B.Kh. 232 Kopezhanova A. 102 Koshanov B.D. 233 Koyunbakan H. 260 Kozhabayev K.G. 515 Krass M.S. 455 Kuanov T. 439 Kudabayeva S. 234 Kudaykulovich K A. 446 Kudryavtsev A.A. 343 Kukharenko O. 235 Kuliev A.A. 85, 480 Kulpeshov B.Sh. 22 Kulzhumiyeva A. 236 Kumalakov B. A. 488 Kungozhin A. 23, 28 Kupchishin A. I. 469 Kupchishin A.A. 469 Kurbonov Sh.H. 103 Kurmanalieva R.N. 384 Kussainova L. 237 Kuttykozhaeva Sh.N. 448 Kydyrbekuly A.B. 447 Lakaev S.N. 238 Lakaev Sh.S. 239 Lakestani Mehrdad 64 Larin V. B. 24 Latipova D.A. 238 Lelevkina L.G. 449 Lukyanova N.A. 310 Madiyarov M.N. 450 Mahameed M. 389 Maharramov Sh. 386 Mahatova S. 114 Mahmoodi Z. 336 Mahmudova M.G. 240 Mahmut Ergut 43, 46, 46, 50

Maimanov E.M. 451 Majidzadeh K.M. 452 Malek F. 99 Malgazhdarov E.A. 337 Mamadaliev N.K. 241 Mamedov E.M. 242 Mamedov R.S. 243 Mamedova K.N. 263 Mamedova Y.V. 453 Mammadhasanov E.H. 255 Mammadli A.G. 247 Mammadov R.M. 433 Mammadova G.G. 338 Mammadova N.B. 275 Mammadova Z. 100 Mamutova D.S. 244 Mansimov K.B. 387 Mansurova M. 495 Mardanov I. J. 353 Mardanov M.C. 378 Masanov Zh.K. 505 Maslak G.K. 454 Masmaliev H.M. 229 Matanova K. 245 Matei K. 344 Matieva G. 104, 388, 516 Matin D.T. 105 Matkerim B. 414 Mausumbekova S.D. 339 Mayemerova G.M. 249 Mehdiyev A.A. 246 Mehmet Bektas 43, 57 Mehmet Kayalar 225, 268 Mehmet Tekkoyun 55 Mehraliyev Y.T. 253, 274 Mehrdad Ahmadi Kamarposhti 305 Mekhtieva M.R. 338 Melby A.K. 474 Memmedaga Memmedli 311, 312 Mendebaev T. 478 Merzlikin V.G. 455 Metin A. 303 Mihriban Kulahci 50 Mikail Et 195 Minglibayev M.Zh. 249 Minglibayeva B.B. 248 Mirzoyev S.S. 250 Mobadersani F. 454 Moldabaev S.K. 344 Morevs P. 464 Muhittin Evren Aydin 46, 46 Mukanov Zh.B. 106 Mukanova B.G. 390 Mukhanova A.A. 26 Mukhtarov O. Sh. 174 Mukimbekov M.Zh. 456

Muminov K. K. 27 Muminov Z. I. 251 Muminova G.A. 238 Munevver Yildirim Yilmaz 57 Murat Karakash 195 Murat Olgun 256 Murat Sat 225, 268 Muratbekov M.B. 252 Muratbekov M.M. 252 Murzabekov Z.N. 391 Murzabekova G.Y. 107 Musabayev R.R. 496 Musaev D.K. 108 Musaev G.K. 109 Musayeva S.N. 521 Mussagulova G. 495 Mussiraliyeva Sh. 340 Mustafa Inc 214 Mustafayev E. E. 497 Mustafayeva T.M. 392 Mustafin S. A. 457 Mutallimov M.M. 341, 407 Mynbaev K.T. 110 Nabiev I.M. 205 Nabiyev V. Vasif 517 Naim Cagman 303 Naimanova A.Zh. 320, 429 Naizabayeva L. 322 Najafov T.I. 111 Nakibayeva M. 495 Namazov G.K. 253, 274 Namazov M.A. Namazova G.O. 112 Nasibov F. 82 Nasibov S. M. 440 Nasibov Sh. M. 254 Nauruzbayeva R. M. 51 Nauryzbayev N.T. 113 Navidi M.M. 313 Nazan Yildiz 433 Nazarov U.A. 458 Necdet Bildik 49, 181, 327 Necdet Catalbas 184, Nechipurenko Y.D. 416 Nejat Ekmekci 40 Niftiyev A. A. 209, 255 Nigmatulin R.I. 409 Nikadambaeva Kh.B. 510 Nizamitdinov Akhlitdin 312 Nurdan Tokatli 457 Nurettin Dogan 190 Nurimov B. 289 Nuriyeva F. 335 Nurlybaevna N. E. 446 Nurmoldin Ye. 114 Nurpeyissov Y.N. 448

Nursultanov E. 115 Nurtazin A. 28 Nurtazina K. 459 Ochilova N.T. 334, 396 Ogrenmis A. 43 Oinarov R. 99. 234 Okuyucu O. Zeki 40 Omarov B.S. 456 Omer Akin 190, 415 Omer Oruc 415 Omorov T.T. 384 Omuraliev A.S. 393 Oralbekova Z. O. 332 Orazov I.O. 124 Orshubekov N.A. 257 Orujova M. 460 Osman Gursoy 47 Ospanov K.N. 258 Ostonov K. 518 Ostonov M. 518 Otelbaev M. 29, 237 Ovezov Azatgeldi 519 Ozer Ozdemir 311, 312 Oznur Olmez 116 Pachshenko G.N. 498 Paksov V. E. 52 Panahov A. A. 358 Panakhov Etibar 260, 260, 426 Pankov P.S. 479 Pankratova I.N. 30 Parenti-Castelli V. 408 Partal T. 182 Pavlyuk D.V. 373 Pelin Ozkartepe 63 Pirzada S. 31 Radjabov M.F. 410 Rafatov I.R. 343 Rafatov R.R. 394 Ragimov F.G. 313, 314 Rahimov A. B. 361 Raikhan M. 261 Raimova G. 196 Rakhimov A.A. 117 Rakhimova D.R. 499 Rakisheva Z. 462 Ramazan Akgun 118 Ramazanov M.I. 149 Ramazanova G.I. 483 Rashid A. 326 Rashidinia J. 336 Rasulov A. 196 Rasulov T.H. 119 Razakhova B.Sh. 463 Resat Yilmazer 184, 426, 482 Reyimberganov A.A. 230, 262 Rifat Colak 44

Rimshans S. Janis 202, 464 Rustamov S.S. 465 Rustamova L. A. 466 Rustem Kaya 49 Rustemova K.Zh. 271 Rysbajuly B. 344 Rzayev E.A. 199, 200 Sadenov A.E. 500 Sadigov A.M. 354 Sadigova N.R. 263 Sadigova S.R. 72 Sadullaeva Sh.A. 167 Sadybekov M.A. 264 Sadygov M.A. 385 Safarova N.A. 353, 410 Sagindykov K. 265 Sahaev Sh.S. 143 Sajjadmanesh M. 214, 266 Sakhaev S.Sh. 142 Sakhaev Sharipkhan 269 Sakhariev B.B. 490 Salamov A.A. 493 Salayev G.Sh. 521 Salih Aytar 116, 301, 305 Salimov A. A. 32 Salvbek L. 489 Samigulina G.A. 501 Sancisi N. 408 Sapakova S.Z. 284 Sarakhsi A.R. 267 Sardarova R.A. 362 Sarsenbi A.M. 122 Sarsenov B.T. 345 Sartabanov Zh. 226 Satekbaeva A.J. 26 Sattinova Z.K. 483 Satybaldina D. Zh. 502 Sautbekova M. 123 Savurbaev A.S. 466 Schiptsov O.V. 464 Seilgazin D.K. 288 Selcuk Keskin 335 Selmahan Selim 457 Senay Baydas 42 Sengul M. 386 Serdar Enginoglu 303 Serkan Ilter 352 Serkan Karatas 303 Sermin Ozturk 259 Serovajsky S. 395 Serpil Halici 32, 66 Serpil Pehlivan 66 Seyhan Sahin 37 Seyhmus Yardimci 198 Seyisov Y.B. 503 Shadimetov Kh.M. 396

Shafiyeva G.Kh. 274 Shafizadeh E.R. 315 Shahmaliev U.A. 493 Shahmorad S. 280, 336 Shakenov K. 397 Shakenov I.K. 270 Shaldanbaev A.Sh. 124, 222, 271, 273 Shaldanbaeva A.A. 272 Shaldykova B.A. 149 Shalenova S.M. 273 Sharafev A.SH. 436 Sharifov Y.A. 275, 362, 398 Sharifova A.M. 467, 497 Sharipbayev A. A. 463, 481 Sharipov O.Sh. 94 Sharypbaev A. 468 Sheishenova S.K. 393 Sherniazov K. E. 475 Sheyda Altinkol 161 Shikhlinskaya R.Y. 315 Shishlenin M.A. 219 Shmygaleva T.A. 469 Sholpanbaev B.B. 470 Sidorov O.V. 455 Simge Oztune 49 Simten Bayrakchi 161 Sirnebaeva Zh.Zh. 105 Smailov E.S. 126 Solonin E.V. 342 Sopuev A. 276 Sudoplatov S.V. 70 Suleimanov B.A. 346 Sulejmenov K. 127 Suleyman Senyurt 53 Suleymenov ZH.S. 520 Suragan D. 277 Tabar E. 480 Taberkhan R. N. 471 Tadumadze T. 399 Tagikbaeva S. 216 Tagiyev H.T. 400 Tagiyev M.M. 278, 279 Tagi-zade E.J. 521 Taha Y. Ozturk 31 Tahirov M.F. 54, 316 Takhirov J.O. 290 Tansu Alpcan 486 Tari A. 280 Tashatov N.N. 504 Tashpulatov S.M. 128 Tasmambetov Zh.N. 281 Tasmambetova A.Zh. 281 Taugynbaeva G.E. 129, 130, 401 Taymurov R.A. 402 Telgozhaeva F.S. 347 Temesheva S.M. 348

Temirbekov A.N. 349, 472 Temirbekov N.M. 319, 337, 349 Temirbekova L.N. 282 Temirbolat S.E. 257 Temirgaliev N. 113,129,130,141,321,522,525 Temirov M.A. 283 Ten A. V. 34 Ten V.D. 34, 35 Tikhonov S. 115 Tillaboev I.I. 131 Timoshchenko Julia 202 Tlebaev K.B. 469 Tleubergenov M. I. 317 Tleukhanova N. 115 Tokibetov Z.A. 284 Tokmagambetov N.E. 98, 285 Toktorbaev A.M. 473 Toleukhanov A.E. 286 Topko L.V. 403 Torayev A. 287 Tuba Yalcin 260 Tuimebayeva A.E. 132 Tukeyev U.A. 474 Tulenbaev K.M. 45, 56 Tulepbergenov A. K. 475 Tuleuov B. 29 Tuluce S. 326 Tuncer Acar 133 Tungatarov A. 144, 288, 289 Tungatarova M.S. 428 Tungatarovuch B.A. 323 Turan Bugatekin A. 303 Tursunov D.A. 291 Turaev Rasul 290 Turumbetov T.A. 505 Tussupov J.A. 26 Tuz M. 182 Tyleuov G. 418 Tynybekova Saule 523 Tyurehodzhayev A. 576 Ugurliev I. M. O. 455 Ukrainets V.N. 477 Umirbaev U. 36 Ummu Sahin 433, 508 Undirbaev M.S. 478 Urazakov E.I. 479 Urfat Nuriyev 335 Utessov, A. 141 Vasif Eldem 37 Velieva N.I. 318, 350 Verbovskiy V.V. 70, 404 Vokaze K.E. 525, 526 Xoliqov D.K. 206 Yagubov M.A. 389 Yakhshimuratov Alisher 292, 293 Yakup Haci 434

Yakut H. 480 Yasemin Demirel 181 Yasemin Yay 58 Yavuz Ugurlu 121, 268 Yavuz Ugurlu 268 Yayli Y. 25 Yelda Aygar 256 Yeliussizov D. 10 Yeraliyev A.K. 351 Yeshkeyev A. R. 38 Yessenbayev Z. A. 481 Yessenbekov S.T. 294 Yilmaz E. 260 Yuksel Dede 513 Yuldashev Z. Kh. 506, 510 Yuldasheva A.V. 296 Yuldasheva Mina 506 Yunicheva N.R. 405 Yusubov Sh.Sh. 397 Yusuf Yayli 40 Zabihullo o'gli J.G. 18

Zakiryanova G.K. 297 Zalyubovskaya Y.A. 403 Zaurbekov N.S. 422 Zeinullina A. A. 457 Zeynali M. 336 Zeynalov C.I. 255 Zeynep Akyuz 66 Zeynep Fidan Kocak 259 Zhajnibekova M.A. 525, 526 Zhakebayev D.B. 411 Zhapbasbayev U.K. 322, 483, 490 Zhubanysheva A.Zh. 135, 321 Zhumagulov B. T. 137, 411, 445, 456, 505 Zhumanov Zh.M. 474 Zhumatov S.S. 406 Zhunisbekov P.Z. 478 Zhunussov K. 484 Zhunussova Z. KH. 59 Zhusupova D. 29 Ziari S. 329 Zulfuqarova R.T. 407